
 

 

Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District 

Governing Board Regular Meeting 

 

Agenda 
LOCATION 

ANTELOPE VALLEY AQMD 

DISTRICT OFFICE 

43301 DIVISION ST., SUITE 206 

LANCASTER, CA 93535 

661.723.8070 

 

TUESDAY, JULY 20, 2021 

10:00 A.M. 

BOARD MEMBERS 

Marvin Crist, Chair, City of Lancaster 

Austin Bishop, Vice Chair, City of Palmdale 

Ron Hawkins, Los Angeles County 

Howard Harris, Los Angeles County 

Ken Mann, City of Lancaster 

Steven Hofbauer, City of Palmdale 

Newton Chelette, Public Member 

THIS MEETING IS BEING HELD IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE BROWN ACT AS 

CURRENTLY IN EFFECT UNDER THE STATE EMERGENCY SERVICES ACT, THE 

GOVERNOR'S EMERGENCY DECLARATIONs RELATED TO COVID-19, AND THE 

GOVERNOR'S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-08-21 ISSUED ON JUNE 11, 2021 THAT ALLOWS 

ATTENDANCE BY MEMBERS OF THE DISTRICT, DISTRICT STAFF, AND THE PUBLIC 

TO PARTICIPATE AND CONDUCT THE MEETING BY TELECONFERENCE, 

VIDEOCONFERENCE, OR BOTH.      

JOIN BY PHONE, DIAL US: +1.701.802.5348; ENTER ACCESS CODE:  5765772    

IF YOU CHALLENGE ANY DECISION REGARDING ANY OF THE LISTED PROPOSALS 

IN COURT, YOU MAY BE LIMITED TO RAISING ONLY THOSE ISSUES YOU OR 

SOMEONE ELSE RAISED DURING THE PUBLIC TESTIMONY PERIOD REGARDING 

THAT PROPOSAL OR IN WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE DELIVERED TO THE 

GOVERNING BOARD TELEPHONICALLY OR OTHERWISE ELECTRONICALLY AT, OR 

PRIOR TO, THE PUBLIC HEARING.       

DUE TO TIME CONSTRAINTS AND THE NUMBER OF PERSONS WISHING TO PROVIDE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS, PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE LIMITED TO FIVE MINUTES PER 

COMMENT.       

1 of 527



 2 

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE BOARD MAY ADDRESS ITEMS IN THE AGENDA IN A 

DIFFERENT ORDER THAN THE ORDER IN WHICH THE ITEM HAS BEEN POSTED.     

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ANY AGENDA ITEM WILL BE HEARD AT THE TIME OF 

DISCUSSION OF THE AGENDA ITEM.  PUBLIC COMMENTS NOT PERTAINING TO 

AGENDA ITEMS WILL BE HEARD DURING THE PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD BELOW.    

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDIZED ITEMS MAY BE SUBMITTED VIA EMAIL TO 

PUBLICCOMMENT@AVAQMD.CA.GOV  AT LEAST TWO HOURS PRIOR TO THE START 

OF THE MEETING. 

 

2 of 527



 3 

CALL TO ORDER  10:00 A.M. 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Roll Call 

Items with potential Conflict of Interests — If you believe you have a conflict of interest, 

please recuse yourself at the appropriate time. If you have a question regarding a potential 

conflict of interest, please contact District Counsel.   

PUBLIC COMMENT 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

The following consent items are expected to be routine and non-controversial and will be 

acted upon by the Board at one time without discussion unless a Board Member requests 

an item be held for discussion under DEFERRED ITEMS. 

1. Approve Minutes from Regular Governing Board Meeting of June 15, 2021. 

2. Monthly Grant Funding Summary.  Receive and file.  Presenter:  Bret Banks, 

Executive Director/APCO. 

3. Monthly Activity Report.  Receive and file.  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive 

Director/APCO. 

4. Approve payments to MDAQMD in the amount of $136,484.38 for May 2021 

expenditures.  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 

5. Receive and file the Financial Report.  The Financial Report is provided to the 

Governing Board for information concerning the fiscal status of the District at May 

31, 2021.  The Financial Reports for April provide financial and budget 

performance information for the District for the period referenced.  Presenter:  Bret 

Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 

DEFERRED ITEMS 

NEW BUSINESS 

6. Conduct a continued public hearing to consider the amendment of Regulation XIII 

– New Source Review, amendment of Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant 

Deterioration, and make conforming changes to Rule 1401 – New Source Review 

for Toxic Air Contaminants: a. Continue public hearing; b. Receive staff report and 

additional information; c. Receive additional public testimony; d. Close public 

hearing; e. Make a determination that the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA) Categorical Exemption applies; f. Waive reading of Resolution; g. Adopt 

Resolution making appropriate findings, certifying the Notice of Exemption, 

amending the Rules and directing staff actions.  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive 

Director/APCO. 

7. Conduct a public hearing to consider the amendment of Rule 301 – Permit Fees: a. 

Open public hearing; b. Receive staff report; c. Receive public testimony; d. Close 

3 of 527



4 

public hearing; e. Make a determination that the CEQA Categorical Exemption 

applies; f. Waive reading of Resolution; g. Adopt Resolution making appropriate 

findings, certifying the Notice of Exemption, amending the Rule and directing staff 

actions.  Presenter:  Barbara Lods, Operations Manager. 

8. Reports:  Governing Board Counsel, Executive Director/APCO, Staff.

9. Board Member Reports and Suggestions for Future Agenda Items.

10. Adjourn to Regular Governing Board Meeting of Tuesday, August 17, 2021.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if special assistance is 

needed to participate in the Board Meeting, please contact the Executive Director 

during regular business hours at 661.723.8070 x22.  Notification received 48 hours 

prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodations.  All 

accommodation requests will be processed swiftly and resolving any doubt in favor of 

accessibility. 

I hereby certify, under penalty of perjury, that this agenda has been posted 72 hours prior 

to the stated meeting in a place accessible to the public. Copies of this agenda and any or 

all additional materials relating thereto are available at www.avaqmd.ca.gov or by 

contacting Deanna Hernandez at 760.245.1661 x6244 or by email at 

dhernandez@mdaqmd.ca.gov .  

Mailed & Posted on:  Tuesday, July 13, 2021. 

______________________________ 

Deanna Hernandez 

4 of 527

Deanna Hernandez

mailto:dhernandez@mdaqmd.ca.gov


 5 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approve Minutes 

from Regular Governing Board Meeting of June 15, 2021. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

5 of 527



Agenda Item #1

Draft Minutes 06.15.2021

ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
GOVERNING BOARD MEETING

TUESDAY, JUNE 15, 2021
ANTELOPE VALLEY DISTRICT OFFICE

LANCASTER, CA

Draft Minutes

Board Members Present:
Marvin Crist, Chair, City of Lancaster
Austin Bishop, Vice Chair, City of Palmdale
Newton Chelette, Public Member
Howard Harris, Los Angeles County
Ron Hawkins, Los Angeles County
Steven Hofbauer, City of Palmdale
Ken Mann, City of Lancaster

Board Members Absent:

CALL TO ORDER 
Chair CRIST called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.  Chair CRIST waived the Pledge of Allegiance.  Roll 
call was taken.

PUBLIC COMMENT
 No public comment was made in person, telephonically or electronically.  

CONSENT CALENDAR

Agenda Item #1 – Approve Minutes from Regular Governing Board Meeting of May 18, 2021. 
Upon Motion by MANN, seconded by CHELETTE, and carried unanimously, the Board Approved Minutes 
from Regular Governing Board Meeting of May 18, 2021.

Agenda Item #2 – Monthly Grant Funding Summary.  Receive and file.  
Presenter: Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
Upon Motion by MANN, seconded by CHELETTE, and carried unanimously, the Board Received and Filed 
Monthly Grand Funding Summary.

Agenda Item #3 – Monthly Activity Report.  Receive and file.  
Presenter: Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
Upon Motion by MANN, seconded by CHELETTE, and carried unanimously, the Board Received and Filed 
Monthly Activity Report.

Agenda Item #4 – Approve payment to MDAQMD in the amount of $145,698.42 for April 2021 
expenditures.  
Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
Upon Motion by MANN, seconded by CHELETTE, and carried unanimously, the Board, Approved payment 
to MDAQMD in the amount of $145,698.42 for April 2021 expenditures.  

6 of 527



Agenda Item #1

Draft Minutes 06.15.2021

Agenda Item #5 – Receive and file the Financial Report. This Preliminary Financial Report is provided to 
the Governing Board for information concerning the fiscal status of the District at April 30, 2021. 
Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
Upon Motion by MANN, seconded by CHELETTE, and carried unanimously, the Board, Received and filed 
the Financial Report. This Preliminary Financial Report is provided to the Governing Board for information 
concerning the fiscal status of the District at April 30, 2021.

Agenda Item #6 – 1) Authorize the acceptance of Community Air Protection Program Implementation 
Funds and submission of the Grant Agreement to the California Air Resources Board (CARB) for 
expenses necessary for the implementation of Assembly Bill 617 (C. Garcia, Chapter 136, Statutes of 
2017); 2) Authorize the acceptance of funds allocated and awarded to the District; and 3) Authorize the 
Executive Director/APCO and staff to execute the agreement, approved as to legal form.  
Presenter:  Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst.  
Upon Motion by MANN, seconded by CHELETTE, and carried unanimously, the Board, 1) Authorized the 
acceptance of Community Air Protection Program Implementation Funds and submission of the Grant 
Agreement to the California Air Resources Board (CARB) for expenses necessary for the implementation of 
Assembly Bill 617 (C. Garcia, Chapter 136, Statutes of 2017); 2) Authorized the acceptance of funds allocated 
and awarded to the District; and 3) Authorized the Executive Director/APCO and staff to execute the 
agreement, approved as to legal form.    

Agenda Item #7 – 1) Authorize the acceptance of AB 197 Emission Inventory District Grant Program 
Funding; 2) Accept the terms and conditions for the funds; and 3) Authorize the Executive 
Director/APCO and staff to execute the agreement, approved as to legal form, and carry out related 
activities to meet the requirements of AB 197.  
Presenter:  Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst
Upon Motion by MANN, seconded by CHELETTE, and carried unanimously, the Board, 1) Authorized the 
acceptance of AB 197 Emission Inventory District Grant Program Funding; 2) Accepted the terms and 
conditions for the funds; and 3) Authorized the Executive Director/APCO and staff to execute the agreement, 
approved as to legal form, and carry out related activities to meet the requirements of AB 197.

Agenda Item #8 – 1) Governing Board to acknowledge that funds awarded to Boething Treeland Farms 
at the May 18, 2021 meeting was intended for the use of Carl Moyer Program funds as presented; and 2) 
Authorize the Executive Director/APCO and staff to make any necessary corrections and execute an 
agreement approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel.    
Presenter:  Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst
Upon Motion by MANN, seconded by CHELETTE, and carried unanimously, the Board, 1) acknowledges 
that funds awarded to Boething Treeland Farms at the May 18, 2021 meeting was intended for the use of Carl 
Moyer Program funds as presented; and 2) Authorized the Executive Director/APCO and staff to make any 
necessary corrections and execute an agreement approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel.  
    
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

DEFERRED ITEMS
None.

NEW BUSINESS

7 of 527



Agenda Item #1

Draft Minutes 06.15.2021

Agenda Item #9 – Conduct Continued Public Hearing to consider the proposed AVAQMD Budget for FY 
2021-22:  a.  Re-Open the continued public hearing; b.  Receive supplemental staff report and/or staff 
update; c.  Receive public testimony; d.  Close public hearing; e. Adopt a resolution approving and 
adopting the budget for FY 2021-2022.  
Presenter:  Laquita Cole, Finance Manager.  
Chair CRIST re-opened the public hearing.  Laquita Cole, Finance Manager, presented the agenda item 
information and answered questions from the Board.  Chair CRIST called for public comment, no public 
comment was made in person, telephonically or electronically, being none, Chair CRIST closed the public 
hearing.  Upon motion by Board Member HAWKINS, seconded by Board Member BISHOP, with seven 
AYES votes by Board Members BISHOP, CHELETTE, CRIST, HARRIS, HAWKINS, HOFBAUER and 
MANN, the board, adopted Resolution 21-01, “A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF 
THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT APPROVING AND 
ADOPTING THE PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22.”      

Agenda Item #10 – Conduct a public hearing to consider the amendment of Rule 219 – Equipment Not 
Requiring a Permit: a. Open public hearing; b. Receive staff report; c. Receive public testimony; d. Close 
public hearing; e. Make a determination that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Categorical Exemption applies; f. Waive reading of Resolution; g. Adopt Resolution making appropriate 
findings, certifying the Notice of Exemption, amending the Rule and directing staff.  
Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
Chair CRIST opened the public hearing.  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO, presented the staff report and 
answered questions from the Board.  Chair CRIST called for public comment, no public comment was made in 
person, telephonically or electronically, being none, Chair CRIST closed the public hearing and determined 
that the CEQA Categorical Exemption applies and waived reading of the resolution.  Upon motion by Board 
Member HARRIS, seconded by Board Member MANN, with seven AYES votes by Board Members 
BISHOP, CHELETTE, CRIST, HARRIS, HAWKINS, HOFBAUER and MANN, the board, adopted 
Resolution 21-02, “A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT MAKING FINDINGS, CERTIFYING THE NOTICE OF 
EXEMPTION, AMENDING RULE 219 - EQUIPMENT NOT REQUIRING A PERMIT AND 
DIRECTING STAFF ACTIONS.”

Agenda Item #11 – Conduct a public hearing to consider the amendment of Regulation XIII – New 
Source Review, amendment of Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, making 
conforming changes to Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants: a. Open public 
hearing; b. Receive staff report; c. Receive public testimony; d. Close public hearing; e. Make a 
determination that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Categorical Exemption applies; f. 
Waive reading of Resolution; g. Adopt Resolution making appropriate findings, certifying the Notice of 
Exemption, amending the Rule and directing staff.  
Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
Chair CRIST opened the public hearing.  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO, recommended that this 
hearing be continued to the next Governing Board meeting of July 20, 2021 to allow additional time to review 
and analyze public comments received.  Upon motion by Board Member HOFBAUER, seconded by Board 
Member MANN, with seven AYES votes by Board Members BISHOP, CHELETTE, CRIST, HARRIS, 
HAWKINS, HOFBAUER and MANN, the board, motioned to keep the public hearing open and continue 
item to the Governing Board meeting of July 20, 2021.  
  

8 of 527



Agenda Item #1

Draft Minutes 06.15.2021

Agenda Item #12– Reports.
Governing Board Counsel – 

o No report.  
Executive Director/APCO –

o As California fully reopens from the pandemic restrictions, Mr. Banks would like the board to consider 
the logistics of a hybrid in-person plus concurrent Zoom meeting access.

Staff – 
o No report.

Agenda Item #13 – Board Member Reports and Suggestions for Future Agenda Items.
o None.

Agenda Item #14 – Adjourn to Regular Governing Board Meeting of Tuesday, June 15, 2021.
Being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:23 a.m. to the next regularly scheduled Governing 
Board Meeting of Tuesday, July 20, 2021.

9 of 527



 10 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Monthly Grant 

Funding Summary.  Receive and file.  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

10 of 527



Item #2 – Grant Funds Project Summary 
July 2021 

 
AB 2766 ($4 DMV Fee) 

$599,000 Annually by Monthly Distribution 
These fees fund the District’s Mobile Source Emission Reductions (MSER) Grant Program.  The funds must be 
used “to reduce air pollution from motor vehicles and for related planning, monitoring, enforcement, and 
technical studies necessary for the implementation of the California Clean Air Act of 1988”. 
Funding Limits:  No surplus emission reductions or cost-effectiveness limit requirements. 

 

 
 

PROPOSED PROJECTS 
Action Date Project Description Grant Award Status 
 - - -    
BALANCE PENDING APPROVAL $      344,307.00   

 
 

 
AB 2766 – Most Recent Approved Funding Awards 
Action Date Project Description Grant Award Status 
Apr-20 AFV Program Add’l Funds 11,500.00 paid 
Apr-20 Jack O’Connor Construction 30,000.00 paid 
Apr-20 AV Fair Assoc. – Implementation of MSERP 36,093.00 paid 
Oct-20 AFV Program Funds 85,000.00 paid 
Jan-21 2021 Lawn and Garden Exchange 15,000.00 paid 
Feb-21 AFV Program Add’l Funds 125,000.00 paid 
Apr-21 2021 Lawn and Garden Exchange 54,417.00 paid 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Current Balance: $344,307.00 

11 of 527



Grant Funds Summary 
Page 2 of 4 

 
AB 923 ($2 DMV Fee) 

$609,500 Annually by Monthly Distribution 
These fees fund the District’s Mobile Source Emission Reductions (MSER) Grant Program.  The funds must be 
used to remediate air pollution harms created by motor vehicles. 
Funding Limits:  Carl Moyer eligible projects; unregulated agriculture vehicles and equipment; school bus 
projects; light-duty vehicle retirement program; and alternative fuel and electric infrastructure projects.  
Surplus emission reductions required.  Subject to cost-effectiveness limit. 

 
 

 
 

PROPOSED PROJECTS 
Action Date Project Description Grant Award Status 
- - -  
BALANCE PENDING APPROVAL $                        0.00   

 
 

 
AB 923 Approved Funding Awards 
Action Date Project Description Grant Award Status 
Apr-20 2020 Lawn and Garden Exchange 9,570.00 paid 
July-20 Pacific Auto Recycling Center CNG Project 146,252.00 paid 
Sept-20 Vehicle Retirement (VAVR) Add’l Funding 60,000.00 paid 
Jan-21 2021 Lawn and Garden Exchange 5,000.00 paid 
Jan-21 AV Farming Baler Project 73,106.00 paid 
Jan-21 Crystalaire Country Club ICE Project 67,000.00 pending 
Apr-21 2021 Lawn and Garden Exchange 20,810.00 paid 
May-21 Angels Touch Towing Forklift Replacement Project 42,000.00 paid 
May-21 California Compaction EV Charging Project 9,060.00 pending 
May-21 Waste Management of AV 500,000.00 pending 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Current Balance: $503,201.00 

12 of 527



Grant Funds Summary 
Page 3 of 4 

 
 
 
 
Carl Moyer Program 

$701,500 Annually 
Carl Moyer Program (CMP) funds provide incentives to gain early or extra emission reductions by retrofitting, 
repowering, or replacing older more polluting engines with newer, cleaner engines including zero and near zero 
emission technologies.  CMP funding categories include on-road heavy-duty vehicles, off-road equipment, 
locomotives, marine vessels, light-duty passenger vehicles, lawn mower replacement and alternative fuel 
infrastructure projects.  Surplus emission reductions required.  Subject to cost-effectiveness limit. 

 
 

 
 

PROPOSED PROJECTS 
Action Date Project Description Grant Award Status 
- - -  
BALANCE PENDING APPROVAL $                       0.00     

 
 

 
Carl Moyer Program Approved Funding Awards 
Action Date Project Description Grant Award Status 
July-20 IM Masonry Forklift Replacement Project 51,733.00 paid 
Sept-20 Villa Del Sol Sweet Cherry Farms ERP 30,688.00 paid 
Nov-20 Volta Industries Vons EV Charging Project 32,394.00 pending 
Nov-20 Webb Builders Equipment Replacement Project 28,861.00 paid 
Dec-20 Gene Wheeler Farms ERP 226,389.00 paid 
Jan-21 AV Farming Tractor & Baler Project 164,369.00 partial paid 
Jan-21 Five Star Contractors ERP 63,742.00 paid 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Current Balance: $ 5,844.00 

13 of 527



Grant Funds Summary 
Page 4 of 4 

 
 
 
AB 134 Community Air Protection (CAP) Projects 

$1,088,281 FY 19/20 Allocation 
The purpose of AB 134 funds is to implement projects under the Carl Moyer Program specifically for projects 
that meet the goals of AB 617.  These funds are focused on replacing older polluting engines operating in 
disadvantaged and low-income communities with newer, cleaner engines prioritizing zero-emission projects. 
CMP funding categories include on-road heavy-duty vehicles, off-road equipment, locomotives, marine vessels, 
light-duty passenger vehicles, lawn mower replacement and alternative fuel infrastructure projects.  Surplus 
emission reductions required.  Subject to cost-effectiveness limit. 

 
 

 
 

PROPOSED PROJECTS 
Action Date Project Description Grant Award Status 
- - -  
BALANCE PENDING APPROVAL $                         0.00     

 
 

 
AB 134 CAP Projects Approved Funding Awards 
Action Date Project Description Grant Award Status 
Apr-20 Waste Management CNG Fueling Station 349,515.00 pending 
Apr-20 Lancaster Choice Energy – EV Charging Stations Project 150,000.00 pending 
Aug-20 ETP Pumping On-road Replacement Project 51,656.00 paid 
Nov-20 Volta Industries Kohls EV Charging 32,893.00 pending 
Dec-20 AV Fair Association EV Charging/Solar Project 400,000.00 pending 
Apr-21 AB 134 CAP Funds Yr. 3 FY 2019-20 +         855,673.00 received 
May-21 Waste Management CNG Refuse Truck Project 500,000.00 pending 

 

 
Current Balance: $430,629.00  

14 of 527



 15 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Monthly Activity 

Report.  Receive and file.  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

15 of 527



Agenda Item #3

Date: July 2, 2021
Subject: June Operations Activity Report

Permit Inspections - 128
Notices of Violation (NOV) Issued – 2
Vapor Recovery Tests Witnessed – 2
 Complaints - 4
Complaint Investigations – 4
Asbestos Notifications – 9
Asbestos Project Inspections - 1

Active Companies - 276
Active Facilities - 530 
Active Permits - 1127
Certificate of Occupancy/Building Permit Reviews - 5 

CEQA Project Comment Letters - 9

State or Local Air Monitoring Stations (SLAMS) Network Air Monitoring Site:
Lancaster Site (full meteorology, CO, NOx, 03, PM10, PM2)
Full meteorology (exterior temperature, wind speed, wind direction, exterior pressure and relative 
humidity)

Community Sensors:
13 PurpleAir particulate sensors (Del Sur School, Leona Valley Elementary, 
Anaverde Hills, Esperanza Elementary School, Joe Walker Middle School, Desert Willow 
Middle School, Amargosa Creek, Eastside High School, Littlerock High School, Knight 
High School, Westside School District Offices, (2) Wilsona School District. 

16 of 527



AVAQMD CEQA PROJECTS
BOARD MEETING    

7/20/2021

Date Rec'd Location Project Name Description Comment Date Due Date Sent

5/28/2021 Lancaster Cannabis Cultivation & Manufacturing

CUP 21-04 for cannabis cultivation and manufacturing at 
42528 7th Street East (APN: 3126-015-044) on 
approximately 1.15 acres.  The proposed project would 
be developed in two phases.  Phase I indicates the use of 
an existing 1,501 sq ft. one-story house and an existing 
5,000 sq ft warehouse. Phase II will consist of the 
construction of a two-story warehouse that will be 
approximately 20,706 sq ft.

Rule 403 - Dust Control
Rule 1403 - Asbestos
Rle 219
Cannabis Odor 
Compliance Plan
CARB Equipment 6/18/2021 6/4/2021

6/1/2021 Lancaster TTM 69560

TTM 69560 for five single family residential lots located 
near East Avenue J-5 and 8th Street East (APN: 3140-009-
003) on approximately 1 acre.

Rule 403 - Dust Control
CARB Equipment 6/18/2021 6/4/2021

6/1/2021 Lancaster TTM 83299/ CUP 20-06

TTM No. 83299/CUP No. 20-06 for a proposed project 
consisting of a 413-lot subdivision, a conditional use 
permit for a residential planned development to allow for 
smaller lots, a general plan amendment to change the 
land use designation from non-Urban (NU) to urban 
residential (UR)(GPA 20-01) and a zone change to 
change the zoning from Semi-Rural Residential (SRR) to 
R-7,000 (ZC-20-01). The CUP will allow for the lots to 
be smaller than the 7,000 sf requirement by the zoning. 
This proposed project is for an age-restricted (55+) 
development on 80 acres at the northeast corner of 40th 

Street West and Avenue N
Dust Control Plan
Rule 219
CARB Equipment 6/23/2021 6/7/2021

6/1/2021 Lancaster VTTM 61817

VTTM 61817. The proposed project is for 150 single-
family residential lots located at the northwest corner of 
East Avenue H-8 and 17th Street East (APNs: 3176-020-
049, 3176-020-056, 3176-020-057) on approximately 
38.94 acres

Dust Control Plan
CARB Equipment 6/18/2021 6/7/2021

6/1/2021 Palmdale TTM 60436

TTM 60436, for the request to develop a 35.70 acre 
parcel with 102 single-family residential lots located at 
Pearblossom Highway and 47th Street East.

Dust Control Plan
CARB Equipment 6/15/2021 6/7/2021

17 of 527



AVAQMD CEQA PROJECTS
BOARD MEETING    

7/20/2021

Date Rec'd Location Project Name Description Comment Date Due Date Sent

6/1/2021 Palmdale Pre-Con Products/Granite Construction

Pre-Application 21-018 Conceptual Review to modify 
the existing Conditional Use Permit 10-18 as well as an 
amendment to the Reclamation Plan for the existing 
Littlerock Quarry located on the east side of 70th Street 
East (3050-022-014, 3050-010-006, -016, 3050-028-
015).

Dust Control Plan
Rule 219
CARB Equipment 6/17/2021 6/7/2021

6/14/2021 Lancaster Rangeland Solar Project

Four conditional use permits for solar development of the 
westside.  The four CUP’s form the Rangeland Solar 
Project.  This project will be located on 307 acres across 
the four location; CUP 20-07: 79 acres at the southwest 
corner of Avenue I and 100th Street West (APN: 3267-
005-902). Development will occur on 32 acres of the 79-
acre site; the remaining acreage is occupied by the 
AVRCD Native Plant Nursery. CUP 20-08: 98 acres at 
the southwest corner of 87th Street West and Avenue I 
(APNs: 3203-001-041, 3203-001-009, 3203-002-009, 
3203-002-010). Development will occur on 85 acres of 
the 98-acre site. CUP 20-09: 38 acres at the southwest 
corner of Avenue I and 80th Street West (APN: 3203-001-
032). Development will occur on 34 acres of the 38-acre 
site. CUP 20-12: 92 acres at the northeast corner of 90th 

Street West and Avenue I (APNs: 3219-024-100, 3219-
023-007, 3219-023-008, 3219-023-016, 3219-023-018, 
3219-023-019). A portion of this project would be 
changed from Urban Residential (UR) to Non-Urban 
(NU) and the zoning changed from R-7000 to RR-2.5.

Dust Control Plan
CARB Equipment 7/7/2021 6/17/2021

18 of 527



AVAQMD CEQA PROJECTS
BOARD MEETING    

7/20/2021

Date Rec'd Location Project Name Description Comment Date Due Date Sent

6/3/2021 Palmdale
TTMs 51604, 51605, 51606, 51607, 52093, 

and 52116

The Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District 
(District) has received the request to review planning 
documents for Tentative Tract Maps 51604, 51605, 
51606, 51607, 52093, and 52116. TTM 51604 is a 
request to subdivide 26.3 acres into 126 single family 
lots with five open space lots located at the northeast 
corner of Westland Drive and Ranch Center Drive. TTM 
51605 is a request to subdivide 23.7 acres into 124 single 
family lots with six recreation/open space lots located at 
the southwest corner of City Ranch Road and Ranch 
Center Drive. TTM 51606 is a request to subdivide 12.1 
acres into 60 single family lots with two recreation/open 
space lots located at the southwest corner of City Ranch 
Road and Red Tail Drive. TTM 51607 is a request to 
subdivide 20.9 acres into 84 single family lots with seven 
open space lots located at the southeast corner of 
Westland Drive and Parkview Drive. TTM 52093 is the 
request to subdivide 21.9 acres into 106 single family 
lots with seven open space lots located at the southeast 
corner of Westland Drive and Parkview Drive. TTM 
52116 is a request to subdivide 9.9 acres into 53 single 
family lots with four open space lots located at the 
southeast corner of Westland Drive and Parkview Drive.

Dust Control Plan
CARB Equipment 6/24/2021 6/17/2021

6/14/2021 Palmdale Commercial/Residential Building

Pre-Application 21-019 Conceptual Review to 
construct one building totaling 3,966 square feet for 
a mixed use of commercial and residential at the 
southwest corner of Avenue Q and 4th Street East 
(APN: 3008-007-007) No Comment 7/1/2021 6/21/2021

19 of 527



 20 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approve payments to 

MDAQMD in the amount of $136,484.38 for May 2021 expenditures.  Presenter:  Bret 

Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

20 of 527



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM #4

DATE: July 20, 2021

RECOMMENDATION: Approve payments to MDAQMD in the amount of $136,484.38 for 
May 2021 expenditures.

SUMMARY:  The District contracts for services with MDAQMD; an invoice for services is 
presented for payment.

BACKGROUND:  Key Expenses: Staffing costs $118,697.41.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:  The AVAQMD Governing Board must authorize 
all payments to the MDAQMD.

REVIEW BY OTHERS: This item was reviewed by Allison Burns, Special Counsel as to 
legal form; and by Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO, on or before July 6, 2021.

FINANCIAL DATA:  The contract and direct expenditure amounts are part of the approved 
District budget for FY21. No change in appropriations is anticipated as a result of the approval 
of this item.

PRESENTER:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO

21 of 527



TO INSURE PROPER CREDIT -
PLEASE INCLUDE A COPY OF THE INVOICE WITH YOUR PAYMENT

FOR CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS
PLEASE VISIT  www.mdaqmd.ca.gov

MAKE CHECKS PAYABLE TO MOJAVE DESERT AQMD
PLEASE INCLUDE THE INVOICE NUMBER ON THE CHECK

Invoice Total
Amount Paid

Balance Due

136,484.38
0.00

136,484.38

Company ID

FY21 - May 2021

Bill To :

ANTELOPE VALLEY AQMD
43301 DIVISION ST. SUITE 206
LANCASTER, CA  93535

10193

Mojave Desert AQMD
14306 Park Avenue

Victorville, CA  92392
760.245.1661

I N V O I C E

Due Date
Invoice Date
Invoice Number

5/31/2021
DUE UPON RECEIPT

43009

Amount

Program Staff Program Staff 118,697.41

OVERHEAD OVERHEAD 16,761.24

Office Expenses Office Expenses 0.00

Vehicles Expenses Vehicles Expenses 255.73

Professional Services Professional Services 770.00

22 of 527



 23 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Receive and file the 

Financial Report.  The Financial Report is provided to the Governing Board for 

information concerning the fiscal status of the District at May 31, 2021.  The Financial 

Reports for April provide financial and budget performance information for the District for 

the period referenced.  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

23 of 527



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM #5

DATE:  July 20, 2021

RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file.

SUMMARY:  This Preliminary Financial Report is provided to the Governing Board for 
information concerning the fiscal status of the District at May 31, 2021. 

BACKGROUND:  The Financial Reports for May provide financial and budgetary 
performance information for the District for the period referenced.  

BALANCE SHEET. The balance sheet summarizes the District’s financial position on May 
31, 2021.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES. A summary of all District revenue 
and related expenditures incurred in the day to day administration of District Operations.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY.  The target variance for May is 92%.  

District Wide reports details revenue and expenses for the District’s operating account 
and grant funds.  Contracted Services reports the expenses made by the (MDAQMD) 
and passed through to the District.  Report Recap is consolidates both reports.

BANK REGISTERS. This report details the Districts bank activity.

DISTRICT CARDS. This report details purchases made using the District’s credit cards.    

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file.

REVIEW BY OTHERS:  This item was reviewed by Allison Burns, Special Counsel as 
to legal form and by Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO (AVAQMD) on or about July 
6, 2021.

PRESENTER:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 

24 of 527



Financial Report

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:31 PM

As of May 31, 2021

Antelope Valley AQMD
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

Page:    1

General
Fund

AB2766 Mobile
Emissions

AB923 Mobile
Emissions

Carl
Moyer Total

Assets
Current Assets

Cash 4,625,364.30 435,614.50 1,460,948.17 454,073.39 6,976,000.36
Cash Held For Other Fund (115,759.96) 50,999.15 64,760.81 0.00 0.00
Receivables 97,840.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 97,840.55
Pre-Paids 16,903.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,903.41

Total Current Assets 4,624,348.30 486,613.65 1,525,708.98 454,073.39 7,090,744.32

Total Assets 4,624,348.30 486,613.65 1,525,708.98 454,073.39 7,090,744.32

Liabilities and Net Position

Current Liabilities
Payables 309,956.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 309,956.62
Accruals 2,658.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,658.80
Due to Others 1,695.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,695.00
Unearned Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 464,945.43 464,945.43

Total Current Liabilities 314,310.42 0.00 0.00 464,945.43 779,255.85

Restricted Fund Balance 0.00 456,250.57 1,223,524.71 15,245.40 1,695,020.68
Cash Reserves 487,785.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 487,785.00
Unassigned Fund Balance 3,182,025.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,182,025.76
Pre-Paid 12,962.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,962.15

Change in Net Position 627,264.97 30,363.08 302,184.27 (26,117.44) 933,694.88

Total Liabilities & Net Position 4,624,348.30 486,613.65 1,525,708.98 454,073.39 7,090,744.32

25 of 527



Financial Report

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:35 PM Antelope Valley AQMD
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the Period Ending May 31, 2021

Page:    1

General
Fund

AB2766 Mobile
Emissions
Program

AB923 Mobile
Emissions
Program

Carl
Moyer

Program

Total
Governmental

Funds

Revenues
Application and Permit Fees 74,971.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 74,971.98
AB 2766 and Other Program Revenues 66,018.53 65,928.74 65,928.75 122,953.00 320,829.02
Fines 2,996.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,996.92
Investment Earnings 754.41 1.38 2.83 (25,164.72) (24,406.10)
Federal and State 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Miscellaneous Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Revenues 144,741.84 65,930.12 65,931.58 97,788.28 374,391.82

Expenditures

Program Staff 118,697.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 118,697.41
Services and Supplies 39,274.88 36,920.04 8,104.57 122,953.00 207,252.49
Contributions to Other Participants 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Capital Outlay Improvements and Equipment 26,519.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 26,519.70

Total Expenditures 184,491.99 36,920.04 8,104.57 122,953.00 352,469.60

Excess Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures (39,750.15) 29,010.08 57,827.01 (25,164.72) 21,922.22

26 of 527



Antelope Valley AQMD
Statement of Activity - MTD, MTM and YTD

For  5/31/2021

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:33 PM

00 District Wide

Page:    1

M-T-D
Actual

Y-T-D
Actual

Y-T-D
Budget

% Budget
to Actual

Revenues
Permitting 74,021.98 1,026,070.78 1,024,500.00 (1.00)
Programs 320,829.02 2,302,522.90 2,667,385.00 (0.86)
Revenue - Other 0.00 19,337.84 0.00 0.00
Application Fees 2,100.00 60,159.00 41,500.00 (1.45)
State Revenue 0.00 1,058,681.38 169,500.00 (6.25)
Fines & Penalties 1,846.92 19,139.79 10,000.00 (1.91)
Interest Earned (24,406.10) (9,228.97) 58,000.00 0.16
Adjustments to Revenue 0.00 (41,402.95) 0.00 0.00

Total Revenues 374,391.82 4,435,279.77 3,970,885.00 (1.12)

Expenses
Office Expenses 6,002.79 85,776.46 97,475.00 0.88
Communications 1,433.25 32,984.56 18,500.00 1.78
Vehicles 10,808.04 15,324.88 5,500.00 2.79
Program Costs 167,977.61 1,807,015.81 2,036,085.00 0.89
Travel 0.00 3,503.00 12,150.00 0.29
Professional Services
Payroll Contract 0.00 401.20 0.00 0.00
Research Studies 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00
Consulting Fees 0.00 2,480.00 3,000.00 0.83
Stipends 700.00 7,400.00 8,400.00 0.88
Maintenance & Repairs 236.80 2,524.01 6,500.00 0.39
Non-Depreciable Inventory 0.00 1,112.21 1,000.00 1.11
Dues & Subscriptions 0.00 11,846.03 46,100.00 0.26
Legal 2,145.00 24,149.28 19,000.00 1.27
Miscellaneous Expense 3.00 (41,662.67) 1,000.00 (41.66)
Suspense 159.03 (1,051.42) 0.00 0.00
Capital Expenditures 26,519.70 57,862.23 85,000.00 0.68

Total Expenses 215,985.22 2,009,665.58 2,345,710.00 0.86

Program Staff
Program Staff 81.73 81.73 0.00 0.00

Total Program Staff 81.73 81.73 0.00 0.00

Excess Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 158,324.87 2,425,532.46 1,625,175.00 (1.49)

27 of 527



Antelope Valley AQMD
Statement of Activity - MTD, MTM and YTD

For  5/31/2021

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:33 PM

10 Contracted Services

Page:    2

M-T-D
Actual

Y-T-D
Actual

Y-T-D
Budget

% Budget
to Actual

Revenues

Expenses
Office Expenses 0.00 3,810.45 0.00 0.00
Vehicles 255.73 602.51 0.00 0.00
Professional Services
Payroll Contract 0.00 65.34 0.00 0.00
Financial Audit & Actuarial Svcs 17,531.24 192,137.58 200,000.00 0.96
Non-Depreciable Inventory 0.00 162.41 0.00 0.00

Total Expenses 17,786.97 196,778.29 200,000.00 0.98

Program Staff
Program Staff 118,615.68 1,295,059.29 1,425,175.00 0.91

Total Program Staff 118,615.68 1,295,059.29 1,425,175.00 0.91

Excess Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures (136,402.65) (1,491,837.58) (1,625,175.00) (0.92)

28 of 527



Antelope Valley AQMD
Statement of Activity - MTD, MTM and YTD

For  5/31/2021

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:33 PM

Report Recap

Page:    3

M-T-D
Actual

Y-T-D
Actual

Y-T-D
Budget

% Budget
to Actual

Revenues
Permitting 74,021.98 1,026,070.78 1,024,500.00 (1.00)
Programs 320,829.02 2,302,522.90 2,667,385.00 (0.86)
Revenue - Other 0.00 19,337.84 0.00 0.00
Application Fees 2,100.00 60,159.00 41,500.00 (1.45)
State Revenue 0.00 1,058,681.38 169,500.00 (6.25)
Fines & Penalties 1,846.92 19,139.79 10,000.00 (1.91)
Interest Earned (24,406.10) (9,228.97) 58,000.00 0.16
Adjustments to Revenue 0.00 (41,402.95) 0.00 0.00

Total Revenues 374,391.82 4,435,279.77 3,970,885.00 (1.12)

Expenses
Office Expenses 6,002.79 89,586.91 97,475.00 0.92
Communications 1,433.25 32,984.56 18,500.00 1.78
Vehicles 11,063.77 15,927.39 5,500.00 2.90
Program Costs 167,977.61 1,807,015.81 2,036,085.00 0.89
Travel 0.00 3,503.00 12,150.00 0.29
Professional Services
Payroll Contract 0.00 466.54 0.00 0.00
Financial Audit & Actuarial Svcs 17,531.24 192,137.58 200,000.00 0.96
Research Studies 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00
Consulting Fees 0.00 2,480.00 3,000.00 0.83
Stipends 700.00 7,400.00 8,400.00 0.88
Maintenance & Repairs 236.80 2,524.01 6,500.00 0.39
Non-Depreciable Inventory 0.00 1,274.62 1,000.00 1.27
Dues & Subscriptions 0.00 11,846.03 46,100.00 0.26
Legal 2,145.00 24,149.28 19,000.00 1.27
Miscellaneous Expense 3.00 (41,662.67) 1,000.00 (41.66)
Suspense 159.03 (1,051.42) 0.00 0.00
Capital Expenditures 26,519.70 57,862.23 85,000.00 0.68

Total Expenses 233,772.19 2,206,443.87 2,545,710.00 0.87

Program Staff
Program Staff 118,697.41 1,295,141.02 1,425,175.00 0.91

Total Program Staff 118,697.41 1,295,141.02 1,425,175.00 0.91

Excess Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 21,922.22 933,694.88 0.00 0.00

29 of 527



Account
Balance

Antelope Valley AQMD
Bank Register from  5/01/2021 to  5/31/2021

Wells Fargo Operating

Check/Ref

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:37 PM

Date Name/Description Check Amount Deposit Amount

Page:    1

0000001 5/03/2021 Credit Card Transaction - ATI Restoration 0.00 1,167.00 440,149.94
0000001 5/04/2021 Wells Fargo ACH - Northrop 0.00 519.00 440,668.94
0004479 5/06/2021 [10076]  ANTELOPE VALLEY AQMD-Bank Transfer - Credit Card A/R Receipts -

March 2021
14,720.84 0.00 425,948.10

0004480 5/06/2021 [10019]  FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION-Courier Service 04/23/2021 30.94 0.00 425,917.16
0004481 5/06/2021 [10043]  SOCALGAS-Service 03/30/21-04/28/21 17.13 0.00 425,900.03
0004482 5/06/2021 [10039]  SPARKLETTS-Water Service 04/2021 41.26 0.00 425,858.77
0004483 5/06/2021 [10483]  STREAMLINE-Inv 7C1BDDC-0006 - 05/01/21 - 06/01/21 200.00 0.00 425,658.77
0004484 5/06/2021 [10067]  VERDANT ENVIRONMENTAL-Consultaning Services

BACT Analysis
2,480.00 0.00 423,178.77

0004485 5/06/2021 [10045]  VERIZON BUSINESS-Long Distance 04/28/2021-05/27/2021 35.31 0.00 423,143.46
0000001 5/07/2021 Credit Card Transaction - Lockheed 0.00 661.00 423,804.46
0000001 5/07/2021 Wells Fargo ACH - Lockheed 0.00 2,274.18 426,078.64
0000001 5/10/2021 Credit Card Transaction - Burns Env 0.00 660.00 426,738.64
0000001 5/10/2021 Credit Card Transaction - Burns - RF2 0.00 2,471.91 429,210.55
0004486 5/12/2021 [01148]  ANTELOPE VALLEY PRESS-Legal Notice Budget Hearing 234.60 0.00 428,975.95
0004487 5/12/2021 [10260]  QCS BUILDING SERVICES-JANITORIAL SERVICE MAY 2021 225.00 0.00 428,750.95
0004488 5/12/2021 [10071]  QUADIENT LEASING-Postage Meter Lease

05/02/2021-06/01/2021
78.17 0.00 428,672.78

0004489 5/12/2021 [10455]  STRADLING YOCCA CARLSON & RAUTH-Invoices , 373887-0001 1,382.50 0.00 427,290.28
0000001 5/13/2021 Credit Card Transaction - Level 3 0.00 505.91 427,796.19
0000001 5/14/2021 Credit Card Transaction - Northstar Contracting 0.00 2,341.00 430,137.19
0000001 5/17/2021 Credit Card Transaction - Joshua Crematory 0.00 1,811.91 431,949.10
R21-35 5/18/2021 Operating Fund Replenishment #19 0.00 19,871.80 451,820.90
0000001 5/19/2021 Credit Card Transaction - LA-RICS 0.00 505.91 452,326.81
0004490 5/20/2021 [10006]  BANK OF THE WEST-Statement for Card -1628

04/05/2021-05/04/2021
11.80 0.00 452,315.01

0004491 5/20/2021 [10006]  BANK OF THE WEST-Statement for Card -1465
04/05/2021-05/04/2021

147.23 0.00 452,167.78

0004492 5/20/2021 [10019]  FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION-Courier Service 05/07/2021 22.00 0.00 452,145.78
0004493 5/20/2021 [10570]  H.W. HUNTER INC-2021 Dodge Ram 1500 26,519.70 0.00 425,626.08
0004494 5/20/2021 [10026]  MOJAVE DESERT AQMD-FY21 - March 2021 140,570.80 0.00 285,055.28
0004495 5/20/2021 [10045]  VERIZON BUSINESS-VOIP 05/01/2021-05/31/2021 427.94 0.00 284,627.34
0000001 5/20/2021 Creidt Card Transaction - LA-RICS 0.00 505.91 285,133.25
0000001 5/21/2021 Credit Card Transactions - LA-RICS - Tesoro 0.00 1,030.91 286,164.16
0000001 5/24/2021 Credit Card Transaction - Burns Environmental 0.00 660.00 286,824.16
0000001 5/26/2021 Credit Card Transaction - Burns Env 0.00 1,830.00 288,654.16
0004496 5/27/2021 [01148]  ANTELOPE VALLEY PRESS-Public Notice Reg XIII, Reg XVII Rule

1401
368.00 0.00 288,286.16

0004497 5/27/2021 [10518]  AUSTIN BISHOP-Attendance Governing Board Meeting Tuesday, May
18, 2021.

100.00 0.00 288,186.16

0004498 5/27/2021 [10007]  BOHN'S PRINTING-GDF Forms 107.58 0.00 288,078.58
0004499 5/27/2021 [10405]  CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES-Copier Lease

05/01/2021-05/31/2021
276.18 0.00 287,802.40

30 of 527



Account
Balance

Antelope Valley AQMD
Bank Register from  5/01/2021 to  5/31/2021

Wells Fargo Operating

Check/Ref

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:37 PM

Date Name/Description Check Amount Deposit Amount

Page:    2

0004500 5/27/2021 [10055]  NEWTON CHELETTE-Attendance Governing Board Meeting Tuesday,
May 18, 2021.

100.00 0.00 287,702.40

0004501 5/27/2021 [10057]  MARVIN CRIST-Attendance Governing Board Meeting Tuesday, May
18, 2021.

100.00 0.00 287,602.40

0004502 5/27/2021 [10599]  HOWARD HARRIS-Attendance Governing Board Meeting Tuesday, May
18, 2021.

100.00 0.00 287,502.40

0004503 5/27/2021 [10058]  RONALD HAWKINS-Attendance Governing Board Meeting Tuesday,
May 18, 2021.

100.00 0.00 287,402.40

0004504 5/27/2021 [10503]  STEVEN D HOFBAUER-Attendance Governing Board Meeting
Tuesday, May 18, 2021.

100.00 0.00 287,302.40

0004505 5/27/2021 [10054]  KENNETH MANN-Attendance Governing Board Meeting Tuesday, May
18, 2021.

100.00 0.00 287,202.40

0004506 5/27/2021 [10036]  SECURA COM-Inv 126934 - Quarterly Alarm Monitoring - June - August
2021

116.85 0.00 287,085.55

0004507 5/27/2021 [00069]  SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON-Electricity Service - 04/14/21 -
05/12/21

452.98 0.00 286,632.57

0004508 5/27/2021 [10592]  SPECTRUM BUSINESS-Fiber 05/08/2021-06/07/2021 770.00 0.00 285,862.57
0004509 5/27/2021 [10050]  WOELFL FAMILY TRUST-Lease Payment - June 2021 4,719.83 0.00 281,142.74
0000001 5/28/2021 Credit Card Transactions - Vulcan 0.00 1,050.00 282,192.74

Total for Report: 194,656.64 37,866.44

31 of 527



Account
Balance

Antelope Valley AQMD
Bank Register from  5/01/2021 to  5/31/2021

General Fund P6A LA County

Check/Ref

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:37 PM

Date Name/Description Check Amount Deposit Amount

Page:    1

5/01/2021 Interest Earned 0.00 754.41 3,423,242.96
0000001 5/05/2021 Daily Deposit 0.00 3,099.30 3,426,342.26
R21-33 5/06/2021 855,672.86 0.00 2,570,669.40
R21-31 5/07/2021 52,037.39 0.00 2,518,632.01
R21-32 5/07/2021 48,789.93 0.00 2,469,842.08
0000001 5/11/2021 Daily Deposit 0.00 24,633.29 2,494,475.37
R21-35 5/18/2021 19,871.80 0.00 2,474,603.57
R21-34 5/20/2021 101,275.00 0.00 2,373,328.57
0000001 5/20/2021 Daily Deposit 0.00 226,773.88 2,600,102.45

5/24/2021 Service Charge 3.00 0.00 2,600,099.45

Total for Report: 1,077,649.98 255,260.88

32 of 527



Account
Balance

Antelope Valley AQMD
Bank Register from  5/01/2021 to  5/31/2021

WF AB2766

Check/Ref

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:38 PM

Date Name/Description Check Amount Deposit Amount

Page:    1

0022260 5/06/2021 [11162]  LAWRENCE ALI-AB2766 GRANT 500.00 0.00 433,985.92
0022261 5/06/2021 [11170]  SALMAN EJAZ-AB2766 GRANT 500.00 0.00 433,485.92
0022262 5/06/2021 [11157]  SANDRA ESCALANTE REYES-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 432,485.92
0022263 5/06/2021 [11158]  JAMES P GILMARTIN-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 431,485.92
0022264 5/06/2021 [11171]  DANIEL A. JONES-AB2766 GRANT 500.00 0.00 430,985.92
0022265 5/06/2021 [11168]  NARUEMON KELLEY-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 429,985.92
0022266 5/06/2021 [11173]  JESMIR LOPEZ-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 428,985.92
0022267 5/06/2021 [11172]  KAREN MARQUEZ-AB2766 GRANT 2,000.00 0.00 426,985.92
0022268 5/06/2021 [11167]  URIEL JASIEL PEDRO MEDINA-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 425,985.92
0022269 5/06/2021 [11155]  JUAN CARLOS MIRANDA-AB2766 GRANT 291.04 0.00 425,694.88
0022270 5/06/2021 [11166]  MUHAMMAD MOHSIN-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 424,694.88
0022271 5/06/2021 [11161]  RUTHANNA MULLENDORE-AB2766 GRANT 500.00 0.00 424,194.88
0022272 5/06/2021 [11156]  ARMEN NAVASARDYAN-AB2766 GRANT 500.00 0.00 423,694.88
0022273 5/06/2021 [10553]  PAUL  A  NELSON-AB2766 GRANT 500.00 0.00 423,194.88
0022274 5/06/2021 [11160]  PSOARELO NOKO-AB2766 GRANT 500.00 0.00 422,694.88
0022275 5/06/2021 [11159]  EDER ORTIZ-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 421,694.88
0022276 5/06/2021 [11169]  TANIKIA PATTERSON-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 420,694.88
0022277 5/06/2021 [11165]  JOSEFINA PORTILLO-AB2766 GRANT 500.00 0.00 420,194.88
0022278 5/06/2021 [11164]  LISSA PORTILLO-AB2766 GRANT 500.00 0.00 419,694.88
0022279 5/06/2021 [10761]  MANUEL ROSALES-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 418,694.88
0022280 5/06/2021 [11163]  JONATHAN RUE-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 417,694.88
0022281 5/06/2021 [10021]  THE GREENSTATION-STRING TRIMMERS 4,872.00 0.00 412,822.88
R21-31 5/07/2021 Transfer AB2766 - February 2021 0.00 52,037.39 464,860.27
0022282 5/12/2021 [10884]  COAST AUTO SALVAGE-WAREHOUSING AND EXCHANGE

SERVICES
1,500.00 0.00 463,360.27

0022283 5/12/2021 [10021]  THE GREENSTATION-AB2766 Grant 4,884.76 0.00 458,475.51

0022284 5/20/2021 [11174]  RAED ISSA ALZRIGAT-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 457,475.51
0022285 5/20/2021 [11176]  EDMOND BESSETTE-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 456,475.51
0022286 5/20/2021 [11175]  BRIAN CARLTON-AB2766 GRANT 500.00 0.00 455,975.51
0022287 5/20/2021 [11180]  MARIA INGLES-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 454,975.51
0022288 5/20/2021 [11179]  JESSE MIRANDA-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 453,975.51
0022289 5/20/2021 [11178]  DAVID NUTAKOR-AB2766 GRANT 500.00 0.00 453,475.51
0022290 5/20/2021 [11177]  DMTRI SHISTIK-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 452,475.51
0022291 5/20/2021 [10021]  THE GREENSTATION-AB2766 GRANT 1,388.52 0.00 451,086.99
M21-02 5/20/2021 Transfer Interest 0.00 672.89 451,759.88
0022292 5/27/2021 [11183]  GILDA P CASTELLANOS-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 450,759.88
0022293 5/27/2021 [11187]  JESSICA COATS-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 449,759.88
0022294 5/27/2021 [11190]  ROBERT CURIEL-AB2766 GRANT 500.00 0.00 449,259.88
0022295 5/27/2021 [11182]  GLADYS GARCIA-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 448,259.88
0022296 5/27/2021 [11184]  OSCAR GIOVANNI GARCIA-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 447,259.88
0022297 5/27/2021 [11034]  ASPEN HALL-AB2766 GRANT 500.00 0.00 446,759.88
0022298 5/27/2021 [11188]  MAKITO MOORE-AB2766 GRANT 500.00 0.00 446,259.88
0022299 5/27/2021 [11189]  EDWIN PEREZ-AB2766 GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 445,259.88

33 of 527



Account
Balance

Antelope Valley AQMD
Bank Register from  5/01/2021 to  5/31/2021

WF AB2766

Check/Ref

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:38 PM

Date Name/Description Check Amount Deposit Amount

Page:    2

0022300 5/27/2021 [11186]  JACQUELINE RAMIREZ OTERO-AB2766 GRANT 500.00 0.00 444,759.88
0022301 5/27/2021 [11185]  EDITH MERCEDES SANCHEZ LANDIN-Invoices , 2,000.00 0.00 442,759.88
0022302 5/27/2021 [10021]  THE GREENSTATION-AB2766 GRANT 7,146.76 0.00 435,613.12

Total for Report: 51,583.08 52,710.28

34 of 527



Account
Balance

Antelope Valley AQMD
Bank Register from  5/01/2021 to  5/31/2021

LA County  AB2766  U5R

Check/Ref

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:38 PM

Date Name/Description Check Amount Deposit Amount

Page:    1

5/01/2021 Interest Earned 0.00 1.38 674.27
M21-02 5/20/2021 672.89 0.00 1.38

Total for Report: 672.89 1.38

35 of 527



Account
Balance

Antelope Valley AQMD
Bank Register from  5/01/2021 to  5/31/2021

WF AB923

Check/Ref

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:39 PM

Date Name/Description Check Amount Deposit Amount

Page:    1

R21-32 5/07/2021 Transfer AB923 - February 2021 0.00 48,789.93 1,461,482.86
0001026 5/11/2021 [10014]  CITY OF LANCASTER-Void check 0001026 0.00 61,925.00 1,523,407.86
0001035 5/12/2021 [10014]  CITY OF LANCASTER-AB923 GRANT 49,740.29 0.00 1,473,667.57
0001036 5/12/2021 [10021]  THE GREENSTATION-AB923 Grant 2,465.00 0.00 1,471,202.57
0001037 5/20/2021 [11181]  ANGELS TOUCH TOWING-AB923 GRANT 12,805.00 0.00 1,458,397.57
0001038 5/20/2021 [10884]  COAST AUTO SALVAGE-AB923 GRANT 1,249.28 0.00 1,457,148.29
M21-01 5/20/2021 Transfer Interest 0.00 7,567.05 1,464,715.34
0001039 5/27/2021 [10021]  THE GREENSTATION-Invoices , 3,770.00 0.00 1,460,945.34

Total for Report: 70,029.57 118,281.98

36 of 527



Account
Balance

Antelope Valley AQMD
Bank Register from  5/01/2021 to  5/31/2021

LA County   AB923

Check/Ref

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:37 PM

Date Name/Description Check Amount Deposit Amount

Page:    1

5/01/2021 Interest Earned 0.00 2.83 7,569.88
M21-01 5/20/2021 7,567.05 0.00 2.83

Total for Report: 7,567.05 2.83

37 of 527



Account
Balance

Antelope Valley AQMD
Bank Register from  5/01/2021 to  5/31/2021

WF Carl Moyer

Check/Ref

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:40 PM

Date Name/Description Check Amount Deposit Amount

Page:    1

R21-34 5/20/2021 Transfer Moyer Admin Year 22 0.00 101,275.00 575,113.07
C21-01 5/25/2021 Transfer Interest 0.00 2,898.29 578,011.36
0011022 5/27/2021 [11148]  MCLAINS BACKHOE RENTAL-CARL MOYER GRANT 122,953.00 0.00 455,058.36

Total for Report: 122,953.00 104,173.29

38 of 527



Account
Balance

Antelope Valley AQMD
Bank Register from  5/01/2021 to  5/31/2021

LA County  Carl Moyer  U5S

Check/Ref

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:37 PM

Date Name/Description Check Amount Deposit Amount

Page:    1

5/01/2021 Interest Earned 0.00 1.42 2,899.71
C21-01 5/25/2021 2,898.29 0.00 1.42

Total for Report: 2,898.29 1.42

39 of 527



Account
Balance

Antelope Valley AQMD
Bank Register from  5/01/2021 to  5/31/2021

WF Special Revenue

Check/Ref

Run: 7/06/2021 at 2:40 PM

Date Name/Description Check Amount Deposit Amount

Page:    1

R21-33 5/06/2021 Transfer AB134 Project Funds 0.00 855,672.86 1,735,172.64

Total for Report: 0.00 855,672.86

40 of 527



 41 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Conduct a continued 

public hearing to consider the amendment of Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 

amendment of Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and make 

conforming changes to Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants: a. 

Continue public hearing; b. Receive staff report and additional information; c. Receive 

additional public testimony; d. Close public hearing; e. Make a determination that the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Categorical Exemption applies; f. Waive 

reading of Resolution; g. Adopt Resolution making appropriate findings, certifying the 

Notice of Exemption, amending the Rules and directing staff actions.  Presenter:  Bret 

Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

41 of 527



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM #6

DATE:  July 20, 2021

RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct a continued public hearing to consider the amendment of 
Regulation XIII – New Source Review, amendment of Regulation XVII – Prevention of 
Significant Deterioration, and make conforming changes to Rule 1401 – New Source Review 
for Toxic Air Contaminants: a. Continue public hearing; b. Receive staff report and additional 
information; c. Receive additional public testimony; d. Close public hearing; e. Make a 
determination that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Categorical Exemption 
applies; f. Waive reading of Resolution; g. Adopt Resolution making appropriate findings, 
certifying the Notice of Exemption, amending the Rules and directing staff actions.

SUMMARY:  Regulation XIII, Regulation XVII and Rule 1401 are proposed for amendment to 
allow the certification of certain mandatory submission requirements in response to the 2015 70 
ppb Ozone standard; to address a variety of issues identified by the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (USEPA) in their review of previously submitted versions; to address 
USEPA concerns expressed about similar rules and regulations in other air districts; to clarify 
the interrelationship between these rules and Rule 219 – Equipment Not Requiring a Permit; to 
remove unused and unnecessary rules and provisions; and provide reorganization of provisions 
for additional clarity.  The hearing was continued from June 15, 2021 due to comments received 
from the Aerospace industry.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  None.

BACKGROUND:  In 2015, pursuant to requirements of the Federal Clean Air Act (FCAA), 
the USEPA lowered the primary ozone National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS) 
from 75 parts per billion (ppb) to 70 ppb.  In 2018 USEPA promulgated a final implementation 
rule specifying timeline requirements for submissions of mandatory elements into the State 
Implementation Plan (SIP) under the revised Ozone NAAQS.  The Antelope Valley Air 
Quality Management District (AVAQMD or District) has been designated as non-attainment 
for ozone and classified Severe-15 and thus the District is required to submit specific elements 
in accordance with the implementation rule.  One of the required elements is a certification that 
the District’s Nonattainment New Source Review program (NANSR or NSR) meets or exceeds 
various requirements as set forth in the FCAA and the regulations promulgated thereunder.  

42 of 527



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM #6 PAGE 2

The deadline for such submissions under the implementation rule is 3 years from the designation 
of nonattainment under the NAAQS.  As the effective non-attainment designation date for the 
AVAQMD was 8/3/2018 the NSR certification submission is due to USEPA on or before 
8/3/2021.

In response to the December 2018 implementation rule the AVAQMD developed the 70 ppb 
Ozone Standard Implementation Evaluation: RACT SIP Analysis; Federal Negative 
Declarations; and, Emission Statement Certification (70 ppb O3 Evaluation) which was 
originally designed to submit many of the required SIP elements including the NSR certification. 
In a letter to the Mojave Desert Air Quality Management District (MDAQMD) USEPA indicated 
that their NSR certification could not be made due to then unspecified major deficiencies 
identified in the MDAQMD’s current NSR Rules.  USEPA has indicated that since the 
AVAQMD NSR rules are highly similar to those in the MDAQMD the same alleged deficiencies 
would also preclude an NSR certification for AVAQMD.  As a result, the AVAQMD adopted 70 
ppb O3 Evaluation on 7/21/2020 without the NSR certification. 

On 12/19/2019 USEPA provided commentary to the MDAQMD via letter regarding the alleged 
deficiencies in MDAQMD NSR program.  Once again USEPA indicated orally that the 
AVAQMD NSR rules suffered from the same deficiencies.  The MDAQMD subsequently 
embarked upon a substantive overhaul of the NSR program to address USEPA’s concerns and 
adopted a revised NSR Rule on 3/22/2021.  The ongoing efforts with the MDAQMD rules, 
involving the MDAQMD, USEPA and California Air Resources Board (CARB) staff, has 
resulted in a series of amendments which are easily translatable into similar revisions to the 
AVAQMD NSR Rules.  Such amendments, with one notable exception, should be acceptable to 
USEPA as they are highly similar to changes USEPA indicated were acceptable in the 
MDAQMD NSR Rules.

The AVAQMD is therefore proposing to: amend Regulation XIII – New Source Review and 
Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration; and make conforming changes to 
Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants.  The large majority of the 
proposed amendments are simply clarifications along with explanatory language codifying 
current District permitting practices.  Applicability thresholds, in the main, remain the same as 
those currently in the District’s Rulebook.  Substantive proposed amendments include the 
following:  addition of a variety of definitions; addition of a Stack Height Analysis as required 
by 40 CFR 51.164, addition of a 30 day notification period prior to issuance for certain “Minor 
NSR” permitting actions, the bifurcation of threshold BACT and Major Facility applicability 
calculations from calculations involving the amount of offsets which may be necessary in certain 
permitting actions, adjustment of the BACT and Major Facility threshold calculations, the 
removal of Rule 1310 as such rule was practically ineffective and completely unused; and a shift 
of Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration to an adoption by reference format.  
The proposed amendments will also enable the AVAQMD to request delegation of not only PSD 

43 of 527



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM #6 PAGE 3

permitting authority but also enhanced Title V permitting authority which, when granted, will 
allow the AVAQMD to process and issue PSD permits Title V permits and permit changes; and 
Air Toxics determinations at the same time and in the same action as the applicable NSR 
evaluation if the applicant so wishes.  

A more detailed overview and answers to frequently asked questions regarding the proposed 
amendments is attached to this item.  Specifics of these amendments and the justifications 
thereof are provided in the Draft Staff Report and Proposed Amendments published on the 
District’s website.

A Notice of Exemption, Categorical Exemption (Class 8; 14 Cal. Code Reg. §15308) will be 
prepared by the AVAQMD for this action pursuant to the requirements of CEQA.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:  Health & Safety Code §§40702 and 40703 require 
the Governing Board to hold a public hearing before adopting rules and regulation.  Also, 42 
U.S.C. §7410(l) (FCAA §110(l)) requires that all SIP revisions be adopted after public notice 
and hearing.

REVIEW BY OTHERS:  This item was reviewed by Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO on 
or about July 3, 2021.

FINANCIAL DATA:  No increase in appropriation is anticipated.

PRESENTER:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO

44 of 527



RESOLUTION ______

Page 1 of 5

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR 
QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT MAKING FINDINGS, CERTIFYING THE NOTICE OF 
EXEMPTION, AMENDING REGULATION XIII – NEW SOURCE REVIEW, AMENDMENT OF 
REGULATION XVII – PREVENTION OF SIGNIFICANT DETERIORATION, AND MAKING 
CONFORMING CHANGES TO RULE 1401 – NEW SOURCE REVIEW FOR TOXIC AIR 
CONTAMINANTS AND DIRECTING STAFF ACTIONS.

On July 20, 2021, on motion by Member Board Member Name, seconded by Member Board 

Member Name, and carried, the following resolution is adopted:

WHEREAS, the Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District (AVAQMD) has authority 

pursuant to California Health and Safety Code (H&S Code) §§40702, 40725-40728 to adopt, amend or 

repeal rules and regulations; and

WHEREAS, the AVAQMD is proposing to amend Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 

amendment of Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and make conforming changes 

to Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants; and

WHEREAS, these rules provide the regulatory basis for the programs required under the Federal 

Clean Air Act involving the preconstruction review of new and modified stationary sources of air 

contaminants; and

WHEREAS, the primary ozone National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS) was lowered in 

2015 from 75 parts per billion (ppb) to 70 ppb (80 FR 65292 10/1/2015, Effective 10/26/2015); and

WHEREAS, to implement this change USEPA promulgated a rule in 2018 (83 FR 62998, 

12/6/2018) specifying timeline requirements for submissions of mandatory elements into the State 

Implementation Plan (SIP); and  

WHEREAS, the AVAQMD has been designated as non-attainment for ozone and classified Severe-

15 and thus the District is required to submit specific elements including a certification that the District’s 

Nonattainment New Source Review program (NSR) meets or exceeds various requirements as set forth in 

the Federal Clean Air Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder; and

WHEREAS, the deadline for this submission under the implementation rule is 3 years from the 

designation of nonattainment under the NAAQS; and

WHEREAS, USEPA has indicated the NSR certification using the current SIP approved 

AVAQMD Rules could not be made due to alleged major deficiencies identified in similar rules in the 

45 of 527



RESOLUTION ______

Page 2 of 5

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Mojave Desert Air Quality Management District (MDAQMD) where were also present in both the current 

rules and more recent, but as yet unacted upon, NSR rule submissions for the AVAQMD; and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, amendment of 

Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and conforming changes to Rule 1401 – New 

Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants are designed to address a variety of the issues identified by 

USEPA in their review of previously submitted versions; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed actions also clarify the interrelationship between these rules and Rule 

219 – Equipment Not Requiring a Permit; and

WHEREAS, the proposed actions additionally remove unused and unnecessary rules and 

provisions from the regulations; and

WHEREAS, the proposed actions provide reorganization of provisions along with language 

codifying currently implemented permitting practices for additional clarity; and

WHEREAS, specifically the proposed actions add a variety of definitions, a Stack Height Analysis 

provision as required by 40 CFR 51.164, a 30-day notification period prior to issuance for certain “Minor 

NSR” permitting actions, and

WHEREAS, the proposed actions also specifically provide for the bifurcation of threshold BACT 

and Major Facility applicability calculations from calculations involving the amount of offsets which may 

be necessary in certain permitting actions along with a minor adjustment of the BACT and Major Facility 

threshold calculations; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed actions specifically remove Rule 1310 as such rule was effectively 

unused along with the removal of an unused and practically unusable de minimis modification provision 

found in Rule 1303; and

WHEREAS, USEPA has also requested additional justification for so called “Minor NSR Notice;” 

and

WHEREAS, such justification is provided in the technical discussion section of the Staff Report 

associated with this action; and

WHEREAS, the SIP version of Regulation XIII is version as it existed 12/4/1996 and approved 61 

FR 64291, 12/4/1996; and

46 of 527



RESOLUTION ______

Page 3 of 5

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

WHEREAS, subsequent amendments were submitted to USEPA as SIP revisions but were not 

acted upon; and 

WHEREAS, Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration is not currently in the SIP; 

and

WHEREAS, Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration is proposed to be amended 

to be included in the SIP or otherwise serve as a basis for USEPA to delegate the authority for this program 

to the AVAQMD; and

WHEREAS, Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants is not currently in the 

SIP and is not intended as a SIP revision; and

WHEREAS, a complete list of specific amendments, clarifications, and justifications for the 

proposed amendments are provided in the technical discussion section of the Staff Report associated with 

this amendment action; and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, amendment of 

Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and conforming changes to Rule 1401 – New 

Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants are necessary to allow certification of the AVAQMD’s NSR 

program in response to the 2015 70 ppb Ozone Standard and address a variety of approvability issues as 

identified by USEPA; and

WHEREAS, the AVAQMD has the authority pursuant to H&S Code §40702 to amend rules and 

regulations; and

WHEREAS, the proposed actions are clear in that the meaning can be easily understood by the 

persons impacted by the rule in that they are designed to: clarify particular existing practices, reorganize 

and renumber provisions for ease of use, remove unused and unusable provisions, add provisions to conform 

with FCAA requirements, clarify Minor Facility notice requirements, and bifurcate the applicability 

calculations from the calculations required to determine the amount of offsets; and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments are in harmony with, and not in conflict with, or 

contradictory to existing statutes, court decisions, or state or federal regulations, and do not interfere with 

any federal applicable requirement concerning attainment or Reasonable Further Progress (RFP) pursuant 

to the Federal Clean Air Act (FCAA) in that the applicable provisions require specific rule adoptions in 

47 of 527



RESOLUTION ______

Page 4 of 5

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

order for the requirements to be properly implemented; and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments do not impose the same requirements as any existing state 

or federal regulation in that the applicable provisions of state and federal law and regulation require rule 

adoption to be implemented; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing has been properly noticed and conducted, pursuant to H&S Code 

§40725, concerning the proposed actions; and

WHEREAS, a Notice of Exemption, a Categorical Exemption (Class 8, 14 CCR §15308) for the 

proposed amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, amendment of Regulation XVII – 

Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and conforming changes to Rule 1401 – New Source Review for 

Toxic Air Contaminants, completed in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), 

has been presented to the AVAQMD Board; each member having reviewed, considered and approved the 

information contained therein prior to acting on the proposed actions, and the Governing Board of the 

AVAQMD having determined that the proposed amendments will not have any potential for resulting in 

any adverse impact upon the environment; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the AVAQMD has considered the evidence presented at the 

public hearing; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Board of the AVAQMD finds that 

the proposed amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, amendment of Regulation XVII – 

Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and conforming changes to Rule 1401 – New Source Review for 

Toxic Air Contaminants are necessary, authorized, clear, consistent, non-duplicative and properly 

referenced; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Governing Board of the AVAQMD hereby makes a 

finding that the Class 8 Categorical Exemption (14 CCR §15308) applies and certifies the Notice of 

Exemption for the proposed actions; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Governing Board of the AVAQMD does hereby adopt, 

pursuant to the authority granted by law, the proposed actions, as set forth in the attachments to this 

resolution and incorporated herein by this reference; and

//

48 of 527



RESOLUTION ______

Page 5 of 5

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption, 

that Staff is directed to file the Notice of Exemption in compliance with the provisions of CEQA.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Antelope Valley Air Quality 

Management District by the following vote:

AYES: MEMBER:

NOES: MEMBER:

ABSENT: MEMBER:

ABSTAIN: MEMBER:

)
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

) SS:
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )

)

I, Deanna Hernandez, Senior Executive Analyst of the Antelope Valley Air Quality Management 
District, hereby certify the foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of the record of the action as the 
same appears in the Official Minutes of said Governing Board at its meeting of July 20, 2021.

________________________________________
Senior Executive Analyst, 
Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District.

49 of 527



(Adopted: 10/05/79; Amended: 09/10/82; Rescinded: 06/28/90; 
Adopted: 03/20/01; Amended:  07/20/21) 
 

AVAPCD Rule 1300 1300-1 
NSR General 

RULE 1300 
New Source Review General 

(A) Purpose 

(1) The purpose of this Regulation is to: 

(a) Set forth the requirements for the preconstruction review of all new or 
Modified Facilities. 

(b) Ensure that the Construction, or Modification of Facilities subject to this 
Regulation does not interfere with the attainment and maintenance of 
Ambient Air Quality Standards. 

(c) Ensure that there is no net increase in the emissions of any Nonattainment 
Air Pollutants from new or Modified Major Facilities which emit or have 
the Potential to Emit any Nonattainment Air Pollutant in an amount 
greater than or equal to the amounts set forth in District Rule 1303(B)(1). 

(d) Implement the provisions of California Health & Safety Code §§40709, 
40709.5, 40709.6, 40710, 40711, 40712 and 40713 regarding a system by 
which all reductions in the emissions of air contaminants (which are to be 
used to offset certain future increases in emissions) shall be banked prior 
to use to offset future increases in emissions. 

(e) Ensure that the Construction or Modification of Facilities subject to this 
Regulation comply with the preconstruction review requirements as set 
forth in District Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air 
Contaminants.   

(f) Ensure that the Construction or Modification of Facilities subject to this 
Regulation or District Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration comply with the preconstruction review requirements as set 
forth in District Rule 1700.   

(B) Applicability 

(1) The provisions of this Regulation shall apply to any new or Modified Facility or 
Emissions Unit which is subject to the provisions of District Rules 201 or 203.   

50 of 527



1300-2 AVAPCD Rule 1300 
NSR General 

(2) The provisions of this Regulation regarding Emission Reduction Credits (ERCs) 
shall apply to the creation, banking, ownership and use of ERCs within the 
District. 

(C) Violations 

(1) Failure to comply with the provisions of this Regulation shall result in 
enforcement action under applicable provisions of Division 26, Part 4, Chapter 4 
of the California Health and Safety Code (commencing with §42300) and or 
applicable provisions of the Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et.seq.) 

(D) Exemptions 

(1) Change of Ownership or Operator 

(a) Any Facility which is a continuing operation, shall be exempt from the 
provisions of this Regulation when: 

(i) A new permit to operate is required solely because of permit 
renewal, change in ownership or a change in facility operator; and   

(ii) There is no Modification or change in operating conditions at the 
Facility.  

 
(2) Change in Rule 219 

(a) Any Facility which is a continuing operation, shall be exempt from the 
provisions of this Regulation when:  

(i) A new permit to operate is required solely because of a change to 
Rule 219 - Equipment Not Requiring a Permit; and  

(ii) There is no Modification or other change in operating conditions at 
the Facility. 

 

(E) Interaction with Other Federal, State and District Requirements 

(1) Interaction with Other District Rules 

(a) ATC(s) and PTO(s) issued pursuant to this Regulation shall also comply 
with the applicable provisions of District Regulation II.   

51 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1300 1300-3 
General 

(2) Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) 

(a) Nothing in this Regulation shall be construed to exempt a Facility or an 
Emissions Unit located in an area designated by USEPA as attainment or 
unclassified for a Regulated Air Pollutant from complying with the 
applicable provisions of Title I, Part C of the Federal Clean Air Act (42 
U.S.C. §§7470-7492, Prevention of Significant Deterioration of Air 
Quality), the regulations promulgated thereunder and the provisions of 
District Rule 1700.   

(3) Other Federal Requirements 

(a) Nothing in this Regulation shall be construed to exempt a Facility or an 
Emissions Unit from complying with all other applicable Federal 
Requirements including, but not limited to, the following: 

(i) Any standard or other requirement contained in the applicable 
implementation plan for the District, and any amendments thereto, 
approved or promulgated pursuant to the provisions of Title I of 
the Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§7401-7515). 

(ii) Any standard or other requirement under 42 U.S.C. §7411, 
Standards of Performance for New Stationary Sources (Federal 
Clean Act §111); 42 U.S.C. §7412, Hazardous Air Pollutants 
(Federal Clean Air Act §112) or the regulations promulgated 
thereunder. 

(iii) Any standard or other requirement under Title IV of the Federal 
Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§7651-7651o, Acid Rain) or the 
regulations promulgated thereunder. 

(iv) Any standard or other requirement under Title V of the Federal 
Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§7661a - 7661f, Permits), the 
regulations promulgated or the District program approved 
thereunder. 

(v) Any standard or other requirement of the regulations promulgated 
under Title VI of the Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§7671-
7671q, Stratospheric Ozone Protection) or the regulations 
promulgated thereunder.  

(vi) Any national Ambient Air Quality Standard or increment or 
visibility requirement promulgated pursuant to part C of Title I of 
the Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §7401-7515).  

 
[SIP: See AVAQMD SIP table at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plans] 
  

52 of 527



1300-4 AVAPCD Rule 1300 
NSR General 

This page intentionally left blank. 

53 of 527



(Adopted: 10/05/79; Amended: 03/07/80; Amended: 07/11/80; 
Amended: 09/10/82; Amended: 07/12/85; Amended: 08/01/86; 
Amended: 12/02/88; Amended: 06/28/90; Amended: 05/03/91; 
Amended: 12/07/95; Amended: 03/20/01; Amended: 07/20/21) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-1 
NSR Definitions 

RULE 1301 
New Source Review Definitions 

 

For the purposes of this Regulation, the following definitions shall apply: 

(A) Actual Emissions - The actual rate of emissions of a Regulated Air Pollutant which 
accurately represent the emissions from Emissions Unit(s).  Such emissions shall be Real, 
Quantifiable and calculated using the verified actual operating hours; production rates; 
and types of materials processed, stored or combusted as applicable.   

(B) Affected State - Any State or local air pollution control agency whose air quality may be 
affected by the granting of a permit to a Facility or Emissions Unit(s) and which is 
contiguous to the District; or any State which is located within 50 miles of the Facility. 

(C) Air Pollutant - Any air pollution agent or combination of such agents, including any 
physical, chemical, biological, or radioactive (including source material, special nuclear 
material and byproduct material) substance or matter which is emitted into or otherwise 
enters the ambient air. 

(D) Air Pollution Control Officer (APCO) - The person appointed to the position of Air 
Pollution Control Officer of the District pursuant to the provisions of California Health & 
Safety Code §40750, and his or her designee. 

(E) Air Quality Attainment Plan (AQAP) - A planning document submitted and periodically 
revised by the District pursuant to the provisions of the California Health & Safety Code 
§§40910 et seq. and approved by CARB.  Also known as Air Quality Management Plan. 

(F) Ambient Air Quality Standards - Any National Ambient Air Quality Standard 
promulgated pursuant to the provisions of 42 U.S.C. §7409 (Federal Clean Air Act §109) 
or any State Ambient Air Quality Standard promulgated to California Health & Safety 
Code §39606 unless the particular Ambient Air Quality Standard (either National or 
State) is specified. 

(G) Application for Certification (AFC) - A document submitted to the CEC requesting 
certification of an EEGF pursuant to the provisions of D1 4/29/2021. 

(H) Authority to Construct Permit (ATC) - A District permit required pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 201 which must be obtained prior to the building, erecting, 
installation, alteration or replacement of any Permit Unit.  Such permit may act as a 
temporary PTO pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 202. 

54 of 527



1301-2 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

(I) Banking (Banked) - The process of recognizing and certifying emissions reductions of 
Regulated Air Pollutants pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1309 which results in 
the issuance of an ERC Certificate and recordation of the ERC in the Registry. 

(J) Begin Actual Construction - The general initiation of physical on-site construction 
activities on Emissions Unit(s) which are of a permanent nature.  Actual construction 
activities include, but are not limited to, the following: 

(1) Installation of building supports and foundations;  

(2) Laying of underground pipe work;  

(3) Construction of permanent storage structures; and  

(4) With respect to a change in operating method, those on-site activities, other than 
preparatory activities, which mark the initiation of the change. 

(K) Best Available Control Technology (BACT) - For Permit Units at Facilities as indicated 
below: 

(1) For a new or Modified Major Facility as defined below the most stringent of: 

(a) The most stringent emission limit or control technique which has been 
achieved in practice, for such Permit Unit, class or category of source; or 

(b) LAER as defined below; or 

(c) Any other emission limitation or control technique, and/or different fuel 
demonstrated in practice to be technologically feasible and cost-effective 
by the APCO or by CARB.  

(2) For a new or modified non-major facility: 

(a) The most stringent emission limit or control technique which has been 
achieved in practice for such category or class of source.  Economic and 
technical feasibility may be considered in establishing the class or 
category of source; or 

(b) Any other emission limit or control technique found by the APCO to be 
technologically feasible and cost effective for such class or category of 
source. 

(3) Under no circumstances shall BACT be determined to be less stringent than the 
emission limit or control technique contained in any State Implementation Plan as 
approved by USEPA unless the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the 
APCO that such limitation or control technique is not achievable.  

55 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-3 
NSR Definitions 

(4) In no event shall the application of BACT result in the emissions of any 
Regulated Air Pollutant which exceeds the emissions allowed by any applicable 
standard or other requirement under 42 U.S.C. §7411, Standards of Performance 
for New Stationary Sources (Federal Clean Air Act §111) or 42 U.S.C. §7412, 
Hazardous Air Pollutants (Federal Clean Air Act §112) or the regulations 
promulgated thereunder. 

(L) California Air Resources Board (CARB) - The California State Air Resources Board the 
powers and duties of which are described in Part 2 of Division 26 of the California Health 
& Safety Code (commencing with §39500). 

(M) California Energy Commission (CEC) - The California Energy Commission the powers 
and duties of which are described in Division 15 of the California Public Resources Code 
(commencing with §25000). 

(N) Cogeneration Project - a project which:  

(1) Makes sequential use of exhaust steam, waste steam, heat or resultant energy from 
an industrial, commercial or manufacturing plant or process for the generation of 
electricity; or  

(2) Makes sequential use of exhaust steam, waste steam, or heat from a thermal 
power plant, in an industrial, commercial, or manufacturing plant or process; and 

(3) Such “industrial, commercial or manufacturing plant or process” is not a thermal 
power plant or portion thereof; and 

(4) Does not consist of steam or heat developed solely for electrical power 
generation; and  

(5) The processes listed in subsections (N)(1) and (N)(2) above must meet the 
conditions set forth in the California Public Resources Code §25134. 

(O) Class I Area – Any area listed as Class I in 40 CFR 81.405 – California or an area 
otherwise specified as Class I in legislation that creates a national monument, a national 
primitive area, a national preserve, a national recreation area, a national wild and scenic 
river, a national wildlife refuge or a national lakeshore or seashore.   

(P) Commence Construction - When the owner or operator of a Facility or of a Facility 
undergoing a Major Modification has obtained all necessary preconstruction approvals 
and/or permits pursuant to the provisions of this Regulation and District Rule 1700, if 
applicable, and has either:  

(1) Begun, or caused to begin, a continuous program of actual on-site construction to 
be completed within a reasonable time; or  

56 of 527



1301-4 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

(2) Entered into binding agreements or contractual obligations, which cannot be 
canceled or modified without substantial loss to the owner or operator, to 
undertake a program of actual construction of the Facility or Emissions Unit(s) to 
be completed within a reasonable time. 

(Q) Comprehensive Emission Inventory – A plan and report prepared pursuant to the most 
recently published District Comprehensive Emissions Inventory Guidelines which 
consists of numerical representations of the existing and proposed emissions from a 
Facility and the methods utilized to determine such data. 

(R) Construction - Any physical change or change in the method of operation in a Facility 
(including fabrication, erection, installation, demolition, or modification of Emissions 
Unit(s)) which would result in a change in Actual Emissions.  

(S) Contiguous Property - Two or more parcels of land with a common boundary or 
separated solely by a public or private roadway, or other public or private right-of-way. 

(T) Dispersion Technique –For purposes of determining whether a stack height exceeds good 
engineering practices, the definition contained in 40 CFR 51.100(hh) in effect on June 15, 
2021 shall apply, and is incorporated herein by this reference.   

(U) District - The Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District created pursuant to 
Chapter 14, Part 3 of Division 26 of the California Health & Safety Code (commencing 
with §41300) the geographical area of which is described in District Rule 103. 

(V) Electrical Energy Generating Facility (EEGF) - Any stationary or floating electrical 
generating facility using any source of thermal energy, with a generating capacity of 50 
megawatts or more, and any facilities appurtenant thereto. 

(1) Exploratory, development, and production wells, resource transmission lines and 
other related facilities used in connection with a geothermal exploratory project or 
a geothermal field development project are not appurtenant facilities for the 
purposes of this Regulation.  

(2) EEGF does not include any wind, hydroelectric or solar photovoltaic electrical 
generating facility. 

(W) Emissions Limitation - One or a combination of Federally Enforceable permit conditions 
specific to a Permit Unit which restricts its maximum daily emissions, in pounds per day 
or other appropriate unit of measure, at or below the emissions associated with the 
maximum design capacity.  

(X) Emissions Reduction Credit (ERC) - A credit for an amount and type of emissions 
reductions of Regulated Air Pollutant(s) granted by the District pursuant to the provisions 
of District Rule 1309 which is evidenced by recordation in the Registry and by an ERC 
Certificate. 

57 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-5 
NSR Definitions 

(Y) Emissions Unit - any article, machine, equipment, contrivance or combination thereof 
which emits or has the Potential to Emit any Regulated Air Pollutant, including any 
associated air pollution control equipment.  

(Z) Enforceable – Verifiable, legally binding, and practically enforceable.   

(AA) ERC Certificate - a certificate evidencing ownership of an ERC issued pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1309. 

(BB) Excessive Concentration – For purposes of determining whether a stack height exceeds 
good engineering practices, the definition contained in 40 CFR 51.100(kk) in effect June 
15, 2021 shall apply, and is incorporated herein by this reference.  

(CC) Facility - Any structure, building, Emissions Unit, combination of Emissions Units, or 
installation which emits or may emit a Regulated Air Pollutant and which are: 

(1) Located on one or more Contiguous or adjacent properties within the District; 

(2) Under the control of the same person (or by persons under common control); and  

(3) Belong to the same industrial grouping, as determined by being within the same 
two-digit Standard Industrial Classification Code (SICC).  

(4) For the purpose of this regulation, such above-described grouping, remotely 
located but connected only by land carrying a pipeline, shall not be considered 
one Facility. 

(DD) Federal Class I Area – Any Federal land that is classified or reclassified as a Class I Area.   

(EE) Federal Land Manager - with respect to any lands in the United States, the Secretary of 
the department with authority over such lands and their designee.   

(FF) Federally Enforceable - any limitation and/or condition which is set forth in permit 
conditions or in Rules or Regulations that are legally and practically enforceable by 
USEPA, citizens and the District; including, but not limited to: 

(1) Requirements developed pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §7411 - Standards of Performance 
for New Stationary Sources (Federal Clean Air Act §111) or 42 U.S.C. §7412 - 
Hazardous Air Pollutants (Federal Clean Air Act §112) or the regulations 
promulgated thereunder;  

(2) Requirements within any applicable SIP;  

(3) Permit requirements established pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21; 51.160-166; or under 
regulations approved pursuant to 40 CFR 51, subpart I, including operating 
permits issued under a USEPA approved program that is incorporated into the 

58 of 527



1301-6 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

State Implementation Plan and expressly requires adherence to any permit issued 
under such program.  

(GG) Fugitive Emissions - Those emissions which could not reasonably pass through a stack, 
chimney, vent or other functionally equivalent opening. 

(HH) Good Engineering Practice – For purposes of determining whether a stack height exceeds 
good engineering practices, the definition contained in 40 CFR 51.100(ii) in effect on 
June 15, 2021 shall apply, and is incorporated herein by reference.  

(II) "Halocarbons" - For the purpose of this rule, halocarbons are 1,1,1-trichloroethane, 
trichlorofluoromethane (CFC-11), dichlorodifluoromethane (CFC-12), 
chlorodifluoromethane (CFC-22), trifluoromethane (CFC-23), methylene chloride, 
trichlorotrifluoroethane (CFC-113), dichlorotetrafluoroethane (CFC-114), and 
chloropentafluoroethane (CFC-115). 

(JJ) "Historic Actual Emissions" (HAE) - The Actual Emissions of an existing Emissions 
Unit or combination of Emissions Units, including Fugitive Emissions directly related to 
the Emissions Unit(s), if the Facility belongs to one of the Facility categories as listed in 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C), calculated pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 
1304(E)(2).  

(KK) Lowest Achievable Emissions Rate (LAER) - The rate of emissions which is not in 
excess of the amount allowable under the applicable New Source Performance Standards 
as found in 40 CFR 60 and which reflects the most stringent emissions limitation which 
is: 

(1) Contained in the SIP of any State for such class or category of source, unless the 
owner/operator of the source demonstrates that such limitations are not 
achievable; or 

(2) Achieved in practice by such class or category of source.  

(LL) Major Facility - Any Facility which emits or has the Potential to Emit any Regulated Air 
Pollutant or its Precursors in an amount greater than or equal to the amounts set forth in 
District Rule 1303(B)(1). 

(1) Any Modification at a Facility which, by itself, would emit or have the Potential 
to Emit any Regulated Air Pollutant or its Precursors in an amount greater than or 
equal to the amounts listed in District Rule 1303(B)(1), shall also constitute a 
Major Facility.  

(2) The Fugitive Emissions of a Facility shall not be included in the determination of 
whether a Facility is a Major Facility unless the Facility belongs to one of the 
categories of Facilities as listed in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C).   

59 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-7 
NSR Definitions 

(MM) Major Modification - Any Modification in a Facility that would result in a Significant Net 
Emissions Increase of any Regulated Air Pollutant as defined below. 

(NN) Mandatory Class I Federal Area or Mandatory Federal Class I Area – Any area identified 
in 40 CFR 81, Subpart D (commencing with 81.400) specifically 40 CFR 81.405 – 
California.  

(OO) Military Base Designated for Closure or Realignment - A military base designated for 
closure or downward realignment pursuant to the Defense Base Closure and Realignment 
Act of 1988 (PL 100-526) or the Defense Base Closure and Realignment Act of 1990 (10 
U.S.C. §§2687 et seq.). 

(PP) Mobile Source - A device by which any person or property may be propelled, moved, or 
drawn upon the surface, waterways, or through the atmosphere, and which emits air 
contaminants.  For the purpose of this Regulation, mobile source includes registered 
Motor Vehicles which are licensed, or driven on the public roadways of the state of 
California. 

(QQ) Modeling - An air quality simulation model based on specific assumptions and data; 
which comply with the most current version of 40 CFR Appendix W or an alternative 
method approved by USEPA after an opportunity for public notice and comment; and 
which have been approved in advance and in writing by the APCO. 

(RR) Modification (Modified) - Any physical or operational change to a Facility or an 
Emissions Unit to replace equipment, expand capacity, revise methods of operation, or 
modernize processes by making any physical alteration or change, change in method of 
operation, addition to an existing Permit Unit and/or change in hours of operation which 
result in a Net Emission Increase of any Regulated Air Pollutant or which result in the 
emission of any Regulated Air Pollutant not previously emitted.   

(1) A physical or operational change shall not include: 

(a) Routine maintenance, repair and/or replacement; or 

(b) A change in ownership of an existing Facility with valid PTO(s); or 

(c) An increase in the production rate, unless:  

(i) Such increase will cause the maximum design capacity of the 
Emission Unit to be exceeded; or  

(ii) Such increase will exceed a previously imposed federally 
enforceable limitation contained in a permit condition. 

 
(d) An increase in the hours of operation, unless such increase will exceed a 

previously imposed Federally Enforceable limitation contained in a permit 
condition.  

60 of 527



1301-8 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

(e) The alteration or replacement of an Emissions Unit(s) where the following 
requirements are met:  

(i) The replacement unit is functionally identical as the original 
Emissions Unit(s) being replaced; and  

(ii) The maximum rating of the replacement Emissions Unit(s) will not 
be greater than that of the Emissions Unit(s) being replaced; and  

(iii) The Potential to Emit for any Regulated Air Pollutant will not be 
greater from the replacement Emissions Unit(s) than from the 
original Emissions Unit(s) when the replacement Emissions 
Unit(s) is operated at the same permitted conditions as the original 
Emissions Unit(s) and as if current BACT had been applied; and  

(iv) The replacement does not occur at a Major Facility and is not a 
Major Modification. 

(v) Emissions Unit(s) shall not be considered a functionally identical 
replacement if USEPA objects to such determination on a case-by-
case basis.   

 
(f) The relocation of an existing Facility, utilizing existing equipment where 

the following requirements are met: 

(i) The relocation does not result in an increase in emissions from the 
Facility; and 

(ii) The relocation is to a site within 10 miles of the original Facility 
location; and 

(iii) The relocation is to a site which is not in actual physical contact 
with the original site and the sites are not separated soley by a 
public roadway or other public right-of-way.  

(iv) The relocation is to a site within a Federal designation which is 
less than or equal to the designation or classification of the original 
site; and  

(v) The relocation occurs within 1 year of the Facility ceasing 
operations at its original location; and  

(vi) The relocation does not occur at a Major Facility and is not a 
Major Modification; and 

(vii) Any new or replacement equipment associated with the relocation 
complies with the applicable provisions of this Rule.  

 
(g) The periodic movement of internal combustion engines and gas turbines 

within a Facility because of the nature of their operation provided that all 
of the following conditions are met: 

(i) The engine or turbine is used to remediate soil or groundwater 
contamination as required by federal, state, or local law or by a 
judicial or administrative order; or for flight-line operations. 

61 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-9 
NSR Definitions 

(ii) The engine or turbine is not periodically moved solely for the 
purpose of qualifying for this exemption. 

(iii) Emissions from the engine, by itself, do not cause an exceedance 
of any Ambient Air Quality Standard. 

(iv) Emissions from the engine do not exceed the following: 
 

Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) 75 pounds per day 
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) 100 pounds per day 

Sulfur Oxides (SOx) 150 pounds per day 

Particulate Matter (PM10) 150 pounds per day 

Carbon Monoxide (CO) 550 pounds per day 

 
(SS) Motor Vehicle - Any self-propelled Vehicle, including, but not limited to cars, trucks, 

buses, golf carts, vans, motorcycles, recreational Vehicles, tanks, and armored personnel 
carriers as defined in California Vehicle Code §415 and/or §670 (as in effect on the most 
recent amendment date of this Rule) including, but not limited to, any Motor Vehicles 
which are registered, licensed, or driven on the public roadways of the State of California 

(TT) Nearby – For purposes of determining whether a stack height exceeds good engineering 
practices, the definition contained in 40 CFR 51.100(jj) in effect on June 15, 2021 shall 
apply, and is incorporated herein by this reference.  

(UU) Net Emissions Increase - An emissions change as calculated pursuant to District Rule 
1304(B)(2) which exceeds zero. 

(VV) New Source Review Document (NSR Document) - A document issued by the APCO 
pursuant to the procedures of District Rule 1302 for a Facility subject to the provisions of 
District Rule 1303(B) which includes, but is not limited to, all analysis relating to the 
project, Offsets required for the project, and proposed conditions for any required ATC(s) 
or PTO(s). 

(WW) Nonattainment Air Pollutant - Any Regulated Air Pollutant for which the District, or a 
portion thereof, has been designated nonattainment as codified in 40 CFR 81.305, or for 
which has been designated nonattainment by the CARB pursuant to California Health and 
Safety Code §39607.   A pollutant for which the District is designated nonattainment by 
USEPA shall be referred to in this regulation as a Federal Nonattainment Pollutant while 
a pollutant for which the District is designated nonattainment by CARB shall be referred 
to as a State Nonattainment Pollutant.   

(XX) Nonattainment Area – Any area within the jurisdiction of the District which has been 
designated nonattainment by USEPA as exceeding a National Ambient Air Quality 
Standard as codified in 40 CFR 81.305 or which has been designated nonattainment by 
CARB as exceeding a State Ambient Air Quality Standard pursuant to California Health 

62 of 527



1301-10 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

& Safety Code §39607.  An area designated nonattainment by USEPA shall be referred 
to in this regulation as a Federal Nonattainment Area while an area designated 
nonattainment by CARB shall be referred to as a State Nonattainment Area.   

(YY) Notice of Intention (NOI) - A notice regarding an EEGF produced pursuant to the 
provisions of Division 15 of the California Public Resources Code (commencing with 
§25000). 

(ZZZ) Off-road Vehicle - Any vehicle which is not licensed for use on the public roadways in 
the State of California and is used exclusively at the Facility. 

(AAA) Offset Emission Reductions (Offsets) - Emission Reduction Credits (ERCs) or 
Simultaneous Emissions Reductions (SERs) when used to offset emission increases of 
Regulated Air Pollutants on a pollutant category specific basis.  ERCs shall be calculated 
and comply with the provisions of District Rule 1309. SERs shall be calculated and 
comply with the provisions of District Rule 1304(C).  ERCs and SERs shall be adjusted, 
if necessary, pursuant to the applicable provisions of District Rule 1305.  

(BBB) Permanent - Continuing or enduring without fundamental marked change.  As used for 
the purposes of Offset Emissions Reductions, a reduction that is Federally Enforceable 
via changes in permits or other means for the life of the corresponding increase in 
emissions.   

(CCC) Permit to Operate" (PTO) - A District permit required pursuant to the provisions of 
District Rule 203 which must be obtained prior to operation of a Permit Unit.  An ATC 
may function as a temporary PTO pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 202.  

(DDD) Permit Unit - Any Emissions Unit which is required to have a PTO pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 203.  

(EEE) Person - Includes but is not limited to: any individual, firm, association, organization, 
partnership, business trust, corporation, limited liability company, company, 
proprietorship, trust, joint venture, government, political subdivision of a government, or 
other entity or group of entities. 

(FFF) PM10 - Particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter less than or equal to a nominal 
10 micrometers. 

(GGG) Potential to Emit (PTE) - The maximum capacity of a Facility or Emissions Unit(s) to 
emit any Regulated Air Pollutant under its physical and operational design. 

(1) Any physical or operational limitation on the capacity of the Facility or Emissions 
Unit(s) to emit an Air Pollutant, including air pollution control equipment and 
restrictions on hours of operation or on the type or amount of material combusted, 
stored, or processes, shall be treated as part of its design only if the limitation or 
the effect it would have on emissions is Federally Enforceable.   

63 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-11 
NSR Definitions 

(2) Fugitive Emissions of Hazardous Air Pollutants shall be included in the 
calculation of a Facility's or Emission Unit(s)' Potential to Emit. 

(3) Fugitive Emissions of other Air Pollutants shall not be included in the calculations 
of a Facility or Emissions Unit(s) Potential to Emit unless the Facility belongs to 
one of the categories listed in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C).  

(4) Secondary Emissions shall not be included in the calculations of a Facility or 
Emissions Unit(s) Potential to Emit. 

(HHH) Precursor - A substance which, when released to the atmosphere, forms or causes to be 
formed or contributes to the formation of a Regulated Air Pollutant.  These include, but 
are not limited to the following: 

Precursors Secondary Pollutants 
Ammonia a) PM10 

Hydrocarbons and substituted hydrocarbons 
(Volatile Organic Compounds) 

a) Photochemical oxidant (ozone) 
b) The organic fraction of PM10 
c) PM2.5 

Nitrogen dioxide (NO2) a) PM2.5 

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) a) Nitrogen dioxide (NO2) 
b) The nitrate fraction of PM10 
c) Photochemical oxidant (ozone) 

Sulfur dioxide (SO2) a) PM2.5 

Sulfur oxides (SOx) a)  Sulfur dioxide (SO2) 
b) Sulfates (SO4)  
c) The sulfate fraction of PM10 

 
(III)  Proposed Emissions - the Potential to Emit for a new or post-modification Emissions 

Unit(s), or a new or post-modification Facility as constructed or modified, including 
Fugitive Emissions directly related to the Emissions Unit(s) if the Facility belongs to one 
of the Facility categories as listed in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C), calculated in pounds 
per year and determined pursuant to the provisions of Rule 1304(D)(3).   

(JJJ) “Quantifiable” - Capable of being determined.  As used for the purposes of Offset 
Emissions Reductions a reliable, replicable and accurate basis for calculating the amount, 
rate, nature and characteristic of an emissions reduction by adhering to a protocol that is 
established considering USEPA, CARB and District policies and procedures.  The same 
method of calculating emissions should generally be used to quantify the emission levels 
before and after any reduction in emissions.   

(KKK) Readjustment - The process of revising the amount of AERs and ERCs issued due to 
changes in control measures identified in the District’s AQAP or SIP. 

64 of 527



1301-12 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

(LLL) Real - Actually occurring, implemented and not artificially devised. 

(MMM) Reasonably Available Control Technology (RACT) - Any device, system, process 
modification, apparatus, technique or combination of the above which results in the 
lowest emissions rate and which is reasonably available considering technological and 
economic feasibility. 

(NNN) Reduced Sulfur Compounds - Hydrogen sulfide, carbon disulfide and carbonyl sulfide.  

(OOO) Registry (ERC Registry) - The document established by District Rule 1309(B) which lists 
all ERCs, their amounts, owners and serves as evidence of ownership of an ERC. 

(PPP) Regulated Air Pollutant - Any of the following Air Pollutants: 

 
(1) Any Air Pollutant, and its Precursors, for which an Ambient Air Quality Standard 

has been promulgated.  

(2) Any Air Pollutant that is subject to a standard under 42 U.S.C. §7411 - Standards 
of Performance for New Stationary Sources (Federal Clean Air Act §111) or the 
regulations promulgated thereunder.  

(3) Any substance which has been designated a Class I or Class II substance under 42 
U.S.C. §7671a (Federal Clean Air Act §602) or the regulations promulgated 
thereunder. 

(4) Any Air Pollutant subject to a standard or other requirement established pursuant 
to 42 U.S.C. §7412 - Hazardous Air Pollutants (Federal Clean Air Act §112) or 
the regulations promulgated thereunder. 

(QQQ) Seasonal Source - Any Facility or Emissions Unit(s) with more than seventy-five percent 
(75%) of its annual emissions within a consecutive 120-day period. 

(RRR) Secondary Emissions - Emissions which would occur as a result of the Construction or 
operation of a Facility or Major Modification to a Facility but which do not come from 
the Facility or the Major Modification itself. 

(1) These emissions must be specific, well defined, quantifiable, and impact the same 
general area as the Facility or the Major Modification which causes the Secondary 
Emissions.  

(2) Secondary Emissions shall include emissions from any offsite support Facility 
which would not be constructed or increase its emissions except as the result of 
the construction or operation of the Facility or Major Modification.  

65 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-13 
NSR Definitions 

(3) Secondary Emissions shall not include any emissions which come directly from a 
Mobile Source.  

(SSS) Shutdown - the earlier of either: 

(1) The permanent cessation of emissions from Emissions Unit(s); or 

(2) The surrender of Emissions Unit(s) operating permit. 

(TTT) Significant - A Net Emissions Increase from a Major Modification which would be 
greater than or equal to the following emissions rates for those Nonattainment Air 
Pollutants and their Precursors dependent upon Facility location. 

POLLUTANT  EMISSION RATE 
(Within a Severe Federal 
ozone nonattainment area) 

EMISSION RATE 
(Within a moderate PM10 
nonattainment area) 

Carbon Monoxide (CO)  100 tpy 100 tpy 
Lead (Pb)  0.6 tpy 0.6 tpy 
Oxides of Nitrogen 
(NOx) 

 25 tpy 40 tpy 

PM10 
 

 N/A 15 tpy 

Reactive Organic 
Compounds (ROC) 

 25 tpy 40 tpy 

Sulfur Dioxide (SO2)  40 tpy 40 tpy 
 

(1) If a Facility is located in more than one Federal Nonattainment Area then the 
lower of the limits listed above shall apply on a pollutant category specific basis.   

(UUU) Simultaneous Emission Reduction (SER) - A Federally Enforceable reduction in the 
emissions of an existing Emissions Unit(s), calculated pursuant to the provisions of 
District Rule 1304(C), which occurs in the same permitting action as when such SERs are 
used pursuant to this Regulation and is a reduction in the Historic Actual Emissions of 
the Emissions Unit(s). 

(VVV) South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) – The air district created 
pursuant to Division 26, Part 3, Chapter 5.5 of the Health & Safety Code (commencing 
with §40400).   

(WWW) Stack – Any point in a Facility or Emission Unit designed to emit solids, liquids, or gases 
into the air, including a pipe or duct but not including flares.   

(XXX) Stack in Existence - For purposes of determining whether a stack height exceeds good 
engineering practices, the definition contained in 40 CFR 51.100(gg) in effect on June 15, 
2021 shall apply, and is incorporated herein by this reference.  

66 of 527



1301-14 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

(YYY) State Implementation Plan (SIP) - A plan for the reduction of Regulated Air Pollutants 
created by the District and CARB and approved by USEPA pursuant to the provisions of 
Title I of the Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.) and the regulations 
promulgated thereunder. 

(ZZZ) Surplus – That which is not otherwise required.  As used for the purposes of Offset 
Emissions Reductions the amount of emissions reductions that are, at the time of 
generation and use, not otherwise required by Federal, State or District law, rule, order, 
permit or regulation; not required by any legal settlement or consent decree; and not 
relied upon to meet any requirement related to the California State Implementation Plan 
(SIP).  

(AAAA) Total Organic Compounds - Compounds of carbon, excluding carbon monoxide, carbon 
dioxide, carbonic acid, metallic carbides or carbonates and ammonium carbonate. 

(BBBB) United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) - The United States 
Environmental Protection Agency, the Administrator of the USEPA and their authorized 
representative. 

(CCCC) Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) - Any compound of carbon, excluding carbon 
monoxide, carbon dioxide, carbonic acid, metallic carbides or carbonates, and ammonium 
carbonate, which participates in atmospheric photochemical reactions and those 
compounds listed in 40 CFR 51.100(s)(1). 

 
[See AVAQMD SIP table at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plans ] 

67 of 527



(Adopted: 10/05/79; Amended: 03/07/80; Amended: 07/11/80; 
Amended: 09/10/82; Amended: 07/12/85; Amended: 08/01/86; 
Amended: 12/02/88; Amended: 06/28/90; Amended: 05/03/91; 
Amended: 12/07/95; Amended: 03/20/01; Amended: 8/15/06; 
Amended: 07/20/21) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-1 
NSR Procedure 

RULE 1302 
New Source Review Procedure 

 
(A) Applicability. 

(1) This rule shall apply to all new or Modified Facilities, including EEGFs as 
defined in District Rule 1301(V), pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1306. 

(B) Applications.  

(1) Any application for an ATC or modification to a PTO, submitted pursuant to the 
procedures of District Regulation II, shall be analyzed to determine if such 
application is complete. An application shall be deemed complete when it 
contains the following, as applicable:  

(a) General Application Requirements. 

(i) Enough information regarding the location, design, construction, 
and operation of the new or modified Facility or Emissions Unit(s) 
to allow all the applicable analysis and calculations required under 
this Regulation to be made, including but not limited to: 
identification of all new or modified Emissions Unit(s); the amount 
of potential emissions from such new or modified Emissions 
Unit(s); information sufficient to determine all rules, regulations or 
other requirements applicable to such Emissions Unit(s); a 
determination of whether stack height exceeds Good Engineering 
Practice; and any necessary air quality modeling consistent with 
the most recent USEPA guidance, including but not limited to, the 
requirements contained in 40 CFR 51 Appendix W, modeling 
protocols and the results of such modeling.   

(ii) A Comprehensive Emissions Inventory.  If a Facility has a current 
approved Comprehensive Emissions Inventory on file with the 
District such Facility may, upon written request and approval of 
the APCO, update the Comprehensive Emissions Inventory to 
reflect the addition, deletion or modification of all Emission 
Unit(s) affected by the application.   

(iii) A District Regulation XVII applicability analysis sufficient to 
determine whether the Facility or Modification is or is not a Major 
PSD Facility or a Major PSD Modification as defined in District 
Rule 1700(B), using the applicability procedures adopted by 
reference in District Rule 1700.  

(iv) Any other information specifically requested by the District. 
 

68 of 527



1302-2 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

(b) Application Requirements for Facilities Requiring Offsets. 

(i) For all new and modified Facilities requiring offsets pursuant to 
District Rule 1303(B): 
a. An alternative siting analysis including an analysis of 

alternative sites, sizes and production processes pursuant to 
42 U.S.C. §7503(a)(5) (Federal Clean Air Act §173(a)(5)).  
Such analysis shall be functionally equivalent to that 
required pursuant to Division 13 of the California Public 
Resources Code (commencing with §21000.) 

b. A statewide compliance certification stating that all 
Facilities which are under the control of the same person 
(or persons under common control) in the State of 
California are in compliance with all applicable emissions 
limitations and standards under the Federal Clean Air Act 
and the applicable implementation plan for the air district 
in which the other Facilities are located. 

 
(c) Mandatory Federal Class I Area Visibility Protection Application 

Requirements. 

(i) An application for a new or modified Major Facility or a Facility 
with a Major Modification which may have an impact upon 
visibility in any Mandatory Federal Class I Area, shall include in 
its application an analysis of any anticipated impacts on visibility 
within that Mandatory Federal Class I Area.  Such analysis shall 
include, but is not limited to, an analysis of the factors found in 40 
CFR 51.307(a).   
 

(d) Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) Application Requirements.  

(i) For a Facility which is a Major PSD Facility or Major PSD 
Modification as defined in District Rule 1700(B):  
a. A modeling protocol consistent with the most recent 

USEPA guidance including but not limited to the 
requirements contained in 40 CFR 51 Appendix W, as 
approved by the APCO.  Such protocol shall also be 
submitted to USEPA and, if applicable, the Federal Land 
Manager(s) of any potentially impacted area; and  

b. A control technology review pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21(j); 
and 

c. A source impact analysis, including but not limited to 
analysis pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21(k) and a per-application 
analysis pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21(m)(1); and 

d. Information required pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21(n) if not 
provided elsewhere in the application; and  

e. An additional impact analysis including but not limited to 
analysis of direct and indirect impacts of the proposed 

69 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-3 
NSR Procedure 

emissions increase on soils, vegetation and visibility, 
pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21(o); and 

f. An analysis of anticipated impacts on a Federal Class I 
Area if the Facility is located within 63 miles (100 
kilometers) of such area pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21(p); and  

 
(e) Determination of Application Completeness. 

(i) The APCO shall determine whether the application is complete not 
later than 30 calendar days after receipt of the application, or after 
such longer time as both the applicant and the APCO may agree in 
writing.  

 
(f) Trade Secret Information. 

(i) The confidentiality of trade secrets contained in an application 
shall be considered in accordance with Government Code §6254.7 
and 18 U.S.C. §1905.  

(ii) Any information claimed by an applicant to be trade secret or 
otherwise confidential shall be clearly marked as such.   

 
(2) Notifications Regarding Applications. 

(a) After the determination of completeness has been made, the APCO shall 
transmit a written determination of completeness or incompleteness 
immediately to the applicant at the address indicated on the application.  

(i) If the application is determined to be incomplete, the determination 
shall specify which parts of the application are incomplete and how 
they can be made complete. 
a. Upon receipt by the APCO of information required to 

render an application complete or upon resubmittal of the 
entire application, a new 30-day period in which the APCO 
must determine completeness, shall begin. 

(ii) When an application subject to the provisions of District Rule 1700 
is determined to be complete the APCO shall transmit a copy of 
the written completeness determination to USEPA and, upon 
request, provide USEPA with a copy of the application.   

(iii) If the application contains an analysis of anticipated visibility 
impacts on a Mandatory Federal Class I Area, the APCO shall, 
within 30 calendar days after receipt of the application, notify 
USEPA and the Federal Land Manager of the affected Mandatory 
Federal Class I Area.  
a. The APCO shall include in such notification a copy of the 

application and the analysis of anticipated impacts on the 
affected Mandatory Federal Class I Area.  

 
(b) When the application has been determined to be complete the APCO shall 

then commence the analysis process detailed in section (C) below.   

70 of 527



1302-4 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

(c) In the alternative, the APCO may complete the issuance of the 
ATC(s) within the 30 calendar days after receipt of the application 
so long as all the applicable analysis required pursuant to 
subsection (C) has been performed and the provisions of 
subsection (C)(7)(e) applies. 

 
(3) Effect of Complete Application. 

(a) After an application is determined to be complete, the APCO shall not 
subsequently request of an applicant any new or additional information 
which was not required pursuant to subsection (B)(1) or by a 
determination of incompleteness pursuant to subsection (B)(2)(a).   

(b) Notwithstanding the above, the APCO may, during the processing of the 
application, require an applicant to clarify, amplify, correct or otherwise 
supplement the information required at the time the complete application 
was received.  

(c) A request by the APCO for clarification pursuant to subsection (B)(3)(b) 
above does not waive, extend, or delay the time limits in this rule for final 
action on the completed application, except as the applicant and the APCO 
may both agree in writing. 

(4) Fees. 

(a) The APCO shall not perform any analysis as set forth in section (C) below 
unless all applicable fees, including but not limited to the Project 
Evaluation Fee for Complex Sources as set forth in District Rule 301, have 
been paid.  

(C) Analysis. 

(1) Determination of Emissions. 

(a) The APCO shall analyze the application to determine the specific 
pollutants, amount, and change (if any) in emissions pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rules 1304 and 1700.  

(2) Determination of Requirements. 

(a) After determining the emissions change (if any), the APCO shall 
determine if any of the provisions of District Rule 1303 apply to the new 
or modified Facility. 

(b) If none of the provisions of District Rule 1303 apply to the new or 
modified facility, then the APCO shall continue the analysis at subsection 
(C)(4) below.   

(c) If subsection (A) is the only provision of District Rule 1303 applicable to 
the new or modified Facility then the APCO shall: 

71 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-5 
NSR Procedure 

(i) Develop and include conditions on any proposed ATC or PTO to 
implement BACT on all new or modified Emissions Unit(s) at the 
Facility; and 

(ii) Continue the analysis at subsection (C)(4) below.  
 

(d) If subsection (B) of District Rule 1303 apply to the new or modified 
Facility then the APCO shall: 

(i) Commence a Facility engineering analysis; and 
(ii) Develop and include conditions to implement BACT on any 

proposed ATC or PTE required for each new or Modified 
Emission Unit(s) subject to the provisions of District Rule 
1303(A); and  

(iii) Continue the analysis at subsection (C)(3) below.  
 

(3) Determination of Offsets. 

(a) If the provisions of District Rule 1303(B) apply to the new or modified 
Facility, then the APCO shall calculate the amount of Offsets required on 
a pollutant by pollutant basis pursuant to the provisions of District Rules 
1304(B)(2) and 1305.   

(i) The APCO shall thereafter notify the applicant in writing of the 
specific amount of Offsets.   

 
(b) Upon receipt of the notification, the applicant shall provide to the APCO a 

proposed Offset package which contains evidence of a sufficient quantity 
of Offsets eligible for use pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1305. 

(i) The APCO shall analyze the proposed Offset package to determine 
if an Adjustment in the value of such Offsets is required and apply 
the applicable offset ratio (if any) pursuant to the provisions of 
District Rule 1305. 
a. If the Offset package includes Mobile, Area, or Indirect 

Source ERCs pursuant to District Rule 1305(C)(3) or 
proposes the use of interpollutant Offsets pursuant to 
District Rule 1305(C)(6) the APCO shall notify USEPA by 
sending a copy of the application, the proposed Offset 
package and all relevant information thereto.   

(ii) The APCO shall disallow the use of any Offsets which were 
created by the shutdown, modification or limitation of existing 
Emissions Unit(s) when such Offsets: 
a. Are not in compliance with the applicable provisions of 

District Rule 1305 or 40 CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(C); or  
b. USEPA has disapproved the applicable implementation 

plan for the District, or USEPA has made a finding of a 
failure to submit for the District of all or a portion of an 
applicable implementation plan.  

72 of 527



1302-6 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

(iii) After determining that the Offsets are Real, Enforceable, Surplus, 
Permanent and Quantifiable; that a sufficient quantity have been 
provided; and after any permit modifications required pursuant to 
District Rules 1305 or 1309 have been made, the APCO shall 
approve the use of the Offsets. 
a. For a new or Modified Major Facility or a Major 

Modification which is located in a Federal Nonattainment 
Area the APCO’s approval shall be subject to review and 
comment by CARB and USEPA pursuant to subsection 
(D)(2) below.  

(iv) The Offsets must be obtained prior to time the new or Modified 
Facility Begins Actual Construction.  

 
(c) After determination of the amount of pollutant specific offsets required 

and approval of the Offset package the APCO shall continue the analysis 
at subsection (C)(4) below.   

(4) Stack Height Analysis. 

(a) If the application contains a determination showing that the stack height 
exceeds Good Engineering Practice the APCO shall:  

(i) Provide that the degree of emission limitation required of the new 
or modified Facility or Emission Unit(s) is not affected by so much 
of the stack height that exceeds Good Engineering Practice or by 
any other Dispersion Technique; and  

(ii) Notify the public of the availability of the demonstration study and 
provide opportunity for a public hearing pursuant to the provisions 
of subsection (C)(7)(b)(ii) before an ATC is issued; and 

(iii) Ensure any field study or fluid model used to demonstrate Good 
Engineering Practicw stack height and any determination 
concerning excessive concentration is approved by the EPA and 
the Control Officer prior to any emission limit being established. 

 
(b) The provisions of this subsection do not restrict, in any manner, the actual 

stack height of any Facility.   

(c) The APCO shall continue the analysis at subsection (C)(5) below. 

(5) Determination of Requirements for Toxic Air Contaminants. 

(a) The APCO shall also determine if any of the provisions of District Rule 
1401 apply to the new or modified Facility.  

(b) If any of the provisions of District Rule 1401 apply to the new or modified 
Facility the APCO shall:  

(i) Require the Facility to comply with the applicable provisions of 
those Rules prior to proceeding with any further analysis or 
processing of an application pursuant to this Regulation; and 

73 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-7 
NSR Procedure 

(ii) Add any conditions to the applicable permits required to 
implement any provisions of those Rules. 

 
(c) After determining which, if any, requirements of District Rule 1401 apply 

and any necessary actions taken, the APCO shall continue the analysis at 
subsection (C)(6) below.  

(d) This subsection is not submitted to USEPA and is not intended to be 
include as part of the California State Implementation Plan (SIP).   

(6) Determination of Requirements for Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD). 

(a) The APCO shall review the PSD applicability analysis submitted pursuant 
to subsection (B)(1)(a)(iii) to determine if the proposed new or modified 
Facility is or is not a Major PSD Facility or a Major PSD Modification as 
defined in District Rule 1700.  

(b) If the APCO determines that proposed new or modified Facility is a Major 
PSD Facility or a Major PSD Modification then the APCO shall:  

(i) Perform the analysis required pursuant to the provisions of District 
Rule 1700(D)(2); and  

(ii) Either complete the PSD permit issuance pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1700(D) or combine the appropriate 
analysis adding any necessary conditions in conjunction with those 
required pursuant to this Regulation; and  

(iii) Continue the analysis at subsection (C)(7) below. 
 

(c) If none of the provisions of District Rule 1700 apply, the APCO shall 
continue the analysis at subsection (C)(7) below 

(7) Determination of Notice Requirements.  

(a) The APCO shall determine the type of notice required for the proposed 
new or modified Facility. 

(b) Major NSR Notice:  If the new or Modified Facility is subject to any of 
the following, then the APCO shall implement the applicable provisions of 
section (D) prior to the issuance of the ATC(s) or modification of the 
PTO(s). 

(i) The provisions of District Rule 1303(B); or   
(ii) The provisions of subsection (C)(4) regarding stack height greater 

than Good Engineering Practice; or  
(iii) The provisions of District Rule 1700; or.  
(iv) The provisions of District Regulation XXX and the action involves 

the issuance, renewal or Significant Modification of the Federal 
Operating Permit.  

 

74 of 527



1302-8 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

(c) Toxic NSR Notice:  If any proposed new or modified Emissions Units at 
the new or modified Facility require public notification pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1401(E)(3)(e)(iii) or (F)(2)(b) then the APCO 
shall:  

(i) Provide the notice specified by the applicable provision(s) of 
District Rule 1401 in addition to any other required notice; or  

(ii) Provide notice pursuant to the provisions of subsection (D)(3)(a) 
ensuring that such notice contains any additional information 
required pursuant to the applicable provision(s) of District Rule 
1401.  

(iii) This subsection is not submitted to USEPA and is not intended to 
be included as part of the California State Implementation Plan 
(SIP).  

 
(d) Minor NSR Notice:  If the new or modified Facility is not subject to any 

of the provisions listed in subsections (7)(b) or (c) above, but is subject to 
any of the following, then the APCO shall commence the issuance of the 
ATC(s) or modification of the PTO(s) pursuant to the provisions of 
District Regulation II and provide notice pursuant to the provisions of 
subsection (D)(3)(a)(ii): 

(i) The emissions change for any Regulated Air Pollutant as 
calculated under subsection (C)(1) is greater than any of the 
following: 
20 tpy or more of VOC, 20 tpy or more of NOx, 12 tpy or more of 

PM10, or 80% of the Major Facility Threshold for any 
other Nonattainment Air Pollutant as set forth in District 
Rule 1303(B); or  

8 tpy or more of any Hazardous Air Pollutant or 20 tpy of any 
combination of Hazardous Air Pollutants or 80% of a lesser 
quantity of a Hazardous Air Pollutant as the USEPA may 
establish by rule; or  

The Federal Significance Level for a Regulated Air Pollutant as 
defined in 40 CFR 52.21(b)(23).  

 
(e) Permit Issuance Notice:  If the new or modified Facility is not subject to 

any of the provisions listed in subsection (7)(b), (c) or (d) above, then the 
APCO shall commence the issuance of the ATC(s) or modification of the 
PTO(s) pursuant to the provisions of District Regulation II and subsection 
(D)(3)(a)(iii).  

(D) Permit Issuance Procedure. 

(1) Preliminary Decision. 

(a) After all required analyses have been completed, the APCO shall issue a 
preliminary decision as to whether the New Source Review Document 

75 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-9 
NSR Procedure 

should be approved, conditionally approved, or disapproved and whether 
ATC(s) should be issued to the new or Modified Facility. 

(b) The preliminary decision shall include: 

(i) A succinct written analysis of the proposed approval, conditional 
approval or disapproval; and  

(ii) If approved or conditionally approved, proposed permit conditions 
for the ATC(s) or modified PTO(s) and the reasons for imposing 
such permit conditions; and 

(iii) A Draft Permit.   
 

(c) The preliminary decision and draft NSR Document may also be combined 
with the draft PSD Document, if any, and any document(s) produced 
pursuant to District Regulation XXX.  In such case the preliminary 
decision, draft NSR Document and draft PSD Document shall conform to 
the applicable provisions of District Regulation XXX and 40 CFR 70.6(a)-
(g), 70.7(a)-(b) and will serve as the draft Statement of Legal and Factual 
Basis and draft Federal Operating Permit.   

(2) CARB, USEPA, Federal Land Manager, and Affected State Review.  

(a) If notice is required pursuant to the provisions of subsection (C)(7)(b)-(d) 
the APCO shall, concurrently with the publication required pursuant to 
subsection (D)(3) below, send a copy of the preliminary decision, the draft 
permit, and any underlying analysis to CARB, USEPA and any Affected 
State.   

(b) CARB, USEPA and any Affected State shall have 30 days from the date 
of publication of the notice pursuant to subsection (D)(3) below to submit 
comments and recommendations regarding the preliminary decision.  

(i) If the permitting action involves the issuance, renewal or 
Significant Modification of the Federal Operating Permit and that 
action is being performed concurrently with the actions pursuant to 
this Regulation then CARB, USEPA, and any Affected State shall 
have 45 days from the date of publication of the notice to submit 
comments.   

 
(c) Upon receipt of any comments and/or recommendations from CARB 

USEPA and/or any Affected State the APCO shall either: 

(i) Accept such comments and/or recommendations and modify the 
preliminary decision accordingly; or 

(ii) Reject such comments and/or recommendations, notify CARB, 
USEPA, and/or the Affected State of the rejection and the reasons 
for such rejection. 

 

76 of 527



1302-10 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

(d) For applications containing an analysis of anticipated visibility impacts on 
a Federal Class I Area pursuant to subsection (B)(1)(c) or (B)(1)(d)(i)e.-f. 
above, the APCO, upon receipt of any comments from USEPA or the 
Federal Land Manager of the affected Federal Class I Area, shall: 

(i) Accept such comments and/or recommendations and modify the 
preliminary decision accordingly; or 

(ii) Reject such comments and/or recommendations, notify CARB, 
USEPA, and/or the Federal Land Manager of the affected Federal 
Class I Area of the rejection and the reasons for such rejection.  

 
(e) For applications containing an Offset package submitted pursuant to 

subsection (C)(3)(b) where the Offset package includes Mobile, Area, or 
Indirect source ERCs pursuant to District Rule 1305(C)(3) or proposes the 
use of interpollutant Offsets pursuant to District Rule 1305(C)(6), the 
APCO, upon receipt of comments from USEPA, shall: 

(i) Accept such comments and/or recommendations and modify the 
preliminary decision accordingly; and 

(ii) Require changes to the Offset package by the applicant if such are 
necessary.  

 
(3) Public Review and Comment. 

(a) Public Notice. 

(i) Major NSR Notice and Toxic NSR Notice:  If notice is required 
pursuant to the provisions of subsections (C)(7)(b), (C)7)(c) or 
(D)(4)(d) then, within 10 days of the issuance of the preliminary 
determination, the APCO shall: 
a. Produce a notice containing all the information set forth in 

subsection (D)(3)(b)(i); and  
b. Publish a notice by posting the notice and draft permit on 

the District’s website for, at a minimum, the duration of the 
public comment period; and  

c. Send a copy of the notice containing the information set 
forth in subsection (D)(3)(b)(i) to the applicant; CARB; 
USEPA; Affected State(s); the City and County where the 
proposed Facility or Modification is located; any State or 
Federal Land Manager or Indian governing body who’s 
lands might be affected by emissions from the proposed 
Facility or Modification; and to all persons who have 
requested such notice and/or on a list of persons requesting 
notice of actions pursuant to this regulation generally on 
file with the District; and 

d. Provide notice by other reasonable means, if such notice is 
necessary to assure fair and adequate notice to the public.   

77 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-11 
NSR Procedure 

(ii) Minor NSR Notice:  If notice of permit issuance is required 
pursuant to the provisions of subsection (C)(7)(d) then, within 10 
days of the issuance of the engineering analysis the APCO shall: 
a. Produce a notice containing the information set forth in 

subsection (D)(3)(b)(ii) below; and 
b. Publish the notice and the draft permit by posting on the 

District’s website for, at a minimum, the duration of the 
comment period; and  

c. Send a copy of the notice to the applicant; CARB; USEPA; 
Affected State(s); and all persons who have requested such 
notice and/or on a list of persons requesting notice of 
actions pursuant to this regulation generally on file with the 
District.   

(iii) Permit Issuance Notice:  If the provisions of subsection (C)(7)(e) 
apply then the APCO shall issue the permit pursuant to the 
provisions of District Regulation II and post the final permit on the 
District’s website.  

 
(b) Notice Content Requirements.   

(i) Major NSR Notice Contents:  The notice required pursuant to 
subsection (D)(3)(a)(i) shall include:   
a. The name and location of the Facility, including the name 

and address of the applicant if different. 
b. A statement indicating the availability, conclusions of the 

preliminary decision and a location where the public may 
obtain or inspect the preliminary decision and supporting 
documentation; and 

c. A statement providing at least 30 days from the date of 
publication of the notice for the public to submit written 
comments on the preliminary decision; and  

d. A brief description of the specific comment procedures and 
deadlines; and 

e. Information regarding obtaining review of the permit 
issuance decision by the District Hearing Board pursuant to 
the provisions of California Health & Safety Code 
§42302.1.  

f. If the APCO has determined that the Stack Height exceeds 
Good Engineering Practice then the notice shall also 
contain notice of the opportunity to request a public hearing 
on the proposed demonstration produced pursuant to 
subsection (C)(4)(a)(i).  

g. If the provisions of District Rule 1700(C) apply then the 
notice shall also contain: the degree of increment 
consumption; and notice of the opportunity to request a 
public hearing regarding the air quality impact, control 
technology or other appropriate considerations of the 
preliminary determination for the Major PSD Facility or 
Major PSD Modification.  

78 of 527



1302-12 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

h. If the provisions of District Regulation XXX apply, and the 
action involves the issuance, renewal or Significant 
Modification of the Federal Operating Permit, and the 
Federal Operating Permit is being issued concurrently then 
the notice shall also contain notice of the opportunity to 
request a public hearing on the proposed Federal Operating 
Permit pursuant to District Rule 3007(A)(1)(d).   

i. If the APCO has rejected comments regarding anticipated 
visibility impacts on a Federal Class I Area, the notice shall 
also contain a notation of the availability of the reasons for 
such rejection. 

(ii) Minor NSR Notice Contents:  The notification required pursuant 
to subsection (D)(3)(a)(ii) shall include: 
a. Identification of the Facility; including the name, address 

and Facility number; and 
b. Identification of the permit(s) involved including permit 

number, and aa brief description of the action taken; and 
c. Where a copy of the application and preliminary decision 

may be obtained; and 
d. Provide at least 30 days from the date of publication of the 

notice for the public to submit written comments on the 
preliminary decision; and  

e. A brief description of the specific comment procedures and 
deadlines; and  

f. Information regarding obtaining review of the permit 
issuance decision by the District Hearing Board pursuant to 
the provisions of California Health & Safety Code 
§42302.1. 

 
(c) Availability of Documents. 

(i) At the time of publication of any notice required above the APCO 
shall make available for public inspection at the offices of the 
District or in another prominent place: the application and any 
other information submitted by the applicant; The NSR document, 
the preliminary decision to grant or deny the ATC, including any 
proposed permit conditions and the reasons therefore; and the 
supporting analysis for the preliminary decision. 

(ii) Notwithstanding the above, the APCO is not required to release 
confidential information.  Information shall be considered 
confidential when: 
a. The information is a trade secret or otherwise confidential 

pursuant to California Government Code 6254.7(d) or  
b. The information is entitled to confidentiality pursuant to 18 

U.S.C. §1905; and 
c. Such information is clearly marked or otherwise identified 

by the applicant as confidential. 
 

79 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-13 
NSR Procedure 

(d) The APCO shall accept and consider all relevant comment(s) submitted to 
the District in writing during the 30 day public comment period provided 
pursuant to subsection (D)(3)(b)(i) or (ii). 

(e) The APCO shall, if requested pursuant to the provisions provided for in 
the published notice, hold a public hearing regarding the proposed 
preliminary determination as provided pursuant to subsection 
(D)(3)(b)(i)f.-h.  

(i) Such hearing shall be scheduled no less than 30 days after the 
publication of a notice of public hearing is published pursuant to 
the provisions set forth in subsection (D)(3)(a).   

 
(f) The APCO shall keep a record of any oral and written comments received 

during the public comment period or at any public hearing and shall retain 
copies of such comments and the District’s written responses to such 
comments in the District files for the particular Facility.  

(g) If any substantive changes are made to the preliminary decision as a result 
of comments received from the public, CARB, USEPA or any Affected 
State(s), the APCO shall send a copy of the proposed changes to CARB 
and USEPA for review. 

(h) Nothing in this subsection shall be interpreted to limit the availability of 
documents pursuant to the California Public Records Act (California 
Government Code §§6250 et seq.) as effective upon the date of the request 
for such documents.   

(4) Final Action. 

(a) After the conclusion of the comment period and consideration of the 
comments, the APCO shall produce a final NSR Document 

(b) Thereafter, the APCO shall take final action to issue, issue with conditions 
or decline to issue the ATCs or PTOs pursuant to subsection (D)(6) based 
on the NSR document. 

(i) Such final action shall take place no later than 180 days after the 
application has been determined to be complete. 

(ii) The APCO shall not take final action to issue the NSR Document 
if either of the following occurs: 
a. USEPA objects to such issuance in writing; or 
b. USEPA has determined, as evidenced by a notice published 

in the Federal Register, that the applicable implementation 
plan is not being adequately implemented in the Federal 
Nonattainment Area in which the new or Modified Facility 
is located.  

 
(c) The APCO shall provide written notice of the final action to the applicant, 

USEPA and CARB. 

80 of 527



1302-14 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

(d) If substantive changes have been made to the preliminary determination or 
other documents after the opening of the public comment period which are 
substantial enough to require:  changes to the underlying requirements or 
which result in a less stringent BACT determination, then, the APCO shall 
cause to be published a notice substantially similar in content to the notice 
required by subsection (D).   

(e) The final NSR Document may be combined with a final PSD document 
produced pursuant to District Rule 1700(D).  

(f) The final NSR Document and all supporting documentation shall remain 
available for public inspection at the offices of the District for a minimum 
period of 5 years. 

(5) Issuance of ATC(s). 

(a) In conjunction with final action on the NSR Document the APCO shall 
issue ATC(s) for the new or Modified Facility pursuant to the provisions 
of District Regulation II.  Such ATC(s) shall contain, at a minimum, the 
following conditions: 

(i) All conditions regarding construction, operation and other matters 
as set forth in the NSR Document; and 

(ii) If a new or Modified Facility is a replacement, in whole or in part, 
for an existing Facility or Emissions Unit on the same or 
contiguous property, a condition allowing 180 days or another 
reasonable start up period as agreed to by the District, USEPA and 
CARB, for simultaneous operation of the new or Modified Facility 
and the existing Facility or Emissions Unit; and 

(iii) A condition requiring the Facility to be operated in accordance 
with the conditions contained on the ATC(s); 

(iv) A condition requiring that the offsets must be obtained prior to the 
commencement of construction on the new or Modified Facility, 
Enforceable, and in effect by the time the new or modified Facility 
commences operation.   

 
(b) The APCO shall not issue ATC(s) to a new or Modified Facility pursuant 

to this regulation unless: 

(i) The new Facility or Modification to an existing Facility is 
constructed using BACT for each Nonattainment Air Pollutant 
when the provisions of Rule 1303(A) apply. 

(ii) Any increase in emissions for each Nonattainment Air Pollutant 
have been properly offset pursuant to the provisions of District 
Rules 1305 and/or 1309.   
a. Such offsets shall be Real, Enforceable Quantifiable, 

Surplus and Permanent; and 
b. The permit(s) of any Facility or Emissions Unit(s) which 

provided offsetting emissions reductions have been 

81 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-15 
NSR Procedure 

properly modified and/or other actions have been 
performed pursuant to the provisions of District Rules 1305 
and 1309.   

(iii) The new or Modified Facility complies with all applicable Rules 
and Regulations of the District. 

(iv) The new or Modified Facility will not interfere with the attainment 
or maintenance of any National Ambient Air Quality Standard.   

 
(6) Issuance of PTO(s). 

(a) After the final action on the NSR Document pursuant to this Regulation 
and/or the issuance of ATC(s) pursuant to the provisions of District 
Regulation II, the APCO shall deny the subsequent issuance of PTO(s) 
unless the APCO determines that: 

(i) If no ATC was issued, the owner or operator of the new or 
Modified Facility has complied with all applicable provisions of 
this Regulation including the provision of offsets if such were 
required.  

(ii) The new or Modified Facility has been Constructed and operated 
in a manner consistent with the conditions as set forth in the NSR 
Document and the ATC(s); and 

(iii) That the permit(s) of any Facility or Emissions Unit(s) which 
provided Offsets to the new or Modified Facility have been 
properly modified and/or valid contracts have been obtained 
pursuant to the provisions of District Rules 1304, 1305 or 1309.  

(vi) That the Offsets, if required pursuant to District Rule 1303(B), 
were Real, Enforceable, Quantifiable, Surplus and Permanent, 
prior to the commencement of construction of the Facility. 

(v) That all conditions contained in the ATC(s) requiring performance 
of particular acts or events by a date specified have occurred on or 
before such dates. 

(vi) If the actual emissions are greater than those calculated when the 
ATC was issued: 
a. That the owner/operator has provided additional offsets to 

cover the difference between the amount of offsets 
originally provided and the amount of offsets necessary 
calculated pursuant to District Rule 1305 as based upon the 
actual emissions of the facility; and 

b. That such additional offsets were provided within ninety 
(90) days of the owner/operator being notified by the 
APCO that such additional offsets are necessary. 

 
[See AVAQMD SIP table at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plans] 
  

82 of 527



1302-16 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

This page intentionally left blank. 

83 of 527



(Adopted: 10/05/79; Amended: 03/07/80; Amended: 09/10/82; 
Amended: 07/12/85; Amended: 08/01/86; Amended: 06/28/90; 
Amended: 05/03/91; Amended: 12/07/95; Amended: 05/10/96; 
Amended: 03/20/01; Amended:  07/20/21) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1303 1303-1 
NSR Requirements 

Rule 1303 
New Source Review Requirements 

(A) Best Available Control Technology. 

(1) Any new Permit Unit which emits, or has the Potential to Emit, 25 pounds per day 
or more of any Nonattainment Air Pollutant shall be equipped with BACT 

(2) Any Modified Permit Unit which emits, or has the Potential to Emit, 25 pounds 
per day or more of any Nonattainment Air Pollutant shall be equipped with 
BACT.  

(3) Any new or Modified Permit Unit at a Facility which emits, will emit, or has the 
Potential to Emit any Nonattainment Air Pollutant in an amount greater than or 
equal to the amount listed in subsection (B)(1) below shall be equipped with 
BACT.  

(4) For purposes of determining applicability of this Section, Potential to Emit is 
calculated pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1304(E)(3), any Emissions 
Change is calculated pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1304(B)(1), and 
SERs shall not be used in such calculations.   

(B) Offsets Required. 

(1) Any new or Modified Facility which emits or has the Potential to Emit a 
Regulated Air Pollutant in an amount greater than or equal to the following offset 
threshold amounts of Nonattainment Air Pollutants and their Precursors, as 
calculated pursuant to District Rule 1304(B) less any SERs as calculated and 
approved pursuant to District Rule 1304(C), shall obtain Offsets. 

84 of 527



1303-2 AVAQMD 1303 
NSR Requirements 

OFFSET THRESHOLD AMOUNTS 
POLLUTANT OFFSET THRESHOLD 
PM10 15 tpy 

Oxides of Nitrogen (NOx) 25 tpy 

Oxides of Sulfur (SOx) 25 tpy 

Volatile Organic 
Compounds (VOC) 

 
25 tpy 

 
(2) Any Facility which is not a Major Facility but where the Modification is in itself a 

Major Modification shall obtain Offsets. 

(3) Any Facility or modification which emits or has the Potential to Emit a 
Nonattainment Air Pollutant in an amount greater than the threshold amounts 
listed in subsection (B)(1) due to a relaxation in any enforcement limitation 
established after August 7, 1980 on the capacity of the Facility or modification to 
emit a pollutant (such as a restriction on hours of operation ) shall obtain Offsets 
and be equipped with BACT pursuant to subsection (A)(3) above as if the Facility 
had not yet Commenced Construction.   

(4) Any Facility which has accumulated emissions increases in excess of the offset 
threshold set forth in subsection (B)(1) above shall offset the total emission 
increase during such period to zero. 

(5) The amount, and eligibility of such offsets shall be determined on a pollutant by 
pollutant basis pursuant to the provisions of District Rules 1304, 1305, and 1309.   

 
 
[SIP: See AVAQMD SIP table at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plans] 

85 of 527



(Adopted: 10/05/79; Amended: 03/07/80; Amended: 09/10/82; 
Amended: 07/12/85; Amended: 01/10/86; Amended: 08/01/86; 
Amended: 06/28/90; Amended: 05/03/91; Amended: 06/05/92; 
Amended: 09/11/92; Amended: 12/07/95; Amended: 06/14/96; 
Amended: 03/20/01; Amended:  07/20/21) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1304 1304-1 
NSR Emissions Calculations 

RULE 1304 
New Source Review Emissions Calculations 

(A) General 

(1) Purpose 

(a) This rule provides the procedures and formulas to calculate increases and 
decreases in emissions of Regulated Air Pollutants for new or Modified 
Facilities.  The results of such calculations shall be used to: 

(i) Determine the applicability of the provisions of District Rule 1303.  
(ii) Calculate SERs generated within the same Facility. 
(iii) Determine the Potential to Emit (PTE) for new or Modified 

Facilities and Emissions Unit(s). 
(iv) Calculate certain terms used in District Rule 1305.   
(v) Calculate emissions decreases used to determine ERCs pursuant to 

the provisions of District Rule 1309. 
 

(B) Calculating Emissions Changes in a Facility 

(1) General Emissions Change Calculations 

(a) The emissions change for new or Modified Emissions Unit(s) shall be 
calculated, in pounds per day, by subtracting Historic Actual Emissions 
(HAE) from Proposed Emissions (PE). 

Emissions Change = (PE) - (HAE) 
 

(b) The emissions change for a project at new or Modified Facility is the sum 
of all the positive Emissions Changes for each Emissions Unit(s) which 
occur at the Facility at the same time or in connection with the same 
permitting action.   

86 of 527



1304-2 AVAQMD Rule 1304 
NSR Emissions Calculations 

(2) Net Emissions Increase Calculations 

(a) The Net Emissions Increase for a new or modified Emissions Unit(s) shall 
be calculated, in pounds per day, by subtracting Historic Actual Emissions 
(HAE) from Proposed Emissions (PE). 

Net Emissions Increase = (PE) – (HAE) 
 

(b) The Net Emissions Increase for a new Facility is the sum of all the 
Potential Emissions from each Emissions Unit(s) at the Facility. 

(c) The Net Emissions Increase for a project at a modified Facility is the sum 
of all the Net Emissions Increases for each Emissions Unit(s) minus any 
SERs as calculated and verified pursuant to Section (C) below which 
occur at the Facility at the same time or in connection with the same 
permitting action.   

(C) Calculating Simultaneous Emissions Reductions. 

(1) SERs as defined in District Rule 1301(UUU) may result from the Modification or 
shut down of Existing Emission Unit(s) so long as the resulting reductions are 
Federally Enforceable, Real, Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable and Enforceable, 
and are reductions in of the Emissions Unit(s). 

(2) SERs resulting from the Modification or shutdown of existing Emission Unit(s) 
within the same Facility shall be calculated as follows: 

(a) For the shutdown of Emissions Unit(s); 

SER = HAE 
 

(b) For Modifications or limitations on operations of Emission Unit(s); 

SER = (HAE) - (PE) 
 

(c) For shutdown, Modifications or limitations on mobile, area or indirect 
sources of emissions;  

(i) Any calculation formula and protocol as approved by the District, 
CARB and USEPA; and 

(ii) The SERs also comply with the applicable provisions of District 
Rule 1305(C)(3).  

87 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1304 1304-3 
NSR Emissions Calculations 

 
(d) In the case of a Modified Major Facility, the HAE for a specific Emission 

Unit(s) may be equal to the Potential to Emit for that Emission Unit(s), the 
particular Emissions Unit have been previously offset in a documented 
prior permitting action so long as:  

(i) The PTE for the specific Emissions Unit is specified in a Federally 
Enforceable Emissions Limitation; and 

(ii) The resulting Emissions Change from a calculation using this 
provision is a decrease or not an increase in emissions from the 
Emissions Unit(s) and  

(iii) Any excess SERs generated from a calculation using this provision 
are not eligible for banking pursuant to the provision of District 
Regulation XIV.   

 
(3) SERs calculated pursuant to subsection (C)(2) above shall thereafter be adjusted 

to reflect emissions reductions which are otherwise required by Federal, State or 
District law, rule, order, permit or regulation as follows: 

(a) SERs shall be adjusted to reflect only the excess reductions beyond those 
already achieved by, or achievable by, the Emissions Unit(s) using RACT.  

(b) SERs shall be adjusted to reflect only the excess reductions beyond those 
required by applicable Federal, State or District law, rule, order, permit or 
regulation. 

(c) SERs shall be adjusted to reflect only the excess reductions beyond those 
required by any applicable proposed District Rules and Regulations which 
have been taken to public workshop. 

(d) SERs shall be adjusted to reflect the excess reductions beyond those 
required by any control measures identified in the District’s Air Quality 
Attainment Plan or contained in the State Implementation Plan of the 
District and which have not yet been implemented in the form of District 
Rules and/or Regulations. 

(4) SERs calculated pursuant to subsection (C)(2) above shall be considered 
Enforceable when the owner and/or operator of the Emissions Units involved has 
obtained appropriate permits and/or submitted other Enforceable documents as 
follows:  

88 of 527



1304-4 AVAQMD Rule 1304 
NSR Emissions Calculations 

(a) If the SERs are the result of a Modification or limitation on the use of 
existing equipment and the owner and/or operator has been issued revised 
ATCs or PTOs containing Federally Enforceable conditions reflecting the 
Modification and/or limitations.  

(b) If the SERs are the result of a shutdown of a Permit Unit(s) the owner 
and/or operator has surrendered the relevant permits and those permits 
have been voided.   

(i) The specific Permit Units for which the permits were surrendered 
shall not be repermitted within the District unless the emissions 
thereof are completely Offset pursuant to the provisions of this 
regulation.   

 
(c) If the SERs are the result of a Modification of Emissions Units(s) which 

did not have a District permit, the owner and/or operator has obtained a 
valid District permit or provided a contract, enforceable by the District 
which contains enforceable limitations on the Emissions Unit(s).   

(d) If the SERs are the result of the application of a more efficient control 
technology to Emissions Unit(s) the owner and/or operator has or obtains 
a valid District PTO for both the underlying Emissions Unit and the new 
control technology.   

(5) SERs as calculated above may only be used for purposes of  calculating Net 
Emissions Increases pursuant to subsection (B)(2) or as Offsets pursuant to 
District Rule 1305(C)(2).  

(6) Prior to use, SERs must be approved by the APCO. 

(D) Calculation of Emission Reduction Credits (ERCs) 

(1) ERCs as defined in District Rule 1301(X) may result from the Modification or 
shutdown of Existing Emissions Unit(s) so long as the resulting reductions are 
Federally Enforceable, Real, Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable and Enforceable 
and are reductions in emissions of the Emissions Unit(s).   

89 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1304 1304-5 
NSR Emissions Calculations 

(2) ERCs resulting from the Modification or shutdown of existing Emissions Unit(s) 
shall be initially calculated as follows: 

(a) For the shutdown of an emissions unit; 

ERC = HAE 
 

(b) For Modifications or limitations on operations of an Emission unit(s); 

ERC = (HAE) - (PE) 
 

(c) For Modifications or limitations on mobile, area or indirect sources of 
emissions; 

(i) For Nonattainment Air Pollutants, a SIP approved calculation 
method that represents actual emissions reductions from a USEPA 
approved emissions inventory  

(ii) For other Regulated Air Pollutants, any calculation formula and 
protocol as approved by the District, CARB and USEPA. 

 
(3) Prior to Banking and issuance of the certificate, ERCs shall be adjusted to reflect 

emissions reductions which are not otherwise required by Federal, State or 
District law, rule, order, permit or regulation, as follows: 

(a) ERCs shall be adjusted to reflect only the excess reductions beyond those 
already achieved by, or achievable by, the emissions unit using RACT.  

(b) ERCs shall be adjusted to reflect only the excess reductions beyond those 
required by applicable District Rules and Regulations. 

(c) ERCs shall be adjusted to reflect only the excess reductions beyond those 
required by any applicable proposed District Rules and Regulations which 
have been taken to public workshop. 

(d) ERCs shall be adjusted to reflect the excess reductions beyond those 
required by any control measures identified in the District's AQAP or 
contained in the SIP for the District which have not yet been implemented 
in the form of District Rules and/or Regulations. 

90 of 527



1304-6 AVAQMD Rule 1304 
NSR Emissions Calculations 

(4) Readjustment of ERCs 

(a) ERCs shall be eligible for readjustment when: 

(i) The original amount of ERCs as calculated were adjusted based 
upon a proposed Rule or Regulation, which was not identified in 
the District’s AQAP or SIP and the District has subsequently 
determined that the Rule or Regulation will not be adopted by the 
District; or 

(ii) The original amount of ERCs as calculated were adjusted based 
upon a control measure which was identified in the District’s 
AQAP or SIP and the control measure has subsequently been 
removed from either or both documents and no District Rule or 
Regulation has been adopted for the control measure. 

 
(b) If an ERC is eligible for readjustment the APCO shall calculate the 

readjustment as if the ERC was being initially issued and thereafter reissue 
the ERC pursuant to the provisions found in District Rule 1309(E). 

(5) Discount of ERCs Generated from Military Bases 

(a) ERCs which are calculated from emission reductions created by a military 
base designated for closure or downward realignment shall be discounted 
five percent (5%) to improve air quality. 

(E) Calculation of Terms Used in Rule 1304 

(1) Proposed Emissions  

(a) For a new or Modified Facility or Emissions Unit(s), the Proposed 
Emissions shall be equal to the Potential to Emit defined by District Rule 
1301(GGG) after modification or construction for that Facility or 
Emissions Unit(s) and as calculated pursuant to subsection (E)(3) below. 

(2) Historic Actual Emissions (HAE) 

(a) HAE equal the Actual Emissions of Emissions Unit(s) including Fugitive 
Emissions directly related to those Emissions Unit(s) if the Facility 
belongs to one of the Facility categories as listed in 40 CFR 
51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C), calculated in pounds per year, as follows: 

91 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1304 1304-7 
NSR Emissions Calculations 

(i) The verified Actual Emissions of an Emissions Unit(s), averaged 
from the 2 year period which immediately proceeds the date of 
application and which is representative of Facility operations; or  

(ii) The verified Actual Emissions of an Emissions Unit(s), averaged 
for any 2 years of the 5 year period which immediately precedes 
the date of application which the APCO has determined is more 
representative of Facility operations than subsection (E)(2)(a)(i) 
above.  

(iii) If the Emissions Unit(s) have been in operation for less than one 
year, the HAE shall be equal to zero.   

 
(3) Potential to Emit 

(a) The Potential to Emit for a Facility, for the purpose of this Rule, shall be 
calculated as follows: 

(i) The sum of the Potentials to Emit for all existing Emission Unit(s) 
as defined pursuant to District Rule 1301(GGG); and 

(ii) Any emissions increases from proposed new or Modified 
Emissions Unit(s) as calculated pursuant to subsection (B) above; 
and 

(iii) Any Fugitive Emissions if the Facility belongs to one of the 
facility categories as listed in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)c. 

 
 
[SIP:  See AVAQMD SIP table at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plans] 
  

92 of 527



1304-8 AVAQMD Rule 1304 
NSR Emissions Calculations 

This page intentionally left blank. 

93 of 527



(Adopted: 10/05/96; Amended: 09/10/82; Amended: 04/06/84; 
Amended: 07/12/85; Amended: 08/01/86; Rescinded: 06/28/90; 
Adopted: 03/20/01; Amended:08/15/06; Amended: 07/20/21) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1305 1305-1 
NSR Emissions Offsets 

RULE 1305 
New Source Review Emissions Offsets 

(A) General  

(1) Purpose 

(a) This Rule provides the procedures to calculate the amount of, determine 
the eligibility of, and determine the use of Offsets required pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1303(B). 

(B) Calculation of Amount of Offsets Necessary  

(1) The base amount of necessary Offsets shall be calculated based upon the nature of 
the Facility or Modification.   

(2) The APCO shall first determine the particular Facility or Modification and 
calculate the base quantity of Offsets required as follows 

(a) For a new Major Facility, the base quantity of Offsets shall be equal to the 
total Proposed Emissions, calculated pursuant to District Rule 1304(E)(1), 
for the Facility on a pollutant category specific basis for each 
Nonattainment Air Pollutant. 

(b) For a Major Modification to a previously existing non-major Facility 
located in a Federal Nonattainment Area for the specific Nonattainment 
Air Pollutant the base quantity of Offsets shall be equal to the total 
Proposed Emissions, pursuant to District Rule 1304(E)(1), for the Facility 
on a pollutant category specific basis.  

(c) For a Major Modification to a previously existing non-major Facility 
located outside a Federal Nonattainment Area for the specific 
Nonattainment Air Pollutant the base quantity of Offsets shall be equal to 
the amount of the Facility’s Proposed Emissions which exceeds the 
threshold amounts as set forth in District Rule 1303(B) on a pollutant 
category specific basis for each Nonattainment Air Pollutant. 

(d) For a Modification to a previously existing non-major Facility which 
subsequently results in the Facility becoming a Major Facility located in a 
Federal Nonattainment Area for the specific Nonattainment Pollutant, 
the base quantity of Offsets shall be equal to the Facility’s Proposed 
Emissions, pursuant to District Rule 1304(E)(1), for the Facility on a 
pollutant category specific basis for each Nonattainment Air Pollutant. 

(e) For a Modification to a previously existing non-major Facility which 
subsequently results in the Facility becoming a Major Facility located 
outside a Federal Nonattainment Area for the specific Nonattainment 

94 of 527



1305-2 AVAQMD Rule 1305 
NSR Emissions Offsets 

Air Pollutant, the base quantity of Offsets shall be equal to  the Facility’s 
Proposed Emissions which exceeds the threshold amounts as set forth in 
District Rule 1303(B)on a pollutant category specific basis for each 
Nonattainment Air Pollutant. 

(f) For a non-major Facility which becomes a Major Facility due to the 
relaxation of a Federal requirement or a Federally Enforceable 
requirement located in a Federal Nonattainment Area for the specific 
Nonattainment Pollutant, the base quantity of Offsets shall be equal to  the 
total Proposed Emissions, pursuant to District Rule 1304(E)(1), for the 
Facility on a pollutant category specific basis for each Nonattainment Air 
Pollutant. 

(g) For a non-major Facility which becomes a Major Facility due to the 
relaxation of a Federal requirement or a Federally Enforceable 
requirement located outside a Federal Nonattainment Area for the 
specific Nonattainment Air Pollutant, the base quantity of Offsets shall be 
equal to the Facility’s Proposed Emissions which exceeds the threshold 
amounts as set forth in District Rule 1303(B) for the Facility on a pollutant 
category specific basis for each Nonattainment Air Pollutant. 

(h) For a Modification to an existing Major Facility the base quantity of 
Offsets shall be the amount equal to the difference between the Facility’s 
Proposed Emissions and the HAE. 

(i) Additional Requirements for Seasonal Sources  

(i) The base quantity of Offsets for new or Modified Seasonal Sources 
shall be determined on a quarterly basis. 

(ii) Seasonal emissions used for Offsets shall generally occur during 
the same consecutive monthly period as the new or Modified 
Seasonal Source operates. 

 
(j) Offset Adjustment for Various Energy Conservation Projects 

(i) If the facility qualifies as a cogeneration technology project, or is 
otherwise qualified as an energy conservation project pursuant to 
California Health and Safety Code §§39019.5, 39019.6, 39047.5 
and 39050.5 the amount of offsets shall be adjusted to the extent 
required by the applicable provisions of Health and Safety Code, 
including but not limited to California Health and Safety Code 
§§42314, 42314.1, 42314.5, 41601, and 41605.5. 

(ii) In no case shall such offset adjustment result in an amount of 
offsets less than those required pursuant to Federal law. 

 
(3) After determining the base quantity of Offsets, the APCO shall apply the 

appropriate Offset ratio and any Adjustments as set forth in section (D) below, 
dependent upon the location of the Offsets and the location of the proposed new 
or Modified Facility or Emissions Unit(s). 

95 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1305 1305-3 
NSR Emissions Offsets 

(4) If eligible interpollutant Offsets are being used the APCO shall apply the 
appropriate ratio to determine the final amount of Offsets necessary. 

(C) Eligibility of Offsets 

(1) ERCs are eligible to be used as Offsets when: 

(a) Such ERCs are Real, Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable, and Enforceable; 
and have been calculated pursuant to District Rule 1304(E) and issued by 
the District pursuant to the provisions in District Rule 1309; and are 
obtained from a Facility (or combination of Facilities) which are: 

(i) Located within the same Federal Nonattainment, attainment or 
unclassified area as that where the Offsets are to be used; or 

(ii) Located in an area with a Federal designation (in the case of 
attainment or unclassified areas) or classification (in the case of 
nonattainment areas) which is greater than or equal to the 
designation or classification of the area where the Offsets are to be 
used so long as the emissions from that area cause or contribute to 
a violation of the Ambient Air Quality Standards in the area in 
which the Offsets are to be used. 

 
(b) Such ERCs have been calculated and issued in another air district under a 

program developed pursuant to California Health & Safety Code §§40700-
40713 so long as the source of such credits is contained within the same 
air basin as the District and the use of the ERCs comply with the 
provisions of subsection (C)(4) below. 

(c) Such ERCs have been calculated and issued in another air district under a 
program developed pursuant to California Health & Safety Code §§40709-
40713 and the transfer of such credits complies with the requirements of 
California Health & Safety Code §40709.6 and the use of the ERCs 
comply with the provisions of section (C)(5) below. 

(2)  SERs are eligible for use as Offsets when:   

(a) They have been calculated, adjusted and meet all the requirements of 
District Rule 1304(C). 

(b) In no case shall any excess SERs be eligible for Banking pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1309. 

(3) Mobile, Area and Indirect Source Emissions Reductions 

(a) Mobile Source ERCs are eligible to be used as Offsets when: 

(i) Such Mobile, Area, or Indirect Source ERCs have been calculated 
and banked pursuant to the provisions of District Regulation XVII 
and District Rule 1309; and 

96 of 527



1305-4 AVAQMD Rule 1305 
NSR Emissions Offsets 

(ii) The applicant demonstrates sufficient control over the Mobile Area 
or Indirect Sources to ensure the claimed reductions are Real, 
Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable and Enforceable; and 

(iii) For Mobile Sources, such Mobile Source ERCs are consistent with 
Mobile Source emissions reduction guidelines issued by CARB; 
and 

(iv) The specific Mobile, Area, or Indirect Source ERCs are approved 
for use prior to the issuance of the NSR document and the issuance 
of any ATCs by the APCO in concurrence with CARB; and 

(v) For a new or Modified Major Facility or a Major Modification 
which is located in a Federal Nonattainment Area the specific 
Mobile, Area, or Indirect Source ERCs are calculated and adjusted 
pursuant to a SIP approved calculation method and represent 
Actual Emissions Reductions from a USEPA approved emissions 
inventory; and  

(vi) Such Mobile, Area, or Indirect Source ERCs comply with the 
applicable provisions of section (C)(1) above. 

 
(4) ERCs Obtained from Other Air Districts and Within the Air Basin 

(a) ERCs occurring within the air basin but outside the District are eligible to 
be used as Offsets upon approval of the APCO as follows: 

(i) For a new or Modified Major Facility or a Major Modification 
which is located in a Federal Nonattainment Area the APCO’s 
approval shall be made in consultation with CARB and the 
USEPA, on a case-by-case basis; and 

(ii) For all other Facilities or Modifications subject to this provision 
the APCO’s approval shall be made in consultation with CARB on 
a case-by-case basis; and  

(iii) The ERCs are obtained in a nonattainment area which has a greater 
or equal nonattainment classification than the area where the 
Offsets are to be used; and  

(ii) The emissions from the other nonattainment area contribute to a 
violation of the Ambient Air Quality Standards in the area where 
the Offsets are to be used. 

 
(b) Such emissions reductions shall also comply with the applicable 

requirements of subsection (C)(1) above. 

(5) Offsets from Other Air Districts and Outside the Air Basin 

(a) ERCs from outside the air basin are eligible to be used as Offsets upon 
approval of the APCO as follows.  

(i) For a new or Modified Major Facility or a Major Modification, 
which is located in a Federal Nonattainment Area the APCO’s 
approval shall be made in consultation with CARB and the 
USEPA, on a case-by-case basis; and 

97 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1305 1305-5 
NSR Emissions Offsets 

(ii) For all other Facilities or Modifications subject to this provision 
the APCO’s approval shall be made in consultation with CARB on 
a case-by-case basis; and 

 (iii) The ERCs are obtained in a nonattainment area which has a greater 
or equal nonattainment classification than the area where the 
Offsets are to be used; and  

(vi) The emissions from the other nonattainment area contribute to a 
violation of the Ambient Air Quality Standards in the area where 
the Offsets are to be used. 

 
(b) Such emissions reductions shall comply with the applicable requirements 

of subsection (C)(1) above. 

(6) Interpollutant Offsets1 

(a) Emissions reductions of one type of Air Pollutant may be used as Offsets 
for another type of Air Pollutant upon approval of the APCO.  

(i) For a new or Modified Major Facility or a Major Modification 
which is located in a Federal Nonattainment Area the APCO’s 
approval shall be made in consultation with CARB and with the 
approval of USEPA pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 
1302(D)(2), on a case-by-case basis as long as the provisions of 
subsection(C)(6)(b) below are met.  

(ii) For all other Facilities or Modifications subject to this provision 
the APCO’s approval shall be made in consultation with CARB on 
a case-by-case basis. 

 
(b) In approving the use of interpollutant offsets the APCO shall determine 

that: 

(i) The trade is technically justified; and 
(ii) The applicant has demonstrated, to the satisfaction of the APCO, 

that the combined effect of the Offsets and emissions increases 
from the new or Modified Facility will not cause or contribute to a 
violation of an Ambient Air Quality Standard. 

 
(c) The APCO shall, based upon an air quality analysis, determine the amount of 

Offsets necessary, as appropriate. 

(d) Interpollutant trades between PM10 and PM10 precursors may be allowed on a case 
by case basis.  PM10 emissions shall not be allowed to Offset Nitrogen Oxides or 
Volatile Organic Compounds emissions within any ozone nonattainment area.  

(e) Such ERCs comply with the applicable provisions of subsection (C)(1) above. 

                                                           
1  Use of this subsection subject to the Ruling in Sierra Club v. USEAP 985 F.3d 1055 (D.C. Cir, 2021) and 
subsequent guidance as issued by USEPA. 

98 of 527



1305-6 AVAQMD Rule 1305 
NSR Emissions Offsets 

(D) Offset Ratio and Adjustment 

(1) Offsets for Net Emissions Increases of Nonattainment Air Pollutants shall be 
provided on a pollutant category specific basis, calculated as provided in section 
(B) above and multiplied by the appropriate Offset ratio listed in the following 
table: 

 
TABLE OF OFFSET RATIOS 

 
POLLUTANT OFFSET RATIO (Within 

a Federal Ozone 
Nonattainment Area) 

OFFSET RATIO (Within 
a Federal PM10 

Nonattainment Area) 
PM10 1.0 to 1.0 1.0 to 1.0 

Oxides of Nitrogen (NOx) 1.3 to 1.0 1.0 to 1.0 

Oxides of Sulfur (SOx) 1.0 to 1.0 1.0 to 1.0 

Volatile Organic 
Compounds (VOC) 

 
1.3 to 1.0 

 
1.0 to 1.0 

 
(2) If a Facility is located within more than one Federal nonattainment area, the 

largest applicable Offset ratio for each Nonattainment Air Pollutant shall apply. 

(3) The ratio for Offsets obtained from outside the District for any Nonattainment Air 
Pollutant shall be equal to the offset ratio which would have applied had such 
Offsets been obtained within the District. 

(4) The APCO shall Adjust any Offsets proposed to be used to reflect any emissions 
reductions in excess of RACT in effect at the time such Offsets are used if such 
reductions have not already been reflected in the calculations required pursuant to 
District Rules 1304(C)(2). 

 
 
[SIP: See AVAQMD SIP table at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plans ________] 

99 of 527



(Adopted: 10/05/79; Amended: 03/07/80; Amended: 09/10/82; 
Amended: 12/03/82; Amended: 07/12/85; Amended: 08/01/86; 
Amended: 09/05/86; Amended: 07/28/90; Amended: 05/03/91; 
Amended: 12/07/95; Amended: 07/14/96; Amended: 03/20/01; 
Amended: 07/20/21) 

 

AVAQMD Rule 1306 1306-1 
NSR for Electric Energy Generating Facilities 

RULE 1306 
New Source Review for 

Electric Energy Generating Facilities 
(A) General 

(1) This Rule shall apply to all EEGF proposed to be constructed in the District and 
for which an NOI or AFC has been accepted by the CEC, as such terms are 
defined in District Rule 1301(V), (YY), (G) and (M) respectively. 

(2) If any provision of this Rule conflicts with any other provision of this Regulation, 
the provisions contained in this Rule shall control. 

(B) Intent to Participate 

(1) Notification of Intent to Participate (NOI) 

(a) Within 14 days of receipt of an NOI, the APCO shall notify CARB and 
the CEC of the District's intent to participate in the NOI proceeding. 

(2) Preliminary Report 

(a) If the District chooses to participate in the NOI proceeding, the APCO 
shall prepare and submit a preliminary report to CARB and the CEC prior 
to the conclusion of the nonadjudicatory hearings specified in California 
Public Resources Code §25509.5 as it exists on the date of the last 
amendment of this rule.   

(b) The Preliminary Report shall include, at a minimum: 

(i) A preliminary specific definition or description of BACT for the 
proposed Facility; and 

(ii) A preliminary discussion of whether there is a substantial 
likelihood that the requirements of this Regulation and all other 
District Rules can be satisfied by the proposed Facility; and 

100 of 527



1306-2  AVAQMD Rule 1306 
NSR for Electric Energy Generating Equipment 

(iii) A preliminary list of conditions which the proposed Facility must 
meet in order to comply with this Regulation and any other 
applicable District Rules. 

 
(c) The preliminary determination shall be as specific as practicable within 

the constraints of the information contained in the NOI 

(C) Applications 

(1) Application for New Source Review 

(a) The APCO shall consider the AFC to be equivalent to an application 
pursuant to District Rule 1302(B) during the Determination of Compliance 
review, and shall apply all applicable provisions of District Rule 1302 to 
the application.   

(b) If the information contained in the AFC does not meet the requirements 
which would otherwise comprise a complete application pursuant to 
District Rule 1302(B)(1), the APCO shall, within 20 calendar days of 
receipt of the AFC, specify the information needed to render the 
application complete and so inform the CEC. 

(2) Requests for Additional Information 

(a) The APCO may request from the applicant any information necessary for 
the completion of the Determination of Compliance review. 

(b) If the APCO is unable to obtain the information, CARB or the APCO may 
petition the presiding committee of the CEC for an order directing the 
applicant to supply such information. 

(D) Determination of Compliance Review 

 (1) Upon receipt of an AFC for an EEGF, the APCO shall conduct a 
Determination of Compliance review.  This Determination shall consist of a 
review identical to that required pursuant to District Rule 1302(C). 

101 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1306 1306-3 
NSR for Electric Energy Generating Facilities 

(E) Permit Issuance Procedure 

(1) Preliminary Decision 

(a) Within 150 days of accepting an AFC as complete and after the 
determination of compliance review has been completed, the APCO shall 
make a preliminary determination of compliance containing the following:  

(i) A determination whether the proposed EEGF meets the 
requirements of this Regulation and all other applicable District 
Rules; and 

(ii) In the event of compliance with all applicable District Rules and 
Regulations, what permit conditions will be required, including the 
specific BACT requirements. 

 
(2) Public Notice Requirements 

(a) The preliminary determination of compliance decision shall be treated as a 
preliminary decision under Rule 1302(D)(1) and shall be finalized by the 
APCO only after being subject to the public notice and comment 
requirements of Rule 1302(D)(2-3). 

(3) Determination of Compliance   

(a) Within 210 days of accepting an AFC as complete and after the notice 
provisions have been completed, the APCO shall issue and submit to the 
CEC either of the following:  

(i) A final determination of compliance; or, 
(ii) If such a determination of compliance cannot be issued, an 

explanation regarding why such determination of compliance 
cannot be issued. 

 
(b) A determination of compliance shall confer the same rights and privileges 

as the new source review document and ATC(s) if and when the CEC 
approves the AFC, and the CEC certificate includes all conditions 
contained in the determination of compliance. 

 
[SIP: See AVAQMD SIP table at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plans ] 

102 of 527



1306-4  AVAQMD Rule 1306 
NSR for Electric Energy Generating Equipment 

This page intentionally left blank. 

103 of 527



(Adopted: 09/10/82; Amended: 12/03/82; Amended: 07/12/85; 
Amended: 06/28/90; Amended: 05/03/91; Amended: 08/13/93; 
Amended: 12/07/95; Amended: 03/20/01; Amended:  07/20/21) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1309 1309-1 
Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

RULE 1309 
Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

(A) General 

(1) Purpose 

(a) The purpose of this Rule is to implement those provisions of Division 26, 
Part 3, Chapter 6 (commencing with §40700) of the California Health & 
Safety Code which require the establishment of a system by which all 
reductions in the emission of air contaminants (which are to be used to 
offset certain future increases in emissions) shall be banked prior to use to 
offset future increases in emissions. 

(b) This Rule is not intended to recognize any preexisting right to emit air 
contaminants, but to provide a mechanism for the District to recognize the 
existence of reductions of air contaminants that can be used as Offsets, 
and to provide greater certainty that such Offsets shall be available for 
emitting industries. 

(2) Applicability 

(a) This Rule shall apply to the creation, and Banking of all Emission 
Reduction Credits (ERCs) within the District. 

(b) Any Person, including the District, may Bank, own, use, sell or otherwise 
transfer, either in whole or in part, ERCs which are created and owned 
pursuant to this regulation subject to the applicable requirements of 
Federal, State, or District law, rule, order, permit or regulation. 

(3) Prohibitions 

(a) No reduction in the emission of Regulated Air Pollutants may be used as 
Offsets for future increases in the emission of Regulated Air Pollutants 
unless such reductions have been Banked pursuant to this Rule.   

(i) Notwithstanding the above SERs created in the same permitting 
action and within the same Facility are not required to be Banked 

104 of 527



1309-2 AVAQMD Rule 1309 
Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

so long as such reductions satisfy all the applicable criteria 
contained in District Rules 1304(C) and 1305.   

 
(B) Emission Reduction Credit Registry 

(1) Establishment of Emission Reduction Credit Registry: 

(a) An Emission Reduction Credit Registry is hereby established for the 
District. 

(i) This shall be known as the Antelope Valley Air Quality 
Management District Emission Reduction Credit Registry 
(AVAQMD ERC Registry). 

 
(b) The AVAQMD ERC Registry shall consist of the following: 

(i) ERCs created and issued after July 1, 1997 which have met all the 
following requirements:  
a. A timely and complete application for ERCs has been 

received pursuant to subsection (C)(1) below; and 
b. The amount of ERCs have been calculated pursuant to the 

provisions of District Rule 1304 and approved by the 
APCO pursuant to subsection (C)(3) below; and 

c. The amount, ownership and expiration date if any of the 
ERCs has been entered into the Registry; and 

d. A Certificate evidencing the amount, type and class of 
ERCs has been properly issued; and 

e. The ERCs have not yet been used as Offsets or expired. 
(ii) ERCs banked prior to July 1, 1997 under the applicable Rules of 

the SCAQMD and which meet the following requirements: 
a. The ERCs have been properly transferred to the AVAQMD 

ERC Registry pursuant to subsection (E)(4) below; and 
b. The ERCs have not yet been used as Offsets or expired. 

 
(c) ERCs contained in the AVAQMD ERC Registry are Permanent until: 

(i) They are used by the owner; or 
(ii) They are used by any person to whom the ERC has been 

transferred; or 
(iii) They expire. 
 

105 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1309 1309-3 
Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

(d) Subsequent changes in District Rules or Regulations to require a type of 
emission reduction which has previously been Banked pursuant to this 
Rule shall not reduce or eliminate an ERC generated from that type of 
emission reduction.  

(e) Emission reductions are eligible to become ERCs if such reductions are 
Real, Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable, and Enforceable; and are 
calculated pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1304(D) and:  

(i) The emissions reduction is the result of a Modification or 
limitation of use of existing Emissions Unit(s) such that after the 
reduction is made the Emissions Unit(s) remains in service with an 
authority to construct or permit to operate pursuant to Regulation 
II; or   

(ii) The emission reduction is the result of a shutdown of Emission 
Unit(s) and there will likely be no replacement Emission Unit(s) at 
the same Facility unless the emissions from any replacement 
Emission Unit(s) is completely offset under the provisions of this 
Regulation. 

 
(2) Contents of Registry: 

(a) All ERCs contained in the AVAQMD ERC Registry shall be individually 
listed. 

(b) The registry entry for each ERC shall contain the following information: 

(i) The name, address, and telephone number of the owner(s) of the 
ERC; 

(ii) The amount and pollutant of the approved ERC on a pollutant by 
pollutant basis; 

(iii) The expiration date of the approved ERC, if any; 
(iv) Any information regarding liens, encumbrances and other changes 

of record. 
 

(c) The registry shall contain an entry for each ERC until such ERC is used, 
expires or is otherwise altered by operation of law. 

(3) ERC Certificate: 

(a) All ERCs issued pursuant to this regulation shall be evidenced by a 
Certificate issued by the District and signed by the APCO. 

106 of 527



1309-4 AVAQMD Rule 1309 
Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

(b) The Certificate shall contain the same information as is contained in the 
registry entry for the issued ERC pursuant to subsection (B)(2)(b) above. 

(c) The APCO shall prescribe the form of the Certificate. 

(d) ERC Certificates shall not constitute instruments, securities or any other 
form of property. 

(4) Ownership of ERCs: 

(a) Initial title to approved ERCs shall be held by the owner(s) of the 
Emissions Unit(s) which produced the reduction in Regulated Air 
Pollutants, in the same manner as such owner(s) hold title to the facility in 
which the Emissions Unit(s) is located. 

(b) Title for any approved ERC which has been transferred, in whole or in 
part, by written conveyance or operation of law from one person to 
another shall be held by the owner(s) in the manner indicated in the 
written conveyance or as indicated by the operation of law. 

(c) The owner(s) of an ERC as listed in the registry and on the ERC 
Certificate shall have the exclusive right to use such ERCs and/or to 
authorize such use. 

(C) Issuance of Emission Reduction Credits 

(1) Applications for ERCs: 

(a) ERCs shall be applied for, in writing, by the owner or operator of the 
Emissions Unit(s) from which the emission reduction has occurred or will 
occur, to the APCO. 

(b) Applications for ERCs shall be clearly identified as such and shall contain 
the following: 

(i) The name, address, and telephone number of the owner(s) of the 
Emissions Unit(s) and a contact person if necessary. 

(ii) Information sufficient to identify the source and/or causation of the 
emission reductions. 

(iii) Information sufficient to allow the calculations set forth in District 
Rule1304(D) to be performed. 

 

107 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1309 1309-5 
Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

(c) No application for ERCs will be processed until the applicable fees as 
specified in District Rule 301 have been paid.  

(d) Applications for ERCs shall be submitted in a timely manner determined 
as follows: 

(i) For emission reductions which occurred after July 1, 1997, an 
application for ERCs shall be submitted within 6 months after any 
of the following: 
a. District issuance of an ATC; or  
b. District issuance of a modified PTO; or   
c. District cancellation of a previously existing ATC or PTO; 

or 
d. for emissions units not subject to permitting requirements, 

the completion of the Modification or shutdown and 
execution of the document(s) required by subsection 
(D)(3)(c). 

(ii) Notwithstanding subsection (C)(1)(d)(i) above, a timely 
application for a Military Base subject to closure or realignment 
shall be determined pursuant to the provisions of California Health 
& Safety Code §40709.7. 

 
(e) Applications for ERCs may be withdrawn at any time by the applicant. 

(i) An applicant who withdraws an application may be entitled to a 
partial refund of fees as set forth in District Rule 301. 

(ii) A withdrawn application for ERCs does not preclude an applicant 
from later submitting an application for ERCs based upon the same 
emissions reductions as those contained in the withdrawn 
application as long as such resubmitted application is timely in 
accordance with subsection (C)(1)(d) above. 

 
(f) Information contained in an application for ERCs shall be considered 

confidential when: 

(i) The information is a trade secret or otherwise confidential pursuant 
to California Government Code §6254.7; or 

(ii) The information is entitled to confidentiality pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 
§1905; and 

(iii) The information is clearly marked or otherwise identified by the 
applicant as confidential.   

 

108 of 527



1309-6 AVAQMD Rule 1309 
Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

(2) Determination of Completeness: 

(a) The APCO shall determine if the application is complete no later than 30 
days after the receipt of the application, or after such longer time as both 
the applicant and the APCO may agree upon in writing. 

(i) An application is complete when it contains the information 
required by subsection (C)(1)(d) above. 

 
(b) Upon making this determination, the APCO shall notify the applicant, in 

writing, that the application has been determined to be complete or 
incomplete. 

(c) If the application is determined to be incomplete:  

(i) The notification shall specify which part of the application is 
incomplete and how it can be made complete; and   

(ii) The applicant for ERC shall have 30 days to submit the additional 
information, unless another time period is specified by the APCO 
in writing.  

(iii) The applicant for an ERC may request in writing, and the APCO 
may grant for good cause shown, extension(s) of time for 
submission of the additional information.  Such request and any 
extension(s) granted shall be in writing.   

(iv) If the applicant does not submit the additional information in 
writing within the time period specified or extended in writing by 
the APCO the application shall be deemed withdrawn by the 
applicant. 

(v) The APCO shall thereafter notify the applicant in writing that the 
application has been deemed withdrawn pursuant to this 
subsection. 
 

(d) A determination of incompleteness which results in an application being 
deemed withdrawn may be appealed to the Hearing Board pursuant to 
section (G) below. 

(3) Calculation of ERCs: 

(a) Calculation of the ERCs shall be performed pursuant to the provisions of 
District Rule 1304(D). 

109 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1309 1309-7 
Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

(4) Proposed ERCs: 

(a) Within 30 days after the application for ERCs has been determined to be 
complete, or after such longer time as both the applicant and the APCO 
may agree upon in writing, the APCO shall determine, in compliance with 
the standards set forth in section (D) below, to issue or deny the ERCs. 

(b) The APCO shall notify the applicant in writing of the determination. 

(i) If the determination is to issue ERCs then the notification shall 
include the amount and type of the ERCs proposed to be issued; or 

(ii) If the determination is to deny the ERCs then the notice shall 
include an explanation of the reason for the denial. 

 
(c) After the APCO has determined to issue ERCs, the information submitted 

by the applicant, the analysis, and determination shall transmit to CARB 
and the USEPA regional office within 10 days or no later than the date of 
publication of the notice of the preliminary determination if the amount of 
ERCs proposed to be granted are greater than any of the following 
amounts:  

 
Pollutant ERC Notification to 

CARB/USEPA Threshold 
NOx 14,600 lbs/yr or 40 lbs/day 

SOx 21,900 lbs/yr or 60 lbs/day 

ROC 10,950 lbs/yr or 30 lbs/day 

PM10 10,950 lbs/yr or 30 lbs/day 

CO 80,300 lbs/yr or 220 lbs/day 

H2S 20,000 lbs/yr or 54 lbs/day 

Pb   1,200 lbs/yr or 3 lbs/day 

 
(5) Public Notice and Comment: 

(a) After the APCO has determined to issue ERCs, the APCO shall: 

(i) Produce a notice containing all the information contained in 
subsection (C)(5)(c) below; and 

(ii) Publish the notice by posting on the District’s website; and  

110 of 527



1309-8 AVAQMD Rule 1309 
Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

(iii) Send a copy of the notice to all persons who are included on a list 
of persons requesting notice, on file with the District; 

(iv) Provide notice by other reasonable means, if such notice is 
necessary to assure fair and adequate notice to the public.   

 
(b) The notice shall provide the following: 

(i) The name and address of the applicant and the facility generating 
the emissions reductions, if different; 

(ii) The amount of ERCs proposed to be issued on a pollutant by 
pollutant basis; 

(iii) A statement indicating the availability of documents and a location 
where the public may obtain or inspect the decision and supporting 
documentation including, but not limited to, the name, address and 
telephone number of a person from whom additional information 
may be obtained; and   

 (iv) A statement providing at least a 30 days from the date of 
publication of the notice in which interested persons may submit 
written comments to the District regarding the proposed issuance 
of the ERCs.  

(v) A brief description of the comment procedures and deadlines; and  
(vi) Information regarding obtaining review of the decision pursuant to 

section (G) below; and 
 

(c) The APCO shall accept and consider all germane and nonfrivilous 
comments which are received during the comment period.   

(d) The APCO shall include all accepted comments with the records regarding 
the issuance of the ERCs and shall retain such records for a period of at 
least 5 years. 

(6) Issuance of ERCs: 

(a) Upon the expiration of the public comment period; after review of 
comments accepted, if any; and upon payment of the appropriate fee, if 
any, the APCO shall issue the ERCs by including the appropriate 
information in the registry and issuing a Certificate. 

(b) The APCO shall provide written notice of the final action to the applicant 
and to CARB and USEPA if the preliminary determination was sent to 
such agencies pursuant to subsection (C)(4)(c) above. 

111 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1309 1309-9 
Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

(D) Standards for Granting ERCs 

(1) ERCs shall be Real, Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable, and Enforceable. 

(2) ERCs shall only be granted for emissions reductions which are not otherwise 
required by Federal, State or District law, rule, order, permit or requirement.  

(3) ERCs shall only be granted if the applicable changes to the appropriate permits 
have occurred or other enforceable documents have been submitted as follows:  

(a) If the proposed ERCs are the result of a Modification or limitation of use 
of existing Permit Unit(s), the owner and/or operator has been issued 
revised ATCs PTOs containing Federally Enforceable conditions 
reflecting the Modification and/or limitations has been issued.  

(b) If the proposed ERCs are the result of a shutdown of Permit Unit(s), the 
owner and/or operator has surrendered the relevant permits and those 
permits have been voided. 

(i) The specific Permit Unit(s) for which the permits were surrendered 
shall not be repermitted within the District, unless the emissions 
thereof are completely offset pursuant to the provisions of this 
Regulation.  

 
(c) If the proposed ERCs are the result of a modification of Emission Unit(s) 

which did not have a District permit, the owner and/or operator has 
obtained a valid District permit or provided a contract enforceable by the 
District Federally Enforceable limitations on the Emissions Unit(s).  

(d) If the proposed ERCs are the result of the application of a more efficient 
control technology to Emission Unit(s), the owner and/or operator has or 
obtains a valid District PTO for both the underlying Emissions Unit and 
the new control technology which contains Federally Enforceable 
limitations reflecting the reduced emissions.  

(4) If the proposed ERC originates from a previously unpermitted Emission Unit(s), 
no ERCs may be granted unless the historical emissions from that unit are 
included in the District's emissions inventory. 

112 of 527



1309-10 AVAQMD Rule 1309 
Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

(E) Transfer, Encumbrance, and Readjustment of ERCs 

(1) ERCs may be transferred in whole or in part by written conveyance or by 
operation of law from one person to another in accordance with the provisions 
contained in this section. 

(2) Voluntary Transfer of Ownership. 

(a) A voluntary transfer of ownership in whole or in part shall be performed 
according to the following procedure: 

(i) The owner(s) of the ERC may file a request for transfer of 
ownership with the APCO.  Such request shall include:  
a. Information regarding the new owner of the ERC sufficient 

for entry in the registry.  
b. An executed copy of the instrument transferring the ERC or 

a memorandum describing the transaction which transfers 
the ERC which is signed by all parties to the transaction.   

c. The purchase price, if any, of the ERCs in terms of total 
cost on a pollutant by pollutant purchased basis. 

 
d. The existing ERC Certificate(s) for the ERCs to be transferred.  

(ii) Upon payment of the appropriate fee as set forth in District Rule 
301, the APCO shall cancel the existing ERC Certificate(s) and 
issue new certificate(s) in the name of the new owner and indicate 
the transfer in the Registry. 

 
(3) Involuntary Transfer of Ownership 

(a) An involuntary transfer of ERCs shall be performed pursuant to the 
following procedure:  

(i) The transferee shall file with the District a certified copy of the 
document effecting the transfer.  The transferee shall certify that 
the document represents a transfer which is final for all purposes.  

113 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1309 1309-11 
Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

(ii) Upon payment of the appropriate fee as set forth in District Rule 
301, the APCO shall demand the original ERC Certificate from the 
original owner.   
a. Upon the surrender of the existing ERC Certificate to the 

District or after 90 days (whichever comes first), the 
existing ERC Certificate shall be considered cancelled, and 
the APCO shall issue a new ERC Certificate and indicate 
the involuntary nature of the transfer in the registry.    

(iii) The APCO shall thereafter not allow the use or subsequent transfer 
of the ERC by the original owner.   

 
(4) Transfer of ERCs Banked Prior to July 1, 1997. 

(a) ERCs which were created within the area which is now under the 
jurisdiction of the District and which were properly banked prior to July 1, 
1997 pursuant to the applicable rules of the SCAQMD may be transferred 
to the AVAQMD ERC Registry according to the following procedure: 

(i) The owner of the ERCs shall submit a request to include the ERCs 
in the AVAQMD ERC Registry by: 
a. Requesting such inclusion in writing; and 
b. Surrendering the ERC certificate or other evidence of the 

ERCs obtained from the SCAQMD. 
(ii) Upon receipt of the request and documentation the APCO shall: 

a. Notify the SCAQMD in writing of the request, the intent to 
include such ERCs in the AVAQMD ERC Registry, and 
request that the SCAQMD remove such ERCs from its 
bank. 

b. The APCO shall, at the request of the SCAQMD, submit 
the original certificate and/or documentation which was 
surrendered to effectuate such removal. 

c. Within 90 days of such notification, upon the submission of 
the original certificate and/or documentation or upon 
receipt of notification from the SCAQMD that such ERCs 
have been removed from its bank, whichever occurs earlier, 
the APCO shall issue a new certificate(s) in the name of the 
owner and include the ERCs in the Registry. 

 
(b) ERCs which were created which were properly banked prior to July 1, 

1997 pursuant to the applicable rules of the SCAQMD and which are 
owned by an owner/operator located within the jurisdiction of the District 

114 of 527



1309-12 AVAQMD Rule 1309 
Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

may be transferred to the AVAQMD ERC Registry according to the 
following procedure: 

(i) The owner of the ERCs shall submit a request to include the ERCs 
in the AVAQMD ERC Registry by: 
a. Requesting such inclusion in writing; and 
b. Surrendering the ERC certificate or other evidence of the 

ERCs obtained from the SCAQMD. 
c. Paying the applicable fee contained in District Rule 301. 

(ii) Upon receipt of the request and documentation the APCO shall: 
a. Notify the SCAQMD in writing of the request, the intent to 

include such ERCs in the AVAQMD ERC Registry, and 
request that the SCAQMD remove such ERCs from its 
bank. 

b. The APCO shall, at the request of the SCAQMD, submit 
the original certificate and/or documentation which was 
surrendered to effectuate such removal. 

c. Within 90 days of such notification, upon the submission of 
the original certificate and/or documentation or upon 
receipt of notification from the SCAQMD that such ERCs 
have been removed from its bank, whichever occurs earlier, 
the APCO shall issue a new certificate(s) in the name of the 
owner and include the ERCs in the Registry. 

d. ERCs transferred pursuant to this subsection shall meet all 
requirements of California Health and Safety Code 40709.6 
either at the time of the transfer or upon use. 

 
(c) ERCs once transferred to the AVAQMD Registry pursuant to this 

subsection may not thereafter be utilized within the SCAQMD  

(4) Other Encumbrances of ERCs  

(a) Other encumbrances may be placed upon ERCs according to the following 
procedure: 

(i) The holder of the encumbrance shall file with the District a 
certified copy of the final document creating the encumbrance. 

(ii) Upon payment of the appropriate transfer fee as set forth in District 
Rule 301, the APCO shall indicate the encumbrance in the 
Registry. 

 
(b) Thereafter the APCO shall not allow the use or subsequent transfer of the 

ERC by the owner without receipt of a certified copy of the satisfaction of 

115 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1309 1309-13 
Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

the encumbrance or by the removal of the incumbrance by its holder of the 
encumbrance. 

(5) Readjustments of ERCs  

(a) Readjustment of ERCs shall be processed as follows: 

(i) The owner of the ERC shall file an application to adjust the ERC. 
(ii) The APCO shall determine if the adjustment of the ERC is 

warranted and the amount of such adjustment pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1304(D)(4). 

(iii) After the APCO has determined the amount of the adjustment, 
upon surrender of the prior ERC Certificate, the APCO shall issue 
an adjusted ERC Certificate to the owner. 

 
(6) Any transfer of an ERC shall not modify or otherwise alter the requirements 

contained in a permit or contract which render the ERC Real, Surplus, Permanent, 
Quantifiable, and Enforceable. 

(7) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, conflicting interests in ERCs shall 
rank in priority according to the time of filing with the District. 

(F) Utilization of ERCs 

(1) Unexpired ERCs may be used as Offsets in accordance with the provisions of 
Rule 1305. 

(G) Appeal of the Incompleteness, Granting or Denial of ERCs 

(1) If an application for ERCs is deemed withdrawn pursuant to subsection 
(C)(2)(c)(iv) the applicant may, within 30 days of the date the application 
is deemed withdrawn, petition the District Hearing Board for a hearing on 
whether the application as submitted was incomplete. 

(2) An applicant for ERCs may, within 30 days after receipt of the notice of 
denial of ERCs, petition the District Hearing Board for a hearing on 
whether the application for ERCs was properly denied.  

(3) Any person who has requested notice or any aggrieved person who, in 
person or through a representative, appeared, submitted written testimony, 
or otherwise participated in the ERC action may, within 30 days after the 
APCO’s decision, the mailing of the notice pursuant to subsection 

116 of 527



1309-14 AVAQMD Rule 1309 
Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

(C)(5)(a)(ii), or the publication of the notice pursuant to subsection 
(C)(5)(a)(i) whichever is applicable, petition the District Hearing Board 
for a hearing on whether the ERCs were properly issued.   

(3) The procedural provisions applicable to such a hearing shall be the same 
as those used for hearings regarding the denial of a permit application 
pursuant to California Health & Safety Code §§42302 and or 42302.1 as 
applicable. 

 
 
 
[SIP: See AVAQMD SIP table at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plans] 

117 of 527



(Adopted: 06/01/90; Amended: 12/07/90; Amended: 11/19/02; 
Amended: 08/15/06; Amended: 07/20/21) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1401 1401-1 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

RULE 1401 
New Source Review for 
Toxic Air Contaminants 

(A) Purpose 

(1) The purpose of this Rule is to: 

(a) Set forth the requirements for preconstruction review of all new, Modified, 
Relocated or Reconstructed Facilities which emit or have the potential to 
emit any Hazardous Air Pollutant, Toxic Air Contaminant, or Regulated 
Toxic Substance; and  

(b) Ensure that any new, Modified, or Relocated Emissions Unit is required to 
control the emissions of Toxic Air Contaminants as required pursuant to 
Chapter 3.5 of Part 1 of Division 26 of the California Health and Safety 
Code (commencing with §39650); and  

(c) Ensure that any proposed new or Reconstructed Facility or Emissions Unit 
is required to control the emissions of Hazardous Air Pollutants as 
required under 42 U.S.C. §7412(g).  

(2) This Rule is not submitted to USEPA and is not intended to be included as part of 
the California State Implementation Plan.  

(B) Applicability 

(1) General Applicability 

(a) The provisions of this rule shall be applicable to: 

(i) Applications for new, Modified or Relocated Facilities or 
Emissions Unit(s) which were received by the District on or after 
June 1, 1990.  

(ii) Any Permit Unit(s) installed without a required Authority to 
Construct Permit shall be subject to this rule, if the application for 
a permit to operate such equipment was submitted after June 1, 
1990.   

(iii) Applications shall be subject to the version of the District Rules 
that are in effect at the time the application is received.  

 
(2) State Toxic New Source Review Program (State T-NSR) Applicability 

(a) The provisions of Subsection (E) of this Rule shall apply to any new or 
Modified Emissions Unit which: 

(i) Emits or has the potential to emit a Toxic Air Contaminant; or  

118 of 527



1401-2 AVAQMD Rule 1401 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

(ii) Is subject to an Airborne Toxic Control Measure.  
 

(3) Federal Toxic New Source Review Program (Federal T-NSR) Applicability 

(a) The provisions of Subsection (F) of this Rule shall apply to any new or 
Reconstructed Facility or new or Modified Emissions Unit(s) which:  

(i) Emits or has the potential to emit 10 tons per year or more of any 
single HAP; or  

(ii) Emits or has the potential to emit 25 tons per year or more of any 
combination of HAPs; or   

(iii) Has been designated an Air Toxic Area Source by USEPA 
pursuant to the provisions of 42 U.S.C. §7412 and the regulations 
promulgated thereunder.  

 
(C) Definitions 

The definitions contained in District Rule 1301 shall apply unless the term is otherwise 
defined herein. 

(1) Air Toxic Area Source – Any Facility or Emissions Unit(s) of Hazardous Air 
Pollutants that emits or has the potential to emit less than ten (10) tons per year of 
any single HAP or twenty-five (25) tons per year of any combination of HAPs 
and which has been designated as an area source by USEPA pursuant to the 
provisions of 42 U.S.C. §7412.  

(2) Airborne Toxic Control Measure (ATCM) – Recommended methods or range of 
methods that reduce, avoid, or eliminate the emissions of a TAC promulgated by 
CARB pursuant to the provisions of California Health and Safety Code §39658. 

(3) Best Available Control Technology for Toxics (T-BACT) –The most stringent 
emissions limitation or control technique for Toxic Air Contaminants or 
Regulated Toxic Substances which: 

(a) Has been achieved in practice for such permit unit category or class of 
source; or 

(b) Is any other emissions limitation or control technique, including process 
and equipment changes of basic and control equipment, found by the 
APCO to be technologically feasible for such class or category of sources, 
or for a specific source. 

(4) Cancer Burden - The estimated increase in the occurrence of cancer cases in a 
population resulting from exposure to carcinogenic air contaminants.  

(5) Case-by-Case Maximum Achievable Control Technology Standard (Case-by-
Case MACT) –   An emissions limit or control technology that is applied to a new 
or Relocated Facility or Emissions Unit(s) where USEPA has not yet promulgated 
a MACT standard pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §7412(d)(3) (FCAA §112(d)(3). Such 

119 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1401 1401-3 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

limit or control technique shall be determined pursuant to the provisions of 40 
CFR 63.43.  

(6) Contemporaneous Risk Reduction - Any reduction in risk resulting from a 
decrease in emissions of Toxic Air Contaminants at the facility which is real, 
enforceable, quantifiable, surplus and permanent. 

(7) Hazard Index (HI) – The acute or chronic non-cancer Hazard Quotient for a 
substance by toxicological endpoint. 

(8) Hazard Quotient (HQ) – The estimated ambient air concentration divided by the 
acute or chronic reference exposure for a single substance and a particular 
endpoint. 

(9) Hazardous Air Pollutant (HAP) – Any air pollutant listed pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 
§7412(b) (Federal Clean Air Act §112(b)) or in regulations promulgated 
thereunder.  

(10) Health Risk Assessment (HRA) – A detailed and comprehensive analysis 
prepared pursuant to the most recently published District Health Risk Assessment 
Guidelines to evaluate and predict the dispersion of Toxic Air Contaminants and 
Regulated Toxic Substances in the environment, the potential for exposure of 
human population and to assess and quantify both the individual and population 
wide health risks associated with those levels of exposure.  Such document shall 
include details of the methodologies and methods of analysis which were utilized 
to prepare the document.  

(11) High Priority – A Facility or Emissions Unit(s) for which any Prioritization Score 
for cancer, acute non-cancer health effects or chronic non-cancer health effects is 
greater than or equal to ten (10).   

(12) Intermediate Priority – A Facility or Emissions Unit (s) for which any 
Prioritization Score for cancer, acute non-cancer health effects or chronic non-
cancer health effects is greater than or equal to one (1) and less than ten (10).  

(13) Low Priority – A Facility or Emissions Unit(s) for which all Prioritization Scores 
for cancer, acute non-cancer health effects or chronic non-cancer health effects 
are less than one (1).   

(14) Maximum Achievable Control Technology Standard (MACT) – The maximum 
degree of reduction in emissions of HAPs, including prohibitions of such 
emissions where achievable, as promulgated by USEPA pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 
§7412(d)(3) (Federal Clean Air Act §112(d)(3)).  

(15) Maximum Individual Cancer Risk (MICR) – The estimated probability of a 
potential maximally exposed individual contracting cancer as a result of exposure 
to carcinogenic air contaminants over a period of 70 years for residential locations 
and 46 years for worker receptor locations or other periods of time as 
promulgated by OEHHA.  

120 of 527



1401-4 AVAQMD Rule 1401 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

(16) Moderate Risk – A classification of a Facility or Emission Unit for which the 
HRA Report indicates the MICR is greater than one (1) in one million (1 x 10-6) at 
the location of any receptor.  

(17) Modification (Modified) – Any physical or operational change to a Facility or an 
Emissions Unit to replace equipment, expand capacity, revise methods of 
operation, or modernize processes by making any physical change, change in 
method of operation, addition to an existing Emissions Unit(s) and/or change in 
hours of operation, including but not limited to any change which results in the 
emission of any Hazardous Air Pollutant, Toxic Air Contaminant, or Regulated 
Toxic Substance or which results in the emission of any Hazardous Air Pollutant, 
Toxic Air Contaminant, or Regulated Toxic Substance not previously emitted.   

(a) A physical or operational change shall not include:  

(i) Routine maintenance or repair; or  
(ii) A change in the owner or operator of an existing Facility with valid 

PTO(s); or  
(iii) An increase in the production rate, unless: 

a. Such increase will cause the maximum design capacity of 
the Emission Unit to be exceeded; or  

b. Such increase will exceed a previously imposed 
enforceable limitation contained in a permit condition.  

(iv) An increase in the hours of operation, unless such increase will 
exceed a previously imposed enforceable limitation contained in a 
permit condition. 

(v) An Emission Unit replacing a functionally identical Emission Unit, 
provided: 
a. There is no increase in maximum rating or increase in 

emissions of any HAP, TAC or Regulated Toxic 
Substance; and  

b. No ATCM applies to the replacement Emission Unit.  
(vi) An Emissions Unit which is exclusively used as emergency 

standby equipment provided: 
a. The Emissions Unit does not operate more than 200 hours 

per year; and  
b. No ATCM applies to the Emissions Unit.  

(vii) An Emissions Unit which previously did not require a written 
permit pursuant to District Rule 219 provided: 
a. The Emissions Unit was installed prior to the amendment 

to District Rule 219 which eliminated the exemption; and 
b. A complete application for a permit for the Emission Unit 

is received within one (1) year after the date of the 
amendment to District Rule 219 which eliminated the 
exemption. 

(viii) An Emissions Unit replacing Emissions Unit(s) provided that the 
replacement causes either a reduction or no increase in the cancer 
burden, MICR, or acute or chronic HI at any receptor location. 

121 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1401 1401-5 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

(b) Any applicant claiming exemption from this rule pursuant to the 
provisions of subsection (C)(17)(a) above: 

(i) Shall provide adequate documentation to substantiate such 
exemption; and   

(ii) Any test or analysis method used to substantiate such exemption 
shall be approved by the APCO.  

 
(18) Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) – A department 

within the California Environmental Protection Agency that is responsible for 
evaluating chemicals for adverse health impacts and establishing safe exposure 
levels.  

(19) Prioritization Score – The numerical score for cancer health effects, acute non-
cancer health effects or chronic non-cancer health effects for a Facility or 
Emissions Unit(s) as determined by the District pursuant to California Health and 
Safety Code §44360 in a manner consistent with the most recently approved 
CAPCOA Facility Prioritization Guidelines; the most recently approved OEHHA 
Unit Risk Factor for cancer potency factors; and the most recently approved 
OEHHA Reference Exposure Levels for non-cancer acute factors, and non-cancer 
chronic factors.  

(20) Receptor – Any location outside the boundaries of a Facility at which a person 
may be impacted by the emissions of that Facility.  Receptors include, but are not 
limited to residential units, commercial work places, industrial work places and 
sensitive sites such as hospitals, nursing homes, residential care facilities, schools 
and day care centers.  

(21) Reconstruction (Reconstructed) – The replacement of components at an existing 
process or Emissions Unit(s) that in and of itself emits or has the Potential to Emit 
10 tons per year of any HAP or 25 tons per year of any combination of HAP, 
whenever:  

(a) The fixed capital cost of the new components exceeds 50 percent of the 
fixed capital cost that would be required to construct a comparable process 
or production unit; and  

(b) It is technically and economically feasible for the reconstructed major 
source to meet the applicable MACT Standard for new sources.  

(22) Reference Exposure Level (REL) – The ambient air concentration level expressed 
in microgram/cubic meter (µ/m3) at or below which no adverse health effects are 
anticipated for a specified exposure.  

(23) Regulated Toxic Substance – A substance which is not a Toxic Air Contaminant 
but which has been designated as a chemical substance which poses a threat to 
public health when present in the ambient air by CARB pursuant to California 
Health and Safety Code §44321.  

122 of 527



1401-6 AVAQMD Rule 1401 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

(24) Relocation (Relocated) – The removal of an existing permit unit from one 
location in the District and installation at another location.  The removal of a 
permit unit from one location within a Facility and installation at another location 
within the same Facility is a relocation only if an increase in MICR in excess of 
one in one million (1 x 10-6) occurs at any receptor location. 

(25) Significant Health Risk – A classification of a Facility for which the HRA Report 
indicates that the MICR is greater than or equal to ten (10) in a million (1 x 10-5) 
or that the HI is greater than or equal to one (1). 

(26) Significant Risk – A classification of a Facility or Emissions Unit(s) for which the 
HRA Report indicates that the MICR is greater than or equal to one hundred (100) 
in a million (1 x 10-4) or that the HI is greater than or equal to ten (10).  

(27) Toxic Air Contaminant (TAC) – An air pollutant which may cause or contribute 
to an increase in mortality or in serious illness, or which may pose a present or 
potential hazard to human health and has been identified by CARB pursuant to 
the provisions of California Health and Safety Code §39657, including but not 
limited to, substances that have been identified as HAPs pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 
Sec. 7412(b) (Federal Clean Air Act §112(b)) and the regulations promulgated 
thereunder. 

(28) Toxics Emission Inventory Report – An emissions inventory report for TAC and 
Toxic Substances prepared for a Facility or Emissions Unit(s) pursuant to the 
District’s Comprehensive Emission Inventory Guidelines.  

(29) “Unit Risk Factor” (URF) – The theoretical upper bound probability of extra 
lifetime cancer risk occurring from the chemical when the air concentration is 
expressed in exposure units of per microgram/cubic meter ((µ/m3)-1). 

(D) Initial Applicability Analysis 

(1) The APCO shall analyze the Comprehensive Emissions Inventory Report or 
Comprehensive Emissions Inventory Report Update which was submitted 
pursuant to District Rule 1302(B)(1)(a)(ii) within thirty (30) days of receipt or 
after such longer period as the APCO and the applicant agree to in writing, to 
determine if the new, Modified, Relocated or Emissions Unit(s); or Reconstructed 
Facility is subject to provisions (E) or (F) of this rule.   

(a) If the Facility or Emissions Unit is subject to the State T-NSR pursuant to 
Section (B)(2), then the APCO shall perform the analysis required 
pursuant to Section (E). 

(b) If the Facility is subject to the Federal T-NSR pursuant to Section (B)(3), 
then the APCO shall perform the analysis required pursuant to Section (F). 

(c) If the Facility or Emissions Unit is subject to both the State T-NSR 
pursuant to Section (B)(2) and the Federal T-NSR pursuant to Section 

123 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1401 1401-7 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

(B)(3) then the APCO shall perform the analysis required pursuant to 
Section (E) followed by the analysis pursuant to Section (F).  

(d) If the provisions of this Rule are not applicable to the Facility or 
Emissions Unit(s) then the APCO shall continue the permit analysis 
process commencing with the provisions of District Rule 1302(C)(6).  

(E) State Toxic New Source Review Program Analysis (State T-NSR) 

(1) ATCM Requirements 

(a) The APCO shall analyze the application and Comprehensive Emission 
Inventory Report for the new or modified Emission Units(s) within thirty 
(30) days of receipt or after such longer period as the APCO and the 
applicant agree to in writing, and determine if any currently enforceable 
ATCM applies to the Emissions Unit(s).  

(b) If an ATCM applies to the new or modified Emission Units(s) the APCO 
shall: 

(i) Add the requirements of the ATCM or of any alternative method(s) 
submitted and approved pursuant to Health & Safety Code 
§39666(f) to any ATC or PTO issued pursuant to the provisions of 
this Regulation or District Regulation II whichever process is 
utilized to issue the permit(s); and  

(ii) Continue the analysis with Section (E)(2). 
 

(c) If no ATCM applies to the proposed new or modified Emissions Unit(s) 
the APCO shall continue the analysis with Section (E)(2).  

(2) Emissions Unit(s) Prioritization Score  

(a) The APCO shall analyze the application and Comprehensive Emission 
Inventory Report for the Emission Unit(s) and calculate three (3) 
prioritization scores for each new or modified Emission Unit. 

(i) Prioritization Scores shall be calculated for carcinogenic effects, 
non-carcinogenic acute effects and non-carcinogenic chronic 
effects.  

(ii) Prioritization Scores shall be calculated utilizing the most recently 
approved CAPCOA Facility Prioritization Guidelines; the most 
recently approved OEHHA Unit Risk Factor for cancer potency 
factors; and the most recently approved OEHHA Reference 
Exposure Levels for non-cancer acute factors, and non-cancer 
chronic factors.  

(iii) Prioritization Scores may be adjusted utilizing any or all of the 
following factors if such adjustment is necessary to obtain an 
accurate assessment of the Facility. 

 

124 of 527



1401-8 AVAQMD Rule 1401 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

a. Multi-pathway analysis 
b. Method of release. 
c. Type of Receptors potentially impacted. 
d. Proximity or distance to any Receptor. 
e. Stack height. 
f. Local meteorological conditions. 
g. Topography of the proposed new or Modified Facility and 

surrounding area. 
h. Type of area. 
g. Screening dispersion modeling. 

 
(b) If all Prioritization Scores indicate that the Emissions Unit(s) is 

categorized as Low or Intermediate Priority, the APCO shall:  

(i) Determine if the Facility is subject to Federal T-NSR pursuant to 
subsection (B)(3) and continue the analysis with Section (F). 

(ii) If the Facility or Emissions Unit(s) is not subject to Federal T-
NSR, continue the permit analysis process commencing with the 
provisions of District Rule 1302(C)(6).  

 
(c) If any Prioritization Score indicates that the Emission Unit is categorized 

as High Priority, the APCO shall continue the analysis pursuant to 
subsection (E)(3). 

(3) Emissions Unit(s) Health Risk Assessment  

(a) The APCO shall notify the applicant in writing that the applicant is 
required to prepare and submit an HRA for the new or Modified Emission 
Units(s).  

(i) The applicant shall prepare the HRA for the new or Modified 
Emissions Units(s) in accordance with the District’s most recently 
issued Health Risk Assessment Plan and Report Guidelines. 

(ii) The HRA for the Emissions Unit(s) shall be submitted by the 
applicant no later than thirty (30) days after receipt of the written 
notification from the APCO or after such longer time that the 
applicant and the APCO may agree to in writing.  

(iii) The HRA may include a demonstration of Contemporaneous Risk 
Reduction pursuant to subsection (E)(4). 

 
(b) The APCO shall approve or disapprove the HRA for the new or Modified 

Emission Units(s) within thirty (30) days of receipt of the HRA from the 
applicant or after such longer time that the applicant and the APCO may 
agree to in writing. 

(c) After the approval or disapproval of the HRA for the new or Modified 
Emission Units(s) the APCO shall transmit a written notice of the 
approval or disapproval of the HRA immediately to the applicant at the 
address indicated on the application.  

125 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1401 1401-9 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

(i) If the HRA for the new or Modified Emission Units(s) was 
disapproved the APCO shall specify the deficiencies and indicate 
how they can be corrected.   
a. Upon receipt by the District of a resubmitted HRA a new 

thirty (30) day period in which the APCO must determine 
the approval or disapproval of the HRA shall begin.   

 
(d) The APCO shall analyze the HRA for the new or Modified Emission 

Unit(s) to determine the cancer burden for each Emissions Unit(s). 

(i) If the cancer burden is greater than 0.5 in the population subject to 
a risk of greater than or equal to one in one million  (1 x 10-6) the 
APCO shall immediately notify the applicant that the application 
will be denied in its current form unless the applicant submits a 
revised application which reduces the cancer burden to equal or 
below 0.5 within thirty (30) days of receipt of the notice or after 
such longer time as both the applicant and the APCO may agree to 
in writing.  
a. If the applicant does not submit a revised application within 

the time period specified, the APCO shall notify the 
applicant in writing that the application has been denied. 

b. If the applicant submits a revised application, the analysis 
process shall commence pursuant to District Rule 1302 as 
if the application was newly submitted. 

(ii) If the cancer burden is less than or equal to 0.5 in the population 
subject to a risk of greater than or equal to one in one million (1 x 
10-6) the APCO shall continue with the analysis pursuant to 
subsection (E)(3)(e). 

 
(e) The APCO shall analyze the HRA for the new or Modified Emissions 

Unit(s) and determine the risk for each Emissions Unit(s). 

(i) If the HRA indicates that the Emissions Unit(s) are less than a 
Moderate Risk then the APCO shall continue the analysis pursuant 
to section (E)(3)(f).  

(ii) If the HRA indicates that the Emissions Unit(s) are a Moderate 
Risk but less than a Significant Health Risk then the APCO shall: 
a. Add requirements for each Emissions Unit sufficient to 

ensure T-BACT is applied to any ATC or PTO issued 
pursuant to the provisions of District Regulation XIII or 
Regulation II whichever process is utilized to issue the 
permit(s); and  

b. Continue with the analysis pursuant to subsection (E)(3)(f). 
(iii) If the HRA indicates that the Emission Unit(s) is a Significant 

Health Risk but less than a Significant Risk then the APCO shall:  
a. Add requirements for each Emissions Unit sufficient to 

ensure T-BACT is applied to any ATC or PTO issued 
pursuant to the provisions of District Regulation XIII or 

126 of 527



1401-10 AVAQMD Rule 1401 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

Regulation II whichever process is utilized to issue the 
permit(s); and  

b. Require the Facility to perform a public notification 
pursuant to the District’s Public Notification Guidelines; 
and 

c. Continue with the analysis pursuant to subsection (E)(3)(f). 
(iv) If the HRA indicates that the Emissions Unit(s) is a Significant 

Risk then the APCO shall immediately notify the applicant that the 
application will be denied in its current form unless the applicant 
submits a revised application which reduces the risk below that of 
Significant Risk within thirty (30) days of receipt of the notice or 
after such longer time as both the applicant and the APCO may 
agree to in writing.  

 
(f) If the HRA Report indicates that all new or Modified Emission Unit(s) are 

less than a Significant Risk then the APCO shall determine if the Facility 
or Emissions Unit(s) is subject to Federal T-NSR pursuant to subsection 
(B)(3). 

(i) If the Facility or Emission Unit is subject to the Federal T-NSR, 
continue the analysis with Section (F). 

(ii) If the Facility or Emission Unit is not subject to the Federal T-
NSR, continue the permit analysis process commencing with the 
provisions of District Rule 1302(C)(6). 

 
(4) Contemporaneous Risk Reduction  

(a) Applicant may, as a part of an HRA required pursuant to subsection 
(E)(3), provide Contemporaneous Risk Reduction to reduce the Facility 
risk from the new or modified Emissions Units. 

(b) Contemporaneous Risk Reductions shall be: 

(i) Real, enforceable, quantifiable, surplus and permanent; and 
(ii) Calculated based on the actual average annual emissions as 

determined by the APCO based upon verified data for the two year 
period immediately preceding the date of application; and 

(iii) Accompanied by an application for modification of the Emission 
Unit(s) which cause the Contemporaneous Risk Reduction. 

 
(c) The APCO shall analyze the Contemporaneous Risk Reduction and 

determine if any receptor will experience a total increase in MICR due to 
the cumulative impact of the Emission Unit(s) and the Emission Unit(s) 
which cause the Contemporaneous Risk Reduction. 

(i) The APCO shall deny a Contemporaneous Risk Reduction when 
such an increase occurs unless:  

127 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1401 1401-11 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

a. The Contemporaneous Risk Reduction is: 
1. Within 328 feet (100 meters) of the new or 

modified Emission Unit(s); or  
2. No receptor location will experience a total increase 

in MICR of greater than one in one million (1.0 x 
10-6) due to the cumulative impact of the Emission 
Unit(s) and the Emission Unit(s) which cause the 
Contemporaneous Risk Reduction   

b. T-BACT is applied to any Emissions Unit which is a 
Moderate Risk or greater.  

 
(d) The APCO shall analyze the Contemporaneous Risk Reduction and 

determine if any receptor will experience an increase in total acute or 
chronic HI due to the cumulative impact of the new or modified Emission 
Unit(s) and the Emission Unit(s) which cause the Contemporaneous Risk 
Reduction.   

(i) The APCO shall deny a Contemporaneous Risk Reduction when 
such an increase occurs unless: 
a. The Contemporaneous Risk Reduction is: 

1. Within 328 feet (100 meters) of the new or 
modified Emission Unit(s); or 

2. No receptor location will experience an increase in 
total acute or chronic HI of more than .1 due to the 
cumulative impact of the new or modified Emission 
Unit(s) and the Emission Unit(s) which cause the 
Contemporaneous Risk Reduction.   

 
(e) Any Contemporaneous Risk Reduction must occur before the start of 

operations of the Emissions Unit(s) which increase the risk. 

(F) Federal Toxic New Source Review Program Analysis (Federal T-NSR) 

(1) MACT Standard Requirements 

(a) The APCO shall analyze the application and Comprehensive Emission 
Inventory and determine if any currently enforceable MACT standard 
applies to the new or Reconstructed Facility or Emissions Unit(s). 

(b) If a MACT standard applies to the new or Reconstructed Facility or 
Emissions Unit(s) the APCO shall:  

(i) Add the requirements of the MACT standard to any ATC or PTO 
issued pursuant to the provisions of District Regulation XIII or 
Regulation II whichever process is utilized to issue the permit(s); 
and   

(ii) Continue the analysis with District Rule 1302(C)(6). 
 

128 of 527



1401-12 AVAQMD Rule 1401 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

(c) If no MACT standard applies to the new or Reconstructed Facility or 
Emissions Unit(s) the APCO shall continue the analysis with Section 
(G)(2).  

(2) Case-by-Case MACT Standards Requirements 

(a) The APCO shall determine if a Case-by-Case MACT standard applies to 
the proposed new or Reconstructed Facility or Emissions Unit(s). 

(b) If a Case-by-Case MACT standard applies to the new or Reconstructed 
Facility or Emissions Unit(s) the APCO shall: 

(i) Notify the applicant in writing that the applicant is required to 
prepare and submit a Case-by-Case MACT application. 
a. The applicant shall prepare the Case-by-Case MACT 

application in accordance with the provisions of 40 CFR 
63.43(e). 

b. The Case-by-Case MACT application shall be submitted no 
later than thirty (30) days after receipt of the written 
notification from the APCO or after such longer time that 
the applicant and the APCO may agree to in writing. 

(ii) Preliminarily approve or disapprove the Case-by-Case MACT 
application within 30 days after receipt of the application or after 
such longer time as the applicant and the APCO may agree to in 
writing. 

(iii) After the approval or disapproval of the Case-by-Case MACT 
application the APCO shall transmit a written notice of the 
approval or disapproval to the applicant at the address indicated on 
the application. 
a. If the Case-by-Case MACT application is disapproved the 

APCO shall specify the deficiencies, indicate how they can 
be corrected and specify a new deadline for submission of a 
revised Case-by-Case MACT application. 

(iv) The APCO shall review and analyze the Case-by-Case MACT 
application and submit it to USEPA along with any proposed 
permit conditions necessary to enforce the standard. 

(v) Provide public notice and comment of the proposed Case-by-Case 
MACT standard determination pursuant to the procedures in 40 
CFR 63.42(h). 
a. Such notice may be concurrent with the notice required 

under District Rule 1302(D)(3) if notice is required 
pursuant to that provision. 

(vi) Add the approved Case-by-Case MACT standard requirements or 
conditions to any ATC or PTO issued pursuant to the provisions of 
District Regulation XIII or Regulation II whichever process is 
utilized to issue the permit(s); and 

(vii) Continue the analysis with District Rule 1302(C)(6). 
 

129 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1401 1401-13 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

(c) If a Case-by-Case MACT standard does not apply to the new or 
Reconstructed Facility or Emissions Unit(s) the APCO shall continue the 
analysis with District Rule 1302(C)(6).  

(G) Most Stringent Emission Limit or Control Technique 

(1) If a Facility or Emission Unit(s) is subject to more than one emission limitation 
pursuant to sections (E) or (F) of this rule the most stringent emission limit or 
control technique shall be applied to the Facility or Emission Unit(s). 

(a) Notwithstanding the above, if a Facility or Emission Unit(s) is subject to a 
published MACT standard both the MACT standard and the emissions 
limit or control technique, if any, required pursuant to sections (E) shall 
apply unless the District has received delegation from USEPA for that 
particular MACT standard pursuant to the provisions of 42 U.S.C. 
§7412(l) (FCAA §112(l)).  

(H) Interaction with District Rule 1402 

(1) Nothing in this Rule shall be construed to exempt an existing Facility from 
compliance with the provisions of District Rule 1402. 

 
 
 
 
 
[SIP: Not SIP] 
 

130 of 527



1401-14 AVAQMD Rule 1401 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

This page intentionally left blank. 

131 of 527



(Adopted:  07/20/21) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1700 1600-1 
PSD 

Rule 1700 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) 

(A) General 

(1) Purpose 

(a) The purpose of this Rule is to: 

(i) Set forth the requirements for preconstruction review of all new 
Major PSD Facilities and Major PSD Modifications which emit or 
have the potential to emit a PSD Air Pollutant; and   

(ii) Incorporate applicable provisions of the Federal Prevention of 
Significant Deterioration (PSD) Rule as found in 40 CFR 52.21 by 
reference; and  

(iii) Ensure that the construction or modification of Facilities subject to 
this Rule comply with the provisions of 40 CFR 52.21 as 
incorporated by reference in this Rule.  

 
(2) Applicability 

(a) This Rule is applicable to any Facility and the owner/operator of any 
Facility subject to any requirement pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21 as 
incorporated by reference in this Rule. 

(b) The provisions of this Rule apply to emissions or potential emissions of 
PSD Air Pollutants and their precursors as defined in subsection (B) 
below.   

(c) The provisions of this Rule, specifically 40 CFR 52.21(j)-(r) as 
incorporated by reference below shall not apply to a Major PSD facility or 
Major PSD Modification with respect to a particular pollutant if the Major 
PSD Facility or Major PSD Modification is located in an area designated 
as nonattainment pursuant to 40 CFR 81.305 for the particular pollutant.   

(3) Incorporation by Reference 

(a) The requirements and provisions contained in 40 CFR 52.21 in effect on 
June 15, 2021 are incorporated herein by reference with the exception of 
the following:   

(i) 40 CFR 52.21(a)(1), (b)(55-58), (f), (g), (p)(6-8), (q), (s), (t), (u), 
(v), (w), (x), (y), (z), and (cc). 

(ii) The phrase “paragraph (q) of this section” in 40 CFR 52.21(p)(1) 
shall read as follows: the public notice and comment provisions 
contained in subsection (D)(2)(c) of this Rule. 

132 of 527



1600-2 AVAQMD Rule 1700 
PSD 

(iii) The term “Best Available Control Technology” or “BACT” as 
defined in 40 CFR 52.21(b)(12) shall read “PSD Best Available 
Control Technology” or “PSD BACT.” 

(iv) The term “Major Modification” as defined in 40 CFR 52.21(b)(2) 
shall read “Major PSD Modification.” 

(v) The term “Major Stationary Source” as defined in 40 CFR 
52.21(b)(1) shall read “Major PSD Facility.” 

(vi) The term “Regulated NSR Pollutant” as defined in 40 CFR 
52.21(b)(50) shall read “PSD Air Pollutant.” 

(vii) The term “Stationary Source” as defined in 40 CFR 52.21(b)(5) 
shall read “Facility.” 

(B) Definitions 

For the purpose of this Rule the definitions contained in 40 CFR 52.21(b), excluding 
(b)(55), (b)(56), (b)(57) and (b)(58), shall apply unless the term is otherwise defined 
herein. 

(1) Administrator – Either the administrator of USEPA or the Air Pollution Control 
Officer as follows: 

(a) For the provisions of 40 CFR 52.21(b)(17), (b)(37), (b)(43), (b)(48)(ii)(c), 
(b)(50)(i), (b)(51), (l)(2), and (p)(2), the administrator of USEPA; 

(b) For all other provisions of 40 CFR 52.21 as incorporated by reference in 
this Rule, the Air Pollution Control Officer. 

(2) Air Pollution Control Officer (APCO) – The person appointed to the position of 
Air Pollution Control Officer of the District pursuant to the provisions of 
California Health & Safety Code §40750, and his or her designee. 

(3) Authority to Construct Permit (ATC) - A District permit required pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 201 which must be obtained prior to the building, 
erecting, installation, alteration or replacement of any Permit Unit.  Such permit 
may act as a temporary PTO pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 202. 

(4) District – The Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District the geographical 
area of which is described in District Rule 103. 

(5) Major PSD Facility – A Major Stationary Source as defined in 40 CFR 
52.21(b)(1) for a PSD Air Pollutant. 

(6) Major PSD Modification – A Major Modification as defined in 40 CFR 
52.21(b)(2) for an PSD Air Pollutant. 

(7) Permit To Operate (PTO) - A District permit required pursuant to the provisions 
of District Rule 203 which must be obtained prior to operation of a Permit Unit.  
An ATC may function as a temporary PTO pursuant to the provisions of District 
Rule 202. 

133 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1700 1600-3 
PSD 

(8) Permit Unit – Any Emissions Unit which is required to have a PTO pursuant to 
the provisions of District Rule 203. 

(9) PSD Air Pollutant – A Regulated NSR Pollutant as defined in 40 CFR 
52.21(b)(50). 

(10) PSD Best Available Control Technology (PSD BACT) – Best Available Control 
Technology as defined in 40 CFR 52.21(b)(12). 

(11) PSD Document – A document issued by the APCO pursuant to the provisions of 
this Rule including but not limited to: all analysis relating to the new Major PSD 
Facility or Facility with Major PSD Modification; notices; any engineering 
analysis or other necessary analysis; and proposed conditions for any required 
ATC(s) or PTO(s). 

(C) Requirements 

(1) An owner/operator of any new Major PSD Facility, a Facility with a Major PSD 
Modification, or a Major PSD Facility requesting or modifying a Plantwide 
Applicability Limitation (PAL) shall obtain a Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration (PSD) permit pursuant to this Rule before beginning actual 
construction of such Facility or modification. 

(2) Notwithstanding the provisions of any other District Rule or Regulation, the 
APCO shall require compliance with this Rule prior to issuing a PSD permit as 
required by Section 165 of the Federal Clean Air Act (42 USC §7475). 

(3) Greenhouse gas emissions shall not be subject to the requirements of subsections 
(k) or (m) of 40 CFR Part 52.21. 

(4) An owner/operator of a Major PSD Facility seeking to obtain a PAL shall also 
comply with the provisions of 40 CFR 52.21 (aa)(1-15). 

(D) Procedure  

(1) General 

(a) The provisions of District Rule 1302 shall apply unless otherwise 
specified herein. 

(b) For Electrical Energy Generating Facilities (EEGFs) as defined in District 
Rule 1301(V) the provisions of this Rule shall apply in addition to the 
provisions of District Rule 1306. 

(2) Analysis 

(a) After the application has been determined to be complete pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1302(B)(1)(e) and all applicable notifications 
required pursuant to District Rule 1302 (B)(2) have been sent the APCO 
shall: 

134 of 527



1600-4 AVAQMD Rule 1700 
PSD 

(i) Analyze the information to determine if the application complies 
with the provisions of 40 CFR 52.21 as incorporated by reference; 
and  

(ii) Make a PSD BACT determination pursuant to the provisions of 40 
CFR 52.21(j);  
 

(b) The APCO shall not perform any analysis unless all applicable fees, 
including but not limited to Project Evaluation Fees for Complex Sources, 
as set forth in District Rule 301, have been paid. 

(c) Such PSD analysis may be conducted concurrently with any analysis 
required pursuant to District Rules 1302, 1306, and/or 1401. 

(3) Permit Issuance Procedure 

(a) Preliminary Decision 

(i) After the analysis has been completed the APCO shall issue a 
preliminary decision as to whether the PSD Document  should be 
approved, conditionally approved or disapproved and whether the 
ATC(s) or PTO(s) should be issued to the Major PSD Facility or 
Major PSD Modification. 

(ii) The preliminary decision shall include an analysis of the approval, 
conditional approval or disapproval and the draft PSD Document. 

(iii) The preliminary decision and draft PSD Document may be 
combined with any engineering analysis or draft NSR Document 
produced pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1302. 

 
(b) USEPA and Federal Land Manager Review. 

(i) If USEPA and the Federal Land Manager were notified pursuant to 
the provisions of District Rule 1302 (B)(2)(a)(iii) then the APCO 
shall, upon completion of the preliminary decision and 
concurrently with the publication required pursuant to subsection 
(D)(2)(c) below, send a copy of the preliminary decision and any 
underlying analysis to USEPA and any Federal Land Manager so 
notified. 

(ii) The provisions of District Rule 1302 (D)(2) shall apply to the 
review by USEPA and the Federal Land Manager. 

(iii) This review may be combined with any other review required 
pursuant to District Rule 1302. 

 
(c) Public Review, Comment and Availability of Documents 

(i) Upon completion of the preliminary decision the APCO shall 
provide for public review and comment in the same manner and 
using the same procedures as set forth in District Rule 1302(D)(3).  

135 of 527



AVAQMD Rule 1700 1600-5 
PSD 

(ii) Such public notice and comment may be combined with any other 
public notice and comment required pursuant to District Rule 
1302. 

 
(d) Public Hearing 

(i) If any person requests a public hearing pursuant to the provisions 
of District Rule 1302(D)(3)(b)(i)f., g., or h. the APCO shall hold a 
public hearing and notify the appropriate agencies and the general 
public using the procedures set forth in District Rule 
1302(D)(3)(a). 

 
(e) Final Action 

(i) Within one (1) year of the notification that the application has been 
deemed complete pursuant to District Rule 1302(B)(2), or after 
such longer time as both the applicant and the APCO may agree in 
writing, the APCO shall take final action to issue, issue with 
conditions or decline to issue the final PSD Document. 

(ii) The APCO shall produce a final PSD Document after the 
conclusion of the comment period; the public hearing, if any is 
held; and upon consideration of comments received. 

(iii) The APCO shall provide written notice of the final action to the 
applicant and USEPA. 

(iv) If substantive changes have been made to the preliminary decision 
or PSD Document after the opening of the public comment period, 
the APCO shall re-publish a notice of the final PSD determination 
pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1302(D)(3). 

(v) If substantive changes are made to the preliminary decision or PSD 
Document which are substantial enough to require changes to the 
underlying requirements or which result in a less stringent BACT 
determination, then the APCO shall reissue and renotice the 
preliminary decision and draft PSD document pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1302(D).   

(vi) The final PSD Document and all supporting documentation shall 
remain available for public inspection at the offices of the District. 

(vii) The final PSD Document may be combined with a final NSR 
Document produced pursuant to District Rule 1302(D)(4). 

 
(f) Issuance of ATC(s) and or PTO(s) 

(i) In conjunction with the final action on the PSD Document the 
APCO shall issue ATC(s), or PTO(s), if applicable, for any Permit 
Units associated with a new Major PSD Facility and/or any Permit 
Units modified as a part of the Major PSD Modification  

(ii) The ATC(s) or PTO(s) as issued shall contain all conditions 
regarding construction, operation and other matters as set forth in 
the PSD Document.   

 

136 of 527



1600-6 AVAQMD Rule 1700 
PSD 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 

137 of 527



 
 

 

 
 
 

  

 
 
 

Draft 

Staff Report 
for 

Amendment of 
Regulation XIII – New Source Review 

Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration 
And  

Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants. 
 

For Amendment on 
July 20, 2021 

(continued from June 15, 2021) 
 
 

 
 

Antelope Valley  
Air Quality  
Management District 

43301 Division St. Suite 206 
Lancaster, CA 93535-4649 
(661) 723-8070  

www.AVAQMD.ca.gov  
 
 
 

 138 of 527



 
This page intentionally left blank. 

 
 
 

139 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII TC-1 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

STAFF REPORT 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Regulation XIII – New Source Review 
Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration and 

Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants 
 
 
I.     PURPOSE OF STAFF REPORT ............................................................................................ 1 
II.    EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ..................................................................................................... 1 
III.   STAFF RECOMMENDATION ............................................................................................. 3 
IV.   LEGAL REQUIREMENTS CHECKLIST ............................................................................ 4 
V.    DISCUSSION OF LEGAL REQUIREMENTS ..................................................................... 5 

A. REQUIRED ELEMENTS/FINDINGS ............................................................................... 5 
1. State Findings Required for Adoption of Rules & Regulations ................................... 5 

a. Necessity ................................................................................................................... 5 
b. Authority ................................................................................................................... 5 
c. Clarity ....................................................................................................................... 5 
d. Consistency ............................................................................................................... 6 
e. Nonduplication .......................................................................................................... 7 
f.  Reference .................................................................................................................. 7 
g. Public Notice & Comment, Public Hearing .............................................................. 7 

2. Federal Elements (SIP Submittals, Other Federal Submittals) ..................................... 7 
a. Satisfaction of Underlying Federal Requirements .................................................... 8 
b. Public Notice and Comment ..................................................................................... 9 
c. Availability of Document ......................................................................................... 9 
d. Notice to Specified Entities ...................................................................................... 9 
e. Public Hearing ........................................................................................................ 10 
f.  Legal Authority to Adopt and Implement ............................................................... 10 
g. Applicable State Laws and Regulations Were Followed ........................................ 10 

B. WRITTEN ANALYSIS OF EXISTING REQUIREMENTS .......................................... 10 
C. ECONOMIC ANALYSIS ................................................................................................ 11 

1. General ........................................................................................................................ 11 
2. Incremental Cost Effectiveness .................................................................................. 11 

D. ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS (CEQA)..................................................................... 11 
E. SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS ................................................... 12 

1. Potential Environmental Impacts................................................................................ 12 
2. Mitigation of Impacts ................................................................................................. 12 
3. Alternative Methods of Compliance ........................................................................... 12 

F. PUBLIC REVIEW ............................................................................................................ 13 
VI. TECHNICAL DISCUSSION ........................................................................................... 13 

A. RULE APPLICABILITY ................................................................................................. 13 
1. Applicability Thresholds ............................................................................................ 13 

Table 1 – Applicability Thresholds and Requirements .................................................. 14 

2. Applicability Integration with Regulation II – Permits .............................................. 16 
3. Permit Unit vs. Emissions Unit and Regulation XIII Applicability ........................... 17 

140 of 527



TC-2 AVAQMD Reg. XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

4.  Applicability Requirements for Federal Major Facilities and Federal Major 
Modifications – Rescission of Rule 1310 ............................................................................. 18 
5. Minor Facility Notice Requirements .......................................................................... 20 
6. BACT Requirement Applicability .............................................................................. 21 

B. EMISSIONS ..................................................................................................................... 22 
C. CONTROL REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................ 22 
D. MINOR FACILITY NOTICE THRESHOLD ANALYSIS ............................................. 23 

Table 2 – Notice Thresholds and Requirements ............................................................ 23 

Table 3 – Minor NSR Notice Threshold Analysis ......................................................... 25 

E. BACT AND OFFSETS; REQUIREMENTS AND CALCULATIONS .......................... 27 
1. Permit Exempt Emissions Units in Calculation Methodology ................................... 31 
2. Real, Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable and Enforceable Definitions ....................... 31 
3. Enforceability of Reductions from Unpermitted Emissions Units ............................. 31 
4. Nontraditional Offset Calculations ............................................................................. 33 
5. BACT and Offset Applicability Comparison Between MDAQMD Provisions and 
Federal Requirements ........................................................................................................... 34 

a. BACT Applicability Comparison ........................................................................... 35 
Figure 1 – AVAQMD BACT Analysis Flow Chart ....................................................... 38 

b. Offset Applicability Comparison ............................................................................ 38 
Table 4 – Comparison of BACT and Offset Requirements ........................................... 40 

c. Proposed Adjustments to BACT/Offset Applicability ........................................... 42 
6. Offset Amount Comparison Between AVAQMD and Federal Calculation Methods 43 

a. History and Rational of the AVAQMD Previously Offset PTE Provisions ........... 44 
b. Other Air District’s Previously Offset PTE Provisions .......................................... 48 
c. AVAQMD’s Proposed Calculation Amendments .................................................. 51 

Figure 2 – Current NSR BACT/Offset Calculation Flow Chart .................................... 52 

Figure 3 – Proposed NSR BACT/Offset Calculation Flow Chart ................................. 53 

Table 5 – Existing Major Facility with Modification Calculation ................................. 54 

Table 6 – Existing Major Facility with Federal Major Modification Calculation ......... 55 

7. Relaxation of Emissions Limitations Resulting in Major Facility Status .................. 58 
8. Interpollutant Trading Provisions ............................................................................... 59 

F. RULE 1401 – NEW SOURCE REVIEW FOR TOXIC AIR CONTAMINANTS .......... 59 
G. REGULATION XVII – PREVENTION OF SIGNIFICANT DETERIORATION ......... 60 

Table 7 – Proposed PSD Terminology Changes ............................................................ 60 

H. FCAA §110(l), FCAA §193, AND HEALTH & SAFETY CODE §§42500 et. seq 
ANALYSIS ............................................................................................................................... 60 

Table 8 – Substantive Proposed Amendments Changing Current Requirements .......... 61 

I. PROPOSED RULE SUMMARY ..................................................................................... 63 
1. Proposed Amended Rule 1300 ................................................................................... 63 
2. Proposed Amended Rule 1301 ................................................................................... 64 
3. Proposed Amended Rule 1302 ................................................................................... 71 
4. Proposed Amended Rule 1303 ................................................................................... 79 
5. Proposed Amended Rule 1304 ................................................................................... 80 

141 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII TC-3 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

6. Proposed Amended Rule 1305 ................................................................................... 82 
7. Proposed Amended Rule 1306 ................................................................................... 84 
8. Proposed Amended Rule 1309 ................................................................................... 84 
9. Rescission of Rule 1310 ............................................................................................. 85 
10. Proposed Amended Rule 1401 ................................................................................... 85 
11. Proposed Amended Regulation XVII ......................................................................... 85 

H. SIP HISTORY AND ANALYSIS .................................................................................... 86 
Appendix A - Iterated Version .................................................................................................... A-1 
Appendix B - Public Notice Documents ..................................................................................... B-1 
Appendix C - Public Comments and Responses......................................................................... C-1 
Appendix D - California Environmental Quality Act Documentation ....................................... D-1 
Appendix E - Table of Authorities............................................................................................... E-1 
Appendix F - Bibliography .......................................................................................................... F-1 
 
 
 

142 of 527



TC-4 AVAQMD Reg. XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

List of Acronyms 
 
APCO  Air Pollution Control Officer 
BACT   Best Available Control Technology 
BARCT Best Available Retrofit Control Technology 
CARB   California Air Resources Board 
CCAA  California Clean Air Act 
CEQA  California Environmental Quality Act 
FCAA   Federal Clean Air Act  
FOP  Federal Operating Permit (aka Regulation XII) 
H&S Code  California Health & Safety Code 
HAPs  Hazardous Air Pollutants 
ICE  Internal Combustion Engine 
LAER  Lowest Achievable Emissions Rate 
MACT  Maximum Achievable Control Technology Standards (for HAPs) 
MDAB  Mojave Desert Air Basin 
MDAQMD Mojave Desert Air Quality Management District 
NOx  Oxides of Nitrogen 
NAAQS National Ambient Air Quality Standards 
NESHAP National Emission Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants 
NSPS  New Source Performance Standard 
NSR  New Source Review (aka Regulation XIII) 
O3  Ozone 
PM10  Particulate Matter less than 10 microns (aka Course Particulate) 
PM2.5  Particulate Matter less than 2.5 microns (aka Fine Particulate) 
PSD  Prevention of Significant Deterioration (aka Regulation XVI) 
PUC  Public Utilities Commission 
RACT  Reasonably Available Control Technology 
SBCAPCD San Bernardino County Air Pollution Control District 

(Predecessor agency to MDAQMD) 
SCAQMD South Coast Air Quality Management District 
So.Cal.APCD Southern California Air Pollution Control District 
  (Predecessor agency to SBCAPCD) 
SIP  State Implementation Plan 
SOx  Oxides of Sulfur 
USEPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
VOC  Volatile Organic Compounds 
 

 
 

143 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 1 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

STAFF REPORT 
Regulation XIII – New Source Review 

Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration and 
Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants 

 
I. PURPOSE OF STAFF REPORT  

A staff report serves several discrete purposes.  Its primary purpose is to provide a summary and 
background material to the members of the Governing Board.  This allows the members of the 
Governing Board to be fully informed before making any required decision.  It also provides the 
documentation necessary for the Governing Board to make any findings, which are required by 
law to be made prior to the approval or adoption of a document.  In addition, a staff report 
ensures that the correct procedures and proper documentation for approval or adoption of a 
document have been performed.  Finally, the staff report provides evidence for defense against 
legal challenges regarding the propriety of the approval or adoption of the document. 
 
II. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

In 2015, pursuant to requirements under the Federal Clean Air Act (FCAA),1 the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) lowered the primary ozone National Ambient Air 
Quality Standard (NAAQS) from 75 parts per billion (ppb) to 70 ppb.2  In 2018 USEPA 
promulgated a final implementation rule3  specifying timeline requirements for submissions of 
mandatory elements into the State Implementation Plan (SIP) under the revised Ozone NAAQS.  
The Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District (AVAQMD or District) has been 
designated as non-attainment for ozone and classified Severe-15 and thus the District is required 
to submit specific elements in accordance with the implementation rule.  One of the required 
elements is a certification that the District’s Nonattainment New Source Review program 
(NANSR or NSR4) meets or exceeds various requirements as set forth in the FCAA and the 
regulations promulgated thereunder.  The deadline under the implementation rule is 3 years from 
the designation of nonattainment under the NAAQS.5  As the effective non-attainment 
designation date for that area of the AVAQMD was 8/3/2018 the NSR certification submission is 
due to USEPA on or before 8/3/2021. 
 
In response to the December 2018 implementation rule the AVAQMD developed the 70 ppb 
Ozone Standard Implementation Evaluation: RACT SIP Analysis; Federal Negative 
Declarations; and, Emission Statement Certification (70 ppb O3 Evaluation) which was 
originally designed to submit many of the required SIP elements including the NSR certification. 
In a letter to the Mojave Desert Air Quality Management District (MDAQMD) USEPA indicated 
that their NSR certification could not be made due to then unspecified major deficiencies 

                                                 
1 42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq. 
2 80 FR 65292, 10/1/2015, Effective 10/26/2015. 
3 83 FR 62998, 12/6/2018. 
4 Technically the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) program is also considered part of Federal NSR as it 
covers preconstruction review of attainment air pollutants.  In general use however, the term NSR is used to refer to 
Nonattainment NSR provisions only. 
5 83 FR 62998, 63000, 12/6/2018. 

144 of 527



2 AVAQMD Reg. XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

identified in the MDAQMD’s current NSR Rules contained in the SIP along with the more 
recent, but as yet unacted upon, NSR rule submissions.6  USEPA has indicated that since the 
AVAQMD NSR rules are highly similar to those in the MDAQMD the same alleged deficiencies 
would also preclude an NSR certification for AVAQMD.  As a result, the AVAQMD adopted 70 
ppb O3 Evaluation on 7/21/2020 without the NSR certification.7  
 
On 12/19/2019 USEPA provided commentary to the MDAQMD via letter8 regarding the alleged 
deficiencies in that District’s pending NSR Rule submissions9 as well as the NSR program as 
contained in the SIP.10  Once again USEPA indicated orally that the AVAQMD NSR rules 
suffered from the same deficiencies.  The MDAQMD subsequently embarked upon a substantive 
overhaul of the NSR program to address USEPA’s concerns11 and adopted a revised NSR Rule 
on 3/22/2021.12  The ongoing efforts with the MDAQMD rules, involving the MDAQMD, 
USEPA and California Air Resources Board (CARB) staff, has resulted in a series of 
amendments which are easily translatable into similar revisions to the AVAQMD NSR Rules.  
Such amendments, with one notable exception13, should be acceptable to USEPA as they are 
highly similar to changes USEPA indicated were acceptable in the MDAQMD NSR Rules. 
 
The AVAQMD is therefore proposing to: amend Regulation XIII – New Source Review and 
Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration; and make conforming changes to 
Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants.  The large majority of the 
proposed amendments are simply clarifications along with explanatory language codifying 
current District permitting practices.  Applicability thresholds, in the main, remain the same as 
those currently in the District’s Rulebook.  Substantive proposed amendments include the 
following:  addition of a variety of definitions; addition of a Stack Height Analysis as required 
by 40 CFR 51.164, addition of a 30 day notification period prior to issuance for certain “Minor 
NSR” permitting actions, the bifurcation of threshold BACT and Major Facility applicability 
calculations from calculations involving the amount of offsets which may be necessary in certain 
permitting actions, adjustment of the BACT and Major Facility threshold calculations, the 
removal of Rule 1310 as such rule was practically ineffective and completely unused; and a shift 
of Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration to an adoption by reference 
format.14  The proposed amendments will also enable the AVAQMD to request delegation of not 
only PSD permitting authority but also enhanced Title V permitting authority which, when 
granted, will allow the AVAQMD to process and issue PSD permits Title V permits and permit 

                                                 
6 USEPA Letter, G. Rios to B. Poiriez, 2019 Certification of SIP Approved Nonattainment New Source Review, 
10/10/2019 (Hereafter, USEPA Letter of 10/10/2019) 
7 AVAQMD Governing Board Agenda Item #8, 7/21/2020; Resolution 20-08, 7/21/2020; AVAQMD, 70 ppb O3 
Evaluation Final Staff Report, 7/21/2020. 
8 USEPA Letter L. Beckham to B. Poiriez – MDAQMD New Source Review Program, 12/19/2019 (Hereafter, 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019)   
9 MDAQMD Regulation XIII – New Source Review as amended on 9/24/2001, 8/28/2006, and 8/22/2016. 
10 MDAQMD Regulation XIII, 3/25/1996 and approved at 61 FR 58133, 11/13/1996. 
11 See Appendix C, Response to Comments #1, pgs C23-C28  
12 MDAQMD Governing Board Agenda Item #12, 3/22/2021; MDAQMD Resolution 21-03, 3/22/2021; and 
MDAQMD Final Staff Report, 3/22/2021. 
13 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.c. 
14 The PSD program is to a certain degree entwined with Regulation XIII and conforming changes would be 
necessary in any case.   

145 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 3 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

changes; and Air Toxics determinations at the same time and in the same action as the applicable 
NSR evaluation if the applicant so wishes.  
 
III. STAFF RECOMMENDATION  

Staff recommends that the Governing Board of the AVAQMD amend Regulation XIII – New 
Source Review, amend Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, make 
conforming changes to Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants, and 
approve the appropriate California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) documentation.  This 
action is necessary to allow the certification of certain mandatory submission requirements in 
response to the 2015 70 ppb Ozone standard; to address a variety of issues identified by the 
USEPA in their review of previously submitted versions; to clarify the interrelationship between 
these rules and Rule 219 – Equipment Not Requiring a Permit as proposed for amendment 
elsewhere in the agenda; to remove unused and unnecessary rules and provisions; and to provide 
reorganization for additional clarity.   
 

146 of 527



4 AVAQMD Reg. XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

IV. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS CHECKLIST  

The findings and analysis as indicated below are required for the procedurally correct adoption 
of amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, Regulation XVII – Prevention of 
Significant Deterioration and Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants.  
Each item is discussed, if applicable, in Section V.  Copies of related documents are included in 
the appropriate appendices.  
 
FINDINGS REQUIRED FOR 
RULES & REGULATIONS: 
 
 X  Necessity 
 
 X  Authority 
 
 X  Clarity 
 
 X  Consistency 
 
 X  Nonduplication 
 
 X  Reference 
 
 X  Public Notice & Comment 
 
 X  Public Hearing 
 
REQUIREMENTS FOR STATE  
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN  
SUBMISSION (SIP):  
 
 X  Public Notice & Comment 
 
 X  Availability of Document 
 
 X  Notice to Specified Entities (State, Air 
Districts, USEPA, Other States) 
 
 X  Public Hearing 
 
 X  Legal Authority to adopt and implement the 
document. 
 
 X  Applicable State laws and regulations were 
followed. 
 

 
ELEMENTS OF A FEDERAL 
SUBMISSION: 
 
N/A Elements as set forth in applicable Federal 
law or regulations. 
 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
ACT REQUIREMENTS (CEQA): 
 
N/A Ministerial Action 
 
N/A Exemption 
 
 X  Negative Declaration 
 
N/A Environmental Impact Report 
 
 X  Appropriate findings, if necessary. 
 
 X  Public Notice & Comment 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL 
ANALYSIS (RULES & REGULATIONS ONLY): 
 
 X  Environmental impacts of compliance. 
 
 X  Mitigation of impacts. 
 
 X  Alternative methods of compliance. 
 
OTHER:  
 
 X  Written analysis of existing air pollution 
control requirements 
 
 X  Economic Analysis 
 
 X  Public Review 
 
 

 

147 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 5 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

V. DISCUSSION OF LEGAL REQUIREMENTS  

A. REQUIRED ELEMENTS/FINDINGS  

This section discusses the State of California statutory requirements that apply to the 
proposed adoption of Regulation XIII – New Source Review, Regulation XVII – 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic 
Air Contaminants.  These are actions that need to be performed and/or information that 
must be provided in order to amend the rule in a procedurally correct manner. 

1. State Findings Required for Adoption of Rules & Regulations:  

Before adopting, amending, or repealing a rule or regulation, the District 
Governing Board is required to make findings of necessity, authority, clarity, 
consistency, non-duplication, and reference based upon relevant information 
presented at the hearing. The information below is provided to assist the Board in 
making these findings. 

a. Necessity: 

The proposed adoption of amendments to Regulation XIII – New 
Source Review, Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration, and Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air 
Contaminants are necessary to: allow certification of the 
AVAQMD’s NSR program in response to the 2015 70 ppb Ozone 
Standard, address a variety of approvability issues as identified by 
USEPA, allow the AVAQMD to request PSD permitting authority, 
and to allow the AVAQMD to request enhanced NSR 
authorization to allow Title V permits and permit changes to be 
addressed in the same NSR action if the applicant so wishes. 

b. Authority:   

The District has the authority pursuant to California Health and 
Safety Code (H&S Code) §40702 to adopt, amend or repeal rules 
and regulations. 

c. Clarity:   

The proposed amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source 
Review, Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration, and Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air 
Contaminants are clear in that they are written so that the persons 
subject to the Rule can easily understand the meaning.  Most of the 
proposed amendments are simply designed to clarify particular 
existing practices.  Some provisions have been reorganized and 
renumbered to conform to other, similar, rule provisions as well as 
to remove unused and unusable provisions.  A few additions have 

148 of 527



6 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

been made to conform with FCAA requirements.  Furthermore, the 
Minor Facility notice requirements and bifurcation of the 
applicability calculations from the calculations required to 
determine the amount of offsets have been designed to lessen 
confusion regarding use of these provisions. 

d. Consistency:   

The proposed amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source 
Review, Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration, and Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air 
Contaminants are in harmony with, and not in conflict with or 
contradictory to any State law or regulation, Federal law or 
regulation, or court decisions.   

H&S Code §§42300 et seq. allows the District to establish a 
permitting program requiring the obtaining of a permit prior to 
building, erecting, altering, replacement, operating or using any 
machine, equipment, or other contrivance that causes or controls 
air contaminants15 and to ensure that such equipment does not 
prevent or interfere with the attainment or maintenance of any 
applicable air quality standard.16  Similarly, the FCAA requires 
areas which have been designated nonattainment with the NAAQS 
to develop a permitting program to ensure that the preconstruction 
review requirements for new or modified stationary source of air 
contaminants are met.17  The District has been designated Federal 
nonattainment for O3.

18 Regulation XIII and Regulation XVII are 
the AVAQMD’s rules which establish the State and Federal 
permitting program and implement the mandatory requirements 
thereof. 

In addition, California Law19 requires an analysis when 
amendments are proposed to a nonattainment NSR program to 
show that the proposed changes are not less stringent than the 
FCAA provisions and implementing regulations which were in 
existence as of December 30, 2002.20   

                                                 
15  H&S Code §42300(a). 
16  H&S Code §42301(a). 
17  Federal Clean Air Act §§110(a)(2), 165(a) and 172(b)(5); 42 U.S.C. §§7410(a)(2), 7475(a) and 7502(b)(5) 
18  40 CFR 81.305 (See specifically the tables for O3 1-hour Standard, O3 1997 8 hour Standard, 8 hour O3 NAAQS 
and 2015 8 hour O3 NAAQS).  Please also note that there is a so called “clean data” finding for the 1 hour O3 
standard in 80 FR 20166, 4/15/2015 for the Southeast Desert Ozone Nonattainment Area (which includes the 
jurisdiction of the AVAQMD) but redesignation has not yet occurred. 
19 H&S Code §§42500 et seq. 
20 H&S Code §42504. 

149 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 7 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Finally, Title V of the FCAA21 provides that each state (or in this 
case the District) to submit a Federal Operating Permit (FOP) 
program to control major stationary sources of air pollution.22 
Under the applicable regulations23 the AVAQMD can request 
delegation of “Enhanced NSR” status to allow the issuance of and 
modifications to Title V permits to be performed in conjunction 
with and using the same notice provisions as the NSR permitting 
actions.  The proposed amendments have been designed to allow 
the AVAQMD to request this delegation. 

Section VI of this staff report contains a detailed discussion of the 
consistency of each proposed amendment with the applicable State 
or Federal requirements. 

e. Nonduplication: 

The proposed amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source 
Review, Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration, and Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air 
Contaminants do not impose the same requirements as any existing 
State or Federal law or regulation because the provisions listed in 
subsection V.A.1.d. above all require the adoption of rules and 
regulations to properly implement such requirements and 
programs. 

f. Reference:   

The District has the authority pursuant to H&S Code §40702 to 
adopt, amend or repeal rules and regulations. 

g. Public Notice & Comment, Public Hearing:   

Notice for the public hearing for the proposed amendments to 
Regulation XIII – New Source Review, Regulation XVII – 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and Rule 1401 – New 
Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants was published on 
5/11/2021.  See Appendix “B” for a copy of the public notice.  See 
Appendix “C” for copies of comments, and District responses. 

2. Federal Elements (SIP Submittals, Other Federal Submittals).  

Submittals to USEPA are required to include various elements depending upon 
the type of document submitted and the underlying Federal law that requires the 
submittal.  The information below indicates which general procedural elements 

                                                 
21 Federal Clean Air Act §§501 et seq., 42 U.S.C. §§7661 et seq. 
22 Federal Clean Air Act 502(d)(1), 42 U.S.C. §7661a(d)(1). 
23 40 CFR 70.7(d)(1)(v). 

150 of 527



8 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

are required for the proposed amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source 
Review, Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and Rule 
1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants and how they were 
satisfied.   

a. Satisfaction of Underlying Federal Requirements:   

The FCAA requires that Districts adopt and implement programs 
to ensure that certain large new or modified stationary sources of 
air pollutants obtain permits prior to construction or modification24  
The program covering nonattainment pollutants is commonly 
referred to as NSR or NANSR while the program for attainment 
pollutants referred to as PSD.  Such programs must be included in 
the applicable SIP and comply with the implementing regulations 
as promulgated and adopted by USEPA.25  Since Regulation XIII 
and Regulation XVII are the regulations implementing these 
requirements they must comply with the applicable provisions of 
the FCAA and the regulations promulgated thereunder.  Please see 
the appropriate provision section VI. for a detailed discussion 
regarding compliance of certain proposed provisions with the 
specific applicable Federal requirements.  

In addition, the FCAA requires all submissions for inclusion into 
the SIP to meet certain requirements.  The criteria for determining 
completeness of SIP submissions are set forth in 40 CFR Part 51, 
Appendix V, 2.0.  In addition, FCAA §110(l) (42 U.S.C. 7410(l)) 
requires that any SIP submission which might possibly be 
construed as a relaxation of a requirement provide a demonstration 
that the change not interfere with any FCAA requirements 
concerning attainment or Reasonable Further Progress (RFP).  
Since the AVAQMD’s NSR program is a specific response to 
implement FCAA programmatic requirements it is required to be 
in the SIP and is thus subject to these general completeness 
requirements.  

FCAA 110(l), (42 U.S.C. 7410(l)) further requires that any SIP 
submission which might potentially be construed as a relaxation of 
a previously existing requirement provide a demonstration that the 
proposed change not interfere with the attainment or maintenance 
of the NAAQS and or any Reasonable Further Progress 
requirements.  A similar analysis is required under California Law 
to show that any proposed changes are not less stringent than the 

                                                 
24  Federal Clean Air Act §§110(a)(2), 112(i)(l), 165(a), 172(b)(5), and 502(a)(2)(C); 42 U.S.C. §§7410(a)(2), 
7412(i)(l), 7475(a), 7502(b)(5) and 7661a(a)(2)(C). 
25 40 CFR 51.160 et seq. and 40 CFR 52.21 

151 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 9 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

provisions implementing the FCAA in effect as of December 30, 
2002.26  Please see subsection VI. H. for the applicable analysis. 

Finally, 40 CFR 51.100 requires areas not in attainment for the 
NAAQS to submit specific plan elements for the particular 
pollutant(s) for which they have been designated nonattainment.  
The AVAQMD was designated nonattainment under the 2015 
NAAQS revision27 and thus is required to submit either revised 
programmatic elements or a certification that the currently existing 
elements meet or exceeds the specific requirements.28  As the 
AVAQMD has been informed that the current NSR Rules cannot, 
in USEPA’s opinion, be certified the AVAQMD is required to 
upgrade its NSR rules to correct identified alleged deficiencies.29  
Please see section VI. for a detailed discussion as to how the 
particular elements are satisfied by the proposed amendments.  

b. Public Notice and Comment: 

Notice for the public hearing for the Notice for the public hearing 
for the proposed amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source 
Review, Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration, and Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air 
Contaminants was published 5/11/2021  See Appendix “B” for a 
copy of the public notice.  See Appendix “C” for copies of 
comments and District responses. 

c. Availability of Document: 

Copies of the Notice for the public hearing for the proposed 
amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, Regulation 
XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and Rule 1401 – 
New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants and the 
accompanying draft staff report were made available to the public 
on 5/11/2021.   

d. Notice to Specified Entities: 

Copies of the proposed amendments to Regulation XIII – New 
Source Review, Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration, and Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air 
Contaminants and the accompanying draft staff report were sent to 

                                                 
26 H&S Code §§42500 et seq. 
27 40 CFR 81.305 
28 83 FR 62998, 12/6/2018. 
29 USEPA oral comments indicating deficiencies identified in USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019 to MDAQMD also exist 
in the AVAQMD NSR Rules. 

152 of 527



10 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

all affected agencies.  The proposed amendments were officially 
sent to CARB and USEPA on 5/11/2021. 

e. Public Hearing:   

A public hearing to consider the proposed amendments to 
Regulation XIII – New Source Review, Regulation XVII – 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and Rule 1401 – New 
Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants has been set for 
6/15/2021. 

f. Legal Authority to Adopt and Implement: 

The District has the authority pursuant to H&S Code §40702 to 
adopt, amend, or repeal rules and regulations and to do such acts as 
may be necessary or proper to execute the duties imposed upon the 
District.  

g. Applicable State Laws and Regulations Were Followed: 

Public notice and hearing procedures pursuant to H&S Code 
§§40725-40728 have been followed.  See Section (V)(A)(1) above 
for compliance with state findings required pursuant to H&S Code 
§40727.  See Section (V)(B) below for compliance with the 
required analysis of existing requirements pursuant to H&S Code 
§40727.2.  See Section (V)(C) for compliance with economic 
analysis requirements pursuant to H&S Code §40920.6.  See 
Section (V)(D) below for compliance with provisions of the 
CEQA. 

B. WRITTEN ANALYSIS OF EXISTING REQUIREMENTS  

H&S Code §40727.2 requires air districts to prepare a written analysis of all existing 
federal air pollution control requirements that apply to the same equipment or source type 
as the rule proposed by the District.  Regulation XIII – New Source Review, Regulation 
XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and Rule 1401 – New Source Review for 
Toxic Air Contaminants are primarily logistical in nature and meant to ensure that all 
necessary analysis and notices for proper permit issuance are performed.  While they do 
require the imposition of Best Available Control Technology (BACT) on certain new or 
Modified equipment it does not specify what particular equipment or emissions level 
would satisfy the requirement as BACT must be determined on an equipment by 
equipment basis as part of the permitting process.  Similarly, while the Regulations do 
require the provision of offsetting emissions reductions in certain cases the specific 
reductions must be approved as part of the permitting process itself.  Specifically, since 
such BACT and Offset determinations are governed by other District Rules, Regulations 
as well as State and Federal Law, regulations and guidance documents.  Therefore, as a 
procedural rule providing implementation of State and Federal requirements rather than 
providing specific prohibitory provisions, this analysis is not necessary. 

153 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 11 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

C. ECONOMIC ANALYSIS 

1. General 

Despite the multitude proposed changes in rule language, the District expects that 
there will be little to no economic impact from the propose amendments.  This is 
due to the fact that the proposed amendments primarily affect the functions and 
analysis performed by the District as opposed to requirements imposed upon 
Facilities.  In fact, the potential for the AVAQMD to obtain “Enhanced NSR” 
status could result in a cost savings as Title V permit modification would not need 
to be noticed separately from the underlying NSR action. 

2. Incremental Cost Effectiveness 

Pursuant to H&S Code §40920.6, incremental cost effectiveness calculations are 
required for rules and regulations which are adopted or amended to meet the 
California Clean Air Act (CCAA) requirements for Best Available Retrofit 
Control Technology (BARCT) or “all feasible measures” to control volatile 
compounds (VOCs), oxides of nitrogen (NOx) or oxides of sulfur (SOx).  As a 
procedural rule, which does not require specific control measures this analysis is 
not required.   

This analysis is primarily intended for source specific prohibitory rules rather than 
procedural rules. However, the proposed amendments and new rule do require 
BACT to be placed upon certain new or Modified emissions units. While this 
might technically be considered the imposition of BARCT or “all feasible 
measures” the specific controls required for a particular piece of equipment will 
need to be analyzed on a case by case basis as applications are submitted. The 
particular equipment involved in each application will be subject to the provisions 
of the applicable State, Federal and/or District rules governing the particular 
source category involved. Due to the necessity of an application to specify BACT 
this analysis, if such is even applicable, is too speculative to be performed at this 
time. Please note the imposition of specific BARCT or “all feasible measures” by 
any new or proposed change to a prohibitory rule will require an incremental cost 
analysis upon adoption/amendment. 

D. ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS (CEQA) 

Through the process described below the appropriate CEQA process for the proposed 
amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, Regulation XVII – Prevention of 
Significant Deterioration, and Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air 
Contaminants was determined. 

1. The proposed amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 
Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and Rule 1401 – New 
Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants meets the CEQA definition of 
“project.”  It is not a “ministerial” action. 

154 of 527



12 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

2. The proposed amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 
Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and Rule 1401 – New 
Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants are exempt from CEQA Review 
because the proposed actions do not result in a practical change of any thresholds 
or in the permitting status of any class or category of equipment.  In addition, the 
proposed amendments increase the environmental protection in that they result in 
notice to a wider number of agencies and the general public for a greater amount 
of time prior to permit issuance.  Therefore, there is no potential that the proposed 
amendments might cause the release of additional air contaminants or create any 
other adverse environmental impacts, a Class 8 Categorical Exemption (14 Cal 
Code Regs. §15308) applies.  Copies of the documents relating to CEQA can be 
found in Appendix “D”. 

E. SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS 

1. Potential Environmental Impacts 

The potential environmental impacts of compliance with the proposed 
amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, Regulation XVII – 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and Rule 1401 – New Source Review for 
Toxic Air Contaminants will not cause any impacts because the underlying 
requirements currently in effect remain primarily unchanged.   

In addition, the proposed amendments are procedural in nature and designed to 
enhance the review process under NSR and PSD programs.  While these 
programs do not in and of themselves require specific control technologies or 
compliance methodologies on particular Facilities or source categories they do 
ensure that compliance with other source category specific rules and regulations 
are included in the ultimate permit.  The only substantive requirements on 
Facilities contained in the rule is that of BACT on new or Modified equipment.  
BACT is highly dependent on the nature and type of equipment involved and 
therefore the analysis of specific impacts from the imposition of BACT on a 
particular project is too speculative to performed on a generalized basis.  It must 
be noted, however, that any new and large changes to a Facility will in and of 
themselves be required to undergo CEQA review when proposed and thus 
specific potential environmental impacts caused by the imposition of 
requirements such as BACT will end up being analyzed at that time. 

2. Mitigation of Impacts   

N/A 

3. Alternative Methods of Compliance 

N/A 

155 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 13 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

F. PUBLIC REVIEW 

See Staff Report Section (V)(A)(1)(g) and (2)(b), as well as Appendix “B.” 

VI. TECHNICAL DISCUSSION 

A. RULE APPLICABILITY 

The proposed amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review and Regulation 
XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration will affect all applications for a new or 
modified permit within the AVAQMD.  This is because all applications, regardless of 
size, are at least partially subject to the provisions of Regulation XIII.30 This is to ensure 
that all appropriate and applicable analysis are performed prior to permit issuance 
regardless of the size or nature of the permitting action.  Exactly which analyses are 
applicable to a particular Facility or Emissions Unit are based upon the proposed unit 
itself, the underlying Facility and the resultant emissions change, if any.  In some cases, 
the proposed permit(s) or modification to permit(s) will not require much analysis at all 
and the permit will be issued pursuant to the provisions of Regulation II - Permits.  In 
other cases, the proposed permit(s) or modification to permit(s) will require substantial 
analysis and a variety of procedural activities prior to permit issuance.  The procedural 
steps which determine the nature and amount of analysis for a particular proposed permit 
or modification to a permit are located in Rule 1302 – New Source Review Procedure.  
Specific requirements, calculation methods and thresholds are located elsewhere in 
Regulation XIII.   

1. Applicability Thresholds 

The basic applicability threshold for criteria air pollutants31 in Regulation XIII are 
not changed by the proposed amendments.  Proposed Rule 1300 – New Source 
Review General, continues to state that the provisions of Regulation XIII apply to 
any new or modified Facility or Emissions Unit.  Proposed Rule 1303 – New 
Source Review Requirements continues to require BACT and offsetting emissions 
reductions when such a new or modified Facility or Emissions Unit has emissions 
of a nonattainment air pollutant over a threshold level.32   

Currently the AVAQMD has been designated nonattainment with the NAAQS for 
Ozone (O3)33 and classified Severe.  For purposes of the California Ambient Air 
Quality Standards (CAAQS) the AVAQMD is nonattainment for O3 and PM10 
Districtwide34.  Therefore, the nonattainment pollutants subject to threshold 

                                                 
30 Current Rule 1300(B) . 
31 Those air pollutants for which an Ambient Air Quality Standard (either State or Federal) has been promulgated by 
the appropriate authority. 
32 Proposed Rule 1300(B) and Rule 1303(A) and (B). 
33 40 CFR 81.305 (See specifically the tables for O3 1-hour Standard, O3 1997 8 hour Standard, 8 hour O3 NAAQS 
and 2015 8 hour O3 NAAQS).  Please also note that there is a so called “clean data” finding for the 1 hour O3 
standard in 80 FR 20166, 4/15/2015 for the Southeast Desert Ozone Nonattainment Area (which includes the 
jurisdiction of the AVAQMD) but redesignation has not yet occurred. 
34 17 CCR §§60201, and 60208 respectively.   

156 of 527



14 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

analysis under Regulation XIII are O3; its precursors NOx and VOC; and PM10.  
Toxic Air Contaminants (TAC) and Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAP) are covered 
by the provisions of current Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air 
Contaminants and Regulated Air Pollutants for which the District is in attainment 
are covered by the provisions of Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration.  Each of these programs have their own thresholds and 
requirements.  The existing criteria pollutant thresholds and associated 
requirements are not changed by these proposed amendments and are summarized 
in Table 1 below. 

Table 1 
Applicability Thresholds and Requirements 

(Rule 1303(A) & (B)) 
 

Source Category Threshold Requirements 
New Minor 
Facility 

Facility Proposed 
Emissions are: 
<25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
<15 tpy of PM10 

●BACT on all new/Modified equipment with 
Proposed Emissions > 25 lbs/day. 

Minor Facility 
with Minor 
Modification 

Facility Proposed 
Emissions as Modified 
are: 
<25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
<15 tpy of PM10 

●BACT on all new/Modified equipment with 
Proposed Emissions > 25 lbs/day. 

Minor Facility 
with a Significant 
Modification35 

Facility Proposed 
Emissions as Modified 
are: 
<25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
<15 tpy of PM10 
AND has a Significant 
emissions increase. 

●See: Minor Facility with Modification that 
makes it a Major Facility below. 

Minor Facility 
with Modification 
that makes it 
Major 

Facility Proposed 
Emissions as Modified 
are: 
>25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
>15 tpy of PM10  

●BACT on all new/Modified equipment.36 
●Offset each Nonattainment Air Pollutant’s 
Proposed Emissions as Modified which is 
over the threshold back to 0 applying 
applicable offset ratio.  

                                                 
35 While “Significant” modifications under the FCAA only occur at Major Facilities, the current AVAQMD 
language provides that any “Significant” change as defined in proposed Rule 1301(TTT) will be greater than the 
“Major Facility” threshold as set forth in the proposed Rule 1303(B)(1) table and therefore such a Facility would 
therefore automatically become a Major Facility. 
36 The BACT requirement for Major Facilities as found in proposed Rule 1303(A)(3) will be changed to be set at the 
Major Facility threshold in the table of proposed Rule 1303(B)(1).  As this is threshold is larger than the 25 lbs/day 
BACT requirement found in proposed Rule 1303(A)(1) and (2), most equipment would already have been subject to 
BACT. 

157 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 15 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Source Category Threshold Requirements 
New Major 
Facility 

Facility Proposed 
Emissions are: 
>25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
>15 tpy of PM10 

●BACT on all new/Modified equipment. 
●Offset all amounts of each Nonattainment 
Air Pollutant for which Facility is Major 
using the applicable offset ratio. 

Major Facility 
with any sized 
Modification 

Facility Proposed 
Emissions are: 
>25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
>15 tpy of PM10 

●BACT on all new/Modified equipment. 
●Offset all increases of each Nonattainment 
Air Pollutant for which Facility is Major 
using the applicable offset ratio. 

 
TAC and HAP applicability requiring an analysis and the imposition of potential 
requirements are determined differently under Rule 1401 but they are also unchanged by 
the proposed amendments.  Specifically, State Toxics NSR (State T-NSR) requirements 
apply to any new or modified Emissions Unit emitting or having the potential to emit a 
TAC or which is subject to an Airborne Toxic control Measure (ATCM).  For Federal 
Toxic NSR (Federal T-NSR) the applicability thresholds are as follows: 

• Proposed Emissions (New or Modified Emissions Unit) > 10 tpy or more of single 
HAP 

• Proposed Emissions (New or Modified Emissions Unit) > 25 tpy or more of a 
combination of HAPs  

• Proposed Emissions (New or Modified) in a lesser amount as established by USEPA 
pursuant to a promulgated rule.37 

• The Emissions Unit was designated an Air Toxic Area Source by USEPA pursuant to 
promulgated rule. 

 
Rule 1401 provides requirements that an applicant provide certain specified information 
regarding TACs and HAPs as well as requiring various analysis, if such is needed, as 
procedural steps to obtain a permit.  This step is included in Regulation XIII primarily to 
ensure that this analysis is not inadvertently skipped in the permitting process.  The 
provisions of Rule 1401 are not required to be in the SIP and language has been added to 
Regulation XIII in appropriate places to indicate this.   

Rule 1302 requires submission of items necessary to determine PSD program 
applicability, items necessary to perform the relevant analysis under that program and 
requires placement of necessary conditions on any resultant permit. 38  These 
requirements are, once again, primarily included in Regulation XIII to ensure that the 
analysis is not inadvertently skipped in the permitting process as well as to ensure that the 
notice and comment requirements for the PSD program are properly performed.  
Thresholds for applicability are currently provided in Regulation XVII remain unchanged 
by these proposed amendments (despite the shift in formulation to proposed Rule 1700 

                                                 
37 This provision is proposed to be added to Rule 1302 but it already applied via the provisions of the Federal 
Operating Permit Program pursuant to District Regulation XXX – Title V Permits. 
38 See Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration. 

158 of 527



16 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

which adopts by reference most of the provisions of 40 CFR 52.21).  For general 
reference these thresholds are as follows:39 

• A Major PSD Facility40 belonging to one of the categories listed in FCAA §169 (42 
U.S.C. §7479)41 emitting or having the potential to emit 100 tpy or more42 of a PSD 
Air Pollutant43. 

• A Major PSD Facility not belonging to one of the listed categories emitting or having 
the potential to emit 250 tpy or more44 of a PSD Air Pollutant. 

• A new Facility which is a Major PSD Facility for at least one PSD Air Pollutant and 
has a “significant45” emissions increase for any other PSD Air Pollutant. 

• A modified Facility which is an existing Major PSD Facility when both the potential 
increase in emissions and the resulting net emissions increase for PSD Pollutants are 
“significant.”46 

 
2. Applicability Integration with Regulation II – Permits 

District Regulation XIII is in part based on, as well as integrally tied to, Regulation II.  
The base requirements for permits are found in District Rules 201 and 203 and apply to 
all non-vehicular equipment emitting, potentially emitting, or used to control air 
contaminants.47  Regulation II also includes a variety of basic permit requirements 
regarding applications, issuance, cancellations, denials, and appeals.48  Once a permit is 
issued it is required to be posted or maintained on site and operation under the permit is 
deemed to be acceptance of the permit conditions.49  There are two rules specific to 
requirements of the Federal Operating Permit (Title V) program50 and two rules with 
provisions regarding sampling and stack monitoring.51  Regulation II also contains a list 
of equipment which might otherwise require a permit but has been determined by the 

                                                 
39 The thresholds listed here are primarily for general reference only.  Specific applicability will need to be 
determined upon a case by case basis. 
40 To avoid terminology confusion with existing District Rules, proposed Rule 1700(B)(6) defines Major PSD 
Facility as equivalent to the “Major Stationary Source” definition as found in 40 CFR 52.21(b)(1). 
41 40 CFR 51.166(b)(1)(iii) and 40 CFR 52.21(b)(1)(iii) which includes the “catch all” provisions for stationary 
sources regulated under FCAA §§111 and 112 (42 U.S.C. §§7411 and 7412). 
42 40 CFR 52.21(b)(1)(i)(a).  
43 To avoid terminology confusion with existing District Rules, proposed Rule 1700(B)(9) defines PSD Air Pollutant 
as equivalent to the “Regulated Air Pollutant” definition found in 40 CFR 52.21(b)(50).  In general, this means any 
attainment air pollutant and its precursor. 
44 40 CFR 52.21(b)(1)(i)(b). 
45 The list of “significant” amounts by pollutant may be found in 40 CFR 52.21(b)(23). 
46 40 CFR 52.21(B)(2).  Once again to avoid confusion with other District Rules, proposed Rule 1700(B)(6) defines 
this term as “Major PSD Modification.” 
47 The “non-vehicular” limitation is found in H&S Code §§39002 and 40000 and echoed in both current and 
proposed Rule 219(E)(1) 
48 Rules 201, 202, 203, 205, 206, 207, 208, 209, 210, 212, 214, 215, 216, and 220. 
49 Rules 206 and 204. 
50 Rules 225, and 226. 
51 Rule 217,  218, and Rule 218.1.  

159 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 17 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

District to have emissions too small to impact attainment or maintenance of the NAAQS 
and which are, for a variety of reasons, difficult or impossible to adequately permit.52   

USEPA has expressed concern that equipment deemed exempt from permitting 
requirements under District Rule 219 – Equipment Not Requiring a Permit would 
somehow “escape” either regulation under other District Rules or that the emissions from 
such equipment would not be adequately “counted” in Regulation XIII calculations53.  
While this as a practical matter has not and has never been the case on an operational 
basis within the AVAQMD permitting program a closer integration between Regulation 
II, specifically Rule 219, and the Regulation XIII requirements is wise for complete 
clarity.  For this reason, the proposed amendments to Regulation XIII will be submitted 
in conjunction with the proposed amendments to Rule 219.54   

Rule 219 lists equipment that has emissions too small to be permitted or otherwise 
included in a variety of programs.  It not only includes a list but also emissions threshold 
levels for such exclusion.  Thus a particular piece of equipment would need to have 
emissions less than a threshold AND be on the list of equipment specified in subsection 
(E) of the rule to qualify for exemption from a written permit.55  While such equipment 
may not need a permit per-se it’s emissions, however, are specifically required to be 
included in emissions calculations for Regulation XIII and other purposes.56  This directly 
ties into the applicability provisions of Regulation XIII as found in Rule 1300.  The 
current provisions of Rule 1300(B)(1) were not as clear as the Rule 219(B)(5) provisions 
and could potentially have been interpreted to exclude Rule 219 permit exempt 
equipment.  The proposed amendments to Regulation XIII rectify this issue and clarify 
that all Emissions Units subject to Rules 201 or 203 are also subject to the provisions of 
Regulation XIII.  For specific discussions regarding proposed amendments to Rule 219 
please see the applicable staff report for that rule.57 

3. Permit Unit vs. Emissions Unit and Regulation XIII Applicability 

Regulation XIII applicability, as well as many of the other requirements, has always been 
expressed in terms of Emissions Unit.  The definition of “Emission Unit” in Current Rule 
1301(BB) does not specifically mention air pollution control equipment which is 
regulated under the provisions of District Rules 201 and 203.  A “Permit Unit” on the 
other hand is anything that is not specifically exempt pursuant to Rule 219.58  This causes 
a bit of confusion with the definition of “Permit Unit” in Current Rule 1301(CCC) which 

                                                 
52 Rule 219 
53 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comments 1.1.1.a. and 1.3.2.  
54 Rule 219 is also proposed for amendment at the same time in a separate action on the AVAQMD’s Governing 
Board Agenda. 
55 The burden of proof to show that particular equipment is less than the designated thresholds is, pursuant to 
proposed Rule 219(B)(9), placed on the Facility and that any Facility claiming such exemption is required to keep 
records sufficient to enable the District to determine such compliance under proposed Rule 219(F). 
56 See both current and proposed Rule 219(B)(5). 
57 AVAQMD, Draft Staff Report Amendment of Rule 219 – Equipment Not Requiring a Permit for amendment on 
6/15/2021 (219 Draft Staff Report). 
58 The APCO has authority, pursuant to Rule 219(B)(4), to require a permit for any otherwise listed equipment 
thereby making such specifically identified equipment a “Permit Unit.” 

160 of 527



18 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

specifically references Rule 203 and thus includes air pollution control equipment.  The 
original intent for these two definitions was that “Permit Unit” should have been a wholly 
contained subset of “Emissions Unit.”  While in practical terms the current definitional 
structure does not result in problems it does result in a legal anomaly in that “Permit 
Unit” as a category simultaneously includes both more (includes air pollution control 
equipment) and less (excludes Rule 219 exempt equipment) than the category “Emissions 
Unit.”   

The proposed amendments have adjusted the definition of “Emissions Unit” to 
specifically reference the inclusion of air pollution control equipment as well as to 
reference Rules 201 and 203.  Therefore, “Emissions Unit” as proposed would include all 
equipment subject to the AVAQMD’s jurisdiction that either emits, has the potential to 
emit, or controls emissions.  In addition, the entire Regulation XIII was examined and 
each use of the terms “Emissions Unit” and “Permit Unit” were examined to determine if 
the proper term was used in each instance.  Specific explanations for use of a particular 
term, either “Emissions Unit” or “Permit Unit”, when such was unclear in the current 
Regulation may be found in Section VI. I. below. 

4. Applicability Requirements for Federal Major Facilities and Federal Major 
Modifications – Rescission of Rule 1310 

Current Rule 1310– Federal Major Facilities and Federal Major Modifications was 
adopted as part of the 8/15/2006 amendments to Regulation XIII.  During the 2006 
Regulation XIII amendment process the AVAQMD was “strongly encouraged” to change 
its NSR rules to comply with USEPA’s revised NSR Reform provisions which had been 
promulgated at 67 FR 80187, 12/31/2002.  Several of the provisions had been vacated by 
the court in State of New York, et. al. v USEPA et al. (413 F3d 3, D.C. Cir 2005) but the 
“Plantwide Applicability Limitations” (PAL) provisions, baseline actual emissions 
timeframe and post project emissions calculation methodology were retained.  Since the 
AVAQMD was designated Federal nonattainment for Ozone it was required by USEPA 
to submit a revised NSR program in compliance with those remining portions of the NSR 
Reform provisions.   

At the same time the AVAQMD was also required to ensure that any amendments to its 
NSR program complied with H&S Code §§42500 et. seq.59  This legislation was a direct 
response to certain provisions of USEPA’s 2002 so called “NSR Reform” referenced 
above.  The primary purpose of the legislation was to prohibit California air districts from 
revising certain portions of their existing New Source Review rules to less stringent 
measures than those in place on December 30, 2002.  H&S Code §42504(a) is generally a 
prohibition against “weakening” any pre-NSR Reform provisions.  In addition, H&S 
Code §42504(b) specifically prohibits revisions which would exempt, relax or reduce any 
of the following requirements:  Applicability determination for NSR; definitions of 
modification, major modification, routine maintenance, repair or replacement; 
Calculation methodologies; Thresholds; Requirements to obtain NSR or other permits 
prior to commencing construction; BACT requirements; Air quality impact analysis 

                                                 
59 Commonly referred to as SB288 (SB288 of 2003, ch 467) and codified as H&S Code §§42500 et seq. 

161 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 19 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

requirements; Recordkeeping and reporting requirements that makes the recordkeeping 
less representative or publicly accessible; Requirements for regulation of pollutants 
covered by NSR; and Requirements for public participation. 

The AVAQMD 2006 amendments met these two conflicting requirements by adding an 
additional analysis in current Rule 1302 that was only applicable to Major Facilities and 
Major Modifications.  All new or modified facilities would first undergo a State NSR 
analysis be subject to BACT and Offset requirements, if any, were applicable.60  Then, if 
a new or Modified Facility was considered to be a “Federal Major Facility,” using a 
slightly different calculation method than State level analysis, such a Facility would be 
exempt from providing an alternative site analysis61 and could apply for a Plant-wide 
Applicability Limit (PAL) pursuant to the provisions of Current Rule 1310, if the 
applicant chose to do so62.  Since the modifications retained the necessity of all new or 
modified Facilities to first comply with the State level requirements the AVAQMD, with 
concurrence by CARB, determined that the amendments did not violate the provisions of 
H&S Code §§42500 et seq.63 

Subsequently to the AVAQMD’s rule amendments USEPA Region IX opined that the 
provisions of FCAA §116 (42 U.S.C. §7416), which allowed States and their political 
subdivisions to be more stringent than FCAA requirements, was applicable to the NSR 
Reform Provisions.  Since California in general required BACT and Offsets at a 
significantly lower level64 than that required under the FCAA, USEPA determined that 
implementation of the NSR Reforms would, in most cases, not result in any additional 
regulatory flexibility for those projects determined to be “Federal Major Modifications.”  
In short, the same level of control would be required whether or not the NSR Reform 
provisions were implemented and the resulting program would still be more stringent 
than the Federal requirements under the FCAA.   

Since the provisions of Rule 1310 were not in place as of 12/30/2002 along with the fact 
that the AVAQMD’s 2006 amendments to Regulation XIII still retained the existing 
stringency in accordance with H&S Code §§42500 et. seq the removal of Rule 1310 will 
also comply with those provisions.  Specifically, the proposed rescission of Rule 1310 
will not weaken or otherwise change any requirements that existed in the AVAQMD’s 
New Source Review program as it existed on 12/30/2002.  In fact, the only effect of this 

                                                 
60 Proposed Rule 1302(C)(1-3) for analysis.  The applicable BACT and Offset thresholds are found in Rule 1303(A) 
and (B). 
61 In actual practice the alternative site analysis exemption was not utilized extensively as most Facilities which 
could utilize Rule 1310 also were subject to provisions of CEQA (Public Resources Code §§21000 et seq) and 
ended up doing an analysis substantially more comprehensive than the alternative site analysis otherwise required 
under FCAA.   
62 Rule 1302(C)(4).  Since its adoption in 2006 no Facility has chosen to use the Plant-wide Applicability Limit 
provisions of Rule 1310. 
63 AVAQMD, Staff Report Proposed Amendments to Regulation XIII (Specifically Rules 1302 – Procedure and 
1305 – Emissions Offsets) and Adoption of New Rule 1310 – Federal Major Facilities and Federal Major 
Modifications for adoption on 8/15/2006, pgs. 14-15. 
64 H&S Code §40918(a)(1). 

162 of 527



20 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

proposed rescission will be to remove the unused PAL provisions from Regulation XIII.65  
The proposed amendments additionally remove all references and provisions solely 
applicable to Rule 1310 from proposed Rule 1302. 

5. Minor Facility Notice Requirements 

In a technical review of other district’s NSR rules, specifically the MDAQMD’s 2016 
version of Regulation XIII, USEPA indicated most programs were not approvable as they 
did not provide a full 30-day notice and comment period for a certain subset of Minor 
Facilities and modifications subject to New Source Review.66  The AVAQMD 
Regulation XIII also suffers from this defect in that there are no specific Minor Facility 
notice and comment provisions in the current version. 

USEPA indicated that while 40 CFR 51.160-164, including the full notice requirements, 
apply to any action subject to preconstruction review that 40 CFR 51.160(e) allowed 
exclusion of certain sources or activities so long as a proper demonstration that the 
excluded sources were inconsequential to the attainment and/or maintenance of the 
NAAQS.67  USEPA has also asserted that the notice levels for Minor Facilities must be 
adequately justified citing prior NSR approvals for Tribal areas68 and Technical Support 
Documents (TSDs) for USEPA actions on Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality 
Management District’s NSR Rules.69  USEPA has asserted that while there was no 
specific percentage of emissions that would be allowable to be excluded from NSR notice 
requirements it would use the “rational approach” as outlined in Alabama Power Co. v 
Costle, 636 F.2d 323 (D.C. Cir, 1979) and the concept of “tailoring” the public 
participation as found in the Federal Operating Permit (Title V) regulation adoption 
documents70 to determine the sufficiency of any justification.71  

The proposed amendments add thresholds for Minor Facility NSR notice expressed in 
absolute numerical terms as opposed to percentages and types of activities.  The proposed 
rules require Minor Facility NSR notice for emissions changes equal to or greater than 
any of the following: 

• 20 tpy of NOx or VOC.  

                                                 
65 The AVAQMD has historically addressed the flexibility that USEPA was attempting to provide with the PAL 
provisions via Federally enforceable permit provisions across multiple permits.  In addition, the AVAQMD, on a 
case-by-case basis, uses “process line” permitting where multiple Emissions Units (usually one main Permit Unit 
with a variety of sub-emissions points) are regulated with a singular emissions limitation for the entire process 
regardless on the number of permits issued to the process. 
66 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comments 1.1.2.a  and 1.1.2.b.  
67 USEPA, Email, K. Nguyen to K. Nowak – MDAQMD NSR Logistics Call, 2/28/2020 (Hereafter USEPA Email of 
2/28/2020) attachment titled 02-28-20 Initial EPA Response to MDAQMD Letter Dated January 28, Clarification 
#2. 
68 76 FR 38748, 7/1/2011. 
69 TSD for SMAQMD Rule 214, 5/06/2011, Docket #EPA-R09-OAR-2013-0064-002 and TSD for SMAQMD Rule 
214/217, 1/23/2013, Docket #EPA-R09-OAR-2013-0064-002. 
70 60 FR 45530, 8/21/1995. 
71 USEPA Region IX, however, has insisted in oral commentary that only less than 5% of the total inventory 
“escaping” a full 30-day notice is unacceptable without specific mitigating circumstances. 

163 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 21 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

• 12 tpy of PM10. 
• 8 tpy of any single Hazardous Air Pollutant. 
• 20 tpy of a combination of Hazardous Air Pollutants. 
• 80% of any lower amount of a Hazardous Air Pollutant as established by USEPA 

rulemaking. 
• The significance level for Regulated Air Pollutants as listed in 40 CFR 52.21(b)(23).  

 
The justification for the Minor Facility NSR Notice Thresholds are contained in Section 
VI. D. below. 

It must be noted that that the AVAQMD has an additional notice requirement contained 
in District Rule 212 which is applicable to all projects subject to Regulation XIII which 
have an emissions increase exceeding any of the following: 40 lbs/day of NOx; 30 
lbs/day of VOC or PM10; 60 lbs/day of SO2; 220 lbs/day of CO; and 3 lbs/day of Pb.72  
This notice is required to contain the information set forth in 40 CFR 51.161(b)  and 40 
CFR 124.10; be published in the “area affected” by the proposed project and provided to 
most, if not all, of the same entities as required for Major NSR Notice and Toxic NSR 
Notice.73  It also requires a 30 day period for submission of public comments.74  Rule 212 
was approved into the SIP at 73 FR 51226, 9/2/2008. 

6. BACT Requirement Applicability 

The proposed amendments clarify but do not substantively change the applicability 
thresholds for BACT and Offsets.  The term “Permit Unit” is retained in proposed 
1303(A) as subsections (1) and (2) are based upon the state requirements for BACT 
found in H&S Code §40918(a)(1).  The “Permit Unit” terminology is also retained in 
Proposed 1303(A)(3) in part because to create a fully enforceable BACT requirement an 
Emissions Unit would end up requiring a permit.  This provision ties into the ability of 
the APCO under Rule 219(B)(4) to require a permit to ensure compliance with District 
Rules and Regulations.  Proposed Rule 1303(A)(3) is also clarified to indicate that each 
new or Modified permit unit at a new or modified Major Facility will need BACT.  
Please also note that as a practical matter any new or Modified Permit Unit is extremely 
likely to be required to have BACT pursuant to Rule 1303(A)(1) or (2) regardless of the 
status of the underlying Facility be it Major or Minor.   

As currently implemented the Rule1303(A)(3) 25 tpy across the board BACT trigger for 
Facility level analysis creates a slight anomaly with the Major Facility threshold in 
regards to PM10.  As noted in Rule 1303(B)(1) the PM10 Major Facility threshold is 15 
tpy.  This differential could potentially result in the situation where a Facility could 
require PM10 offsets but not BACT.75  The proposed amendments revise the threshold in 
1303(A)(3) to correspond with the Major Facility threshold for ease of use.   

                                                 
72 Rule 212(G) 
73 Proposed Rule 1302(D)(3)(a)(i)c. 
74 Rule 212(G)(4) 
75 Once again due to the 25 lb/day BACT requirement threshold of 1303(A)(1) ) and (A)(2) ) this situation has never 
occurred since the 15 tpy PM10 threshold was added in 2001 as 1303(B)(1) . 

164 of 527



22 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

The proposed amendments reformat the table in 1303(B)(1) to only show Nonattainment 
pollutants in accordance with the textual provisions of subsection (B)(1) removing 
Carbon Monoxide and Lead from the table.76  In addition, the term Reactive Organic 
Compounds (ROCs) has been changed to Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) in 
accordance with a definitional shift in Rule 1301.  The original dichotomy between ROC 
and VOC in Regulation XIII arose when the Federal definition of VOC77 was slightly 
different from the State definition of ROC78 with the State definition being more 
restrictive.  Since this difference has been resolved the District has adjusted the 
terminology.  Please also note that the 15 tpy threshold for PM10 Major Facility status 
remains unchanged.  This threshold was added in the 2001 amendments to Regulation 
XIII.79  This threshold was derived from the definitions of the term Significant80 and was 
part of the shift from an aggregate threshold used across multiple nonattainment 
classifications in SCAQMD to straight compliance with the applicable FCAA thresholds 
for the specific nonattainment classification of the AVAQMD. 

B. EMISSIONS 

The proposed amendments to Regulation XIII are not expected to change emissions 
reductions from those achieved under the current regulation as the thresholds triggering 
control or other emissions related requirements, save one,81 are not changed.  The major 
proposed change is the addition of a threshold for public notification for certain minor 
facilities which is primarily procedural in nature and should not affect emissions.  In 
addition, most of the other proposed amendments are clarifications of rule language to 
conform with existing requirements in other District Rules and current District practices.  
For explanations of specific changes please see the [bracketed italicized] notes in Exhibit 
A and Section VI. I. below. 

C. CONTROL REQUIREMENTS 

Once again, the proposed amendments to Regulation XIII are primarily procedural in 
nature.  There is expected to be no significant change from current practice involving 
which New or Modified Facilities require what level of control equipment.  Proposed 
changes to specific requirements have been designed to clarify and conform language 

                                                 
76 SOx remains on the table as it is a precursor to the particulate fraction of PM10 for which the District is State 
nonattainment. 
77 40 CFR 51.100(s). 
78 17 CCR §94501(m) and §94508(a)(138).  See also:  CARB Webpage, Definitions of VOC and ROG (Revised 
January 2009) at https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/ei/speciate/voc_rog_dfn_1_09.pdf for an explanation of the differences in 
terminology. 
79 AVAQMD, Agenda Item 11, 3/20/2001; AVAQMD, Resolution 01-03 – Reg XIII, 3/20/2001; and AVAQMD, 
Final Staff Report Amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 3/20/2001.  
80 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(x)(A) and 51.166(b)(23)(i).  See also current Rule 1301(GGG). 
81 The only threshold change proposed in this action is to align the PM10 BACT threshold with the Major Facility 
threshold of 15 tpy which is technically more restrictive and would potentially result in less emissions due to the 
application of additional BACT.  Once again note that on a practical level this will not result in many additional 
emissions reductions as most new or Modified equipment would be required to apply BACT pursuant to proposed 
Rule 1303(A)(1) and (2). 

165 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 23 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

with District practices and provisions of other District Rules.  For explanations of specific 
changes please see the [bracketed italicized] notes in Exhibit A and Section VI. I. below. 

D. MINOR FACILITY NOTICE THRESHOLD ANALYSIS 

Rule 1302 was substantially reorganized in 2001 to provide a standardized procedure for 
nonattainment NSR actions as well to allow PSD and Toxic Air Contaminant analysis to 
be performed in conjunction with and included in the issuance of the resultant permit if 
such concurrent issuance was desired.  The 2006 amendments to Rule 1302 clarified a 
few issues and added an analysis for Rule 1310.  Both sets of changes were also intended 
to allow the District to eventually apply for “Enhanced NSR” status for the purposes of 
Federal Operating Permits to allow certain permitting activities at Major Facilities to 
proceed and issue concurrently if the Facility wished to do so.   

In subsequent guidance USEPA has indicated that FCAA §110(a)(2)(C) (42 USC 
§7410(a)(2)(C)) mandated the provisions of 40 CFR 51.160-164 be applied not only to 
Major Facilities but also to any stationary source necessary to assure attainment and 
maintenance of the NAAQS.82  This “Minor New Source Review” notice requirement, as 
discussed in subsection VI. A. 5. above, could exclude a small percentage of emissions 
from notice so long as an adequate justification could be made83 and certain other 
provisions were specifically included.84 

The AVAQMD is proposing to add notice provisions specifically to cover the so called 
“Minor New Source Review” activities.  Labels for each type of notice will be provided 
for clarity.  The proposed notice types and thresholds for particular actions are 
summarized as follows: 

Table 2 
Notice Thresholds and Requirements 

 
Permitting Action/Threshold Type of Notice Notice Procedure Contents/Requirements 
Action will require offsets per 1303(B). Major NSR 

Notice 
°Produce a Notice containing 
required information. 
°Publish Notice on District 
Website for duration of 
comment period. 
°Send notice (and other 
items) to CARB, USEPA & 
Affected States. 

°Facility and action 
information. 
°Location and availability of 
Documents. 
°30-day comment period & 
procedures for comments. 
°Hearing Board review 
availability and procedures 

Facility stack height is greater than 
Good Engineering Practice. 

Major NSR 
Notice 

Facility is a Major PSD Facility or has a 
Major PSD Modification.85 

Major NSR 
Notice 

Facility has a Federal Operating Permit 
and action also involves the issuance, 

Major NSR 
Notice 

                                                 
82 USEPA Memo, J. McCabe, Principal Deputy Assistant Administrator, Office of Air and Radiation, Minor New 
Source Review Program Public Notice Requirements under 40 CFR 51.161(b)(3), 4/17/2012 
83 MDAQMD attempted such a justification in its 2016 amendments and USEPA in USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, 
Comment 1.1.2.b. indicated that the justification was inadequate as the percentage of non-noticed emissions in 
relation to the total inventory was too high.  Please note that percentages USEPA cited as “approvable” all were 5% 
or less (See Footnotes 92 and 93 below). 
84 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.2.a. 
85 The AVAQMD currently has only 2 Facilities with potential to emit in amounts which might require a PSD 
permit. 

166 of 527



24 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Permitting Action/Threshold Type of Notice Notice Procedure Contents/Requirements 
renewal or Significant Modification to 
the Federal Operating Permit.86 

°Send notice to applicant, 
city &/or county where 
located, Federal Land 
Manager potentially 
affected, Indian Tribe 
potentially affected and any 
on list requesting notice. 

°Ability to request public 
hearing and procedures 
(Stack height, PSD and FOP 
related only). 
°Increment consumption 
(PSD only). 
°Information on rejected 
comments related to Federal 
Class I area (if applicable). 

Provisions from Toxic NSR analysis 
require notice per Rule 1320. 

Toxic NSR 
Notice 

°Add provisions required 
from Rule 1320 to whichever 
notice type is otherwise 
applicable to the action if 
Facility requests it. 
°Send notice to anyone extra 
not already on the list for 
underlying notice type 

See additional requirements 
in Rule 1320. 

Action will result in an emissions 
change ≥20 tpy NOx or VOC, ≥12 tpy 
PM10, or 80% of any other 
Nonattainment Air Pollutant (none at 
present). 

Minor NSR 
Notice 

°Produce a Notice containing 
required information. 
°Publish Notice on District 
Website for duration of 
comment period. 
°Send notice (and other 
items) to CARB, USEPA & 
Affected States. 
Send notice to anyone on list 
requesting notice. 

°Facility and action 
information. 
°Location and availability of 
Documents 
°30-day comment period & 
procedures for comments. 
°Hearing Board review 
availability and procedures. 
 

Action will result in an emissions 
change ≥8 tpy any single Hazardous Air 
Pollutant, ≥ 20 tpy any combination of 
Hazardous Air Pollutants, or 80% of a 
lesser quantity of Hazardous Air 
Pollutants set forth in EPA rule. 

Minor NSR 
Notice 

Action will result in an emissions 
change ≥ the significance level listed in 
40 CFR 52.21(b)(23)87. 

Minor NSR 
Notice 

Action doesn’t meet any of the above 
thresholds. 

Permit 
Issuance 
Notice 

°Post action and permit on 
website. 

°Information on Facility, 
Permit, and action taken. 
°Hearing Board review 
availability and procedures. 

 
The proposed amendments also shift the publication requirement for both Major NSR 
Notice and Minor NSR Notice away from publication in a Newspaper of general 
circulation and to website notification as provided for in recent USEPA and CARB 

                                                 
86 A “Significant Modification” for Federal Operating Permit Purposes is most often triggered by the necessity of a 
case-by-case emissions determination pursuant to Rule 3001(T)(3)  and (BB).  BACT is a case-by-case emissions 
determination and is required for all new/Modified Permit Units at a Major Facility under Rule 1303(A)(3).  
Currently all Major Facilities within the AVAQMD are also Title V Facilities under Regulation XXX – Title V 
Permits. 
87 On a practical basis this will only apply to attainment pollutants as the “significance level” as listed for 
nonattainment pollutants is greater than the Major Facility threshold found in Rule 1303(B)(1). 

167 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 25 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Guidance.88  In addition, the proposed amendments require a 30-day comment period not 
only for Major NSR Notice as current practice but also for Minor NSR Notice.89  Other 
provisions are optimized to reflect the order of operations elsewhere in proposed Rule 
1302. 

The AVAQMD justification for Minor NSR Notice are based on the 2017 Emissions 
Inventory data set.  This inventory was chosen because it was more granular in nature 
than earlier inventories and thus is easier to segregate out non-stationary emissions.90  In 
addition it does not suffer from incorrect identification of PM fugitive emissions as 
stationary sources.91  Table 3 below provides the results of this analysis for 
nonattainment pollutants in the AVAQMD. 

Table 3 
Minor NSR Notice Threshold Analysis 

(Numerical Values in Tons per Year) 
 

 NOx SOx
92 VOC PM10 

Minor NSR Notice Threshold 20 N/A 20 12 
Nonattainment Major Facility Threshold93 25 N/A 25 1594 

2017 Emissions Inventory Data 
Total Emissions from Inventory 3960 55 10235 6305 
Area 344 9 1369 5413 
Non-Anthropogenic 2 1 4582 6 
Off-Road 829 15 715 102 
On-Road 2278 17 882 241 
Stationary 507 13 2687 544 

Stationary Emissions Breakdown 
Stationary Permitted 498 11 2178 258 
Stationary Unpermitted 9 2 509 286 
Stationary Permitted Noticed 427 9 1043 37 
Stationary Permitted Not-Noticed 71 2 1135 221 

Percentages of Total Emissions Inventory 
%Stationary/Total 13% 24% 26% 9% 
%Stationary Permitted/Total 13% 20% 21% 4% 

                                                 
88 USEPA Memo, J. McCabe, Principal Deputy Assistant Administrator, Office of Air and Radiation, Minor New 
Source Review Program Public Notice Requirements under 40 CFR 51.161(b)(3), 4/17/2012 and CARB Advisory 
#299, Air District New Source Review Rules Regarding Electronic Notice, 06/2018. 
89 USEPA has issued draft guidance regarding what actions may be taken by a Facility at its own risk during this 30-
day comment period.  USEPA Memo (Draft for Public Review and Comment), A. Idsal, Principal Deputy Assistant 
Administrator, Interpretation of “Begin Actual Construction” under the New Source Review Preconstruction 
Permitting Regulations, 3/25/2020. Current indications are that this guidance will not be finalized. 
90  AVAQMD, 2017 AV Actual Emissions Noticing Breakdown Adjusted.xlsx 
91 Fugitive emissions should only be considered as “stationary” if they are located at a Facility on the list of specific 
source categories contained in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C) 
92 SOx data is included for informational use as it is a precursor to the sulfate fraction of PM10 
93 As set forth in current and proposed Rule 1303(B). 
94 The FCAA Major Source Threshold for PM10 in the MDAQMD is 100 tpy.  However, the SIP approved 
threshold for offsets and Major Facility status is 4 tpy (AVAQMD Rule 1304(d), 6/14/1996) based on an SCAQMD. 

168 of 527



26 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

%Stationary Unpermitted/Total 0.2% 3% 5% 5% 
%Stationary Permitted Noticed/Total 11% 16% 10% 1% 
%Stationary Permitted Not-Noticed/Total 2% 4% 11% 4% 

Percentages of Stationary Inventory 
%Stationary Permitted/Stationary 98% 87% 81% 47% 
%Stationary Unpermitted/Stationary 2% 13% 19% 53% 
%Stationary Permitted Noticed/Stationary 84% 68% 39% 7% 
%Stationary Permitted Not-Noticed/Stationary 14% 18% 42% 41% 

 
As indicated above the amount of emissions from Stationary Permitted Emissions Units 
which would not receive notice is 4% of the total emissions with the exception of VOC.  
A closer examination of the base inventory data indicates that the source of the high 
percentage of unnoticed VOC emissions is the direct result of the AVAQMD’s overall 
emissions profile.  In short, the AVAQMD has a large number of very small facilities 
such as gasoline dispensing stations and only 2 Facilities which are subject to the Title V 
program due to emissions.95  Thus, the fact that the largest amount of permitted yet not-
noticed emissions in the inventory happens to be fugitive emissions from gasoline 
transfer and dispensing skews the percentage and does not reflect the actual amount of 
notice given for such Facilities.  While a gasoline dispensing Facility might not require 
notice under the proposed levels set forth in proposed 1302(C)(7)(d) the Facility, 
dependent upon proximity to residential or other receptors, could very well need be 
noticed under Rule 1401 as an emitter of Benzene, a HAP.  If the purpose of the Minor 
NSR Notice requirements is to ensure public input on potentially impactful Facilities then 
the Toxic NSR provisions will, working in concert with the NSR provisions, ensure that 
notice is provided in such circumstances.  It is interesting to note that if the fugitive 
emissions from gasoline dispensing facilities are excluded from the calculations above 
the non-noticed VOC emissions drops to only 3% of the emissions inventory.  It is also 
interesting to note that due to the small size of the inventory and the lack of mid-range 
emitting Facilities reducing the Minor NSR notice trigger level for VOC would not 
significantly change the percentage of non-noticed VOC emissions. 

In the Tribal NSR approval USEPA indicated that 1% of total emissions inventory being 
“exempt from NSR review96” on a pollutant by pollutant basis was adequate.97  Similarly, 
USEPA’s approval of Sacramento Metropolitan AQMD’s Minor NSR Notice Threshold 
indicated that less than 5% of the total emissions inventory being not subject to public 
notice (excluding SO2 which was justified differently) was also acceptable.98  Given the 
percentages, the AVAQMD does not expect that the number of not-noticed Permit Units 
to affect the AVAQMD’s ability to attain and/or maintain the NAAQS.  Please also note 
that so called “non-noticed” Permit Units are still publicly posted upon issuance, the 

                                                 
95 There are actually 4 Title V Facilities in the AVAQMD but 2 of them are landfills which are required to have 
Title V permits pursuant to regulation regardless of the amount of emissions.  
96 Please Note: “Exempt from NSR Review” as referenced by USEPA is NOT necessarily the same as receiving 
minimal notice in the current MDAQMD regulations.  Due to the MDAQMD’s inclusion of at least a minimal 
analysis under Regulation XIII of all Emissions Units at a particular Facility and the extremely low California 
BACT threshold of 25 lbs/day most, if not all Emissions Units can be said to “undergo NSR review.” 
97 40 CFR 49.153(c); 76 FR 38748, 38758, 7/1/2011. 
98 TSD for SMAQMD Rule 214/217, 1/23/2013, pg. 6-7; Docket #EPA-R09-OAR-2013-0064-002 

169 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 27 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

background documentation is available, and the issuance/renewal of such permits may be 
appealed pursuant to the provisions of H&S Code §42302.1.   

In addition to the above justification, the unique situation of the AVAQMD in regards to 
its nonattainment pollutants must also be considered.  The AVAQMD is overwhelmingly 
impacted by transported air pollution primarily from the South Coast Air Basin and the 
San Joaquin Air Basin.99  This results a significant impact on the nonattainment status 
and design values within the AVAQMD.  It must be noted that the design values have 
shown a distinct downward trend over the years.  Unfortunately, as is indicated by 
previous attainment planning and modeling for the region, the AVAQMD can never 
completely attain or maintain the NAAQS throughout its entire jurisdiction regardless of 
the stringency of New Source Review unless and until the upwind neighboring air basins 
also achieve attainment.   

Furthermore, the AVAQMD has an additional noticing requirement contained in Rule 
212 that is applicable to many more projects due to its significantly lower applicability 
threshold.100  Rule 212 is fully SIP approved101 and not only requires compliance with 
notice content requirements of 40 CFR 51.161(b) and 40 CFR 124.10 but also requires 30 
day public comment.  While it could be argued that the persons and area required to 
receive notice under Rule 212 is more limited102 than that specified in proposed 1302 
between the two sets of requirements it is clear that most any project of more than a 
limited size will receive adequate public notice. 

E. BACT AND OFFSETS; REQUIREMENTS AND CALCULATIONS  

USEPA has expressed a variety of concerns to other air districts regarding the specific 
requirements for the calculation of emissions which determines the imposition of BACT 
and Offsets on a particular new or Modified Facility as well as concerns regarding the 
calculation and use of Offsets within Regulation XIII as such are set out in Rules 1304 
and 1305.103  In its comments to the MDAQMD the specifically enumerated concerns 
included: 

• Language regarding “permit units” and cross references to Regulation II 
equipment exempt from permit will somehow allow emissions from such units to 
“escape” the calculation process in Rule 1304 and thus result in BACT and/or 
Offsets not being required.104 

• Terms used in assessing the validity of offsets for use, such as “Surplus,” 
“Permanent,” and “Quantifiable,” are not defined and thus do not provide 

                                                 
99 17 Cal Code Regs. §70500(c). 
100 Rule 212(G) thresholds require notice when a project emissions increase exceeds any of the following: 40 lbs/day 
of NOx; 30 lbs/day of VOC or PM10; 60 lbs/day of SO2; 220 lbs/day of CO; and 3 lbs/day of Pb 
101 73 FR 51226, 9/2/2008 
102 The list of agencies in Rule 212(G)(3) is slightly different from that in proposed 1302(D)(3)(a)(i)c. and the 
publication is limited to the “area affected” under Rule 212(G)(2). 
103 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019. 
104 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.1.a. and Comment 1.3.2. 

170 of 527



28 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

adequate support for Air Pollution Control Officer determination of offset 
adequacy.105 

• “Offsets” obtained from shutdown or modification of unpermitted emissions units 
were not properly enforceable as they could potentially result in “demand 
shifting” where removed unpermitted emissions units would be simply be 
replaced with other unpermitted emissions units.106 

• Nontraditional offset provisions do not specify that a SIP approved calculation 
method is required to ensure that such offsets are real, surplus, permanent, 
quantifiable and enforceable.107  

• The calculation methodology in Rules 1304 and 1305 applies a “potential to 
potential” calculation to determine the applicability of BACT and Offsets along 
with the determination of the amount of offsets needed allegedly in violation of 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(2)(ii)(c).108 

• The offset inclusion of “previously banked offsets” in the calculation 
methodology results in a similar “potential to potential” test allegedly in violation 
of 40 CFR 51.165(a)(2)(ii)(c).109 

• The applicable rules do not address the necessity for BACT and Offsets in the 
situation when a Facility relaxes a previously applied enforceable emissions 
limitation and because of such relaxation becomes a Major Facility or when the 
relaxation itself happens to be a major modification.110 

• The interpollutant “trading” provisions allegedly do not comply with 40 CFR 
51.165(a)(11).111 
 

It must be noted, however, that most if not all of these enumerated alleged deficiencies 
are present in the current SIP adopted rule provisions112 while others are included in 
subsequent amendments. Specifically, the provisions impacted by USEPA’s concerns are 
as follows: 

• The concern about Rule 219 emissions of exempt equipment “escaping” appears 
to be the result of a confusion regarding the interrelationships between the 
applicability provision in current Rule 1300(B)(1)(a) referencing the entirety of 

                                                 
105 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.a.1. and 1.2.2.a.4. 
106 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.a.2. 
107 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.a.3. 
108 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.b. 
109 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.c. 
110 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.d. 
111 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.e. 
112 SCAQMD Regulation XIII was approved into the SIP at 61 FR 64291, 12/4/1996 and included Rule actions of 
the SCAQMD Board on 12/7/1995 (Rules 1301, 1302, 1309, 1309.1, 1310 and 1313), 5/10/1996 (Rule 1303) and 
6/14/1996 (Rules 1304 and 1306).  The AVAPCD (the direct predecessor to the AVAQMD) acquired the SCAQMD 
rule book as applicable within its jurisdiction as of 6/30/1997 pursuant to statute (Former H&S Code §40106(e); 
Stats. 1996 Ch. 542, section 1) and the AVAQMD subsequently acquired the AVAPCD rule book as of 12/31/2001 
pursuant to statute (H&S Code §41320(c)).  USEPA has indicated that SIP changes where formal action by USEPA 
has not occurred at the time a jurisdictional change is effective are no longer active SIP submittals and any 
subsequent approval is not effective within the changed jurisdiction (USEPA Letter, D. Jordan Director Air Division 
USEPA Region IX to R. Corey, Executive Officer, CARB, 4/1/2015).  Thus, since the SIP approval for Regulation 
XIII occurred before 7/1/1977 these rules are in the SIP for the AVAQMD. 

171 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 29 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Regulation II,113 the provisions of Rule 1304(B)(1)(a)  requiring all “Emissions 
Units” to be included in applicability calculations,114 and the provisions of Rule 
219(B)(5) specifically stating that emissions from 219 permit exempt equipment 
are required to be included in NSR calculations. 

• The AVAQMD has long considered the current dictionary definitions of the 
terms Real, Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable and Enforceable as generally 
adequate for use in rulemaking like they are in underlying State and Federal 
legislation.  However, the terms “Real” and “Surplus” were not specifically 
defined in the SIP version115 even though they all occur in the current version of 
Rule 1301.116 

• Use of offsets derived from unpermitted emissions units as modified or shutdown 
appear to have been allowed pursuant to interactions between the SIP versions of 
Rules 1304, 1306 and 1309.  By 2006 such use was allowed under Rule 
1305(B)(2)(a)(ii)c. but were specifically required to be enforceable via permit or 
contract. 

• Mobile source emissions reductions are the only nontraditional offsets mentioned 
in the SIP approved version of Rule 1309 and were required to comply with the 
provisions in SCAQMD Regulation XVI – Mobile Source Offset Programs.  
Once again pursuant to current Rule 1305(C)(3) such offsets were specifically 
required to be Real, Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable and Enforceable and 
required to be approved on a case-by case basis prior to the issuance of the NSR 
document by both CARB and EPA.  The specific form of such approval was left 
unspecified. 117 

• SIP approved 1304(c)(2) in conjunction with 1304(e) and 1306(d)(2) appear to 
have allowed the use of previously offset emissions in certain calculations.  The 
current versions of Rule 1304(B)(1) and (D)(3) provided a potential emissions (as 
modified) to fully previously offset potential emissions calculation methodology.   

• The SIP approved provisions of 1306 appear to have included “previously 
banked offsets118 in certain calculations.  Regardless of this the current provisions 
of 1304(D)(4)(a)(iii) and 1305(E)(3)(a)(iv) included “previously banked offsets” 
in the calculations of a Facilities total emissions. 

• Relaxation of previously applied emissions limitations is covered by current Rule 
1303(B)(3) and 1305(A)(2)(b)(ii)c. and specifically required offsets for such 
eventuality.  In addition, current Rule 1303(A)(3) requires BACT at any new or 
modified Major Facility regardless of how such modification occurred. 

                                                 
113 The comparable SIP provision in SCAQMD Rule 1301(b) of 12/7/1995 uses the term “Source” as opposed to 
“Emissions Unit” for applicability.  SCAQMD Rule 1302(gg) of 12/7/1995 defines “Source” primarily in terms of 
“Permit Unit” and thus is somewhat unclear regarding units which might not require a permit pursuant to then 
applicable SCAQMD Rule 219 of 8/12/1994. 
114 The SIP version of this provision, SCAQMD Rule 1306 of 6/14/1996 also uses the term “Source” and thus has 
the same problem detailed in footnote 105 above. 
115 “Permanent”, “Quantifiable Emissions” and “Federally Enforceable” are defined in SCAQMD Rule 1302(w), 
(cc) and (n) respectively 
116 Current Rule 1301(GG), (AAA) , (III) , (LLL) , and (WWW) . 
117 Potential approval mechanisms at the time included, but were not limited to, SIP approved calculation rule, case-
by-case SIP approval in addition to approval of the NSR permit action itself. 
118 Referred to as an “NSR Balance.” 

172 of 527



30 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

• Interpollutant trading provisions were provided in SIP approved Rule 1309(g).  
This provision eventually became current Rule 1305(B)(6) and required approval 
of both CARB and USEPA. 
 

The AVAQMD understands that interpretations of FCAA act requirements, along with 
their underlying regulatory implementation, have been revised since 1996.  It is clear that 
such revisions will, by necessity, require some adjustments in the District’s NSR rules.119  
Nevertheless, the FCAA §116 (42 U.S.C. §7416) specifically allows the adoption and 
implementation of more stringent controls on air pollution than that required under the 
FCAA.  Therefore, any SIP requirement120 where the ultimate result is more stringent 
than that achieved under the applicable FCAA provision should be approvable as a SIP 
revision.   

At its most basic, the FCAA requires the adoption of SIP revisions, if necessary, after the 
promulgation or revision of a NAAQS for a pollutant which the area is designated 
nonattainment.121  The general SIP requirements are set forth in Title I, Part D, Subpart 1 
of the FCAA122 with specific requirements for Ozone nonattainment areas contained in 
Subpart 2,123 and specific requirements for Particulate Matter nonattainment areas in 
Subpart 4.124  Since the AVAQMD has been designated nonattainment for Ozone125 only 
the general provisions and subpart 2 requirements apply.  In terms of BACT and Offset 
requirements this means that the AVAQMD is required to have a nonattainment new 
source review permitting program that applies to new or modified facilities emitting or 
having the potential to emit 25 tpy of VOC or NOx.126  This NANSR permitting program 
is required to impose BACT127 on such facilities as well as ensure that such facilities 
provide offsetting emissions reductions or offsets.128  Due to the District’s O3 
nonattainment status the offsetting ratio for O3 precursors is set at 1.3 to 1.129  As 
discussed below the proposed amendments to Regulation XIII, as did their predecessor 
regulations, provide equivalent or greater stringency in terms of BACT and Offsets than 
what is required under the FCAA. 

                                                 
119 The AVAQMD revised Regulation XIII on 3/20/2001 and 8/15/2006 in part pursuant to USEPA’s request to 
address changes in interpretations.  USEPA fully participated in those rulemaking actions.  
120 With the exception of those specifically called out in 42 U.S.C. §7416 dealing with certain mobile sources of air 
pollution, NSPS and NESHAPs requirements. 
121 FCAA §110 (42 U.S.C. §7410). 
122 FCAA §§171 et seq. (42 U.S.C. §§7501 et seq.) 
123 FCAA §§181 et seq. (42 U.S.C. §§7511 et seq) 
124 FCAA §§188 et seq. (42 U.S.C. §§7513 et seq.) 
125 40 CFR 81.305. Specifically, the MDAQMD is classified Severe-17 for the O3 1hr standard in the Southeast 
Desert Modified AQMD and classified Severe -15 for the O3 1997/2008/2015 8 hr standards in a portion of San 
Bernardino County and unclassifiable for the remainder.  
126 FCAA §172(c)(5) (42 U.S.C. §7502(c)(5)); FCAA §182(d) (42 U.S.C. §7511a(d)) ; 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv). 
127 FCAA §173(a)(2) (42 U.S.C. §7503(a)(2)).  Due to specific definitional provisions, BACT in California is, in 
general equivalent to Federal Lowest Achievable Emissions Rate (LAER).  
128 FCAA §173(a)(1)(A) and (c) (42 U.S.C. §7503(a)(1)(A) and (c) )). 
129 FCAA §182(d)(2) (42 U.S.C. §7511a(d)(2)). 

173 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 31 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

1. Permit Exempt Emissions Units in Calculation Methodology  

While USEPA’s underlying concerns, as expressed in the 12/19/2019 Letter to 
MDAQMD, specifically comments 1.1.1.a. and 1.3.2., regarding the potential for 
emissions from units which happen to be AVAQMD permit exempt pursuant to 
District Rule 219 to somehow “escape” NSR review arises from a 
misinterpretation of current language.  The District is proposing to revise certain 
provisions to avoid any potential future confusion.  Historically, the applicability 
language in Rule 1300(B)(1) and its predecessor rules was interpreted to include 
all emissions units subject to the regulatory powers of the District under state 
law130 regardless of permitting status.  Since the jurisdictional provisions of the 
H&S Code are implemented by the terms of District Rules 201 and 203 the 
provisions of proposed 1300(B)(1) are proposed to be revised to directly reference 
these two rules.131  In addition, to further clarify that all emissions need to be 
included in the applicable calculations the definitions and use of the terms “Permit 
Unit” and “Emissions Unit” have been clarified and adjusted when necessary 
throughout the remainder of the regulation.132  Furthermore, the proposed 
amendments have been updated to standardize the inclusion of fugitive emissions 
in calculations for only the specified list of sources listed in 40 CFR 
51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C).133  These proposed changes will ensure that the emissions 
included in the calculations are, at a minimum, as stringent as those required 
under the FCAA.  In addition, it must be noted that the both the current version 
and proposed changes to Rule 219,134 specifically the clarification of subsection 
(B)(5), will serve as a backstop for the changes proposed to Regulation XIII. 

2. Real, Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable and Enforceable Definitions  

In general, the AVAQMD prefers not to include definitions that are the 
substantially similar, if not identical, to the formulations found in any reputable 
dictionary.  USEPA insists in the 12/19/2019 Letter to MDAQMD, specifically in 
Comments 1.2.2.a.1 and 1.2.2.a.4,135 that such terms be specifically defined.  
Given this, the District requested and USEPA provided definitional language that 
they considered approvable for the terms Real, Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable, 
and Enforceable.  The District has included this language in the proposed 
amendments to Rule 1301.136 

3. Enforceability of Reductions from Unpermitted Emissions Units  

In comment 1.2.2.a.2. to MDAQMD of 12/19/2019, USEPA indicated that they 
believed “offsets” derived from the “shutdown” or “modification” of previously 

                                                 
130 As set forth in California Health & Safety Code §§39002 and 40000. 
131 See also discussion in Section VI. A. 2. above. 
132 Proposed Rule 1301(Y) and (DDD).  See also discussion in Section VI. A. 3. above. 
133 Proposed Rules 1301(GG), (JJ), (GGG), (III); 1304(E)(2)(a) and 1304(E)(3)(a)(iii) 
134 Rule 219 Draft Staff Report 
135 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019 
136 Proposed Rule 1301(Z), (BBB), (JJJ), (LLL) and (ZZZ) 

174 of 527



32 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

unpermitted units were not approvable as they could not be properly enforceable.  
The expressed concern appears to be that even though actual reductions would be 
obtained by removing or changing an unpermitted unit such activities could 
potentially just “shift the demand” by replacing it with one or more other 
unpermitted (aka Rule 219 exempt) emissions units.  In such a case the Facility 
might “escape” the need for additional offsets as the emissions from such permit 
exempt units would not be part of a permit application and thus not be “counted” 
for NSR purposes.   

While the overarching concern regarding emissions from Rule 219 exempt 
equipment “escaping” from inclusion in emissions calculations has been 
resolved137 this remains a legitimate concern.  In short, current Rule 
1305(B)(2)(a)(ii)c. allows the use of Simultaneous Emissions Reductions (SERs) 
from shutdown or modification of unpermitted emissions units so long as the 
owner/operator obtains a permit or has a contract containing Federally 
enforceable limitations (emphasis added).  USEPA is concerned that this 
provision would allow a Facility to “sneak” a set of Rule 219 exempt units in 
“under the radar” by only adding or making changes to unpermitted units in a 
particular action. 

This provision has not been used since the 2001 reformulation of Regulation XIII 
and only rarely prior to that.  On a practical basis, the stated concern has not 
occurred.  While it is true that if only Rule 219 exempt equipment happened to be 
involved in a particular change at a Facility it would not be initially detected by 
the District.  However, such a change would inevitably end up being discovered 
on the next inspection.  At that point there would be a good case for issuance of a 
Notice of Violation alleging circumvention of District Rules.  

Despite the lack of historical problems, the AVAQMD agrees with USEPA that 
using unpermitted unit shutdowns to create SERs are problematic.  The only way 
to make such a provision enforceable would be to require all similar equipment at 
a Facility to get permits with appropriate conditions which would be cumbersome 
for the District and cost prohibitive for the Facility.  Thus, the District is 
proposing to remove the word “shutdown” from the unpermitted equipment SER 
provision in proposed 1304(C)(4)(c).138  This will be done in conjunction with the 
proposed shift of all the SER provisions into 1304 to clearly distinguish the 
calculation and use off SERs from Emissions Reduction Credits (ERCs).139  
Creating SERs from modifications of previously permit exempt equipment do not 
result in the same enforcement issues as the equipment in question is required to 
obtain a permit pursuant to proposed 1304(C)(4)(c) and Rule 219(B)(4). 

On a similar note USEPA also indicates that there may be a similar problem with 
the banking provisions.  In AVAQMD the equivalent provision is found in 

                                                 
137 See discussion in Section VI. E. 1. above. 
138 Currently this provision is located in Rule 1305(B)(2)(a)(ii)c. 
139 ERCs are defined in proposed Rule 1301(X) as emissions reductions which have been previously banked 
pursuant to Rule 1309. 

175 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 33 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Rule1309(D)(3)(c) which seems to allow the banking of unpermitted emissions 
from shutdowns in certain situations.  The District is proposing to remove the 
word “shutdown” from this provision as well to ensure that emissions reductions 
resulting from the shutdown of unpermitted Emissions Units are not banked. 

4. Nontraditional Offset Calculations 

USEPA’s Comment 1.2.2.a.3. of 12/19/2019 to the MDAQMD indicates that any 
use of “non-traditional offsets” (aka mobile, area and indirect offsets) requires 
additional specificity regarding what procedural steps would be necessary to 
obtain USEPA approval of such offsets.  USEPA also notes that a SIP approved 
ERC generation rule would be necessary and that any offsets created would need 
to meet the general offset integrity criteria; namely be real, surplus, quantifiable, 
permanent and enforceable.  In its 2/28/2020 response to MDAQMD questions140 
regarding the specifics of case-by-case approval of such offsets USEPA cited a 
variety of SIP approved “nontraditional ERC” rules141 along with a January 2001 
Document titled Improving Air Quality with Economic Incentive Programs.142  
This response implies that the only method of obtaining USEPA approval of 
“non-traditional offsets” would be via the adoption of an ERC calculation rule 
that was subsequently SIP approved.  Such a rule would be appropriately included 
in the District’s Regulation XIV – Mobile Source Offset Programs.143 

Once again USEPA appears to misunderstand the underlying purpose of Rule 
1305 and its interrelationship with the banking provisions in Rule 1309.  Rule 
1305 is an offset USE rule as opposed to an ERC creation rule.  ERCs are created 
and banked under Rule 1309 and calculation of such ERCs are performed 
pursuant to the provisions of Rule 1304(D).144  Nontraditional ERCs are currently 
calculated pursuant to a calculation formula approved by the District, CARB and 
USEPA145 and the District has always assumed that a SIP approval was one way 
to obtain such approval.  The District agrees that clearly reiterating the 
requirement that non-traditional offsets be calculated via a SIP approved rule in 
both proposed Rule 1304(D)(2)(c) and adding a similar provision or cross 
reference in 1305(C)(3) is a good idea to help ensure that all ERCs meet the 
general integrity criteria. 

                                                 
140 USEPA, Email of 2/28/2020  attachment titled 02-28-20 Initial EPA Response to MDAQMD Letter Dated 
January 28, Clarification #2. 
141 San Diego County APCD, Rule 27.1 – Federal Requirements for Alternative Mobile Source Emission Reduction 
Program, 8/6/2008; Placer County APCD, Rule 515 - Stationary Rail Yard Control Emission Reduction Credits, 
2/19/2015; Placer County APCD, Rule 516 – Rice Straw Emission Reduction Credits, 12/19/2009; Feather River 
AQMD, Rule 10.9, - Rice Straw Emission Reduction Credits and Banking, 10/6/2014, Butte County APCD Rule 
433 - Rice Straw Emission Reduction Credits, 4/24/2014 and Yolo-Solano APCD, Rule 3.21 - Rice Straw Emission 
Reduction Credits, 12/10/2008 
142 USEPA Document EPA-452/R-01-01, January 2001. 
143 Please note that none of the rules currently in District Regulation XIV have been SIP approved for the 
AVAQMD. 
144 Pursuant to current Rule 1309(C)(3). 
145 Current Rule 1304(D)(2)(c). 

176 of 527



34 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Upon examining the current provisions for nontraditional offsets the District 
determined that many of the specific requirements for the use of mobile, area, and 
indirect source offsets are identical with a few additional provisions specific to 
mobile sources.  The District has thus proposed to combine current Rule 
1305(B)(3)(a-d) into a single subsection for ease of use.  In addition, the District 
is proposing that all such offsets will be required to be banked prior to use.146  
This will ensure that any mobile, area and indirect ERCs to be used as offsets will 
be calculated pursuant to a SIP approved rule.  Furthermore, USEPA’s expressed 
concern regarding specific procedural steps for approval of any offset package 
containing these nontraditional ERCs will be specifically addressed in the CARB, 
USEPA, Federal Land Manager review provisions of proposed Rule 1302(D)(2).   

5. BACT and Offset Applicability Comparison Between MDAQMD 
Provisions and Federal Requirements 

In its 12/19/2019 Letter to MDAQMD, USEPA Comment 1.2.2.b. notes that 
current rule provisions147 allows HAE to equal PTE if all the prior emissions have 
been previously offset in a permitting action.  USEPA indicates that this is not 
approvable as it might allow certain projects148 to avoid the application of LAER 
to certain units as required by 40 CFR 51.165(a)(2)(ii)(C). 

The language EPA references involves the calculation of applicability for existing 
emissions units specifically being determined by 

…the sum of the difference between the projected actual emissions (as 
defined in paragraph (a)(1)(xxviii) of this section) and the baseline actual 
emissions (as defined in paragraphs (a)(1)(xxxv)(A) and (B) of this 
section, as applicable), for each existing emissions unit, equals or exceeds 
the significant amount for that pollutant (as defined in paragraph (a)(1)(x) 
of this section). 

In its response to a question, USEPA clarified in its February 28, 2020 response to 
MDAQMD stating that California BACT was in general equivalent to Federal 
LAER149 and thus the District’s BACT requirements, so long as they were not 
circumvented, would be adequate for purposes of 40 CFR 51.165.  The 
underlying concern, as stated by USEPA, is the potential for some Emissions 
Units somehow “getting out” of BACT and/or Offset requirements especially 
when such avoidance occurs at Major Facilities or as a part of a Major 
Modification. 

Initially it must be noted that the BACT/Offset applicability determination 
concern expressed by USEPA is not an issue for PM10.  This is due to the fact that 

                                                 
146 This in effect means that SERs cannot be created via the use of mobile, area or indirect sources. 
147 The equivalent provisions in AVAQMD are found in current Rule 1304(E)(2)(a)(iv) 
148 As opposed to specific emissions units. 
149 USEPA, Email of 2/28/2020  attachment titled 02-28-20 Initial EPA Response to MDAQMD Letter Dated 
January 28, Clarification #2. 

177 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 35 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

not only is the AVAQMD Federally unclassified for this pollutant but also the 
Major Facility threshold in the District for State purposes is 15 tpy.  This amount 
is, of course, much lower than the 100 tpy moderate nonattainment threshold for 
PM10 and the PSD thresholds for attainment air pollutants specified in the 
FCAA.150  Therefore, the following discussion regarding applicability 
calculations deal primarily with O3 and its precursors NOx and VOC.  Please also 
see Table 4 below for a point by point comparison of the AVAQMD BACT and 
Offset requirements with the associated Federal requirements. 

a. BACT Applicability Comparison 

Current Rule 1303(A)(1) and (2)  require BACT on all permit units 
that emit or have the potential to emit more than 25 lbs per day of 
nonattainment air contaminants.  In addition, current Rule 
1303(A)(3) impliedly requires that any new or Modified permit 
unit at a Major Facility requires BACT regardless of size.  In 
comparison BACT/LAER is required Federally in the following 
situations:  

• Existing Major Facility where the proposed emissions are 
“significant.” 

• Existing Major Facility where the proposed emissions are 
nonsignificant BUT are NOT de minimis. 

• Existing Major Facility where the proposed emissions ARE de 
minimis BUT the proposed emissions are also “significant.”151  

• New Major Facilities. 
• Existing Minor Facility where the proposed emissions are > 

Major Facility threshold (regardless of whether or not the 
change is de minimis).  

• Existing Minor Facility where relaxation of federally 
enforceable requirement makes the Facility a Major Facility.  
Federal regulation only requires BACT on new units AND 
units that had the enforceable requirement.   

 
Thus, the provisions of current District rules require BACT in the 
following additional situations: 

• Existing Major Facilities where the proposed emissions are de 
minimis AND are not significant.152   

                                                 
150 The PM10 major stationary source threshold is found in FCAA §302(j) (42 U.S.C. §7602(j)) and the PSD 
thresholds are located in FCAA §169 (42 U.S.C. §7479(1)). 
151 Can’t happen in the AVAQMD because de minimis threshold would be a change that is < Major source 
threshold over 5 years…aka 25 tpy NOx/VOC and the “Significant” threshold is 40 tpy NOx/VOC. 
152 The District requires BACT on all new/Modified permit units at a Major Facility regardless of the project type or 
size pursuant to Rule 1303(A)(3) . 

178 of 527



36 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

• Existing Minor Facility where relaxation of federally 
enforceable requirement makes the Facility a Major Facility.153   

• Existing Minor Facility where the proposed emissions are < 
Major Facility threshold but the new or Modified permit unit 
emits > 25 lbs/day.154 

• New Minor Facility.  District requires BACT on any permit 
unit emitting > 25 Lbs/day.155 

 
In short, the current AVAQMD Rule formulation means that 
BACT is required on many more pieces of equipment within the 
AVAQMD than it would be under the FCAA provisions.  Any 
equipment, regardless of the size of Facility at which it is located, 
must meet BACT if it emits or has the potential to emit 25 lbs/day 
or more of a nonattainment air contaminant.  Under the applicable 
FCAA provisions for a Severe O3 nonattainment area, BACT 
would not be required if a new Facility was considered a Minor 
Facility156 and would not be required if the proposed project at an 
existing minor Facility did not result in the total potential to emit 
from the Facility (after the project) exceeding the threshold to be a 
Major Facility.157  Furthermore, BACT would not be Federally 
required when a Minor Facility proposes a minor modification yet 
such modification ultimately ends up with overall emissions that 
are greater than the Major Facility threshold.  This is in direct 
contrast to current AVAQMD rules which require BACT on 
anything new or Modified once the Facility has exceeded or will 
exceed the Major Facility threshold regardless of the nature of the 
action causing such exceedance. 158  Figure 1 below contains a 
flow chart regarding the analysis to determine if BACT is required 
for a particular permit unit within the AVAQMD. 

Given the fact that the District’s BACT requirements are so much 
more stringent than the base requirement imposed by the FCAA 
and USEPA’s admission that Federal LAER in general is 
California BACT159 it is clear that the AVAQMD provisions on 

                                                 
153 The District requires BACT on all new/Modified permit units once a Facility becomes a Major Facility regardless 
of relationship of units to the relaxed requirement.  Rule 1303(A)(3). 
154 Rule 1303(A)(1) and (A)(2) . 
155 Rule 1303(A)(1) and (A)(2) . 
156 A Minor Facility under AVAQMD rules is one which emits or has the potential to emit less than 25 tpy NOx or 
VOC or 15 tpy PM10.  Rule 1303(B)(1).  The FCAA the PM10 Minor Facility threshold for a moderate 
nonattainment area is a Facility emitting or having the potential to emit less than 100 tpy pursuant to FCAA §302(j) 
(42 U.S.C. §7602(j)) and the PSD Major Facility threshold is 100 tpy for certain listed Facilities and 250 tpy for all 
unlisted Facility types (FCAA §169 (42 U.S.C. §7479(1)). 
157 With emissions or potential to emit > 25 tpy NOx or VOC and/or 100 tpy PM10. 
158 Rule 1303(A)(3). 
159 Rule 1301(N) which has the LAER definition (no economic component) for Major Facilities and the CA BACT 
(economic component) for Minor Facilities and the current Rule 1301(KK) definition of LAER.  See also USEPA, 

179 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 37 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

BACT applicability are more stringent than the FCAA.  This is 
especially true due to the provision of current 1303(A)(4) which 
specifically states that SERs cannot be used to reduce potential 
emissions (aka proposed emissions) in determining applicability of 
BACT requirements.  That said, the AVAQMD acknowledges that 
current Rule 1303(A)(3) should be more explicit in its 
requirements to apply BACT to any new or Modified permit 
unit160 at any Major Facility regardless of whether it is a 
completely new Major Facility, an existing Major Facility with a 
change of any size or a previously Minor Facility where a change 
has resulted in it becoming a Major Facility.  The AVAQMD also 
realizes that the 1303(A)(4) provisions specifically excluding 
SERs from the applicability determination of BACT also needs to 
be echoed in the SER provisions proposed for Rule 1304. 

                                                 
Email of 2/28/2020  attachment titled 02-28-20 Initial EPA Response to MDAQMD Letter Dated January 28, 
Clarification #2. 
160 Please note that BACT for extremely small units is often already applied by the manufacturer “out of the box” if 
such unit is new. 

180 of 527



38 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Figure 1 
AVAQMD BACT Analysis Flow Chart 

 

 
 

b. Offset Applicability Comparison 

Technically the District requires offsets in a greater number of 
situations and to a greater extent than is required by the FCAA.  
However, the use of a different calculation method in the case of 
certain situations at existing Major Facilities (PTE as modified to 
Previously Offset Emissions) has led USEPA to incorrectly 
conclude that overall the District ends up with less total offsetting 
emissions reductions than are required by the FCAA.  The extra 
stringency of offsets required for PM10 is obvious in that the 
AVAQMD is unclassified for this pollutant and thus no offsets 
would be required under Federal law.  The offsets required by the 

YES 

NO 

List each new or modified permit unit 
emitting the identified nonattainment 

pollutant for which Facility is Major 
(1303(A)(3)) 

YES 

Determine BACT (Current 1301(N)(1)) 
for each permit unit listed  above 
on a pollutant by pollutant basis 

and add BACT emissions limit 
as a proposed permit condition. 

YES 

Determine BACT (Current 1301(N)(2)) 
on a pollutant by pollutant basis 

for each permit unit listed 
and add a BACT emissions limit 
as a proposed permit condition. 

NO 

NO 

BACT Determination 
Complete 

Are there any other new or modified 
permit units at the Facility emitting 
NOx, VOC or PM10 BUT the Facility  

is NOT Major for that pollutant? 

For each permit unit listed are 
the emissions or 

Potential to emit > 25 lbs/day? 
(1303(A)(1) or (2)) 

List each new or modified 
permit unit emitting 

or having the potential 
to emit NOx, VOC and/or PM10 

Identify which nonattainment pollutants 
(NOx, VOC and/or PM10) 
make the Facility Major. 

Are the Proposed Emissions 
for the entire Facility 

(New or After Facility Modification) 
> 25 tpy NOx or VOC 
and/or >15 tpy PM10? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

181 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 39 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

AVAQMD Rules are the result of a State nonattainment 
designation for PM10.161  

The extra stringency of the offset requirements for O3 and it’s 
precursors is a bit more opaque.  Within a Severe O3 nonattainment 
area a Federal Major Source is defined as 25 tpy of NOx or VOC or 
greater.162  While the AVAQMD Major Facility threshold is the 
same it applies whenever there is an emissions increase at an 
existing Major Facility,163 and to any Minor Facility that exceeds 
the Major Facility threshold regardless of the reason for the 
increase.164 

Federally, offsets are required when there is an: 

• Existing Major Facility where the proposed emissions are 
“significant.” 

• Existing Major Facility where the proposed emissions are 
nonsignificant BUT are NOT de minimis. 

• Existing Major Facility where the proposed emissions ARE de 
minimis BUT the proposed emissions are also “significant.”165 

• New Major Facility. 
• Existing Minor Facility where the proposed emissions are > 

Major Facility threshold (regardless of whether or not the 
change is de minimis).166 

• Existing Minor Facility where relaxation of federally 
enforceable requirement makes the Facility a Major Facility.167   

 
Under current District rules the last two bullet points above not 
only require offsets of the emissions increase but the offsets would 
need to cover ALL the emissions of the Facility.  In addition, since 
there is no “de minimis” provisions in the AVAQMD rules even 
small changes at a Major Facility often end up requiring offsetting 
emissions reductions. 

                                                 
161 17 Cal Code Regs. §60208 
162 FCAA §182(d) (42 U.S.C. §7511a(d)) and 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(A)(1)(iii) and (a)(1)(iv)(A)(2)(v). 
163 There are no De Minimis provisions in the AVAQMD Regulation XIII rules. 
164 Please note that in the case of a Minor Facility exceeding the Major Facility threshold the amount of offsets 
required is significantly greater than required Federally as such a Facility would need to offset its entire emissions 
not just the increase that caused it to exceed the threshold. 
165 This scenario is mathematically impossible within the MDAQMD because the de minimis threshold is < Major 
source threshold over 5 years (aka 25 tpy NOx/VOC over 5 years) and the Significant threshold is 40 tpy 
NOx/VOC. 
166 FCAA only requires offsets of the emissions increase caused by the project. 
167 FCAA only requires offsets of the emissions increase caused by the project. 

182 of 527



40 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Table 4 
Comparison of BACT and Offset Requirements 

 
Facility Type & Change AV Nonattainment 

Pollutant Threshold 
(Federal Thresholds) 

AV Requirements Federal Requirements Differences  
(AV vs. Federal) 

New Minor Facility New Facility PE is: 
<25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
(Federal = same) 
<15 tpy of PM10 (Federal = 
100/250 tpy*). 

●BACT on New equipment 
with PE > 25 LBS/day. 
●No Offsets Required. 

●NO BACT 
●No Offsets Required 

AV requires BACT on more 
equipment. 
AV requires offsets for PM10. 

Existing Minor Facility**  
Facility PE after change < 
Major Facility Threshold 

Entire Facility PE after 
modification is: 
<25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
(Federal = same) 
<15 tpy of PM10 (Federal = 
100/250 tpy*). 

●BACT on New or Modified 
equipment with PE > 25 
LBS/day. 
●No Offsets Required. 

●NO BACT 
●No Offsets Required 

AV requires BACT on more 
equipment. 
AV requires offsets for PM10. 

Existing Minor Facility**  
Proposed Project emissions 
(by themselves) < Major 
Facility Threshold, BUT 
Facility PE after change > 
Major Facility Threshold 

Project PE is: 
<25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
(Federal = same) 
<15 tpy of PM10 (Federal  = 
100/250 tpy*) BUT  
Entire Facility PE after 
change is: 
>25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
(Federal = same) 
>15 tpy of PM10 (Federal 
threshold = 100/250 tpy*) 

Facility is now a Major 
Facility 
●BACT on all New or 
Modified equipment.  
●Offsets Required: 
Offset back to 0 for each 
nonattainment pollutant over 
threshold @ applicable offset 
ratio. 

●NO BACT 
●No Offsets Required 
 
(Note: this Federally this is a 
Minor Facility making a 
Minor Modification and is 
treated same as the above) 

AV requires BACT 
AV Requires Offsets 
AV requires PM10 offsets. 
 
(Note:  AV treats all Minor 
Facilities becoming Major the 
same to satisfy H&S Code 
"No Net Increase" 
requirements.168) 

Existing Minor Facility** 
Proposed Project emissions 
(by themselves) > Major 
Facility Threshold 

Project PE is: 
<25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
(Federal = same) 
<15 tpy of PM10 (Federal  = 
100/250 tpy*) 

Facility is now a Major 
Facility 
●BACT on New or Modified  
●Offsets Required: 
Offset back to 0 for each 
nonattainment pollutant over 
threshold @ applicable offset 
ratio. 

●BACT on New or Modified 
Equipment. 
●Offsets Required: 
Offset any nonattainment 
emissions increase caused by 
project. 

Same BACT 
AV requires more offsets in 
nonattainment area (back to 0 
vs just offset increases 
Federally).  
AV requires PM10 offsets. 

Existing Minor Facility** 
Proposed project emissions 
are Significant*** 
Entire Facility PE after 
change > Major Facility 
Threshold 

Project PE > a listed amount 
in 40 CFR 51.21(b)(23) for 
any pollutant on the list. 
Entire Facility PE after 
change is: 
>25 tpy of NOx/VOC(Federal 
= same) 
>15 tpy of PM10 (Federal  = 
100/250 tpy*).   

Facility is now a Major 
Facility 
Same requirements as above 
AND need to check PSD 
applicability requirements. 

Technically you can't have a 
Significant Change at a Minor 
Facility in nonattainment NSR 
under Federal Law. 

Same differences as above.   
AV uses this as an additional 
reminder to check PSD 
applicability. 

                                                 
168 H&S Code §40918(a)(1). 

183 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 41 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Facility Type & Change AV Nonattainment 
Pollutant Threshold 
(Federal Thresholds) 

AV Requirements Federal Requirements Differences  
(AV vs. Federal) 

Existing Minor Facility** 
Relaxation in emissions limit 
makes Facility PE after 
emissions limit change > 
Major Facility Threshold 

Project contains a relaxation 
of a Federally enforceable 
limit taken to make the 
Facility Minor AND Facility 
PE after modification are: 
> 25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
(Federal = same) 
>15 tpy of PM10 (Federal = 
100/250 tpy*). 

Facility is now a Major 
Facility 
●BACT on New or Modified 
equipment 
●Offsets Required: 
Offset back to 0 for each 
nonattainment pollutant over 
threshold @ applicable offset 
ratio.  

●BACT on any New 
equipment. 
●BACT on any existing 
equipment subject to the 
Federally enforceable limit 
that was changed. 
●Offsets Required: 
Offset all nonattainment 
pollutant emissions from 
increase + any existing 
equipment subject to the 
federally enforceable limit 
that was changed @ 
applicable offset ratio. 

AV requires more BACT (any 
new/Modified vs. 
new/affected by changed 
limit) 
AV requires more offsets in 
nonattainment area (back to 0 
vs just offset increases 
Federally). 
AV requires PM10 offsets. 

Existing Minor Facility** 
Facility PE after change > 
Major Facility Threshold 

Facility PE after modification 
is: 
> 25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
(Federal = same) 
>15 tpy of PM10 (Federal = 
100/250 tpy*). 

Facility is now a Major 
Facility 
●BACT on New or Modified 
equipment  
●Offsets Required: 
Offset back to 0 for each 
nonattainment pollutant over 
threshold @ applicable offset 
ratio. 

●BACT for any New or 
modified equipment. 
●Offsets Required: 
Offset any nonattainment 
emissions increase caused by 
project at appropriate offset 
ratio 

Same BACT 
AV requires more BACT (any 
new/Modified vs. 
new/affected by changed 
limit) 
AV requires more offsets in 
nonattainment area (back to 0 
vs just offset increases 
Federally). 
AV requires PM10 offsets. 

New Major Facility Facility PE is: 
> 25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
(Federal = same) 
>15 tpy of PM10 (Federal = 
100/250 tpy*). 

●BACT on New equipment  
●Offsets Required: 
Offset back to 0 for each 
nonattainment pollutant over 
threshold @ applicable offset 
ratio. 

●BACT for all New 
Equipment. 
●Offsets Required: 
Offset back to 0 any 
nonattainment pollutant 
emissions at appropriate offset 
ratio. 

Same BACT. 
Same Offsets for O3 
precursors. 
AV requires PM10 offsets. 

Existing Major Facility 
Proposed project emissions 
are De minimis** 
Proposed project emissions 
NOT Significant*** 

Facility Current PTE > Major 
Facility Threshold 
Project PE + emissions from 
any modifications in last 5 
years are: 
<25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
(Federal = same)  
>15 tpy of PM10 (Federal = 
100/250 tpy*) 
AND Project PE < amounts in 
40 CFR 51.21(b)(23).  

●BACT on New or Modified 
equipment. 
●Offsets Required: 
Any increase in each 
nonattainment pollutant for 
which the Facility is Major @ 
applicable offset ratio.   

●NO BACT  
●No Offsets Required 

AV requires more BACT (any 
new/Modified vs. none) 
AV requires more offsets (any 
increase vs. none) 
AV requires PM10 offsets. 

Existing Major Facility 
Proposed project emissions 
are De minimis** 
Proposed project emissions 
are Significant*** 

Facility Current PTE > Major 
Facility Threshold 
Project PE + emissions from 
any modifications in last 5 
years are: 
<25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
(Federal = same) 
>15 tpy of PM10 (Federal = 
100/250 tpy*) 
AND Project PE > amounts in 
40 CFR 51.21(b)(23).    

●BACT on New or Modified 
equipment with PE > 25 
LBS/day. 
●Offsets Required: 
Any increase in each 
nonattainment pollutant for 
which the Facility is Major @ 
applicable offset ratio. 

●PSD BACT requirements 
are triggered. 
●No Offsets Required 

AV requires NSR BACT in 
addition to PSD BACT. 
AV requires offsets of 
NOx/VOC and PM10 (vs. no 
offsets required Federally) 

184 of 527



42 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Facility Type & Change AV Nonattainment 
Pollutant Threshold 
(Federal Thresholds) 

AV Requirements Federal Requirements Differences  
(AV vs. Federal) 

Existing Major Facility 
Proposed project emissions 
NOT De minimis** 
Proposed project emissions 
NOT Significant*** 

Facility Current PTE > Major 
Facility Threshold 
Project PE + emissions from 
any modifications in last 5 
years are: 
>25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
(Federal = same) 
>15 tpy of PM10 (Federal = 
100/250 tpy*) 
AND Project PE < amounts in 
40 CFR 51.21(b)(23).  

●BACT on New or Modified 
equipment 
●Offsets Required: 
Any increase in each 
nonattainment pollutant for 
which the Facility is Major @ 
applicable offset ratio. 

●BACT on new or modified 
equipment. 
●Offsets Required: 
Offset any nonattainment 
emissions increase caused by 
project @ applicable offset 
ratio. 

Same BACT 
Same Offsets for O3 
precursors. 
AV requires PM10 offsets. 
 
[Note: Using SERs from 
previously offset equipment 
may decrease the amount of 
offsets required] 

Exisiting Major Facility 
Propose project emissions 
NOT De minimis** 
Proposed project emissions 
are Significant*** 

Facility Current PTE > Major 
Facility Threshold 
Project PE + emissions from 
any modifications in last 5 
years are: 
>25 tpy of NOx/VOC 
(Federal = same) 
>15 tpy of PM10 (Federal = 
100/250 tpy*) 
AND Project PE > amounts in 
40 CFR 51.21(b)(23).  

●BACT on New or Modified 
equipment  
●Offsets Required: 
Any increase in each 
nonattainment pollutant for 
which the Facility is Major @ 
applicable offset ratio. 

●BACT on new or modified 
equipment. PSD BACT 
requirements are triggered. 
●Offsets Required: 
Offset any nonattainment 
emissions increase caused by 
project @ applicable offset 
ratio. 

AV requires NSR BACT in 
addition to PSD BACT 
Same Offsets for O3 
precursors. 
AV requires PM10 offsets.  

     

* PSD Major Source threshold   

** De Minimis provisions only apply to Major Facilities and are only applicable Federally.  There are no De Minimis provisions in AVAQMD Regulation XIII 

*** Significance test is a PSD requirement.  AVAQMD includes it here as an additional cross check for PSD applicability. 

 
c. Proposed Adjustments to BACT/Offset Applicability 

Determination  

The AVAQMD understands that under the current District rules 
there is an incorrect perception that certain projects might 
somehow “escape” the requirement to impose BACT and/or 
Offsets in certain situations.  To avoid this perception the 
AVAQMD is proposing to substantively restructure Rules 1304 
and 1305 to clearly bifurcate the calculations used to determine the 
applicability of the BACT and/or Offset requirements from the 
calculation of how many offsetting emissions reductions are 
needed in a particular action.  In short, all calculations will be 
moved into Rule 1304 while Rule 1305 will deal solely with the 
use of offsets.  As a practical matter this bifurcation of the 
applicability calculations from the offset amount calculations will 
result in an initial calculation of Emissions Change, ignoring any 
emissions reductions and SERs, for applicability purposes and then 
a recalculation of Net Emissions Change, which includes all 
emissions increases and decreases along with any SERs, to 
determine the base amount of offsets necessary.  Please note that 
this may result in a situation where the Emissions Change 
calculation produces a result indicating offsets will be needed but 
the Net Emissions Change calculation results in the amount of such 

185 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 43 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

offsets being 0.  It could also result in a situation when a 
previously Minor Facility will end up technically becoming a 
Major Facility and requiring offsets but when the Net Emissions 
Change is calculated the Facility retains Minor Facility status.169   

Please see Figures 2 and 3 in Subsection VI. E. 6. below for a flow 
chart of current and proposed BACT/Offset applicability and 
amount determinations. 

6. Offset Amount Comparison Between AVAQMD and Federal Calculation 
Methods 

USEPA’s Comment 1.2.2.c.170 to MDAQMD cites 40 CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(J) as 
disallowing anything except a “potential emissions” to “historic actual emissions” 
calculation methodology for the determination of the amount of offsets unless 
some unspecified “additional flexibility” is included.  The applicable language 
referenced states that the amount to be offsets from a “major modification” must 
be determined  

…by summing the difference between the allowable emissions after the 
modification (as defined by paragraph (a)(1)(xi) of this section) and the 
actual emissions before the modification (as defined in paragraph 
(a)(1)(xii) of this section) for each emissions unit. 

This issue and its practical impacts has long been the subject of differing 
interpretations by and between USEPA and many California Air Districts.  While 
the AVAQMD welcomes the time and effort expended by USEPA staff on this 
issue it does not appreciate the constant and incessant implications by USEPA 
that the AVAQMD is not fully committed to protecting air quality within its 
jurisdiction.  It must be noted that the AVAQMD and all of its predecessor 
agencies have been working on improving air quality since the formation of the 
very first air quality agency, the Los Angeles County Air Pollution Control 
District, in the early 1950’s.  Despite USEPA’s insistence that the AVAQMD’s 
offset calculation methods are somehow ineffective the evidence is quite clear 
that substantial reductions in air pollution have been, and continue to be made, 
under the current rule formulation.   

In the course of discussions regarding definitional language USEPA referenced 
the TSD for a limited disapproval of Bay Area Air Quality Management District’s 
(BAAQMD) “PTE” to “PTE” calculation methods in it 12/19/2012 NSR Rules 

                                                 
169 Technically in this situation the District would need to apply BACT to the Minor Facility as if it were Major and 
then reclassify it as Minor after the Net Emissions Calculation.  As a practical matter this BACT application would 
in most cases have no impact because generally any Emissions Units involved in such a change would have acquired 
BACT due to having a PTE of > 25 lbs/day under Rule 1303(A)(1) or (2) .   
170 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019 

186 of 527



44 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

amendment.171  That particular TSD itself cited previous USEPA actions 
regarding the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (SJVAPCD) NSR 
rules172 and the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District 
(SMAQMD) NSR rules.173  Also referenced in these discussions were EPA’s 
discussion and analysis of different types of “tests” for NSR applicability 
purposes as contained in USEPA’s 2002 NSR Reform Package.174   

EPA approved the SJVAPCD “potential to potential” test conditioned on a 
showing of annual “equivalency” between the Federal methodology and the actual 
amount of offsets obtained under the District’s test.175  A similar suggestion 
regarding including provisions for an equivalency demonstration for the 
difference between Federal and District offset amounts was suggested and 
implemented for BAAQMD.176  EPA also noted that a limitation for the 
“potential to potential” test, such as was included in the SMAQMD rules, to 
“highly used” previously offset emissions was also approvable.  Specifically, the 
SMAQMD rules limit the use of this test to situations where 80% or greater of the 
previously offset PTE were reflected in actual emissions and that such prior 
offsets had been provided within the previous 5 years of the proposed 
modification. 

 
a. History and Rational of the AVAQMD Previously Offset PTE 

Provisions 

The current version of AVAQMD Regulation XIII in the SIP is the 
6/14/1996 version.177  After that approval the Antelope Valley area 
became its own air district, the AVAPCD, but acquired the 
SCAQMD rules in effect in its jurisdiction as of that date.178  In 
2001 the AVAPCD became the AVAQMD and the statutory 
provisions similarly applied the former AVAPCD rule book to the 
new agency.179  Thereafter, the AVAQMD reorganized and 
amended the entire Regulation XIII in 2001 primarily to shift the 

                                                 
171 BAAQMD Regulation 2 – New Source Review, 12/19/2012;  Technical Support Document Notice of Proposed 
Rulemaking for Revisions to the California State Implementation Plan Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
Regulation 2, Rule 1 – Permits, General Requirements, Regulation 2, Rule 2 – Permits, New Source Review, 
8/19/2015 (TSD for BAAQMD NSR of 8/19/2015), Docket Number EPA–R09–OAR–2015–0280. 
172 SJVUAPCD Rule 2201 - New and Modified Stationary Source Review Rule, 4/21/2011. 
173 SMAQMD Rule 214 – Federal New Source Review, 7/23/2012 as approved at 78 FR 53270, 8/29/2013 (Docket 
#EPA–R09–OAR–2013–0064). 
174 USEPA Webpage, New Source Review (NSR) Permitting, NSR Regulatory Actions: 
https://www.epa.gov/nsr/nsr-regulatory-actions, 1/5/2021. 
175 79 FR 55637, 9/17/2014 
176 TSD for BAAQMD NSR of 8/19/2015, pg 119. 
177 61 FR 64291, 12/4/1996. 
178 Former H&S Code §40106(e); Stats. 1996 Ch. 542, section 1 
179 H&S Code §41320(c) 

187 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 45 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

offset threshold away from an aggregated threshold180 to a 
threshold based upon the actual nonattainment classification of the 
area.181 The subsequent 2006 amendment182 primarily involved the 
addition of the then mandatory provisions of NSR reform.183  
Because USEPA has indicated that SIP changes where formal 
action by USEPA has not occurred at the time a jurisdictional 
change is effective are no longer active SIP submittals and any 
subsequent approval is not effective within the changed 
jurisdiction184 the 6/14/1996 SCAQMD rules remain the SIP 
version within the jurisdiction of the AVAQMD. 

The SIP version of Rule 1306 specifically allowed the use of the 
permitted or allowable pre-modification potential to emit in the 
determination of BACT applicability and the amount of offsets 
needed for a modification of an existing source.185  This ability 
was narrowed to apply to only the offset determination in the 2001 
version186  Specifically, The 2001 version of Rule 1304(B)(1) used 
the following as the emissions change calculation: 

Emissions Change = Proposed Emissions – Historic Potential 
Emissions  

Historic Potential Emissions were calculated as: 

• 0 for a new emissions unit;187 OR 
• Historic Actual Emissions (HAE) using the average last 2 

years188 or most representative of normal operations 2 of the 
last 5 years;189; OR 

                                                 
180 The area within SCAQMD’s jurisdiction contained multiple O3 nonattainment classifications and in effect 
“traded” a lower threshold districtwide to escape the FCAA 1.5 to 1 offset ration required of an Extreme O3 area by 
FCAA §182(e)(1) (42 U.S.C. §7511a(e)(1)). 
181 AVAQMD, Final Staff Report Amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 3/20/2001, Pgs. 9-10, 22-
23, and 31. 
182 AVAQMD Regulation XIII, 8/15/2006. 
183 67 FR 80187, 12/31/2002; AVAQMD, Staff Report Proposed Amendments to Regulation XIII (Specifically Rules 
1302 – Procedure and 1305 – Emissions Offsets) and Adoption of New Rule 1310 – Federal Major Facilities and 
Federal Major Modifications for adoption on 8/15/2006, pgs. 14-15. 
184 USEPA Letter, D. Jordan Director Air Division USEPA Region IX to R. Corey, Executive Officer, CARB, 
4/1/2015 
185 Rule 1306(d)(2).  Please note that under this particular iteration of the rules, any Facility which had not 
undergone NSR (and thus presumably provided offsets) would be required to use actual emissions in the 
BACT/Offset calculation. 
186 Rule 1303(A)(4) was changed to provide that SERs could not be used to determine BACT applicability.  Please 
note fully offset PTE was in actuality only used in calculations of SERs to reduce the potential for offset 
applicability despite the rule language which might have indicated other potential uses. 
187 Rule 1304(E)(2)(iii). 
188 Rule 1304(E)(2)(i). 
189 Rule 1304(E)(2)(ii). 

188 of 527



46 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

• The Potential to Emit for the Emissions Unit so long as there 
was a Federally Enforceable limit and offsets had been fully 
provided in a documented prior permitting action.190 
 

This particular calculation was primarily designed as a way to 
reduce the amount of offsets needed for changes within a Facility.  
Please note that in actual permitting actions the only time fully 
offset PTE was used was when a previously offset Major Facility 
created Simultaneous Emissions Reductions (SERs) to in effect 
“fund” a change elsewhere within the Facility.     

The AVAQMD acknowledges that the current language is not the 
clearest reflection of actual use of these provisions.  Such language 
erroneously references 1304(B) and wrongly implies that SERs can 
be used to reduce “proposed emissions” in the base emissions 
change calculation as opposed to its use as an offset reduction 
strategy.  However, it must be noted that the fully offset PTE 
formulation can only be used in a very limited situation due to the 
following: 

• New or Existing Minor Facilities (emissions less than the 
1303(B) threshold) do not have “previously fully offset NSR 
actions” therefore any emissions change would not qualify and 
thus straight HAE would be used. 

• New Major Facilities would likewise not have any “previously 
fully offset NSR actions” and the HAE would be equal to 0 as 
the emissions units were new. 

• Existing Major Facilities may or may not have “previously 
fully offset NSR actions” and thus could use this provision 
internally to “fund” other changes.  Please note that current 
Rule 1305(B)(2)(b) specifically provides that any “leftovers” 
from such a transaction could not be banked under Rule 1309.  

 
The rationale behind the use of “previously fully offset PTE” was, 
in part, to ensure that Major Facilities had flexibility to upgrade 
processes and emissions units without offsetting the same 
emissions multiple times.  It also was an attempt to encourage the 
upgrading of older equipment for newer less polluting equipment 
and to discourage “emissions spiking.”191  In addition, there is a 
severe lack of available Emissions Reductions Credits (ERCs) 

                                                 
190 Rule 1304(E)(2)(iv).. 
191 The term “Emissions Spiking” as used by the AVAQMD is the practice of running an Emissions Unit or process 
line at close to maximum capacity for a number of years to artificially inflate the HAE of the emissions unit prior to 
submitting a project application.  

189 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 47 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

within the AVAQMD and thus modifications at Major Facilities in 
general are often “self-funded” via the use of SERs.   

Currently an existing Facility has a variety of choices when 
considering modifications, especially when such modification 
involves previously fully offset emissions units: 

1. Obtain Offsets:  This is an expensive, and due to the dearth of 
ERCs within the AVAQMD, often an unviable option.  The 
cost of NOx ERCs varies widely ranging within California 
from a high of $240,844.21 in SCAQMD to a low of $2,487.49 
in ICAPCD.192  The last monetary (as opposed to in kind or 
internally created) offset transaction of NOx within the Mojave 
Desert Air Basin occurred in 2014 in the MDAQMD at a cost 
of $17.50 per pound ($35,000 per ton).193   

2. Simultaneous Emissions Reductions (SERs):  Modify or 
shutdown other existing units within the Facility to obtain 
emissions reductions.  This in effect self-funds any emissions 
increases caused by the proposed project.  If the Facility has 
fully offset Emissions Units it may in effect “reuse” its 
previously provided offsets in a different capacity.194  Please 
note however, that additional emissions reductions will still 
occur in such a situation because any new or Modified 
Emissions Unit(s) at a Major Facility will require BACT.195  
Historically most modifications at Major Facilities have used 
this option. 

3. Replacement:  Exchange the old Emissions Unit(s) with 
exactly the same unit as a functionally identical replacement.196  
While this would not be considered a Modification (no offsets 
needed) it also results in no emissions change and no potential 
improvement in air quality within the District.  It also tends to 
discourage modifications that would increase overall Facility 
efficiency with resultant decreases in emissions as the changes 
would be limited to replacement emissions units with the same 
emissions profile.   

4. Status Quo:  Don’t replace any Emissions Unit(s) unless and 
until absolutely necessary.  This results in extra years of 

                                                 
192 CARB Webpage, Emissions Reductions Offset Transaction Cost Summary Report, May 2020, 
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/new-source-review-emission-reduction-credit-offsets.  
193 If the amount of offsets needed is calculated using the HAE of the emissions unit(s) involved many Facilities 
view this as a taking of property (namely the previously allowed PTE that was fully offset) without just 
compensation. 
194 Once again, many Facilities view the permitted emissions limit (PTE) as an asset and thus removal of the value 
of that asset by discounting it to HAE as a taking of property. 
195 Rule 1303(A)(3). 
196 Such a unit must meet the requirements of current Rule 1301(QQ)(5), 3/20/2001. 

190 of 527



48 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

equipment emissions at the current emissions rate and no 
potential for air quality improvement within the District.   

5. Emissions Spiking:  Run the affected Emissions Unit(s) as 
much as possible for two to five years prior to the change to 
ensure that the HAE is as high as possible before the project is 
commenced.  The overall result becomes increased actual 
emissions (although such increased actual emissions would still 
be required to remain under the permitted limit for the unit) 
followed by continued increased actual emissions from any 
replacement unit(s) even when such replacement units are 
equipped with BACT.   

 
b. Other Air District’s Previously Offset PTE Provisions 

BAAQMD’s NSR Rules:  In 2012 BAAQMD amended its NSR 
rules197 and thereafter submitted them as a SIP revision to USEPA.  
As part of the rules they used a PTE as proposed modified to fully 
offset PTE calculation method for determining whether and how 
many offsets were needed for existing facilities when the existing 
Facility had been previously fully offset.198  In its TSD199 
supporting the limited approval/disapproval of BAAQMD’s 
permitting rules200, USEPA noted that this provision did not meet 
either 40 CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(J) as it applied to Federal Major 
Modification and FCAA §173(c)(1) (42 U.S.C. §7503(c)(1)) in 
that it did not calculate offsets based on actual emissions.201  While 
USEPA did admit that the term “actual emissions” did not specify 
whether such emissions were meant to reflect actual emissions at 
the time of the proposed modification or not202 it did concluded 
that the BAAQMD formulation using fully offset PTE was not 
approvable.  However, USEPA did indicate that a potential “fix” 
for this deficiency was for BAAQMD to include in its proposed 
equivalency procedure Rule 2-2-412 a calculation of “additional 
offsets” necessary and include such as a “debit” in its 
determination of equivalency.203  USEPA also noted that this 
equivalency showing would only need to be done for Federal 
Major Sources and Federal Major Modifications as the BAAQMD 

                                                 
197 BAAQMD Governing Board Item 6, Continuation of the Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of Proposed 
Amendments to Air District New Source Review (NSR) and Title V permitting regulations (Regulations 2, Rule 1, 2, 
4 and 6) and Adoption of a California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Environmental Impact Report (EIR), 
12/19/2012  
198 BAAQMD Rule 2-2-206.2 
199 TSD for BAAQMD NSR of 8/19/2015.   
200 80 FR 52236, 8/28/2015 
201 TSD for BAAQMD, 8/19/2015, pg. 118. 
202 TSD for BAAQMD, 8/19/2015. 
203 TSD for BAAQMD, 8/19/2015, pg. 119. 

191 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 49 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

rule required offsets for not only those sources but for smaller 
sources as well.204  

USEPA finalized the limited approval/disapproval of BAAQMDs 
2012 version of the rule on 8/1/2016 at 81 FR 50339.205  
BAAQMD subsequently amended its rules on 12/6/2017 which 
USEPA ultimately approved on 5/21/2018 at 83 FR 23372.  In 
short, the 2017 amendments to the provisions of BAAQMD Rule 
2-2-412 adjusted the existing annual demonstration of equivalence 
to show that overall the amount of offsets obtained under the 
BAAQMD’s calculations was greater than the amount of offsets 
required for Major Sources under the USEPA interpreted 
methodology.206  The 2017 amendments also went into a high 
degree of detail regarding exactly how this equivalence 
demonstration was to be made.  At the end of each year BAAQMD 
would determine which permitting actions occurred at Facilities 
which would be subject to offsets under USEPA’s interpreted 
methodology (identified in the rule as “Federal Major NSR 
Sources”) and compare the number of offsets actually provided 
under BAAQMD’s Rule with what would have been provided 
under USEPA’s methodology.  Any shortfall would then be 
compared against the amount of offsets provided for non-Federal 
Major NSR Sources (identified in the rule as “Equivalence 
Credits”) along with so called “orphan reductions” from Facilities 
that shut down but did not bank emissions reduction credits207 and 
used to make up the shortfall.  The 2017 amendments also 
provided a “backstop” measure in the form of a new provision 2-2-
415 which would require offsets to be calculated pursuant to 
USEPA’s methodology unless and until any shortfall in a year was 
eliminated. 

San Joaquin’s NSR Rules:  Similar to the situation in the 
BAAQMD, the New Source Review Rules in San Joaquin Valley 
Unified Air Pollution Control District (SJVUAPCD)208 contain a 
PTE as modified to fully offset PTE calculation to determine if 
offsets are required and for a new or modified stationary source 
and if so how many are needed.209  SJVUAPCD Rule 2201  also 
contains an offset equivalency tracking provision in subsection 7 
of the rule.  The SIP version of SJVUAPCD’s rule currently 

                                                 
204 TSD for BAAQMD, 8/19/2015, pg. 120. 
205 See also the conditional approval of BAAQMD’s banking provisions on 12/4/2017 at 82 FR 57133 
206 BAAQMD Staff Report, Proposed Technical and Administrative Amendments to New Source Review and Title V 
Permit Programs (BAAQMD NSR Staff Report 2017), 10/2017, pg. 21.  
207 BAAQMD NSR Staff Report 2017 at pgs. 22-23. 
208 SJVUAPCD Rule 2201- New and Modified Stationary Source Review Rule, 8/15/2019. 
209 SJVUAPCD Rule 2201- New and Modified Stationary Source Review Rule, 4/21/2011, 3.8.1.3. 

192 of 527



50 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

appears to be the 4/21/2011 version.210  The 12/8/2008 version 
obtained Limited Approval/Limited Disapproval211 and the 
12/19/2002 version appears to have had full approval212 although 
this approval was revoked by USEPA’s action on the 2008 version.  
The PTE as modified to fully offset PTE calculation provisions 
appear to go back as far as SJVUAPCD’s 8/20/1998 version which 
received a Limited Approval/Limited Disapproval in 2001.213  In 
all of these actions USEPA appears to have been concerned about 
the PTE as modified to fully offset PTE calculation but ultimately 
was satisfied by the provision of an offset tracking system.214  It 
must be noted, however, that a recent CARB audit of 
SJVUAPCD’s Offset Banking system has resulted in USEPA’s 
questioning the adequacy and efficacy of the offset tracking 
system.215 

Sacramento’s NSR Rules:  Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality 
Management District (SMAQMD) took a slightly different 
approach with its PTE as modified to fully offset PTE calculation 
provisions.  SMAQMD Rule 214’s216 calculation provisions in 
subsection 411 are all phrased in terms of Historic Potential 
Emissions (HPE).  However, when you look at the subsection 225 
definition of HPE it states that HPE is as follows: 

• For New Units HPE = 0 (SMAQMD 214:225.1) 
• For non-major modification HPE = permitted emissions limit 

(SMAQMD 214:225.2) 
• For any other modification HPE can use the permitted 

emissions limit if either 
o Actuals are 80% of HPE 
o PTE was fully offset within last 5 years (SMAQMD 

214:225.3(a) ) 
• Any other modification that can’t use the permitted emissions 

limit must use Historic Actual Emissions (SMAQMD 
214:225.3(b) ) 

 

                                                 
210 79 FR 55637, 9/17/2014. 
211 75 FR 26102, 5/11/2010. 
212 69 FR 27827, 5/17/2004. 
213 66 FR 37587, 7/19/2001. 
214 TSD for SJVUAPCD Rule 2020, Exemptions, 2201, New and Modified Stationary Source Review Rule, 
11/15/2011 pgs. 14-16.  Details of the original tracking system are allegedly found in an 8/24/1999 agreement 
between the SJVUAPCD and USEPA.  
215 CARB, Review of the SJVUAPCD Emission Reduction Credit System, June 2020. 
216 SMAQMD Rule 214 – Federal New Source Review, 7/23/2012 

193 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 51 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

The current version of SMAQMD’s Rule 214 is in the SIP.217  The 
7/20/2011 was also approved218 as was its previous version, Rule 
202.219 

c. AVAQMD’s Proposed Calculation Amendments 

As noted in section VI. E. 5. c. the AVAQMD is proposing to 
bifurcate the calculations used to determine the applicability of 
Rule 1303 provisions from the base offset amount calculations 
required by proposed Rule 1305.  Figure 2 shows the flow of the 
current calculations used to determine both applicability of BACT 
and Offsets and to determine the number of offsets necessary.  
Figure 3 shows the same calculation flow under proposed Rule 
1304.  The areas highlighted in yellow indicate the proposed shift 
in location of the PTE to fully offset PTE calculation provisions.   

                                                 
217 78 FR 53270, 8/29/2013. 
218 76 FR 43183, 7/20/2011. 
219 50 FR 25417, 6/19/1985. 

194 of 527



52 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Figure 2 
Current NSR BACT/Offset Calculation Flow Chart 

 

 
  

STEP 3 
Is Facility already Major? 

Will the Facility become Major 
after the change? 

current 1303(B)(1), 1301(LL) 

Check BOTH original PTE for 
WHOLE Facility pre change and 

PE for New/Modified Facility post change 
>25 tpy NOx or VOC and/or >15 tpy PM10? 

current 1303(B)(1) 

STEP 4 & 5 
Identify each EU (new or Modified) 

with PE > 25 LBS/day of 
NOx, VOC and/or PM10? 

Apply BACT 
current 1302(C)(2), 1303(A)(1) & (2), 

1301(QQ) 

Note: Current 1303(A)(4) 
requies BACT applicability 

to be determined 
WITHOUT using SERs 

STEP 2 
Determine Emissions Change 

current 1302(C)(1) 

Current Provisions: applies prior offset PTE to 
both applicability and amount of offsets 
by including SERs (reductions) in Step 2. 
BACT applicability must be determined 
WITHOUT using SERs per 1303(A)(4). 

NO YES 

STEP 4 & 5 
Identify each EU (new or Modified) 

emitting a pollutant for 
which Facilitiy is Major. 

Apply BACT 
current 1302(C)(2), 1303(A)(3) 

YES 
 

STEP 7 
How many base "offsets" are needed 

on a pollutant by pollutant basis? 
New =  FACILITY PE 

Formerly Minor becomes Major (regardless or how) = FACILITY PE 
(difference between inside and outside the FONA is applied in step 8) 

Existing Major = Project EC 
from STEP 1 above 
current 1305(A)(2) 

STEP 8 
Is Facility inside the FONA? 

current 1305(A)(2) 
NO 

YES NO 

Notify Applicant, 
Get Offset Package 

Analyze Offset Package 
Check to make sure any ERCs or SERs 

used (if any) meet the criteria and 
have been properly adjusted for RACT 

and ratios applied. 
current 1302(C)(3), 1305(B), 1305(C) 

 
Continue Analysis 

at current 1302(C)(4) 

Subtract Major Facility 
threshold amount from base offsets 

if NOx or VOC 
current 1305(A)(2) 

Multiply base offsets 
by 1.3 if NOx or VOC 

current 1305(A)(3), 1305(C)(1) 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STEP 1 
Determine PE and HAE for 

each EU. 
current 1302(C)(1), 1304(B)(1)(a) 

PE 
Equal to PTE after modification 
current 1304(E)(1), 1305(B)(2), 

1301 (FFF), 1301(HHH), 1301(UUU) 

Emissions Change = PE - HAE 
1304 (B)(1) 

 
NOTE: End up with calculations of 

EC for each EU (positive and negative) and 
EC for Project (add ECs for all EUs in project) 

HAE 
New or operating less than 1 year EUs = 0 

Existing EUs = Actual Emissions for last 2 years or 
Actual Emissions best normal ops in 2 of last 5 years or 

Permit Limit if fully offset in prior permitting action 
current 1304(D)(2), 1301(JJ) 

STEP 6 
Are Offsets needed? 

(Is facility Major/will become Major in Step 3?) 
Calculate Net Emissions Change 

@ Facility caused by Project 
current 1302(C)(2) 

 
NOTE: SERs must meet current 1304(C) and 1305(B)(2) 

requirements. Excess SERs can not be banked 
per current 1305(B)(2)(B)(I) 

195 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 53 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Figure 3 
Proposed NSR BACT/Offset Calculation Flow Chart 

 

 
 

As a practical effect this shift merely formalizes the current, SIP 
approved, method of reducing the offset burden for changes at 
Major Facilities.  As noted earlier, the only time the PTE to fully 
offset PTE calculation was ever used is in the situation when a 
previously offset Emissions Unit located at an existing Major 
Facility is modified to create SERs to “fund” a change elsewhere at 

NO 

STEP 7 
How many base "offsets" are needed 

on a pollutant by pollutant basis? 
New =  FACILITY PE 

Formerly Minor becomes Major (regardless or how) = FACILITY PE 
(difference between inside/outside FONA is applied in Step 8) 

Existing Major = Projcet EC from STEP 6 above 
proposed 1305(B) 

STEP 6 
Calculate NET Emissions Change 

using BOTH positive and negative 
changes (aka including SERs) 

proposed 1304(B)(2) 

 
Do Stack Height Analysis 

If necessary as it only 
Applies to Major Facilities 

proposed 1302(C)(4) 

 
Continue Analysis at 
proposed 1302(C)(5) 

 
Prior Offset PTE moved into SER calculation 

and thus ONLY is used 
to reduce the offset burden. 

SERS still must meet 
proposed 1304(C) requirements and 
"Excess" SERs still can't be banked. 

proposed 1304(C)(2)(d) 

STEP 1 
Determine PE and HAE for 

each EU. 
Proposed 1302(C)(1), 1304(B)(1)(a) 

PE 
Equal to PTE after modification 

Proposed 1304(D)(1), 1305(B)(2), 1301(JJJ), 
1301(LLL), 1301(XXX) 

STEP 3a 
Is Facility already Major? 

Will the Facility become Major 
after the change? 

proposed 1303(B)(1), 1301(NN) 

Check BOTH original PTE for 
WHOLE Facility pre change and 

PE for New/Modified Facility post change 
(positive only) >25 tpy NOx or VOC 

and/or >15 tpy PM10? 
proposed 1303(B)(1) 

STEP 4 & 5 
Identify each EU (new or Modified) 

with PE >  25 LBS/day of 
NOx, VOC and/or PM10? 

Apply BACT 
proposed 1302(C)(2), 1303(A)(1) & (2) 

Proposed 1303(A)(4) 
still requies BACT 
applicability to be 

determined WITHOUT 
using SERs 

 
Notify Applicant, 

Get Offset Package 
Analyze Offset Package 

Check to make sure any ERCs or SERs 
used (if any) meet the criteria and 

have been properly adjusted. 
proposed 1302(C)(3), 1305(C), 1305(D) 

NO YES 

STEP 4 & 5 
Identify each EU (new or Modified) 

emitting a pollutant for 
which Facilitiy is Major. 

Apply BACT 
proposed 1302(C)(2), 1303(A)(3) 

YES NO 

Subtract Major Facility 
threshold amount from base offsets 

if NOx or VOC 
proposed 1305(B) 

Multiply base offsets 
by 1.3 if NOx or VOC 
proposed 1305(D)(1) 

STEP 8 
Is Facility inside the FONA? 

propoase 1305(B) 

  
 
 

 
 

STEP 3b (Reprise) 
Are Offsets needed? 

(Is facility already Major or will Facility become 
Major after the change using Step 2 calculations?) 

proposed 1303(B)(1), 1301(NN), 1301(OO) 
  

 
YES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

HAE 
New or operating less than 1 year EUs = 0 Existing 

EUs = Actual Emissions for last 2 years or 
Actual Emissions best normal ops in 2 of last 5 years. 

Proposed 1304(E)(2), 1301(LL) 

STEP 2 
Determine Emissions Change 

per proposed 1304(B)(1) 
proposed 1302(C)(1) 

 
Emissions Change = PE - HAE 

 
EC for each EU via proposed 1304(B)(1)(a) 

Project EC (add POSITIVE ONLY ECs 
for all EUs in project) via 
proposed 1304 (B)(1)(b) 

196 of 527



54 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

the Facility.  Tables 5 and 6 provide hypothetical situations to 
illustrate the differences between the current and proposed 
calculation methodologies. 

Table 5 
Existing Major Facility with Modification Calculation 

 

 
  

Facility 50 tpy NOx PTE as permitted (fully offset); 40 tpy NOx HAE. 
Proposed Project: 

New EU = 2 tpy NOx PE 
2 Existing EUs each = 2 tpy NOx PTE as permitted, 1 tpy HAE, modified to 0.5 tpy NOx PE 
1 Shutdown EU = 2 tpy NOx PTE as permitted, 1 tpy HAE, Shutdown and removed from service. 

 Current AV Calculations Proposed AV Calculations 
1. Determine PE and HAE Specified above. Specified above. 
2. Determine Emissions 
Change 
(EU by EU, and by Project) 

EU Change: 
New EU = 2 PE - 0 HAE = 2 EC 
Existing EU #1 = 0.5 PE - 1 HAE =-0.5 EC 
Existing EU #2 = 0.5 PE - 1 HAE = -0.5 EC 
Shutdown EU = 0 PE - 1 HAE = -1 EC 
Project Change: 0 EC (add all ECs) 

EU Change: 
New EU = 2 PE - 0 HAE = 2 EC 
Existing EU #1 = 0.5 PE - 1 HAE =-0.5 EC 
Existing EU #2 = 0.5 PE - 1 HAE = -0.5 EC 
Shutdown EU = 0 PE - 1 HAE = -1 EC 
Project Change: 2 EC (only include positive EC) 

3. Is Facility Major or does 
Project make it Major? 

Facility is Existing Major as specified above. 
BACT is required. 
Offsets are required. 

Facility is Existing Major as specified above. 
BACT is required. 
Offsets are required. 

4. Are there any 
new/Modified EUs with PE 
>25 LBS/day? 

If yes add BACT to each EU per 1303(A)(1) or 
(A)(2) 

If yes add BACT to each EU per 1303(A)(1) or 
(A)(2) 

5. Are there any 
new/Modified EUs as part of 
the project at the Major 
Facility? 

If yes add BACT to each EU per 1303(A)(3) If yes add BACT to each EU per 1303(A)(3) 

6. Determine Net Emissions 
Change 

Same as 2 above BUT use previously offset PTE 
instead of HAE. 
New EU = 2 PE - 0 HAE = 2 EC 
Existing EU#1 = 0.5 PE - 2 offset PTE = -1.5 EC 
Existing EU#2 = 0.5 PE - 2 offset PTE = -1.5 EC 
Shutdown EU = 0 PE -2 offset PTE = -2 EC 
Net Emissions Increase = -3 

Recalculate 2. Use previously offset PTE as SERs If 
applicable. 
New EU = 2 PE - 0 HAE = 2 EC 
Existing EU#1 = 0.5 PE - 2 offset PTE = -1.5 EC 
Existing EU#2 = 0.5 PE - 2 offset PTE = -1.5 EC 
Shutdown EU = 0 PE -2 offset PTE = -2 EC 
Net Emission Increase = -3 

7. Determine Amount of 
Offsets Needed 

None - Facility NET EC is negative 
BUT REMEMBER - excess SERs cannot be banked 
(current 1305(B)(2)(b)(i)) 

None - Facility NET EC is negative 
BUT REMEMBER - excess SERs cannot be banked 
(proposed 1304(C)(2)(d)(iii) and 1305(C)(2)(b)) 

8. Area is Severe for O3 N/A N/A 
9. Provide offsets (SERs 
and/or ERCs) 

N/A N/A 

10. End Result No Offsets needed No Offsets needed 

NOTES: SERs applied at step 2 to reduce PE. 
Can't use SERs to get out of BACT (1303(A)(4)) 
Excess SERs cannot be banked. 

SERs applied at step 6 to reduce offset burden. 
Excess SERs cannot be banked. 

 

197 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 55 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Table 6 
Existing Major Facility with Federal Major Modification Calculation 

 

 
  

Existing Major Facility with Federal Major Modification 
Facility 50 tpy NOx PTE as permitted (20 tpy offset); 40 tpy NOx HAE. 
Proposed Project: 

New EU#1 and New EU #2 = 20 tpy NOx PE each 
2 Existing Ancient EUs = 15 tpy NOx PTE (never offset) as permitted and 

14 tpy HAE, retrofitted to emit 10 tpy NOx PE 
Shutdown EU = 5 tpy PTE (fully offset), 4 tpy  HAE 

Action Current AV Calculations Proposed AV Calculations 

1. Determine PE and HAE Specified above. Specified above. 
2. Determine Emissions 
Change 
(EU by EU, and by Project) 

EU Change: 
New EU #1 = 20 tpy - 0 HAE = 20 EC 
New EU #2 = 20 tpy - 0 HAE = 20 EC 
Existing Ancient EU #1 = 10 PE - 14 HAE = -4 EC 
Existing Ancient EU #2 = 10 PE - 14 HAE = -4 EC 
Shutdown EU = 0 PE - 4 HAE = -4 EC 
Project Change: 28 EC (include all EC) 

EU Change: 
New EU #1 = 20 tpy - 0 HAE = 20 EC 
New EU #2 = 20 tpy - 0 HAE = 20 EC 
Existing Ancient EU #1 = 10 PE - 14 HAE = -4 EC 
Existing Ancient EU #2 = 10 PE - 14 HAE = -4 EC 
Shutdown EU = 0 PE - 4 HAE = -4 EC 
Project Change: 40 EC (only include positive EC) 

3. Is Facility Major or does 
Project make it Major? 

Facility is Existing Major as specified above. 
BACT is required. 
Offsets are required. 

Facility is Existing Major as specified above. 
BACT is required. 
Offsets are required. 

4. Are there any 
new/Modified EUs with PE 
>25 LBS/day? 

If yes add BACT to each EU per 1303(A)(1) or 
(A)(2) 

If yes add BACT to each EU per 1303(A)(1) or 
(A)(2) 

5. Are there any 
new/Modified EUs as part of 
the project at the Major 
Facility? 

If yes add BACT to each EU per 1303(A)(3) If yes add BACT to each EU per 1303(A)(3) 

6. Determine Net Emissions 
Change 

Same as 2 above BUT use previously offset PTE: 
New EU #1 = 20 tpy - 0 HAE = 20 EC 
New EU #2 = 20 tpy - 0 HAE = 20 EC 
Existing Ancient EU #1 = 10 PE - 14 HAE = -4 EC 
Existing Ancient EU #2 = 10 PE - 14 HAE = -4 EC 
Shutdown EU = 0 PE - 5 offset PTE = -5 EC 
Net Emissions Increase: 27 EC 

Recalculate 2. Use previously offset PTE if 
applicable. 
New EU #1 = 20 tpy - 0 HAE = 20 EC 
New EU #2 = 20 tpy - 0 HAE = 20 EC 
Existing Ancient EU #1 = 10 PE - 14 HAE = -4 EC 
Existing Ancient EU #2 = 10 PE - 14 HAE = -4 EC 
Shutdown EU = 0 PE - 5 offset PTE = -5 EC 
Net Emissions Increase: 27 EC 

7. Determine Amount of 
Offsets Needed 

Base offsets = 27 (Net Facility Change) Base offsets = 27 (Net Facility Change) 

8. Area is Severe for O3 Multiply by 1.3 Multiply by 1.3 
9. Provide offsets (SERs 
and/or ERCs) 

Provide 35.1 tpy NOx in FONA Provide 35.1 tpy NOx in FONA 

10. End Result Need 35.1 tpy ERCs Need 35.1 tpy ERCs 

NOTES: SERs applied at step 2 to reduce PE. 
Can't use SERs to get out of BACT (1303(A)(4)) 
Excess SERs cannot be banked (current 
1305(B)(2)(b)(i)). 

SERs applied at step 6 to reduce offset burden. 
Excess SERs cannot be banked (proposed 
1304(C)(2)(d)(iii) and 1305(C)(2)(b)). 

 

198 of 527



56 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

USEPA is concerned that the current SIP approved calculation 
might conceivably result in an increase in the current emissions 
inventory District wide and thus potentially jeopardize progress 
toward attainment with the NAAQS.  While the AVAQMD 
understands this concern the alternative formulations as proposed 
by USEPA will clearly make actual emissions worse as Facilities 
either refrain from or delay replacing aging equipment or run such 
equipment at high rates (though under the permitted limit) to 
artificially inflate HAE.  In addition, an equivalency showing on an 
annual basis, such as has been approved in BAAQMD and 
SJVUAPCD, is completely untenable within the AVAQMD due to 
the fact that any “excess” offsets only occur intermittently and the 
AVAQMD does not have a so-called “community bank” or other 
pool of reductions such as those obtained from so called “orphan 
shutdowns” to make such a showing.  Similarly, limiting the use of 
previously offset PTE to highly used (80% of HPE) and recent 
(within the last 5 years) as has been approved in SMAQMD does 
not result in encouragement of modernization of existing ancient 
high emitting equipment.  In short, the application of USEPA’s 
current policies regarding offset calculations will result in an 
almost complete cessation of any and all upgrades which reduce 
emissions at existing Major Facilities within the AVAQMD.   

The underlying disagreement with USEPA boils down to whether 
or not the AVAQMD’s NSR program, including the calculation 
methodology for offsets, is at least as, if not more stringent than 
that required by the Federal Clean Air Act.  As noted elsewhere in 
this Staff Report there are numerous provisions where the 
AVAQMD is significantly more stringent than the corresponding 
Federal requirements.  The 25 lbs/day BACT threshold is the 
obvious place where this occurs.  What is not quite so obvious in 
regards to stringency, is the effect of the overall structure of 
Regulation XIII.  The AVAQMD does not, and has never had, a 
De Minimis provision as allowed under the FCAA.  This means 
that each and every permitting action is in effect “trued up” to the 
PTE involved each and every time a Modification is made for all 
Major Facilities.  This means that any allegedly “uncaptured” 
emissions resulting from the AVAQMD’s offset calculation 
method are more than compensated for by the additional 
stringency as evidenced by the air quality measurements. 

For Example:  An existing Major Facility has a potential to emit of 
150 tons per year (but typically never exceeds 120 tons of actual 
emissions (80% of their permitted value).  If this Facility was 
never previously offset, the rules provision in question does not 
apply and the point is moot.  If the Facility was fully offset in a 
previously documented permitting action, USEPA’s position is that 

199 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 57 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

the Facility’s actual emissions of 120 tons should be used as a 
baseline to determine whether any changes at the Facility trigger 
control technology or additional offsets, without regard to the 
previous use of offsets.  Current and proposed AVAQMD New 
Source Review differs and considers the previous use of offsets 
still valid, for the purposes of further offset requirements at 
existing Major Facilities only but also requires BACT for all new 
and Modified equipment at the Facility.  

Under Federal law and regulation, however, the Facility could 
completely escape BACT and Offsets along with constructively 
increasing its actual emissions.  This is possible due to the Federal 
De Minimis provisions which provide no BACT or Offsets are 
required if the emissions increase is less than a De Minimis 
amount over a rolling 5-year period (in the AVAQMD this amount 
would be 25 tpy.)  Thus, the above hypothetical Facility could 
under Federal rules add 10 tpy of NOx emissions in years 1, 3, and 
6 and not be required to put BACT on any of the new or Modified 
equipment, no offsets would be needed and by the end of the 
period the permitted emissions would be 180 tpy NOx (with actual 
operating emissions of 144 tpy if they continued to run at 80% of 
permitted value).220  In direct contrast, under the AVAQMD 
current and existing rules this hypothetical Facility would not only 
be required to place BACT on any new or Modified equipment 
involved in each year but would also be required to obtain offsets 
and the permitted emissions limit of 150 tpy would NOT change.  
Of course, due to the dearth of offsets in the AVAQMD Emissions 
Reduction Credit Bank the cost of such emissions reductions 
would be extremely prohibitive.  Thus, under the AVAQMD rules 
such a Facility could modernize, retrofit, or shut down other 
existing emissions units to create SERs.  At the end of the 6-year 
period while no offsets might have been provided under the 
AVAQMD calculations the ultimate result is a lower overall 
potential to emit limit on the Facility that results from applying 
Federal rules as well as cleaner more efficient equipment. 

There is also a fundamental issue of fairness.  The emissions 
reductions, in the case of both ERCs and SERs, must be 
“Permanent” to be used.  Once used this permanence is reflected as 
an upper emissions limit (PTE) on the permit.  If only Historic 
Actual Emissions are used in subsequent actions the Facility ends 
up “double offsetting” the differential between the HAE and the 
previously existing (and fully offset) limit each and every time a 
project requiring offsets is performed.  To make matters worse a 

                                                 
220 Please note in this situation the year 1 increase would not be added to determine if the 25 tpy De Minimis over a 
rolling 5 years applied.  

200 of 527



58 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

1.3 to 1 offset ratio is applied for O3 precursors due to the 
nonattainment status of the AVAQMD.  The FCAA partially 
mitigates this burden by allowing De Minimis changes221 over a 
rolling 5-year period and exempting such activities from BACT.  
Unfortunately, due to CARB’s interpretation of the “no net 
increase” provisions of the Health & Safety Code222 coupled with 
the provisions of SB 288223 this option is not available to the 
AVAQMD. 

Furthermore, please note that the most recent Milestone 
Compliance/Reasonable Further Progress determination as 
transmitted to USEPA by CARB224 shows an incredible amount of 
emissions reductions over and above that necessary for ultimate 
compliance with the 75 ppb 8-hour O3 standard from the 2011 
baseline year.225  Not all of these reductions can be attributed to 
the sharp decline in vehicular traffic due to COVID-19 in 2020 as 
much of it appears to be a continuation of year over year decline in 
the relevant emissions inventories.  If USEPA’s concern regarding 
emissions inventory increases due to the AVAQMD’s current 
calculation formulation were valid you would expect to see some 
sort of impact in this report.  As it is, there is no such impact which 
provides strong evidence that the AVAQMD’s NSR rules as 
currently implemented are producing overall at least as many 
emissions reductions as those postulated by USEPA’s preferred 
formulation. 

7. Relaxation of Emissions Limitations Resulting in Major Facility Status  

USEPA’s Comment 1.2.2.d.226 to MDAQMD expresses a concern 
regarding the potential for a Facility to somehow “escape” BACT 
and or Offsets when it takes a Federally Enforceable limitation to 
make it a so called “Synthetic Minor Facility” but then later 
requests changes to that limit resulting in an emissions increase.  If 
such increase results in such a Facility becoming a Major Facility 
the equipment involved in the emissions limit change would be 
subject to BACT and would require offsets for any such emissions 
increases as if the Facility had not yet commenced construction.227 

                                                 
221 In the Federal Ozone Nonattainment Area of the District this would be 25 tpy of NOx or VOC. 
222 H&S Code §40918 
223 H&S Code §§42500 et seq (SB288 of 2003, ch 467) 
224 CARB Letter, R. Corey, CARB to D. Jordan, USEPA Region IX (3/30/2021). 
225 CARB, California 2020 Milestone Compliance Demonstration for the 75 Parts per Billion National Ambient Air 
Quality Standard for Ozone, (3/30/2021). 
226 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019. 
227 40 CFR 51.165(a)(5)(ii). 

201 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 59 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

The provisions of current Rule 1303(B)(3) already requires BACT 
and Offsets in such a situation.  Under current rule provisions the 
AVAQMD would treat such an occurrence in the same manner as 
any other existing Minor Facility which modified in any manner 
such that the Major Facility threshold was exceeded.  In short, 
BACT would not only be required pursuant to Rule 1303(A)(2) but 
also under Rule 1303(A)(3)228 and the newly Major Facility would 
need offsets pursuant to Rule 1303(B)(3).  If the increase was for 
NOx or VOC then the Facility would end up needing to offset its 
entire emissions, not just the emissions increase(s) resulting from 
the change in the limit, at an offset ratio of 1.3 to 1.229  Despite 
this, the District is proposing to modify Rule 1303(B)(3) to more 
closely conform to the language found in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(5)(ii).  
It is not expected that these proposed changes will cause any 
differences in permitting for affected Facilities.  

8. Interpollutant Trading Provisions 

In USEPA’s Comment 1.2.2.e.230 to MDAQMD, USEPA indicated 
that all interpollutant trading needs to comply with the new 
provisions of 40 CFR 51.165(a)(11).231  This provision requires an 
“approved” area-specific default ratio as established by regulation 
in a plan, a default interpollutant trading ratio “established in 
advance” by the air agency or provide a case-by-case formulation 
process and by its own terms primarily applies to NOx and VOC.  
On January 29, 2021 the U.S. Court of Appeals, D.C. Circuit 
issued an opinion vacating such interpollutant trades.232   

Given the uncertainty surrounding this provision the AVAQMD is 
proposing to leave proposed Rule 1305(C)(6)233 primarily 
unchanged with the exception of a footnote citing the court 
decision.  The District will review the provision once the status of 
interpollutant offsets becomes more certain. 

F. RULE 1401 – NEW SOURCE REVIEW FOR TOXIC AIR CONTAMINANTS 

There are no substantive changes proposed for Rule 1401.  It is included in this action 
due to the need to update the cross references to Rule 1302. 

                                                 
228 Please note that if such a Minor Facility was built or substantively changed after 1993 odds are it would have 
already acquired BACT on most if not all of its equipment pursuant to Rule 1303(A)(1) ) or (A)(2) ).  Thus, such a 
Facility would only need to upgrade to current BACT on the equipment involved if the technology had changed in 
the interim.  
229 Rule 1305(C)(1) 
230 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019. 
231 83 FR 62998, 12/6/2018. 
232 Sierra Club et al. vs. USEPA, 985 F.3d 1055 (D.C. Cir., 1/29/2021). 
233 Current Rule 1305(B)(6). 

202 of 527



60 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

G. REGULATION XVII – PREVENTION OF SIGNIFICANT DETERIORATION  

Regulation XVII, as originally adopted by SCAQMD in 1988 and amended in 1989, was 
intended to allow SCAQMD to fully implement the PSD program within the District’s 
jurisdiction.  As was common at the time the regulations were not included as SIP 
revisions but instead USEPA and SCAQMD entered into an agreement where SCAQMD 
would analyze and issue the PSD permits.  This agreement was not carried over upon the 
creation of the AVAQMD in 1997.  Therefore, from July 1, 1997 to the present all 
actions required by the PSD permitting program has been performed by USEPA for the 
AVAQMD despite the existence of Regulation XVII. 

The District is proposing in this action to remove the multiple rules of current Regulation 
XVII and replace it with Rule 1700 which adopts the applicable provisions of 40 CFR 
52.21 by reference.  The primary difference between the provisions of Rule 1700 and 
both the current set of rules and the provisions of 40 CFR 52.21 is that of terminology.  
Various PSD related terms are renamed for ease of use and to avoid confusion with 
existing terminology elsewhere in the District’s rule book.  Table 7 indicates the 
particular terms and changes proposed. 

Table 7 
Proposed PSD Terminology Changes 

 
Citation Regulatory Term Proposed Term Rational 

40 CFR 52.21(b)(1) Major Stationary Source Major PSD Facility Avoids confusion caused by use of term 
“source”234 

40 CFR 52.21(b)(2) Major Modification Major PSD Modification Avoids confusion with Regulation XIII 
term “Major Modification” 

40 CFR 52.21(b)(50) Regulated NSR Pollutant PSD Air Pollutant Avoids confusion with term “Regulated 
Air Pollutant” under Regulation XIII 

40 CFR 52.21(b)(12) Best Available Control 
Technology 

PSD Best Available 
Control Technology 

Allows clear identification of underlying 
BACT requirement. 

 

H. FCAA §110(L), FCAA §193, AND HEALTH & SAFETY CODE §§42500 ET 
SEQ. ANALYSIS 

FCAA §110(l) (42 U.S.C. §7410(l)) requires that any SIP amendment which might 
potentially be construed as a relaxation of a requirement provide a demonstration that the 
proposed change will not interfere with any FCAA requirements concerning attainment 
or Reasonable Further Progress (RFP).  In addition, FCAA §193 (42 U.S.C. §7515) 
requires that any relaxation of a control requirement in effect in a nonattainment area 
before 11/15/1990 may not be changed without ensuring that there are “equivalent 
emissions reductions” in place.235  Furthermore, H&S Code §§42500 et seq. requires an 

                                                 
234 The term “source” as currently used can refer to a single Emissions Unit, a group of Emissions Units, an entire 
Facility, particular separate facilities all with the same industrial classification, an area, or even something that tends 
to attract emitting activities. 
235 Preconstruction review provisions have been held to be “control requirements” under the FCAA in Hall v. EPA 
273 F3d 1146 (9th Cir., 2001) and SCAQMD v EPA 472 F.3d 882 (D.C. Cir., 2006). 

203 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 61 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

analysis when amendments are proposed to a nonattainment NSR program to show that 
such proposed changes are not less stringent than those in existence as of 12/30/2002. 

The proposed amendments to Regulation XIII do not relax any NSR related 
requirements.  Most of the proposed amendments are procedural in nature and merely 
intended to clarify existing provisions and codify current practices.  In general, the 
remaining proposed amendments as indicated in Table 8 conform the requirements to the 
stringency required by State and Federal law and the regulations promulgated thereunder. 

 
Table 8 

Substantive Proposed Amendments Changing Current Requirements 
 

Proposed Change Current Requirement Stringency 
Emissions Unit definition adds “control 
equipment” to the definition and conforming 
changes are instituted elsewhere in Regulation 
XIII. (Proposed 1301(Y)) 

Emissions Unit technically excluded but Permit 
Unit included “control equipment” in the 
definition. 

Equivalent. 

Addition of provisions regarding stack height 
exceeding Good Engineering Practice from 40 
CFR 51.164 and 51.118.236 (Proposed 1301(T), (BB), 
(HH), (TT), (XXX), and 1302(C)(4)) 

None. More 
Stringent. 

Addition of language indicating that provisions of 
1302(C)(5) are not to be included as a SIP 
revision237. (Proposed 1302(C)(5)(d)) 

None. More 
Stringent. 

Addition of requirement that applications involving 
Stack Height which exceed Good Engineering 
Practice receive Major NSR Notice. (Proposed 
1302(C)(7)(b)(ii)) 

None. More 
Stringent. 

Specification that Regulation XII Federal 
Operating Permit actions requiring Major NSR 
Notice are issuance, renewal, and/or Significant 
Modifications. (Proposed 1302(C)(7)(b)(iv)) 

Requirement implied via generic references to 
Regulation XXX in various places throughout 
Regulation XIII. 

Equivalent. 

Addition of language indicating that the provisions 
of 1302(C)(7)(c) are not to be included in the SIP. 
(Proposed 1302(C)(7)(c)(iii)). 

None. More 
Stringent. 

Add Minor NSR Notice requirements.238 (Proposed 
1302(C)(7)(d)) 

None. More 
Stringent. 

                                                 
236 Added solely to comply with FCAA and Regulatory mandate.  No stack in the District has the potential to trigger 
this provision.  It is not expected, due to other unrelated construction requirements, that any stack in the future 
would ever trigger this provision. 
237 USEPA has requested that a number of provisions not be included in the SIP as they are State only requirements, 
not specifically required under the FCAA, or have a different approval process other than that provided by the SIP. 
238 Includes not only a numerical threshold but also a percentage calculation to allow for a “quick fix” if the District 
becomes nonattainment for additional air contaminants.   

204 of 527



62 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Proposed Change Current Requirement Stringency 
Addition of 45-day review period for USEPA, 
CARB and Affected States for permitting actions 
involving Federal Operating Permits. (Proposed 
1302(D)(2)(b)(i)) 

No such requirement in Regulation XIII.  Currently 
required in Regulation XII. 

Equivalent.239 

Shift the Major NSR Notice publication to website 
as opposed to newspaper notice. (Proposed 
1302(D)(3)(a)(i)b.) 

Newspaper Notice. Equivalent.240 

Addition of comment procedures and opportunity 
to request a public hearing in certain cases as part 
of Major NSR Notice. Addition of request for 
public hearing regarding visibility protection and 
stack height exceeding Good Engineering Practice. 
(Proposed 1302(D)(3)(b)) 

Comment procedures implied.   More 
Stringent. 

Addition of 30-day public comment period to 
Minor NSR Notice.  (1302(D)(3)(b)(ii)) 

No specific public comment period for Minor NSR 
Facility Notice; H&S appeal period implied. 

More 
Stringent. 

Addition of specific requirement to retain backup 
documentation for NSR action for a minimum of 5 
years. (Proposed 1302(D)(4)(f)) 

No specific requirement in Regulation XIII.  
However, District retention practice keeps Facility 
records for at least 5 years after ALL permits at a 
Facility have expired or been canceled. 

Equivalent. 

Revises threshold for Major Facility BACT 
requirement to use the levels in 1303(B)(1). 
(Proposed 1303(A)(3)) 

Current language places BACT threshold for PM at 
25 tpy as opposed to Major Facility/Offset 
threshold of 15 tpy. 

More 
Stringent.241 

Removes attainment pollutants from the table in 
1303(B)(1). 

CO and Lead are currently included in the table 
despite them being attainment pollutants in the 
District. 

Equivalent. 

Move all calculations provisions to Rule 1304. Currently calculations are in both 1304 and 1305 Equivalent. 
Bifurcate calculations in Rule 1304 into two 
distinct calculations, one for Applicability of Rule 
1303(A) and (B) (accounting for increases only) 
and one to determine amount of offsets required 
(including SERs). 

Current 1304 calculations include emissions 
increases and decreases for both applicability and 
amount of offsets needed.  

Equivalent. 

Reorganize and consolidate provisions of Rule 
1305.  Move SER provisions to proposed Rule 
1304. 

Current 1305 contains SER provisions. Equivalent. 

Removal of Rule 1310 and related provisions.242 Separate analysis was required in addition to 
normal analysis for Federal Major Facilities and 
Federal Major Modifications.  Resulted in use of 
CEQA documents for alternative site analysis and 
allowed use of PALs. 

Equivalent.243 

                                                 
239 Addition to NSR provisions required to obtain “Enhanced NSR” certification allowing Federal Operating Permit 
issuance, renewal and/or Significant Modifications to be processed and noticed concurrently with NSR actions. 
240 81 FR 71613 10/18/2016 and CARB Advisory 299, Air District New Source Review Rules Regarding Electronic 
Notice, June 2018. 
241 Once again note that as a practical matter this change should not result in many additional units acquiring BACT 
as most units acquire BACT under Rule 1303(A)(1) and (2)  as they emit > 25 lbs per day. 
242 Section VI. A. 4. above. 
243 Rule 1302(B)(1)(b)(i)a. also allows use of CEQA for alternative site analysis.  

205 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 63 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Proposed Change Current Requirement Stringency 
Addition of statement that Toxic NSR provisions 
are not intended as SIP submissions.  (Proposed 
1401, 1302(C)(5) and 1302(C)(7)(c)) 

None, More 
Stringent. 

Shift current rules in Regulation XVII to a single 
“adopt by reference” style Rule 1700. 

Multiple rules providing same requirements. Equivalent 

 
I. PROPOSED RULE SUMMARY 

This section gives an overview of the proposed amendments to Regulation XIII.  This 
section will also contain background information regarding the use of specific terms as 
well as notations regarding legal and practical implications of certain provisions.  Certain 
wording changes may not be discussed herein if they are adequately documented in the 
[bracketed italicized] notations contained in Appendix A.  Additional information and 
citations regarding the source of proposed changes may also be found in the [bracketed 
italicized] notations.  

Please also note that this action is intended to be submitted to USEPA as a SIP revision in 
conjunction with District Rule 219 – Equipment Not Requiring A Permit.  While certain 
interactions between Regulation XIII and Rule 219 will be explained here more detailed 
explanations regarding items specific to Rule 219 can be found in the Staff Report for 
that rule. 

1. Proposed Amended Rule 1300 – New Source Review General 

In general, the proposed amendments to Rule 1300 are primarily for clarity with 
some minor formatting changes.   

1300(A)(1)(a) – While this section remains unchanged, the use of the term 
“requirements” continues to be interpreted to include BACT and Offset 
requirements along with all the other provisions of Regulation XIII both 
procedural and substantive.   

1300(A)(1)(d) – This section remains unchanged.  Please note however, as this 
cross reference is merely part of a statement of purpose not a specific applicable 
requirement an additional statement “in effect on [date]” is not required. 

1300(A)(1)(e) – Adds a cross reference to Rule 1401 – New Source Review for 
Toxic Air Contaminants.  As this is merely part of a statement of purpose no 
reference to the intention that Rule 1401 not be included in the SIP is required at 
this place. 

1300(A)(1)(f) – Provides a cross reference to Regulation XVII – Prevention of 
Significant Deterioration and Rule 1700 therein. 

1300(B)(1) – The removal of the phrase “requires a permit” and change of 
reference from Regulation II to Rules 201 and 203 insures the provisions of Rule 

206 of 527



64 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

219 are not impliedly contradicted by Regulation XIII.244  Specifically Rule 
219(B)(5) requires that the emissions from equipment exempt from permit are to 
be considered in calculations for not only Regulation XIII – New Source Review 
but also Regulation XII – Federal Operating Permits and Regulation XVI – 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration unless the particular regulation 
specifically excludes such emissions in the calculation methodology.245  
Historically, the current provision has been interpreted by the District to include 
emissions from permit exempt equipment in the calculations when such are 
applicable and it is not expected that this proposed change will result in any 
procedural differences in the implementation of NSR.  The text has also been 
reformatted.246  

1300(E)(1) – A minor formatting change is proposed for this subsection.  In 
addition, the cross reference to Regulation II in this subsection is retained, as 
opposed to the change in subsection (B)(1).247  This retention is necessary to 
ensure compliance with other provisions contained in Regulation II such as, but 
not limited to, permit posting requirements and prohibitions against permit 
transfer without an application for change of ownership.248 

1300(E)(2) – Cross reference to Rule 1700 added to conform with rule shift in 
proposed Regulation XVII. 

2. Proposed Amended Rule 1301 – New Source Review Definitions 

Quotation marks around defined terms have been removed throughout the entire 
rule, certain terms have been standardized in regards to capitalization of defined 
terms as well as conditional plurals.  Due to the addition and deletion of 
definitions substantially renumbering of provisions has occurred.  In addition, all 
cross references have been checked and corrected to reflect the proposed 
amendments elsewhere in the Regulation.   

Former 1301(B) –The definition of Actual Emissions Reduction (AER) has been 
removed as the term is no longer used in the Regulation.  All references to AER 
elsewhere in the regulation have been replaces with more specific references to 
ERCs and SERs. 

Former 1301(C) ) – The definition of “Adjustment” has been removed as this 
specific term is not used in the Regulation.  All references to adjusted amounts or 
calculations contain specific notations regarding how such “adjustment” is to be 
made which rendered this definition confusing. 

                                                 
244 Proposed Rule 219 and Rule 219 Draft Staff Report, Sections VI. A. and VI. D. 
245 For example: the exclusion of fugitive emissions from Potential To Emit (PTE) calculations unless the emissions 
happen to occur at a Facility belonging to a source category listed in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C) as set forth in 
proposed Rule 1304(E)(2)(a).   
246 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.1.a and 1.3.2. 
247 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.2. 
248 Rules 206 and 209. 

207 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 65 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Former 1301(E) – The definition of Allowable Emissions has been removed.  The 
only use of this term was found in the definition of “Permanent.”  Since the 
definition of “Permanent” includes a reference to the term “Federally 
Enforceable” and all provisions contained in the definition of Allowable 
Emissions are also contained in “Federally Enforceable” this term is superfluous.  

1301(J) – The term Begin Actual Construction has not been modified.  The 
interpretation of this term will continue in accordance with currently applicable 
USEPA Guidance for Major Facilities and Major Modifications.249  However, for 
those Facilities subject to Minor Facility NSR notice requirements only250 the 
District will generally follow USEPA’s draft guidance as issued 3/25/2020251 
until such time as such guidance is either finalized by USEPA via rulemaking or 
other mechanism, further guidance is issued, or such guidance is otherwise 
impacted by a ruling of a court of competent jurisdiction.  As is current District 
policy, any construction by a Facility during the comment period prior to issuance 
of a permit would remain at the Facility’s own risk. 

1301(K) – The definition for Best Available Control Technology (BACT) is not 
changed.  However, it must be noted that subsection (L)(4) already complies with 
provisions of a pending NSR error correction rule.252  Specifically, USEPA is 
proposing to correct the definition of BACT in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(xl) to 
include a limitation that it cannot exceed not only NSPS standards under 40 CFR 
60 and NESHAPs standards under 40 CFR 61 but also MACT standards under 40 
CFR 63.  The current language citing appropriate provisions of the FCAA and 
“regulations promulgated thereunder” already provides this requirement. 

Former 1301(O) – The term Best Available Retrofit Control Technology 
(BARCT) has been removed as it is unused in the regulation. 

1301(O) – A definition for Class I Area has been added to clarify the difference 
between this definition and the definition of Mandatory Federal Class I Area as 
defined in proposed 1301(OO).253  In short, the difference between these two 

                                                 
249 USEPA Memo, E. Reich, Director, U.S. EPA Division of Stationary Source Enforcement, to U.S. EPA 
Enforcement Division Directors, Regions I-X, Interpretation of "Constructed" as it Applies to Activities Undertaken 
Prior to Issuance of a PSD Permit, 12/18/1978; USEPA Memo, E. Reich, Director, U.S. EPA Division of Stationary 
Source Compliance, to R. DeSpain, Chief, Air Programs Branch, EPA Region VIII, Construction Activities Prior to 
Issuance of a PSD Permit with Respect to "Begin Actual Construction," 3/28/1986; USEPA Memo, J. Rasnic, 
Director, U.S. EPA Stationary Source Compliance, Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards, to B. Turlinski, 
Chief, Air Enforcement Branch, EPA Region III, Construction Activities at Georgia Pacific, 5/13/1993; USEPA 
Memo, D. Howekamp, Director, Air and Toxics Division, EPA Region IX, to all Region IX Air Agency Directors 
and NSR Contacts, Preconstruction Review and Cons, 11/4/1993; USEPA Letter, J. Seitz, Director, EPA Office of 
Air Quality Planning and Standards, to C. Williams, Commissioner, Minnesota Pollution Control Agency, 
12/13/1995; and 61 FR 38250, 38270-28271, 7/23/1996. 
250 Proposed Rule 1302(C)(7)(d).   
251 USEPA Webpage, Begin Actual Construction,  https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2020-
03/documents/begin_actual_construction_032520_2.pdf  
252 This rule as of 1/29/2021 has been signed but not yet published.  USEPA Webpage, Final NSR Error Correction 
Rule, https://www.epa.gov/nsr/nsr-regulatory-actions. 
253 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 2.1. 

208 of 527



66 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

definitions involves items which may have been designated a Class I Area but are 
not specifically listed in 40 CFR 81, Subpart D.  Mandatory Federal Class I Areas 
trigger specific requirements regarding Visibility Protection254 while Class I 
Areas involve impact analysis for PSD purposes.255  A cross reference to the 
designated Class I Areas found in California256 is provided for ease of use.257 

1301(P) – Commence Construction has been clarified to cross reference PSD 
requirements.258  Please note that this definition is initially triggered by permitting 
actions while “Begin Actual Construction” is solely a construction activity-based 
trigger.259 

Former 1301(W) – The term Dedicated Cargo Carrier is removed as it is not used 
in the Regulation. 

1301(T) – A definition for Dispersion Technique has been added to implement 
stack height provisions of 40 CFR 51.164 and 51.118.260  Since there are no 
stacks currently in the District which might trigger these provisions the definition 
is provided by reference to 40 CFR 51.100(hh). 

1301(Y) – The Emissions Unit definition has been clarified to include air 
pollution control equipment.261   

1301(Z) – A definition for Enforceable has been added at USEPA’s request.  
Please note there are additional requirements contained in the definition of 
Federally Enforceable.262 

Former 1301(DD) – The definition of Essential Public Service is removed as it is 
now provided by reference in Rule 1700(B). 

1301(BB) – An Excessive Concentration definition has been added to implement 
stack height provisions of 40 CFR 51.164 and 51.118.263  Since there are no 
stacks currently in the District which might trigger these provisions the definition 
is provided by reference to 40 CFR 51.100(kk). 

                                                 
254 Proposed Rule 1302(B)(1)(c). 
255 Proposed Rule 1302(B)(1)(d). 
256 40 CFR 81.405. 
257 Cross references to Class I areas in other states are not included as the AVAQMD boundaries are over 100 
kilometers from the nearest state line. 
258 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.1.c. 
259 Proposed Rules 1302(D)(5)(a)(iv) and (D)(6)(a)(iv). 
260 Proposed Rule 1302(C)(4).  See Also:  USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.3.a. 
261 Subsections VI. A. 3. and VI. E. 1. above.  See Also:  USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comments 1.1.1.a. and 
1.2.1.a. 
262 Proposed Rule 1301(FF). 
263 Proposed Rule 1302(C)(4).  See Also:  USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.a.1. 

209 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 67 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Former 1301(EE) - The term Executive Officer referring to the Executive Officer 
of the California Air Resources Board has been removed as the term is no longer 
used in the Regulation. 

1301(DD) – Federal Class I Area has been added pursuant to USEPA’s request.  
Please see explanation regarding Class I Area definition in proposed Rule1301(P), 
above and Mandatory Federal Class I Area definition in proposed Rule 
1301(OO).264 

1301(EE) – A definition for Federal Land Manager has been added pursuant to 
USEPA’s request.265 

1301(GG) – Fugitive Emissions has been slightly adjusted to more closely 
conform with definition in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(ix).266  Previously included 
language regarding “activities of man” appears to have been the result of industry 
concern that naturally occurring dust from desert terrain could somehow be 
included in emissions calculations.  Proposed changes elsewhere in the regulation 
to specifically include in Fugitive Emissions only those emissions “directly 
related to the Emissions Unit(s)” at Facilities belonging to a category listed in 40 
CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C) renders that prior language unnecessary.  Please note 
that all calculation methods have been relocated to proposed Rule 1304. 

1301(HH) – A Good Engineering Practice definition has been added to implement 
stack height provisions of 40 CFR 51.164 and 51.118.267  Since there are no 
stacks currently in the District which might trigger these provisions the definition 
is provided by reference to 40 CFR 51.100(ii). 

1301(JJ) – Historic Actual Emissions is proposed to be changed to add more 
specific reference to the list of Facility categories found in 40 CFR 
51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C).268  Please note that all calculation methods now are located 
in Proposed Rule 1304. 

1301(NN) – Mandatory Class I Federal Area/Mandatory Federal Class I Area has 
been added.269  The term used subsequently in the Regulation is Mandatory 
Federal Class I Area.  Please see explanation under Class I Area definition in 
proposed Rule 1301(P), above. 

1301(QQ) – Modeling definition proposes to add a cross reference to 40 CFR 51 
Appendix W at USEPA’s request for clarity.270  References to USEPA’s approval 

                                                 
264 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 2.1. 
265 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.1.e. 
266 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.1.b. 
267 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.3.a. 
268 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.1.a. 
269 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 2.1. 
270 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.1.b. 

210 of 527



68 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

requirements are included to allow use of future revisions to Appendix W without 
needing to change this definition. 

1301(RR) – Current definition of Modification is circular by using the term 
internally in the definition in subsection (1)(c).  Replacing this term with 
“alteration” will avoid this problem.  In addition, specific references to 
“replacement Emissions Unit(s)” have been added for clarity and internal 
definitional language consistency.   

Please note that the provisions in Proposed Rule 1301(SS)(1)(c)(iv), while 
unchanged from previous, are more stringent than those found in 40 CFR 
51.165(a)(1)(xxi).  That provision limiting replacement units to non-Major 
Facilities and non-Major Modifications was derived from a USEPA comment271 
to the MDAQMD “to allow the retention of the exemption” from Modification.  It 
is also important to note that a particular change to a Permit Unit must result in a 
Net Emission Increase as calculated pursuant to proposed Rule 1304(B)(2) to 
qualify as a Modification.   

1301(SS) – Definition of Motor Vehicle has been revised to conform with Rule 
219 provisions and the relevant sections of the California Vehicle Code. 

1301(TT) – Definition of Nearby has been added to implement stack height 
provisions of 40 CFR 51.164 and 51.118.272  Since there are no stacks currently in 
the District which might trigger these provisions the definition is provided by 
reference to 40 CFR 51.100(jj). 

Former 1301(SS)  – Definition of Net Air Quality Benefit has been removed as 
the term is no longer used in the regulation. 

1301(WW) – Nonattainment Air Pollutant is revised to include a citation to 40 
CFR 81.305.273  In addition, language has been added to clarify that pollutants 
designated under 40 CFR 81.305 are to be referred to as Federal Nonattainment 
Pollutants while those designated under H&S Code §39607 are referred to as 
State Nonattainment Pollutants.  Please note that the term Regulated Air Pollutant 
as defined includes precursors so the notation “and their precursors” in this 
definition is unnecessary.  See also definition for Ambient Air Quality Standard 
as proposed in Proposed Rule 1301(G). 

1301(XX) – A definition for Nonattainment Area has been added to correspond 
with the definition of Nonattainment Air Pollutant and clarify the difference 
between Federal and State Nonattainment Areas.274 

                                                 
271 USEPA Letter, M. Haber to C. Fryxell, 3/10/1995, MDAQMD Final Staff Report Regulation XIII – New Source 
Review 3/25/1996, Appendix C pg C3, 3/25/1996. 
272 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.3.a. 
273 USEPA Email, L. Yannayon to K. Nowak, Re After Action Report, 3/25/2020 (USEPA Email of 3/25/2020), 
Attached file 1301 DD 2020 23 Mar + EPA. 
274 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 3.3. 

211 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 69 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Former 1301(WW)  – The term Nonpermitted Exempt Unit has been removed as 
it is no longer used in the Regulation. 

1301(AAA) – The term Offset Emission Reductions (Offsets) definition has been 
adjusted to clarify that Offsets are ERCs and SERs as used pursuant to the 
provisions of Proposed Rule 1305.  A cross reference to SER calculation 
procedures in 1304(C) is also added. 

1301(BBB) – Permanent has been changed per request to conform with USEPA’s 
preferred language.275 

1301(FFF) – The citation to an applicable test method has been removed from the 
PM10 definition pursuant to USEPA’s request.276  The citation in question is used 
for atmospheric measurement of PM only.  Language has been added to clarify 
that condensable PM is included as part of PM10 for calculations performed on or 
after 1/1/2011 pursuant to 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(xxxvii).277 

1301(GGG) – The definition of Potential to Emit remains unchanged despite 
USEPA’s concerns regarding cross references to Regulation II rules.278  The 
MDAQMD has determined that the cross references contained in this definition 
are appropriate. 

1301(HHH) – The table in the definition of Precursor is changed to include PM2.5 
for clarity as this pollutant is technically included via the definition of Regulated 
Air Pollutant in Proposed Rule 1301(SSS).279  H2S has been removed from the 
table as it does not form a secondary air pollutant.   

1301(III) – Proposed Emissions has been adjusted to utilize term post-
modification to avoid confusion with the defined term Modified.  Also added 
clarification per USEPA request that this definition specify that Fugitive 
Emissions for those Facilities belonging to a category listed in 40 CFR 
51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C) are included.280 

1301(JJJ) – A definition of Quantifiable has been revised to conform to USEPA’s 
preferred language.281 

Former 1301(KKK)  - The term Reactive Organic Compound (ROC) has been 
removed.  It was originally included in the Regulation when the Federal definition 
of Volatile Organic Compound (VOC)282 excluded a slightly different set of non-

                                                 
275 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.a.1. 
276 USEPA Email of 3/25/2020, Attached file 1301 DD 2020 23 Mar + EPA. 
277 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.1.d. 
278 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.2. 
279 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comments 1.2.1.d.  and 3.1. 
280 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.1.a. 
281 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.a.1. 
282 Current Rule 1301(ZZZ). 

212 of 527



70 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

reactive compounds.  Currently the definitions of ROC and VOC are the same and 
thus this term has been removed from the Regulation. 

1301(LLL) – The term Real has not been changed as it complies with USEPA’s 
preferred language.283 

1301(OOO) – The term Registry has been expanded to include the term “ERC 
Registry” as that is the term in common usage within the District. 

1301(QQQ) – In the definition of Seasonal Source the term “Permit Unit” has 
been changed to Emissions Unit in to clarify applicability.284 

1301(TTT) – The table in the definition of Significant has been revised to only 
include Nonattainment Areas and Nonattainment Pollutants.285  Attainment 
pollutant amounts are incorporated by reference in Proposed Rule 1700(B).286  
The classification references have been adjusted to specify “Severe Ozone Federal 
Nonattainment Area” and “Moderate PM10 Federal Nonattainment Area” for 
clarity.  Please note that the emissions levels as listed in the table have not 
changed. 

1301(VVV) – A definition of the South Coast Air Quality Management District 
(SCAQMD) has been added as it is referenced in the Regulation, specifically in 
proposed Rule 1309 regarding ERC’s credited by SCAQMD and held by 
companies within the AVAQMD. 

1301(WWW) – A definition of Stack has been added at USEPA’s request.287 

1301(XXX) – A Stack In Existence definition has been added to implement the 
stack height provisions of 40 CFR 51.164 and 51.118.288  Since there are no 
stacks currently in the District which might trigger these provisions the definition 
is provided by reference to 40 CFR 51.100(gg). 

1301(ZZZ) – Surplus has been revised to reflect USEPA’s preferred language.  
The provision “not otherwise required by Federal, State or District law, rule, 
order, permit or regulation” is intended to include, but not be limited to, items 
such as:  

• Anything contained in the Federally approved SIP effective within the 
jurisdiction of the District. 

• Any requirement, regulation or measure that the District or the State has 
included in a legally required and publicly available list of measures 

                                                 
283 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.a.1. 
284 Subsections VI. A. 3. and VI. E. 1. above. 
285 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 3.3. 
286 40 CFR 52.21(b)(23). 
287 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.3.a. 
288 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.3.a. 

213 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 71 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

scheduled for adoption and would, by its terms, be effective within the 
jurisdiction of the District. 

• Any requirement, regulation or measure for which the District or the State 
has issued a public notice of intent to adopt and would, by its terms, be 
effective within the jurisdiction of the District. 

• Any specific regulatory or permitting requirement legally applicable to an 
Emissions Unit or Facility such as RACT, BACT, LAER, NSPS, 
NESHAP, and/or BACM.  

• Applicable provisions and or supporting documentation regarding 
attainment or maintenance demonstrations required under the FCAA 
including assumptions in Reasonable Further Progress demonstrations, 
milestone demonstrations, proposed control measures identified as 
potentially having an enforceable near-term emissions reduction, 
assumptions used in conformity determinations and assumptions used in 
emissions inventories.289 
 

1301(BBBB) – The definition of United States Environmental Protection Agency 
(USEPA) has been shifted to include gender neutral terminology. 

3. Proposed Amended Rule 1302 – New Source Review Procedure 

1302(B) – Generally this section has been reformatted and renumbered for clarity 
and to make certain items, which were impliedly required by existing provisions, 
explicitly required. 

1302(B)(1)(a)(i) – Specific wording requiring information on location, design, 
construction and operation of the Facility to be included in an application has 
been added at USEPA’s request.  A provision requiring a determination of 
whether stack height exceeds Good Engineering Practice has been added to 
ensure that the analysis required under proposed subsection (C)(4) occurs if 
necessary.  A cross reference to 40 CFR 51 Appendix W modeling protocols has 
been added at USEPA’s request.290 

1302(B)(1)(a)(ii) – This provision has been reworded for clarity and duplicate 
provisions have been removed. 

1302(B)(1)(a)(iii) – Added a provision requiring a PSD analysis if such is 
necessary.  

1302(B)(1)(a)(iv) – Added a provision allowing the District to request additional 
information in an application if such becomes necessary. 

                                                 
289 Butte County APCD, Rule 432 – Federal New Source Review, 4/24/2014, Section 4.45,  
290 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comments 1.1.1.b., 1.1.3.a., and 3.4. 

214 of 527



72 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

1302(B)(1)(b) – This subsection has been substantially reworded for clarity.  
Provisions regarding former Rule 1310 have been removed.291 

1302(B)(1)(c) – Provisions regarding Mandatory Federal Class I Area relating to 
visibility have been clarified to avoid confusion with the PSD requirements 
involving Federal Class I Area(s).292  Please see explanation regarding proposed 
Rule 1301(O), (DD), and (NN), above.  In addition, Plantwide Applicability 
Provisions have been removed as unnecessary as such provisions were never 
used. 

1302(B)(1)(d) – Added specific requirements necessary for PSD analysis.  A 
cross reference to 40 CFR 51 Appendix W modeling protocols has been included 
at USEPA’s request.293 

1302(B)(1)(e) – A provision requiring confidential information to be clearly 
identified has been added to conform with subsection (D)(3)(c). 

1302(B)(2)(a) – Transmission of the determination of completeness 
“immediately” has been changed to 10 working days so provide a definitive time 
limit for such transmission. 

1302(B)(2)(a)(ii) – A provision is added to require a completeness determination 
with a PSD component to be transmitted to USEPA. 

1302(B)(2)(a)(iii) – A provision requiring a notification and a copy of the 
application to USEPA and Federal Land Manager when an application contains 
visibility impacts for NSR or PSD or both has been moved from former Rule 
1302(B)(2)(c).294  Once again please note that Federal Class I Area is the term 
with the larger number of potentially applicable areas thus this reference will 
cover both the PSD requirements and the NSR requirements related to Mandatory 
Federal Class I Area(s).295 

1302(B)(2)(b) – A provision referencing the next step in the process has been 
added for consistency in formatting.   

1302(B)(2)(c) – Provisions regarding the next step when no additional analysis is 
necessary have been adjusted for clarity. 

Former 1302(B)(2)(c) – This provision has been moved to proposed 
1302(B)(2)(a) above. 

1302(B)(3) – This section has been revised for clarity. 

                                                 
291 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.1. 
292 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comments 1.3.1 and 2.1. 
293 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comments 1.1.1.b. and 2.1.  
294 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 2.1. 
295 Proposed Rules 1301(O) and (DD) 

215 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 73 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

1302(B)(4) – Cross references to the Complex Source Evaluation fee has been 
added. 

1302(C)(1) – The word “type” as referencing pollutants has been replaced with 
this phrase “specific pollutants” for clarity.296  The provisions referencing Rule 
1310 have been removed.  

1302(C)(2) – This entire subsection has been reorganized to more closely reflect 
the formatting and order of later provisions.   

1302(C)(2)(c) – This area formerly contained a differentiation between 
applications proposing to use SERs and those which did not.  As Proposed Rule 
1304 calculation procedure has been adjusted to shift the use of SERs to the Net 
Emissions Increase Calculation, as opposed to their current inclusion in 
applicability determinations, this distinction is no longer necessary.  The 
provision has also been clarified such that SERs are not technically reductions in 
Potential Emissions but instead used as part of the Net Emissions Increase 
Calculation.   

Please note that USEPA is also concerned about confusion between the term SER 
and Significant Emissions Rate, also abbreviated SER, as used in PSD 
regulations.297 Given the widespread familiarity by regulated industry within the 
District with the abbreviation of SER standing for Simultaneous Emissions 
Reduction and the low potential for use of the term Significant Emissions Rate the 
AVAQMD has opted to retain its current acronym.  Any future use of the term in 
the PSD context will be spelled out completely.  

1302(C)(2)(d) – Provisions regarding engineering analysis document, BACT 
requirements and reference to the next step in the analysis process has been 
provided. 

Former 1302(C)(2)(b) – Procedural provisions regarding PSD have been relocated 
to subsection (D)(5)(b)(iv). 

1302(C)(3) – This entire provision has been moved and revised from former 
subsection (C)(5).  The notes below indicate changes from original wording in 
that subsection.This move streamlines the analysis process.   

1302(C)(3)(a) – The word “type” as referencing pollutants has been replaced with 
this phrase “specific pollutants” for clarity.298 

1302(C)(3)(b) – This provision contains changes to conform with USEPA 
regulations and guidance regarding implementation of FCAA §173(a)(1)(A) (42 

                                                 
296 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.1. 
297 USEPA Email, L. Yannayon to K. Nowak, Re: Notices in 1302, 8/4/2020 (USEPA Email of 8/4/2020), Attached 
File 1302 DD4 2020 13 Jul + EPA 
298 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.1. 

216 of 527



74 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

U.S.C. §7503(a)(1)(A)).299  The current wording was heavily influenced by a 
USEPA comment letter of 3/10/1995.300 Minor wording changes to better reflect 
proposed language changes in Rule 1304 and Rule 1305 have also been provided. 

1302(C)(3)(b)(ii) - Please note that the term “Offsets” in this subsection primarily 
refers to ERCs. However, pursuant to proposed Rule 1305(C)(2) SERs may be 
used directly as offsetting emissions reductions instead of being used to reduce 
Net Emissions Increases under proposed Rule 1304(B)(2).301 

1302(C)(3)(b)(iii) – 1310 cross refences have been removed due to the proposed 
deletion of Rule 1310.302   

1302(C)(3)(b)(iv) and (v) – Use of defined terms allows simplification of 
requirements.   

Former provisions of Rule 1302(C)(4) have been removed as unnecessary due to 
the deletion of Rule 1310.303 

1302(C)(4) – Stack height analysis provisions and requirements304 are proposed to 
be added pursuant to USEPA’s request.  While there are currently no stacks in the 
District that are subject to this provision it is provided to meet a mandatory 
regulatory element.  Please note that the applicable regulations require full 30-day 
notice and comment for these provisions and therefore a cross reference to 
proposed subsection (C)(7)(a)(i) is provided.305  Use of defined terms eliminates 
need for federal regulatory cross references.306 

1302(C)(5) – Revised to match formatting of other provisions and to correct cross 
references.  Language added pursuant to USEPA request excluding this provision 
from the SIP. 

Former 1302(C)(5) – Provisions moved to subsection (C)(3). 

1302(C)(6) – Provisions added regarding PSD analysis and cross reference to 
Rule 1700.307  Provisions designed to match formatting of previous sections.  

1302(C)(7) – This entire subsection has been extensively reworked to create four 
levels of notice:  Major NSR Notice, Toxic NSR Notice, Minor NSR Notice and 

                                                 
299 40 CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(C)(1-2); USEPA Memo, J. Seitz, Director Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards 
to D. Howekamp, Director Region IX, Air and Toxics Division, Response to Request for Guidance on Use of Pre-
1990 ERC's and Adjusting for RACT at Time of Use, 8/26/1994. 
300 USEPA Letter, M. Haber to C. Fryxell, 3/10/1995, MDAQMD Final Staff Report Regulation XIII – New Source 
Review 3/25/1996, Appendix C Pages C-4 ¶2 and C-5 ¶4. 
301 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.a.5. 
302 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comments 1.3.1. and 3.3. 
303 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.1. 
304 40 CFR 51.164 and 51.118. 
305 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.3.a. 
306 Proposed Rule 1301(T), (BB), (HH), (TT) and (XXX). 
307 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.1. 

217 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 75 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Permit Issuance Notice.  Language has been standardized across various 
subsections.  The specific subsections themselves are also reorganized to reflect 
the order of the analysis performed earlier in subsection (C). 

1302(C)(7)(b) - Major NSR Notice is required in the following situations:  If 
offsets are necessary pursuant to Rule 1303(B), If the stack height analysis from 
Rule 1302(C)(4) has been performed, If Rule 1700 PSD requirements apply, or 
the action involves the issuance, renewal or significant modification of a Federal 
Operating Permit.  The proposed language adds the stack height analysis 
requirement and clarifies that only Federal Operating Permit issuance, renewal or 
significant modifications require this level of notice.  A generalized reference to 
subsection (D) is provided, as opposed to a more specific reference, as that 
subsection provides specific requirements for distinct situations which may apply 
to multiple notice levels.308 

1302(C)(7)(c) – Toxic NSR Notice applies when there is notice required pursuant 
to the provisions of Rule 1401.  The provision is designed such that the notice can 
be either performed separately or included in the normal noticing procedure.  
Language has been added at the request of USEPA to exclude this subsection 
from the SIP.309   

1302(C)(7)(d) – Minor NSR Notice has been added.  The threshold levels are 
expressed as numbers for ease of use.  A “backstop” provision set at 80% of any 
applicable nonattainment Major Facility threshold is retained to cover the unlikely 
situation involving the District being designated nonattainment for any additional 
pollutants.310  Justification for these thresholds may be found in Section VI. D. 
above.   

The Hazardous Air Pollutant thresholds match those found in the Title V, Federal 
Operating Permit Program.311  The addition of emissions increases exceeding the 
Federal Significance Level for Regulated Air Pollutants to this level of notice will 
ensure that Minor NSR Notice will occur in cases where a Facility may not be 
required to do anything under the PSD provisions of Rule 1700 but is none the 
less Significant as defined in 40 CFR 52.21(b)(23).  Please note, however, that 
any nonattainment pollutant increase larger than the significance level within the 
AVAQMD will automatically be larger than the thresholds found in Rule 1303(B) 
and thus require Major NSR Notice.   

1302(C)(7)(e) – Permit Issuance Notice occurs when none of the other notice 
provisions apply.  Please note that this notice will include publication on the 

                                                 
308 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comments 1.1.2.b., 1.1.3.a., and 1.3.1. 
309 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.3. 
310 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.2.b. 
311 Regulation XXX – Title V Permits. 

218 of 527



76 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

District’s website on the District’s website with available access to the underlying 
analysis documents.312 

1302(D)(1)(b) – A slight terminology change has been provided.  “Denial” is used 
to reference a negative final outcome for a permitting action.  “Disapproval,” is 
used to reference the preliminary action taken by the District when a denial is 
ultimately contemplated.  The preliminary determination technically constitutes 
both the engineering evaluation and a draft permit language.313 

1302(D)(1)(c) – Provisions regarding combining the NSR preliminary decision 
with a PSD document and/or a Title V Permit action have been added to allow 
such documents to be performed concurrently if the applicant so wishes. 

1302(D)(2)(a) – Provisions regarding providing the application to the Federal 
Land Manager have been deleted as duplicative as such requirement is already 
provided in proposed subsection (B)(2) along with inclusion in the list of entities 
requiring notice in proposed subsection (D)(3)(a)(i).  Please also note the 
provisions regarding comments received, if any, from the Federal Land Manager 
in proposed subsection (D)(2)(d). 

1302(D)(2)(b)(i) – To obtain enhanced NSR certification314, allowing Federal 
Operating Permit changes to be issued concurrently with NSR, the notice and 
comment period for USEPA must be 45 days.  This provision was added to 
specify that time period. 

1302(D)(2)(d) – While certain elements in this section are not technically 
required, which agencies are notified are coordinated and consolidated with the 
three main levels of notice for ease of use.315  In effect, this means that the 
Federal Land Manager will receive an extra notice in a few situations while 
CARB would receive such additional notice in others.  

1302(D)(2)(e) – This section has been added pursuant to USEPA request to allow 
for additional review if and when Mobile, Area, Indirect or Interpollutant offsets 
are used.316  Please note limitations on use of Mobile, Area, and Indirect Offsets 
to those calculated by a SIP approved calculation rule as found in proposed Rule 
1305(C)(3).  Please also see the notation in proposed Rule 1305(C)(6) regarding 
the current viability of interpollutant offsets. 

1302(D)(3) – This provision has been reorganized for clarity to differentiate 
between the recipients and publication requirements for particular types of notice 
and the contents of said notices.  It has also been revised to coordinate with the 

                                                 
312 Proposed Rule 1302(D)(3)(iii). 
313 Proposed Rule 1302(D)(1); AVAQMD Webpage, Permitting Public Notices, https://avaqmd.ca.gov/public-
notices-advisories.  
314 40 CFR 70.7(d)(1)(v). 
315 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 2.1. 
316 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.1. 

219 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 77 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

threshold levels contained in proposed subsection (C)(7).  Please note that “send” 
as used in this subsection may be accomplished by a variety of methods including 
but not limited to USPS and Email. 

1302(D)(3)(a)(i)b. – Shifts Major NSR and Toxic NSR notice from newspaper 
publication to website publication317 pursuant to changes detailed in the USEPA 
public noticing regulations 318and CARB guidance.319  

1302(D)(3)(a)(i)c. – While partially duplicative of requirements in (D)(2)(a) this 
provision specifies the list of all entities to be notified under Major NSR for ease 
of use.  Toxic NSR notice is included, despite the fact that certain entities on the 
list are not required to have such notice, to consolidate the number of notification 
lists into three discreet types.320  A cross reference to the Clerk of the Board as the 
official “keeper” of the list of persons requesting notice has been removed as that 
task has been assigned to a variety of different personnel over time. 

1302(D)(3)(a)(i)d. – Provision partially deleted to conform with provisions 
regarding electronic notification.321 

Former Rule 1302(D)(3)(a)(ii) – Provisions regarding contents of particular types 
of notice have been relocated to proposed subsection (D)(3)(b). 

1302(D)(3)(a)(ii)b. – While Minor NSR Notice is currently provided via website 
without a specific rule reference a provision requiring such notice and that the 
notice be viewable for the entire duration of the comment period has been 
added.322 

1302(D)(3)(a)(iii) – A provision has been added regarding posting the final permit 
on the District’s website for those actions which do not require either Major NSR 
Notice or Minor NSR Notice. 

1302(D)(3)(b) – The provisions regarding the contents of each type of notice have 
been separated into their own subsection. 

1302(D)(3)(b)(i) – A provision requiring comment procedures to be set forth in 
Major NSR Notice has been added along with a specific 30-day comment period, 
and a cross reference to the District Hearing Board review provisions.  In 
addition, a specific notation regarding the ability to request a public hearing has 
been delineated for permit actions when stack height exceeds Good Engineering 
Practices; the degree of increment consumption for PSD; Federal Operating 
Permit issuance, renewal or Significant Modifications; and visibility impacts on a 

                                                 
317 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.2.a. 
318 81 FR 71613, 10/18/2016. 
319 CARB, Advisory 299, Air District New Source Review Rules Regarding Electronic Notice, July 2018. 
320 Colloquially referred to as the “Big List” the “Small List” and “Website Only.” 
321 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.2.a.  
322 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.2.a.  

220 of 527



78 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Federal Class I Area.323 Each content item has been separated for ease of use, 
checklist fashion. 

1302(D)(3)(b)(ii) – A provision requiring a specific 30-day notice and comment 
period has been added to Minor NSR Notice along with a requirement to include 
an explanation of comment procedures.324  Once again, each content item has 
been separated for ease of use. 

1302(D)(3)(c) – Provisions in this section have been consolidated and reworked 
so as to not duplicate items already required to be included pursuant to the notice 
provisions. 

1302(D)(3)(d) – This subsection originally overlapped with former subsection (e).  
The two sections have been consolidated.  

Former Rule 1302(D)(3)(d) – Provisions have been combined with subsection 
(D)(3)(d). 

1302(D)(3)(e) – A specific provision regarding public hearing requests has been 
added. 

1302(D)(3)(h) – A provision regarding availability of documents pursuant to the 
California Public Records Act has been added. 

1302(D)(4)(b) – Wording has been revised slightly to clarify that the final action 
is the issuance of the permits not the approval of the NSR Document since the 
NSR Document contains not only the draft permits but also backup analysis and 
notice documentation.325 

1302(D)(4)(f) – A provision requiring NSR Documents to be available for 5 years 
has been added.326  Please also note that current District records retention policy 
requires these records to be retained until a minimum of 5 years after ALL the 
permits for the related Facility have been canceled, expired, surrendered AND 
any ERCs banked from that Facility have been used.  On a practical matter, 
Facility records tend to be kept indefinitely due to multiple requests from land use 
agencies and title companies regarding what may have been historically located at 
a particular site. 

1302(D)(5)(a)(iv) – Provision reiterating proposed Rule 1305 requirement that 
offsets are to be obtained prior to commencement of construction is added. 

                                                 
323 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comments 1.1.2.b., 1.1.3.a., and 2.1. 
324 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comments 1.1.2.a. and 1.1.2.b. 
325 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 3.3. 
326 AVAQMD Governing Board Policy 13-01 – Requests for Inspection and/or Copying Public Records, 3/19/2003.  
See also: MDAQMD Governing Board Policy 93-2 Provision and Retention of Public Records, 2/25/2019; 
MDAQMD Standard Practice 4-5, 12/10/2019 as MDAQMD provides services by contract for AVAQMD and thus 
the MDAQMD documents regarding retention control. 

221 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 79 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

1302(D)(5)(b) – While this section prohibiting the APCO from issuing permits in 
certain circumstances is in part duplicative with requirements in other sections it 
has been retained as a final review and cross-check to ensure that those 
requirements have been met. 

1302(D)(5)(b)(ii) – Language regarding modifications to permits and other 
necessary activities required under proposed Rule 1309 and/or 1305 has been 
broadened to ensure that no required activities are inadvertently omitted. 

1302(D)(6)(a) – Standardization of language and use of defined terms has been 
added throughout this subsection. 

4. Proposed Amended Rule 1303 – New Source Review Requirements  

1303(A)(1) and (2) – While these provisions are not proposed to be changed it 
must be noted that these requirements are derived from H&S Code §40918(a)(1).  
Please also note that Rule 219(B)(4) allows the APCO to require a permit for any 
Emissions Unit if there is a requirement that needs to be fully enforceable.  That 
provision includes any Federal, State or District requirement including those 
contained in this regulation. 

1303(A)(3) – Language has been shifted to match formulation of (A)(1) and 
(A)(2).  Provisions are clarified such that the BACT requirement specific in 
regards to all new or Modified Permit Units at a Major Facility.  Also clarifies 
that BACT is triggered by Major Facility (greater than the 1303(B)(1) threshold) 
status not as a flat 25 tpy of a Nonattainment Air Pollutant. 

1303(B)(1) – This provision remains unchanged as a Facility based threshold to 
avoid inadvertently creating a situation which might be construed as a “back-
off.”327  Please note that this requirement is a mandate which applies when there 
is any of the following:  An existing (pre-modification) Major Facility, A New 
Facility with PE > threshold, and any Facility where the post-modification 
emissions > threshold amounts regardless of the specific situation triggering the 
emissions increase over the threshold.  This means that even if there happens to 
be no specific physical change, such as modifying a permit limit, and the potential 
emissions are greater than the threshold then this provision will apply.  
Additionally, when this subsection is triggered the calculations pursuant to 
proposed 1304(B)(2) will need to be performed to determine the initial base 
quantity of offsets which are needed.  In a few cases this will result in the initial 
emissions change calculation pursuant to proposed 1304(B)(1) resulting in an 
offset requirement being triggered but when the Net Emissions Increase 
calculation is performed pursuant to proposed 1304(B)(2) the amount of offsets 
will be 0 and the resultant emissions limitation as expressed on the permits will 
result in the Facility as permitted remaining a Minor Facility. 

                                                 
327 H&S Code §§42500 et seq. (SB 288 of 2003, Ch 467); FCAA §110(l), 42 U.S.C. §7410(l). 

222 of 527



80 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

1303(B)(1) Table – Please note that the PM10 offset threshold for the District is 
much less than not only the Federal Moderate Nonattainment PM10 threshold but 
also the PSD threshold.  For an explanation of the origin of this threshold please 
see Section VI. A. 6. above.  Attainment pollutants have been removed from the 
table as it applies to only nonattainment pollutants.  PM10 remains on the table as 
the AVAQMD is State nonattainment for this pollutant. 

1303(B)(3) – Additional language has been added indicating the timing for 
calculating the Offset burden and BACT when a minor Facility becomes Major 
due to an increase in a previous permit limitation that kept the Facility as a 
synthetic minor Facility.328  Please also note that USEPA has indicated that while 
the FCAA language requires LAER, California BACT is in effect equivalent to 
the Federal LAER requirement.329  

1303(B)(4) – Provision language has been clarified to avoid the use of the word 
“type” at USEPA’s request.330 

5. Proposed Amended Rule 1304 – New Source Review Emissions 
Calculations 

In general, Rule 1304 is being revised to include all necessary calculational 
provisions and Simultaneous Emissions Reductions (SER) provisions leaving 
offset related provisions in proposed Rule 1305. 

1304(A)(1)(a)(ii) – Provision has been reworded to conform with shift in the 
position of SER use in the calculations.  Original calculations used SERs in 
determining emissions change for both applicability and offset amount 
calculations.  Revisions are proposed to shift SER use to only offset amount 
calculations. 

1304(A)(1)(a)(iv) – Provision is added to provide a cross reference regarding 
calculation of terms used in proposed Rule 1305 so that all calculation methods 
will be contained in Rule 1304. 

1304(B) – This section has been reorganized to create two distinct calculation 
methodologies, one relating to applicability determinations and the other relating 
to offset amount determinations. 

1304(B)(1) – While the initial calculation of emissions change remains the same 
please note that the new provision regarding project emissions change only 
includes positive emissions changes (aka positive numbers from calculations 
only) excluding emissions decreases and SERs.  Provisions for calculating project 
level emissions changes are provided in proposed 1304(B)(1)(b).  This will be 

                                                 
328 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.d. 
329 USEPA, Email of 2/28/2020  attachment titled 02-28-20 Initial EPA Response to MDAQMD Letter Dated 
January 28 
330 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.1. 

223 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 81 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

used to determine the applicability of the provisions of proposed Rule 1303.  
Emissions reductions and SERs will be applied in the Net Emissions Increase 
calculations and be used to determine the base amount, if any, of offsetting 
emissions reductions needed. 

1304(B)(2) – This provision, while similar to proposed Rule 1304(B)(1) includes 
a specific calculation for both new Facilities and projects.  Net emissions increase 
calculations include reductions in emissions and SERs. 

1304(C) – Consolidates all SER related provisions into proposed Rule 1304.  
Provisions are primarily unchanged.  The only exception that the use of potential 
to emit as Historic Actual Emissions when such PTE was fully offset in a prior 
permitting action is moved from its former location in Rule 1304(E)(2)(a)(iv) into 
proposed 1304(C)(2)(d).  

1304(C)(2)(d).  This provision has been moved from 1305(B)(2)(b)(i) and 
consolidated with former Rule 1304(E)(2)(a)(iv).  This provision allows fully 
offset PTE to be used as HAE in certain specified instances.  This subsection also 
specifies that the change must be an emissions decrease as well as providing that 
any unused or excess SERs may not be banked pursuant to Rule 1309.  Please 
note that the only time this subsection may be used is when an SER is being 
created at an existing Major Facility.  Please also note that SERs by definition 
must be created in the same permitting action in which they are used.  

1304(C)(4) – These provisions are moved from former Rule 1305(B)(2) with only 
minor changes for consistency in formatting. 

1304(C)(4)(c) – USEPA’s Comment 1.2.2.a.2.331 requested the removal of 
Shutdowns of unpermitted units to create SERs.  Please see Section VI. E. 3. 
above for a complete explanation of the rationale for this change. 

1304(C)(5) – This provision is adjusted to reflect the use of SERs in the Net 
Emissions Increase calculation or directly as offsets under the provisions of 
1305(C)(2).   

1304(D) – This subsection has been adjusted to match similar provisions 
elsewhere in proposed 1304.   

1304(E) - These terms have all been adjusted to match their 1301 Definitions.332 

1304(E)(1) – These provisions have been consolidated with the provisions of 
former Rule 1305(E)(2) and former Rule 1304(E)(1)(b) for clarity and to avoid 
duplication. 

                                                 
331 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019 
332 Proposed Rule 1301(JJ), (GGG) and (III). 

224 of 527



82 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

1304(E)(2) – The current calculation of PTE includes “banked emissions” but the 
calculation of HAE does not.  To avoid miscounting, such banked emissions 
would either need to be included in both or excluded in both.  The District has 
chosen to exclude such banked emissions from both calculations. 

Former Rule 1304(E)(2)(a)(iv) - This provision is moved to proposed Rule 
1304(C)(2)(d) as the only time it is used is in the context of SERs.   

1304(D)(3) – This provision has been revised to refer to Emissions Units to 
conform with proposed Rule 1301.  The provision including “banked emissions” 
has been removed as explained under proposed 1304(D)(2) above.  Fugitive 
emissions have been added to conform with proposed Rule 1301 definitions and 
Rule 1302 procedural requirements.  In addition, the provisions regarding 
“banked” ERCs have been removed as in order for them to be properly reflected 
in calculations they would also need to be included in Proposed Emissions which 
would not change the ultimate calculations one way or another. 

6. Proposed Amended Rule 1305 – New Source Review Offsets 

The primary changes to proposed Rule 1305 involve reformatting and moving the 
SER and calculation provisions to proposed Rule 1304. 

1305(A)(1)(a) – Provisions have been revised to reflect the change in rule focus. 

1305(B) – This former subsection (A)(2) has been renumbered to conform to 
standard formatting.   

1305(B)(1) – This subsection has been revised to reflect the fact that offset ratios 
are not applied until proposed Rule 1305(B)(3) and (4). 

1305(B)(2) – This subsection has been reorganized to give each potential 
offsetting situation its own subset.  Please note that unlike under Federal 
provisions any time a Facility becomes a Major Facility, regardless of the reason 
or method, offsets are required to a greater or lesser degree under the AVAQMD 
rules.  Please also note that a Major Modification to a Minor Facility will, by 
mathematical operation result in that Minor Facility becoming Major and thus 
offsets will apply.  Due to the restructuring of proposed Rule 1304 upon occasion 
a Minor Facility will propose a change and become Major (acquiring BACT on 
everything new or Modified under proposed 1303(A)(3)) but due to the 
application of SERs end up with an offset amount of 0 and have a PTE as 
modified of less than the Major Facility threshold and therefore revert to Minor 
Facility status. 

1305(C) – This provision has been renumbered with minor changes.  
Requirements that ERCs be Real, Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable and 
Enforceable have been added as a backstop to Rule 1304 and 1309 provisions. 

225 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 83 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Former Rule 1305(B)(1)(b) has been removed as no longer necessary as the 
provisions for SERs have been moved into proposed 1304. 

1305(C)(2) – This section is retained in a truncated form.  While SERs will now 
mostly be used in conjunction with determination of Net Emissions Increase 
under proposed 1304(B)(2) there may be an occasion where a Facility may wish 
to used SERs directly as offsetting emissions reductions.  Once again, the 
proposed language reiterates that any excess SERs cannot be banked pursuant to 
Rule 1309. 

Former Rule 1305(B)(2)(a) provisions have been moved to proposed rule 
1304(C). 

1305(C)(3) – This provision combines former Rule 1305(B)(3)(a-c) into one 
section to cover all Mobile, Area, and Indirect source offsets as the main 
provisions involved were identical.  A provision is added pursuant to USEPAs 
request regarding any calculations for these types of offsets be performed 
pursuant to a SIP approved calculation rule.333  Such calculation rules would be 
placed in Regulation XIV – Mobile Source Offsets when adopted. 

1305(C)(4) – The provisions in this subsection have been reorganized and the 
cross references to 1310 have been removed.334 

1305(C)(5) – The provisions in this subsection have also been reorganized and the 
1310 cross references have been removed.   

1305(C)(6) – The 1310 cross references have been removed from this subsection.  
Due to a recent court decision335 the validity of these offsets is now in question.  
Thus, the MDAQMD is choosing to leave this section unchanged despite 
USEPA’s Comment 1.2.2.e. regarding additional protocols necessary to make a 
case-by-case determination of an interpollutant offset ratio until such time as the 
issue is fully resolved.  

1305(D) Table – This table has been revised to remove attainment pollutants 
leaving only nonattainment pollutants and their precursors.  A conforming 
language change from ROC to VOC has also been made. 

Former 1305(D) has been removed.  This provision only applied to attainment 
pollutants and is now covered by the provisions of Rule 1700.336   

Former 1305(E) has been removed as all term calculations are now contained in 
proposed Rule 1304(D) 

                                                 
333 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.1. 
334 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.1. 
335 Sierra Club et al. vs. USEPA, 985 F.3d 1055 (D.C. Cir., 1/29/2021). 
336 This provision was originally added presumably to provide conformance with provisions of 40 CFR 
51.165(f)(4)(iii), (k) , (m)(1)(iii)  and (s)(2)(iv)(a)  as well as 40 CFR 52.21(k). 

226 of 527



84 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

7. Proposed Amended Rule 1306 – New Source Review for Electric Energy 
Generating Facilities 

The primary changes to this rule are to conform citations to reflect changes in 
other rules.  In addition, language has been added to (B)(2)(a) referencing “as in 
existence” date pursuant to USEPA standard request for citations to state law and 
regulation. 

8. Proposed Amended Rule 1309 – Emission Reduction Credit Banking 

The primary changes to this rule are to update cross references and to conform 
provisions to standardized format. 

1309(A)(2) – This provision has been slightly revised to reflect the fact that 
proposed Rule 1305 covers the use of offsets while proposed Rule 1304 covers 
the base calculations.  Proposed rule 1309 is primarily procedural in nature 
covering the transactions involving placing and removing ERCs in the ERC 
Registry. 

1309(A)(3) – A double negative language formulation has been removed.  

1309(B)(1)(b) – While this subsection remains substantively unchanged it must be 
noted that references to “expired” and “expiration dates” primarily are references 
to ERCs generated from mobile emissions reductions. 

1309(B)(1)(d) – While this provision remains unchanged it must be noted that 
even though ERCs which have been banked retain their value regardless of 
changes in underlying laws such ERCs when used would be required to be 
“adjusted” pursuant to proposed Rule 1305(D).  Specifically the RACT upon use 
requirement in subsection (D)(4) would need to be assessed and any adjustments 
made to the ERCs prior to their use.   In addition, as underlying prohibitory rule 
changes are often driven by shifts in RACT values such ERCs could very easily 
be substantially discounted to retain their “surplus” status when used. 

1309(B)(1)(e) – Provisions requiring that emissions reductions be Real, Surplus, 
Permanent, Quantifiable and Enforceable prior to be placing in the ERC Registry 
have been added for additional enforceability.  A cross reference to Regulation 
XXX has been removed as all Title V Facilities not only have a Title V permit but 
also carry state level permits.  A cross reference to Rule 1305 has been shifted to 
reference the entire regulation as offsetting emissions reductions are governed by 
multiple provisions in multiple rules. 

1309(B)(2)(b) – Language has been shifted to avoid used of the word “type” 
pursuant to USEPA preference.337 

                                                 
337 USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.1. 

227 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 85 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

1309(C)(1)(d) – Language has been revised to reflect the fact that technically all 
permits are ultimately issued under Regulation II regardless of the amount of 
analysis and/or other procedural requirements imposed by other District Rules. 

1309(C)(1)(f) – Provisions regarding confidentiality of information have been 
conformed to similar provisions in proposed Rule 1302(D)(3)(c)(iii). 

1309(C)(5) – Notice provisions have been reworded slightly to conform with 
similar notice language in proposed Rule 1302(D)(3). 

1309(D)(3) – This subsection has been reworked as a backstop provision to 
proposed Rule 1304 to ensure that ERCs are properly granted.   

1309(D)(3)(c) – This provision removes the ability for generation of ERCs from 
the shutdown of unpermitted emissions units as unenforceable conforming to 
provisions in proposed Rule 1304(C)(4)(c).  This provision also contains the 
ability to enforce emissions reductions by contract.  Such contracts generally 
would be only used rarely for unusual situations such as parking lot/access road 
paving, pile management or other items where a permit is not really effective.  In 
such cases the contract and its conditions are referenced on the permit for a 
related Permit Unit as an additional safeguard.   

1309(G) – This section considers the granting of ERCs to be a “permit decision” 
and thus appealable pursuant to H&S Code §42302.1.  A provision has been 
added to clarify this. 

9. Rescission of Rule 1310 – Federal Major Facilities and Federal Major 
Modifications 

Please see explanation for removal of this rule in subsection VI. A. 4. above. 

10. Proposed Amended Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air 
Contaminants 

Most changes to this rule are to conform citations to reflect changes in other rules 
and for internal consistency. 

1401(A)(2) – This provision has been added to indicate that the rule is not 
intended and will not be submitted as a SIP revision. 

1401(B)(1)(a)(i) – The term Permit Unit has been changed to Emissions Unit in 
this subsection to conform with changes to proposed Rule 1300. 

11. Proposed Amended Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration (PSD)  

Rules 1701, 1702, 1703, 1704, 1706, 1710 and the Appendix are proposed for 
deletion.  They are to be replaced with proposed Rule 1700 which adopts the 

228 of 527



86 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

provisions of 40 CFR 52.21 by reference.  There are a few terminology changes 
made to avoid confusion with other District Rules however, this change should 
allow the AVAQMD to receive PSD delegation if and when it is desired.  

H. SIP HISTORY AND ANALYSIS  

The original air district for the Antelope Valley region was the Los Angeles County 
APCD338 that had a jurisdiction covering the entire County of Los Angeles.  In 1975, the 
Southern California APCD, a joint powers authority that had a jurisdiction covering all of 
the counties of Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside and San Bernardino, was created.  The 
South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) came into existence pursuant 
to statute on February 1, 1976 and originally covered only the areas within South Coast 
Air Basin (SCAB).339  The legislation was thereafter amended to allow non-SCAB areas 
to “opt in”.  Los Angeles County exercised this option effective at some point in 1977 
and thus the Antelope Valley became a part of SCAQMD.  On July 1, 1997 the Antelope 
Valley Air Pollution Control District (AVAPCD) replaced the SCAQMD as the agency 
with jurisdiction over the Los Angeles County portion of the Mojave Desert Air Basin 
(MDAB).340  On January 1, 2002 the AVAPCD was replaced by the AVAQMD.341  
Pursuant to both statutory changes, the rule and regulations of the predecessor district 
were retained until the Governing Board adopted, amended or rescinded them.  At the 
first meeting of the both the AVAPCD and the AVAQMD, the respective Governing 
Boards reaffirmed all the rules and regulations in effect at the time the agency changed. 

The jurisdiction of the AVAPCD and the AVAQMD were specified in the statutes as the 
portion of the Los Angeles County contained within the MDAB.  The MDAB was 
formerly known as the Southeast Desert Air Basin (SEDAB).  In 1997 the SEDAB was 
split into the MDAB and the Salton Sea Air Basin.  Descriptions of these air basins can 
be found in 17 Cal. Code Regs. §60109 and §60144.  Since USEPA adopts SIP revisions 
in California as effective within jurisdictional boundaries of local air districts, when the 
local air district boundaries change the SIP as approved by USEPA for that area up to the 
date of the change remains as the SIP in that particular area.  Thus, upon creation of the 
AVAPCD on July 1, 1997 the AVAPCD acquired the SIP applicable to the Antelope 
Valley portion of the SCAQMD that was effective as of June 30, 1997.  Likewise, the 
AVAQMD acquired the SIP that was effective in the jurisdiction of the AVAPCD as of 
December 31, 2000.  Therefore, the SIP history for this region is based upon the rules 
adopted, effective, and approved for the Antelope Valley by SCAQMD. 

Regulation XIII was originally adopted by SCAQMD on 10/5/1979 as part of its 
nonattainment planning efforts and amended several times.342  After a variety of 
proposed disapprovals and partial approvals343 the rules of Regulation XIII as submitted 

                                                 
338 This entity was originally formed in the 1950’s. 
339 H&S Code §§41400 et seq. 
340 Former H&S Code §40106(e); Stats. 1996 Ch. 542, section 1 
341 H&S Code §§41300 et seq. 
342 Specifically, various rules of Regulation XIII were amended 3/7/1980 and 7/11/1980. 
343 45 FR 21271, 4/1/1980; 46 FR 5965, 1/21/1981; 46 FR 30355, 6/8/1981; 47 FR 25013, 6/9/1982. 

229 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 87 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

by CARB on 9/8/1980344 were placed into the SIP for the SEDAB portion of Los 
Angeles County.345  SCAQMD continued to amend various rules of Regulation XIII346 
up until the AVAQMD was formed.  While many of these amendments were submitted 
as SIP revisions USEPA did not act on any of these rules until 12/4/1996 when it 
approved the and 6/14/1996 versions347 into the SIP.348  The AVAPCD and its successor 
the AVAQMD subsequently amended Regulation XIII on 3/20/2001 and 8/15/2006.  
These versions were submitted as SIP revisions but have not been acted upon by USEPA.  
Therefore, the SIP version of Regulation XIII for the AVAQMD is the 1996 version as 
adopted by SCAQMD. 

Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants has never been, and is not 
intended to be a SIP submission. 

Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration was originally adopted by 
SCAQMD on 10/7/1988 and thereafter amended on 1/6/1989.  While both versions were 
submitted as SIP revisions USEPA did not take any action on the submission.  It must be 
noted, however, that USEPA did delegate portions of the PSD program implementation 
to SCAQMD via some sort of agreement.  That agreement did not carry over to the 
AVAQMD upon its formation in 1997 even though the rules used to implement the 
agreement became AVAQMD rules pursuant to statute. This means that while the 
AVAQMD has PSD rules in its rulebook it does not have the delegated authority from 
USEPA to implement the program. 

Given the above the AVAQMD is requesting that CARB submit the current amendments 
as a SIP revision and request the following specific actions: 

• Request that USEPA act to approve Regulation XIII and Rule 1700 as amended 
into the SIP for the AVAQMD. 

o Request that USEPA either specifically find that the AVAQMD’s New 
Source Review program as amended meets or exceeds the FCAA 
requirements for purposes of complying with the requirements arising 
from the nonattainment designation of a portion of the MDAQMD under 
the 2015 O3 NAAQS or indicate, with full and complete technical and 
legal justification, why it does not do so. 

• Request that USEPA certify the AVAQMD’s New Source Review program as 
meeting the requirements of 40 CFR 70.7(d)(1)(v) as an “Enhanced NSR” 
program and specifically delegate the ability to the MDAQMD to perform Federal 

                                                 
344 Presumably this was the version of Regulation XIII as adopted 7/11/1980. 
345 40 CFR 52.220(c)(68)(i); 52.220(c)(70)(i)(A); and 52.220(c)(87)(v)(A). 
346 Specifically, various rules of Regulation XIII were amended on 9/10/1982, 7/12/1985, 8/1/1986, 12/2/1988, 
6/28/1990, 5/3/1991, 12/7/1995, 5/10/1996 and 6/14/1996. 
347 While most of the Rules in Regulation XIII were amended 5/3/1996, Rules 1304 and 1306 were subsequently 
amended on 6/14/1996. 
348 61 FR 64291, 12/4/1996 

230 of 527



88 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Operating Permit (Title V) modifications concurrently with NSR review if 
requested to do so by the applicant.  

• Request that USEPA delegate authority for the AVAQMD to implement the 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration program or indicate, in writing with 
specific actionable steps, regarding how such delegation can be obtained. 

• Request that USEPA remove all remaining previous versions of the NSR 
programs from the SIP specifically, 40 CFR 52.220(c)(68)(i); 
52.220(c)(70)(i)(A); 52.220(c)(87)(v)(A) and 52.220(c)(240)(i)(A)(1) as it relates 
to the jurisdiction of the AVAQMD. 

• CARB should indicate in its submission that the SIP submissions of the 
amendments to AVAQMD Regulation XIII as amended 3/20/2001 and 8/15/2006 
and previously submitted are withdrawn. 

• CARB should indicate in its submission that the SIP submission of Regulation 
XVII as amended 10/7/1988 and 1/16/1989 and previously submitted are 
withdrawn. 

• Request that USEPA update its SIP table and CFR citations to reflect all of the 
above changes. 

 
  

231 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII 89 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

This page intentionally left blank. 

232 of 527



233 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII A-1 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Appendix “A” 
Regulation XIII – New Source Review 

Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration and 
Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants 

Iterated Versions 
 
The iterated version (redline) is provided so that the changes to an existing rule may be easily 
found.  The manner of differentiating text is as follows: 
 
1. Underlined text identifies new or revised language. 
 
2. Lined out text identifies language which is being deleted. 
 
3. Normal text identifies the current language of the rule which will remain unchanged by 
the adoption of the proposed amendments. 
 
4. [Bracketed italicized text] is explanatory material that is not part of the proposed 
language.  It is removed once the proposed amendments are adopted. 
 
5. Highlighted text indicates items, such as adoption dates, which will be determined by 
date of Governing Board action or items which require a more permanent citation when such 
becomes available. 

234 of 527



A-2 AVAQMD Reg. XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 

235 of 527



(Adopted: 10/05/79; Amended: 09/10/82; Rescinded: 06/28/90; 
Adopted: 03/20/01; Amended:  mm/dd/yy) 
 

AVAPCD Rule 1300 1300-1 
NSR General 
D2 6/01/2021 

RULE 1300 
New Source Review General 

(A) Purpose 

(1) The purpose of this Regulation is to: 

(a) Set forth the requirements for the preconstruction review of all new or 
Modified Facilities. 

(b) Ensure that the Construction, or Modification of Facilities subject to this 
Regulation does not interfere with the attainment and maintenance of 
Ambient Air Quality Standards. 

(c) Ensure that there is no net increase in the emissions of any Nonattainment 
Air Pollutants from new or Modified Major Facilities which emit or have 
the Potential to Emit any Nonattainment Air Pollutant in an amount 
greater than or equal to the amounts set forth in District Rule 1303(B)(1). 

(d) Implement the provisions of California Health & Safety Code §§40709, 
40709.5, 40709.6, 40710, 40711, 40712 and 40713 regarding a system by 
which all reductions in the emissions of air contaminants (which are to be 
used to offset certain future increases in emissions) shall be banked prior 
to use to offset future increases in emissions. 

(e) Ensure that the Construction or Modification of Facilities subject to this 
Regulation comply with the preconstruction review requirements as set 
forth in District Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air 
Contaminants.  [Clarifies interrelationship with Rule 1401.] 

(f) Ensure that the Construction or Modification of Facilities subject to this 
Regulation or District Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration comply with the preconstruction review requirements as set 
forth in District Rule 1700.  [Clarifies interrelationship with PSD 
Requirements.] 

(B) Applicability 

(1) The provisions of this Regulation shall apply to: 

(a) Aany new or Modified Facility or Emissions Unit which requires a permit 
pursuant  is subject to the provisions of District Regulation IIRules 201 or 203.  
[See USEPA Comment 1.1.1.a. and 1.3.2. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(2) The provisions of this Regulation regarding Emission Reduction Credits (ERCs) 
shall apply to : 

236 of 527



 

1300-2 AVAPCD Rule 1300 
NSR General 
D2 6/01/2021 

(a) Tthe creation, banking, ownership and use of ERCs within the District. 

(C) Violations 

(1) Failure to comply with the provisions of this Regulation shall result in 
enforcement action under applicable provisions of Division 26, Part 4, Chapter 4 
of the California Health and Safety Code (commencing with §42300) and or 
applicable provisions of the Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et.seq.) 

(D) Exemptions 

(1) Change of Ownership or Operator 

(a) Any Facility which is a continuing operation, shall be exempt from the 
provisions of this Regulation when: 

(i) A new permit to operate is required solely because of permit 
renewal, change in ownership or a change in Facility operator; and   

(ii) There is no Modification or change in operating conditions at the 
Facility.  

 
(2) Change in Rule 219 

(a) Any Facility which is a continuing operation, shall be exempt from the 
provisions of this Regulation when:  

(i) A new permit to operate is required solely because of a change to 
Rule 219 - Equipment Not Requiring a Permit; and  

(ii) There is no Modification or other change in operating conditions at 
the Facility. 

 

(E) Interaction with Other Federal, State and District Requirements 

(1) Interaction with Other District Rules 

(a) Issuance of Authority to Construct Permits and Permits to Operate 

(i) ATC(s) and PTO(s) issued pursuant to this Regulation shall also comply 
with the applicable provisions of District Regulation II.  [See USEPA 
Comment 1.3.2. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

 
(2) Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) 

(a) Nothing in this Regulation shall be construed to exempt a Facility or an 
Emissions Unit located in an area designated by USEPA as attainment or 
unclassified for a Regulated Air Pollutant from complying with the 

237 of 527



 

AVAPCD Rule 1300 1300-3 
NSR General 
D2 6/01/2021 

applicable provisions of Title I, Part C of the Federal Clean Air Act (42 
U.S.C. §§7470-7492, Prevention of Significant Deterioration of Air 
Quality), the regulations promulgated thereunder and the provisions of 
District Regulation XVII as applicable Rule 1700.  [Conforms citation to 
reflect shift of PSD rule to adoption by reference format.] 

(3) Other Federal Requirements 

(a) Nothing in this Regulation shall be construed to exempt a Facility or an 
Emissions Unit from complying with all other applicable Federal 
Requirements including, but not limited to, the following: 

(i) Any standard or other requirement contained in the applicable 
implementation plan for the District, and any amendments thereto, 
approved or promulgated pursuant to the provisions of Title I of 
the Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§7401-7515). 

(ii) Any standard or other requirement under 42 U.S.C. §7411, 
Standards of Performance for New Stationary Sources (Federal 
Clean Act §111); 42 U.S.C. §7412, Hazardous Air Pollutants 
(Federal Clean Air Act §112) or the regulations promulgated 
thereunder. 

(iii) Any standard or other requirement under Title IV of the Federal 
Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§7651-7651o, Acid Rain) or the 
regulations promulgated thereunder. 

(iv) Any standard or other requirement under Title V of the Federal 
Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§7661a - 7661f, Permits), the 
regulations promulgated or the District program approved 
thereunder. 

(v) Any standard or other requirement of the regulations promulgated 
under Title VI of the Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§7671-
7671q, Stratospheric Ozone Protection) or the regulations 
promulgated thereunder.  

(vi) Any national Ambient Air Quality Standard or increment or 
visibility requirement promulgated pursuant to part C of Title I of 
the Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §7401-7515).  

 
[SIP: Submitted as amended 03/20/01 on _________ See AVAQMD SIP table at 
https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plans] 
 
 
 

  

238 of 527



 

1300-4 AVAPCD Rule 1300 
NSR General 
D2 6/01/2021 

This page intentionally left blank 
 

 

239 of 527



(Adopted: 10/05/79; Amended: 03/07/80; Amended: 07/11/80; 
Amended: 09/10/82; Amended: 07/12/85; Amended: 08/01/86; 
Amended: 12/02/88; Amended: 06/28/90; Amended: 05/03/91; 
Amended: 12/07/95; Amended: 03/20/01; Amended: mm/dd/yy) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-1 
NSR Definitions 
D2a 7/7/2021 

RULE 1301 
New Source Review Definitions 

 

For the purposes of this Regulation, the following definitions shall apply: 

(A) "Actual Emissions" - The actual rate of emissions of a Regulated Air Pollutant which 
accurately represent the emissions from an Emissions Unit(s).  Such emissions shall be 
rReal, qQuantifiable and calculated using the verified actual operating hours; production 
rates; and types of materials processed, stored or combusted as applicable.  [Consistency] 

(B) "Actual Emissions Reductions (AERs)" - Emissions reductions which result from 
modifications to existing Emissions Unit(s); shutdowns of existing Emissions Unit(s); or 
other emissions reductions which may be banked.  AERs shall be real, enforceable, 
quantifiable, surplus and permanent and shall be calculated pursuant to provisions of 
District Rule 1304(D).  [Removed as no longer used in Regulation.] 

(C) “Adjustment” - The process by which the District modifies the amount of AERs so that 
AERs reflect only the surplus reductions beyond those otherwise required by Federal, 
State or District law, rule, order, permit or regulation. [Removed, term not used in 
Regulation.] 

(DB) "Affected State" - Any State or local air pollution control agency whose air quality may 
be affected by the granting of a permit to a Facility or an Emissions Unit(s) and which is 
contiguous to the District; or any State which is located within fifty (50) miles of the 
Facility. 

(E) “Allowable Emissions” - The emissions rate of a stationary source calculated using the 
maximum rated capacity of the source adjusted to reflect any federally enforceable limits, 
including but not limited to, restriction of the operation rate, hours of operation, mass 
emissions or any combination thereof, and the most stringent of the following:  

(1) The applicable standards set forth in 40 CFR Part 60 or 61; or  

(2) Any applicable SIP emissions limitation including those with a future compliance 
date; or 

(3) The emissions rate specified as federally enforceable permit conditions including 
those with a future compliance date. [Removed.  Provisions provided in definition 
of Federally Enforceable]  

(FC) "Air Pollutant" - Any air pollution agent or combination of such agents, including any 
physical, chemical, biological, or radioactive (including source material, special nuclear 
material and byproduct material) substance or matter which is emitted into or otherwise 
enters the ambient air. 

240 of 527



 

1301-2 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

D2a 7/7/2021 

(GD) "Air Pollution Control Officer" (APCO) - The person appointed to the position of Air 
Pollution Control Officer of the District pursuant to the provisions of California Health & 
Safety Code §40750, and his or her designee. 

(HE) “Air Quality Attainment Plan” (AQAP) - A planning document submitted and 
periodically revised by the District pursuant to the provisions of the California Health & 
Safety Code §§40910 et seq. and approved by CARB.  Also known as Air Quality 
Management Plan. 

(IF) "Ambient Air Quality Standards" - Any National Ambient Air Quality Standard 
promulgated pursuant to the provisions of 42 U.S.C. §7409 (Federal Clean Air Act §109) 
or any State Ambient Air Quality Standard promulgated to California Health & Safety 
Code §39606 unless the particular Ambient Air Quality Standard (either National or 
State) is specified. 

(JG) "Application for Certification" (AFC) - A document submitted to the CEC requesting 
certification of an EEGF pursuant to the provisions of D1 4/29/2021Division 15 of the 
California Public Resources Code (commencing with section 25000). 

(KH) "Authority to Construct Permit" (ATC) - A District permit required pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 201 which must be obtained prior to the building, erecting, 
installation, alteration or replacement of any Permit Unit.  Such permit may act as a 
temporary PTO pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 202. 

(LI) “Banking” (Banked) - The process of recognizing and certifying emissions reductions of 
Regulated Air Pollutants pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1309 which results in 
the issuance of an ERC Certificate and recordation of the ERC in the Registry. 

(MJ) "Begin Actual Construction" - The general initiation of physical on-site construction 
activities on an Emissions Unit(s) which are of a permanent nature.  Actual construction 
activities include, but are not limited to, the following: 

(1) Installation of building supports and foundations;  

(2) Laying of underground pipe work;  

(3) Construction of permanent storage structures; and  

(4) With respect to a change in operating method, those on-site activities, other than 
preparatory activities, which mark the initiation of the change. 

(NK) "Best Available Control Technology (BACT)" - For Permit Units at Facilities as 
indicated below: 

(1) For a new or Modified Major Facility as defined in District Rule 1301(LL)below 
the most stringent of: 

241 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-3 
NSR Definitions 
D2a 7/7/2021 

(a) The most stringent emission limit or control technique which has been 
achieved in practice, for such pPermit uUnit, class or category of source; 
or 

(b) LAER as defined in District Rule 1301(KK)below; or 

(c) Any other emission limitation or control technique, and/or different fuel 
demonstrated in practice to be technologically feasible and cost-effective 
by the APCO or by CARB.  

(2) For a new or modified non-major Facility: 

(a) The most stringent emission limit or control technique which has been 
achieved in practice for such category or class of source.  Economic and 
technical feasibility may be considered in establishing the class or 
category of source; or 

(b) Any other emission limit or control technique found by the APCO to be 
technologically feasible and cost effective for such class or category of 
source. 

(3) Under no circumstances shall BACT be determined to be less stringent than the 
emission limit or control technique contained in any State Implementation Plan as 
approved by USEPA unless the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the 
APCO that such limitation or control technique is not achievable.  

(4) In no event shall the application of BACT result in the emissions of any 
Regulated Air Pollutant which exceeds the emissions allowed by any applicable 
standard or other requirement under 42 U.S.C. §7411, Standards of Performance 
for New Stationary Sources (Federal Clean Air Act §111) or 42 U.S.C. §7412, 
Hazardous Air Pollutants (Federal Clean Air Act §112) or the regulations 
promulgated thereunder. 

(O) “Best Available Retrofit Control Technology” (BARCT) - An emission limitation that is 
based on the maximum degree of reduction achievable taking into account 
environmental, energy and economic impacts by each class or category of emissions unit. 
[Removed, Term not used in regulation.] 

(PL) "California Air Resources Board" (CARB) - The California State Air Resources Board 
the powers and duties of which are described in Part 2 of Division 26 of the California 
Health & Safety Code (commencing with section §39500). 

(QM) "California Energy Commission" (CEC) - The California Energy Commission the powers 
and duties of which are described in Division 15 of the California Public Resources Code 
(commencing with section §25000). 

242 of 527



 

1301-4 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

D2a 7/7/2021 

(RN) “Cogeneration Project” - a project which:  

(1) Makes sequential use of exhaust steam, waste steam, heat or resultant energy from 
an industrial, commercial or manufacturing plant or process for the generation of 
electricity; or [Typo] 

(2) Makes sequential use of exhaust steam, waste steam, or heat from a thermal 
power plant, in an industrial, commercial, or manufacturing plant or process; and 

(3) Such “industrial, commercial or manufacturing plant or process” is not a thermal 
power plant or portion thereof; and 

(4) Does not consist of steam or heat developed solely for electrical power 
generation; and  

(5) The processes listed in subsections (RN)(1) and (RN)(2) above must meet the 
conditions set forth in the California Public Resources Code §25134. 

(O) Class I Area – means any area listed as Class I in 40 CFR 81.405 – California or an area 
otherwise specified as Class I in legislation that creates a national monument, a national 
primitive area, a national preserve, a national recreation area, a national wild and scenic 
river, a national wildlife refuge or a national lakeshore or seashore.  [Derived from 40 
CFR 51.301 and Placer County APCD Rule 502:210.  See USEPA Comment 2.1. to 
MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(SP) "Commence Construction" - When the owner or operator of a Facility or of a Facility 
undergoing a Major Modification has obtained all necessary preconstruction approvals 
and/or permits pursuant to the provisions of this Regulation and District Rule 1700, if 
applicable, and has either: [See USEPA Comment 1.2.1.c. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(1) Begun, or caused to begin, a continuous program of actual on-site construction to 
be completed within a reasonable time; or  

(2) Entered into binding agreements or contractual obligations, which cannot be 
canceled or modified without substantial loss to the owner or operator, to 
undertake a program of actual construction of the Facility or Emissions Unit(s) to 
be completed within a reasonable time. 

(TQ) “Comprehensive Emission Inventory” – A plan and report prepared pursuant to the most 
recently published District “Comprehensive Emissions Inventory Guidelines” which 
consists of numerical representations of the existing and proposed emissions from a 
Facility and the methods utilized to determine such data. 

(UR) "Construction" - Any physical change or change in the method of operation in a Facility 
(including fabrication, erection, installation, demolition, or modification of an Emissions 
Unit(s)) which would result in a change in Actual Emissions.  

243 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-5 
NSR Definitions 
D2a 7/7/2021 

(VS) "Contiguous Property" - Two or more parcels of land with a common boundary or 
separated solely by a public or private roadway, or other public or private right-of-way. 

(W) "Dedicated Cargo Carriers" - Trains, trucks and off-road vehicles dedicated to, or an 
integral part of, a specific Facility.  For the purposes of this regulation, trucks and 
off-road vehicles are those used exclusively at the Facility.  [Removed.  Term no longer 
used in Regulation] 

(T) Dispersion Technique –For purposes of determining whether a stack height exceeds good 
engineering practices, the definition contained in 40 CFR 51.100(hh) in effect on [Rule 
amendment date] shall apply, and is incorporated herein by this reference.  [Derived from 
40 CFR 51.100(hh) and MDAQMD 1301(S).  See USEPA Comment 1.1.3.a. to 
MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(XU) "District" - The Antelope Valley Air Pollution ControlQuality Management District 
created pursuant to Chapter 14, Part 3 of Division 26 of the California Health & Safety 
Code (commencing with §41300) the geographical area of which is described in District 
Rule 103. 

(YV) "Electrical Energy Generating Facility" (EEGF) - Any stationary or floating electrical 
generating Facility using any source of thermal energy, with a generating capacity of fifty 
(50) megawatts or more, and any facilities appurtenant thereto. 

(1) Exploratory, development, and production wells, resource transmission lines and 
other related facilities used in connection with a geothermal exploratory project or 
a geothermal field development project are not appurtenant facilities for the 
purposes of this Regulation.  

(2) EEGF does not include any wind, hydroelectric or solar photovoltaic electrical 
generating Facility. 

(ZW) " Emissions Limitation" - One or a combination of Federally Enforceable permit 
conditions specific to a pPermit uUnit which restricts its maximum daily emissions, in 
pounds per day or other appropriate unit of measure, at or below the emissions associated 
with the maximum design capacity.  

(AAX) "Emissions Reduction Credit" (ERC) - A credit for an amount and type of emissions 
reductions of Regulated Air Pollutant(s) granted by the District pursuant to the provisions 
of District Rule 1309 which is evidenced by recordation in the Registry and by an ERC 
Certificate. 

(BBY) "Emissions Unit" - any article, machine, equipment, contrivance or combination thereof 
which emits or has the Potential to Emit any Regulated Air Pollutant, including any 
associated air pollution control equipment.  [Derived from H&S Code §40000 Re 
jurisdictional authority of air districts.  See USEPA Comment 1.1.1.a. and 1.2.1.a. to 
MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

244 of 527



 

1301-6 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

D2a 7/7/2021 

(Z) Enforceable – Verifiable, legally binding, and practically enforceable.  [Derived from 
MDAQMD Rule 1401(K).  See USEPA Comment 1.2.2.a.1. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(CCAA) “ERC Certificate” - a certificate evidencing ownership of an ERC issued pursuant 
to the provisions of District Rule 1309. 

(DD) Essential Public Service - a service including but not limited to:  

(1) sewage treatment facilities, which are publicly owned or operated, and consistent 
with an approved regional growth plan; 

(2) prisons;  

(3) police facilities; 

(4) fire fighting facilities;  

(5) schools; 

(6) hospitals; 

(7) construction and operation of a landfill gas control or processing facility;  

(8) water delivery operations; and 

(9) public transit. [Provision removed as unnecessary due to reformatting of 
Regulation XVII and adoption by reference of terms in Rule 1700] 

(BB) Excessive Concentration – For purposes of determining whether a stack height exceeds 
good engineering practices, the definition contained in 40 CFR 51.100(kk) in effect on 
[Rule amendment date] shall apply, and is incorporated herein by this reference. [Derived 
from 40 CFR 51.100(kk) and MDAQMD 1301(z).  USEPA Comment 1.1.3.a. to 
MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(EE) "Executive Officer" - The person appointed to the position of Executive Officer of the 
California Air Resources Board pursuant to the provisions of California Health & Safety 
Code §39515 and his or her designee. [Term not used in Regulation.  See Air Pollution 
Control Officer.] 

(FFCC) "Facility" - Any structure, building, Emissions Unit, combination of Emissions 
Units, or installation which emits or may emit a Regulated Air Pollutant and which are: 

(1) Located on one or more Contiguous or adjacent properties within the District; 

(2) Under the control of the same person (or by persons under common control); and  

(3) Belong to the same industrial grouping, as determined by being within the same 
two digittwo-digit Standard Industrial Classification Code (SICC).  

245 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-7 
NSR Definitions 
D2a 7/7/2021 

(4) For the purpose of this regulation, such above-described grouping, remotely 
located but connected only by land carrying a pipeline, shall not be considered 
one Facility. 

(DD) Federal Class I Area – Any Federal land that is classified or reclassified as a Class I Area.  
[Derived from 40 CFR 51.301 and Placer County APCD Rule 502:210.  See USEPA 
Comment 2.1. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(EE) Federal Land Manager - with respect to any lands in the United States, the Secretary of 
the department with authority over such lands and their designee.  [Derived from 
MDAQMD Rule 1302(CC)] 

(GGFF) "Federally Enforceable" - any limitation and/or condition which is set forth in 
permit conditions or in Rules or Regulations that are legally and practically enforceable 
by USEPA, citizens and the District; including, but not limited to: 

(1) Requirements developed pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §7411, - Standards of 
Performance for New Stationary Sources (Federal Clean Air Act §111) or 42 
U.S.C. §7412, - Hazardous Air Pollutants (Federal Clean Air Act §112) or the 
regulations promulgated thereunder;  

(2) Requirements within any applicable state implementation planSIP;  

(3) Permit requirements established pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21; 51.160-166; or under 
regulations approved pursuant to 40 CFR 51, subpart I, including operating 
permits issued under a USEPA approved program that is incorporated into the 
State Implementation Plan and expressly requires adherence to any permit issued 
under such program.  

(HHGG) "Fugitive Emissions" - Those emissions which could not reasonably pass through 
a stack, chimney, or vent or other functionally equivalent opening.  Fugitive emissions 
are directly or indirectly caused by the activities of man. [Derived from 40 CFR 
51.165(a)(1)(ix).  See USEPA Comment 1.2.1.b. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(HH) Good Engineering Practice – For purposes of determining whether a stack height exceeds 
good engineering practices, the definition contained in 40 CFR 51.100(ii) in effect on 
[Rule amendment date] shall apply, and is incorporated herein by reference. [Derived 
from 40 CFR 51.100(ii) and MDAQMD 1301(FF).  USEPA Comment 1.1.3.a. to 
MDAQMD, 1219/2019] 

(II) "Halocarbons" - For the purpose of this rule, halocarbons are 1,1,1-trichloroethane, 
trichlorofluoromethane (CFC-11), dichlorodifluoromethane (CFC-12), 
chlorodifluoromethane (CFC-22), trifluoromethane (CFC-23), methylene chloride, 
trichlorotrifluoroethane (CFC-113), dichlorotetrafluoroethane (CFC-114), and 
chloropentafluoroethane (CFC-115). 

(JJ) "Historic Actual Emissions" (HAE) - The Actual Emissions of an existing Emissions 
Unit or combination of Emissions Units, including Fugitive Emissions directly related to 

246 of 527



 

1301-8 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

D2a 7/7/2021 

the Emissions Unit(s), if the Facility belongs to one of the Facility categories as listed in 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C), calculated pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 
1304(DE)(2). [Standardization of fugitive emissions references.  See USEPA Comment 
1.2.1.a. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(KK) “Lowest Achievable Emissions Rate” (LAER) - The rate of emissions which is not in 
excess of the amount allowable under the applicable New Source Performance Standards 
as found in 40 CFR 60 and which reflects the most stringent emissions limitation which 
is: 

(1) Contained in the SIP of any State for such class or category of source, unless the 
owner/operator of the source demonstrates that such limitations are not 
achievable; or 

(2) Achieved in practice by such class or category of source.  

(LL) "Major Facility" - Any Facility which emits or has the Potential to Emit any Regulated 
Air Pollutant or its Precursors in an amount greater than or equal to the amounts set forth 
in District Rule 1303(B)(1). 

(1) Any Modification at a Facility which, by itself, would emit or have the Potential 
to Emit any Regulated Air Pollutant or its Precursors in an amount greater than or 
equal to the amounts listed in District Rule 1303(B)(1), shall also constitute a 
Major Facility.  

(2) The Fugitive Emissions of a Facility shall not be included in the determination of 
whether a Facility is a Major Facility unless the Facility belongs to one of the 
twenty-seven (27) categories of Facilities as listed in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C).  
[Standardization of fugitive emissions references.] 

(MM) "Major Modification" - Any Modification in a Facility that would result in a Significant 
Net Emissions Increase of any Regulated Air Pollutant as set defined in section (OOO) 
below. 

(NN) Mandatory Class I Federal Area or Mandatory Federal Class I Area – Any area identified 
in 40 CFR 81, Subpart D (commencing with 81.400) specifically 40 CFR 81.405 – 
California. [Derived from 40 CFR 51.301.  See USEPA Comment 2.1. to MDAQMD, 
12/19/2019] 

(NNOO) “Military Base Designated for Closure or Realignment” - A military base 
designated for closure or downward realignment pursuant to the Defense Base Closure 
and Realignment Act of 1988 (PL 100-526) or the Defense Base Closure and 
Realignment Act of 1990 (10 U.S.C. §§2687 et seq.). 

(OOPP) "Mobile Source" - A device by which any person or property may be propelled, 
moved, or drawn upon the surface, waterways, or through the atmosphere, and which 
emits air contaminants.  For the purpose of this Regulation, mobile source includes 

247 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-9 
NSR Definitions 
D2a 7/7/2021 

registered Motor Vehicles which are licensed, or driven on the public roadways of the 
state of California. 

(PPQQ) "Modeling" - An air quality simulation model based on specific assumptions and 
data; ,  and which model, assumptions, and data  comply with the most current version of 
40 CFR Appendix W or an alternative method approved by USEPA after an opportunity 
for public notice and comment; and which have been approved in advance and in writing 
by the APCO.  Such models shall be from a list of approved air quality simulation models 
prepared by the CARB and the USEPA. [See USEPA Comment 1.1.1.b. to MDAQMD, 
12/19/2019] 

(QQRR) "Modification" (Modified) - Any physical or operational change to a Facility or 
an Emissions Unit to replace equipment, expand capacity, revise methods of operation, or 
modernize processes by making any physical alteration or change, change in method of 
operation, addition to an existing Permit Unit and/or change in hours of operation which 
result in a nNet eEmission iIncrease of any Regulated Air Pollutant or which result in the 
emission of any Regulated Air Pollutant not previously emitted.   

(1) A physical or operational change shall not include: 

(1a) Routine maintenance, repair and/or replacement; or 

(2b) A change in ownership of an existing Facility with valid PTO(s); or 

(3c) An increase in the production rate, unless:  

(ai) Such increase will cause the maximum design capacity of the 
Emission Unit to be exceeded; or  

(bii) Such increase will exceed a previously imposed federally 
enforceable limitation contained in a permit condition. 

 
(4d) An increase in the hours of operation, unless such increase will exceed a 

previously imposed fFederally eEnforceable limitation contained in a 
permit condition.  

(5e) The Modification alteration or replacement of an Emissions Unit(s) where 
the following requirements are met: [Avoids circular definition language.] 

(ai) The replacement unit is functionally identical as the original 
Emissions Unit(s) being replaced unless USEPA objects to such 
determination on a case-by-case basis; and  

(bii) The maximum rating of the new or Modified replacement 
Emissions Unit(s) will not be greater than that of the Emissions 
Unit(s) being replaced; and  

(ciii) The Potential to Emit for any Regulated Air Pollutant will not be 
greater from the new or Modified replacement Emissions Unit(s) 
than from the original Emissions Unit(s) being replaced so long as 

248 of 527



 

1301-10 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

D2a 7/7/2021 

(i) when the replacement Emissions Unit(s) is operated at the same 
permitted conditions as the original Emissions Unit(s) and  

(ii) the HAE for the Emissions Unit being replaced is calculated as if 
current BACT had been applied; and  

(div) The replacement does not occur at a Major Facility and is not a 
Major Modification. 

(v) Emissions Unit(s) shall not be considered a functionally identical 
replacement if USEPA objects to such determination on a case-by-
case basis.  [Moved from subsection (1)(e)(i) above.]  

 
(6f) The relocation of an existing Facility, utilizing existing equipment where 

the following requirements are met: 

(ai) The relocation does not result in an increase in emissions from the 
Facility; and 

(bii) The relocation is to a site within 10 miles of the original Facility 
location; and 

(ciii) The relocation is to a site which is not in actual physical contact 
with the original site and the sites are not separated soley by a 
public roadway or other public right-of-way.  

(div) The relocation is to a site within a fFederal designation which is 
less than or equal to the designation or classification of the original 
site; and  

(ev) The relocation occurs within one (1) year of the Facility ceasing 
operations at its original location; and  

(fvi) The relocation does not occur at a Major Facility and is not a 
Major Modification; and 

(gvii) Any new or replacement equipment associated with the relocation 
complies with the applicable provisions of this Rule.  

 
(7g) The periodic movement of internal combustion engines and gas turbines 

within a Facility because of the nature of their operation provided that all 
of the following conditions are met: 

(ai) The engine or turbine is used: 
(i) to remediate soil or groundwater contamination as required by 

federal, state, or local law or by a judicial or administrative order; 
or  

(ii) for flight-line operations. 
(bii) The engine or turbine is not periodically moved solely for the 

purpose of qualifying for this exemption. 
(ciii) Emissions from the engine, by itself, do not cause an exceedance 

of any Ambient Air Quality Standard. 
(div) Emissions from the engine do not exceed the following limits: 
 

Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) 75 pounds per day 

249 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-11 
NSR Definitions 
D2a 7/7/2021 

Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) 100 pounds per day 

Sulfur Oxides (SOx) 150 pounds per day 

Particulate Matter (PM10) 150 pounds per day 

Carbon Monoxide (CO) 550 pounds per day 

 
(RRSS) "Motor Vehicle" - Any self-propelled Vehicle, including, but not limited to cars, 

trucks, buses, golf carts, vans, motorcycles, recreational Vehicles, tanks, and armored 
personnel carriers as defined in California Vehicle Code §415 and/or §670 (as in effect 
on the most recent amendment date of this Rule) including, but not limited to, any For the 
purpose of this regulation,  "Motor Vehicle" includes registered Motor Vehicles which 
are registered, licensed, or driven on the public roadways of the sState of California. 

(TT) Nearby – For purposes of determining whether a stack height exceeds good engineering 
practices, the definition contained in 40 CFR 51.100(jj) in effect on [Rule amendment 
date] shall apply, and is incorporated herein by this reference. [Derived from 40 CFR 
51.100(jj) and MDAQMD 1301(PP).  USEPA Comment 1.1.3.a. to MDAQMD, 
12/19/2019] 

(SS) "Net Air Quality Benefit" - Any improvement in air quality resulting from Actual 
Emission Reductions. [Definition removed.  Term no longer used in Regulation.] 

(TTUU) "Net Emissions Increase" - An emissions change as calculated pursuant to District 
Rule 1304(B)(2) which exceeds zero. 

(UUVV) "New Source Review Document" (NSR Document) - A document issued by the 
APCO pursuant to the procedures of District Rule 1302 for a Facility subject to the 
provisions of District Rule 1303(B) which includes, but is not limited to, all analysis 
relating to the project, Offsets required for the project, and proposed conditions for any 
required ATC(s) or PTO(s). 

(VVWW) "Nonattainment Air Pollutant" - Any Regulated Air Pollutant for which the 
District, or a portion thereof, has been designated "nonattainment" pursuant to final 
rule-making by the USEPA as published in the Federal Register as codified in 40 CFR 
81.305, or for which the District has been designated nonattainment by the CARB 
pursuant to California Health and Safety Code §39607.  Any pollutant which is a 
Precursor to a Nonattainment Air Pollutant is also a Nonattainment Air Pollutant.  A 
pollutant for which the District is designated nonattainment by USEPA shall be referred 
to in this regulation as a Federal Nonattainment Pollutant while a pollutant for which the 
District is designated nonattainment by CARB shall be referred to as a State 
Nonattainment Pollutant.  [Derived from Placer County APCD Rule 502:236.  See 
USEPA E-Mail to MDAQMD, 3/25/2020] 

(XX) Nonattainment Area – Any area within the jurisdiction of the District which has been 
designated nonattainment by USEPA as exceeding a National Ambient Air Quality 
Standard as codified in 40 CFR 81.305 or which has been designated nonattainment by 

250 of 527



 

1301-12 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

D2a 7/7/2021 

CARB as exceeding a State Ambient Air Quality Standard pursuant to California Health 
& Safety Code §39607.  An area designated nonattainment by USEPA shall be referred 
to in this regulation as a Federal Nonattainment Area while an area designated 
nonattainment by CARB shall be referred to as a State Nonattainment Area.  [Derived 
from Placer County APCD Rule 502:236.  See USEPA Comment 3.3. to MDAQMD, 
12/19/2019] 

(WW) "Nonpermitted Exempt Unit" - An Emissions Unit or group of Emissions Units which are 
exempt from the requirement to have a permit pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 
219 or the provisions of California Health & Safety Code §42310.  [Removed.  Term no 
longer used in Regulation.] 

(XXYY) "Notice of Intention" (NOI) - A notice regarding an EEGF produced pursuant to 
the provisions of Division 15 of the California Public Resources Code (commencing with 
§section 25000). 

(YYZZZ) "Off-road Vehicle" - Any vehicle which is not licensed for use on the public 
roadways in the State of California and is used exclusively at the Facility. 

(ZZAAA) "Offset Emission Reductions" (Offsets) - Emission Reduction Credits (ERCs) or 
Simultaneous Emissions Reductions (SERs) when used to offset emission increases of 
Regulated Air Pollutants on a pollutant category specific basis.  ERCs shall be calculated 
and comply with the provisions of District Rule 1309. SERs shall be calculated and 
comply with the provisions of District Rule 1304(C).  ERCs and SERs shall be adjusted, 
if necessary, pursuant to the applicable provisions of District Rule 1305(C)(4). 
[Conforms to proposed changes in 1304 and 1305] 

(AAABBB) “Permanent” - Only permanent reductions in emissions can qualify for ERCs.  
Permanence may generally be assured for sources subject to federal requirements by 
requiring federally enforceable changes in source permits, or if applicable state 
regulations reflect a reduced level of allowable emissions.Continuing or enduring without 
fundamental marked change.  As used for the purposes of Offset Emissions Reductions, a 
reduction that is Federally Enforceable via changes in permits or other means for the life 
of the corresponding increase in emissions.  [Derived from Butte County APCD Rule 
432:4.31, MDAQMD Rule 1401(Q) and Webster’s Collegiate Dictionary.  See USEPA 
Comment 1.2.2.a.1. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(BBBCCC) "Permit to Operate" (PTO) - A District permit required pursuant to the provisions 
of District Rule 203 which must be obtained prior to operation of a Permit Unit.  An ATC 
may function as a temporary PTO pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 202. [See 
USEPA Comment 1.3.2. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(CCCDDD) "Permit Unit" - Any Emissions Unit which is required to have a PTO pursuant to 
the provisions of District Rule 203. [See USEPA Comment 1.3.2. to MDAQMD, 
12/19/2019] 

251 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-13 
NSR Definitions 
D2a 7/7/2021 

(DDDEEE) “Person” - Includes but is not limited to: any individual, firm, association, 
organization, partnership, business trust, corporation, limited liability company, 
company, proprietorship, trust, joint venture, government, political subdivision of a 
government, or other entity or group of entities. 

(EEEFFF) "PM10" - Particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter less than or equal to a 
nominal 10 micrometers as measured by a reference method based on 40 CFR 50 
Appendix J and designated in accordance with 40 CFR 53; or methods found in Article 2, 
Subchapter 6, Title 17, California Code of Regulations (commencing with section 
94100); or any equivalent method designated in accordance with 40 CFR 53. [Derived 
from 40 CFR 51.100(qq).  Test method citation removed as it only applies to atmospheric 
measurement.  See USEPA Email to MDAQMD, 3/25/2020] 

(FFFGGG) "Potential to Emit" (PTE) - The maximum capacity of a Facility or Emissions 
Unit(s) to emit any Regulated Air Pollutant under its physical and operational design. 

(1) Any physical or operational limitation on the capacity of the Facility or Emissions 
Unit(s) to emit an Air Pollutant, including air pollution control equipment and 
restrictions on hours of operation or on the type or amount of material combusted, 
stored, or processes, shall be treated as part of its design only if the limitation or 
the effect it would have on emissions is Federally Enforceable.   

(2) Fugitive Emissions of Hazardous Air Pollutants shall be included in the 
calculation of a Facility's or Emission Unit(s)' Potential to Emit. 

(3) Fugitive Emissions of other Air Pollutants shall not be included in the calculations 
of a Facility's or Emissions Unit(s)' Potential to Emit unless the Facility belongs 
to one of the 27 categories listed in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C). [Standardize 
reference to Fugitive Emissions] 

(4) Secondary Emissions shall not be included in the calculations of a Facility's or 
Emissions Unit(s)' Potential to Emit. 

(GGGHHH) "Precursor" - A substance which, when released to the atmosphere, forms or 
causes to be formed or contributes to the formation of a Regulated Air Pollutant.  These 
include, but are not limited to the following: 

Precursors Secondary Pollutants 
Ammonia a) PM10 

Hydrocarbons and substituted hydrocarbons 
(Reactive Volatile Organic Compounds) 

a) Photochemical oxidant (ozone) 
b) The organic fraction of PM10 
c) PM2.5 

Nitrogen dioxide (NO2) a) PM2.5 

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) a) Nitrogen dioxide (NO2) 
b) The nitrate fraction of PM10 
c) Photochemical oxidant (ozone) 

252 of 527



 

1301-14 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

D2a 7/7/2021 

Sulfur dioxide (SO2) a) PM2.5 

Sulfur oxides (SOx) a)  Sulfur dioxide (SO2) 
b) Sulfates (SO4)  
c) The sulfate fraction of PM10 

Hydrogen Sulfide (H2S) a) The sulfate fraction of PM10 

[Table modified to only include State and Federal nonattainment pollutants and their 
precursors.] 
 
(HHHIII)  “Proposed Emissions” - the Potential to Emit for a new or post-modification 

Facility or Emissions Unit(s) as planned , or a new or post-mModifiedcation fFacility or 
Emissions Unit as constructed or modified, including Fugitive Emissions directly related 
to the Emissions Unit(s) if the Facility belongs to one of the Facility categories as listed 
in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C),  which is calculated in pounds per year and determined 
pursuant to the provisions of Rules 1304(E)(2-3) or 1305(E)(2-3) whichever is 
applicable(D)(3).  [Conforms to changes in 1304 and 1305.  Standardizes cross reference 
to Fugitive Emissions.] 

(IIIJJJ) “Quantifiable” - Ability to estimate emission reductions in terms of both their amount 
and characteristics.  Capable of being determined.  As used for the purposes of Offset 
Emissions Reductions a reliable, replicable and accurate basis for calculating the amount, 
rate, nature and characteristic of an emissions reduction by adhering to a protocol that is 
established considering USEPA, CARB and District policies and procedures.  The same 
method of calculating emissions should generally be used to quantify the emission levels 
before and after any reduction in emissions.  [Derived from Butte County APCD Rule 
432:4.36, MDAQMD Rule 1401 and Webster’s collegiate Dictionary.  See USEPA 
Comment 1.2.2.a.1. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(JJJKKK) “Readjustment” - The process of revising the amount of AERs and ERCs issued 
due to changes in control measures identified in the District’s AQAP or SIP. 

(KKK) "Reactive Organic Compound" (ROC) - Any compound containing carbon, excluding 
carbon monoxide, carbon dioxide, carbonic acid, metallic carbides or carbonates, 
ammonium carbonates, which participates in atmospheric photochemical reactions and 
those compounds listed in 17 California Code of Regulations §94508(a)(90)(1-2). [Term 
no longer used as State and Federal definitions are now identical.] 

(LLL) “Real” - Actually occurring, implemented and not artificially devised. 

(MMM) "Reasonably Available Control Technology" (RACT) - Any device, system, 
process modification, apparatus, technique or combination of the above which results in 
the lowest emissions rate and which is reasonably available considering technological 
and economic feasibility. 

(NNN) "Reduced Sulfur Compounds" - Hydrogen sulfide, carbon disulfide and carbonyl sulfide.  

253 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-15 
NSR Definitions 
D2a 7/7/2021 

(OOO) “Registry (ERC Registry)” - The document established by District Rule 1309(B) which 
lists all ERCs, their amounts, owners and serves as evidence of ownership of an ERC. 

(PPP) "Regulated Air Pollutant" - Any of the following Air Pollutants: 

 
(1) Any Air Pollutant, and its Precursors, for which an Ambient Air Quality Standard 

has been promulgated.  

(2) Any Air Pollutant that is subject to a standard under 42 U.S.C. §7411, - Standards 
of Performance for New Stationary Sources (Federal Clean Air Act §111) or the 
regulations promulgated thereunder.  

(3) Any substance which has been designated a Class I or Class II substance under 42 
U.S.C. §7671a (Federal Clean Air Act §602) or the regulations promulgated 
thereunder. 

(4) Any Air Pollutant subject to a standard or other requirement established pursuant 
to 42 U.S.C. §7412, - Hazardous Air Pollutants (Federal Clean Air Act §112) or 
the regulations promulgated thereunder. 

(QQQ) "Seasonal Source" - Any Facility or permit Emissions uUnit(s) with more than 
seventy-five percent (75%) of its annual emissions within a consecutive 120 120-day 
period. 

(RRR) "Secondary Emissions" - Emissions which would occur as a result of the Construction or 
operation of a Facility or Major Modification to a Facility but which do not come from 
the Facility or the Major Modification itself. 

(1) These emissions must be specific, well defined, quantifiable, and impact the same 
general area as the Facility or the Major Modification which causes the Secondary 
Emissions.  

(2) Secondary Emissions shall include emissions from any offsite support Facility 
which would not be constructed or increase its emissions except as the result of 
the construction or operation of the Facility or Major Modification.  

(3) Secondary Emissions shall not include any emissions which come directly from a 
Mobile Source.  

(SSS) “Shutdown” - the earlier of either: 

(1) The permanent cessation of emissions from an eEmissions uUnit(s); or 

(2) The surrender of an eEmissions uUnit(’s) operating permit. 

254 of 527



 

1301-16 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

D2a 7/7/2021 

(TTT) "Significant" - A Net Emissions Increase from a Major Modification which would be 
greater than or equal to the following emissions rates for those Regulated Nonattainment 
Air Pollutants and their Precursors dependantdependent upon Facility location. 

POLLUTANT EMISSION RATE 
(Within an attainment 
or unclassified area) 

EMISSION RATE 
(Within a Severe-17  
Federal ozone 
nonattainment area) 

EMISSION RATE 
(Within a moderate 
PM10 nonattainment 
area) 

Carbon Monoxide (CO) 100 tpy 100 tpy 100 tpy 
Lead (Pb) 0.6 tpy 0.6 tpy 0.6 tpy 
Oxides of Nitrogen 
(NOx) 

40 tpy 25 tpy 40 tpy 

PM10 
 

N/A N/A 15 tpy 

Reactive Organic 
Compounds (ROC) 

40 tpy 25 tpy 40 tpy 

Sulfur Dioxide (SO2) 40 tpy 40 tpy 40 tpy 
 

(1) If a Facility is located in more than one fFederal nNonattainment aArea then the 
lower of the limits listed above shall apply on a pollutant category specific basis.  
[Definition revised to only include nonattainment pollutants.  Attainment 
pollutants covered by Rule 1700 definitional incorporation by reference of 40 
CFR 52.21(b).] 

(UUU) "Simultaneous Emission Reduction" (SER) - A Federally Enforceable reduction , which 
is real, permanent, enforceable, quantifiable and surplus, in the emissions of an existing 
Emissions Unit(s), calculated pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1304(C), which 
occurs at in the same time as a permitting action as when such SERs are used pursuant to 
this Regulation and is a reduction in the Historic Actual Emissions of the Emissions 
Unit(s). 

(VVV) South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) – The air district created 
pursuant to Division 26, Part 3, Chapter 5.5 of the Health & Safety Code (commencing 
with §40400).  [Term used in Rule 1309 in regards to ERCs created/held by companies 
within the AVAQMD.] 

(WWW) Stack – Any point in a Facility or Emission Unit designed to emit solids, liquids, 
or gases into the air, including a pipe or duct but not including flares.  [Derived from 40 
CFR 51.100(ff) and MDAQMD 1301(PPP).  USEPA Comment 1.1.3.a. to MDAQMD, 
12/19/2019] 

(XXX) Stack in Existence - For purposes of determining whether a stack height exceeds good 
engineering practices, the definition contained in 40 CFR 51.100(gg) in effect on [Rule 
amendment date] shall apply, and is incorporated herein by this reference. [Derived from 
40 CFR 51.100(gg) and MDAQMD 1301(QQQ).  USEPA Comment 1.1.3.a. to 
MDAQMD 12/19/2019] 

255 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1301 1301-17 
NSR Definitions 
D2a 7/7/2021 

(VVVYYY) “State Implementation Plan” (SIP) - A plan for the reduction of Regulated Air 
Pollutants created by the District and CARB and approved by USEPA pursuant to the 
provisions of Title I of the Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.) and the 
regulations promulgated thereunder. 

(WWWZZZ) “Surplus” -– That which is not otherwise required.  As used for the purposes of 
Offset Emissions Reductions the amount of emissions Rreductions in emissions which 
that are, at the time of generation and use, in excess of the reductions which arenot 
otherwise required by Federal, State or District law, rule, order, permit or regulation; not 
required by any legal settlement or consent decree; and not relied upon to meet any 
requirement related to the California State Implementation Plan (SIP). [Derived from 
Butte County APCD Rule 432:4.45 and MDAQMD Rule 1041(DD).  See USEPA 
Comment 1.2.2.a.1. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(XXXAAAA) "Total Organic Compounds" - Compounds of carbon, excluding carbon 
monoxide, carbon dioxide, carbonic acid, metallic carbides or carbonates and ammonium 
carbonate. 

(YYYBBBB) "United States Environmental Protection Agency" (USEPA) - The United States 
Environmental Protection Agency, the Administrator of the USEPA and his or hertheir 
authorized representative. 

(ZZZCCCC) "Volatile Organic Compounds" (VOC) - Any compound of carbon, excluding 
carbon monoxide, carbon dioxide, carbonic acid, metallic carbides or carbonates, and 
ammonium carbonate, which participates in atmospheric photochemical reactions and 
those compounds listed in 40 CFR 51.100(s)(1). 

 
[See AVAQMD SIP table at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plans SIP: Submitted as amended 
03/20/01 on _______; Approved 2/4/96, 61 FR 64291, 40 CFR 52.220(c)(240)(i)(A)(1);  
Conditionally Approved 6/9/82, 47 FR 25013, 40 CFR 52.220(c)(87)(v)(A); Conditionally 
Approved 1/21/81, 46 FR 5965, 40 CFR 52.220(c)(68)(i)] 

256 of 527



 

1301-18 AVAQMD Rule 1301 
NSR Definitions 

D2a 7/7/2021 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
  

257 of 527



(Adopted: 10/05/79; Amended: 03/07/80; Amended: 07/11/80; 
Amended: 09/10/82; Amended: 07/12/85; Amended: 08/01/86; 
Amended: 12/02/88; Amended: 06/28/90; Amended: 05/03/91; 
Amended: 12/07/95; Amended: 03/20/01; Amended: 8/15/06; 
Amended: mm/dd/yy) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-1 
NSR Procedure 
D2 6/01/2021 

RULE 1302 
New Source Review Procedure 

 

(A) Applicability 

(1) This rule shall apply to all new or Modified Facilities, including EEGFs as 
defined in District Rule 1301(YV), pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 
1306. 

(B) Applications [Section substantially reorganized for clarity.] 

(1) Initial Analysis 

(a) Any application for an ATC or modification to a PTO, submitted pursuant to the 
procedures of District Regulation II, shall be analyzed to determine if such 
application is complete. An application shall be deemed complete when it 
contains the following, as applicable: [Provision added to avoid repetition in 
subsequent subsections.] 

(a) General Application Requirements. 

(i) An application is complete when it contains eEnough information 
regarding the location, design, construction, and operation of the 
new or modified Facility or Emissions Unit(s) to allow all the 
applicable analysis and calculations required under this Regulation 
to be made, including but not limited to: identification of all new 
or modified Emissions Unit(s); the amount of potential emissions 
from such new or modified Emissions Unit(s); information 
sufficient to determine all rules, regulations or other requirements 
applicable to such Emissions Unit(s); a determination of whether 
stack height exceeds Good Engineering Practice; and any 
necessary air quality modeling consistent with the most recent 
USEPA guidance, including but not limited to, the requirements 
contained in 40 CFR 51 Appendix W, modeling protocols and the 
results of such modeling.  [Derived from MDAQMD 
1302(B)(1)(a)(i).  See USEPA Comment 1.1.1.b., 1.1.3.a., and 3.4. 
to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(ii) A Comprehensive Emissions Inventory.   
a. All Facilities shall submit a Comprehensive Emissions Inventory 

in conjunction with the application.   
b. If a Facility has a current approved Comprehensive Emissions 

Inventory on file with the District such Facility may, upon written 
request and approval of the APCO, update the Comprehensive 

258 of 527



 

1302-2 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

D2 6/01/2021 

Emissions Inventory to reflect the addition, deletion or 
modification of all Emission Unit(s) affected by the application.  
[Derived from MDAQMD 1302(B)(1)(a)(ii); Modified for clarity.] 
 c. No application may be determined to be complete without a 

Comprehensive Emissions Inventory or Comprehensive 
Emission Inventory Update. [Removed as unnecessary. See 
proposed (B)(1) above and (B)(1)(e)] 

(iii) A District Regulation XVII applicability analysis sufficient 
to determine whether the Facility or Modification is or is 
not a Major PSD Facility or a Major PSD Modification as 
defined in District Rule 1700(B), using the applicability 
procedures adopted by reference in District Rule 1700. 
[Ties into Rule 1700 PSD application requirements.  See 
also proposed subsection (B)(1)(d) below.] 

(iv) Any other information specifically requested by the District 
[Adds a catch all provision for special circumstances.] 

 
(b) Application Requirements for Facilities Requiring Offsets. 

(i) For all new and modified Facilities requiring offsets pursuant to 
District Rule 1303(B): 
(iii)a. An Aalternative Ssiting analysis  
a. For Facilities and Modifications requiring offsets pursuant 

to District Rule 1303(B) a complete application shall 
include including an analysis of alternative sites, sizes and 
production processes pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §7503(a)(5) 
(Federal Clean Air Act §173(a)(5)).  Such analysis shall be 
functionally equivalent to that required pursuant to 
Division 13 of the California Public Resources Code 
(commencing with §section 21000.) 

 b. The provisions of (B)(1)(a)(iii)a. above shall not apply if 
the Facility or Modification has been determined to not be a 
Federal Major Facility or a Federal Major Modification as 
defined in District Rule 1310(C)(6) and (7) or the Facility 
has previously applied for and received a valid Plantwide 
Applicability Limit (PAL) pursuant to the provisions of 
District Rule 1310(F). [Provision removed as unnecessary 
and unused.  See USEPA Comment 1.3.1. to MDAQMD, 
12/19/2019] 

(iv)b. A Sstatewide Ccompliance Ccertification stating  
a. For Facilities and Modifications which requires offsets 

pursuant to District Rule 1303(B) a complete application 
shall include a certification that all Facilities which are 
under the control of the same person (or persons under 
common control) in the State of California are in 
compliance with all applicable emissions limitations and 
standards under the Federal Clean Air Act and the 

259 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-3 
NSR Procedure 
D2 6/01/2021 

applicable implementation plan for the air district in which 
the other Facilities are located. 

 
(vc) Mandatory Federal Class I Area Visibility Protection Application 

Requirements. 

a.(i) An application for a new or modified Major Facility or a Facility 
with a Major Modification which is located within 60 miles of a 
Class I Area, as defined in 40 CFR 51.301(o) may have an impact 
upon visibility in any Mandatory Federal Class I Area, shall 
include in its application an analysis of any anticipated impacts on 
visibility within that Mandatory Federal Class I Area.  Such 
analysis shall include, but is not limited to, an analysis of the 
factors found in 40 CFR 51.3017(a).  [Revised to differentiate 
between visibility analysis requirement and PSD requirements 
related to Federal Class I Areas.  See USEPA Comment 1.3.1. and 
2.1. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(vi) District Rule 1310 Applicability 
a. For Facilities and Modifications which requires offsets 

pursuant to District Rule 1303(B) a complete application 
may include an analysis sufficient to show that the Facility 
or Modification is not a Federal Major Facility or a Federal 
Major Modification as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(6) 
and (7). 

b. For a Facility requesting a PAL pursuant to District Rule 
1310(F) a complete application shall include an analysis 
sufficient to justify the classification of the Facility as a 
Federal Major Facility as defined in District Rule 
1310(C)(6) and any information necessary to issue the 
proposed PAL in conformance with all provisions of 40 
CFR 51.165(f)(1-15). [Removed as unnecessary and 
unused.  See USEPA Comment 1.3.1. to MDAQMD, 
12/19/2019] 

 
(d) Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) Analysis Application 

Requirements [Provision added to ensure PSD requirements are not 
inadvertently excluded.  See also subsection (B)(1)(a)(iii) above.] 

(i) For a Facility which is a Major PSD Facility or Major PSD 
Modification as defined in District Rule 1700(B):  
a. A modeling protocol consistent with the most recent 

USEPA guidance including but not limited to the 
requirements contained in 40 CFR 51 Appendix W, and as 
approved by the APCO.  Such protocol shall also be 
submitted to USEPA and, if applicable, the Federal Land 
Manager(s) of any potentially impacted area; and [See 
USEPA Comment 1.1.1.b. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

260 of 527



 

1302-4 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

D2 6/01/2021 

b. A control technology review pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21(j); 
and 

c. A source impact analysis, including but not limited to 
analysis pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21(k) and a per-application 
analysis pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21(m)(1); and 

d. Information required pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21(n) if not 
provided elsewhere in the application; and  

e. An additional impact analysis including but not limited to 
analysis of direct and indirect impacts of the proposed 
emissions increase on soils, vegetation and visibility, 
pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21(o); and 

f. An analysis of anticipated impacts on a Federal Class I 
aArea if the Facility is located within 63 miles (100 
kilometers) of such area pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21(p); and 
[See USEPA Comment 2.1. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019 and 
definition of Federal Class I Area added to Rule 1301.] 

 
(be) Determination of Application Completeness. 

(i) The APCO shall determine whether the application is complete not 
later than thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of the application, 
or after such longer time as both the applicant and the APCO may 
agree in writing.  

 
(cf) Trade Secret Information: 

(i) The confidentiality of trade secrets contained in an application 
shall be considered in accordance with Government Code §6254.7 
and 18 U.S.C. §1905. [Conforms with subsection (D)(3)(c)] 

(ii) Any information claimed by an applicant to be trade secret or 
otherwise confidential shall be clearly marked as such.  [Added to 
conform with subsection (D)(3)(c)] 

 
(2) Notifications Regarding Applications 

(a) After the determination of completeness has been made, the APCO shall 
transmit a written determination of completeness or incompleteness  
immediately to the applicant at the address indicated on the application.  

(i) If the application is determined to be incomplete, the determination 
shall specify which parts of the application are incomplete and how 
they can be made complete. 
a. Upon receipt by the APCO of information required to 

render an application complete or upon resubmittal of the 
entire application, a new thirty (30) day period in which the 
APCO must determine completeness, shall begin. 

261 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-5 
NSR Procedure 
D2 6/01/2021 

(ii) When an application subject to the provisions of District Rule 1700 
is determined to be complete the APCO shall transmit a copy of 
the written completeness determination to USEPA and, upon 
request, provide USEPA with a copy of the application.  [Ties into 
PSD provisions.] 

(iii) If the application contains an analysis of anticipated visibility 
impacts on a Mandatory Federal Class I Area, the APCO shall, 
within 30 calendar days after receipt of the application, notify 
USEPA and the Federal Land Manager of the affected Mandatory 
Federal Class I Area.  
a. The APCO shall include in such notification a copy of the 

application and the analysis of anticipated impacts on the 
affected Mandatory Federal Class I Area. [Moved & 
modified from (B)(2)(c) below.  Removed superfluous cross 
references.  See applicable definitions in Rule 1301.] 

 
(b) When the application has been determined to be complete the APCO shall 

then commence the analysis process detailed in section (C) below.  
[Clarification of process flow.] 

(bc) In the alternative, the APCO may complete the issuance of the ATC(s) 
within the thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of the application so long 
as all the applicable analysis required pursuant to subsection (C) has been 
performed and the provisions of subsection (C)(7)(e) applies. either of the 
following conditions are met:   [Ties issuance clearly into notice 
provisions and avoids duplication of requirements.] 

(i) None of the requirements contained in District Rule 1303 apply to 
the project; or  

(ii) The requirements of District Rule 1303(A) applies to the project 
and the issuance of the ATC(s) comply with the requirements of 
subsection (C)(2)(a)(ii). 

 
(c) If the application contains an analysis of anticipated visibility impacts on a 

Class I Area, as defined in 40 CFR 51.301(o), pursuant to subsection 
(B)(1)(a)(v) above, the APCO shall, within thirty (30) calendar days after 
receipt of the application, notify USEPA and the Federal Land Manager of 
the affected Class I Area. 

(i) The APCO shall include in such notification a copy of the 
application and the analysis of anticipated impacts on the affected 
Class I Area. [Moved to subsection (B)(2)(a) above.] 

 
(3) Effect of Complete Application 

(a) After an application is determined to be complete, the APCO shall not 
subsequently request of an applicant any new or additional information 

262 of 527



 

1302-6 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

D2 6/01/2021 

which was not specified in the APCO’s list of items to be included within 
such applications required pursuant to subsection (B)(1) or by a 
determination of incompleteness pursuant to subsection (B)(2)(a).  
[Clarity and provides cross reference to required information list.] 

(b) Notwithstanding the above, the APCO may, during the processing of the 
application, require an applicant to clarify, amplify, correct or otherwise 
supplement the information required in such list in effect at the time the 
complete application was received.  

(c) A request by the APCO for clarification pursuant to subsection (B)(3)(b) 
above does not waive, extend, or delay the time limits in this rule for final 
action on the completed application, except as the applicant and the APCO 
may both agree in writing. 

(4) Fees 

(a) The APCO shall not perform any analysis as set forth in section (C) below 
pursuant to this Regulation unless all applicable fees, including but not 
limited to the Project Evaluation Fee for Complex Sources as set forth in 
District Rule 301, have been paid.  [Provides reminder that if the complex 
source fee applies it must be paid prior to analysis being performed.] 

(C) Analysis 

(1) Determination of Emissions 

(a) The APCO shall analyze the application to determine the typespecific 
pollutants, amount, and change (if any) in emissions pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rules 1304 and 1700. [Clarification of term “type.”  
See USEPA Comment 1.3.1. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(b) If a Facility has provided information pursuant to subsection (B)(1)(a)(vi) 
above, the APCO shall also analyze the application to determine the type, 
amount and change (if any) in emissions pursuant to the provisions of 
District Rule 1310.  [Provisions relating to Rule 1310 removed as 
unnecessary and unused.] 

(2) Determination of Requirements 

(a) After determining the emissions change (if any), Tthe APCO shall, after 
the analysis,  determine if any or all of the provisions of District Rule 
1303 apply to the new or Mmodified Facility. 

(ib) If none of the provisions of District Rule 1303 apply to the new or 
Mmodified Facility, then the APCO shall commence the issuance of the 
ATC or modification of the PTO pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 

263 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-7 
NSR Procedure 
D2 6/01/2021 

II. continue the analysis at subsection (C)(4) below.  [Clarification of 
process flow.] 

(iic) If only the provisions of District Rule 1303 subsection (A) is the only 
provision of District Rule 1303 applicable apply to the new or Mmodified 
Facility, and the application does not utilize SERs to reduce PE then the 
APCO shall: 

a.(i) The APCO shall commence the issuance of the ATC or 
modification of the PTO pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 
II; and. 

b. The ATC or PTO so issued or modified shall Develop and include 
conditions on any proposed ATC or PTO required to implement 
BACT on all new or Mmodified Emissions Unit(s) at the Facility; 
and 

(ii) Continue the analysis at subsection (C)(4) below. [Clarification of 
process flow.] 

 
 (iii) If only the provisions of District Rule 1303(A) apply to the new or 

Modified Facility, and the application utilizes SERs to reduce PE then: 

a. The APCO shall produce a Facility engineering analysis 
which contains substantially the same information required 
for a decision under section (D) below; and 

b. After the production of the Facility engineering analysis the 
APCO shall commence the issuance of the ATC or 
modification of the PTO pursuant to the provisions of 
Regulation II; and. 

c. The ATC or PTO so issued or modified shall include 
conditions required to implement BACT on all new or 
Modified Emissions Unit(s) at the Facility. [Provision 
removed to conform with proposed amendments to 1304] 

(ivd) If the provisions of District Rule 1303 subsection (B) of District Rule 
1303 apply to the new or Mmodified Facility then the APCO shall: 

(i) Commence a Facility engineering analysis; and 
(ii) Develop and include conditions to implement BACT on any 

proposed ATC or PTE required for each new or Modified 
Emission Unit(s) subject to the provisions of District Rule 
1303(A); and [Echoes language in (B)(2)(c) above] 

(iii) cContinue the analysis and issuance procedure as set forth in this 
Rule at subsection (C)(3) below.  [Clarification of process flow.] 

 
(b) If the provisions of District Rule 1303(B) apply and the new or Modified 

Facility is located in an area classified by USEPA as attainment or 
unclassifiable then the APCO shall, after analysis, determine if the Facility 

264 of 527



 

1302-8 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

D2 6/01/2021 

will cause or contribute to a violation of the national Ambient Air Quality 
Standards. 

(i) The provisions of section (C)(2)(b) above may be satisfied by 
performance of appropriate modeling as approved by the APCO. 
[Provision moved to subsection (D)(5)(b)(iv)] 

 
(53) Determination of Offsets 

(a) If the provisions of District Rule 1303(B) apply to the new or Mmodified 
Facility, then the APCO shall calculate the amount of Offsets required on 
a pollutant by pollutant basis pursuant to the provisions of District Rules 
1304(B)(2) and 1305.  [Conforms with proposed amendments to 1304 and 
1305.  Clarifies language to avoid “type” as undefined term.] 

(i) The APCO shall thereafter notify the applicant in writing of the 
specific amount and type of Offsets.  [Moved and modified from 
(B)(5)(a) below.  Clarifies language to avoid “type” as undefined 
term.] 

 
(b) Upon receipt of the notification, the applicant shall provide to the APCO a 

proposed Offset package which contains evidence of a sufficient quantity 
of Offsets eligible for use pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1305. 

(i) The APCO shall analyze the proposed Offset package to determine 
if an aAdjustment in the value of such Offsets is required and 
apply the applicable offset ratio (if any) pursuant to the provisions 
of District Rule 1305. 
a. If the Offset package includes Mobile, Area, or Indirect 

Source ERCs pursuant to District Rule 1305(C)(3) or 
proposes the use of interpollutant Offsets pursuant to 
District Rule 1305(C)(6) the APCO shall notify USEPA by 
sending a copy of the application, the proposed Offset 
package and all relevant information thereto.  [Derived 
from proposed 1305(C)(6)(a) and ties into (D)(2)(e).  See 
USEPA Comment 1.2.2.e. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019]  

(ii) The APCO shall disallow the use of any Offsets which were 
created by the shutdown, modification or limitation of existing 
Emissions Unit(s) when such Offsets: 
a. Are not in compliance with the applicable provisions of 

District Rule 1305 or 40 CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(C); or 
[Modified to comply with proposed revisions to Rules 1304 
and 1305.  See USEPA Comment 1.2.2.a.5. to MDAQMD, 
12/19/2019]  

b. USEPA has disapproved the applicable implementation 
plan for the District, or USEPA has made a finding of a 

265 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-9 
NSR Procedure 
D2 6/01/2021 

failure to submit for the District of all or a portion of an 
applicable implementation plan.  

(iii) After determining that the Offsets are Real, Enforceable, sSurplus, 
Permanent and Quantifiable; that a sufficient quantity have been 
provided; and after any permit modifications required pursuant to 
District Rules 1304, 1305 or 1309 have been made, the APCO 
shall approve the use of the Offsets. 
a. For a Federalnew or Modified Major Facility or a Major 

Modification which is located in a Federal Nonattainment 
aArea the APCO’s approval shall be subject to review and 
comment by CARB and USEPA pursuant to subsection 
(D)(2) below.  

b. For all other Facilities or Modifications subject to this 
provision the APCOs approval shall be subject to the 
approval of CARB during the comment period required 
pursuant to subsection (D)(2) below. [Removes Rule 1310 
provisions as unnecessary and unused.  See USEPA 
Comment 1.3.1. and 3.3. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(iv) The Offset package must be submitted and approved by the APCO 
prior to the issuance of the New Source Review Document and any 
permits. [Removed as duplicative.] 

(iv) The Offsets must be obtained prior to time the new or Modified 
Facility Begins Actual Construction. [References defined term.] 

 
(c) After determination of the amount of pollutant specific offsets required 

and approval of the Offset package the APCO shall continue the analysis 
at subsection (C)(4) below.  [Clarification of process flow.] 

[Entire subsection moved and modified from former (C)(5)] 

(3) Determination of Additional Federal Requirements 

(a) For Facilities which have provided information pursuant to subsection 
(B)(1)(a)(vi)a., the APCO shall determine if any or all of the provisions of 
District Rule 1310 apply to the facility. 

(i) If none of the provisions of District Rule 1310 apply to the 
modification the APCO shall continue the analysis and issuance 
procedure as set forth in this Rule. 

(ii) If any of the provisions of District Rule 1310 apply to the 
modification the APCO prior to issuing any ATC or PTO shall: 
a. Ensure that an alternative site analysis required under 42 

U.S.C. §7530(a)(5) (Federal Clean Air Act §173(a)(5)) has 
been performed; and 

b. Add any conditions required to implement any provisions 
of District Rule 1310. 

 

266 of 527



 

1302-10 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

D2 6/01/2021 

(b) For Facilities and Modifications which require offsets pursuant to District 
Rule 1303(B) which do not provide information pursuant to (b)(1)(a)(vi)a. 
prior to issuing any ATC or PTO the APCO shall: 

(i). Ensure that an alternative site analysis required under 42 U.S.C. 
§7530(a)(5) (Federal Clean Air Act §173(a)(5)) has been 
performed; and 

(ii). Add any conditions required to implement any provisions of 
District Rule 1310. 

 
(c) For a Facility requesting a PAL pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 

1310(F) prior to issuing any ATC or PTO the APCO shall add any 
conditions to the applicable permits required to implement the PAL. [Rule 
1310 and cross-referencing provisions removed as unnecessary and 
unused.  See USEPA Comment 1.3.1. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(4) Stack Height Analysis 

(a) If the application contains a determination showing that the stack height 
exceeds Good Engineering Practice the APCO shall:  

(i) Provide that the degree of emission limitation required of the new 
or modified Facility or Emission Unit(s) is not affected by so much of the 
stack height that exceeds Good Engineering Practice or by any other 
Dispersion Technique; and [Provision derived from 40 CFR 51.164 and 
“Dispersion Technique” definition in Rule 1301.  See USEPA Comment 
1.1.3.a. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(ii) Notify the public of the availability of the demonstration study and 
provide opportunity for a public hearing pursuant to the provisions of 
subsection (C)(7)(b)(ii) before an ATC is issued; and 

(iii) Ensure any field study or fluid model used to demonstrate Good 
Engineering Practice stack height and any determination concerning 
excessive concentration is approved by the EPA and the Control Officer 
prior to any emission limit being established. 

(b) The provisions of this subsection do not restrict, in any manner, the actual 
stack height of any Facility.   

(c) The APCO shall continue the analysis at subsection (C)(5) below. 

[Derived from 40 CFR 51.100(ii) and 51.164 and related definitions in Rule 
1301.  See USEPA Comment 1.1.3.a. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(45) Determination of Requirements for Toxic Air Contaminants 

267 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-11 
NSR Procedure 
D2 6/01/2021 

(a) The APCO shall also determine if any of the provisions of District Rules 
1401 - New Source Review of Carcinogenic Air Contaminants or 1402 - 
Control of Toxic Air Contaminants from Existing Sources apply to the 
new or Mmodified Facility. [Standardizes cross references] 

(ib) If any of the provisions of District Rules 1401 or 1402 apply to the new or 
Mmodified Facility the APCO shall: [Rule 1402 is not triggered by new or 
modified permitting actions.] 

(i) rRequire the Facility to comply with the applicable provisions of 
those rRules prior to proceeding with any further analysis or 
processing of an application pursuant to this Regulation; and 

(ii) Add any conditions to the applicable permits required to 
implement any provisions of those Rules. 

 
(c) After determining which, if any, requirements of District Rule 1401 apply 

and any necessary actions taken, the APCO shall continue the analysis at 
subsection (C)(6) below. [Clarification of process flow.] 

(d) This subsection is not submitted to USEPA and is not intended to be 
include as part of the California State Implementation Plan (SIP).  
[Derived from Imperial County APCD Rule 207.  See USEPA Comment 
1.3.3. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

 
(5) Determination of Offsets 

(a) If the provisions of District Rule 1303(B) apply to the new or Modified 
Facility, then the APCO shall analyze the application to determine the 
amount and type of Offsets required pursuant to the provisions of District 
Rule 1305. 

(i) The APCO shall thereafter notify the applicant in writing of the 
specific amount and type of Offsets. 

 
(b) Upon receipt of the notification, the applicant shall provide to the APCO a 

proposed Offset package which contains evidence of Offsets eligible for 
use pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1305. 

(i) The APCO shall analyze the proposed Offset package to determine 
if an adjustment in the value of such Offsets is required pursuant to 
the provisions of District Rule 1305(C)(4). 

(ii) The APCO shall disallow the use of any Offsets which were 
created by the shutdown of Emissions Unit(s) when: 
a. The Offsets were created by a shutdown of Emissions 

Unit(s) which was not contemporaneous pursuant to 
District Rule 1309 with the creation of the Offsets; and  

268 of 527



 

1302-12 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

D2 6/01/2021 

b. USEPA has disapproved the applicable implementation 
plan for the District or USEPA has made a finding of a 
failure to submit for the District of all or a portion of an 
applicable implementation plan.  

(iii) After determining that the Offsets are real, enforceable, surplus, 
permanent and quantifiable and after any permit modifications 
required pursuant to District Rules 1304, 1305 or 1309 have been 
made, the APCO shall approve the use of the Offsets. 
a. For a Federal Major Facility as defined in District Rule 

1310(C)(6) or Federal Major Modification, as defined in 
District Rule 1310(C)(7), and which is located in a Federal 
nonattinment area the APCO’s approval shall be subject to 
the approval of CARB and USEPA during the comment 
period required pursuant to subsection (D)(2) below. 

b. For all other Facilities or Modifications subject to this 
provision the APCOs approval shall be subject to the 
approval of CARB during the comment period required 
pursuant to subsection (D)(2) below. 

(iv) The Offset package must be submitted and approved by the APCO 
prior to the issuance of the New Source Review Document and any 
permits. 

(v) The Offsets must be obtained prior to the commencement of 
construction on the new or Modified Facility. [Moved to 
Subsection (B)(3) above] 

 
(6) Determination of Requirements for Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) 

[Entire subsection derived from MDAQMD 1302(B)(6).  Added to insure PSD 
requirements are not inadvertently skipped during the permitting process.] 

(a) The APCO shall review the PSD applicability analysis submitted pursuant 
to subsection (B)(1)(a)(iii) to determine if the proposed new or modified 
Facility is or is not a Major PSD Facility or a Major PSD Modification as 
defined in District Rule 1700.  

(ib) If the APCO determines that proposed new or modified Facility is a Major 
PSD Facility or a Major PSD Modification then the APCO shall:  

(i) Perform the analysis required pursuant to the provisions of District 
Rule 1700(D)(2); and [See USEPA Comment 1.3.1. to MDAQMD, 
12/19/2019]   

(ii) Either complete the PSD permit issuance pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1700(D) or combine the appropriate 
analysis adding any necessary conditions in conjunction with those 
required pursuant to this Regulation; and  

(iii) Continue the analysis at subsection (C)(7) below. 
 

269 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-13 
NSR Procedure 
D2 6/01/2021 

(c) If none of the provisions of District Rule 1700 apply, the APCO shall 
continue the analysis at subsection (C)(7) below 

(7) Determination of Notice Requirements [Entire subsection added to specifically 
require determination of notice level and clarify flow process.] 

(a) The APCO shall determine the type of notice required for the proposed 
new or modified Facility. 

(b) Major NSR Notice:  If the new or Modified Facility is subject to any of 
the following, then the APCO shall implement the applicable provisions of 
section (D) prior to the issuance of the ATC(s) or modification of the 
PTO(s). 

(i) The provisions of District Rule 1303(B); or   
(ii) The provisions of subsection (C)(4) regarding stack height greater 

than good engineering practice.; or [Derived from 40 CFR 
51.100(ii) and 51.164.  See USEPA Comment 1.1.3.a. to 
MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(iii) The provisions of District Rule 1700; or.  
(iv) The provisions of District Regulation XXX and the action involves 

the issuance, renewal or Significant Modification of the Federal 
Operating Permit. [Only issuance, renewal and significant 
modifications to FOPs need full notice. Provision included to 
allow concurrent NSR and FOP notice.  See USEPA Comment 
1.1.2,b. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

 
(c) Toxic NSR Notice:  If any proposed new or modified Emissions Units at 

the new or modified Facility require public notification pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1401(E)(3)(e)(iii) or (F)(2)(b) then the APCO 
shall:  

(i) Provide the notice specified by the applicable provision(s) of 
District Rule 1401 in addition to any other required notice; or  

(ii) Provide notice pursuant to the provisions of subsection (D)(3)(a) 
ensuring that such notice containing contains any additional 
information required pursuant to the applicable provision(s) of 
District Rule 1401. [Clarity] 

(iii) This subsection is not submitted to USEPA and is not intended to 
be included as part of the California State Implementation Plan 
(SIP). [Derived from Imperial County APCD Rule 207.  See 
USEPA Comment 1.3.3. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

 
(d) Minor NSR Notice:  If the new or modified Facility is not subject to any 

of the provisions listed in subsections (7)(b) or (c) above, but is subject to 
any of the following, then the APCO shall commence the issuance of the 
ATC(s) or modification of the PTO(s) pursuant to the provisions of 

270 of 527



 

1302-14 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

D2 6/01/2021 

District Regulation II and provide notice pursuant to the provisions of 
subsection (D)(3)(a)(ii): 

(i) The emissions change for any Regulated Air Pollutant as 
calculated under subsection (C)(1) is greater than any of the 
following: 
a. 20 tpy or more of VOC, 20 tpy or more of NOx, 12 tpy or more 

of PM10, or 80% of the Major Facility Threshold for any other 
Nonattainment Air Pollutant as set forth in District Rule 
1303(B); or [See USEPA Comment 1.1.2.b. to MDAQMD, 
12/19/2019] 

b. 8 tpy or more of any Hazardous Air Pollutant or 20 tpy of any 
combination of Hazardous Air Pollutants or 80% of a lesser 
quantity of a Hazardous Air Pollutant as the USEPA may 
establish by rule; or  

c. The Federal Significance Level for a Regulated Air Pollutant 
as defined in 40 CFR 52.21(b)(23).  

[Justification for levels chosen for Minor NSR notice provided in staff 
report.  See USEPA Comment 1.1.2.b. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 
 

(e) Permit Issuance Notice:  If the new or modified Facility is not subject to 
any of the provisions listed in subsection (7)(b), (c) or (d) above, then the 
APCO shall commence the issuance of the ATC(s) or modification of the 
PTO(s) pursuant to the provisions of District Regulation II and subsection 
(D)(3)(a)(iii).  

(D) Permit Issuance Procedure 

(1) Preliminary Decision 

(a) After the all required analysies hashave been completed, the APCO shall 
issue a preliminary decision as to whether the New Source Review 
Document should be approved, conditionally approved, or disapproved 
and whether ATC(s) should be issued to the new or Modified Facility. 

(b) The preliminary decision shall include: 

(i) A succinct written analysis of the proposed approval, conditional 
approval or denialdisapproval; and [Clarity] 

(ii) If approved or conditionally approved, proposed permit conditions 
for the ATC(s) or modified PTO(s) and the reasons for imposing 
such permit conditions; and 

(iii) A Draft Permit.  [Conforms rule to current practice.] 
 

(c) The preliminary decision and draft NSR Document may also be combined 
with the draft PSD Document, if any, and any document(s) produced 
pursuant to District Regulation XXX.  In such case the preliminary 

271 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-15 
NSR Procedure 
D2 6/01/2021 

decision, draft NSR Document and draft PSD Document shall conform to 
the applicable provisions of District Regulation XXX and 40 CFR 70.6(a)-
(g), 70.7(a)-(b) and will serve as the draft Statement of Legal and Factual 
Basis and draft Federal Operating Permit.  [Allows Federal Operating 
Permit changes to be performed concurrently with other review.]_ 

(2) CARB, USEPA, Federal Land Manager, and Affected State Review [Modified to 
simplify noticing reqirements.] 

(a) If notice is required pursuant to the provisions of subsection (C)(7)(b)-(d) 
District Rule 1303(B) apply to the new or Modified Facility the APCO 
shall, concurrently with the publication required pursuant to subsection 
(D)(3) below, send a copy of the preliminary decision, the draft permit, 
and any underlying analysis to CARB, USEPA and any Affected State.  
[Conforms to current practice.] 

(b) CARB, USEPA and any Affected State shall have thirty (30) days from 
the date of publication of the notice pursuant to subsection (D)(3) below to 
submit comments and recommendations regarding the preliminary 
decision.  

(i) if the permitting action involves the issuance, renewal or 
Significant Modification of the Federal Operating Permit and that 
action is being performed concurrently with the actions pursuant to 
this Regulation then CARB, USEPA, and any Affected State shall 
have 45 days from the date of publication of the notice to submit 
comments.  [Added to conform with 40 CFR 70.7 and allow FOP 
changes to be made concurrently with NSR/PSD changes.] 

  
(c) Upon receipt of any comments and/or recommendations from CARB 

USEPA and/or any Affected State the APCO shall either: 

(i) Accept such comments and/or recommendations and modify the 
preliminary decision accordingly; or 

(ii) Reject such comments and/or recommendations, notify CARB, 
USEPA, and/or the Affected State of the rejection and the reasons 
for such rejection. 

 
(d) For applications containing an analysis of anticipated visibility impacts on 

a Federal Class I Area, as defined in 40 CFR 51.301(o),  pursuant to 
subsection (B)(1)(a)(vc) or (B)(1)(d)(i)e.-f. above, the APCO, upon receipt 
of any comments from USEPA or the Federal Land Manager of the 
affected Federal Class I Area, shall: 

(i) Accept such comments and/or recommendations and modify the 
preliminary decision accordingly; or 

272 of 527



 

1302-16 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

D2 6/01/2021 

(ii) Reject such comments and/or recommendations, notify CARB, 
USEPA, and/or the Federal Land Manager of the affected Federal 
Class I Area of the rejection and the reasons for such rejection. 
[See USEPA Comment 2.1. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019.] 

 
(e) For applications containing an Offset package submitted pursuant to 

subsection (C)(3)(b) where the Offset package includes Mobile, Area, or 
Indirect source ERCs pursuant to District Rule 1305(C)(3) or proposes the 
use of Interpollutant Offsets pursuant to District Rule 1305(C)(6), the 
APCO, upon receipt of comments from USEPA, shall: 

(i) Accept such comments and/or recommendations and modify the 
preliminary decision accordingly; and 

(ii) Require changes to the Offset package by the applicant if such are 
necessary. [Provision added to conform with 40 CFR 
51.165(a)(11) and proposed 1305(C)(6).  See USEPA Comment 
1.3.1. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

 
(3) Public Review and Comment 

(a) Publication of Notice 

(i) Major NSR Notice and Toxic NSR Notice:  If notice is required 
pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1303(B) apply to the 
new or Modified Facility  subsections (C)(7)(b), (C)7)(c) or 
(D)(4)(d) then, within ten (10) days of the issuance of the 
preliminary determination, the APCO shall: 
a. Produce a notice containing all the information set forth in 

subsection (D)(3)(b)(i); and [Conforms to current 
practice.] 

b. Publish a notice in at least one newspaper of general 
circulation within the District by posting the notice and 
draft permit on the District’s website for, at a minimum, the 
duration of the public comment period; and  

bc. Send a copy of the notice containing the information set 
forth in subsection (D)(3)(b)(i) to the applicant; CARB; 
USEPA; Affected State(s); the City and County where the 
proposed Facility or Modification is located; any State or 
Federal Land Manager or Indian governing body who’s 
lands might be affected by emissions from the proposed 
Facility or Modification; and to all persons who have 
requested such notice and/or on a list of persons requesting 
notice of actions pursuant to this regulation generally on 
file with the Clerk of the Board for the District; and 

cd. Provide notice by other reasonable means, if such notice is 
necessary to assure fair and adequate notice to the public.  [ 

273 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-17 
NSR Procedure 
D2 6/01/2021 

Derived from 40 CFR 51.165(i)(1)(ii) and 51.166(q)(2)(iii).  
See USEPA Comment 1.1.2.1. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019]  

(ii) Such notice shall provide thirty (30) days from the date of the 
publication of the notice for the public to submit written comments 
on the preliminary decision and shall include: 
a. The name and location of the Facility, including the name 

and address of the applicant if different. 
b. A statement indicating the availability, conclusions of the 

preliminary decision and a location where the public may 
obtain or inspect the preliminary decision and supporting 
documentation; and 

c. A brief description of the comment procedures and 
deadlines; and 

d. If the APCO has rejected comments regarding anticipated 
visibility impacts on a Class I Area, a notation of the 
availability of the reasons for such rejection. [Provision 
moved to subsection (3)(b), below.] 

(ii) Minor NSR Notice:  If notice of permit issuance is required 
pursuant to the provisions of subsection (C)(7)(d) then, within 10 
days of the issuance of the engineering analysis the APCO shall: 
a. Produce a notice containing the information set forth in 

subsection (D)(3)(b)(ii) below; and 
b. Publish the notice and the draft permit by posting on the 

District’s website for, at a minimum, the duration of the 
comment period; and [Derived from 40 CFR 
51.165(i)(1)(ii) See USEPA Comment 1.1.2.a to MDAQMD 
12/19/2019] 

c. Send a copy of the notice to the applicant; CARB; USEPA; 
Affected State(s); and all persons who have requested such 
notice and/or on a list of persons requesting notice of 
actions pursuant to this regulation generally on file with the 
District.  [Conforms language to Major NSR Notice 
provisions and to current practice.] 

(iii) Permit Issuance Notice:  If the provisions of subsection (C)(7)(e) 
apply then the APCO shall issue the permit pursuant to the 
provisions of District Regulation II and post the final permit on the 
District’s website. [Conforms language to current practice.] 
 

(b) Notice Content Requirements.  [Moved and modified from subsection 
(D)(3)(a)(ii) above.  Specific requirements added to conform with current 
practice and to allow concurrent issuance of PSD and Title V permits.] 

(i) Major NSR Notice Contents:  The notice required pursuant to 
subsection (D)(3)(a)(i) shall include:   
a. The name and location of the Facility, including the name 

and address of the applicant if different. 

274 of 527



 

1302-18 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

D2 6/01/2021 

b. A statement indicating the availability, conclusions of the 
preliminary decision and a location where the public may 
obtain or inspect the preliminary decision and supporting 
documentation; and 

c. A statement providing at least 30 days from the date of 
publication of the notice for the public to submit written 
comments on the preliminary decision; and [See USEPA 
Comment 1.1.2.b to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019.] 

d. A brief description of the specific comment procedures and 
deadlines; and 

e. Information regarding obtaining review of the permit 
issuance decision by the District Hearing Board pursuant to 
the provisions of California Health & Safety Code 
§42302.1. [Clarity] 

f. If the APCO has determined that the Stack Height exceeds 
Good Engineering Practice then the notice shall also 
contain notice of the opportunity to request a public hearing 
on the proposed demonstration produced pursuant to 
subsection (C)(4)(a)(i). [USEPA Comment 1.1.3.a. to 
MDAQMD, 12/19/2019 

g. If the provisions of District Rule 1700(C) apply then the 
notice shall also contain: the degree of increment 
consumption; and notice of the opportunity to request a 
public hearing regarding the air quality impact, control 
technology or other appropriate considerations of the 
preliminary determination for the Major PSD Facility or 
Major PSD Modification.  

h. If the provisions of District Regulation XXX apply, and the 
action involves the issuance, renewal or Significant 
Modification of the Federal Operating Permit, and the 
Federal Operating Permit is being issued concurrently then 
the notice shall also contain notice of the opportunity to 
request a public hearing on the proposed Federal Operating 
Permit pursuant to District Rule 3007(A)(1)(d).  [Conforms 
to District Rule 3005 and 3007 requirements] 

i. If the APCO has rejected comments regarding anticipated 
visibility impacts on a Federal Class I Area, the notice shall 
also contain a notation of the availability of the reasons for 
such rejection. [USEPA Comment 2.1. to MDAQMD, 
12/19/2019  See also definition of Federal Class I Area 
added to Rule 1301.] 

(ii) Minor NSR Notice Contents:  The notification required pursuant 
to subsection (D)(3)(a)(ii) shall include: 
a. Identification of the Facility; including the name, address 

and Facility number; and 

275 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-19 
NSR Procedure 
D2 6/01/2021 

b. Identification of the permit(s) involved including permit 
number, and aa brief description of the action taken; and 

c. Where a copy of the application and preliminary decision 
may be obtained; and 

d. Provide at least 30 days from the date of publication of the 
notice for the public to submit written comments on the 
preliminary decision; and [USEPA Comment 1.1.2.b. to 
MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

e. A brief description of the specific comment procedures and 
deadlines; and [USEPA Comment 1.1.2a. to MDAQMD, 
12/19/2019] 

f. Information regarding obtaining review of the permit 
issuance decision by the District Hearing Board pursuant to 
the provisions of California Health & Safety Code 
§42302.1. 

 
(c) Availability of Documents 

(i) If the provisions of District Rule 1303(B) apply to the new or 
Modified Facility, then at At the time of publication of the any 
notice required above the APCO shall make available for public 
inspection at the offices of the District or in another prominent 
place the following information: 

a. The the application and any other information submitted by the 
applicant; and   

b. The NSR document, the preliminary decision to grant or deny the 
Authority to ConstructATC, including any proposed permit 
conditions and the reasons therefore; and   

c. Tthe supporting analysis for the preliminary decision. 
(ii) Notwithstanding the above, the APCO is not required to release 

confidential information.  Information shall be considered 
confidential when: 
a. The information is a trade secret or otherwise confidential 

pursuant to California Government Code 6254.7(d) or  
b. The information is entitled to confidentiality pursuant to 18 

U.S.C. §1905; and 
bc. Such information is clearly marked or otherwise identified 

by the applicant as confidential. 
 

(cd) The APCO shall accept and consider all relevant comment(s) submitted to 
the District in writing during the thirty (30) day public comment period 
provided pursuant to subsection (D)(3)(b)(i) or (ii). 

(d) The APCO shall consider all written comments submitted by the public 
during the comment period. [Combined with subsection directly above.] 

276 of 527



 

1302-20 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

D2 6/01/2021 

(e) The APCO shall, if requested pursuant to the provisions provided for in 
the published notice, hold a public hearing regarding the proposed 
preliminary determination as provided pursuant to subsection 
(D)(3)(b)(i)f.-h.  

(i) Such hearing shall be scheduled no less than 30 days after the 
publication of a notice of public hearing is published pursuant to 
the provisions set forth in subsection (D)(3)(a).  [Allows 
concurrent processing of PSD permits.] 

 
(f) The APCO shall keep a record of any oral and  all written comments 

received during the public comment period or at any public hearing and 
shall retain copies of such comments and the District’s written responses 
to such comments in the District files for the particular Facility. 
[Conforms to current practice.] 

(fg) If any substantive changes are made to the preliminary decision as a result 
of comments received from the public, CARB, USEPA or any Affected 
State(s), the APCO shall send a copy of the proposed changes to CARB 
and USEPA for review. 

(h) Nothing in this subsection shall be interpreted to limit the availability of 
documents pursuant to the California Public Records Act (California 
Government Code §§6250 et seq.) as effective upon the date of the request 
for such documents.  [Added to avoid inadvertent conflict with California 
law.] 

(4) Final Action 

(a) After the conclusion of the comment period and consideration of the 
comments, the APCO shall produce a final New Source ReviewNSR 
Document 

(b) Thereafter, the APCO shall take final action to issue, issue with conditions 
or decline to issue the New Source Review DocumentATCs or PTOs 
pursuant to subsection (D)(6) based on the NSR document. 

(i) Such final action shall take place no later than 180 days after the 
application has been determined to be complete. 

(ii) The APCO shall not take final action to issue the New Source 
ReviewNSR Document if either of the following occurs: 
a. USEPA objects to such issuance in writing; or 
b. USEPA has determined, as evidenced by a notice published 

in the Federal Register, that the applicable implementation 
plan is not being adequately implemented in the Federal 
nNonattainment aArea in which the new or Modified 

277 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-21 
NSR Procedure 
D2 6/01/2021 

Facility is located. [See USEPA Comment 3.3. to 
MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

 
(c) The APCO shall provide written notice of the final action to the applicant, 

USEPA and CARB. 

(d) If substantive changes have been made to the preliminary determination or 
other New Source Review Ddocuments after the opening of the public 
comment period which are substantial enough to require:  changes to the 
underlying requirements or which result in a less stringent BACT 
determination then, the APCO shall cause to be published a notice 
substantially similar in content to the notice required by subsection 
(D)(3)(a) above, in a newspaper of general circulation within the District 
of the final action.  [Conforms to current practice.] 

(e) The final NSR Document may be combined with a final PSD document 
produced pursuant to District Rule 1700(D). [Allows concurrent issuance 
of PSD documents.] 

(f) The final New Source ReviewNSR Documents and all supporting 
documentation shall remain available for public inspection at the offices of 
the District for a minimum period of 5 years. 

(5) Issuance of ATC(s) 

(a) In conjunction with final action on the NSR Document the APCO shall 
issue ATC(s) for the new or Modified Facility pursuant to the provisions 
of District Regulation II.  Such ATC(s) shall contain, at a minimum, the 
following conditions: 

(i) All conditions regarding construction, operation and other matters 
as set forth in the NSR Document; and 

(ii) If a new or Modified Facility is a replacement, in whole or in part, 
for an existing Facility or Emissions Unit on the same or 
contiguous property, a condition allowing one hundred eighty 
(180) days or another reasonable start up period as agreed to by the 
District, USEPA and CARB, for simultaneous operation of the 
new or Modified Facility and the existing Facility or Emissions 
Unit; and 

(iii) A condition requiring the Facility to be operated in accordance 
with the conditions contained on the ATC(s); 

(iv) A condition requiring that the offsets must be obtained prior to the 
commencement of construction on the new or Modified Facility, 
Enforceable, and in effect by the time the new or modified Facility 
commences operation.  [Conforms to current practice and 
proposed 1305.] 

 

278 of 527



 

1302-22 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

D2 6/01/2021 

(b) The APCO shall not issue ATC(s) to a new or Modified Facility pursuant 
to this regulation unless: 

(i) The new Facility or Modification to an existing Facility is 
constructed using BACT for each Nonattainment Air Pollutant 
when the provisions of Rule 1303(A) apply. 

(ii) Any increase in emissions for each Nonattainment Air Pollutant 
will behave been properly offset prior to Beginning Actual 
Construction when pursuant to the provisions of District Rules 
1303(B) 1305 and/or 1309.  apply  
a. Such offsets shall be Real, Enforceable Quantifiable, 

Surplus and Permanent; and 
b. The permit(s) of any Facility or Emissions Unit(s) which 

provided offsetting emissions reductions have been 
properly modified and/or other actions have been 
performed pursuant to the provisions of District Rules 1305 
and 1309.  [Cross references to offset requirements 
provided for clarity and consistency.] 

(iii) The new or Modified Facility complies with all applicable Rules 
and Regulations of the District. 

(iv) The new or Modified Facility will not interfere with the attainment 
or maintenance of any National Ambient Air Quality Standard.  
[Moved and modified from (C)(2)(b)] 

 
(6) Issuance of PTO(s) 

(a) After the final action on the New Source ReviewNSR Document pursuant 
to this Regulation and/or the issuance of ATC(s) pursuant to the 
provisions of District Regulation II, the APCO shall deny the subsequent 
issuance of PTO(s) unless the APCO determines that: 

(i) If no ATC was issued, the owner or operator of the new or 
Modified Facility has complied with all applicable provisions of 
this Regulation including the provision of offsets if such were 
required.  

(ii) The new or Modified Facility has been Constructed and operated 
in a manner consistent with the conditions as set forth in the NSR 
Document and the ATC(s); and 

(iii) That the permit(s) of any Facility or Emissions Unit(s) which 
provided Offsets to the new or Modified Facility have been 
properly modified and/or valid contracts have been obtained 
pursuant to the provisions of District Rules 1304, 1305 or 1309.  

(vi) That the Offsets, if required pursuant to District Rule 1303(B), 
were rReal, Enforceable, Quantifiable, Surplus and pPermanent, 
quantifiable, enforceable and surplus prior to the commencement 
of construction of the Facility. 

279 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1302 1302-23 
NSR Procedure 
D2 6/01/2021 

(v) That all conditions contained in the ATC(s) requiring performance 
of particular acts or events by a date specified have occurred on or 
before such dates. 

(vi) If the actual emissions are greater than those calculated when the 
ATC was issued: 
a. That the owner/operator has provided additional offsets to 

cover the difference between the amount of offsets 
originally provided and the amount of offsets necessary 
calculated pursuant to District Rule 1305 as based upon the 
actual emissions of the Facility; and 

b. That such additional offsets were provided within ninety 
(90) days of the owner/operator being notified by the 
APCO that such additional offsets are necessary. 

 
[SIP: Submitted as amended 3/20/01 on _______; Approved 2/4/96, 61 FR 64291, 40 CFR 
52.220(c)(240)(i)(A)(1);  Conditionally Approved 6/9/82, 47 FR 25013, 40 CFR 
52.220(c)(87)(v)(A); Conditionally Approved 1/21/81, 46 FR 5965, 40 CFR 52.220(c)(70)(i)(A) 
See AVAQMD SIP table at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plans] 
 
 
 
  

280 of 527



 

1302-24 AVAQMD Rule 1302 
NSR Procedure 

D2 6/01/2021 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 

281 of 527



(Adopted: 10/05/79; Amended: 03/07/80; Amended: 09/10/82; 
Amended: 07/12/85; Amended: 08/01/86; Amended: 06/28/90; 
Amended: 05/03/91; Amended: 12/07/95; Amended: 05/10/96; 
Amended: 03/20/01; Amended:  mm/dd/yy) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1303 1303-1 
NSR Requirements 
D2 6/01/2021 

Rule 1303 
New Source Review Requirements 

(A) Best Available Control Technology 

(1) Any new Permit Unit which emits, or has the Potential to Emit, 25 pounds per day 
or more of any Nonattainment Air Pollutant shall be equipped with BACT 

(2) Any Modified Permit Unit which emits, or has the Potential to Emit, 25 pounds 
per day or more of any Nonattainment Air Pollutant shall be equipped with 
BACT.  

(3) Any new or Modified Permit Unit at a Facility which emits, will emit, or has the 
Potential to Emit, 25 tons per year or more of any Nonattainment Air Pollutant in 
an amount greater than or equal to the amount listed in subsection (B)(1) below 
shall be equipped with BACT for each new or Modified Permit Unit. [Revised for 
clarity.] 

(4) For purposes of determining applicability of this Section, Potential to Emit is 
defined by District Rule 1301(FFF) calculated pursuant to the provisions of 
District Rule 1304(E)(3), any Emissions Change is calculated pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1304(B)(1), and  SERs shall not be utilized to reduce 
such Potential to Emitused in such calculations.  [Conforms to proposed revision 
of Rule 1304] 

(B) Offsets Required 

(1) Any new or Modified Facility which emits or has the Potential to Emit a 
Regulated Air Pollutant in an amount greater than or equal to the following offset  
threshold amounts of Nonattainment Air Pollutants and their Precursors,  as 
calculated pursuant to District Rule 1304(B) less any SERs as calculated and 
approved pursuant to District Rule 1304(C), shall obtain Offsets. 

282 of 527



 

1303-2 AVAQMD 1303 
NSR Requirements 

D2 6/01/2021 

OFFSET THRESHOLD AMOUNTS 
 

POLLUTANT OFFSET THRESHOLD 
Carbon Monoxide (CO) 100 tpy 

Hydrogen Sulfide (H2S) 10 tpy 

Lead  (Pb) 0.6 tpy 

PM10 15 tpy 

Oxides of Nitrogen (NOx) 25 tpy 

Oxides of Sulfur (SOx) 25 tpy 

Reactive Volatile Organic 
Compounds (RVOC) 

 
25 tpy 

 
[Attainment pollutants (both State and Federal) removed from table.  Federal Attainment 
pollutants covered by Rule 1700.  ROC changed to VOC to conform to definitional change in 
Rule 1301.] 
 

(2) Any Facility which is not a Major Facility but where the Modification is in itself a 
Major Modification shall obtain Offsets. 

(3) Any Facility or modification which emits or has the Potential to Emit a 
Nonattainment Air Pollutant in an amount greater than the threshold amounts 
listed in subsection (B)(1) becomes a Major Facility due to a relaxation of a 
Federally Enforceable requirement in any enforcement limitation established after 
August 7, 1980 on the capacity of the Facility or modification to emit a pollutant 
(such as a restriction on hours of operation ) shall obtain Offsets and be equipped 
with BACT pursuant to subsection (A)(3) above as if the Facility had not yet 
Commenced Construction.  [Derived from 40 CFR 51.165(a)(5)(ii).  See USEPA 
Comment 1.2.2.d. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(4) Any Facility which has accumulated emissions increases in excess of the offset 
threshold set forth in subsection (B)(1) above shall offset the total emission 
increase during such period to zero. 

(5) The amount, type, and eligibility of such offsets shall be determined on a 
pollutant by pollutant basis pursuant to the provisions of District Rules 1304, and 
1305, and 1309.  [Clarification.  Avoids the use of the word “type” per USEPA 
suggestion.] 

 
[SIP: See AVAQMD SIP table at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plansSubmitted as amended 
03/20/01 on ________; Approved 2/4/96, 61 FR 64291, 40 CFR 52.220(c)(240)(i)(A)(1);  
Conditionally Approved 6/9/82, 47 FR 25013, 40 CFR 52.220(c)(87)(v)(A); Conditionally 
Approved 1/21/81, 46 FR 5965, 40 CFR 52.220(c)(68)(i)] 

283 of 527



(Adopted: 10/05/79; Amended: 03/07/80; Amended: 09/10/82; 
Amended: 07/12/85; Amended: 01/10/86; Amended: 08/01/86; 
Amended: 06/28/90; Amended: 05/03/91; Amended: 06/05/92; 
Amended: 09/11/92; Amended: 12/07/95; Amended: 06/14/96; 
Amended: 03/20/01; Amended:  mm/dd/yy) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1304 1304-1 
NSR Emissions Calculations 
D3a 7/7/2021 

RULE 1304 
New Source Review Emissions Calculations 

(A) General 

(1) Purpose 

(a) This rule provides the procedures and formulas to calculate emissions 
increases and decreases in emissions of Regulated Air Pollutants for new 
or Modified Facilities.  The results of such calculations shall be used to: 

(i) Determine the applicability of the provisions of District Rule 1303.  
(ii) Calculate SERs generated within the same Facility to reduce 

Proposed Emissions for purposes of applicability of District Rule 
1303(B). 

(iii) Determine the Potential to Emit (PTE) for new or Modified 
Facilities and Emissions Unit(s). 

(iv) Calculate certain terms used in District Rule 1305.  [Added to 
conform with proposed 1305 amendments.] 

(v) Calculate emissions decreases used to determine ERCs pursuant to 
the provisions of District Rule 1309. 

 

(B) Calculating Emissions Changes in a Facility 

(1) General Emissions Change Calculations 

(a) The emissions change for a new or Modified Facility or Emissions Unit(s) 
shall be calculated, in pounds per day, by subtracting Historic Actual 
Emissions (HAE) from Proposed Emissions (PE). 

Emissions Change = (Proposed EmissionsPE)  - (Historic Actual EmissionsHAE) 
 

(b) The emissions change for a project at new or Modified Facility is the sum 
of all the positive Emissions Changes for each Emissions Unit(s) which 
occur at the Facility at the same time or in connection with the same 
permitting action.  [Clarifies current practice.] 

(2) Net Emissions Increase Calculations 

(a) The Net Emissions Increase for a new or modified Emissions Unit(s) shall 
be calculated, in pounds per day, by subtracting Historic Actual Emissions 
(HAE) from Proposed Emissions (PE). 

284 of 527



 

1304-2 AVAQMD Rule 1304 
NSR Emissions Calculations 

D3a 7/7/2021 

Net Emissions Increase = (PE) – (HAE) 
 

(b) The Net Emissions Increase for a new Facility is the sum of all the 
Potential Emissions from each Emissions Unit(s) at the Facility. 

(c) The Net Emissions Increase for a project at a modified Facility is the sum 
of all the Net Emissions Increases for each Emissions Unit(s) minus any 
SERs as calculated and verified pursuant to Section (C) below which 
occur at the Facility at the same time or in connection with the same 
permitting action.  [Calculation provision added to segregate applicability 
from “amount of offsets” calculations.] 

(C) Calculating Simultaneous Emissions Reductions. 

(1) SERs as defined in District Rule 1301(UUU) may result from the Modification or 
shut down of Existing Emission Unit(s) so long as the resulting reductions are 
Federally Enforceable, rReal, enforceable, permanent, quantifiable, 
surplusSurplus, Permanent, Quantifiable and Enforceable, and are reductions in 
Actual Emissions of the Emissions Unit(s). 

(2) SERs resulting from the Modification or shutdown of existing Emission Unit(s) 
within the same Facility shall be calculated as follows: 

(a) For the shutdown of Emissions Unit(s); 

SER  =  Historic Actual Emissions HAE 
 

(b) For Modifications or limitations on operations of Emission Unit(s); 

SER  = (Historic Actual EmissionsHAE) - (Proposed EmissionsPE) 
 

(c) For shutdown, Modifications or limitations on mobile, area or indirect 
sources of emissions;  

(i) Any calculation formula and protocol as approved by the District, 
CARB and USEPA; and 

(ii) The SERs also comply with the applicable provisions of District 
Rule 1305(C)(3).  [Ties into requirement of proposed 1305] 

 
(d) In the case of a Modified Major Facility, the HAE for a specific Emission 

Unit(s) may be equal to the Potential to Emit for that Emission Unit(s), the 
particular Emissions Unit have been previously offset in a documented 
prior permitting action so long as: [Moved from former 1304(E)(2)(a)(iv)] 

(i) The PTE for the specific Emissions Unit is specified in a Federally 
Enforceable Emissions Limitation; and 

285 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1304 1304-3 
NSR Emissions Calculations 
D3a 7/7/2021 

(ii) The resulting Emissions Change from a calculation using this 
provision is a decrease or not an increase in emissions from the 
Emissions Unit(s) and  

(iii) Any excess SERs generated from a calculation using this provision 
are not eligible for banking pursuant to the provision of District 
Regulation XIV.  [Moved from former 1305(B)(2)(b)(i)] 

 
(3) SERs calculated pursuant to subsection (C)(2) above shall thereafter be aAdjusted 

to reflect emissions reductions which are otherwise required by Federal, State or 
District law, rule, order, permit or regulation as follows: 

(a) SERs shall be adjusted to reflect only the excess reductions beyond those 
already achieved by, or achievable by, the Emissions Unit(s) using RACT.  

(b) SERs shall be adjusted to reflect only the excess reductions beyond those 
required by applicable Federal, State or District law, rule, order, permit or 
regulation. 

(c) SERs shall be adjusted to reflect only the excess reductions beyond those 
required by any applicable proposed District Rules and Regulations which 
have been taken to public workshop. 

(d) SERs shall be adjusted to reflect the excess reductions beyond those 
required by any control measures identified in the District’s Air Quality 
Attainment Plan or contained in the State Implementation Plan of the 
District and which have not yet been implemented in the form of District 
Rules and/or Regulations. 

(4) SERs calculated pursuant to subsection (C)(2) above shall be considered 
Enforceable when the owner and/or operator of the Emissions Units involved has 
obtained appropriate permits and/or submitted other enforceable documents as 
follows: [Moved from former 1305(B)(2)(a)(iii)] 

(a) If the SERs are the result of a Modification or limitation on the use of 
existing equipment the owner and/or operated has been issued revised 
ATCs or PTOs containing Federally Enforceable conditions reflecting the 
Modification and/or limitations. [Moved from former 1305(B)(2)(a)(iii)a.] 

(b) If the SERs are the result of a shutdown of a Permit Unit(s) the owner 
and/or operator has surrendered the relevant permits and those permits 
have been voided.  [Moved from former 1305(B)(2)(a)(iii)b.] 

(i) The specific Permit Units for which the permits were surrendered 
shall not be repermitted within the District unless the emissions 
thereof are completely Offset pursuant to the provisions of this 
regulation.  [Moved from former 1305(B)(2)(a)(iii)b.i.] 

 

286 of 527



 

1304-4 AVAQMD Rule 1304 
NSR Emissions Calculations 

D3a 7/7/2021 

(c) If the SERs are the result of a Modification of Emissions Units(s) which 
did not have a District permit, the owner and/or operator has obtained a 
valid District permit or provided a contract, enforceable by the District 
which contains enforceable limitations on the Emissions Unit(s).  [Moved 
from former 1305(B)(2)(a)(iii)c.] 

(d) If the SERs are the result of the application of a more efficient control 
technology to Emissions Unit(s) the owner and/or operator has or obtains 
a valid District PTO for both the underlying Emissions Unit and the new 
control technology.  [Moved from former 1305(B)(2)(a)(iii)d.] 

(5) Positive SERs as calculated above may only be used to reduce Proposed 
Emissions, as calculated pursuant to section (E)(1), for purposes of determining 
applicability of  calculating Net Emissions Increases pursuant to subsection (B)(2) 
or as Offsets pursuant to District Rule 1305(C)(2)District Rule 1303(B). 
[Conforms to proposed 1304(B)(2) and 1305(C)(2)] 

(5) Prior to use, SERs must be approved by the APCO. 

(D) Calculation of Emission Reduction Credits (ERCs) 

(1) ERCs as defined in District Rule 1301(X) may result from the Modification or 
shutdown of Existing Emissions Unit(s) so long as the resulting reductions are 
Federally Enforceable, Real, Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable and Enforceable 
and are reductions in emissions of the Emissions Unit(s). shall be AERs as 
calculated below. [Revised to mirror proposed 1304(C)] 

(2) ERCs resulting from the Modification or shutdown of existing Emissions Unit(s) 
Initial calculation of AERs shall be initially calculated as follows: 

(a) For the shutdown of an emissions unit; 

AER ERC = Historic Actual EmissionsHAE 
 

(b) For Modifications or limitations on operations of an eEmission unit(s); 

AER ERC = (Historic Actual EmissionsHAE) - (Proposed EmissionsPE) 
 

(c) For Modifications or limitations on mobile, area or indirect sources of 
emissions; 

(i) For Nonattainment Air Pollutants, a SIP approved calculation 
method that represents actual emissions reductions from a USEPA 
approved emissions inventory [Derived from proposed 
1305(B)(3)(a)(v)]  

(ii) For other Regulated Air Pollutants, Aany calculation formula and 
protocol as approved by the District, CARB and USEPA. 

 

287 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1304 1304-5 
NSR Emissions Calculations 
D3a 7/7/2021 

(3) Prior to Banking and issuance of the certificate, ERCs AERs shall thereafter be 
adjusted to reflect emissions reductions which are not otherwise required by 
Federal, State or District law, rule, order, permit or regulation, as follows: 

(a) AERs ERCs shall be adjusted to reflect only the excess reductions beyond 
those already achieved by, or achievable by, the emissions unit using 
RACT.  

(b) AERs ERCs shall be adjusted to reflect only the excess reductions beyond 
those required by applicable District Rules and Regulations. 

(c) AERs ERCs shall be adjusted to reflect only the excess reductions beyond 
those required by any applicable proposed District Rules and Regulations 
which have been taken to public workshop. 

(d) AERs ERCs shall be adjusted to reflect the excess reductions beyond 
those required by any control measures identified in the District's Air 
Quality Attainment PlanAQAP or contained in the State Implementation 
PlanSIP for the District which have not yet been implemented in the form 
of District Rules and/or Regulations. 

(4) Readjustment of AERs and ERCs 

(a) AERs and ERCs shall be eligible for readjustment when: 

(i) The original amount of AERs ERCs as calculated were adjusted 
based upon a proposed Rule or Regulation, which was not 
identified in the District’s AQAP or SIP and the District has 
subsequently determined that the Rule or Regulation will not be 
adopted by the District; or 

(ii) The original amount of AERs ERCs as calculated were adjusted 
based upon a control measure which was identified in the District’s 
AQAP or SIP and the control measure has subsequently been 
removed from either or both documents and no District Rule or 
Regulation has been adopted for the control measure. 

 
(b) If an AER ERC is eligible for readjustment the APCO shall calculate the 

readjustment as if the AER ERC was being initially issued and thereafter 
reissue the ERC pursuant to the provisions found in District Rule 1309(E). 

(5) Discount of ERCs Generated from Military Bases 

(a) ERCs which are calculated from emission reductions created by a military 
base designated for closure or downward realignment shall be discounted 
five percent (5%) to improve air quality. 

288 of 527



 

1304-6 AVAQMD Rule 1304 
NSR Emissions Calculations 

D3a 7/7/2021 

(E) Calculation of Terms Used in Rule 1304 

(1) Proposed Emissions  

(a) For a new or Modified Facility or Emissions Unit(s), the Proposed 
Emissions shall be equal to the Potential to Emit for that Facility or 
Emissions Unit as defined by District Rule 1301(FFFGGG) after 
modification or construction for that Facility or Emissions Unit(s) and as 
calculated pursuant to subsection (E)(3) below. 

(2) Historic Actual Emissions (HAE) 

(a) HAE equal the Actual Emissions of an Emissions Unit(s) or combination 
of Emissions Units, including Fugitive Emissions directly related to those 
Emissions Unit(s) if the Facility belongs to one of the Facility categories 
as listed in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C), calculated in pounds per year, as 
follows: 

(i) The verified Actual Emissions of an Emissions Unit(s), or 
combination of Emissions Units, averaged from the two 2 year 
period which immediately proceeds the date of application and 
which is representative of Facility operations; or  

(ii) The verified Actual Emissions of an Emissions Unit(s), or 
combination of Emissions Units, averaged for any two 2 years of 
the five 5 year period which immediately precedes the date of 
application which the APCO has determined is more representative 
of Facility operations than subsection (E)(2)(a)(i)(1) above.  

(iii) If an the Emissions Unit(s) hashave been in operation for less than 
one year, the HAE shall be equal to zero.   

(iv) For purposes of calculations pursuant to District Rule 1304(B), in 
the case of a modified Facility, HAE for an Emissions Unit may be 
equal to the Potential to Emit for that Emissions Unit, as indicated 
by Federally Enforceable Emissions Limitation, if all the emissions 
from that Emissions Unit have been previously offset in a 
documented prior permitting action pursuant to Regulation XIII or 
prior Rule 213.  [Provision moved to proposed 1304(C)(2)(d) to 
reflect the fact that it is only used in relation to SER creation.] 

 
(3) Potential To to Emit 

(a) The Potential to Emit for a Facility, for the purpose of this Rule, shall be 
calculated as follows: 

(i) The sum of the Potentials to Emit for all existing Permit Emission 
Unit(s) as defined pursuant to District Rule 1301(FFFGGG); and 

289 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1304 1304-7 
NSR Emissions Calculations 
D3a 7/7/2021 

(ii) Any emissions increases from proposed new or Modified Permit 
Emissions Unit(s) as calculated pursuant to subsection (B) above; 
and 

(iii) Any Fugitive Emissions if the Facility belongs to one of the 
Facility categories as listed in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)c.  Any 
Emission Reduction Credits issued and banked pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1309 shall be included in the 
calculations of a Facility’s Potential to Emit.  [Conforms to 
proposed amendments in 1305.] 

 
 
[SIP: Submitted as amended 03/20/01 on ________; Approved 2/4/96, 61 FR 64291, 40 CFR 
52.220(c)(240)(i)(A)(1);  Disapproved ________, __________, 40 CFR 52.233(l)(1)(i) and 
52.233(l)(1)(iii); Conditionally Approved 6/9/82, 47 FR 25013, 40 CFR 52.220(c)(87)(v)(A); 
Conditionally Approved 1/21/81, 46 FR 5965, 40 CFR 52.220(c)(68)(i) See AVAQMD SIP table 
at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plans] 
 
  

290 of 527



 

1304-8 AVAQMD Rule 1304 
NSR Emissions Calculations 

D3a 7/7/2021 

This page intentionally left blank. 

 

291 of 527



(Adopted: 10/05/96; Amended: 09/10/82; Amended: 04/06/84; 
Amended: 07/12/85; Amended: 08/01/86; Rescinded: 06/28/90; 
Adopted: 03/20/01; Amended:08/15/06; Amended: mm/dd/yy) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1305 1305-1 
NSR Emissions Offsets 
D2 6/01/2021 

RULE 1305 
New Source Review Emissions Offsets 

(A) General  

(1) Purpose 

(a) This Rule provides the procedures and formulas to determine the 
eligibility of, calculate the amount of, determine the eligibility of, and 
determine the use of Offsets required pursuant to the provisions of District 
Rule 1303(B). 

(2B) Calculation of Amount of Offsets Necessary [Renumbered for clarity] 

(a1) The base amount of Nnecessary Offsets shall be calculated based upon the nature 
of the Facility or Modification and the applicable Offset ratios.  [Offset Ratios 
dealt with in subsection(B)(3) below.] 

(b2) The APCO shall first determine the type ofparticular Facility or Modification and 
calculate the base quantity of Offsets required as follows:  [Entire subsection 
revised to provide provisions for each type of new or modified permitting action.] 

(ia) For a new Major Facility, the base quantity of Offsets shall be equal to the 
total Proposed Emissions, calculated pursuant to Section (E) belowDistrict 
Rule 1304(E)(1), for the Facility on a pollutant category specific basis for 
each Nonattainment Air Pollutant. 

(iib) For emissions increases from a Modification to a previously existing non-
major Facility, the base quantity of Offsets shall be determined as follows: 

a. For a Major Modification to an a previously existing non-major Facility 
located in a Federal Nonattainment Area for the specific Nonattainment 
Air Pollutant the base quantity of Offsets shall be equal to the total 
Proposed Emissions, pursuant to District Rule 1304(E)(1), for the Facility 
on a pollutant category specific basis. either of the following: 

i. The Facility’s Proposed Emissions, on a pollutant category 
specific basis, when the Facility is located in a 
nonattainment area; or 

(c) For a Major Modification to a previously existing non-major Facility 
located outside a Federal Nonattainment Area for the specific 
Nonattainment Air Pollutant the base quantity of Offsets shall be equal to 
ii. Tthe amount of the Facility’s Proposed Emissions, on a pollutant 
category specific basis,  which exceeds the threshold amounts as set forth 
in District Rule 1303(B) when the Facility is located in an attainment or 

292 of 527



 

1305-2 AVAQMD Rule 1305 
NSR Emissions Offsets 

D2 6/01/2021 

unclassified area. on a pollutant category specific basis for each 
Nonattainment Air Pollutant. 

b.(d) For a Modification to a previously existing non-major Facility which 
subsequently results in the Facility becoming a Major Facility located in a 
Federal Nonattainment Area for the specific Nonattainment Pollutant, 
the base quantity of Offsets shall be equal to either of the following: the 
Facility’s Proposed Emissions, pursuant to District Rule 1304(E)(1), for 
the Facility on a pollutant category specific basis for each Nonattainment 
Air Pollutant. 

i. The Facility’s Proposed Emissions when the 
Facility is located in a nonattainment area; or 

 
(e) For a Modification to a previously existing non-major Facility which 

subsequently results in the Facility becoming a Major Facility located 
outside a Federal Nonattainment Area for the specific Nonattainment 
Air Pollutant, the base quantity of Offsets shall be equal to ii. The 
amount of the Facility’s Proposed Emissions, on a pollutant category 
specific basis, which exceeds the threshold amounts as set forth in District 
Rule 1303(B) on a pollutant category specific basis for each 
Nonattainment Air Pollutantwhen the Facility is located in a attainment or 
unclassified area. 

c.(f) For a non-major Facility which becomes a Major Facility due to the 
relaxation of a Federal requirement or a Federally Enforceable 
requirement located in a Federal Nonattainment Area for the specific 
Nonattainment Pollutant, the base quantity of Offsets shall be equal to 
either of the following: the total Proposed Emissions, pursuant to District 
Rule 1304(E)(1), for the Facility on a pollutant category specific basis for 
each Nonattainment Air Pollutant. 

i. The Facility’s Proposed Emissions when the 
Facility is located in a nonattainment area; or  

(g) For a non-major Facility which becomes a Major Facility due to the 
relaxation of a Federal requirement or a Federally Enforceable 
requirement located outside a Federal Nonattainment Area for the 
specific Nonattainment Air Pollutant, the base quantity of Offsets shall be 
equal to ii. The amount of the Facility’s Proposed Emissions, on a 
pollutant category specific basis, which exceeds the threshold amounts as 
set forth in District Rule 1303(B) when the Facility is located in a 
attainment or unclassified area for the Facility on a pollutant category 
specific basis for each Nonattainment Air Pollutant. 

(iiih) For emissions increases from a Modification to an existing Major Facility 
the base quantity of Offsets shall be the amount equal to the difference 
between the Facility’s Proposed Emissions and the HAE. 

293 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1305 1305-3 
NSR Emissions Offsets 
D2 6/01/2021 

 
(ci) Additional Requirements for Seasonal Sources  

(i) The base quantity of Offsets for new or Modified Seasonal Sources 
shall be determined on a quarterly basis. 

(ii) Seasonal emissions used for Offsets shall generally occur during 
the same consecutive monthly period as the new or Modified 
Facility Seasonal Source operates. 

 
(dj) Offset Adjustment for Various Energy Conservation Projects 

(i) If the Facility qualifies as a cogeneration technology project, or is 
otherwise qualified as an energy conservation project pursuant to 
California Health and Safety Code §§39019.5, 39019.6, 39047.5 
and 39050.5 the amount of offsets shall be adjusted to the extent 
required by the applicable provisions of Health and Safety Code, 
including but not limited to California Health and Safety Code 
§§42314, 42314.1, 42314.5, 41601, and 41605.5. 

(ii) In no case shall such offset adjustment result in an amount of 
offsets less than those required pursuant to Federal law. 

 
(3) After determining the base quantity of Offsets, the APCO shall apply the 

appropriate Offset ratio and any Adjustments as set forth in subsection (CD) 
below, dependant upon the location of the Offsets and the location of the 
proposed new or Modified Facility or Emissions Unit(s). 

(4) If eligible interpollutant Offsets are being used, the APCO shall apply the 
appropriate ratio to determine the final amount of Offsets necessary. 

(BC) Eligibility of Offsets 

(1) ERCs or AERs may are eligible to be used as Offsets when: 

(a) Such ERCs are Real, Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable, and Enforceable 
and have been calculated pursuant to District Rule 1304(E) and issued by 
the District pursuant to the provisions in District Rule 1309; and such 
ERCs are obtained from a Facility (or combination of Facilities) which 
are: 

(i) Located within the same fFederal Nnonattainment, attainment or 
unclassified area as that where the Offsets are to be used; or 

(ii) Located in an area with a fFederal designation (in the case of 
attainment or unclassified areas) or classification (in the case of 
nonattainment areas) which is greater than or equal to the 
designation or classification of the area where the Offsets are to be 
used so long as the emissions from that area cause or contribute to 

294 of 527



 

1305-4 AVAQMD Rule 1305 
NSR Emissions Offsets 

D2 6/01/2021 

a violation of the Ambient Air Quality Standards in the area in 
which the Offsets are to be used. 

 
(b) Such AERs have been calculated, adjusted and approved pursuant to the 

provisions of District Rule 1304(D) and comply with the provisions of 
section (B)(2) below. [Removed as unnecessary due to shift of SER 
provisions into proposed 1304.] 

(c) Such ERCs have been calculated and issued in another air district under a 
program developed pursuant to California Health & Safety Code §§40700-
40713 so long as the source of such credits is contained within the same 
air basin as the District and the use of the ERCs comply with the 
provisions of subsection (BC)(4) below. 

(d) Such ERCs have been calculated and issued in another air district under a 
program developed pursuant to California Health & Safety Code §§40709-
40713 and the transfer of such credits complies with the requirements of 
California Health & Safety Code §40709.6 and the use of the ERCs 
comply with the provisions of section (BC)(5) below. 

(2) AERs Generated by Simultaneous Reductions at a FacilitySERs are eligible for 
use as Offsets when:   

(a) AERs generated from simultaneous reductions occurring at the same 
Facility may be used as Offsets when: [Provision included in 1304(C)(2)] 

They have been calculated, adjusted and meet all the requirements of District 
Rule 1304(C). 

(i) Such AERs are real, enforceable, surplus, permanent and 
quantifiable; and[Provision included in 1304(C)(1)] 

(ii) The owner and/or operator of the Emissions Units involved has 
obtained appropriate permits and/or submitted other enforceable 
documents as follows: [Provision moved to 1304(C)(4)] 
a. If the AERs are the result of a Modification or limitation of 

the use of existing equipment, the owner and/or operator 
has been issued revised PTOs containing Federally 
Enforceable conditions reflecting the Modification(s) 
and/or limitation(s). [Provision moved to 1304(C)(4)(a)] 

b. If the AERs are the result of a shutdown of Permit Unit(s),  
the owner and/or operator has surrendered the relevant 
permits and those permits have been voided. [Provision 
moved to 1304(C)(4)(b)] 
i. The Permit Unit(s) for which the permits were 

surrendered will not be repermitted within the 
District, unless their emissions are completely 

295 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1305 1305-5 
NSR Emissions Offsets 
D2 6/01/2021 

Offset pursuant to the provisions of this Regulation. 
[Provision moved to 1304(C)(4)(b)(i)] 

c. If the AERs are the result of a shutdown or Modification of 
Emission Unit(s) which did not have a District permit, 
owner and/or operator has obtained valid District PTO(s) or 
has provided a contract, enforceable by the District, which 
contains enforceable limitations on the Emissions Unit(s). 
[Provision moved to 1304(C)(4)(c)] 

d. If the AERs are the result of the application of a more 
efficient control technology to an Emissions Unit, the 
owner and/or operator has a valid District PTO for both the 
underlying Emissions Unit and the new technology.   
[Provision moved to 1304(C)(4)(d)] 

(b) Such AERs comply with the requirements of section (B)(1)(b) above.In no 
case shall any excess SERs be eligible for Banking pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1309. 

(3) Mobile, Area and Indirect Source Emissions Reductions 

(a) Mobile Source AERs mayERCs are eligible to be used as Offsets on a 
case-by-case basis when: 

 (i) The applicant demonstrates sufficient control over the Mobile 
Sources to ensure the claimed reductions are real, enforceable, 
surplus, permanent and quantifiable; and 

(ii) Such Mobile Source AERs are consistent with Mobile Source 
emissions reduction as guidelines issued by CARB; and 

(iii) The specific proposed Mobile Source AERs are approved prior to 
the issuance of the New Source Review document and any ATC(s) 
by the APCO in concurrence with CARB; and 

(iv) For a Federal Major Facility as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(6) 
or Federal Major Modification, as defined in District Rule 
1310(C)(7), and which is located in a Federal nonattainment area 
the specific proposed Mobile Source AERs are approved prior to 
the issuance of the New Source Review document and any ATC(s) 
by USEPA; and 

(v) Such Mobile Source AERs comply with the applicable provisions 
of section (B)(1) above. 

 
(b) Mobile Source ERCs may be used as Offsets on a case-by-case basis 

when: 

(i) Such Mobile, Area, or Indirect Source ERCs have been calculated 
and banked pursuant to the provisions of District Regulation XVII 
and District Rule 1309; and 

(ii) The applicant demonstrates sufficient control over the Mobile Area 
or Indirect Sources to ensure the claimed reductions are real, 

296 of 527



 

1305-6 AVAQMD Rule 1305 
NSR Emissions Offsets 

D2 6/01/2021 

enforceable, surplus, permanent and quantifiable Real, Surplus, 
Permanent, Quantifiable and Enforceable; and 

(iii) Such For Mobile Sources, such Mobile Source ERCs are consistent 
with Mobile Source emissions reduction as guidelines issued by 
CARB; and 

(iv) The specific Mobile, Area, or Indirect Source ERCs are approved 
for use prior to the issuance of the New Source ReviewNSR 
document and the issuance of any ATCs by the APCO in 
concurrence with CARB; and 

(v) For a new or Modified Federal Major Facility as defined in District 
Rule 1310(C)(6) or Federal  or a Major Modification, as defined in 
District Rule 1310(C)(7), and which is located in a Federal 
nNonattainment aArea the specific Mobile, Area, or Indirect 
Source ERCs are approved for use prior to the issuance of the New 
Source Review document and the issuance of any ATCs by 
USEPA calculated and adjusted pursuant to a SIP approved 
calculation method and represent Actual Emissions Reductions 
from a USEPA approved emissions inventory; and [See USEPA 
Comment 1.3.1. to MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

(vi) Such Mobile, Area, or Indirect Source ERCs comply with the 
applicable provisions of section (BC)(1) above. 

 
(c) Area and Indirect Source AERs may be used as Offsets on a case-by-case 

basis when: 

(i) The applicant demonstrates sufficient control over the Area or 
Indirect Sources to ensure the claimed reductions are real, 
enforceable, surplus, permanent and quantifiable; and 

(ii) Such Area or Indirect Source AERs are calculated pursuant to a 
formula which has been approved by CARB and USEPA; and 

(iii) The specific proposed Area or Indirect Source AERs are approved 
prior to the issuance of the New Source Review document and any 
ATC(s) by the APCO in concurrence with CARB; and 

(iv) For a Federal Major Facility as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(6) 
or Federal Major Modification, as defined in District Rule 
1310(C)(7), and which is located in a Federal nonattainment area 
the specific proposed Area or Indirect Source AERs are approved 
prior to the issuance of the New Source Review document and any 
ATC(s) by USEPA. 

(v) Such Area or Indirect Source AERs comply with the applicable 
provisions of section (B)(1) above 

 
(d) Area and Indirect Source ERCs may be used as Offsets on a case-by-case 

basis when: 

(i) Such Area or Indirect Source ERCs have been calculated and 
banked pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1309. 

297 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1305 1305-7 
NSR Emissions Offsets 
D2 6/01/2021 

(ii) The applicant demonstrates sufficient control over the Area or 
Indirect Sources to ensure the claimed reductions are real, 
enforceable, surplus, permanent and quantifiable; and 

(iii) The specific Area or Indirect Source ERCs are approved for use 
prior to the issuance of the New Source Review document and the 
issuance of any ATCs by the APCO in concurrence with CARB; 
and 

(iv) For a Federal Major Facility as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(6) 
or Federal Major Modification, as defined in District Rule 
1310(C)(7), and which is located in a Federal nonattainment area 
the specific Area or Indirect Source ERCs are approved for use 
prior to the issuance of the New Source Review document and the 
issuance of any ATCs by USEPA; and 

(v) Such Area or Indirect Source ERCs comply with the applicable 
provisions of section (B)(1) above. 

 
(4) Offsets ERCs Obtained from Other Air Districts and Within the Air Basin 

(a) Emissions reductionsERCs occurring within the air basin but outside the 
District may are eligible to be used as Offsets upon approval of the APCO. 
as follows: 

(i) For a Federal new or Modified Major Facility as defined in District 
Rule 1310(C)(6) or Federala  Major Modification, as defined in 
District Rule 1310(C)(7), and which is located in a Federal 
nNonattainment aArea the APCO’s approval shall be made in 
consultation with CARB and the USEPA, on a case-by-case basis;. 
and 

(ii) For all other Facilities or Modifications subject to this provision 
the APCO’s approval shall be made in consultation with CARB on 
a case-by-case basis; and. [See USEPA Comment 1.3.1. to 
MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

 
(b) Such emissions reductions may only be used as Offsets if: 

(iii) The emissions reductionsERCs are obtained in a nonattainment 
area which has a greater or equal nonattainment classification than 
the area where the Offsets are to be used; and  

(ii) The emissions from the other nonattainment area contribute to a 
violation of the Ambient Air Quality Standards in the area where 
the Offsets are to be used. 

 
(cb) Such emissions reductions shall also comply with the applicable 

requirements of subsection (BC)(1)(c) above. 

(5) Offsets from Other Air Districts and Outside the Air Basin 

298 of 527



 

1305-8 AVAQMD Rule 1305 
NSR Emissions Offsets 

D2 6/01/2021 

(a) Emissions reductionsERCs from outside the air basin may be allowed are 
eligible to be used as Offsets upon approval of the APCO as follows.  

(i) For a Federal new or Modified Major Facility as defined in District 
Rule 1310(C)(6) or a Federal Major Modification, as defined in 
District Rule 1310(C)(7), and which is located in a Federal 
nNonattainment aArea the APCO’s approval shall be made in 
consultation with CARB and the USEPA, on a case-by-case basis; 
and. 

(ii) For all other Facilities or Modifications subject to this provision 
the APCO’s approval shall be made in consultation with CARB on 
a case-by-case basis; and . [See USEPA Comment 1.3.1. to 
MDAQMD, 12/19/2019] 

  
(b) Such emissions reductions may only be used as Offsets if: 

(iii) The emissions reductionsERCs are obtained in a nonattainment 
area which has a greater or equal nonattainment classification than 
the area where the Offsets are to be used; and  

(ivi) The emissions from the other nonattainment area contribute to a 
violation of the Ambient Air Quality Standards in the area where 
the Offsets are to be used. 

 
(cb) Such emissions reductions shall comply with the applicable requirements 

of subsection (BC)(1)(d) above. 

(6) Interpollutant Offsets349 

(a) Emissions reductions of one type of Air Pollutant may be used as Offsets 
for another type of Air Pollutant upon approval of the APCO.  

(i) For a Federal new or Modified Major Facility as defined in District 
Rule 1310(C)(6) or a Federal Major Modification, as defined in 
District Rule 1310(C)(7), and which is located in a Federal 
nNonattainment aArea the APCO’s approval shall be made in 
consultation with CARB and with the approval of USEPA 
pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1302(D)(2), on a case-
by-case basis as long as the provisions of subsection(BC)(6)(b) 
below are met.  

(ii) For all other Facilities or Modifications subject to this provision 
the APCO’s approval shall be made in consultation with CARB on 
a case-by-case basis. 

 

                                                 
349  Use of this subsection subject to the Ruling in Sierra Club v. USEAP 985 F.3d 1055 (D.C. Cir, 2021) and 
subsequent guidance as issued by USEPA. 

299 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1305 1305-9 
NSR Emissions Offsets 
D2 6/01/2021 

(b) In approving the use of interpollutant offsets the APCO shall determine 
that: 

(i) The trade is technically justified; and 
(ii) The applicant has demonstrated, to the satisfaction of the APCO, 

that the combined effect of the Offsets and emissions increases 
from the new or Modified Facility will not cause or contribute to a 
violation of an Ambient Air Quality Standard. 

 
(c) The APCO shall, based upon an air quality analysis, determine the amount of 

Offsets necessary, as appropriate. 

(d) Interpollutant trades between PM10 and PM10 precursors may be allowed on a case 
by case basis.  PM10 emissions shall not be allowed to Offset nNitrogen oOxides 
or reactive Volatile oOrganic cCompounds emissions within any ozone 
nonattainment area. [Standardize terminology] 

(e) Such ERCs comply with the applicable provisions of subsection (BC)(1) above. 

(CD) Offset Ratio and Adjustment 

(1) Offsets for Net Emissions Increases of NonattinmentNonattainment Air Pollutants 
shall be provided on a pollutant category specific basis, calculated as provided in 
section (B) above and multiplied by the appropriate Offset ratio listed in the 
following table: 

 
TABLE OF OFFSET RATIOS 

 
POLLUTANT OFFSET RATIO (Within 

a Federal Ozone 
Nonattainment Area) 

OFFSET RATIO (Within 
a Federal PM10 

Nonattainment Area) 
Carbon Monoxide (CO) 1.0 to 1.0 1.0 to 1.0 

Hydrogen Sulfide (H2S) 1.0 to 1.0 1.0 to 1.0 

Lead (Pb) 1.0 to 1.0 1.0 to 1.0 

PM10 1.0 to 1.0 1.0 to 1.0 

Oxides of Nitrogen (NOx) 1.3 to 1.0 1.0 to 1.0 

Oxides of Sulfur (SOx) 1.0 to 1.0 1.0 to 1.0 

Reactive Volatile Organic 
Compounds (RVOC) 

 
1.3 to 1.0 

 
1.0 to 1.0 

 
[Removed H2S to match table in Rule 1303(B)(1)] 
 

300 of 527



 

1305-10 AVAQMD Rule 1305 
NSR Emissions Offsets 

D2 6/01/2021 

(2) If a Facility is located within more than one Federal nonattainment area, the 
largest applicable Offset ratio for each Nonattainment Air Pollutant shall apply. 

(3) The ratio for Offsets obtained from outside the District for any Nonattainment Air 
Pollutant shall be equal to the offset ratio which would have applied had such 
Offsets been obtained within the District. 

(4) The APCO shall aAdjust any Offsets proposed to be used to reflect any emissions 
reductions in excess of RACT in effect at the time such Offsets are used if such 
reductions have not already been reflected in the calculations required pursuant to 
District Rules 1304(C)(2). 

 (D) Modeling for Offset Purposes 

(1) Offsets shall not be required for increases in attainment Regulated Air Pollutants 
if the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the APCO, through an impact 
analysis, that the ambient air quality standards are not violated in the areas to be 
affected, and such emissions will not cause or contribute to a violation of Ambient 
Air Quality Standards. [Removed as unnecessary.  Attainment pollutants covered 
by provisions of Rule 1700] 

(E) Calculation of Terms Used in Rule 1305 [All calculations moved to 
1304(E)] 

(1) Unless otherwise specified in this subsection all terms requiring calculations shall 
be calculated pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1304. 

(2) Proposed Emissions 

(a) For a new or Modified Facility or Emissions Unit(s), the Proposed 
Emissions shall be equal to the Potential to Emit for that Facility or 
Emissions Unit as defined by District Rule 1301(FFF) as calculated 
pursuant to (E)(3) below. [Already included in 1304(E)(1) and 1301] 

(3) Potential to Emit 

(a) The Potential to Emit for a Facility for purposes of determining base 
quantity of Offsets under subsection (A)(2)(b) above shall be calculated as 
follows: 

(i) The sum of the Potentials to Emit for all existing Permit Units; and  
(ii) The emissions increases from proposed new or Modified Permit 

Units; and 
(iii) The emissions from all Dedicated Cargo Carriers; all Fugitive 

Emissions; and Nonpermitted Equipment which are directly 
associated with the operation of the Facility. 

301 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1305 1305-11 
NSR Emissions Offsets 
D2 6/01/2021 

(iv) Any Emission Reduction Credits issued and banked pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1309 shall be included in the 
calculations of a Facility’s Potential to Emit.  [See proposed 
1304(E)(3)] 

 
 
[SIP: See AVAQMD SIP table at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plans Submitted as amended 
03/20/01 on ________] 

302 of 527



 

1305-12 AVAQMD Rule 1305 
NSR Emissions Offsets 

D2 6/01/2021 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
 

303 of 527



(Adopted: 10/05/79; Amended: 03/07/80; Amended: 09/10/82; 
Amended: 12/03/82; Amended: 07/12/85; Amended: 08/01/86; 
Amended: 09/05/86; Amended: 07/28/90; Amended: 05/03/91; 
Amended: 12/07/95; Amended: 07/14/96; Amended: 03/20/01; 
Amended: mm/dd/yy) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1306 1306-1 
NSR for Electric Energy Generating Facilities 
D2 6/01/2021 

RULE 1306 
New Source Review for 

Electric Energy Generating Facilities 
(A) General 

(1) This Rule shall apply to all EEGF proposed to be constructed in the District and 
for which an NOI or AFC has been accepted by the CEC, as such terms are 
defined in District Rule 1301(YV), (XXYY), (JG) and (QM) respectively. 

(2) If any provision of this Rule conflicts with any other provision of this Regulation, 
the provisions contained in this Rule shall control. 

(B) Intent to Participate 

(1) Notification of Intent to Participate (NOI) 

(a) Within fourteen (14) days of receipt of an NOI, the APCO shall notify 
CARB and the CEC of the District's intent to participate in the NOI 
proceeding. 

(2) Preliminary Report 

(a) If the District chooses to participate in the NOI proceeding, the APCO 
shall prepare and submit a preliminary report to CARB and the CEC prior 
to the conclusion of the nonadjudicatory hearings specified in Section 
25509.5 of the California Public Resources Code §25509.5 as it exists on 
the date of the last amendment of this rule.  [Standardization.] 

(b) The Preliminary Report shall include, at a minimum: 

(i) A preliminary specific definition or description of BACT for the 
proposed Facility; and 

(ii) A preliminary discussion of whether there is a substantial 
likelihood that the requirements of this Regulation and all other 
District Rules can be satisfied by the proposed Facility; and 

(iii) A preliminary list of conditions which the proposed Facility must 
meet in order to comply with this Regulation and any other 
applicable District Rules. 

 
(c) The preliminary determination shall be as specific as practicable within 

the constraints of the information contained in the NOI 

304 of 527



 

1306-2  AVAQMD Rule 1306 
NSR for Electric Energy Generating Equipment 

D2 6/01/2021 

(C) Applications 

(1) Application for New Source Review 

(a) The APCO shall consider the AFC to be equivalent to an application 
pursuant to District Rule 1302(B) during the Determination of Compliance 
review, and shall apply all applicable provisions of District Rule 1302 to 
the application.   

(b) If the information contained in the AFC does not meet the requirements 
which would otherwise comprise a complete application pursuant to 
District Rule 1302(B)(1), the APCO shall, within twenty (20) calendar 
days of receipt of the AFC, specify the information needed to render the 
application complete and so inform the CEC. 

(2) Requests for Additional Information 

(a) The APCO may request from the applicant any information necessary for 
the completion of the Determination of Compliance review. 

(b) If the APCO is unable to obtain the information, CARB or the APCO may 
petition the presiding committee of the CEC for an order directing the 
applicant to supply such information. 

(D) Determination of Compliance Review 

 (1) Upon receipt of an AFC for an EEGF, the APCO shall conduct a 
Determination of Compliance review.  This Determination shall consist of a 
review identical to that required pursuant to District Rule 1302(C). 

(E) Permit Issuance Procedure 

(1) Preliminary Decision 

(a) Within one hundred and fifty (150) days of accepting an AFC as complete 
and after the determination of compliance review has been completed, the 
APCO shall make a preliminary determination of compliance containing 
the following: [Standardization.] 

(i) A determination whether the proposed EEGF meets the 
requirements of this Regulation and all other applicable District 
Rules; and 

(ii) In the event of compliance with all applicable District Rules and 
Regulations, what permit conditions will be required, including the 
specific BACT requirements. 

 
(2) Public Notice Requirements 

305 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1306 1306-3 
NSR for Electric Energy Generating Facilities 
D2 6/01/2021 

(a) The preliminary determination of compliance decision shall be treated as a 
preliminary decision under Rule 1302(D)(1) and shall be finalized by the 
APCO only after being subject to the public notice and comment 
requirements of Rule 1302(D)(2-3). 

(3) Determination of Compliance   

(a) Within two hundred and ten (210) days of accepting an AFC as complete 
and after the notice provisions have been completed, the APCO shall issue 
and submit to the CEC either of the following: [Standardization.] 

(i) A final determination of compliance; or, 
(ii) If such a determination of compliance cannot be issued, an 

explanation regarding why such determination of compliance 
cannot be issued. 

 
(b) A determination of compliance shall confer the same rights and privileges 

as the new source review document and ATC(s) if and when the CEC 
approves the AFC, and the CEC certificate includes all conditions 
contained in the determination of compliance. 

 
[SIP: See AVAQMD SIP table at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plans Submitted as amended 
3/20/01 on __________; Approved 2/4/96, 61 FR 64291, 40 CFR 52.220(c)(240)(i)(A)(1);  
Conditionally Approved 6/9/82, 47 FR 25013, 40 CFR 52.220(c)(87)(v)(A); Conditionally 
Approved 1/21/81, 46 FR 5965, 40 CFR 52.220(c)(68)(i)] 

306 of 527



 

1306-4  AVAQMD Rule 1306 
NSR for Electric Energy Generating Equipment 

D2 6/01/2021 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
 

307 of 527



(Adopted: 09/10/82; Amended: 12/03/82; Amended: 07/12/85; 
Amended: 06/28/90; Amended: 05/03/91; Amended: 08/13/93; 
Amended: 12/07/95; Amended: 03/20/01; Amended:  mm/dd/yy) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1309 1309-1 
Emission Reduction Credits Banking 
D2 6/01/2021 

RULE 1309 
Emission Reduction Credits Banking 

(A) General 

(1) Purpose 

(a) The purpose of this Rule is to implement those provisions of Division 26, 
Part 3, Chapter 6 (commencing with §40700) of the California Health & 
Safety Code which require the establishment of a system by which all 
reductions in the emission of air contaminants (which are to be used to 
offset certain future increases in emissions) shall be banked prior to use to 
offset future increases in emissions. 

(b) This Rule is not intended to recognize any preexisting right to emit air 
contaminants, but to provide a mechanism for the District to recognize the 
existence of reductions of air contaminants that can be used as Offsets, 
and to provide greater certainty that such Offsets shall be available for 
emitting industries. 

(2) Applicability 

(a) This Rule shall apply to the creation, banking  and Banking and use of all 
Emission Reduction Credits (ERCs) within the District. 

(b) Any Person, including the District, may Bank, own, use, sell or otherwise 
transfer, either in whole or in part, ERCs which are created and owned 
pursuant to this regulation subject to the applicable requirements of 
Federal, State, or District law, rule, order, permit or regulation. 

(3) Prohibitions 

(a) No reduction in the emission of air contaminantsRegulated Air Pollutants 
may be used to as oOffsets for future increases in the emission of air 
contaminantsRegulated Air Pollutants , except as provided in subsection 
(1)(a)(i) below, unless such reductions have been Banked pursuant to this 
Rule.  [Removes double negative formulation. Clarifies Regulated Air 
Pollutants are the subject of this rule.] 

(i) Notwithstanding the above, emissions reductions proposed to 
offset simultaneous emissions increases  SERs created in the same 
permitting action and within the same Facility are not required to 
be Banked prior to use as Offsets so long as such reductions satisfy 
all the applicable criteria contained in District Rules 1304(C) and 
1305.  [Conforms language to proposed amendments to Rules 
1304 and 1305.] 

308 of 527



 

1309-2 AVAQMD Rule 1309 
Emission Reduction Credits Banking 

D2 6/01/2021 

 

(B) Emission Reduction Credit Registry 

(1) Establishment of Emission Reduction Credit Registry: 

(a) An Emission Reduction Credit Registry is hereby established for the 
District. 

(i) This shall be known as the Antelope Valley Air Quality 
Management District Emission Reduction Credit Registry 
(AVAPCD AVAQMD ERC Registry). 

(b) The AVAPCD AVAQMD ERC Registry shall consist of the following: 

(i) ERCs created and issued after July 1, 1997 which have met all the 
following requirements:  
a. A timely and complete application for ERCs has been 

received pursuant to subsection (C)(1) below; and 
b. The amount of ERCs have been calculated pursuant to the 

provisions of District Rule 1304 and approved by the 
APCO pursuant to subsection (C)(3) below and District 
Rule 1304; and 

c. The amount, ownership and expiration date if any of the 
ERCs has been entered into the Registry; and 

d. A Certificate evidencing the amount, type and class of 
ERCs has been properly issued; and 

e. The ERCs have not yet been used as Offsets or expired. 
(ii) ERCs banked prior to July 1, 1997 under the applicable Rules of 

the South Coast Air Quality Management DistrictSCAQMD and 
which meet the following requirements: 
a. The ERCs have been properly transferred to the AVAPCD 

AVAQMD ERC Registry pursuant to subsection (E)(4) 
below; and 

b. The ERCs have not yet been used as Offsets or expired. 
 

(c) ERCs contained in the AVAPCD AVAQMD ERC Registry are 
pPermanent until: 

(i) They are used by the owner; or 
(ii) They are used by any person to whom the ERC has been 

transferred; or 
(iii) They expire. 
 

(d) Subsequent changes in District Rules or Regulations to require a type of 
emission reduction which has previously been bBanked pursuant to this 
Rule shall not reduce or eliminate an ERC generated from that type of 
emission reduction. [Clarity] 

309 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1309 1309-3 
Emission Reduction Credits Banking 
D2 6/01/2021 

(e) Emission reductions are eligible to become ERCs if such reductions are 
Real, Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable, and Enforceable;  AERs as 
defined in District Rule 1301(B) and are calculated pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1304(D) and:  

(i) The emissions reduction is the result of a Modification or 
limitation of use of existing equipment Emissions Unit(s) such that 
after the reduction is made the equipment Emissions Unit(s) 
remains in service with an authority to construct or permit to 
operate pursuant to Regulation II - Permits or Regulation XXX - 
Federal Operating Permits; or  [Cross reference removed as all 
Title V facilities also carry “state” permits as issued under 
Regulation II.] 

(ii) The emission reduction is the result of a shutdown of eEmission 
uUnit(s) and there will likely be no replacement eEmission 
uUnit(s) at the same Facility unless the emissions from any 
replacement eEmission uUnit(s) must beis completely offset under 
the provisions of District Rule 1305this Regulation. 

 
(2) Contents of Registry: 

(a) All ERCs contained in the AVAPCD AVAQMD ERC Registry shall be 
individually listed. 

(b) The registry entry for each ERC shall contain the following information: 

(i) The name, address, and telephone number of the owner(s) of the 
ERC; 

(ii) The amount and pollutant type of the approved ERC on a pollutant 
by pollutant basis; 

(iii) The expiration date of the approved ERC, if any; 
(iv) Any information regarding liens, encumbrances and other changes 

of record. 
 

(c) The registry shall contain an entry for each ERC until such ERC is used, 
expires or is otherwise altered by operation of law. 

(3) ERC Certificate: 

(a) All ERCs issued pursuant to this regulation shall be evidenced by a 
Certificate issued by the District and signed by the APCO. 

(b) The Certificate shall contain the same information as is contained in the 
registry entry for the issued ERC pursuant to subsection (B)(2)(b) above. 

(c) The APCO shall prescribe the form of the Certificate. 

310 of 527



 

1309-4 AVAQMD Rule 1309 
Emission Reduction Credits Banking 

D2 6/01/2021 

(d) ERC Certificates shall not constitute instruments, securities or any other 
form of property. 

(4) Ownership of ERCs: 

(a) Initial title to approved ERCs shall be held by the owner(s) of the 
eEmissions uUnit(s) which produced the reduction in emission of air 
contaminantsRegulated Air Pollutants, in the same manner as such 
owner(s) hold title to the Facility in which the eEmissions uUnit(s) is 
located. 

(b) Title for any approved ERC which has been transferred, in whole or in 
part, by written conveyance or operation of law from one person to 
another shall be held by the owner(s) in the manner indicated in the 
written conveyance or as indicated by the operation of law. 

(c) The owner(s) of an ERC as listed in the registry and on the ERC 
Certificate shall have the exclusive right to use such ERCs and/or to 
authorize such use. 

(C) Issuance of Emission Reduction Credits 

(1) Applications for ERCs: 

(a) ERCs shall be applied for, in writing, by the owner or operator of the 
eEmissions uUnit(s) from which the emission reduction has occurred or 
will occur, to the APCO. 

(b) Applications for ERCs shall be clearly identified as such and shall contain 
the following: 

(i) The name, address, and telephone number of the owner(s) of the 
eEmissions uUnit(s) and a contact person if necessary. 

(ii) Information sufficient to identify the source and/or causation of the 
emission reductions. 

(iii) Information sufficient to allow the calculations set forth in District 
Rule1304(D) to be performed. 

 
(c) No application for ERCs will be accepted processed until the applicable 

fees as specified in District Rule 301 have been paid. [Clarity] 

(d) Applications for ERCs shall be submitted in a timely manner determined 
as follows: 

(i) For emission reductions which occurred after July 1, 1997, an 
application for ERCs shall be submitted within six (6) months after 
any of the following: 

311 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1309 1309-5 
Emission Reduction Credits Banking 
D2 6/01/2021 

a. District issuance of an Authority to ConstructATC pursuant 
to District Regulation II - Permits; or  

b. District issuance of an Authority to Construct pursuant to 
Regulation XIII - New Source Review; or   

cb. District issuance of a modified PTOpermit pursuant to 
Regulation II - Permits; or   

dc. District cancellation of a previously existing permit ATC or 
PTO pursuant to Regulation II - Permits; or 

ed. for emissions units not subject to permitting requirements, 
the completion of the Modification or shutdown and 
execution of the document(s) required by subsection 
(D)(3)(c). 

(ii) Notwithstanding subsections (C)(1)(d)(i) above, a timely 
application for a Military Base subject to closure or realignment 
shall be determined pursuant to the provisions of California Health 
& Safety Code §40709.7. 

 
(e) Applications for ERCs may be withdrawn at any time by the applicant. 

(i) An applicant who withdraws an application may be entitled to a 
partial refund of fees as set forth in District Rule 301. 

(ii) A withdrawn application for ERCs does not preclude an applicant 
from later submitting an application for ERCs based upon the same 
emissions reductions as those contained in the withdrawn 
application as long as such resubmitted application is timely in 
accordance with subsection (C)(1)(d) above. 

 
(f) The confidentiality of trade secretsInformation contained in an application 

for ERCs shall be considered confidential when: 

(i) in The information is a trade secret or otherwise confidential 
pursuant to accordance with California Government Code §6254.7; 
or 

(ii) The information is entitled to confidentiality pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 
§1905; and 

(iii) The information is clearly marked or otherwise identified by the 
applicant as confidential.  [Conforms to confidentiality provisions 
in 1302(D)(3)(c)(ii)] 

 
(2) Determination of Completeness: 

(a) The APCO shall determine if the application is complete no later than 
thirty (30) days after the receipt of the application, or after such longer 
time as both the applicant and the APCO may agree upon in writing. 

(i) An application is complete when it contains the information 
required by subsection (C)(1)(d) above. 

312 of 527



 

1309-6 AVAQMD Rule 1309 
Emission Reduction Credits Banking 

D2 6/01/2021 

 
(b) Upon making this determination, the APCO shall notify the applicant, in 

writing, that the application has been determined to be complete or 
incomplete. 

(ic) If the application is determined to be incomplete:  

a.(i) The notification shall specify which part of the application is 
incomplete and how it can be made complete; and   

b.(ii) The applicant for ERC shall have thirty (30) days to submit the 
additional information, unless another time period is specified by 
the APCO in writing.  

c.(iii) The applicant for an ERC may request in writing, and the APCO 
may grant for good cause shown, extension(s) of time for 
submission of the additional information.  Such request and any 
extension(s) granted shall be in writing.   

d.(iv) If the applicant does not submit the additional information in 
writing within the time period specified or extended in writing by 
the APCO the application shall be deemed withdrawn by the 
applicant. 

e.(v) The APCO shall thereafter notify the applicant in writing that the 
application has been deemed withdrawn pursuant to this 
subsection. 
 

(cd) A determination of incompleteness which results in an application being 
deemed withdrawn may be appealed to the Hearing Board pursuant to 
section (G) below. 

(3) Calculation of ERCs: 

(a) Calculation of the ERCs shall be performed pursuant to the provisions of 
District Rule 1304(D). 

(4) Proposed ERCs: 

(a) Within thirty (30) days after the application for ERCs has been determined 
to be complete, or after such longer time as both the applicant and the 
APCO may agree upon in writing, the APCO shall determine, in 
compliance with the standards set forth in section (D) below, to issue or 
deny the ERCs. 

(ib) The APCO shall notify the applicant in writing of the determination. 

a.(i) If the determination is to issue ERCs then the notice notification 
shall include the amount and type of the ERCs proposed to be 
issued; or 

313 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1309 1309-7 
Emission Reduction Credits Banking 
D2 6/01/2021 

b.(ii) If the determination is to deny the ERCs then the notice shall 
include an explanation of the reason for the denial. 

 
(iic) After the APCO has determined to issue ERCs, Tthe information 

submitted by the applicant, and the APCO's analysis, and determination 
shall be transmitted to the California Air Resources Board CARB and the 
USEPA regional office within 10 days or no later than the date of 
publication of the notice of the preliminary determination if the amount of 
ERCs proposed to be granted are greater than any of the following 
amounts: [Added timing provision to conform with Rule 1302 timing.] 

 
Pollutant ERC Notification to 

CARB/USEPA Threshold 
NOx 14,600 lbs/yr or 40 lbs/day 

SOx 21,900 lbs/yr or 60 lbs/day 

ROC 10,950 lbs/yr or 30 lbs/day 

PM10 10,950 lbs/yr or 30 lbs/day 

CO 80,300 lbs/yr or 220 lbs/day 

H2S 20,000 lbs/yr or 54 lbs/day 

Pb   1,200 lbs/yr or 3 lbs/day 

 
(5) Public Notice and Comment: 

(a) After the APCO has determined to issue ERCs, the APCO shall: 

(i) Produce a notice containing all the information contained in 
subsection (C)(5)(c) below; and 

(ii) pPublish a the notice by posting on the District’s website; and in at 
least one daily newspaper of general circulation within the District 
and shall  

(iii) sSend a copy of the notice to all persons who are included on a list 
of persons requesting notice, on file with the Clerk of the Board for 
the District; 

(iv) Provide notice by other reasonable means, if such notice is 
necessary to assure fair and adequate notice to the public.  
[Conforms language to proposed 1302(D)(3) notice provisions.] 

 
(b) The notice shall provide the following: 

(i) The name and address of the applicant and the Facility generating 
the emissions reductions, if different; 

(ii) The amount and type of ERCs proposed to be issued on a pollutant 
by pollutant basis; 

314 of 527



 

1309-8 AVAQMD Rule 1309 
Emission Reduction Credits Banking 

D2 6/01/2021 

(iii) A statement indicating the availability of documents and a location 
where the public may obtain or inspect the decision and supporting 
documentation including, but not limited to, Tthe name, address 
and telephone number of a person from whom additional 
information may be obtained; and  [Conforms language to 
proposed 1302 (D)(3) notice requirements] 

  
(iv) A statement providing Aat least a thirty (30) days from the date of 

publication of the notice period in which interested persons may 
submit written comments to the District regarding the proposed 
issuance of the ERCs.  

(v) A brief description of the comment procedures and deadlines; and  
(vi) Information regarding obtaining review of the decision pursuant to 

section (G) below; and 
[Conforms language to proposed 1302 (D)(3) notice requirements] 
 

(c) The APCO shall accept and consider all germane and nonfrivilous 
comments which are received during the comment period.  The APCO 
shall consider such comments prior to issuance of the ERCs.  [Conforms 
language to proposed 1302(D)(3)(d)] 

(d) The APCO shall include all accepted comments with the records regarding 
the issuance of the ERCs and shall retain such records for a period of at 
least five (5) years. 

(6) Issuance of ERCs: 

(a) Upon the expiration of the public comment period; after review of 
comments accepted, if any; and upon payment of the appropriate fee, if 
any, the APCO shall issue the ERCs by including the appropriate 
information in the registry and issuing a Certificate. 

(b) The APCO shall provide written notice of the final action to the applicant 
(and to USEPA and CARB and USEPA, if the preliminary determination 
was sent to such agencies pursuant to subsection (C)(4)(a)(iic) above). 

(D) Standards for Granting Emission Reduction CreditsERCs 

(1) ERCs shall be Real, Surplus, Permanent, Quantifiable, and Enforceablereal, 
enforceable, permanent, quantifiable and surplus. 

(2) ERCs shall only be granted for emissions reductions which are not otherwise 
required by Federal, State or District law, rule, order, permit or requirement.  

(3) ERCs shall only be granted if the applicable changes to the appropriate permits 
have occurred or other enforceable documents have been submitted as indicated 
belowfollows:  [Conforms language to provisions of proposed 1304(C)(4)] 

315 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1309 1309-9 
Emission Reduction Credits Banking 
D2 6/01/2021 

(a) If the emission reduction proposed ERCs are is the result of a 
Modification or limitation of use of existing equipment: Permit Unit(s),  

(i) the owner and/or operator has been issued A revised ATCs permit 
to operatePTOs containing fFederally eEnforceable conditions 
reflecting the Modification and/or limitations has been issued. 
[Conforms language to provisions of proposed 1304(C)(4)(a)] 

 
(b) If the emission reduction is proposed ERCs are the result of a shutdown of 

pPermit uUnit(s),: the owner and/or operator has surrendered the relevant 
permits and those permits have been voided [Conforms language to 
provisions of proposed 1304(C)(4)(b)] 

(i) The relevant permits have been surrendered and voided. 
(ii) The specific Permitemissions uUnit(s) for which the permits were 

surrendered willshall not be repermitted within the District, unless 
their emissions thereof are completely offset pursuant to 
Regulation XIII - New Source Reviewthe provisions of this 
Regulation. [Conforms language to provisions of proposed 
1304(C)(4)(b)(i)] 

 
(c) If the emission reduction isproposed ERCs are the result of a shutdown 

modification of a eEmission uUnit(s) which did not have a District 
permit:, the owner and/or operator has  

(i) A valid District permit has been obtained a valid District permit or 
aprovided a contract enforceable by the District has been executed by the 
applicant which contains Federally eEnforceable limitations reflecting the 
reduced emissionson the Emissions Unit(s). [Conforms language to 
provisions of proposed 1304(C)(4)(c)] 

(d) If the emission reduction is proposed ERCs are the result of the 
application of a more efficient control technology to a previously 
unpermitted eEmission uUnit(s):, the owner and/or operator has or obtains  

(i) Aa valid District PTO permit has been obtained for both the underlying 
Emissions Unit and the new control technology which contains Federally 
eEnforceable limitations reflecting the reduced emissions. [Conforms 
language to provisions of proposed 1304(C)(4)(d)] 

(4) If the emission reductionproposed ERC originates from a previously unpermitted 
eEmission uUnit(s), no ERCs may be granted unless the historical emissions from 
that unit are included in the District's emissions inventory. 

(E) Transfer, Encumbrance, and Readjustment of Emission Reduction 
CreditsERCs 

316 of 527



 

1309-10 AVAQMD Rule 1309 
Emission Reduction Credits Banking 

D2 6/01/2021 

(1) ERCs may be transferred in whole or in part by written conveyance or by 
operation of law from one person to another in accordance with the provisions 
contained in this section. 

(2) Voluntary Transfer of Ownership. 

(a) A voluntary transfer of ownership in whole or in part shall be performed 
according to the following procedure: 

(i) The owner(s) of the ERC may file a request for transfer of 
ownership with the APCO.  Such request shall include:  
a. Information regarding the new owner of the ERC sufficient 

for entry in the registry.  
b. An executed copy of the instrument transferring the ERC or 

a memorandum describing the transaction which transfers 
the ERC which is signed by all parties to the transaction.   

c. The purchase price, if any, of the ERCs in terms of total 
cost on a pollutant by pollutant purchased basis. 

 
d. The existing ERC Certificate(s) for the ERCs to be transferred.  

(ii) Upon payment of the appropriate fee as set forth in District Rule 
301, the APCO shall cancel the existing ERC Certificate(s) and 
issue new certificate(s) in the name of the new owner and indicate 
the transfer in the Registry. 

 
(3) Involuntary Transfer of Ownership 

(a) An involuntary transfer of ERCs shall be performed pursuant to the 
following procedure:  

(i) The transferee shall file with the District a certified copy of the 
document effecting the transfer.  The transferee shall certify that 
the document represents a transfer which is final for all purposes.  

(ii) Upon payment of the appropriate fee as set forth in District Rule 
301, the APCO shall demand the original ERC Certificate from the 
original owner.   
a. Upon the surrender of the existing ERC Certificate to the 

District or after 90 days (whichever comes first), the 
existing ERC Certificate shall be considered cancelled, and 
the APCO shall issue a new ERC Certificate and indicate 
the involuntary nature of the transfer in the registry.    

(iii) The APCO shall thereafter not allow the use or subsequent transfer 
of the ERC by the original owner.   

 
(4) Transfer of ERCs Banked Prior to July 1, 1997. 

317 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1309 1309-11 
Emission Reduction Credits Banking 
D2 6/01/2021 

(a) ERCs which were created within the area which is now under the 
jurisdiction of the District and which were properly banked prior to July 1, 
1997 pursuant to the applicable rules of the South Coast Air Quality 
Management DistrictSCAQMD may be transferred to the AVAPCD 
AVAQMD ERC Registry according to the following procedure: 

(i) The owner of the ERCs shall submit a request to include the ERCs 
in the AVAPCD AVAQMD ERC Registry by: 
a. Requesting such inclusion in writing; and 
b. Surrendering the ERC certificate or other evidence of the 

ERCs obtained from the South Coast Air Quality 
Management DistrictSCAQMD. 

(ii) Upon receipt of the request and documentation the APCO shall: 
a. Notify the South Coast Air Quality Management 

DistrictSCAQMD in writing of the request, the intent to 
include such ERCs in the AVAPCD AVAQMD ERC 
Registry, and request that the South Coast Air Quality 
Management DistrictSCAQMD remove such ERCs from 
its bank. 

b. The APCO shall, at the request of the South Coast Air 
Quality Management DistrictSCAQMD, submit the 
original certificate and/or documentation which was 
surrendered to effectuate such removal. 

c. Within ninety (90) days of such notification, upon the 
submission of the original certificate and/or documentation 
or upon receipt of notification from the South Coast Air 
Quality Management DistrictSCAQMD that such ERCs 
have been removed from its bank, whichever occurs earlier, 
the APCO shall issue a new certificate(s) in the name of the 
owner and include the ERCs in the Registry. 

 
(b) ERCs which were created which were properly banked prior to July 1, 

1997 pursuant to the applicable rules of the South Coast Air Quality 
Management DistrictSCAQMD and which are owned by an 
owner/operator located within the jurisdiction of the District may be 
transferred to the AVAPCD AVAQMD ERC Registry according to the 
following procedure: 

(i) The owner of the ERCs shall submit a request to include the ERCs 
in the AVAPCD AVAQMD ERC Registry by: 
a. Requesting such inclusion in writing; and 
b. Surrendering the ERC certificate or other evidence of the 

ERCs obtained from the South Coast Air Quality 
Management DistrictSCAQMD. 

c. Paying the applicable fee contained in District Rule 301. 
(ii) Upon receipt of the request and documentation the APCO shall: 

318 of 527



 

1309-12 AVAQMD Rule 1309 
Emission Reduction Credits Banking 

D2 6/01/2021 

a. Notify the South Coast Air Quality Management 
DistrictSCAQMD in writing of the request, the intent to 
include such ERCs in the AVAPCD AVAQMD ERC 
Registry, and request that the South Coast Air Quality 
Management DistrictSCAQMD remove such ERCs from 
its bank. 

b. The APCO shall, at the request of the South Coast Air 
Quality Management DistrictSCAQMD, submit the 
original certificate and/or documentation which was 
surrendered to effectuate such removal. 

c. Within ninety (90) days of such notification, upon the 
submission of the original certificate and/or documentation 
or upon receipt of notification from the South Coast Air 
Quality Management DistrictSCAQMD that such ERCs 
have been removed from its bank, whichever occurs earlier, 
the APCO shall issue a new certificate(s) in the name of the 
owner and include the ERCs in the Registry. 

d. ERCs transferred pursuant to this subsection shall meet all 
requirements of California Health and Safety Code 40709.6 
either at the time of the transfer or upon use. 

 
(c) ERCs once transferred to the AVAPCD ERCAVAQMD Registry pursuant 

to this subsection may not thereafter be utilized within the South Coast Air 
Quality Management DistrictSCAQMD  

(4) Other Encumbrances of ERCs  

(a) Other encumbrances may be placed upon ERCs according to the following 
procedure: 

(i) The holder of the encumbrance shall file with the District a 
certified copy of the final document creating the encumbrance. 

(ii) Upon payment of the appropriate transfer fee as set forth in District 
Rule 301, the APCO shall indicate the encumbrance in the 
Registry. 

 
(b) Thereafter the APCO shall not allow the use or subsequent transfer of the 

ERC by the owner without receipt of a certified copy of the satisfaction of 
the encumbrance or by the removal of the incumbrance by its holder of the 
encumbrance. 

(5) Readjustments of ERCs  

(a) Readjustment of ERCs due to the readjustment of AERs due to changes in 
the District’s AQAP or SIP shall be processed as follows: 

319 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1309 1309-13 
Emission Reduction Credits Banking 
D2 6/01/2021 

(i) The owner of the ERC shall file an application to adjust the 
AERERC. 

(ii) The APCO shall determine if the adjustment of the AER ERC is 
warranted and the amount of such adjustment pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1304(D)(4). 

(iii) After the APCO has determined the amount of the adjustment, 
upon surrender of the prior ERC Certificate, the APCO shall issue 
an adjusted ERC Certificate to the owner. 

 
(6) Any transfer of an ERC shall not modify or otherwise alter the requirements 

contained in a permit or contract which render the ERC Real, Surplus, Permanent, 
Quantifiable, and Enforceablereal, enforceable, permanent and quantifiable. 

(7) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, conflicting interests in ERCs shall 
rank in priority according to the time of filing with the District. 

(F) Utilization of ERCs 

(1) Unexpired ERCs may be used as oOffsets in accordance with the provisions of 
Rule 1305. 

(G) Appeal of the Incompleteness, Granting or Denial of Emission Reduction 
CreditsERCs 

(1) If an application for ERCs is deemed withdrawn pursuant to subsection 
(C)(2)(bc)(iv)d.  the applicant may, within thirty (30) days of the date the 
application is deemed withdrawn, petition the District Hearing Board for a 
hearing on whether the application as submitted was incomplete. 

(2) An applicant for ERCs may, within thirty (30) days after receipt of the 
notice of denial of ERCs, petition the District Hearing Board for a hearing 
on whether the application for ERCs was properly denied.  

(3) Any person who has requested notice or any aggrieved person who, in 
person or through a representative, appeared, submitted written testimony, 
or otherwise participated in the ERC action may, within 30 days after the 
APCO’s decision, the mailing of the notice pursuant to subsection 
(C)(5)(a)(ii), or the publication of the notice pursuant to subsection 
(C)(5)(a)(i) whichever is applicable, petition the District Hearing Board 
for a hearing on whether the ERCs were properly issued.  [Derived from 
H&S Code§ 42302.1] 

(3) The procedural provisions applicable to such a hearing shall be the same 
as those used for hearings regarding the denial of a permit application 
pursuant to California Health & Safety Code §§42302 and or 42302.1 as 
applicable. 

320 of 527



 

1309-14 AVAQMD Rule 1309 
Emission Reduction Credits Banking 

D2 6/01/2021 

 
 
 
[SIP: See AVAQMD SIP table at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rules-plansSubmitted as amended 
03/20/01 on ________; Approved 2/4/96, 61 FR 64291, 40 CFR 52.220(c)(240)(i)(A)(1)] 
 
 
 
 

321 of 527



(Adopted:08/15/06) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1310 1310-1 
Federal Major Facilities and Modifications 
D2 6/01/2021 

 
Rule1310 

Federal Major Facilities and Federal Major Modifications 
 

(A) Purpose 

(1) The purpose of this Rule is to: 

(a) Set forth additional requirements and procedures for Federal Major 
Modifications and Presumptive Federal Major Modifications.  

(b) Set forth the requirements and procedures for the implementation of Plant 
Wide Applicability Limits. 

(B) Applicability 

(1) The provisions of this Rule apply to: 

(a) Any Federal Major Modification.   

(b) Any Presumptive Federal Major Modification (b) Any Federal Major 
Facility which requests a Plant Wide Applicability Limit pursuant to 
section (F). 

(C) Definitions 

The definitions contained in District Rule 1301 shall apply unless the term is otherwise 
defined herein. 

(1) “Baseline Actual Emissions” – The rate of emissions, in tons per year, of a 
Regulated NSR pollutant, as calculated pursuant to subsection (E)(2) 

(2) “Contemporaneous” – An increase or decrease in Actual Emissions of an 
Emissions Unit which occurs before the date of any increase from the proposed 
Modification. 

(3) “Creditable” – An increase or decrease in Actual Emissions of an Emissions Unit 
which: 

(a) Occurs within a reasonable time period before the proposed Modification; 
and   

(b) Has not been used in a prior permitting action by the District. 

(4) “Electric Utility Steam Generating Unit” - Any steam electric generating unit that 
supplies more than one-third of its potential electric output capacity and more 

322 of 527



 

1310-2 AVAQMD Rule 1310 
Federal Major Facilities and Modifications 

D2 6/01/2021 

than 25 MW electrical output to any utility power distribution system for sale. 
Any steam supplied to a steam distribution system for the purpose of providing 
steam to a steam-electric generator that would produce electrical energy for sale is 
also considered in determining the electrical energy output capacity of the 
affected facility. 

(5) “Existing Emissions Unit” – An Emissions Unit which has existed for 2 years or 
more from the date the Emissions Unit first operated. 

(6) “Federal Major Facility” – Any Facility which emits or has the Potential to Emit 
any Regulated NSR Pollutant in an amount greater than or equal to the amounts 
set forth in subsection (D)(1). 

(a) Any physical change at a Facility which, by itself, would emit or have the 
Potential to Emit any Regulated Air Pollutant or its Precursors in an 
amount greater than or equal to the amounts listed in subsection (D)(1), 
shall also constitute a Major Facility. 

(b) The Fugitive Emissions of a Facility shall not be included in the 
determination of whether a Facility is a Major Facility unless the Facility 
belongs to one of the twenty-seven (27) categories of Facilities as listed in 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C). 

(7) “Federal Major Modification” – Any Modification that would: 

(a) Result in a Federal Significant Emissions Increase of a Regulated NSR 
Pollutant; or 

(8) “Federal Significant Emission Increase” - A Net Emissions Increase of a 
Regulated NSR Pollutant from a Facility which would be greater than or equal to 
the emissions rates listed in subsection (D)(2) for those Air Pollutants and their 
Precursors dependant upon Facility location. 

(9) “Net Emissions Increase” – With respect to any regulated NSR pollutante emitted 
by a Major Facility, the amount by which the sum of the following exceeds zero: 

(a) The increase in emissions from a particular physical change or change in 
the method of operation at a Facility as calculated pursuant to subsection 
(E)(1) of this rule; and 

(b) Any other increases and decreases in actual emissions at the Facility that 
are Contemporaneous with the particular change and are otherwise 
creditable. 

(i) Baseline Actual Emissions used to determine contemporaneous 
increases and decreases shall be calculated pursuant to subsection 
(E)(2) of this rule except that the provisions of subsection 
(E)(2)(a)(iv) and (E)(2)(b)(v) shall not apply. 

323 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1310 1310-3 
Federal Major Facilities and Modifications 
D2 6/01/2021 

 
(10) “New Emissions Unit” – Any Emissions Unit which: 

(a) Is or will be newly constructed; 

(b) Has existed for less than 2 years from the date such Emissions Unit first 
operated; or 

(c) A Replacement Emissions Unit for which the Emissions Unit it replace 
has been brought back into operation. 

(11) “Plantwide Applicability Limit” (PAL) – An emission limitation expressed in tons 
per year for a Regulated Air Pollutant at a Federal Major Facility that is 
enforceable as a practical matter and established for the entire Facility in 
accordance with the provisions of section (F) below. 

(12) “Presumptive Federal Major Modification” – A Modification as defined in 
District Rule 1301(QQ) which requires offsets pursuant to the provisions of 
1303(B) but which has not been determined by the APCO to be below the 
threshold of subsection (D)(2). 

(13) “Projected Actual Emissions” – The maximum annual rate, in tons per year, at 
which an Existing Emissions Unit is projected to emit a Regulated NSR Pollutant 
as calculated pursuant to subsection (E)(3). 

(14) “Regulated NSR Pollutant” – Any Air Pollutant and its Precursors for which an 
Ambient Air Quality Standard has been promulgated including but not limited to: 

(a) Oxides of Nitrogen (NOx) and their precursors; 

(b) Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) and their precursors; 

(D) Requirements 

(1) Federal Major Facility Threshold 

(a) Any Facility that has a Potential to Emit rate of a Regulated NSR 
Pollutant, calculated pursuant to District Rule 1304, which is greater than 
or equal to the following Federal Major Facility Threshold is a Federal 
Major Facility. 

Table 1 
FEDERAL MAJOR FACILITY THRESHOLDS 

 

324 of 527



 

1310-4 AVAQMD Rule 1310 
Federal Major Facilities and Modifications 

D2 6/01/2021 

POLLUTANT FEDERAL MAJOR FACILITY 
THRESHOLD 

Carbon Monoxide (CO) 100 tpy 

Lead (Pb) 25 tpy 

PM10 100 tpy 

Oxides of Nitrogen (NOx) 100 tpy 

Oxides of Sulfur (SOx) 100 tpy 

Volatile Organic Compounds 
(VOC) 

100 tpy 

 

(2) Federal Major Modification Threshold 

(a) A Modification to any Facility that has a Net Emissions Increase of a 
Regulated NSR Pollutant, calculated pursuant to section (E)(1) below, 
which is greater than or equal to the following Federal Significant 
Emissions Increase Thresholds is a Federal Major Modification. 

Table 2 
FEDERAL SIGNIFICANT EMISSIONS INCREASE THRESHOLDS 

 
 
POLLUTANT 

 
EMISSION RATE 
(Within an attainment 
or unclassified area) 

 
EMISSION RATE 
(Within a moderate 
ozone nonattainment 
area) 

 
EMISSION RATE 
(Within a moderate 
PM10 nonattainment 
area) 

 
Carbon Monoxide (CO) 

 
100 tpy 

 
100 tpy  

 
100 tpy 

 
Lead (Pb) 

 
0.6 tpy 

 
0.6 tpy 

 
0.6 tpy 

 
Oxides of Nitrogen (NOx) 

 
40 tpy 

 
40 tpy 

 
40 tpy 

 
PM10 

 
15 tpy 

 
15 tpy 

 
15 tpy 

 
Volatile Organic Compounds 
(VOC) 

 
40 tpy 

 
40 tpy 

 
40 tpy 

 
Sulfur Dioxide (SO2) 

 
40 tpy 

 
40 tpy 

 
40 tpy 

 
(b) If a Facility is located in more than one federal nonattainment area then 

the lower of the limits listed above shall apply on a pollutant specific 
basis. 

325 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1310 1310-5 
Federal Major Facilities and Modifications 
D2 6/01/2021 

(3) Any Federal Major Modification or Presumptive Federal Major Modification 
shall: 

(a) Perform an alternative site analysis under 42 U.S.C. §7530(a)(5) (Federal 
Clean Air Act §173(a)(5)); and 

(E) Calculations 

(1) General Emissions Calculations 

(a) To determine if a Modification is a Federal Major Modification the 
emissions increase resulting from the Modification shall be calculated as 
follows: 

(Projected Actual Emissions) – (Baseline Actual Emissions) 

(2) Calculating Baseline Actual Emissions 

(a) For any Existing Electric Utility Steam Generating Unit: 

(i) The Baseline Actual Emissions of an Emissions Unit or 
combination of Emissions Units averaged from either 
a. Any consecutive 24-month period within 5-years 

immediately preceding beginning actual construction of the 
Modification; or  

b. Any period within 5-years immediately preceding 
beginning the actual construction of the Modificationwhich 
the APCO has determined is more representative of Facility 
operations than subsection (E)(2)(a)(i)a. above. 

(ii) The Baseline Actual Emissions shall include fugitive emissions to 
the extent quantifiable, and emissions associated with startups, 
shutdowns, and malfunctions. 

(iii) The Baseline Actual Emissions shall be adjusted downward to 
exclude any non-compliant emissions that occurred while the 
source was operating above any emission limitation that was 
legally enforceable during the consecutive 24-month period. 

(iv) When a Modification involves multiple Emissions Units only one 
period as specified in subsection (E)(2)(a)(i) for each Regulated 
NSR Pollutant. 

(v) When a Modification involves multiple Regulated NSR Pollutants 
a different period as specified in subsection (E)(2)(a)(i) above may 
be used for each pollutant. 

(vi) The Baseline Actual Emissions shall not be based on any period 
specified in subsection (E)(2)(a)(i) above for which there is 
inadequate information for determining annual emissions, in tons 
per year, and for adjusting this amount. 

 

326 of 527



 

1310-6 AVAQMD Rule 1310 
Federal Major Facilities and Modifications 

D2 6/01/2021 

(b) For an Existing Emissions Unit (other than an Electric Utility Steam 
Generating Unit) 

(i) The Baseline Actual Emissions of an Emissions Unit or 
combination of Emissions Units averaged from 
a. Any consecutive 24-months within the 10-year period 

immediately preceding the date the application for the 
Modification is determined to be complete by the District.] 

(ii) The Baseline Actual Emissions shall include fugitive emissions to 
the extent quantifiable, and emissions associated with startups, 
shutdowns, and malfunctions. 

(iii) The BaselineActual Emissions shall be adjusted downward to 
exclude any non-compliant emissions that occurred while the 
source was operating above an emission limitation that was legally 
enforceable during the period specified in subsection (E)(2)(b)(i) 
above. 

(iv) The Baseline Actual Emissions shall be adjusted downward to 
exclude any emissions that would have exceeded an emission 
limitation with which the Federal Major Facility must currently 
comply, had such Federal Major Facility been required to comply 
with such limitations during the period specified in subsection 
(E)(2)(b)(i) above unless: 
a. The emission limitation is part of a maximum achievable 

control technology standard proposed or promulgated under 
40 CFR 63 by USEPA; and 

b. The District has not taken credit for such emissions 
reductions in an attainment demonstration or maintenance 
plan promulgated pursuant to the provisions of Title I of the 
Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq)  

(v) When a Modification involves multiple Emissions Units only one 
period as specified in subsection (E)(2)(b)(i) may be used for each 
Regulated NSR Pollutant. 

(vi) When a Modification involves multiple Regulated NSR Pollutants 
a different period as specified in subsection (E)(2)(b)(i) above may 
be used for each pollutant. 

(vii) The Baseline Actual Emissions shall not be based on any period 
specified in subsection (E)(2)(b)(i) above for which there is 
inadequate information for determining annual emissions, in tons 
per year, and for adjusting this amount. 

 
(c) For a New Emissions Unit 

(i) For the purpose of determining emissions increases resulting from 
the initial construction and operation of the new Emissions Unit 
the Baseline Actual Emissions shall be equal to zero. 

(ii) For all other purposes the Baseline Actual Emissions shall be the 
Emissions Unit’s PTE. 

327 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1310 1310-7 
Federal Major Facilities and Modifications 
D2 6/01/2021 

 
(3) Calculating Projected Actual Emissions 

(a) The Projected Actual Emissions for proposed Federal Major Modifications 
shall be calculated using any of the following periods: 

(i) Any 12-month period in the 5-years following the date the 
Emissions Unit resumes regular operation after the Modification; 
or 

(ii) Any 12-month period in the 10-years following the date the 
Emissions Unit resumes regular operation after the Modification if: 
a. The Modification involves increasing the Emissions Unit’s 

design capacity or PTE of a Regulated NSR Pollutant; and 
b. The full utilization of the Emissions Unit would result in a 

Federal Significant Emissions Increase or a Federal 
Significant Net Emissions Increase. 

 
(b) The Projected Actual Emissions calculation shall: 

(i) Include all relevant information, including but not limited to, 
historical operational data, the company's own representations, the 
company's expected business activity and the company's highest 
projections of business activity, the company's filings with the 
State or Federal regulatory authorities, and compliance plans under 
the approved plan; and 

(ii) Include fugitive emissions to the extent quantifiable and emissions 
associated with startups, shutdowns, and malfunctions; and 

(iii) Exclude that portion of the Emission Unit's emissions following 
the modification that the pre-modification Emissions Unit could 
have accommodated during the consecutive 24-month period used 
to establish the Baseline Actual Emissions and that are also 
unrelated to the particular modification. 

 
(c) In lieu of calculating Projected Actual Emissions the owner/operator of the 

Facility may elect to use the PTE of the Emissions Unit as calculated 
pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1304(D). 

(F) Plant Wide Applicability Limits 

(1) Application 

(a) Any Federal Major Facility may apply to the APCO for the issuance of a 
PAL. 

(b) Such application shall be subject to the applicable provisions of District 
Rule 301. 

328 of 527



 

1310-8 AVAQMD Rule 1310 
Federal Major Facilities and Modifications 

D2 6/01/2021 

(2) Issuance 

(a) The APCO shall approve a PAL if the owner or operator of the Federal 
Major Facility demonstrates that the PAL conforms with all the provisions 
specified in 40 CFR 51.165(f)(1-15. 

(b) The APCO shall include on any and all appropriate permits held by the 
Federal Major Facility conditions sufficient to implement and enforce the 
PAL. 

(3) Effect of a PAL 

(a) A Federal Major Facility with a PAL shall not be subject to the provisions 
of section 1310(D)(3) or District Rule 1302(B)(1)(a)(iii)a. only for: 

(i) The pollutant for which the PAL is approved; and 
(ii) The transactions which are allowable under the PAL 
 

 
 

329 of 527



(Adopted: 06/01/90; Amended: 12/07/90; Amended: 11/19/02; 
Amended: 08/15/06; Amended: mm/dd/yy) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1401 1401-1 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 
D2 6/01/2021 

RULE 1401 
New Source Review Ffor 
Toxic Air Contaminants 

(A) Purpose 

(1) The purpose of this Rule is to: 

(a) Set forth the requirements for preconstruction review of all new, Modified, 
Relocated or Reconstructed Facilities which emit or have the potential to 
emit any Hazardous Air Pollutant, Toxic Air Contaminant, or Regulated 
Toxic Substance; and  

(b) Ensure that any new, Modified, or Relocated Emissions Unit is required to 
control the emissions of Toxic Air Contaminants as required pursuant to 
Chapter 3.5 of Part 1 of Division 26 of the California Health and Safety 
Code (commencing with §39650); and  

(c) Ensure that any proposed new or Reconstructed Facility or Emissions Unit 
is required to control the emissions of Hazardous Air Pollutants as 
required under 42 U.S.C. §7412(g).  

(2) This Rule is not submitted to USEPA and is not intended to be included as part of 
the California State Implementation Plan. [Derived from Imperial county APCD 
Rule 207, See USEPA Comment 1.3.3. to MDAQMD of 12/19/2019] 

(B) Applicability 

(1) General Applicability 

(a) The provisions of this rule shall be applicable to: 

(i) Applications for new, Modified or Relocated Facilities or Permit 
Emissions Unit(s) which were received by the District on or after 
June 1, 1990. [Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(ii) Any Permit Unit(s) installed without a required Authority to 
Construct Permit shall be subject to this rule, if the application for 
a permit to operate such equipment was submitted after June 1, 
1990.  [Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(iii) Applications shall be subject to the version of the District Rules 
that are in effect at the time the application is received.  

 
(2) State Toxic New Source Review Program (State T-NSR) Applicability 

(a) The provisions of Subsection (E) of this Rule shall apply to any new or 
Modified Emissions Unit which: 

330 of 527



 

1401-2 AVAQMD Rule 1401 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

D2 6/01/2021 

(i) Emits or has the potential to emit a Toxic Air Contaminant; or  
(ii) Is subject to an Airborne Toxic Control Measure.  
 

(3) Federal Toxic New Source Review Program (Federal T-NSR) Applicability 

(a) The provisions of Subsection (F) of this Rule shall apply to any new or 
Reconstructed Facility or new or Modified Emissions Unit(s) which: 
[Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(i) Emits or has the potential to emit 10 tons per year or more of any 
single HAP; or  

(ii) Emits or has the potential to emit 25 tons per year or more of any 
combination of HAPs; or   

(iii) Has been designated an Air Toxic Area Source by USEPA 
pursuant to the provisions of 42 U.S.C. §7412 and the regulations 
promulgated thereunder.  

(C) Definitions 

The definitions contained in District Rule 1301 shall apply unless the term is otherwise 
defined herein. 

(1) “Air Toxic Area Source” – Any stationary source Facility or Emissions Unit(s) of 
Hazardous Air Pollutants that emits or has the potential to emit less than ten (10) 
tons per year of any single HAP or twenty-five (25) tons per year of any 
combination of HAPs and which has been designated as an area source by 
USEPA pursuant to the provisions of 42 U.S.C. §7412. [Consistency with 
Regulation XIII] 

(2) “Airborne Toxic Control Measure” (ATCM) – Recommended methods or range 
of methods that reduce, avoid, or eliminate the emissions of a TAC promulgated 
by CARB pursuant to the provisions of California Health and Safety Code 
§39658. 

(3) “Best Available Control Technology for Toxics” (T-BACT) –The most stringent 
emissions limitation or control technique for Toxic Air Contaminants or 
Regulated Toxic Substances which: 

(a) Has been achieved in practice for such permit unit category or class of 
source; or 

(b) Is any other emissions limitation or control technique, including process 
and equipment changes of basic and control equipment, found by the 
APCO to be technologically feasible for such class or category of sources, 
or for a specific source. 

(4) “Cancer Burden” - The estimated increase in the occurrence of cancer cases in a 
population resulting from exposure to carcinogenic air contaminants.  

331 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1401 1401-3 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 
D2 6/01/2021 

(5) “Case-by-Case Maximum Achievable Control Technology Standard” (Case-by-
Case MACT) –   An emissions limit or control technology that is applied to a new 
or Relocated Facility or Emissions Unit(s) where USEPA has not yet promulgated 
a MACT standard pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §7412(d)(3) (FCAA §112(d)(3). Such 
limit or control technique shall be determined pursuant to the provisions of 40 
CFR 63.43. [Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(6) “Contemporaneous Risk Reduction” - Any reduction in risk resulting from a 
decrease in emissions of Toxic Air Contaminants at the Facility which is real, 
enforceable, quantifiable, surplus and permanent. 

(7) “Hazard Index” (HI) – The acute or chronic non-cancer Hazard Quotient for a 
substance by toxicological endpoint. 

(8) “Hazard Quotient” (HQ) – The estimated ambient air concentration divided by the 
acute or chronic reference exposure for a single substance and a particular 
endpoint. 

(9) “Hazardous Air Pollutant” (HAP) – Any air pollutant listed pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 
§7412(b) (Federal Clean Air Act §112(b)) or in regulations promulgated 
thereunder.  

(10) “Health Risk Assessment” (HRA) – A detailed and comprehensive analysis 
prepared pursuant to the most recently published District Health Risk Assessment 
Guidelines to evaluate and predict the dispersion of Toxic Air Contaminants and 
Regulated Toxic Substances in the environment, the potential for exposure of 
human population and to assess and quantify both the individual and population 
wide health risks associated with those levels of exposure.  Such document shall 
include details of the methodologies and methods of analysis which were utilized 
to prepare the document.  

(11) “High Priority” – A Facility or Emissions Unit(s) for which any Prioritization 
Score for cancer, acute non-cancer health effects or chronic non-cancer health 
effects is greater than or equal to ten (10).  [Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(12) “Intermediate Priority” – A Facility or Emissions Unit (s) for which any 
Prioritization Score for cancer, acute non-cancer health effects or chronic non-
cancer health effects is greater than or equal to one (1) and less than ten (10). 
[Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(13) “Low Priority” – A Facility or Emissions Unit(s) for which all Prioritization 
Scores for cancer, acute non-cancer health effects or chronic non-cancer health 
effects are less than one (1).  [Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(14) “Maximum Achievable Control Technology Standard” (MACT) – The maximum 
degree of reduction in emissions of HAPs, including prohibitions of such 
emissions where achievable, as promulgated by USEPA pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 
§7412(d)(3) (Federal Clean Air Act §112(d)(3)).  

332 of 527



 

1401-4 AVAQMD Rule 1401 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

D2 6/01/2021 

(15) “Maximum Individual Cancer Risk” (MICR) – The estimated probability of a 
potential maximally exposed individual contracting cancer as a result of exposure 
to carcinogenic air contaminants over a period of 70 years for residential locations 
and 46 years for worker receptor locations or other periods of time as 
promulgated by OEHHA.  

(16) “Moderate Risk” – A classification of a Facility or Emission Unit for which the 
HRA Report indicates the MICR is greater than one (1) in one million (1 x 10-6) at 
the location of any receptor.  

(17) “Modification” (Modified) – Any physical or operational change to a Facility or 
an Emissions Unit to replace equipment, expand capacity, revise methods of 
operation, or modernize processes by making any physical change, change in 
method of operation, addition to an existing Permit Emissions Unit(s) and/or 
change in hours of operation, including but not limited to any change which 
results in the emission of any Hazardous Air Pollutant, Toxic Air Contaminant, or 
Regulated Toxic Substance or which results in the emission of any Hazardous Air 
Pollutant, Toxic Air Contaminant, or Regulated Toxic Substance not previously 
emitted.  [Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(a) A physical or operational change shall not include:  

(i) Routine maintenance or repair; or  
(ii) A change in the owner or operator of an existing Facility with valid 

PTO(s); or  
(iii) An increase in the production rate, unless: 

a. Such increase will cause the maximum design capacity of 
the Emission Unit to be exceeded; or  

b. Such increase will exceed a previously imposed 
enforceable limitation contained in a permit condition.  

(iv) An increase in the hours of operation, unless such increase will 
exceed a previously imposed enforceable limitation contained in a 
permit condition. 

(v) An Emission Unit replacing a functionally identical Emission Unit, 
provided: 
a. There is no increase in maximum rating or increase in 

emissions of any HAP, TAC or Regulated Toxic 
Substance; and  

b. No ATCM applies to the replacement Emission Unit.  
(vi) An Emissions Unit which is exclusively used as emergency 

standby equipment provided: 
a. The Emissions Unit does not operate more than 200 hours 

per year; and  
b. No ATCM applies to the Emissions Unit.  

(vii) An Emissions Unit which previously did not require a written 
permit pursuant to District Rule 219 provided: 

333 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1401 1401-5 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 
D2 6/01/2021 

a. The Emissions Unit was installed prior to the amendment 
to District Rule 219 which eliminated the exemption; and 

b. A complete application for a permit for the Emission Unit 
is received within one (1) year after the date of the 
amendment to District Rule 219 which eliminated the 
exemption. 

(viii) An Emissions Unit replacing Emissions Unit(s) provided that the 
replacement causes either a reduction or no increase in the cancer 
burden, MICR, or acute or chronic HI at any receptor location. 

(b) Any applicant claiming exemption from this rule pursuant to the 
provisions of subsection (C)(17)(a) above: 

(i) Shall provide adequate documentation to substantiate such 
exemption; and   

(ii) Any test or analysis method used to substantiate such exemption 
shall be approved by the APCO.  

 
(18) “Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment” (OEHHA) – A department 

within the California Environmental Protection Agency that is responsible for 
evaluating chemicals for adverse health impacts and establishing safe exposure 
levels.  

(19) “Prioritization Score” – The numerical score for cancer health effects, acute non-
cancer health effects or chronic non-cancer health effects for a Facility or 
Emissions Unit(s) as determined by the District pursuant to California Health and 
Safety Code §44360 in a manner consistent with the most recently approved 
CAPCOA Facility Prioritization Guidelines; the most recently approved OEHHA 
Unit Risk Factor for cancer potency factors; and the most recently approved 
OEHHA Reference Exposure Levels for non-cancer acute factors, and non-cancer 
chronic factors. [Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(20) “Receptor” – Any location outside the boundaries of a Facility at which a person 
may be impacted by the emissions of that Facility.  Receptors include, but are not 
limited to residential units, commercial work places, industrial work places and 
sensitive sites such as hospitals, nursing homes, residential care facilities, schools 
and day care centers.  

(21) “Reconstruction” (Reconstructed) – The replacement of components at an 
existing process or Emissions Unit(s) that in and of itself emits or has the 
Potential to Emit 10 tons per year of any HAP or 25 tons per year of any 
combination of HAP, whenever: [Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(a) The fixed capital cost of the new components exceeds 50 percent of the 
fixed capital cost that would be required to construct a comparable process 
or production unit; and  

334 of 527



 

1401-6 AVAQMD Rule 1401 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

D2 6/01/2021 

(b) It is technically and economically feasible for the reconstructed major 
source to meet the applicable MACT Standard for new sources.  

(22) “Reference Exposure Level” (REL) – The ambient air concentration level 
expressed in microgram/cubic meter (µ/m3) at or below which no adverse health 
effects are anticipated for a specified exposure.  

(23) “Regulated Toxic Substance” – A substance which is not a Toxic Air 
Contaminant but which has been designated as a chemical substance which poses 
a threat to public health when present in the ambient air by CARB pursuant to 
California Health and Safety Code §44321.  

(24) “Relocation” (Relocated) – The removal of an existing permit unit from one 
location in the District and installation at another location.  The removal of a 
permit unit from one location within a Facility and installation at another location 
within the same Facility is a relocation only if an increase in MICR in excess of 
one in one million (1 x 10-6) occurs at any receptor location. 

(25) “Significant Health Risk” – A classification of a Facility for which the HRA 
Report indicates that the MICR is greater than or equal to ten (10) in a million (1 
x 10-5 ) or that the HI is greater than or equal to one (1). 

(26) “Significant Risk” – A classification of a Facility or Emissions Unit(s) for which 
the HRA Report indicates that the MICR is greater than or equal to one hundred 
(100) in a million (1 x 10-4) or that the HI is greater than or equal to ten (10). 
[Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(27) “Toxic Air Contaminant” (TAC) –  aAn air pollutant which may cause or 
contribute to an increase in mortality or in serious illness, or which may pose a 
present or potential hazard to human health and has been identified by CARB 
pursuant to the provisions of California Health and Safety Code §39657, 
including but not limited to, substances that have been identified as HAPs 
pursuant to 42 U.S.C. Sec. 7412(b) (Federal Clean Air Act §112(b)) and the 
regulations promulgated thereunder. 

(28) “Toxics Emission Inventory Report” – An emissions inventory report for TAC 
and Toxic Substances prepared for a Facility or Emissions Unit(s) pursuant to the 
District’s Comprehensive Emission Inventory Guidelines. [Consistency with 
Regulation XIII] 

(29) “Unit Risk Factor” (URF) – tThe theoretical upper bound probability of extra 
lifetime cancer risk occurring from the chemical when the air concentration is 
expressed in exposure units of per microgram/cubic meter ((µ/m3)-1). 

(D) Initial Applicability Analysis 

(1) The APCO shall analyze the Comprehensive Emissions Inventory Report or 
Comprehensive Emissions Inventory Report Update which was submitted 

335 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1401 1401-7 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 
D2 6/01/2021 

pursuant to District Rule 1302(B)(1)(ba)(ii) within thirty (30) days of receipt or 
after such longer period as the APCO and the applicant agree to in writing, to 
determine if the new, Modified, Relocated or Emissions Unit(s); or Reconstructed 
Facility is subject to provisions (E) or (F) of this rule.  [Consistency with 
Regulation XIII] 

(a) If the Facility or Emissions Unit is subject to the State T-NSR pursuant to 
Section (B)(2), then the APCO shall perform the analysis required 
pursuant to Section (E). 

(b) If the Facility is subject to the Federal T-NSR pursuant to Section (B)(3), 
then the APCO shall perform the analysis required pursuant to Section (F). 

(c) If the Facility or Emissions Unit is subject to both the State T-NSR 
pursuant to Section (B)(2) and the Federal T-NSR pursuant to Section 
(B)(3) then the APCO shall perform the analysis required pursuant to 
Section (E) followed by the analysis pursuant to Section (F).  

(d) If the provisions of this Rule are not applicable to the Facility or 
Emissions Unit(s) then the APCO shall continue the permit analysis 
process commencing with the provisions of District Rule 1302(C)(56). 
[Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(E) State Toxic New Source Review Program Analysis (State T-NSR) 

(1) ATCM Requirements 

(a) The APCO shall analyze the application and Comprehensive Emission 
Inventory Report for the new or modified Emission Units(s) within thirty 
(30) days of receipt or after such longer period as the APCO and the 
applicant agree to in writing, and determine if any currently enforceable 
ATCM applies to the Emissions Unit(s).  

(b) If an ATCM applies to the new or modified Emission Units(s) the APCO 
shall: 

(i) Add the requirements of the ATCM or of any alternative method(s) 
submitted and approved pursuant to Health & Safety Code 
§39666(f) to any ATC or PTO issued pursuant to the provisions of 
this Regulation or District Regulation II whichever process is 
utilized to issue the permit(s); and  

(ii) Continue the analysis with Section (E)(2). 
 

(c) If no ATCM applies to the proposed new or modified Emissions Unit(s) 
the APCO shall continue the analysis with Section (E)(2). [Consistency 
with Regulation XIII] 

(2) Emissions Unit(s) Prioritization Score [Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

336 of 527



 

1401-8 AVAQMD Rule 1401 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

D2 6/01/2021 

(a) The APCO shall analyze the application and Comprehensive Emission 
Inventory Report for the Emission Unit(s) and calculate three (3) 
prioritization scores for each new or modified Emission Unit. 

(i) Prioritization Scores shall be calculated for carcinogenic effects, 
non-carcinogenic acute effects and non-carcinogenic chronic 
effects.  

(ii) Prioritization Scores shall be calculated utilizing the most recently 
approved CAPCOA Facility Prioritization Guidelines; the most 
recently approved OEHHA Unit Risk Factor for cancer potency 
factors; and the most recently approved OEHHA Reference 
Exposure Levels for non-cancer acute factors, and non-cancer 
chronic factors.  

(iii) Prioritization Scores may be adjusted utilizing any or all of the 
following factors if such adjustment is necessary to obtain an 
accurate assessment of the Facility. 

 
a. Multi-pathway analysis 
b. Method of release. 
c. Type of Receptors potentially impacted. 
d. Proximity or distance to any Receptor. 
e. Stack height. 
f. Local meteorological conditions. 
g. Topography of the proposed new or Modified Facility and 

surrounding area. 
h. Type of area. 
g. Screening dispersion modeling. 

 
(b) If all Prioritization Scores indicate that the Emissions Unit(s) is 

categorized as Low or Intermediate Priority, the APCO shall: [Consistency 
with Regulation XIII] 

(i) Determine if the Facility is subject to Federal T-NSR pursuant to 
subsection (B)(3) and continue the analysis with Section (F). 

(ii) If the Facility or Emissions Unit(s) is not subject to Federal T-
NSR, continue the permit analysis process commencing with the 
provisions of District Rule 1302(C)(56). [Consistency with 
Regulation XIII] 

 
(c) If any Prioritization Score indicates that the Emission Unit is categorized 

as High Priority, the APCO shall continue the analysis pursuant to 
subsection (E)(3). 

(3) Emissions Unit(s) Health Risk Assessment [Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

337 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1401 1401-9 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 
D2 6/01/2021 

(a) The APCO shall notify the applicant in writing that the applicant is 
required to prepare and submit an HRA for the new or Modified Emission 
Units(s).  

(i) The applicant shall prepare the HRA for the new or Modified 
Emissions Units(s) in accordance with the District’s most recently 
issued Health Risk Assessment Plan and Report Guidelines. 
[Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(ii) The HRA for the eEmissions uUnit(s) shall be submitted by the 
applicant no later than thirty (30) days after receipt of the written 
notification from the APCO or after such longer time that the 
applicant and the APCO may agree to in writing.  

(iii) The HRA may include a demonstration of Contemporaneous Risk 
Reduction pursuant to subsection (E)(4). [Consistency with 
Regulation XIII] 

 
(b) The APCO shall approve or disapprove the HRA for the new or Modified 

Emission Units(s) within thirty (30) days of receipt of the HRA from the 
applicant or after such longer time that the applicant and the APCO may 
agree to in writing. 

(c) After the approval or disapproval of the HRA for the new or Modified 
Emission Units(s) the APCO shall transmit a written notice of the 
approval or disapproval of the HRA immediately to the applicant at the 
address indicated on the application.  

(i) If the HRA for the new or Modified Emission Units(s) was 
disapproved the APCO shall specify the deficiencies and indicate 
how they can be corrected.   
a. Upon receipt by the District of a resubmitted HRA a new 

thirty (30) day period in which the APCO must determine 
the approval or disapproval of the HRA shall begin.   

 
(d) The APCO shall analyze the HRA for the new or Modified Emission 

Unit(s) to determine the cancer burden for each Emissions Unit(s). 

(i) If the cancer burden is greater than 0.5 in the population subject to 
a risk of greater than or equal to one in one million  (1 x 10-6) the 
APCO shall immediately notify the applicant that the application 
will be denied in its current form unless the applicant submits a  
revised application which reduces the cancer burden to equal or 
below 0.5 within thirty (30) days of receipt of the notice or after 
such longer time as both the applicant and the APCO may agree to 
in writing.  
a. If the applicant does not submit a revised application within 

the time period specified, the APCO shall notify the 
applicant in writing that the application has been denied. 

338 of 527



 

1401-10 AVAQMD Rule 1401 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

D2 6/01/2021 

b. If the applicant submits a revised application, the analysis 
process shall commence pursuant to District Rule 1302 as 
if the application was newly submitted. 

(ii) If the cancer burden is less than or equal to 0.5 in the population 
subject to a risk of greater than or equal to one in one million  (1 x 
10-6) the APCO shall continue with the analysis pursuant to 
subsection (E)(3)(e). 

 
(e) The APCO shall analyze the HRA for the new or Modified Emissions 

Unit(s) and determine the risk for each Emissions Unit(s). [Consistency 
with Regulation XIII] 

(i) If the HRA indicates that the Emissions Unit(s) are less than a 
Moderate Risk then the APCO shall continue the analysis 
purusantpursuant to section (E)(3)(f). [Typographical Error] 

(ii) If the HRA indicates that the Emissions Unit(s) are a Moderate 
Risk but less than a Significant Health Risk then the APCO shall: 
a. Add requirements for each Emissions Unit sufficient to 

ensure T-BACT is applied to any ATC or PTO issued 
pursuant to the provisions of District Regulation XIII or 
Regulation II whichever process is utilized to issue the 
permit(s); and  

b. Continue with the analysis pursuant to subsection (E)(3)(f). 
(iii) If the HRA indicates that an the Emission Unit(s) is a Significant 

Health Risk but less than a Significant Risk then the APCO shall: 
[Consistency with Regulation XIII] 
a. Add requirements for each Emissions Unit sufficient to 

ensure T-BACT is applied to  any ATC or PTO issued 
pursuant to the provisions of District Regulation XIII or 
Regulation II whichever process is utilized to issue the 
permit(s); and  

b. Require the Facility to perform a public notification 
pursuant to the District’s Public Notification Guidelines; 
and 

c. Continue with the analysis pursuant to subsection (E)(3)(f). 
(iv) If the HRA indicates that an the Emissions Unit(s) is a Significant 

Risk then the APCO shall immediately notify the applicant that the 
application will be denied in its current form unless the applicant 
submits a revised application which reduces the risk below that of 
Significant Risk within thirty (30) days of receipt of the notice or 
after such longer time as both the applicant and the APCO may 
agree to in writing. [Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

 
(f) If the HRA Report indicates that all new or Modified Emission Unit(s) are 

less than a Significant Risk then the APCO shall determine if the Facility 
or Emissions Unit(s) is subject to Federal T-NSR pursuant to subsection 
(B)(3). [Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

339 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1401 1401-11 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 
D2 6/01/2021 

(i) If the Facility or Emission Unit is subject to the Federal T-NSR, 
continue the analysis with Section (F). 

(ii) If the Facility or Emission Unit is not subject to the Federal T-
NSR, continue the permit analysis process commencing with the 
provisions of District Rule 1302(C)(56). 

 
(4) Contemporaneous Risk Reduction  

(a) Applicant may, as a part of an HRA required pursuant to subsection 
(E)(3), provide Contemporaneous Risk Reduction to reduce the Facility 
risk from the new or modified Emissions Units. 

(b) Contemporaneous Risk Reductions shall be: 

(i) Real, enforceable, quantifiable, surplus and permanent; and 
(ii) Calculated based on the actual average annual emissions as 

determined by the APCO based upon verified data for the two year 
period immediately preceding the date of application; and 

(iii) Accompanied by an application for modification of the Emission 
Unit(s) which cause the Contemporaneous Risk Reduction. 

 
(c) The APCO shall analyze the Contemporaneous Risk Reduction and 

determine if any receptor will experience a total increase in MICIR due to 
the cumulative impact of the Emission Unit(s) and the Emission Unit(s) 
which cause the Contemporaneous Risk Reduction. 

(i) The APCO shall deny a Contemporaneous Risk Reduction when 
such an increase occurs unless:  
a. The Contemporaneous Risk Reduction is: 

1. Within 328 feet (100 meters) of the new or 
modified Emission Unit(s); or  

2. No receptor location will experience a total increase 
in MICIR of greater than one in one million (1.0 x 
10-6) due to the cumulative impact of the Emission 
Unit(s) and the Emission Unit(s) which cause the 
Contemporaneous Risk Reduction   

b. T-BACT is applied to any Emissions Unit which is a 
Moderate Risk or greater.  

 
(d) The APCO shall analyze the Contemporaneous Risk Reduction and 

determine if any receptor will experience an increase in total acute or 
chronic HI due to the cumulative impact of the new or modified Emission 
Unit(s) and the Emission Unit(s) which cause the Contemporaneous Risk 
Reduction.   

(i) The APCO shall deny a Contemporaneous Risk Reduction when 
such an increase occurs unless: 

340 of 527



 

1401-12 AVAQMD Rule 1401 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

D2 6/01/2021 

a. The Contemporaneous Risk Reduction is: 
1. Within 328 feet (100 meters) of the new or 

modified Emission Unit(s); or 
2. No receptor location will experience an increase in 

total acute or chronic HI of more than .1 due to the 
cumulative impact of the new or modified Emission 
Unit(s) and the Emission Unit(s) which cause the 
Contemporaneous Risk Reduction; and .  

 
(e) Any Contemporaneous Risk Reduction must occur before the start of 

operations of the Emissions Unit(s) which increase the risk. 

(F) Federal Toxic New Source Review Program Analysis (Federal T-NSR) 

(1) MACT Standard Requirements 

(a) The APCO shall analyze the application and Comprehensive Emission 
Inventory and determine if any currently enforceable MACT standard 
applies to the new or Reconstructed Facility or Emissions Unit(s). 
[Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(b) If a MACT standard applies to the new or Reconstructed Facility or 
Emissions Unit(s) the APCO shall: [Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(i) Add the requirements of the MACT standard to any ATC or PTO 
issued pursuant to the provisions of District Regulation XIII or 
Regulation II whichever process is utilized to issue the permit(s); 
and   

(ii) Continue the analysis with District Rule 1302(C)(56). 
 

(c) If no MACT standard applies to the new or Reconstructed Facility or 
Emissions Unit(s) the APCO shall continue the analysis with Section 
(G)(2). [Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(2) Case-by-Case MACT Standards Requirements 

(a) The APCO shall determine if a Case-by-Case MACT standard applies to 
the proposed new or Reconstructed Facility or Emissions Unit(s). 
[Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(b) If a Case-by-Case MACT standard applies to the new or Reconstructed 
Facility or Emissions Unit(s) the APCO shall:  [Consistency with 
Regulation XIII] 

(i) Notify the applicant in writing that the applicant is required to 
prepare and submit a Case-by-Case MACT application. 

341 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1401 1401-13 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 
D2 6/01/2021 

a. The applicant shall prepare the Case-by-Case MACT 
application in accordance with the provisions of 40 CFR 
63.43(e). 

b. The Case-by-Case MACT application shall be submitted no 
later than thirty (30) days after receipt of the written 
notification from the APCO or after such longer time that 
the applicant and the APCO may agree to in writing. 

(ii) Preliminarily approve or disapprove the Case-by-Case MACT 
application within 30 days after receipt of the application or after 
such longer time as the applicant and the APCO may agree to in 
writing. 

(iii) After the approval or disapproval of the Case-by-Case MACT 
application the APCO shall transmit a written notice of the 
approval or disapproval to the applicant at the address indicated on 
the application. 
a. If the Case-by-Case MACT application is disapproved the 

APCO shall specify the deficiencies, indicate how they can 
be corrected and specify a new deadline for submission of a 
revised Case-by-Case MACT application. 

(iv) The APCO shall review and analyze the Case-by-Case MACT 
application and submit it to USEPA along with any proposed 
permit conditions necessary to enforce the standard. 

(v) Provide public notice and comment of the proposed Case-by-Case 
MACT standard determination pursuant to the procedures in 40 
CFR 63.42(h). 
a. Such notice may be concurrent with the notice required 

under District Rule 1302(D)(3) if notice is required 
pursuant to that provision. 

(vi) Add the approved Case-by-Case MACT standard requirements or 
conditions to any ATC or PTO issued pursuant to the provisions of 
District Regulation XIII or Regulation II whichever process is 
utilized to issue the permit(s); and 

(vii) Continue the analysis with District Rule 1302(C)(56). 
 

(c) If a Case-by-Case MACT standard does not apply to the new or 
Reconstructed Facility or Emissions Unit(s) the APCO shall continue the 
analysis with District Rule 1302(C)(56). [Consistency with Regulation 
XIII] 

(G) Most Stringent Emission Limit or Control Technique 

(1) If a Facility or Emission Unit(s) is subject to more than one emission limitation 
pursuant to sections (E) or (F) of this rule the most stringent emission limit or 
control technique shall be applied to the Facility or Emission Unit(s). 
[Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

342 of 527



 

1401-14 AVAQMD Rule 1401 
NSR for Toxic Air Contaminants 

D2 6/01/2021 

(a) Notwithstanding the above, if a Facility or Emission Unit(s) is subject to a 
published MACT standard both the MACT standard and the emissions 
limit or control technique, if any, required pursuant to sections (E) shall 
apply unless the District has received delegation from USEPA for that 
particular MACT standard pursuant to the provisions of 42 U.S.C. 
§7412(l) (FCAA §112(l)). [Consistency with Regulation XIII] 

(H) Interaction with District Rule 1402 

(1) Nothing in this Rule shall be construed to exempt an existing Facility from 
compliance with the provisions of District Rule 1402. 

 
 
 
 
 
[SIP: Not SIP] 
 
 

343 of 527



(Adopted:  mm/dd/yy) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1700 1600-1 
PSD 
D2 6/01/2021 

Rule 1700 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) 

(A) General 

(1) Purpose 

(a) The purpose of this Rule is to: 

(i) Set forth the requirements for preconstruction review of all new 
Major PSD Facilities and Major PSD Modifications which emit or 
have the potential to emit a PSD Air Pollutant; and   

(ii) Incorporate applicable provisions of the Federal Prevention of 
Significant Deterioration (PSD) Rule as found in 40 CFR 52.21 by 
reference; and  

(iii) Ensure that the construction or modification of Facilities subject to 
this Rule comply with the provisions of 40 CFR 52.21 as 
incorporated by reference in this Rule.  

 
(2) Applicability 

(a) This Rule is applicable to any Facility and the owner/operator of any 
Facility subject to any requirement pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21 as 
incorporated by reference in this Rule. 

(b) The provisions of this Rule apply to emissions or potential emissions of 
PSD Air Pollutants and their precursors as defined in subsection (B) 
below.   

(c) The provisions of this Rule, specifically 40 CFR 52.21(j)-(r) as 
incorporated by reference below shall not apply to a Major PSD Facility or 
Major PSD Modification with respect to a particular pollutant if the Major 
PSD Facility or Major PSD Modification is located in an area designated 
as nonattainment pursuant to 40 CFR 81.305 for the particular pollutant.   

(3) Incorporation by Reference 

(a) The requirements and provisions contained in 40 CFR 52.21 in effect on 
[date of rule adoption] are incorporated herein by reference with the 
exception of the following:   

(i) 40 CFR 52.21(a)(1), (b)(55-58), (f), (g), (p)(6-8), (q), (s), (t), (u), 
(v), (w), (x), (y), (z), and (cc). 

(ii) The phrase “paragraph (q) of this section” in 40 CFR 52.21(p)(1) 
shall read as follows: the public notice and comment provisions 
contained in subsection (D)(2)(c) of this Rule. 

344 of 527



 

1700-2 AVAQMD Rule 1700 
PSD 

D2 6/01/2021 

(iii) The term “Best Available Control Technology” or “BACT” as 
defined in 40 CFR 52.21(b)(12) shall read “PSD Best Available 
Control Technology” or “PSD BACT.” 

(iv) The term “Major Modification” as defined in 40 CFR 52.21(b)(2) 
shall read “Major PSD Modification.” 

(v) The term “Major Stationary Source” as defined in 40 CFR 
52.21(b)(1) shall read “Major PSD Facility.” 

(vi) The term “Regulated NSR Pollutant” as defined in 40 CFR 
52.21(b)(50) shall read “PSD Air Pollutant.” 

(vii) The term “Stationary Source” as defined in 40 CFR 52.21(b)(5) 
shall read “Facility.” 

(B) Definitions 

For the purpose of this Rule the definitions contained in 40 CFR 52.21(b), excluding 
(b)(55), (b)(56), (b)(57) and (b)(58), shall apply unless the term is otherwise defined 
herein. 

(1) Administrator – Either the administrator of USEPA or the Air Pollution Control 
Officer as follows: 

(a) For the provisions of 40 CFR 52.21(b)(17), (b)(37), (b)(43), (b)(48)(ii)(c), 
(b)(50)(i), (b)(51), (l)(2), and (p)(2), the administrator of USEPA; 

(b) For all other provisions of 40 CFR 52.21 as incorporated by reference in 
this Rule, the Air Pollution Control Officer. 

(2) Air Pollution Control Officer (APCO) – The person appointed to the position of 
Air Pollution Control Officer of the District pursuant to the provisions of 
California Health & Safety Code §40750, and his or her designee. 

(3) Authority to Construct Permit (ATC) - A District permit required pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 201 which must be obtained prior to the building, 
erecting, installation, alteration or replacement of any Permit Unit.  Such permit 
may act as a temporary PTO pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 202. 

(4) District – The Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District the geographical 
area of which is described in District Rule 103. 

(5) Major PSD Facility – A Major Stationary Source as defined in 40 CFR 
52.21(b)(1) for a PSD Air Pollutant. 

(6) Major PSD Modification – A Major Modification as defined in 40 CFR 
52.21(b)(2) for an PSD Air Pollutant. 

(7) Permit To Operate (PTO) - A District permit required pursuant to the provisions 
of District Rule 203 which must be obtained prior to operation of a Permit Unit.  

345 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1700 1600-3 
PSD 
D2 6/01/2021 

An ATC may function as a temporary PTO pursuant to the provisions of District 
Rule 202. 

(8) Permit Unit – Any Emissions Unit which is required to have a PTO pursuant to 
the provisions of District Rule 203. 

(9) PSD Air Pollutant – A Regulated NSR Pollutant as defined in 40 CFR 
52.21(b)(50). 

(10) PSD Best Available Control Technology (PSD BACT) – Best Available Control 
Technology as defined in 40 CFR 52.21(b)(12). 

(11) PSD Document – A document issued by the APCO pursuant to the provisions of 
this Rule including but not limited to: all analysis relating to the new Major PSD 
Facility or Facility with Major PSD Modification; notices; any engineering 
analysis or other necessary analysis; and proposed conditions for any required 
ATC(s) or PTO(s). 

(C) Requirements 

(1) An owner/operator of any new Major PSD Facility, a Facility with a Major PSD 
Modification, or a Major PSD Facility requesting or modifying a Plantwide 
Applicability Limitation (PAL) shall obtain a Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration (PSD) permit pursuant to this Rule before beginning actual 
construction of such Facility or modification. 

(2) Notwithstanding the provisions of any other District Rule or Regulation, the 
APCO shall require compliance with this Rule prior to issuing a PSD permit as 
required by Section 165 of the Federal Clean Air Act (42 USC §7475). 

(3) Greenhouse gas emissions shall not be subject to the requirements of subsections 
(k) or (m) of 40 CFR Part 52.21. 

(4) An owner/operator of a Major PSD Facility seeking to obtain a PAL shall also 
comply with the provisions of 40 CFR 52.21 (aa)(1-15). 

(D) Procedure  

(1) General 

(a) The provisions of District Rule 1302 shall apply unless otherwise 
specified herein. 

(b) For Electrical Energy Generating Facilities (EEGFs) as defined in District 
Rule 1301(V) the provisions of this Rule shall apply in addition to the 
provisions of District Rule 1306. 

346 of 527



 

1700-4 AVAQMD Rule 1700 
PSD 

D2 6/01/2021 

(2) Analysis 

(a) After the application has been determined to be complete pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1302(B)(1)(e) and all applicable notifications 
required pursuant to District Rule 1302 (B)(2) have been sent the APCO 
shall: 

(i) Analyze the information to determine if the application complies 
with the provisions of 40 CFR 52.21 as incorporated by reference; 
and  

(ii) Make a PSD BACT determination pursuant to the provisions of 40 
CFR 52.21(j).  
 

(b) The APCO shall not perform any analysis unless all applicable fees, 
including but not limited to Project Evaluation Fees for Complex Sources, 
as set forth in District Rule 301, have been paid. 

(c) Such PSD analysis may be conducted concurrently with any analysis 
required pursuant to District Rules 1302, 1306, and/or 1401. 

(3) Permit Issuance Procedure 

(a) Preliminary Decision 

(i) After the analysis has been completed the APCO shall issue a 
preliminary decision as to whether the PSD Document  should be 
approved, conditionally approved or disapproved and whether the 
ATC(s) or PTO(s) should be issued to the Major PSD Facility or 
Major PSD Modification. 

(ii) The preliminary decision shall include an analysis of the approval, 
conditional approval or disapproval and the draft PSD Document. 

(iii) The preliminary decision and draft PSD Document may be 
combined with any engineering analysis or draft NSR Document 
produced pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1302. 

 
(b) USEPA and Federal Land Manager Review. 

(i) If USEPA and the Federal Land Manager were notified pursuant to 
the provisions of District Rule 1302 (B)(2)(a)(iii) then the APCO 
shall, upon completion of the preliminary decision and 
concurrently with the publication required pursuant to subsection 
(D)(2)(c) below, send a copy of the preliminary decision and any 
underlying analysis to USEPA and any Federal Land Manager so 
notified. 

(ii) The provisions of District Rule 1302 (D)(2) shall apply to the 
review by USEPA and the Federal Land Manager. 

347 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1700 1600-5 
PSD 
D2 6/01/2021 

(iii) This review may be combined with any other review required 
pursuant to District Rule 1302. 

 
(c) Public Review, Comment and Availability of Documents 

(i) Upon completion of the preliminary decision the APCO shall 
provide for public review and comment in the same manner and 
using the same procedures as set forth in District Rule 1302(D)(3).  

(ii) Such public notice and comment may be combined with any other 
public notice and comment required pursuant to District Rule 
1302. 

 
(d) Public Hearing 

(i) If any person requests a public hearing pursuant to the provisions 
of District Rule 1302(D)(3)(b)(i)f. g. or h. the APCO shall hold a 
public hearing and notify the appropriate agencies and the general 
public using the procedures set forth in District Rule 
1302(D)(3)(a). 

 
(e) Final Action 

(i) Within one (1) year of the notification that the application has been 
deemed complete pursuant to District Rule 1302(B)(2), or after 
such longer time as both the applicant and the APCO may agree in 
writing the APCO shall take final action to issue, issue with 
conditions or decline to issue the final PSD Document. 

(ii) The APCO shall produce a final PSD Document after the 
conclusion of the comment period; the public hearing, if any is 
held; and upon consideration of comments received. 

(iii) The APCO shall provide written notice of the final action to the 
applicant and USEPA. 

(iv) If substantive changes have been made to the preliminary decision 
or PSD Document after the opening of the public comment period 
the APCO shall re-publish a notice of the final PSD determination 
pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 1302(D)(3). 

(v) If substantive changes are made to the preliminary decision or PSD 
Document which are substantial enough to require changes to the 
underlying requirements or which result in a less stringent BACT 
determination then the APCO shall reissue and renotice the 
preliminary decision and draft PSD document pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1302(D).   

(vi) The final PSD Document and all supporting documentation shall 
remain available for public inspection at the offices of the District. 

(vii) The final PSD Document may be combined with a final NSR 
Document produced pursuant to District Rule 1302(D)(4). 

 

348 of 527



 

1700-6 AVAQMD Rule 1700 
PSD 

D2 6/01/2021 

(f) Issuance of ATC(s) and or PTO(s) 

(i) In conjunction with the final action on the PSD Document the 
APCO shall issue ATC(s), or PTO(s) if applicable, for any Permit 
Units associated with a new Major PSD Facility and/or any Permit 
Units modified as a part of the Major PSD Modification  

(ii) The ATC(s) or PTO(s) as issued shall contain all conditions 
regarding construction, operation and other matters as set forth in 
the PSD Document.   

 
 

349 of 527



(Adopted: 10/07/88; Amended: 01/06/89) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1701 1701-1 
General  
D2 6/01/2021 

RULE 1701 
General 

(a)        Purpose 

This regulation sets forth preconstruction review requirements for stationary sources to 
ensure that air quality in clean air areas does not significantly deteriorate while 
maintaining a margin for future industrial growth. 

(b) Applicability 

Effective upon delegation by EPA, this regulation shall apply to preconstruction review 
of stationary sources that emit attainment air contaminants. 

(1) The BACT requirement applies to a net emission increase of a criteria air 
contaminant from a permit unit at any stationary source. 

(2) All of the requirements of this regulation apply, except as exempted in Rule 1704, 
to the following stationary sources: 

(A) A new source or modification at an existing source where the increase in 
potential to emit is  at least 25 or 40 tons of attainment air contaminants 
per year, depending on the source category; or 

(B) A significant emission increase at an existing major stationary source; or 

(C) Any net emission increase at a major stationary source located within 10 
km of a Class I area, if the emission increase would impact the Class I area 
by 1.0 ug/m3, (24-hours average). 

(3) For the purpose of this regulation, a source meeting any of the conditions of 
subparagraph (b)(2) shall be considered a major stationary source with a significant 
increase. 

 
 
 
[SIP:  Submitted as amended 1/6/89 on 3/26/90;  Submitted as adopted 10/7/88 on 2/7/89.]  

350 of 527



 

1701-2 AVAQMD Rule 1701 
General  

D2 6/01/2021 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank. 
 

351 of 527



(Adopted: 10/07/88; Amended: 01/06/89) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1702 1702-1 
Definitions 
D2 6/01/2021 

RULE 1702 
Definitions 

 
 
(a) Attainment Air Contaminant means any air pollutant: 

 
(1) for which there is a national ambient air quality standard which has been 

designated attainment or unclassifiable pursuant to final rulemaking by EPA 
published in the Federal Register; or 

 
(2) regulated under the Clean Air Act and no applicable NAAQS exists. 

 
(b) Baseline Areas 
 
 The areas, as defined in 40 CFR 81.305, if designated as attainment or unclassifiable 

under 107(d)(1)(D) or (E) of the Clean Air Act.  The applicable baseline areas for each 
contaminant are: 

 SO2 - Orange County, South Coast Air Basin Portion of Los Angeles County, 
SCAB Portion of San Bernardino County, SCAB Portion of Riverside 
County, Southeast Desert Air Basin excluding Imperial and Kern 
Counties. 

 Particulate Matter - South Coast Air Basin, Lancaster Quartz Hill Area, Non-
Lancaster Quartz Hill Area of the Southeast Desert Air Basin Portion of 
Los Angeles County, Riverside County (Southeast Desert AQMA 
Portion), Riverside County (Southeast Desert Non-AQMA Portion). 

 ROG, CO, Pb, and NOx - South Coast Air Basin, Los Angeles County (SEDAB 
Portion), Riverside County (Southeast Desert AQMA Portion), Riverside 
County (Non-AQMA Portion). 

 
(c) Baseline Concentration 
 
 The ambient concentration level which exists in the impact area at the time of the 

establishment of the applicable baseline date.  The baseline concentration shall include 
the actual emissions of sources in existence on the applicable baseline date, except major 
stationary sources that commenced construction after January 6, 1975, will not be 
included. 

 
(d) Baseline Date 
 
 The earliest date after August 7, 1977, for each baseline area on which the first complete 

application is submitted or was submitted because of a significant emission increase at a 
major stationary source that located in the baseline area or if the significant emission 
increase had an impact of 1 ug/m3 (annual average) or 5 ug/m3 (24-hour average) on any 
baseline area, the baseline date for that area will be established.  The Executive Officer 
shall publish the applicable baseline date for each criteria air contaminant. 

352 of 527



 

1702-2 AVAQMD Rule 1702 
Definitions  

D2 6/01/2021 

 
(e) Best Available Control Technology (BACT) means the most stringent emission limitation 

or control technique which: 
 
(1) has been achieved in practice for such permit unit category or class of source.  For 

permit units not located at a major stationary source, a specific limitation or 
control technique shall not apply if the owner or operator of the proposed sources 
demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Executive Officer that such limitation or 
control technique is not attainable for that permit unit; or 

 
(2) is contained in any State Implementation Plan (SIP) approved by the 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for such permit unit category or class of 
source. 

 
 A specific limitation or control technique shall not apply if the owner or operator 

of the proposed source demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Executive Officer 
that such limitation or control technique is not presently achievable; or 

 
(3) is any other emission control technique, including process and equipment changes 

of basic and control equipment, found by the Executive Officer to be 
technologically feasible and cost-effective for such class or category of sources or 
for a specific source.  No emissions limitation or control technique, the 
application of which would result in emissions from a new or modified source in 
excess of the amount allowable under applicable new source performance 
standards specified in Regulation IX of these Rules and Regulations or 
promulgated by the EPA pursuant to Section III of the Clean Air Act, may be 
considered BACT. 

 
(f) Class I Areas:  Cucamonga Wilderness, San Gabriel Wilderness, San Gorgonio 

Wilderness, San Jacinto Wilderness, Joshua Tree National Monument, Agua Tibia 
Wilderness and any other Class I area under Part C of the Clean Air Act.  All other areas 
in the District are Class II Areas. 

 
(g) Criteria Air Contaminant means carbon monoxide, sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides, 

particulate matter, reactive organic gases, lead, or any pollutant which has a National 
Ambient Air Quality Standard specified in Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations, 
Part 50. 

 
(h) Federal Land Manager 
 With respect to any lands in the United States, the Secretary of the department with 

authority over such lands. 
 
(i) Fugitive Emission means those quantifiable emissions of air contaminants released 

directly to the atmosphere which do not pass through a stack, vent, chimney, or other 
functionally equivalent opening. 

 

353 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1702 1702-3 
Definitions 
D2 6/01/2021 

(j) Good Engineering Practice (GEP) means, with respect to stack heights, the height 
necessary to ensure that emissions from the stack do not result in excessive 
concentrations of any air pollutant in the immediate vicinity of the source.  For the 
purposes of this regulation, such height shall not exceed two and one-half times the 
height of such source, and shall not be greater than 65 meters (213 ft), unless the owner 
or operator of the source demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Executive Officer that a 
greater height is necessary. 

 
(k) Impact Area means a circular area, the radius of which is equal to the greatest distance to 

which approved dispersion modeling shows the proposed emissions from a new major 
stationary source or major modification would have an air quality impact equal to or 
greater than 1 ug/m3 (annual average, or 5 ug/m3 (24-hour average). 

 
(l) Major Modification means any physical change in the method of operation of a major 

stationary source that would result in a significant emission increase. 
 
(m) Major Stationary Source means: 

 
(1)  one of the following source categories: 
 

 Fossil fuel-fired steam electric plants of more than 250 million BTU/hr input, 
coal cleaning plants (with thermal dryers), Kraft pulp mills, Portland cement 
plants, Primary zinc smelters, Iron and steel mill plants, Primary aluminum 
ore reduction plants, Primary copper smelters, Municipal incinerators capable 
of charging more than 250 tons of refuse per day, Hydrofluoric acid plants, 
Sulfuric acid plants, Nitric acid plants, Petroleum refineries, Lime plants, 
Phosphate rock processing plants, Coke oven batteries, Sulfur recovery 
plants, Carbon black plants (furnace process), Primary lead smelters, Fuel 
conversion plants, Sintering plants, Secondary metal production plants, 
Chemical process plants, Fossil fuel boilers (or combinations thereof) totaling 
more than 250 million BTU/hr heat input, Petroleum storage and transfer 
units with a total storage capacity exceeding 300,000 barrels, Taconite ore 
processing plants, Glass fiber processing plants, and Charcoal production 
plants; which emits or has the potential to emit 25 tons per year or more of 
any contaminant regulated by the Act; or 

 
(2) an unlisted stationary source that emits or has the potential to emit 40 tons per 

year or more of any pollutant regulated by the Act; or 
 
(3) a physical change in a stationary source not otherwise qualifying under paragraph 

(1) or (2) if a modification would constitute a major stationary source by itself. 
 
(n) NAAQS means any National Ambient Air Quality Standard contained in Title 40 of the 

Code of Federal Regulations, Part 50. 
 

354 of 527



 

1702-4 AVAQMD Rule 1702 
Definitions  

D2 6/01/2021 

(o) Permit Unit means any article, machine, equipment, or other contrivance, or combination 
thereof, which may cause the issuance or control the issuance of air contaminants, and 
which: 
 
(1) requires a written permit pursuant to Rules 201 and/or 203, or 
 
(2) is in operation pursuant to the provisions of Rule 219. 

 
(p) Potential to Emit means the maximum capacity of a stationary source to emit a pollutant 

under its physical and operational design.  Any physical or operational limitation on the 
capacity of the source to emit a pollutant, including air pollution control equipment and 
restrictions on hours of operation or on the type or amount of material combusted, stored, 
or processed, shall be treated as part of its design only if the limitation or the effect it 
would have on emissions is required by a permit condition for permits to construct and 
operate issued pursuant to an EPA approved version of this regulation.  Secondary 
emissions do not count in determining the potential to emit of a stationary source. 

 
(q) Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) Increment 
 In areas designated as Class I or II, increases in pollution concentration over the baseline 

concentration shall be limited to the following: 
 

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE INCREASE 
(Micrograms Per Cubic Meter) 

 
POLLUTANT  CLASS I 

Nitrogen Dioxide Annual arithmetic mean 2.5 
Particulate Matter 
 Annual geometric mean 5 
 24-hr maximum 10 
Sulfur Dioxide 
 Annual arithmetic mean 2 
 24-hr maximum 5 
 3-hr maximum 25 

 
POLUTANT CLASS II 

Nitrogen Dioxide Annual arithmetic mean 25 
Particulate Matter 
 Annual arithmetic mean 19 
 24-hour maximum 37 
Sulfur Dioxide 
 Annual arithmetic mean 20 
 24-hr maximum 91 
 3-hr maximum 512 

 

355 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1702 1702-5 
Definitions 
D2 6/01/2021 

(r) Reactive Organic Gases (ROG) means any gaseous chemical compound which contains 
the element carbon; excluding carbon monoxide, carbon dioxide, carbonic acid, 
carbonates and metallic carbides; and excluding methane, 1,1,1-trichloroethane, 
methylene chloride, trifluoromethane, trichlorotrifluoroethane, dichlorodifluoromethane, 
trichlorofluoromethane, chlorodifluoromethane, dichlorotetrafluoroethane, and 
chloropentafluoroethane. 

 
(s) Secondary Emissions means emissions which would occur as a result of the construction 

or operation of a major stationary source or major modification itself.  For the purpose of 
this regulation, secondary emissions must be specific, well defined, quantifiable and 
impact the same general area as the stationary source or modification which causes the 
secondary emissions.  Secondary emissions may include, but are not limited to: 
 
(1) emissions from ships or trains coming to or from the new or modified stationary 

source, and 
 
(2) emissions from any offsite support facility which would not otherwise be 

constructed to increase its emissions as a result of the construction or operation of 
the major stationary source or major modification. 

 
(t) Significant Emission Increase means any attainment air contaminant for which the net 

cumulative emission increase of that air contaminant from a major stationary source is 
greater than the amount specified as follows: 

  Emission Rate 
 Contaminant (Tons/Year) 
 Carbon Monoxide 25 
 Sulfur Dioxide 25 
 Nitrogen Oxides 25 
 Particulate Matter 25 
 PM10 15 
 Reactive Organic Gases 25 
 Lead Compounds 0.6 
 Asbestos 0.007 
 Beryllium 0.0004 
 Mercury 0.1 
 Vinyl Chloride 1.0 
 Fluorides 3 
 Sulfuric Acid Mist 7 
 Hydrogen Sulfide 10 
 Total Reduced Sulfur (including H2S) 10 
 Reduced Sulfur Compounds (including H2S) 10 
 
 or; any emission rate or any net emissions increase associated with a major stationary 

source which would  construct within 10 kilometers of a Class I area, and have an impact 
on such area equal to or greater than 1 ug/m3, (24-hour average). 

 

356 of 527



 

1702-6 AVAQMD Rule 1702 
Definitions  

D2 6/01/2021 

(u)  Stationary Source means any grouping of permit units or other air contaminant-emitting 
activities which are located on one or more contiguous properties within the District, in 
actual physical contact or separated solely by a public roadway or other public right-of-
way, and which are owned or operated by the same person (or by persons under common 
control).  Such above described groupings, if remotely located and connected only by 
land carrying a pipeline, shall not be considered one stationary source. 

 
 
[SIP:  Submitted as amended 1/6/89 on 3/26/90;  Submitted as adopted 10/7/88 on 2/7/89.] 
 
 

357 of 527



(Adopted: 10/07/88) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1703 1703-1 
PSD Analysis 
D2 6/01/2021 

RULE 1703 
PSD Analysis 

 
 
(a) The Executive Officer shall, except as Rule 1704 applies, deny any permits to construct 

unless: 
 

(1) Each permit unit complies with all applicable rules and regulations of the District; 
and 

 
(2) Each permit unit is constructed using BACT for each criteria air contaminant for 

which there is a net emission increase; and 
 
(3) For each significant emission increase of an attainment air contaminant at a major 

stationary source: 
 
(A) The applicant certifies in writing, prior to the issuance of the permit, that 

the subject stationary source shall meet all applicable limitations and 
standards under the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401, et seq.) and all 
applicable emission limitations and standards which are part of the State 
Implementation Plan approved by the Environmental Protection Agency 
or is on a compliance schedule approved by appropriate federal, state, or 
District officials; and 

 
(B) The new source or modification will be constructed using BACT. 
 
(C) The applicant has substantiated by modeling that the proposed source or 

modification, in conjunction with all other applicable emission increases 
or reductions (including secondary emissions) affecting the impact area, 
will not cause or contribute to a violation of: 
 
(i) Any National or State Ambient Air Quality Standard in any air 

quality control region; or 
(ii) Any applicable maximum allowable increase over the baseline 

concentration in any area; and 
 
(D) The applicant conducts an analysis of the ambient air quality in the impact 

area the new or modified stationary source would affect.  The analysis 
shall include one year of continuous ambient air quality monitoring, 
preceding the receipt of a complete application.  The Executive Officer 
may approve a shorter monitoring period, but not less than four months, 
provided that the period of monitoring included the time frame when 
maximum concentrations are expected.  The applicant may rely on 
existing continuous monitoring data collected by the District if approved 
by the Executive Officer. 

358 of 527



 

1703-2 AVAQMD Rule 1703 
PSD Analysis 
D2 6/01/2021 

 
 With respect to any such contaminant for which no National Ambient Air 

Quality Standard exists, the analysis shall contain such air quality 
monitoring data as the Executive Officer determines is necessary to assess 
ambient air quality for that contaminant in any area that the emissions of 
that contaminant would affect; and 

 
(E) The applicant provides an analysis of the impairment to visibility, soil, and 

vegetation that would occur as a result of the new or modified stationary 
source and the air quality impact projected for the baseline area as a result 
of general commercial, residential, industrial, and other growth associated 
with the source; and 

 
(F) The Executive Officer provides a copy of the complete application (within 10 days after 

being deemed complete by the District) to the EPA, the Federal Land Manager for any 
Class I area located within 100 km of the source, and to the federal official charged with 
direct responsibility for management of any lands within the Class I area.  The Executive 
Officer shall also send a copy of the preliminary decision, the Executive Officer's 
analysis, and notice of any action taken to the above agencies.  The analysis shall include 
a determination on the impact on visibility due to the project.  The Federal Land Manager 
of any such lands may demonstrate to the Executive Officer that the emissions from a 
proposed source or modification would have an adverse impact on the air quality-related 
values (including visibility) of those lands, notwithstanding that the change in air quality 
resulting from emissions from such source or modification would not cause or contribute 
to concentrations which would exceed the maximum allowable increases for a Class I 
area.  If the Executive Officer concurs with such demonstration, then he shall deny the 
permit to construct. 

 
 
(b) Procedures 

 
(1) Air Quality Models 

 
(A) All estimates of ambient concentrations required under this paragraph 

shall be based on the applicable air quality models, data bases, and other 
requirements specified in the "Guideline on Air Quality Models," OAQPS 
1.2-080, April 1978, or as revised, shall be used to determine the 
comparability of air quality models. 

 
(B) Where an air quality impact model specified in the "Guideline on Air 

Quality Models" is inappropriate, the model may be modified or another 
model substituted.  Prior written approval of the Executive Officer and the 
EPA Administrator must be obtained for any modification or substitution. 

 
(2) Operations of Monitoring Stations 
 

359 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1703 1703-3 
PSD Analysis 
D2 6/01/2021 

 The owner or operator of a major stationary source or major modification shall 
meet the EPA monitoring requirements of Appendix B to 40 CFR Part 587, 
"Ambient  Air Quality Surveillance," during the operation of monitoring stations 
for purposes of satisfying subparagraph (a)(3)(D) of this rule and paragraph (f) of 
Rule 1713. 

 
(3) Stack Heights 
 
 The degree of emission limitation required for control of any air pollutant under 

this rule shall not be affected in any manner by: 
 
(A) So much of the stack height of any source as exceeds good engineering 

practice; or 
 
(B) Any other dispersion technique. 

 
 This subparagraph shall not apply with respect to stack heights in existence before 

December 31, 1970, or to dispersion techniques implemented before then. 
 
 
[SIP:  Submitted as adopted 10/7/88 on 3/26/90 and 2/7/89] 

360 of 527



 

1703-4 AVAQMD Rule 1703 
PSD Analysis 
D2 6/01/2021 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank. 
 
  

361 of 527



(Adopted: 10/07/88; Amended: 01/06/89) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1704 1704-1 
Exemptions 
D2 6/01/2021 

RULE 1704 
Exemptions 

 
Upon approval by the Executive Officer, an exemption from specified subparagraphs of Rule 
1703 shall be allowed, provided that BACT is utilized, for subject permit units which meet any 
of the following requirements: 
 
 
(a) Rule 1703(a)(3) shall not apply to a major stationary source or major modification if: 

 
(1) The source or modification is used exclusively for providing essential public 

services including but not limited to schools, hospitals, or police and fire-fighting 
facilities. 

 
(2) The modification is air pollution control equipment which is to be constructed 

solely to reduce the issuance of air pollutants. 
 
(3) The change is exclusively a conversion to an alternative fuel or raw material 

provided it is: 
 
(A) By reason of an order under Sections 2(a) and (b) of the Energy Supply 

and Environmental Coordination Act of 1974; or 
 
(B) By reason of a natural gas curtailment plan pursuant to the Federal Power 

Act; or 
 
(C) By reason of an order or rule under the Clean Air Act; or 
 
(D) At a steam generating unit to the extent that the fuel is generated from 

municipal solid waste. 
 
(4) The source or modification is a cogeneration project, resource recovery project, or 

qualifying facility, as defined in California Health and Safety Code Sections 
39019.5, 39019.6, 39047.5, 39050.5, and shall be exempt only to the extent 
required by State law, including Health and Safety Code Sections 42314, 42314.5, 
41605 and 41605.5. 

 
 
(b)  The Executive Officer may exempt a stationary source or modification from Rule 

1703(a)(3)(D) with respect to monitoring for a particular contaminant if the emission 
increase from the new source or net emission increase from the modification would 
cause, in any area, air quality impacts less than the following amounts: 

 
(Micrograms Per Cubic Meter) 
Carbon Monoxide :  8-hr average 575 

362 of 527



 

1704-2 AVAQMD Rule 1704 
Exemptions 

D2 6/01/2021 

Total Suspended Particulate:  24-hr average 10 
Sulfur Dioxide:  24-hr average 13 
Lead:  24-hr average 0.1 
Mercury:  24-hr average 0.25 
Beryllium:  24-hr average 0.0005 
Fluorides:  24-hr average 0.25 
Vinyl Chlorides:  24-hr average 15 
Total Reduced Sulfur:  1-hr average 10 
Hydrogen Sulfide:  1-hr average 0.04 
Reduced Sulfur Compounds:  1-hr average 10 
Nitrogen Dioxide:  annual average 14 

 
 
 
[SIP:  Submitted as amended 1/6/89 on 3/26/90;  Submitted as adopted 10/7/88 on 2/7/89.] 
 
 

363 of 527



(Adopted: 10/07/88; Amended: 01/06/89) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1706 1706-1 
Emission Calculations 
D2 6/01/2021 

RULE 1706 
Emission Calculations 

 
This rule shall be used as the basis for calculating applicability to Regulation XVII as delineated 
in Rule 1703(a). 
 
 
(a) Accumulation of Emissions 

 
(1) Emission increases and decreases for each attainment air contaminant which 

occur at a stationary source including all emission increases or decreases directly 
associated with the subject permit units or source, shall be calculated pursuant to 
paragraph (c) of this rule in determining a net emission increase. 

 
(2) For each major stationary source: 

 
(A) The net balance of emissions increases or decreases are those emissions 

occurring from October 5, 1979 to the present, or from the establishment 
of an applicable attainment air contaminant to the present, whichever time 
period is less.  Emissions increases or decreases shall be calculated 
pursuant to paragraph (c) of this rule, and shall be the basis for the 
determination of a significant emission increase pursuant to Rule 1703. 

 
(B) Emission decreases that occur at another stationary source shall not be 

used to offset emission increases in determining if there has been a 
significant increase in emissions. 

 
(3) Emission increases or decreases described in subparagraphs (a)(1) and (a)(2) are 

those associated with a permit to operate or a permit to construct, including 
quantifiable fugitive emissions, directly associated with the affected permit unit. 

 
(4) Emission reductions shall be excluded from the accumulation of emissions 

pursuant to subparagraph (a)(3) when such reductions are: 
 
(A) required to comply with federal or state laws, rules, or regulations; or 
 
(B) required by orders of Courts or Boards with jurisdiction to require such 

emission reductions; or 
 
(C) included in District rules and regulations, or in any Control Measure in a 

Board approved Air Quality Management Plan. 
 

(5) The following mobile source emission increases or decreases directly associated with the 
subject permit units shall be accumulated: 

 

364 of 527



 

1706-2 AVAQMD Rule 1706 
Emission Calculations 

D2 6/01/2021 

(A) all emissions from ships during the loading or unloading of cargo and 
while at berth where the cargo is loaded or unloaded, and 

 
(B) non-propulsion ship emissions within Coastal Waters under District 

jurisdiction. 
 
(6) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this regulation, emission increases and 

reductions resulting from crude oil and gas production in Southern California 
Coastal Waters and transport of such crude oil and gas in Southern California 
Coastal Waters shall be included in emission increases or reductions associated 
with new or modified stationary sources that are directly related to the crude oil 
and gas production or transportation and are under the same ownership or 
entitlement to use as the crude oil or gas production facilities.  Such emission 
increases or reductions shall be accumulated as follows: 
 
(A) When applications are submitted for permits to construct or modify 

stationary sources, any emission increases or reductions which have 
occurred since the submittal date of previous applications to construct, and 
which emission increases or reductions are associated with activities listed 
above, shall be accumulated or accounted for with those of the stationary 
source for all purposes of this regulation. 

 
(B) The provisions of this subparagraph shall not apply to emission increases 

which have occurred prior to October 8, 1976 and shall not apply where 
the applicant demonstrates to the Executive Officer by meteorological or 
modeling data that emissions from the crude oil or gas production or 
transportation will not measurably increase concentrations of any air 
contaminant in any part of the District. 

 
(b) Adjustments to Calculated Emissions 
 
 If, in calculating emission increase, and decreases, it is determined that violations of 

district, state or federal laws, rules, regulations, or orders would occur under the 
conditions specified in paragraph (c), the emissions shall be calculated on the basis of the 
maximum emission from the source when operating in compliance.  The provisions of 
this subparagraph shall not apply to ambient air quality standards. 

 
(c) Calculation of Emissions for Threshold Determination 
 
 This paragraph provides the method for calculating the emission increases and reductions 

associated with a stationary source, as described in paragraph (a). 
 

(1) Emission increases or reductions from permit units at a stationary source shall be 
calculated as follows: 

 

365 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 1706 1706-3 
Emission Calculations 
D2 6/01/2021 

(A) The emissions for new permit units and the new emissions for modified or 
relocated permit units shall be calculated from permit conditions for permits to 
construct and operate issued pursuant to an EPA approved version of this 
regulation which directly limit the emissions or, when no such conditions are 
imposed, from: 

 
(i) the maximum rated capacity; and 
(ii) twenty-four hours of operation per day; and 
(iii) the actual materials processed; and 

 
(B) The emissions before modification, relocation, or removal from service 

shall be calculated from: 
 
(i) the sum of actual emissions, as determined from company records, 

which have occurred during the two-year period immediately 
preceding date of permit application, except annual emission 
declarations pursuant to Rule 301 may be used if less than the 
actual emissions as determined above; and 

(ii) the total emissions in those two years shall be calculated on an 
annual basis. 

 
(2) Emission reductions appropriate to the air pollution reduction equipment or 

process shall be used in the calculations of subparagraph (c)(1) if required for 
permits to construct and operate issued pursuant to an EPA approved version of 
this regulation. 

 
(3) Emission increases and reductions from mobile and other sources shall be 

determined from records or other information approved by the Executive Officer, 
sufficient to show actual emissions calculated as a daily emission, using the 
calculation methods of subparagraph (c)(1). 

 
(4) Notwithstanding the other provisions of paragraph (c) of this rule, eligible emission 

reductions for long lead-time projects shall include any real excess reductions which 
result through enforceable changes in operating conditions between the time a Permit to 
construct is issued and the time a Permit to Operate is issued.  For the purpose of 
calculating such reductions, the period immediately preceding the actual date of reduction 
and the eligibility criteria in effect at that time shall be used. 

 
[SIP:  Submitted as amended 1/6/89 on 3/26/90; Submitted as adopted 10/7/88 on 2/7/89.] 

366 of 527



 

1706-4 AVAQMD Rule 1706 
Emission Calculations 

D2 6/01/2021 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank. 
 
 

367 of 527



(Adopted: 10/07/88; Amended: 01/06/89) 
 

AVAQMD Rule 1710 1710-1 
Analysis, Notice, And Reporting 
D2 6/01/2021 

RULE 1710 
Analysis, Notice, And Reporting 

 
 
(a) The Executive Officer shall notify all applicants within 30 days as to the completeness of 

the application or any deficiency in the application or information submitted.  In the 
event of such a deficiency, the date of receipt of the application shall be the date on 
which the Executive Officer received all required information. 

 
 
(b) For major stationary sources subject to Rule 1703 (a)(3), within 180 days after receipt of 

a complete application, the Executive Officer shall: 
 
(1) Make a preliminary determination whether construction shall be approved, 

approved with conditions, or disapproved; 
 
(2) Make available for public review a copy of materials the applicant submitted, a 

copy of the preliminary determination, and a copy or summary of other materials, 
if any, considered in making the preliminary determination.  The confidentiality 
of trade secrets shall be considered in accordance with Section 6254.7 of the 
Government Code; 

 
(3) Notify the public, by advertisement in a newspaper of general circulation in the 

District, of the application, the preliminary determination, the degree of increment 
consumption that is expected from the source or modification, whether an 
alternative to an EPA approved model was used, and of the opportunity for 
comment at a public hearing.  The applicant shall be responsible for the 
distribution of the public notice to each address within a 1/4-mile radius of the 
project or such other greater area as determined appropriate by the Executive 
Officer.  The applicant shall provide verification to the Executive Officer that the 
public notice has been distributed as required by this Section.  The notice shall 
provide 30 days from date of publication for the public to submit written 
comments; 

 
(4) Send a copy of the notice of public comment to the applicant, the EPA Administrator, 

and to officials and agencies having cognizance over the location where the proposed 
construction would occur as follows:  any other state or local air pollution control 
agencies, the chief executives of the city and county where the source would be located, 
any comprehensive regional land use planning agency, and any State or Federal Land 
Manager, or Indian Governing body whose lands may be affected by emissions from the 
source or modification; 
 

368 of 527



 

1710-2 AVAQMD Rule 1710 
Analysis, Notice, And Reporting 

D2 6/01/2021 

(5) Provide opportunity for a public hearing for interested persons to appear and 
submit written or oral comments on the air quality impact of the source, 
alternatives to it, the control technology required, and other appropriate 
considerations; 

 
(6) Consider all written comments submitted within a time specified in the notice of 

public comment and all comments received at any public hearing(s) in making a 
final decision on the approvability of the application.  The Executive Officer shall 
make all comments available for public inspection in the same locations where the 
Executive Officer made available preconstruction information relating to the 
proposed source or modification. 

 
(7) Make a final determination whether construction should be approved, approved 

with conditions, or disapproved; and 
 
(8) Notify the applicant in writing of the final determination and make such 

notification available for public inspection at the same location where the 
Executive Officer made available preconstruction information and public 
comments relating to the source. 

 
 
[SIP:  Submitted as amended 1/6/89 on 3/26/90; Submitted as adopted 10/7/88 on 2/7/89.] 
 
 

369 of 527



 

AVAQMD Regulation XVII Reg.XVII App-1 
Appendix 
D2 6/01/2021 

REGULATION XVII 
Appendix 

 
 
 
 
 Baseline Area Baseline Date for SO2 
South Coast Air Basin portion of Los Angeles County June 27, 1979 
Southeast Desert Air Basin August 17, 1981 
Orange County April 22, 1982 
South Coast Air Basin portion of Riverside County Not Established 
South Coast Air Basin portion of San Bernardino County Not Established 
 

370 of 527



 

Reg.XVII App-2 AVAQMD Regulation XVIIQM 
Appendix 

D2 6/01/2021 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank. 
 

371 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII B-1 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Appendix “B” 
Public Notice Documents 

 
 
1. Proof of Publication – Antelope Valley Press 5/11/2021 
 
 

372 of 527



 

B-2 AVAQMD Reg. XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
  

373 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII B-3 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

  

374 of 527



 

B-4 AVAQMD Reg. XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 

375 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII C-1 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Appendix “C” 
Public Comments and Responses 

 
 
See Appendix G for comments received after 7/10/2021. 

376 of 527



 

C-2 AVAQMD Reg. XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
  

377 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII D-1 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Appendix “D” 
California Environmental Quality Act 

Documentation 
 
 
1. Notice of Exemption – County of Los Angeles 
 

378 of 527



 

D-2 AVAQMD Reg. XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
  

379 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII D-3 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
 
TO: Los Angeles County Clerk 

12400 E. Imperial Hwy, #1001 
Norwalk, CA 90650 

FROM: Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District 
43301 Division Street, Suite 206 
Lancaster, CA 93535-4649 

 
PROJECT TITLE:  Amendment of Regulation XIII – New Source Review, amendment of 
Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and conforming changes to Rule 
1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants 
 
PROJECT LOCATION – SPECIFIC:  Los Angeles County portion of the Mojave Desert Air 
Basin. 
 
PROJECT LOCATION – COUNTY:  Los Angeles County 
 
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT:  The above rules are proposed for amendment to clarify and 
conform language to current District practices.  Basis applicability threshold values remain 
unchanged.  Substantive amendments include addition of definitions, addition of Stack Height 
analysis, addition of 30 day notice period for minor NSR actions, bifurcation of calculation 
methods into two distinct calculations (applicability and offset amounts), removal of current 
unused and unusable provisions, and shift of Regulation XVII to an adoption by reference 
format. 
 
NAME OF PUBLIC AGENCY APPROVING PROJECT:  Antelope Valley AQMD 
 
NAME OF PERSON OR AGENCY CARRYING OUT PROJECT:  Antelope Valley 
AQMD 
 
EXEMPT STATUS (CHECK ONE) 
 Ministerial (Pub. Res. Code §21080(b)(1); 14 Cal Code Reg. §15268) 
 Emergency Project (Pub. Res. Code §21080(b)(4); 14 Cal Code Reg. §15269(b)) 
     X    Categorical Exemption – Class 8 (14 Cal Code Reg. §15308) 
 
REASONS WHY PROJECT IS EXEMPT: The proposed amendments are exempt from 
CEQA review because the actions do not result in a change of any thresholds or in the permitting 
status of any class or category of equipment.  In addition, the proposed amendments increase the 
environmental protection in that the result in notice to a wider number of agencies and the 
general public for a greater amount of time prior to permit issuance.   
 
LEAD AGENCY CONTACT PERSON:  Bret Banks              PHONE:  (661) 723-8070 
 
SIGNATURE:  ______________ TITLE:  Executive Director   DATE:  July 20, 2021 
 
DATE RECEIVED FOR FILING: 
 
  

380 of 527



 

D-4 AVAQMD Reg. XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
 

381 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg XIII E-1 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Appendix “E” 
Table of Authorities 

 

Cases 
Alabama Power Co. v Costle, 636 F.2d 323 (D.C. Cir, 1979) ..................................................... 20 
Hall v. EPA 273 F3d 1146 (9th Cir., 2001) .................................................................................. 58 
SCAQMD v EPA 472 F.3d 882 (D.C. Cir., 2006) ....................................................................... 58 
Sierra Club et al. vs. USEPA, 985 F3d 1055 (D.C. Cir., 1/29/2021) ..................................... 57, 81 
State of New York, et. al. v USEPA et al. (413 F3d 3, D.C. Cir 2005) ........................................ 18 

Federal Statutes 
42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq., Federal Clean Air Act §§101 et seq. ..................................................... 1 
42 U.S.C. §§7501 et seq., Federal Clean Air Act §§171 et seq. ................................................... 30 
42 U.S.C. §§7511 et seq., Federal Clean Air Act §§181 et seq. ................................................... 30 
42 U.S.C. §§7513 et seq., Federal Clean Air Act §§188 et seq. ................................................... 30 
42 U.S.C. §§7661 et seq., Federal Clean Air Act §§501 et seq ...................................................... 7 
42 U.S.C. §7410(a)(2)(C), Federal Clean Air Act §110(a)(2)(c) ................................................. 23 
42 U.S.C. §7410(a)(2), Federal Clean Air Act §110(a)(2) ......................................................... 6, 8 
42 U.S.C. §7410(l), Federal Clean Air Act §110(l) ............................................................ 8, 59, 78 
42 U.S.C. §7410, Federal Clean Air Act §110 ............................................................................. 30 
42 U.S.C. §7411, Federal Clean Air Act §111 ............................................................................. 16 
42 U.S.C. §7412(i)(l), Federal Clean Air Act §112(i)(l) ................................................................ 8 
42 U.S.C. §7412, Federal Clean Air Act §112 ............................................................................. 16 
42 U.S.C. §7416, Federal Clean Air Act §116 ....................................................................... 19, 30 
42 U.S.C. §7475(a), Federal Clean Air Act §165(a) .................................................................. 6, 8 
42 U.S.C. §7479(1), Federal Clean Air Act §169(1) .............................................................. 35, 36 
42 U.S.C. §7479, Federal Clean Air Act §169 ............................................................................. 16 
42 U.S.C. §7502(b)(5), Federal Clean Air Act §172(b)(5) ......................................................... 6, 8 
42 U.S.C. §7502(c)(5), Federal Clean Air Act §172(c)(5) ........................................................... 30 
42 U.S.C. §7503(a)(1)(A), Federal Clean Air Act §173(a)(1)(A) .......................................... 30, 73 
42 U.S.C. §7503(a)(2), Federal Clean Air Act §173(a)(2) ........................................................... 30 
42 U.S.C. §7503(c)(1), Federal Clean Air Act §173(c)(1) ........................................................... 48 
42 U.S.C. §7503(c), Federal Clean Air Act §173(c) .................................................................... 30 
42 U.S.C. §7511a(d)(2), Federal Clean Air Act §182(d)(2) ......................................................... 30 
42 U.S.C. §7511a(d), Federal Clean Air Act §182(d) ............................................................ 30, 39 
42 U.S.C. §7511a(e)(1), Federal Clean Air Act §182(e)(1) ......................................................... 44 
42 U.S.C. §7515, Federal Clean Air Act §193 ............................................................................. 59 
42 U.S.C. §7602(j), Federal Clean Air Act §302(j) ................................................................ 35, 36 
42 U.S.C. §7661a(a)(2)(C), Federal Clean Air Act §502(a)(2)(C) ................................................. 8 
42 U.S.C. §7661a(d)(1), Federal Clean Air Act §502(d)(1) ........................................................... 7 

State Statutes 
Former Health & Safety Code §40106(e) (Stats. 1996 Ch. 542, section 1; Repealed by Stats, 

2001 Ch.163)................................................................................................................. 28, 44, 85 
Health & Safety Code §§40725-40728 ......................................................................................... 10 
Health & Safety Code §§41300 et seq. ......................................................................................... 85 
Health & Safety Code §§41400 et seq. ......................................................................................... 85 

382 of 527



 

E-2 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Health & Safety Code §§42300 et seq. ........................................................................................... 6 
Health & Safety Code §§42500 et seq. ......................................................... 6, 9, 18, 19, 57, 59, 78 
Health & Safety Code §39002 ................................................................................................ 16, 31 
Health & Safety Code §39607 ...................................................................................................... 67 
Health & Safety Code §40000 ................................................................................................ 16, 31 
Health & Safety Code §40702 .............................................................................................. 5, 7, 10 
Health & Safety Code §40727 ...................................................................................................... 10 
Health & Safety Code §40727.2 ................................................................................................... 10 
Health & Safety Code §40918(a)(1) ........................................................................... 19, 21, 40, 78 
Health & Safety Code §40920.6 ............................................................................................. 10, 11 
Health & Safety Code §41320(c) ............................................................................................ 28, 44 
Health & Safety Code §42300(a) .................................................................................................... 6 
Health & Safety Code §42301(a) .................................................................................................... 6 
Health & Safety Code §42302.1 ............................................................................................. 27, 84 
Health & Safety Code §42504 ........................................................................................................ 6 
Health & Safety Code §42504(a) .................................................................................................. 18 
Health & Safety Code §42504(b) ................................................................................................. 18 
Public Resources Code §§21000 et seq. ....................................................................................... 19 

Federal Regulations 
40 CFR 124.10 ........................................................................................................................ 21, 27 
40 CFR 49.153(c).......................................................................................................................... 26 
40 CFR 51 Appendix W ................................................................................................... 66, 70, 71 
40 CFR 51.100 ................................................................................................................................ 9 
40 CFR 51.100(gg) ....................................................................................................................... 69 
40 CFR 51.100(hh) ....................................................................................................................... 65 
40 CFR 51.100(ii) ......................................................................................................................... 66 
40 CFR 51.100(jj) ......................................................................................................................... 67 
40 CFR 51.100(kk) ....................................................................................................................... 65 
40 CFR 51.100(s) .......................................................................................................................... 22 
40 CFR 51.118 ................................................................................................ 60, 65, 66, 67, 69, 73 
40 CFR 51.160 et seq. ..................................................................................................................... 8 
40 CFR 51.160(e).......................................................................................................................... 20 
40 CFR 51.160-164 ................................................................................................................. 20, 23 
40 CFR 51.161(b) ................................................................................................................... 21, 27 
40 CFR 51.164 ............................................................................................ 2, 60, 65, 66, 67, 69, 73 
40 CFR 51.165 .............................................................................................................................. 34 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv) ............................................................................................................... 30 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(A)(1)(iii) ............................................................................................... 39 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(A)(2)(v) ................................................................................................ 39 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C) .................................................................................. 25, 31, 63, 66, 68 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(ix) ............................................................................................................... 66 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(x)(A) ........................................................................................................... 22 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(xl) ............................................................................................................... 64 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(xxi) ............................................................................................................. 67 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(xxxvii) ........................................................................................................ 68 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(11) ............................................................................................................. 28, 58 

383 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg XIII E-3 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

40 CFR 51.165(a)(2)(ii)(c)...................................................................................................... 28, 34 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(C)(1-2) ................................................................................................... 73 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(J) ...................................................................................................... 43, 48 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(5)(ii) .......................................................................................................... 57, 58 
40 CFR 51.165(f)(4)(iii) ............................................................................................................... 82 
40 CFR 51.165(k) ......................................................................................................................... 82 
40 CFR 51.165(m)(1)(iii).............................................................................................................. 82 
40 CFR 51.165(s)(2)(iv)(a) ........................................................................................................... 82 
40 CFR 51.166(b)(1)(iii) ............................................................................................................... 16 
40 CFR 51.166(b)(23)(i) ............................................................................................................... 22 
40 CFR 52.21 ............................................................................................................................ 8, 16 
40 CFR 52.21(b)(1) ....................................................................................................................... 16 
40 CFR 52.21(b)(1)(i)(a) .............................................................................................................. 16 
40 CFR 52.21(b)(1)(i)(b) .............................................................................................................. 16 
40 CFR 52.21(b)(1)(iii) ................................................................................................................. 16 
40 CFR 52.21(b)(23) ........................................................................... 16, 21, 24, 40, 41, 42, 69, 74 
40 CFR 52.21(b)(50) ..................................................................................................................... 16 
40 CFR 52.21(k) ........................................................................................................................... 82 
40 CFR 52.220(c)(240)(i)(A)(1) ................................................................................................... 87 
40 CFR 52.220(c)(68)(i) ......................................................................................................... 86, 87 
40 CFR 52.220(c)(70)(i)(A).................................................................................................... 86, 87 
40 CFR 52.220(c)(87)(v)(A) ................................................................................................... 86, 87 
40 CFR 60 ..................................................................................................................................... 64 
40 CFR 61 ..................................................................................................................................... 64 
40 CFR 63 ..................................................................................................................................... 64 
40 CFR 70.7(d)(1)(v) .......................................................................................................... 7, 75, 86 
40 CFR 81, Subpart D ................................................................................................................... 65 
40 CFR 81.305 .......................................................................................................... 6, 9, 13, 30, 67 
40 CFR 81.405 .............................................................................................................................. 65 

Federal Approvals & Supporting Documentation 
45 FR 21271, 4/1/1980 ................................................................................................................. 85 
46 FR 30355, 6/8/1981 ................................................................................................................. 85 
46 FR 5965, 1/21/1981 ................................................................................................................. 85 
47 FR 25013, 6/9/1982 ................................................................................................................. 85 
50 FR 25417, 6/19/1985 ............................................................................................................... 50 
60 FR 45530, 8/21/1995 ............................................................................................................... 20 
61 FR 38250, 7/23/1996 ............................................................................................................... 64 
61 FR 58133, 11/13/1996 ............................................................................................................... 2 
61 FR 64291, 12/4/1996 ................................................................................................... 28, 44, 86 
66 FR 37587, 7/19/2001 ............................................................................................................... 49 
67 FR 80187, 12/31/2002 ....................................................................................................... 18, 45 
69 FR 27827, 5/17/2004 ............................................................................................................... 49 
73 FR 51226, 9/2/2008 ........................................................................................................... 21, 27 
75 FR 26102, 5/11/2010 ............................................................................................................... 49 
76 FR 38748, 7/1/2011 ........................................................................................................... 20, 26 
76 FR 43183, 7/20/2011 ............................................................................................................... 50 

384 of 527



 

E-4 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

78 FR 53270, 8/29/2013 ......................................................................................................... 44, 50 
79 FR 55637, 9/17/2014 ......................................................................................................... 44, 49 
80 FR 20166, 4/15/2015 ........................................................................................................... 6, 13 
80 FR 52236, 8/28/2015 ............................................................................................................... 48 
80 FR 65292, 10/1/2015 ................................................................................................................. 1 
81 FR 50339, 8/1/2016 ................................................................................................................. 48 
81 FR 71613, 10/18/2016 ....................................................................................................... 61, 76 
82 FR 57133, 12/4/2017 ............................................................................................................... 48 
83 FR 23372, 5/21/2018 ............................................................................................................... 48 
83 FR 62998, 12/6/2018 ....................................................................................................... 1, 9, 58 
USEPA TSD, BAAQMD Regulation 2, Rule 1 – Permits, General Requirements, Regulation 2, 

Rule 2 – Permits, New Source Review, 8/19/2015, Docket Number EPA–R09–OAR–2015–
0280..................................................................................................................................... 44, 48 

USEPA TSD, SJVUAPCD Rule 2020, Exemptions, 2201, New and Modified Stationary Source 
Review Rule, 11/15/2011.......................................................................................................... 50 

USEPA TSD, SMAQMD Rule 214, 5/06/2011, Docket #EPA-R09-OAR-2013-0064-002 ........ 20 
USEPA TSD, SMAQMD Rule 214/217, 1/23/2013, Docket #EPA-R09-OAR-2013-0064-002 20, 

26 

State Regulations 
14 Cal Code Regs. §15308............................................................................................................ 12 
17 Cal Code Regs. §60201............................................................................................................ 13 
17 Cal Code Regs. §60208...................................................................................................... 13, 39 
17 Cal Code Regs. §70500(c) ....................................................................................................... 27 
17 Cal Code Regs. §94501(m) ...................................................................................................... 22 
17 Cal Code Regs. §94508(a)(138) .............................................................................................. 22 
17 Cal. Code Regs. §60109........................................................................................................... 85 
17 Cal. Code Regs. §60144........................................................................................................... 85 

Local Rules & Regulations 
AVAQMD Regulation II – Permits, (current) ................................................ 13, 16, 17, 29, 63, 68 
AVAQMD Regulation XIII - New Source Review, (current) ................................................ 20, 30 
AVAQMD Regulation XIII - New Source Review, 3/20/2001 .................................. 22, 30, 32, 86 
AVAQMD Regulation XIV – Mobile Source Offset Programs, (current) ............................. 33, 82 
AVAQMD Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, (current) ... 14, 15, 59, 86, 

87 
AVAQMD Regulation XXX – Title V Permits (current) ........................................... 15, 24, 74, 83 
AVAQMD Rule 1300(B)(1)(a), 3/20/2001 (current) ................................................................... 28 
AVAQMD Rule 1300(B)(1), 3/20/2001 (current) .................................................................. 17, 31 
AVAQMD Rule 1300(B), 3/20/2001 (current) ............................................................................ 13 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(AAA), 3/20/2001 (current) ...................................................................... 29 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(B), 3/20/2001 (current) ............................................................................ 63 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(BB), 3/20/2001 (current) .......................................................................... 17 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(C), 3/20/2001 (current) ............................................................................ 63 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(CCC), 3/20/2001 (current) ....................................................................... 17 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(DD), 3/20/2001 (current) ......................................................................... 65 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(E), 3/20/2001 (current) ............................................................................. 64 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(EE), 3/20/2001 (current) .......................................................................... 66 

385 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg XIII E-5 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

AVAQMD Rule 1301(GG), 3/20/2001 (current) ......................................................................... 29 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(GGG), 3/20/2001 (current) ...................................................................... 22 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(III), 3/20/2001 (current) ........................................................................... 29 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(KK), 3/20/2001 (current) ......................................................................... 36 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(KKK), 3/20/2001 (current) ...................................................................... 68 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(LLL), 3/20/2001 (current) ........................................................................ 29 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(N), 3/20/2001 (current) ............................................................................ 36 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(O), 3/20/2001 (current) ............................................................................ 64 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(QQ)(5), 3/20/2001 (current) ..................................................................... 47 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(SS), 3/20/2001 (current) ........................................................................... 67 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(W), 3/20/2001 (current) ........................................................................... 65 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(WW), 3/20/2001 (current)........................................................................ 68 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(WWW), 3/20/2001 (current) .................................................................... 29 
AVAQMD Rule 1301(ZZZ), 3/20/2001 (current) ........................................................................ 68 
AVAQMD Rule 1302(B)(1)(b)(i)a., 8/15/2006 (current) ............................................................. 61 
AVAQMD Rule 1302(B)(2)(c), 8/15/2006 (current) ................................................................... 71 
AVAQMD Rule 1302(C)(2)(b), 8/15/2006 (current) ................................................................... 72 
AVAQMD Rule 1302(C)(4), 8/15/2006 (current) .................................................................. 19, 73 
AVAQMD Rule 1302(C)(5), 8/15/2006 (current) .................................................................. 72, 73 
AVAQMD Rule 1302(D)(3)(a)(ii), 8/15/2006 (current) .............................................................. 76 
AVAQMD Rule 1302(D)(3)(d), 8/15/2006 (current) ................................................................... 77 
AVAQMD Rule 1302, 3/20/2001 ................................................................................................. 23 
AVAQMD Rule 1302, 8/15/2006 (current) ................................................................ 13, 15, 19, 23 
AVAQMD Rule 1303(A)(1), 3/20/2001 (current) .......................................... 21, 35, 36, 43, 58, 61 
AVAQMD Rule 1303(A)(2), 3/20/2001 (current) .......................................... 21, 35, 36, 43, 58, 61 
AVAQMD Rule 1303(A)(3), 3/20/2001 (current) .............................. 21, 24, 29, 35, 36, 37, 47, 58 
AVAQMD Rule 1303(A)(4), 3/20/2001 (current) .................................................................. 37, 45 
AVAQMD Rule 1303(A), 3/20/2001 (current) ............................................................................ 19 
AVAQMD Rule 1303(B)(1), 3/20/2001 (current) ............................................................ 21, 24, 36 
AVAQMD Rule 1303(B)(3), 3/20/2001 (current) .................................................................. 29, 58 
AVAQMD Rule 1303(B), 3/20/2001 (current) ...................................................................... 19, 25 
AVAQMD Rule 1304(B)(1)(a), 3/20/2001 (current) ................................................................... 29 
AVAQMD Rule 1304(B)(1), 3/20/2001 (current) .................................................................. 29, 45 
AVAQMD Rule 1304(D)(3), 3/20/2001 (current) ........................................................................ 29 
AVAQMD Rule 1304(D)(4)(a)(iii), 3/20/2001 (current) ............................................................. 29 
AVAQMD Rule 1304(D), 3/20/2001 (current) ............................................................................ 33 
AVAQMD Rule 1304(E)(1)(b), 3/20/2001 (current) ................................................................... 80 
AVAQMD Rule 1304(E)(2) (ii), 3/20/2001 (current) .................................................................. 45 
AVAQMD Rule 1304(E)(2) (iii), 3/20/2001 (current) ................................................................. 45 
AVAQMD Rule 1304(E)(2)(a)(iv), 3/20/2001 (current) ........................................................ 34, 80 
AVAQMD Rule 1304(E)(2)(a)(iv), 8/15/2006 (current) .............................................................. 81 
AVAQMD Rule 1304(E)(2)(i), 3/20/2001 (current) .................................................................... 45 
AVAQMD Rule 1304(E)(2)(iv), 3/20/2001 (current) .................................................................. 45 
AVAQMD Rule 1305(A)(2)(b)(ii)c., 8/15/2006 (current) ........................................................... 29 
AVAQMD Rule 1305(A)(2), 8/15/2006 (current) ........................................................................ 81 
AVAQMD Rule 1305(B)(1)(b), 8/15/2006 (current) ................................................................... 82 

386 of 527



 

E-6 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

AVAQMD Rule 1305(B)(2)(a)(ii)c, 8/15/2006 (current) ....................................................... 29, 32 
AVAQMD Rule 1305(B)(2)(a), 8/15/2006 (current) ................................................................... 82 
AVAQMD Rule 1305(B)(2)(b), 8/15/2006 (current) ................................................................... 46 
AVAQMD Rule 1305(B)(2), 8/15/2006 (current) ........................................................................ 80 
AVAQMD Rule 1305(B)(3)(a-c), 8/15/2006 (current) ................................................................ 82 
AVAQMD Rule 1305(B)(3)(a-d), 8/15/2006 (current) ................................................................ 34 
AVAQMD Rule 1305(B)(6), 8/15/2006 (current) .................................................................. 30, 58 
AVAQMD Rule 1305(C)(1), 8/15/2006 (current) ........................................................................ 58 
AVAQMD Rule 1305(D), 8/15/2006 (current) ............................................................................ 82 
AVAQMD Rule 1305(E)(2), 8/15/2006 (current) ........................................................................ 80 
AVAQMD Rule 1305(E)(3)(a)(iv), 8/15/2006 (current) .............................................................. 29 
AVAQMD Rule 1305(E), 8/15/2006 (current) ............................................................................. 82 
AVAQMD Rule 1309(C)(3), 3/20/2001 (current) ........................................................................ 33 
AVAQMD Rule 1309(D)(3)(c), 3/20/2001 (current) ................................................................... 33 
AVAQMD Rule 1309, 3/20/2001 (current) .................................................................................. 32 
AVAQMD Rule 1310, 8/15/2006 (current) .......................................................... 18, 19, 20, 23, 71 
AVAQMD Rule 1401, 8/15/2006 (current) ...................................................................... 14, 15, 26 
AVAQMD Rule 201, 8/19/1977 (current) ............................................................ 16, 17, 18, 31, 62 
AVAQMD Rule 202, 5/7/1976 (current) ...................................................................................... 16 
AVAQMD Rule 203, 8/19/1997 (current) ............................................................ 16, 17, 18, 31, 62 
AVAQMD Rule 204, 8/19/1997 (current) .................................................................................... 16 
AVAQMD Rule 205, 8/19/1997 (current) .................................................................................... 16 
AVAQMD Rule 206, 8/19/1997 (current) .............................................................................. 16, 63 
AVAQMD Rule 207, 1/9/1976 (current) ...................................................................................... 16 
AVAQMD Rule 208, 5/17/2005 (current) .................................................................................... 16 
AVAQMD Rule 209, 1/5/1990 (current) ................................................................................ 16, 63 
AVAQMD Rule 210, 5/17/2005 (current) .................................................................................... 16 
AVAQMD Rule 212(G)(2), 5/17/2005 (current).......................................................................... 27 
AVAQMD Rule 212(G)(3), 5/17/2005 (current).......................................................................... 27 
AVAQMD Rule 212(G)(4), 5/17/2005 (current).......................................................................... 21 
AVAQMD Rule 212(G), 5/17/2005 (current) ........................................................................ 21, 27 
AVAQMD Rule 212, 5/17/2005 (current) ........................................................................ 16, 21, 27 
AVAQMD Rule 214, 8/19/1997 (current) .................................................................................... 16 
AVAQMD Rule 215, 8/19/1997 (current) .................................................................................... 16 
AVAQMD Rule 216, 8/19/1997 (current) .................................................................................... 16 
AVAQMD Rule 217, 8/19/1997 (current) .................................................................................... 16 
AVAQMD Rule 218, 2/17/2012 (current) .................................................................................... 16 
AVAQMD Rule 218.1, 2/17/2012 (current) ................................................................................. 16 
AVAQMD Rule 219(B)(4), 10/18/2016 (current) ...................................................... 17, 21, 32, 78 
AVAQMD Rule 219(B)(5), 10/18/2016 (current) ...................................................... 17, 29, 31, 63 
AVAQMD Rule 219(E)(1), 10/18/2016 (current) ........................................................................ 16 
AVAQMD Rule 220, 5/17/2005 (current) .................................................................................... 16 
AVAQMD Rule 225, 1/18/2011 (current) .................................................................................... 16 
AVAQMD Rule 226, 1/18/2011 (current) .................................................................................... 16 
AVAQMD Rule 3001(BB), 4/19/2005 (current) .......................................................................... 24 
AVAQMD Rule 3001(T)(3), 4/19/2005 (current) ........................................................................ 24 

387 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg XIII E-7 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

BAAQMD, Regulation 2 – New Source Review, 12/19/2012 ......................................... 43, 44, 48 
BAAQMD, Rule 2-2-206.2, 12/19/2012 ...................................................................................... 48 
BAAQMD, Rule 2-2-412, 12/19/2012 ......................................................................................... 48 
BAAQMD, Rule 2-2-412, 12/6/2017 ........................................................................................... 49 
BAAQMD, Rule 2-2-415, 2/6/2017 ............................................................................................. 49 
Butte County APCD, Rule 432, 4/24/2014 ................................................................................... 70 
Butte County APCD, Rule 433, 4/24/2014 ................................................................................... 33 
Feather River AQMD, Rule 10.9, 10/6/2014 ................................................................................ 33 
MDAQMD Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 3/25/1996 .................................................... 2 
MDAQMD Regulation XIII - New Source Review, 8/22/2016 ............................................... 2, 20 
MDAQMD Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 8/28/2006 .................................................... 2 
MDAQMD Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 9/24/2001 .................................................... 2 
Placer County APCD, Rule 515, 2/19/2015 ................................................................................. 33 
Placer County APCD, Rule 516, 12/19/2009 ............................................................................... 33 
San Diego County APCD, Rule 27.1, 8/26/2008.......................................................................... 33 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 10/5/1979 ......................................................................................... 85 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 12/2/1988 ......................................................................................... 86 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 12/7/1995 ......................................................................................... 86 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 5/10/1996 ......................................................................................... 86 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 5/3/1991 ........................................................................................... 86 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 6/14/1996 ............................................................................. 28, 44, 86 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 6/28/1990 ......................................................................................... 86 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 7/11/1980 ......................................................................................... 86 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 7/12/1985 ......................................................................................... 86 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 8/1/1986 ........................................................................................... 86 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 9/10/1982 ......................................................................................... 86 
SCAQMD Regulation XVI, 5/9/1997........................................................................................... 29 
SCAQMD Regulation XVII, 10/7/1988 ................................................................................. 59, 86 
SCAQMD Rule 1301(b), 12/7/1995 ............................................................................................. 29 
SCAQMD Rule 1301, 12/7/1995 .................................................................................................. 28 
SCAQMD Rule 1302(gg), 12/7/1995 ........................................................................................... 29 
SCAQMD Rule 1302, 12/7/1995 .................................................................................................. 28 
SCAQMD Rule 1303, 5/10/1996 .................................................................................................. 28 
SCAQMD Rule 1304, 6/14/1996 ............................................................................................ 28, 29 
SCAQMD Rule 1306(d)(2), 6/14/1996 ........................................................................................ 45 
SCAQMD Rule 1306, 6/14/1996 ............................................................................................ 28, 29 
SCAQMD Rule 1309(g), 12/7/1995 ............................................................................................. 30 
SCAQMD Rule 1309, 12/7/1995 ............................................................................................ 28, 29 
SCAQMD Rule 1309.1, 12/7/1995 ............................................................................................... 28 
SCAQMD Rule 1310, 12/7/1995 .................................................................................................. 28 
SCAQMD Rule 1313, 12/7/1995 .................................................................................................. 28 
SCAQMD Rule 219, 8/12/1994 .................................................................................................... 29 
SJVUAPCD, Rule 2201, 12/19/2002 ........................................................................................... 49 
SJVUAPCD, Rule 2201, 12/8/2008 ............................................................................................. 49 
SJVUAPCD, Rule 2201, 4/21/2011 ....................................................................................... 44, 49 
SJVUAPCD, Rule 2201, 8/15/2019 ............................................................................................. 49 

388 of 527



 

E-8 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

SJVUAPCD, Rule 2201, 8/20/1998 ............................................................................................. 49 
SMAQMD, Rule 202, 11/20/1984 ................................................................................................ 50 
SMAQMD, Rule 214, 7/23/2012 ............................................................................................ 44, 50 
SMAQMD, Rule 214:225, 7/23/2012 ........................................................................................... 50 
SMAQMD, Rule 214:225.1, 7/23/2012 ........................................................................................ 50 
SMAQMD, Rule 214:225.2, 7/23/2012 ........................................................................................ 50 
SMAQMD, Rule 214:225.3(a), 7/23/2012 ................................................................................... 50 
SMAQMD, Rule 214:225.3(b), 7/23/2012 ................................................................................... 50 
SMAQMD, Rule 214:411, 7/23/2012 ........................................................................................... 50 
Yolo-Solano APCD, Rule 3.21, 12/10/2008 ................................................................................. 33 

Local Approvals & Supporting Documentation 
AVAQMD, 70 ppb O3 Evaluation Final Staff Report, 7/21/2020 ................................................. 2 
AVAQMD, Agenda Item 11, 3/20/2001....................................................................................... 22 
AVAQMD, Draft Staff Report Amendment of Rule 219 – Equipment Not Requiring a Permit for 

amendment on 6/15/2021 .............................................................................................. 17, 31, 63 
AVAQMD, Final Staff Report Amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 

3/20/2001 ............................................................................................................................ 22, 45 
AVAQMD, Governing Board Agenda Item #11, 7/21/2020 .......................................................... 2 
AVAQMD, Resolution 01-03 – Reg XIII, 3/20/2001 .................................................................. 22 
AVAQMD, Resolution 20-08, 7/21/2020 ....................................................................................... 2 
AVAQMD, Staff Report Proposed Amendments to Regulation XIII (Specifically Rules 1302 – 

Procedure and 1305 – Emissions Offsets) and Adoption of New Rule 1310 – Federal Major 
Facilities and Federal Major Modifications for adoption on 8/15/2006 ............................. 19, 45 

BAAQMD Item 6 - Continuation of the Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of Proposed 
Amendments to Air District New Source Review (NSR) and Title V permitting regulations 
(Regulations 2, Rule 1, 2, 4 and 6) and Adoption of a California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Environmental Impact Report (EIR), 12/19/2012 ...................................................... 48 

BAAQMD Staff Report, Proposed Technical and Administrative Amendments to New Source 
Review and Title V Permit Programs, 10/2017 ........................................................................ 49 

MDAQMD Final Staff Report, Amendements to Regulation XIII - New Source Review, Rule 
1600 - Prevention of Significant Deterioration and Rescission of Rule 1310 - Federal Major 
Facilities and Major Modifications, 3/22/2021 ........................................................................... 2 

MDAQMD Governing Board Agenda Item #12, 3/22/2021 .......................................................... 2 
MDAQMD Resolution 21-03, 3/22/2021 ....................................................................................... 2 

Federal Guidance 
USEPA Document EPA-452/R-01-01, Improving Air Quality with Economic Incentive 

Programs, January 2001 ............................................................................................................ 33 
USEPA Letter, J. Seitz, Director, EPA Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards, to C. 

Williams, Commissioner, Minnesota Pollution Control Agency, 12/13/1995 ......................... 64 
USEPA Memo (Draft for Public Review and Comment), A. Idsal, Principal Deputy Assistant 

Administrator, Interpretation of “Begin Actual Construction” under the New Source Review 
Preconstruction Permitting Regulations, 3/25/2020 ................................................................. 25 

USEPA Memo, D. Howekamp, Director, Air and Toxics Division, EPA Region IX, to all Region 
IX Air Agency Directors and NSR Contacts, Preconstruction Review and Cons, 11/4/1993 . 64 

389 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg XIII E-9 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

USEPA Memo, E. Reich, Director, U.S. EPA Division of Stationary Source Compliance, to R. 
DeSpain, Chief, Air Programs Branch, EPA Region VIII, Construction Activities Prior to 
Issuance of a PSD Permit with Respect to "Begin Actual Construction," 3/28/1986 .............. 64 

USEPA Memo, E. Reich, Director, U.S. EPA Division of Stationary Source Enforcement, to 
U.S. EPA Enforcement Division Directors, Regions I-X, Interpretation of "Constructed" as it 
Applies to Activities Undertaken Prior to Issuance of a PSD Permit, 12/18/1978................... 64 

USEPA Memo, J. McCabe, Principal Deputy Assistant Administrator, Office of Air and 
Radiation, Minor New Source Review Program Public Notice Requirements under 40 CFR 
51.161(b)(3), 4/17/2012 ...................................................................................................... 23, 25 

USEPA Memo, J. Rasnic, Director, U.S. EPA Stationary Source Compliance, Office of Air 
Quality Planning and Standards, to B. Turlinski, Chief, Air Enforcement Branch, EPA Region 
III, Construction Activities at Georgia Pacific, 5/13/1993 ....................................................... 64 

USEPA Memo, J. Seitz, Director Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards to D. 
Howekamp, Director Region IX, Air and Toxics Division, Response to Request for Guidance 
on Use of Pre-1990 ERC's and Adjusting for RACT at Time of Use, 8/26/1994 .................... 73 

State Guidance 
CARB, Advisory #299, Air District New Source Review Rules Regarding Electronic Notice, 

06/2018 ............................................................................................................................... 23, 59 

Other Authorities 
AVAQMD Governing Board Policy 13-01 – Requests for Inspection and/or Copying Public 

Records, 3/19/2003 ................................................................................................................... 77 
AVAQMD Webpage, Permitting Public Notices, https://avaqmd.ca.gov/public-notices-

advisories .................................................................................................................................. 75 
AVAQMD, 2017 AV Actual Emissions Noticing Breakdown Adjusted.xlsx ............................. 25 
CARB Webpage, Definitions of VOC and ROG (Revised January 2009) at 

https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/ei/speciate/voc_rog_dfn_1_09.pdf ...................................................... 22 
CARB Webpage, Emissions Reductions Offset Transaction Cost Summary Report, May 2020, 

https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/new-source-review-emission-reduction-credit-offsets ........................ 47 
CARB, Review of the SJVUAPCD Emission Reduction Credit System, June 2020................... 50 
MDAQMD Governing Board Policy 93-2, 2/25/2019 ................................................................. 77 
MDAQMD Standard Practice 4-5 Records Retention, 12/10/2019 ............................................. 77 
USEPA Email, K. Nguyen to K. Nowak – MDAQMD NSR Logistics Call, 2/28/2020 20, 33, 34, 

37, 79 
USEPA Email, L. Yannayon to K. Nowak, Re After Action Report, 3/25/2020, Attached file 

1301 DD 2020 23 Mar + EPA. ........................................................................................... 67, 68 
USEPA Email, L. Yannayon to K. Nowak, Re: Notices in 1302, 8/4/2020 , Attached File 1302 

DD4 2020 13 Jul + EPA ........................................................................................................... 72 
USEPA Letter L. Beckham to B. Poiriez – MDAQMD New Source Review Program, 

12/19/2019 .......................................................................................... 2, 9, 27, 31, 43, 57, 58, 80 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.1.a .................................................................... 31, 63 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.1.a. ............................................................. 17, 27, 65 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.1.b. ............................................................. 66, 70, 71 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.2.a. ....................................................... 20, 23, 76, 77 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.2.b. ....................................................... 20, 23, 74, 77 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.1.3.a. ............................... 65, 66, 67, 69, 70, 73, 74, 77 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.1.a. ............................................................. 65, 66, 68 

390 of 527



 

E-10 AVAQMD Reg XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.1.b. ......................................................................... 66 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.1.c. ......................................................................... 65 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.1.d. ......................................................................... 68 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.1.e. ......................................................................... 66 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.a.1. .............................................. 28, 31, 65, 68, 69 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.a.2. .......................................................... 28, 31, 80 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.a.3. ................................................................ 28, 33 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.a.4. ................................................................ 28, 31 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.a.5. ...................................................................... 73 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.b. ................................................................... 28, 34 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.c. ............................................................... 2, 28, 43 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.d. ............................................................. 28, 57, 79 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.2.2.e. ............................................................. 28, 58, 82 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.1. .................................. 71, 72, 73, 74, 75, 79, 82, 83 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.2. .................................................... 17, 27, 31, 63, 68 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 1.3.3. ............................................................................ 74 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 2.1. ....................................................... 64, 66, 71, 75, 77 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 3.1. ............................................................................... 68 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 3.3. ............................................................. 67, 69, 73, 77 
USEPA Letter of 12/19/2019, Comment 3.4. ............................................................................... 70 
USEPA Letter, D. Jordan Director Air Division USEPA Region IX to R. Corey, Executive 

Officer, CARB, 4/1/2015 .................................................................................................... 28, 45 
USEPA Letter, G. Rios to B. Poiriez, 2019 Certification of SIP Approved Nonattainment New 

Source Review, 10/10/2019 ........................................................................................................ 2 
USEPA Letter, M. Haber to C. Fryxell, 3/10/1995, MDAQMD Final Staff Report Regulation 

XIII – New Source Review 3/25/1996................................................................................ 67, 73 
USEPA Webpage, Begin Actual Construction, https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2020-

03/documents/begin_actual_construction_032520_2.pdf ........................................................ 64 
USEPA Webpage, Final NSR Error Correction Rule, https://www.epa.gov/nsr/nsr-regulatory-

actions ....................................................................................................................................... 64 
USEPA Webpage, New Source Review (NSR) Permitting, NSR Regulatory Actions: 

https://www.epa.gov/nsr/nsr-regulatory-actions, 1/5/2021....................................................... 44 
 
 

391 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII F-1 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Appendix “F” 
Bibliography 

 
Cases: 
 
Alabama Power Co. v Costle, 636 F.2d 323 (D.C. Cir, 1979). 
Hall v. EPA 273 F3d 1146 (9th Cir., 2001). 
Our Children’s Earth Foundation v. USEPA Case #20-CV-1380 (N.D. Cal. 2020). 
SCAQMD v EPA 472 F.3d 882 (D.C. Cir., 2006). 
Sierra Club et al. vs. USEPA, Case #15-1465 as consolidated with Case #19-1024 (D.C. Cir. 

Document 1882662, 1/29/2021). 
State of New York, et. al. v USEPA et al. (413 F3d 3, D.C. Cir 2005). 
 
Federal Statutes: 
 
42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq., Federal Clean Air Act §§101 et seq 
42 U.S.C. §§7501 et seq., Federal Clean Air Act §§171 et seq. 
42 U.S.C. §§7511 et seq., Federal Clean Air Act §§181 et seq. 
42 U.S.C. §§7513 et seq., Federal Clean Air Act §§188 et seq. 
42 U.S.C. §§7661 et seq., Federal Clean Air Act §§500 et seq. 
42 U.S.C. §7410, Federal Clean Air Act §110. 
42 U.S.C. §7411, Federal Clean Air Act §111. 
42 U.S.C. §7412, Federal Clean Air Act §112. 
42 U.S.C. §7416, Federal Clean Air Act §116. 
42 U.S.C. §7475, Federal Clean Air Act §165. 
42 U.S.C. §7479, Federal Clean Air Act §169. 
42 U.S.C. §7502, Federal Clean Air Act §172. 
42 U.S.C. §7503, Federal Clean Air Act §173. 
42 U.S.C. §7511a; Federal Clean Air Act §182. 
42 U.S.C. §7515, Federal Clean Air Act §193. 
42 U.S.C. §7602, Federal Clean Air Act §302. 
42 U.S.C. §7661a, Federal Clean Air Act §502. 
 
State Statutes: 
 
Former Health & Safety Code §40106(e) (Stats. 1996 Ch. 542, section 1; Repealed by Stats, 

2001 Ch.163) 
Health & Safety Code §§40725-40728. 
Health & Safety §§41300 et seq. 
Health & Safety Code §§41400 et seq. 
Health & Safety Code §§42300 et seq. 
Health & Safety Code §§42500 et seq. 
Health & Safety Code §39002. 
Health & Safety Code §39607. 
Health & Safety Code §40000. 
Health & Safety Code §40702. 

392 of 527



 

F-2 AVAQMD Reg. XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Health & Safety Code §40727. 
Health & Safety Code §40727.2. 
Health & Safety Code §40918. 
Health & Safety Code §40920.6. 
Health & Safety Code §41320. 
Health & Safety Code §42300. 
Health & Safety Code §42301. 
Health & Safety Code §42302.1. 
Health & Safety Code §42504. 
Public Resources Code §§21000 et seq. 
 
Federal Regulations: 
 
40 CFR 49.153. 
40 CFR 49.167. 
40 CFR 51. Appendix S, Subsection II. A. 4. 
40 CFR 51 Appendix W. 
40 CFR 51.100. 
40 CFR 51.118. 
40 CFR 51.160 et seq. 
40 CFR 51.160. of 2019. 
40 CFR 51.160 of 1996. 
40 CFR 51.161. 
40 CFR 51.162. 
40 CFR 51.163. 
40 CFR 51.164. 
40 CFR 51.165. 
40 CFR 51.166. 
40 CFR 52.21. 
40 CFR 52.220. 
40 CFR 60. 
40 CFR 61. 
40 CFR 63. 
40 CFR 70 et seq. 
40 CFR 70.7. 
40 CFR 81, Subpart D. 
40 CFR 81.167. 
40 CFR 81.305. 
40 CFR 81.403. 
40 CFR 81.405. 
40 CFR 81.418. 
 
Federal Approvals & Supporting Documents: 
 
36 FR 22398, 11/25/1971. 
45 FR 21271, 4/1/1980. 

393 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII F-3 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

46 FR 5965, 1/21/1981. 
46 FR 30355 6/8/1981. 
47 FR 25013, 6/9/1982. 
50 FR 25417, 6/19/1985. 
51 FR 46656, 11/7/1986. 
60 FR 45530, 8/21/1995. 
60 FR 55355, 10/31/1995. 
61 FR 38250, 7/23/1996. 
61 FR 58113, 11/13/1996. 
61 FR 64291 12/4/1996. 
62 FR 3215, 1/22/1997. 
64 FR 51489, 9/23/1999. 
65 FR 58252, 9/28/2000. 
66 FR 37587, 7/19/2001. 
67 FR 50805, 8/6/2002. 
67 FR 59005, 9/19/2002. 
67 FR 7082, 2/15/2002. 
67 FR 80187, 12/31/2002. 
68 FR 7330, 2/13/2003. 
69 FR 27827, 5/17/2004. 
75 FR 26102, 5/11/2010. 
76 FR 28942, 5/19/2011. 
76 FR 38748, 7/1/2011. 
76 FR 43183, 7/20/2011. 
76 FR 76112 12/6/2011. 
78 FR 10589 2/14/2013. 
78 FR 53270, 8/29/2013. 
79 FR 55637, 9/17/2014. 
80 FR 20166, 4/15/2015. 
80 FR 52236, 8/28/2015. 
80 FR 65292, 10/1/2015. 
80 FR 61140, 10/9/2015. 
81 FR 47302, 7/21/2016. 
81 FR 50339, 8/1/2016. 
81 FR 71613, 10/18/2016. 
82 FR 31457, 7/7/2017. 
82 FR 57133, 12/4/2017. 
83 FR 8822, 3/1/2018. 
83 FR 23372, 5/21/2018. 
83 FR 62998, 12/6/2018. 
85 FR 11812, 2/27/2020. 
USEPA Document, Review of New Sources and Modifications in Indian Country – 

Amendments Response to Comments. Docket #EPA-HQ-OAR-2003-0076, 4/2014. 
USEPA Memo, E. Adams to Docket EPA-R09-OAR-2015-0280, Clarification of August 1, 2016 

Limited Approval and Limited Disapproval of Revision to Regulation 2, Rules 1 and 2 of 

394 of 527



 

F-4 AVAQMD Reg. XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

Bay Area Air Quality Management District’s portion of the State Implementation Plan, 
4/17/2017. 

USEPA TSD, BAAQMD Regulation 2, Rule 1 – Permits, General Requirements, Regulation 2, 
Rule 2 – Permits, New Source Review, 8/19/2015, Docket Number EPA–R09–OAR–2015–
0280. 

USEPA TSD, MDAQMD NSR, 10/13/1995. 
USEPA TSD, Prevention of Significant Deterioration & Nonattainment Area New Source 

Review Regulations, 11/2002.  
USEPA TSD, SJVUAPCD Rule 2020, Exemptions, 2201, New and Modified Stationary Source 

Review Rule, 11/15/2011. 
USEPA TSD, SMAQMD Rule 214, 5/06/2011, Docket #EPA-R09-OAR-2013-0064-002. 
USEPA TSD, SMAQMD Rule 214/217, 1/23/2013, Docket #EPA-R09-OAR-2013-0064-002. 
 
State Regulations: 
 
14 Cal Code Regs. §15308. 
17 Cal Code Regs. §60109. 
17 Cal Code Regs. §60144. 
17 Cal Code Regs. §60200. 
17 Cal Code Regs. §60201. 
17 Cal Code Regs. §60208. 
17 Cal Code Regs. §60210 
17 Cal Code Regs. §70500. 
17 Cal. Code Regs §94501. 
17 Cal. Code Regs §94508. 
 

Local Rules & Regulations 
 
AVAQMD Regulation II – Permits (current) 
AVAQMD Regulation XIII - New Source Review, (current) 
AVAQMD Regulation XIII - New Source Review, 3/20/2001 
AVAQMD Regulation XIV – Mobile Source Offset Programs, 5/9/1997 (current) 
AVAQMD Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, (current) 
AVAQMD Regulation XXX – Title V Permits (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 1300, 3/20/2001 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 1301, 3/20/2001 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 1302, 3/20/2001 
AVAQMD Rule 1302, 8/15/2006 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 1303, 3/20/2001 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 1304, 3/20/2001 (current)  
AVAQMD Rule 1305, 8/15/2006 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 1309, 3/20/2001 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 1310, 8/15/2006 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 1401, 8/15/2006 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 201, 8/19/1977 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 202, 5/7/1976 (current) 

395 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII F-5 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

AVAQMD Rule 203, 8/19/1997 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 204, 8/19/1997 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 205, 8/19/1997 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 206, 8/19/1997 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 207, 1/9/1976 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 208, 5/17/2005 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 209, 1/5/1990 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 210, 5/17/2005 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 212, 5/17/2005 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 214, 8/19/1997 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 215, 8/19/1997 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 216, 8/19/1997 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 217, 8/19/1997 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 218, 2/17/2012 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 218.1, 2/17/2012 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 219, 10/18/2016 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 220, 5/17/2005 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 225, 1/18/2011 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 226, 1/18/2011 (current) 
AVAQMD Rule 3001, 4/19/2005 (current) 
BAAQMD, Regulation 2 – New Source Review, 12/19/2012 
BAAQMD, Rule 2-2-206.2, 12/19/2012 
BAAQMD, Rule 2-2-412, 12/19/2012 
BAAQMD, Rule 2-2-412, 12/6/2017 
BAAQMD, Rule 2-2-415, 2/6/2017 
Butte County APCD, Rule 432, 4/24/2014 
Butte County APCD, Rule 433, 4/24/2014 
Feather River AQMD, Rule 10.9, 10/6/2014 
MDAQMD Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 3/25/1996 
MDAQMD Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 9/24/2001 
MDAQMD Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 8/28/2006 
MDAQMD Regulation XIII - New Source Review, 8/22/2016 
MDAQMD Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 3/22/2021 
Imperial County APCD, Rule 502, 8/8/2013. 
Placer County APCD, Rule 515, 2/19/2015 
Placer County APCD, Rule 516, 12/19/2009 
San Diego County APCD, Rule 27.1, 8/26/2008 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 10/5/1979. 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 7/11/1980. 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 9/10/1982. 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 7/12/1985. 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 8/1/1986. 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 12/2/1988. 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 6/28/1990. 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 5/3/1991. 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 12/7/1995. 

396 of 527



 

F-6 AVAQMD Reg. XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 5/10/1996. 
SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 6/14/1996. 
SCAQMD Regulation XVII, 10/7/1988 
SCAQMD Rule 1301, 12/7/1995 
SCAQMD Rule 1302, 12/7/1995 
SCAQMD Rule 1303, 5/10/1996 
SCAQMD Rule 1304, 6/14/1996 
SCAQMD Rule 1306, 6/14/1996 
SCAQMD Rule 1309, 12/7/1995 
SCAQMD Rule 1309.1, 12/7/1995 
SCAQMD Rule 1310, 12/7/1995 
SCAQMD Rule 1313, 12/7/1995 
SCAQMD Rule 219, 8/12/1994 
SJVUAPCD, Rule 2201, 8/20/1998. 
SJVUAPCD, Rule 2201, 12/19/2002. 
SJVUAPCD, Rule 2201, 12/8/2008. 
SJVUAPCD, Rule 2201, 4/21/2011. 
SJVUAPCD, Rule 2201, 8/15/2019. 
SMAQMD, Rule 202, 11/20/1984. 
SMAQMD, Rule 214, 7/23/2012. 
Yolo-Solano APCD, Rule 3.21, 12/10/2008. 
 
Local Approvals & Supporting Documentation: 
 
AVAQMD, 70 ppb O3 Evaluation Final Staff Report, 7/21/2020 
AVAQMD, Agenda Item 11, 3/20/2001 
AVAQMD, Draft Staff Report Amendment of Rule 219 – Equipment Not Requiring a Permit for 

amendment on 6/15/2021 
AVAQMD, Final Staff Report Amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 

3/20/2001 
AVAQMD, Governing Board Agenda Item #11, 7/21/2020 
AVAQMD, Resolution 01-03 – Reg XIII, 3/20/2001 
AVAQMD, Resolution 20-08, 7/21/2020 
AVAQMD, Staff Report Proposed Amendments to Regulation XIII (Specifically Rules 1302 – 

Procedure and 1305 – Emissions Offsets) and Adoption of New Rule 1310 – Federal Major 
Facilities and Federal Major Modifications for adoption on 8/15/2006 

BAAQMD Item 6 - Continuation of the Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of Proposed 
Amendments to Air District New Source Review (NSR) and Title V permitting regulations 
(Regulations 2, Rule 1, 2, 4 and 6) and Adoption of a California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Environmental Impact Report (EIR), 12/19/2012. 

BAAQMD Letter, B. Bunger to N. Marvel, 7/31/2012. 
BAAQMD Staff Report, Proposed Technical and Administrative Amendments to New Source 

Review and Title V Permit Programs, 10/2017. 
CARB Resolution 80-49, 7/23/1980. 

397 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII F-7 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

MDAQMD, 70 ppb Ozone Standard Implementation Evaluation (70 ppb O3 Evaluation): RACT 
SIP Analysis; Federal Negative Declarations; and Emission Statement Certification, 
10/28/2019. 

MDAQMD, Final Staff Report for Amendment of Rule 219 – Equipment Not Requiring a 
Permit, 1/25/2019. 

MDAQMD, Final Staff Report Proposed Amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review 
and Adoption of Rule 1600 – Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD), 8/22/2016. 

MDAQMD, Final Staff Report Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 3/25/1976 
MDAQMD, Governing Board Agenda Item #7, 9/22/1993. 
MDAQMD, Governing Board Agenda Item #9, 2/23/1994. 
MDAQMD, Governing Board Agenda Item #10, 10/27/1993. 
MDAQMD, Governing Board Agenda Item #10, 4/28/2008. 
MDAQMD, Governing Board Agenda Item #11, 10/28/2019. 
MDAQMD, Governing Board Agenda Item #12, 3/22/2021. 
MDAQMD, Presentation 70 ppb Ozone Standard Implementation Evaluation (70 ppb O3 

Evaluation), 10/28/2019. 
MDAQMD, Resolution 19-12, 10/28/2019. 
MDAQMD, Resolution 21-03, 3/22/2021. 
MDAQMD, Rule 1302(JJ) Draft p3c, 8/27/1993.  
MDAQMD, Rule 1306(D)(3) Draft p3c, 8/27/1993. 
MDAQMD Final Staff Report, Amendements to Regulation XIII - New Source Review, Rule 

1600 - Prevention of Significant Deterioration and Rescission of Rule 1310 - Federal Major 
Facilities and Major Modifications, 3/22/2021 

MDAQMD Resolution 21-03, 3/22/2021 
MDAQMD, Staff Report 70 ppb Ozone Standard Implementation Evaluation (70 ppb O3 

Evaluation): RACT SIP Analysis; Federal Negative Declarations; and Emission Statement 
Certification for adoption 10/28/2019, D3 10/10/2019. 

MDAQMD, Staff Report Proposed Amendments to Various Rules of Regulation XIII – New 
Source Review, 8/26/2006. 

MDAQMD, Staff Report Proposed Amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 
9/13/2001 

MDAQMD, Staff Report Proposed Amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 
3/1/1996. 

MDAQMD, Staff Report Regulation XIII, 9/22/1993. 
MDAQMD, Staff Report Rule 219 1994 23 Nov, 12/21/1994. 
Riverside County, Resolution 77-362, 11/29/1977 effective 12/1/1977. 
SCAQMD, Governing Board Item #5, 2/10/1994. 
SCAQMD, Governing Board Item #13, 12/23/1977. 
SMAQMD, Staff Report, Rule 202 – New Source Review, Rule 214 – Federal New Source 

Review, Rule 217 – Public Notice Requirements for Permits, 7/23/2012. 
 
Federal Guidance: 
 
USEPA Document, Improving Air Quality with Economic Incentive Programs, EPA 452/R-01-

001, 1/2001. 
USEPA Document, Technical Guidance for Demonstration of Inter-Precursor Trading (IPT) for 
Ozone in the Nonattainment New Source Review Program, EPA-454/R-18-004, 5/2018. 

398 of 527



 

F-8 AVAQMD Reg. XIII 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

USEPA Letter, J. Seitz, Director, EPA Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards, to C. 
Williams, Commissioner, Minnesota Pollution Control Agency, 12/13/1995. 

USEPA Memo (Draft for Public Review and Comment), A. Idsal, Principal Deputy Assistant 
Administrator, Interpretation of “Begin Actual Construction” under the New Source Review 
Preconstruction Permitting Regulations, 3/25/2020. 

USEPA Memo, D. Howekamp, Director, Air and Toxics Division, EPA Region IX, to all Region 
IX Air Agency Directors and NSR Contacts, Preconstruction Review and Cons, 11/4/1993. 

USEPA Memo, E. Reich, Director, U.S. EPA Division of Stationary Source Compliance, to R. 
DeSpain, Chief, Air Programs Branch, EPA Region VIII, Construction Activities Prior to 
Issuance of a PSD Permit with Respect to "Begin Actual Construction," 3/28/1986. 

USEPA Memo, E. Reich, Director, U.S. EPA Division of Stationary Source Enforcement, to 
U.S. EPA Enforcement Division Directors, Regions I-X, Interpretation of "Constructed" as it 
Applies to Activities Undertaken Prior to Issuance of a PSD Permit, 12/18/1978. 

USEPA Memo, J. McCabe, Principal Deputy Assistant Administrator, Office of Air and 
Radiation, Minor New Source Review Program Public Notice Requirements under 40 CFR 
51.161(b)(3), 4/17/2012. 

USEPA Memo, J. Rasnic, Director, U.S. EPA Stationary Source Compliance, Office of Air 
Quality Planning and Standards, to B. Turlinski, Chief, Air Enforcement Branch, EPA 
Region III, Construction Activities at Georgia Pacific, 5/13/1993. 

USEPA Memo, J. Seitz, Director Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards to D. 
Howekamp, Director Region IX, Air and Toxics Division, Response to Request for Guidance 
on Use of Pre-1990 ERC's and Adjusting for RACT at Time of Use, 8/26/1994. 

USEPA Memo, E. Pruitt, Administrator to Regional Administrators, Project Emissions 
Accounting under the New Source Review Preconstruction Permitting Program, 3/13/2018.  

 
State Guidance 
 
CARB, Advisory #299, Air District New Source Review Rules Regarding Electronic Notice, 

06/2018 
 
Other Authorities: 
 
AVAQMD Governing Board Policy 13-01 – Requests for Inspection and/or Copying Public 

Records, 3/19/2003. 
AVAQMD Webpage, Permitting Public Notices, https://avaqmd.ca.gov/public-notices-

advisories. 
AVAQMD, 2017 AV Actual Emissions Noticing Breakdown Adjusted.xlsx. 
CARB Letter, G. Rubenstein to P. DeFalco, Jr., Revision to the California State Implementation 

Plan for the South Coast Air Quality Management District, 8/11/1980. 
CARB Presentation, Review of the San Joaquin Valley Emission Reduction Credit System, 

6/26/2020. 
CARB Report, Review of the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District Emission 

Reduction Credit System, 6/2020.  
CARB Webpage, Definitions of VOC and ROG (Revised January 2009) at 

https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/ei/speciate/voc_rog_dfn_1_09.pdf. 

399 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII F-9 
SR D3a 2021 07 Jul 

CARB Webpage, Emissions Reductions Offset Transaction Cost Summary Report, May 2020, 
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/new-source-review-emission-reduction-credit-offsets. 

CARB, Review of the SJVUAPCD Emission Reduction Credit System, June 2020. 
MDAQMD, Governing Board Policy 93-2, 2/25/2019. 
MDAQMD, Standard Practice 4-5 Records Retention, 12/10/2019. 
MDAQMD E-Mail, K. Nowak to L. Yannayon, MDAQMD’s 70 ppb O3 Evalutaion Document, 

9/26/2019. 
USEPA Document, Draft New Source Review Workshop Manual, Prevention of Significant 

Deterioration and Nonattainment Area Permitting, 10/1990 
USEPA Email, G. Rios to B. Poiriez - EPA Comments on Rule 219, 3/28/2019. 
USEPA Email, K. Nguyen to K. Nowak – MDAQMD NSR Logistics Call, 2/28/2020. 
USEPA Email, L. Yannayon to K. Nowak, Re After Action Report, 3/25/2020, Attached file 

1301 DD 2020 23 Mar + EPA. 
USEPA Email, L. Yannayon to K. Nowak, Re Gearing Up for NSR Fixes, 12/4/2019, Attached 
file NSR Reform in CA. 
USEPA Email, L. Yannayon to K. Nowak, Re: AAR, 3/25/2020, Attached File 1301 DD1 2020 

23 May +EPA 
USEPA Email, L. Yannayon to K. Nowak, Re: Notices in 1302, 8/4/2020, Attached File 1302 

DD4 2020 13 Jul + EPA. 
USEPA Letter, G. Rios to B. Poiriez – 2019 Certification of Sip Approved Nonattainment New 

Source Review, 10/10/2019. 
USEPA Letter, L. Beckham to B. Poiriez – MDAQMD New Source Review Program, 

12/19/2019 
USEPA Letter, M. Haber to C. Fryxell, 3/10/1995, MDAQMD Final Staff Report Regulation 

XIII – New Source Review 3/25/1996. 
USEPA Webpage, Begin Actual Construction, https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2020-

03/documents/begin_actual_construction_032520_2.pdf. 
USEPA Webpage, Final NSR Error Correction Rule, https://www.epa.gov/nsr/nsr-regulatory-

actions. 
USEPA Webpage, New Source Review (NSR) Permitting, NSR Regulatory Actions: 

https://www.epa.gov/nsr/nsr-regulatory-actions, 1/5/2021. 

400 of 527



 
 

 

 
 
 

  

 
 
 

Appendix G 
to Staff Report 

for 
Amendment of 

Regulation XIII – New Source Review 
Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration 

And  
Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants. 

 
For Amendment on 

July 20, 2021  
(continued from June 15, 2021) 

 
 
 

Antelope Valley  
Air Quality  
Management District 

43301 Division St. Suite 206 
Lancaster, CA 93535-4649 
(661) 723-8070  
www.AVAQMD.ca.gov  

401 of 527



This page intentionally left blank. 
 
 
 

402 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-1 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun 

STAFF REPORT 
Regulation XIII – New Source Review 

Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration 
and  

Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants 
 

Appendix G – Additional Comments 
(received after publication of Agenda for 6/15/2021 Meeting) 

 
1. USEPA Letter, L. Yannayon to B. Banks, Proposed amendments to AVAQMD 
Regulation XIII and new adopted Rule 1700, received via Email 6/7/2021 11:16 A.M. 
2. Lockheed Martin Email, M. Haro to B. Banks, Comments Regarding AVAQMD 
Proposed Amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, received via Email 6/14/2021 
2:23 P.M. 
3. Northrop Grumman Email, G. Jung to B. Banks, NGC’s comments to Proposed 
Amendments to Regulation XIII, received via Email 6/15/2021 8:12 A.M. 
  

403 of 527



AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-2 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun 

This page intentionally left blank. 

404 of 527



 
 
 
Comment #1 

 

UNITED STATES 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

AGENCY 
REGION IX 

75 Hawthorne Street 
San Francisco, CA 94105-3901 

 
Bret Banks Executive Officer 
Antelope Valley Air Quality Management  
43301 Division Street, Suite 206 
Lancaster, California 93535 
 
Re: Proposed amendments to AVAQMD Regulation XIII and new adopted Rule 1700 
 
Dear Bret Banks: 
 
This letter conveys comments by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Region 9, on the 
Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District’s (AVAQMD or “District”) proposed amendment 
of District Rules 1300, 1301, 1302, 1303, 1304, 1305, 1306, and 1309, and the proposed adoption of 
Rule 1700. These rules implement preconstruction review and permitting requirements for stationary 
sources of air pollution, as required under the Clean Air Act (CAA) New Source Review (NSR) 
program. It is our understanding that the District intends to submit the revised rules for inclusion in 
the AVAQMD portion of the California SIP to satisfy NSR requirements for the 2015 ozone national 
ambient air quality standard (NAAQS). 
 
The proposed revisions to the District’s rules address issues very similar to those raised in a 
December 19, 2019 letter from the EPA to the Mojave Desert Air Quality Management District 
(MDAQMD) (attached for reference). That letter was based on the EPA’s review of earlier submitted 
versions of the MDAQMD’s NSR rules for compliance with applicable CAA requirements for NSR 
programs and other CAA general requirements for SIP submittals.1 In March 2020, we began holding 
bi-weekly meetings with the California Air Resources Board and MDAQMD staff to discuss and 
resolve issues identified in the EPA’s letter. In March 2021, we began to focus our efforts on the 
same issues contained in the AVAQMD rules. We appreciate the significant time and effort that you 
and your staff have contributed to ensure that the revised rules will satisfy the applicable CAA 
requirements. 
 
Notwithstanding these efforts, the versions of the rules currently proposed for adoption do not 
address all the approvability issues identified by the EPA. In particular, the 
 

1 These requirements are described in section 110(a)(2)(C) and parts C and D of title I of the CAA and the 
EPA’s implementing regulations at title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 51, subpart I and 
40 CFR 51.307. 

  

405 of 527



 

2 

proposed rules do not address the issues identified in Section 1.2.2.c of our December 19, 
2019 letter to MDAQMD, which are also present in AVAQMD Rules 1304 and 1305.2 

That section explains that use of a potential-to-potential test for determining the quantity 
of offsets required for a major modification, as allowed in MDAQMD Rules 1304 and 
1305, does not comply with the requirement at 40 CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(J) that offsets for 
a major modification be determined using a baseline of actual (not potential) emissions 
(i.e., through an actual-to-potential test). This requirement is included in the EPA’s 
regulations to carry out the provisions of CAA section 173(c)(1), which requires 
reductions in actual emissions to offset the total tonnage of increased emissions from a 
new or modified source. 

 
Revised AVAQMD Rule 1304(C)(2)(d) is deficient under this requirement because it 
allows major sources to use each emissions unit’s Potential to Emit in place of Historical 
Actual Emissions when calculating Simultaneous Emission Reductions from a 
modification of the emissions unit, resulting in essentially the use of a potential-to- 
potential test for determining the net emissions increase (and thus, the number of offsets 
required for that unit).3 Revised AVAQMD Rule 1305(C)(2) is also deficient because it 
relies on the Rule 1304(C)(2)(d) potential-to-potential test. The potential-to-potential test 
is also referenced in AVAQMD Rules 1301, 1302, and 1303. 

 
By allowing sources to calculate the net emissions increase required to be offset for 
modifications using potential, rather than actual, emissions as a pre-project baseline, the 
District’s rules will require fewer offsets for at least some major modification projects 
and therefore the rules are less stringent than federal NSR requirements. Federal NSR 
regulations require that all emissions increases, and decreases, included in the calculation 
of a net emissions increase be calculated using a pre-project baseline of actual emissions, 
and allow an emissions increase or decrease to be credited only as a change in actual 
emissions.4 Calculating emissions decreases using a potential emissions baseline allows 
credit for “paper” reductions that do not represent real emissions reductions. Under the 
CAA, such paper reductions cannot be used to offset actual emission increases. 

 
The EPA’s December 19, 2019 letter to the MDAQMD suggests that the appropriate fix 
for this problem would be to update the rules to comply with 40 CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(J). 
In that letter, we also offered to work the MDAQMD to discuss specific limited 
circumstances that would allow the District to retain a potential-to-potential test for 
calculating the quantity of offsets required. Pages 47–49 of the AVAQMD’s Staff 

 
 

2 Recently revised versions of the MDAQMD’s NSR rules also do not address this issue. The EPA sent a 
similar comment letter to the MDAQMD on March 18, 2021. 
3 The proposed revisions to Regulation XIII partially address the issue by requiring an actual-to-proposed 
emissions test for determining offset applicability. 
4 See 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(vi) (definition of “net emissions increase”); 51.165(a)(1)(xii)(A) (definition of 
“actual emissions”). Deviations from federal definitions and requirements are generally approvable only if 
a state specifically demonstrates that the submitted provisions are more stringent, or at least as stringent, in 
all respects as the corresponding federal provisions and definitions. 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1) and 40 CFR 
51.165(a)(2)(ii). See also 42 USC 7503(c)(1) (requiring the total tonnage of increased emissions from a 
new or modified source to be offset by an equal or greater reduction in actual emissions). 

  

406 of 527



 

3 

Report5 for the proposed revisions describe recent examples of the EPA approving these 
specific provisions for other Districts. We remain open to discussing these flexibilities 
with the AVAQMD. 

 
Because of this outstanding deficiency, the rules as currently proposed are not fully 
approvable by the EPA. Because the deficiency relates to nonattainment NSR 
requirements under part D of title I of the Act, the offset sanction in CAA section 
179(b)(2) would apply 18 months after the effective date of a final disapproval or limited 
disapproval, and the highway funding sanctions in CAA section 179(b)(1) would apply in 
the area six months after the offset sanction is imposed. Additionally, if the District does 
not address this deficiency in an approvable SIP submittal, the EPA will be obligated to 
promulgate a federal implementation plan under CAA 110(c) to ensure compliance with 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(J). Given the progress we have made with both Districts to 
resolve other approvability issues identified in the December 19, 2019 letter, the EPA 
would prefer to resolve this remaining issue prior to SIP submittal. 

 
Thank you for your consideration of these comments. We look forward to continuing to 
work with you to protect air quality in the AVAQMD. If you have any questions or 
concerns regarding the matter, please feel free to contact me at (415) 972-3534 or 
Yannayon.Laura@epa.gov. 

 

Sincerely, 
 

LAURA YANNAYON 

 
 
 
Digitally signed by LAURA 
YANNAYON 
Date: 2021.06.07 
11:07:18 -07'00' 

Laura Yannayon, 
Acting Manager, Air Permits Office 
Air and Radiation Division 

 
 

Enclosure 
EPA letter dated December 19, 2019 to the Mojave Desert Air Quality Management 
District (MDAQMD) 

 
 

cc (via email): 
Karen Nowak, District Counsel 
Ariel Fideldy, CARB 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5 “Draft Staff Report for Amendment of Regulation XIII – New Source Review Regulation XVII – 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration and Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants, 
for Amendment on June 15, 2021,” June 2, 2021. 

407 of 527



 

1  

 
 

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION IX 

75 Hawthorne Street 
San Francisco, CA 94105 

 
 

Brad Poiriez, Air Pollution Control Officer 
Mojave Desert Air Quality Management District 
14306 Park Avenue 
Victorville, California 92392 

 
Re: Mojave Desert Air Quality Management District New Source Review Program 

 
Dear Mr. Poiriez: 

 
The United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Region 9, Air Permits Office has completed 
our technical review of the Mojave Desert Air Quality Management District's (MDAQMD or "District") 
rules submitted by the California Air Resources Board (CARB) for inclusion in the California state 
implementation plan (SIP). The rules implement preconstruction review and permitting requirements for 
stationary sources of air pollution, as required under the New Source Review (NSR) program. We 
reviewed the following nine rules: Rules 1300, 1301, 1302, 1303, 1304, 1305, 1306, 1402, and 1600. 
The rule numbers, titles, adopted/amended dates, and submittal dates are listed in Table 1 below. 

 
Table 1 - MDAQMD Submitted Rules 

Rule# Rule Title Adopted or Amended Submitted 
Regulation XIII: New Source Review 

1300 General 08/22/2016 01/24/2017 
1301 Definitions 09/24/2001 12/14/2001 
1302 Procedure 08/22/2016 01/24/2017 
1303 Requirements 09/24/2001 12/14/2001 
1304 Emissions Calculations 09/24/2001 12/14/2001 
1305 Emissions Offsets 08/28/2006 12/29/2006 
1306 Electric Energy Generating Facilities 09/24/2001 12/14/2001 

Regulation XIV: Emission Reduction Credit Banking 
1402 Emission Reduction Credit Registry 05/19/1997 08/1/1997 

Regulation XVI: Prevention of Significant Deterioration 
1600 Prevention of Significant Deterioration 08/22/2016 01/24/2017 

 
We have reviewed the submitted rules for compliance with the applicable Clean Air Act (CAA or Act) 
requirements for NSR programs under section 110(a)(2)(C), and parts C and D of title I of the Act, and 
the EPA's implementing regulations at title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 51, 
subpart I and 40 CFR 51.307, as well as other CAA general requirements for SIP submittals. Although 
the District's rules meet most applicable federal requirements, they do not meet all the requirements 
necessary for full approval. Primarily due to the many cross-references to Rule 1310, "Federal Major 
Facilities and Federal Major Modifications," which is not currently SIP-approved or included in the SIP  

  

408 of 527



 

2  

submittal package before the EPA, it is also not possible to propose a limited approval and 
limited disapproval action, as this would put the unenforceable provisions of these rules into 
the SIP. In order for the EPA to propose full approval of the submitted rules the District must 
correct the identified approvability issues. 

 
The enclosed attachment provides a comprehensive list of identified approvability issues. 
While this list could be used as the basis for moving forward with a disapproval of the current 
rule submittals, we believe the best use of both the District's and the EPA's limited resources 
would be for the District to revise the submitted rules as necessary to address the identified 
approvability issues, have the EPA review the rule revisions to ensure all approvability issues 
have been addressed, and then adopt the revised rules locally and submit them to the EPA for 
SIP approval. 

 
We look forward to continuing to work with you and your staff to protect air quality in the 
MDAQMD. If you have any questions or concerns regarding the list of issues, please feel free 
to contact me at 415- 972-3811 or Beckham.Lisa@epa.gov. Alternatively, you may contact 
my staff, Khoi Nguyen at (415) 947-4120 or Nguyen.Thien@epa.gov, or Laura Yannayon at 
(415) 972-3534, or Yannayon.Laura@epa.gov, or have your attorney contact Jesse Lueders 
of the Office of Regional Counsel at (415) 972-3174 or Lueders.Jesse@epa.gov. 

 
Sincerely, 

Lisa Beckham 
Acting Manager, Air Permits 
Office Air and Radiation 
Division 

 
Enclosure 

 
cc (via email): 

 
Alan De Salvio, Deputy Director 
Karen Nowak, District Counsel 
Tracy Walters, Air Quality 
Specialist Brian Clerico, CARB 
Carol Sutkus, CARB 

409 of 527



 

1  

Review of Mojave Desert’s Regulation XIII – New Source Review and Rule 1600 – 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) SIP Submittals 

Prepared by EPA Region 9 
December 19, 2019 

In this document, the EPA provides findings from our evaluation of the nine rules adopted by the 
Mojave Desert Air Quality Management District (MDAQMD or “District”) and submitted by the 
California Air Resources Board (CARB) for inclusion in the Mojave Desert portion of the California 
state implementation plan (SIP). The submitted rules implement preconstruction review and permitting 
requirements for stationary sources of air pollution, as required under the New Source Review (NSR) 
program of the Clean Air Act (CAA or Act). These rules are: Rule 1300, 1301, 1302, 1303, 1304, 1305, 
1306, 1402, and 1600. Our evaluation pertains to whether the submitted rules meet the applicable CAA 
requirements for NSR programs at section 110(a)(2)(C) and parts C and D of title I of the Act and the 
EPA’s implementing regulations at title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 51, subpart I, 
40 CFR 51.307, and other CAA general requirements for SIP submittals. Our review has identified 
several approvability issues (i.e., issues that could lead the EPA to disapprove one or more of the 
submitted rules) that must be addressed before the EPA can fully SIP-approve the submitted rules. These 
issues are described in Section 1. Errors and typos are listed in Section 2, and further recommendations 
are listed in Section 3. 

1 Approvability Issues with Mojave Desert NSR/PSD Rule Submittals 
 

1.1 Missing Elements and Deficiencies in the General NSR Program 
 

The provisions of 40 CFR 51.160-164 provide the required “general” NSR program elements, i.e., 
the elements that apply to both minor and major source permit actions, that must be met as part of 
an NSR permit program. In the District’s program, some of these elements are met by District 
rules already approved into the SIP. We have identified the following approvability issues in 
respect to the required general NSR program elements. Where feasible, we have included 
suggestions for correcting the identified deficiency. 

 
1.1.1 40 CFR 51.160 

 
1.1.1.a Facilities subject to review: 40 CFR 51.160(e) requires a submitted NSR program to include 

legally enforceable procedures that “identify the types and sizes of facilities, buildings, 
structures, or installations which will be subject to review” under the program. It also requires 
the submittal to “discuss the basis for determining which facilities will be subject to review.” 

 
Rule 1300(B), “Applicability,” states “The provisions of this Regulation shall apply to…any new 
or modified Facility or Emissions Unit which requires a permit pursuant to the provisions of 
District Regulation II.” Within Regulation II, Rule 201, “Permit to Construct,” and Rule 203, 
“Permit to Operate,” require permits for new or modified equipment prior to construction or 
operation, and Rule 219, “Equipment Not Requiring a Written Permit Pursuant to Regulation II” 
provides a list of equipment for which a written permit is not required. Taken together, these 
rules appear to identify the types and sizes of sources that are subject to review under the 
District’s NSR permit program. 

  

410 of 527



 

2  

Rule 219 has been revised locally several times since its SIP approval in 1978. The EPA has 
been separately evaluating the current revised version of the rule for incorporation into the SIP. 
We have identified several potential approvability issues regarding certain exemption provisions 
in Rule 219. Because the provisions of Rule 219 are part of the EPA’s evaluation of whether the 
District’s NSR program satisfies the requirements of 40 CFR 51.160(e), the EPA must approve 
the revisions to Rule 219 prior to or contemporaneously with acting on the submitted NSR rules. 

 
Additionally, in our discussions with the District regarding the approvability of Rule 219, we 
have identified potential issues regarding whether the emissions from all equipment exempted by 
Rule 219 would be included when determining if a stationary source constitutes a major source, 
or if a modification constitutes a new major source or major modification. Because Rule 1300(B) 
determines applicability of the District’s NSR program by reference to Regulation II, including 
Rule 219, these issues will affect our evaluation of whether the District’s NSR program 
adequately includes the sources required to be subject to preconstruction review. We consider 
this an approvability issue under 40 CFR 51.160(e). 

 
Additionally, 40 CFR 51.160(b)(1) requires NSR programs to include legally enforceable 
procedures by which the District will prevent construction or modification that “will result in a 
violation of applicable portions of the control strategy.” The issues with Rule 219 implicate this 
provision because, for example, failure to regulate sources covered by certain reasonably 
available control technology (RACT) rules may mean that the District cannot prevent 
construction or modification of a source that may violate provisions of the control strategy. 

 
Suggested fix: To address these issues the District should make appropriate revisions to Rule 219 
to ensure the District’s NSR program meets the requirements of 40 CFR 51.160(b)(1) and 
provide the basis for any exemptions consistent with 40 CFR 51.160(e). 

 
1.1.1.b Air quality data and modeling: 40 CFR 51.160(f) requires an NSR permit program’s 

procedures to discuss the air quality data and modeling to be used for evaluating proposed 
permits, and to require all required air quality modeling to be based on the requirements 
specified in Appendix W of 40 CFR part 51 (or an alternative method approved in writing by the 
EPA on a case-by-case or state-specific basis after an opportunity for public notice and 
comment). 

 
Rule 1301’s definition of “Modeling” in section (GG) specifies that the model, assumptions, and 
data used must be approved in advance and in writing by the Air Pollution Control Officer 
(APCO) and come from “a list of approved air quality simulation models prepared by CARB and 
the USEPA.” However, it is unclear what kind of list is intended, and none of the rules specify 
the required use of Appendix W modeling procedures or an approved alternative method. 
Therefore, the rule does not satisfy 40 CFR 51.160(f). 

 
Suggested fix: To address these issues, the District should revise its permitting procedures (e.g., 
in Rule 1302) to specify that all required modeling must be based on the applicable models, data 
bases, and other requirements specified in Appendix W (Guideline on Air Quality Models) or an 
alternative method approved by the EPA after an opportunity for public notice and comment. In 
addition, the District should revise the definition of “Modeling” at Rule 1301(GG) to remove any 
additional conflicting requirements. 

  

411 of 527



 

3  

1.1.2 40 CFR 51.161 
 

1.1.2.a Public noticing – 30-day comment period: 40 CFR 51.161(b)(2) requires an NSR permit 
program to provide at least a 30-day period for submittal of public comment on proposed permit 
actions. 

 
Rule 1302(C)(7) provides the provisions for determining if a permitting action is subject to 
notice requirements. Rule 1302(C)(7)(a) provides the notification requirements for new major 
sources and major modifications and requires the APCO to commence issuance pursuant to the 
provisions of subsection (D). For these sources, subsection (D)(3)(a)(i)b requires publication of a 
notice in at least one newspaper and subsection (D)(3)(a)(iii) requires a 30-day period for the 
public to submit written comments. These provisions are consistent with the requirements of 40 
CFR 51.161. 

 
However, for certain minor sources, Rule 1302(C)(7)(c) requires only that the APCO provide 
notification of permit issuance pursuant to subsection (D)(3)(a)(ii). Subsection (D)(3)(a)(ii) in 
turn requires posting the notice on the District’s website, but it does not require a 30-day period 
for the public to submit written comments, as required by 40 CFR 51.161(b)(2). Therefore, the 
public notice provisions for these minor permit actions are deficient because they do not include 
a 30-day period for submitting public comments. 

 
Suggested fix: To ensure the NSR program meets the requirements of 40 CFR 51.161(b)(2), the 
District should revise Section (D)(3)(a)(iii) to include a 30-day period for the public to submit 
written comments. 

 
Also, please note that the EPA adopted revised public notice provisions for new major sources 
and major modifications at 40 CFR 51.165(i) and 40 CFR 51.166(q). See 81 FR 71613, October 
18, 2016. These revised provisions allow for newspaper notice and/or e-notice, and contain 
specific requirements based on the consistent noticing method chosen, such as electronic access 
to the draft permit and support materials if e-notice is selected. The District may choose to 
update its rules accordingly. 

 
1.1.2.b Public noticing – minor sources: 40 CFR 51.160(e) requires NSR programs to contain 

procedures for determining which facilities will be subject to preconstruction review, and for the 
plan to include the basis for this determination. These facilities are then subject to applicable 
review procedures, including the public notice requirements described at 40 CFR 51.161. 
Because these procedures must allow a state or district to identify and prevent construction of 
new sources and modifications that would interfere with attainment or maintenance of the 
National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS) or result in violation of applicable portions of 
the control strategy, a permitting program may exclude from review and notice only those 
sources or modifications whose emissions will be inconsequential to NAAQS attainment or 
maintenance and those that will not result in a violation of any control strategy requirements 
(e.g., RACT rules). 

 
Rule 1302(C)(7)(c)(ii) requires public notice for any new or modified minor source if the 
resulting emissions increase exceeds 80% of the major facility thresholds for a nonattainment 
pollutant or Hazardous Air Pollutant (HAP), or exceeds the federal significance levels at 40 CFR 
52.21(b)(23) for all other pollutants. As indicated in the District’s staff report dated August 22, 
2016, this corresponds to the following notice thresholds: 20 tons per year (tpy) for nitrogen 

  

412 of 527



 

4  

oxides (NOx) and volatile organic compounds (VOC); 12 tpy for Particulate Matter less than 10 
microns (PM10); 8 tpy for a single HAP and 20 tpy of multiple HAPs; and the significance levels 
at 40 CFR 52.21(b)(23)(i) for all other regulated pollutants. These thresholds serve to exclude 
smaller emission increases from new and modified sources from the minor source public notice 
requirements. 

 
To support these minor source public notice thresholds, the District’s staff report includes an 
analysis demonstrating what the proposed minor source notice thresholds represent in terms of 
their contribution to the District’s permitted and overall emission inventory.1 The analysis uses 
the minor source public notice thresholds and applies them to each existing facility to determine 
the percent of permitted and overall emissions that would be subject to public notice if the 
existing facility were being permitted today. From this data, the District concludes that only four 
percent of the District’s overall emission inventory will not receive public notice and that this 
amount is not large enough to affect the District’s ability to attain or maintain the NAAQS. 
While this data is correct as an overall percentage of the emissions from all permitted and non- 
permitted sources (mobile, area and biogenic), it does not reflect the impact of individual 
permitted pollutants that might interfere with attaining or maintaining the NAAQS. 

 
In addition, line 9 of the analysis provides the percentage of permitted emissions for each 
pollutant that would not be subject to public notice at the proposed thresholds, when considered 
as a percentage of the District’s total emission inventory. For all pollutants except VOC and 
PM10, the data shows that less than 5% of all permitted emissions would not be subject to public 
notice. For VOC and PM10, at least 14% and 7%, respectively, of the permitted emissions would 
not be subject to public notice. 

 
Line 10 of the analysis provides the percentage of permitted emissions for each pollutant that 
would be subject to public notice at the proposed thresholds. For all pollutants except VOC and 
PM10, the data shows that 90% or more of all permitted emissions would be subject to public 
notice. Based on this data the public notice thresholds for all pollutants except VOC and PM10 
are adequately supported. However, for VOC and PM10, only 43% and 76%, respectively, of the 
permitted emissions would be subject to public notice at the specified public notice thresholds. 

 
Based on this data, the District has not adequately demonstrated that the public notice thresholds 
for VOC and PM10 are sufficiently stringent (i.e., that emissions not subject to public notice will 
be inconsequential to NAAQS attainment or maintenance and will not result in a violation of any 
control strategy requirements). 

 
In addition, under Rule 1302(C)(7)(a)(i), any permit unit at a facility subject to the provisions of 
Regulation XII – Federal Operating Permits (i.e. a facility that is a major source under title V of 
the CAA) requires public notice consistent with the requirements of Rule 1302(D)(3)(a)(i) and 
(iii). As written, this would include title V administrative amendments and minor permit 
revisions, regardless of the magnitude of the resulting emissions increase. This may be an error. 
The District should review this provision to ensure it accurately reflects the District’s intent for 
which permit units will be subject to public notice. 

 
 
 
 

1 MDAQMD Final Staff Report, Proposed Amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review and Adoption of Rule 1600 
– Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD), dated August 22, 2016. See Table 4. 

  

413 of 527



 

5  

Rule 1302(C)(7)(c)(ii)(b) also includes a cross-reference to Rule 1201, which is not SIP- 
approved. 

 
Suggested fix: To meet the requirements of 40 CFR 51.160(e), the District should 
provide an adequate basis for the NSR program’s public notice thresholds to demonstrate 
that the emissions from sources and modifications excluded from public notice provisions 
are inconsequential and will not interfere with NAAQS attainment and maintenance. In 
particular, the demonstration should consider the significance of individual NSR 
pollutants instead of all pollutants combined, including Particulate Matter less than 2.5 
microns (PM2.5). The District may also need to consider lowering the public notice 
threshold for particular pollutants in order to provide an adequate justification. The 
District should also remove the cross-reference to Rule 1201 and replace it with 
numerical thresholds for HAPs. 

 
1.1.3 40 CFR 51.164 

 
1.1.3.a Stack Height: 40 CFR 51.164 requires NSR program procedures to “provide that the degree of 

emission limitation required of any source for control of any air pollutant must not be affected by 
so much of any source’s stack height that exceeds good engineering practice or by any other 
dispersion technique, except as provided in §51.118(b).” Additionally, “such procedures must 
provide that before a State issues a permit to a source based on a good engineering practice stack 
height that exceeds the height allowed by §51.100(ii)(1) or (2), the State must notify the public 
of the availability of the demonstration study and must provide opportunity for public hearing on 
it. This section does not require such procedures to restrict in any manner the actual stack height 
of any source.” Supporting definitions are provided at 40 CFR 51.100(hh)-(kk). 

 
The District’s NSR program does not include any provisions regarding stack height procedures 
as required in 40 CFR 51.164, and as clarified in the supporting provisions at 40 CFR 51.118, 
and 51.100(hh) through (kk). 

 
Suggested fix: The District should add provisions to the rules to address the requirements of 40 
CFR 51.164. The District should revise the rules to include the stack height provisions described 
in 40 CFR 51.164 consistent with the related requirements and definitions in 40 CFR 51.118 and 
51.100(hh)-(kk). For example, a definition for good engineering practice stack height could be 
incorporated by reference or added to Rule 1301, and the control strategy procedures for stack 
height could be incorporated into Rule 1302. 

 
1.2 Missing Elements and Deficiencies in the Nonattainment NSR Program 

 
Part D of title I of the Act, and the implementing regulations at 40 CFR 51.165, contain the NSR 
requirements for areas designated nonattainment for a NAAQS. These requirements, referred to as 
the “nonattainment NSR” program, apply to nonattainment pollutants at major stationary sources 
and major modifications at sources located in nonattainment areas. 

1.2.1 40 CFR 51.165 – Definitions 
 

An NSR program is required to include either the specific definitions provided in 40 CFR 
51.165, or definitions that are substantially equivalent, more stringent, or at least as stringent, in 
all respects, as the corresponding regulatory definition. We have identified approvability issues 

  

414 of 527



 

6  

with the definitions listed below. Where feasible, we have included suggestions for correcting 
these deficiencies. 

1.2.1.a “Net emissions increase”: This term is defined in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(vi). Nonattainment areas 
designated as serious and above for an ozone standard must also comply with the provisions of 
CAA section 182(c)(6) (limiting when VOC and NOx emissions may be considered de minimis 
when determining applicability of permit requirements) when determining net emission 
increases. 

 
Rule 1301(KK) defines a “Net Emissions Increase” as “an emissions change as calculated 
pursuant to District Rule 1304(B) which exceeds zero.” Rule 1304(B) calculates an emissions 
change at a facility as equal to Proposed Emissions minus Historic Actual Emissions (HAE). 
However, the definition of HAE in Rule 1301(CC) includes fugitive emissions, but the definition 
of Proposed Emissions at 1301(WW) does not include fugitive emissions. This difference may 
result in undercounting net emissions increases under Rule 1304(B), making the NSR program 
less stringent than 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(vi). If the District chooses to include fugitive emissions 
in the HAE (or baseline emissions), then the rule must also provide that fugitive emissions are 
included in the Proposed Emissions to ensure there is no undercounting of emissions increases. 
Alternatively, fugitive emissions may be excluded from the definition of HAE to resolve this 
deficiency. 

 
Suggested fix: To satisfy the definition in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(vi), the District should revise the 
definition for “Historic Actual Emissions” or “Proposed Emissions” to apply a consistent 
approach for considering fugitive emissions. 

 
1.2.1.b “Fugitive emissions”: 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(ix) defines “fugitive emissions” as “those emissions 

which could not reasonably pass through a stack, chimney, vent or other functionally equivalent 
opening.” The definition of “Fugitive Emissions” at Rule 1301(AA) does not include 
“functionally equivalent opening,” and is therefore deficient. 

 
Suggested fix: The District should add “or other functionally equivalent opening” to the 
definition of Fugitive Emissions at Rule 1301(AA) to address this deficiency. 

 
1.2.1.c “Necessary preconstruction approvals or permits”: 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(xvii) defines the 

term “necessary preconstruction approvals or permits” as the Federal air quality control laws and 
regulations, and air quality control laws and regulations included in the applicable SIP. Rule 
1301(O) uses the term “necessary preconstruction approvals and/or permits” but does not include 
a definition or otherwise specify the meaning or scope of this term and is therefore deficient. 

 
Suggested fix: The District must add a definition for the term “necessary preconstruction 
approvals or permits” consistent with 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(xvii). 

 
1.2.1.d “Regulated NSR pollutant”: 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(xxxvii) provides a definition for this term. 

 
This term is not defined in Regulation XIII. The term “Regulated Air Pollutant” defined in Rule 
1301(AAA) is substantially equivalent, except in one regard: Paragraph (D) of the EPA’s 
definition states that condensable particulate matter (i.e., gaseous emissions from a source or 
activity which condense to form particulate matter at ambient temperatures) shall be accounted 
for in applicability determinations and in establishing emissions limitations for PM2.5 and PM10 
in nonattainment major NSR permits. 

  

415 of 527



 

7  

Because at least a portion of the District is designated nonattainment for PM10, the District’s 
NSR program must include this provision regarding the treatment of condensable particulate 
matter. Without such a provision, the District’s NSR program is deficient, in this regard. 

 
Suggested fix: The District should update the definition of “PM10” at Rule 1301(TT) consistent 
with the definition at 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(xxxvii)(D) to specify that PM10 emissions include 
condensable particulate matter. 

 
1.2.1.e Federal Land Manager: The term “Federal Land Manager” is used in the rules but not defined 

per 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(xlii). The term must be defined for the NSR program. 
 

Suggested fix: The District should define “Federal Land Manager” in Rule 1301 in accordance 
with 40 CFR 51.165(a)(1)(xlii). 

 
1.2.2 40 CFR 51.165 – Other Provisions 

 
1.2.2.a Offsets: 40 CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(C)(1)(i) requires emission reductions achieved by shutdown or 

curtailing production or operating hours to be “surplus, permanent, quantifiable, and federally 
enforceable.” The submitted rules contain the following deficiencies regarding these integrity 
criteria. 

 
1.2.2.a.1 Definitions: The terms “Surplus,” “Permanent,” and “Quantifiable” are used extensively 

throughout the rules, but the terms are not defined in Regulation XIII. While these terms are 
not defined in 40 CFR 51.165, an NSR program should define these terms to ensure general 
enforceability of the rules as required by CAA section 110(a)(2)(C). This deficiency may be 
corrected by providing adequate approvable definitions for these terms. 

 
1.2.2.a.2 Demand-shifting: Rule 1305(B)(2)(a)(iii)c allows offsets to be generated from the shutdown 

or modification of previously unpermitted units. See also Rule 1402(C)(4) (addressing 
emission reductions originating from previously unpermitted emission unit). While it is 
feasible to generate emissions reductions credits from an unpermitted emissions unit if the 
source agrees to accept a federally enforceable permit to operate the modified emissions unit, 
emissions reductions may not be credited from the shutdown of an unpermitted emissions 
unit (even if the source agrees to accept limits in another form that is not federally 
enforceable, such as a contract). It is not possible to demonstrate that the emissions 
reductions from unpermitted emissions units are permanent and federally enforceable, 
because no authorization is required to operate a replacement emissions unit. In addition, 
emissions reductions from these types of sources may serve to shift demand to other similar 
unpermitted sources that do require offsets, meaning that the emissions reductions would not 
be surplus or permanent. This deficiency may be addressed by not allowing the generation of 
Emission Reduction Credits (ERC) from the shutdown of unpermitted equipment, and by 
adding provisions to evaluate whether proposed ERCs could be replaced by demand-shifting 
and prohibiting the creation of such ERCs. 

 
1.2.2.a.3 Nontraditional offsets: The rules provide that offsets may be generated from sources other 

than “traditional” permitted stationary sources, including mobile and indirect sources. See 
Rule 1305(B)(3). The rule indicates that offsets from these sources must be approved in 
advance by the EPA. The rule does not specify how a source or the District would seek this 
approval, or how the EPA would grant it. The rules may provide that nontraditional emission 

  

416 of 527



 

8  

reductions can be generated and used as offsets, but they must include more specific 
instruction on the requirements for accomplishing this. 

 
The EPA suggests adding language to clarify that generation of these offsets would require 
the EPA to SIP-approve an ERC generating rule adopted by the District and submitted 
through CARB. The rules should also state that any ERC generating program must meet all 
the offset integrity criteria of being real, surplus, quantifiable, permanent and federally 
enforceable. Alternatively, the District could limit the provisions related to the use of 
nontraditional offsets in Rule 1305(B)(3) to minor sources or minor modifications. 

 
1.2.2.a.4 Director’s discretion: Some provisions in the submitted rules related to offset integrity 

require the District to make determinations interpreting the meaning or application of the 
criteria. See, e.g., Rule 1402(C)(5)(b)(ii), which requires the APCO to determine whether 
offsets are “surplus” without providing any criteria, such as a definition for this term. As a 
result, the rules do not provide sufficient criteria to ensure that offsets will be surplus, as 
required by 40 CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(C)(1)(i). Any provisions related to the integrity criteria 
should be clear and enforceable through the text of the rules, including providing a definition 
for each of the integrity criteria, as described above. 

 
1.2.2.a.5 Curtailment: 40 CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(C) contains specific requirements for offsets 

generated by curtailing production or operating hours. Rule 1302(C)(3)(b)(ii)(a) applies these 
requirements to offsets generated by shutdown, but not those generated by curtailing 
production or operating hours. This deficiency may be addressed by adding language to Rule 
1302(C)(3)(b)(ii)(a) to address this requirement. 

 
The District must revise the rules to ensure the offset provisions meet the integrity criteria, as 
noted above, including adopting definitions of the integrity criteria within Regulation XIII. 

 
1.2.2.b Potential-to-Potential Test for Applicability: 40 CFR 51.165(a)(2)(ii)(C) provides the 

methodology for determining if a project at an existing source will result in a major modification. 
It states that a significant emissions increase is projected to occur if the sum of the difference 
between the projected actual emissions and the baseline actual emissions, equals or exceeds the 
significance threshold for the pollutant emitted. This applicability test is referred to as an “actual- 
to-projected-actual” test. States may also choose to adopt an “actual-to-potential” test. 

 
Rule 1304(B) applies a “potential-to-potential” test for modifications to existing emission units 
that have previously been fully offset. This provision states that an emission change shall be 
calculated by subtracting the historic actual emissions from proposed emissions (as these terms 
are defined in Rule 1304(D). Rule 1304(D)(2)(a) provides four situational definitions for the 
term HAE. In paragraph (iv) of this section, the rule allows HAE to equal potential to emit for 
modified emission units if all the emissions from that unit have been previously offset in a prior 
permitting action pursuant to Regulation XIII or early NSR rules. Because this methodology 
could allow certain projects to avoid the application of LAER, it is not allowed as an acceptable 
applicability test. Therefore, Rule 1304 is deficient in that it does not satisfy the applicability 
procedure requirements of 40 CFR 51.165(a)(2)(ii)(C). 

 
Suggested fix: The District should update Rule 1304(D)(2)(a)(iv) to comply with 40 CFR 
51.165(a)(2)(ii)(C).  

417 of 527



 

9  

1.2.2.c Potential-to-Potential Test for Offsets: 40 CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(J) states that the total tonnage 
of increased emissions resulting from a major modification that must be offset shall be 
determined by summing the difference between the allowable emissions after the modification 
and the actual emissions before the modification for each emissions unit (i.e., using an actual-to- 
potential test). Rule 1304(D)(3) and Rule 1305(B)(2)(b) appear to apply a potential-to-potential 
test instead, in which PTE also takes into account any emission reduction credits issued and 
banked. 

 
Suggested fix: The District should update Rule 1304(D)(3) and 1305(B)(2)(b) to comply with 40 
CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(J). If the District would like to use a potential-to-potential test for offsets, 
the District should work with the EPA to discuss additional flexibilities, consistent with CAA 
requirements. 

 
1.2.2.d Source obligation: 40 CFR 51.165(a)(5)(ii) requires a major NSR program to include 

enforceable procedures to provide that a source or modification that becomes a major stationary 
source or major modification solely by virtue of a relaxation in an enforceable limitation on 
emissions established after August 7, 1980 is subject to major NSR requirements as though 
construction had not yet commenced. While Rule 1303(B)(3) and 1305(A)(2)(b)(ii)c both require 
additional offsets if a facility becomes a major facility due to a relaxation of a federally 
enforceable requirement, the rule does not apply LAER to such facilities. The District’s rules are 
deficient regarding this requirement because they do not include a provision requiring the 
application of LAER as though construction had not yet commenced. 

 
Suggested fix: The District should add provisions consistent with 40 CFR 51.165(a)(5)(ii). 

 
1.2.2.e Interpollutant trading: On December 6, 2018, EPA published a final rulemaking entitled 

“Implementation of the 2015 National Ambient Air Quality Standards for Ozone: Nonattainment 
Are State Implementation Plan Requirements.” 83 FR 62998. The final rule contains revisions to 
the provisions found in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(11) pertaining to provisions an NSR program must 
contain to allow interpollutant trading for a new major source or major modification. 

 
Rule 1305(B)(6)(a)(i) allows interpollutant offsets on a case-by-case basis upon approval of the 
APCO and in consultation with CARB, and with EPA approval for Federal Major Facilities or 
Federal Major Modifications under Rule 1310. In addition, Rule 1305(B)(6)(d) states that 
interpollutant trading between PM10 and PM10 precursors is allowed on a case-by-case basis but 
does not specify the need for CARB or EPA approval. These provisions are not consistent with 
40 CFR 51.165(a)(11) provisions pertaining to interpollutant trading for a new major source or 
major modification. Therefore, as applied to new major sources or major modifications these 
provisions are deficient. 

 
Suggested fix: Revise Rule 1305 to specify that interpollutant trading for major sources and 
modifications is allowed only as specified in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(11). The District will need to 
choose which of the options listed in 40 CFR 51.165(a)(11) to specify in the rules. See also the 
issues related to cross-referencing with Rule 1310 and the use of “Federal Major Facilities” and 
“Federal Major Modifications” in Section 1.3 below, and accompanying Attachment A. 

 
1.3 Cross-Referencing Issues 

 
In order to be approved into a SIP, a rule may not rely on cross-references to provisions that are not 
federally enforceable, including references to state codes and rules that have not been approved into  

418 of 527



 

10  

the SIP or submitted for SIP approval with this package. The submitted rules contain problematic 
cross-references and various instances of incorrect cross-references. Examples of some instances 
are provided below. These examples represent our best attempt at spotting cross-referencing issues, 
but we recommend that the District also carefully review each rule independently as additional rule 
revisions are made, to avoid introducing new errors. 

 
1.3.1 Cross-references to Rule 1310: Rules 1302 and 1305 contain numerous cross-references to 

Rule 1310, which is not SIP-approved and was withdrawn as a SIP submittal by the District 
because it was determined that there is no need to adopt a standalone rule to implement the NSR 
reform requirements. The District must revise the submitted rules to eliminate these cross- 
references or submit Rule 1310 for SIP approval. Attachment A contains a list of the cross- 
references to Rule 1310, with the EPA’s suggestions for how to make the language SIP- 
approvable. 

 
1.3.2 Cross-references to Regulation II: Rules 1300, 1301, and 1302 define sources subject to the 

NSR requirements in part through cross-references to the applicability criteria in Regulation II. 
Within Regulation II, Rule 201 provides the general requirement to obtain a preconstruction 
permit, and Rule 219 provides exemptions for specified equipment. Both rules are approved into 
the SIP; however, the EPA is also currently evaluating an updated version of Rule 219 adopted 
by the District on August 22, 2016. Because the updated version of Rule 219 significantly alters 
the kinds of sources subject to preconstruction permitting requirements relative to the federally 
enforceable version of the rule currently approved in the SIP, it potentially alters the legal 
enforceability of the District’s NSR program. Rule 219 is also relevant to the EPA’s analysis of 
whether the submitted rules meet the applicable requirements for an NSR permitting program, 
including the requirement at 40 CFR 51.160(e) to identify the types and sizes of sources subject 
to review. Therefore, the EPA will need to approve the updates to Rule 219 prior to or 
contemporaneously with our action on the submitted NSR rules. The EPA will likely be taking 
action on all of these rules together, following any submitted revisions. Attachment A contains a 
list of cross-references to Regulation II that may be affected by the changes in Rule 219. 

 
1.3.3 Cross-references to Rule 1320: Rule 1320 was recently withdrawn as a SIP submittal because it 

contains provisions not required for the District’s NSR program and is not SIP-approved. 
However, several of the submitted rules contain problematic cross-references to Rule 1320, such 
as the sections within Rule 1302(C). 

 
1.3.4 Incorrect cross-references: The EPA has identified instances where the submitted rules appear 

to misidentify cross-referenced material due to typographical or other errors within citations. 
Several examples are listed below, with suggested fixes in blue: 

 
a. 1302(C)(4)(a)(ii)a.: “§753003(a)(5)” 
b. 1302(C)(4)(b): “(B)(1)(a)(vi)a.” (potentially “(B)(1)(a)(vi)(ii)a.3”) 
c. 1302(C)(4)(b)(i): “§753003(a)(5)” 
d. 1302(C)(5)(a): “New Source Review of Carcinogenic for Toxic Air Contaminants” 
e. 1600(A)(3)(a)(ii): “subsection (D)(2)(3)(c) and (d)” 

  

419 of 527



 

11  

2 Errors and Typos 
 

The EPA has identified several instances of typographical errors and extraneous markings that should be 
corrected before the rules are approved into the SIP. The EPA suggests that the District address these 
errors when making other necessary revisions of the submitted rules. 

2.1 Federal Class I area: Rule 1302 inconsistently uses “Mandated,” “Modified,” and “Mandatory” 
before the term “Class I Federal Area.” The correct terminologies are “Federal Class I area” and 
“Mandatory Class I Federal Area” as defined in 40 CFR 51.301. These references should be 
updated to reflect the correct terms. We also recommend that the District add revise Rule 1301 to 
incorporate the definitions contained in 40 CFR 51.301 by reference. 

 
2.2 Bracketed text and markup: The clean version of the rules submitted to the EPA contain 

bracketed explanatory comments and markup from prior revisions. These are not part of the 
regulatory text, and should be removed from the clean copy version submitted to EPA for SIP 
approval. These include the following: 

 
a. 1301(K)(3) contains bracketed text: “[Clarifies current practice.]” 
b. 1301(Z) contains bracketed text: “[See CARB Comment #7 of 11/14/00.]” 
c. 1301(Y)(3) contains markup: “SICC” 
d. 1301(EE) contains markup (in red text): “(DDD)”; also includes bracketed text: “[Citation 

revised.]” 
e. 1301(QQ) contains bracketed text: “[Corrects typographical error.]” 
f. 1301(UU) contains bracketed text: “[See 1301(Z). CARB Comment #7 of 11/14/00]” 
g. 1600(B) contains an extra closed bracket: “]” 
h. 1301, 1303, 1305, 1306, and 1402 include bracketed notes at the end regarding past SIP 

submittals and approvals 
i. 1300 and 1302 include notes at the end to “See SIP Table” at the District’s website 

 
2.3 Typos: The submitted rules contain assorted typographical errors in addition to the incorrect cross- 

references listed above. Several examples are listed below with suggested fixes in blue: 
 

a. 1301(E), 1301(X), 1301(GGG): Replace “and” with “or” where defining to include alternate 
designees 

b. 1301(G): “pursuant to” 
c. 1301(O): “of a new Facility or Facility undergoing” 
d. 1301(HH): “functionally identical as to” 
e. 1301(UU)(1): “or processes processed” 
f. 1302(D)(3)(a)(i)b.: “a the notice” 
g. 1600(B)(6): “an PSD Air Pollutant” 

 
3 Further Recommendations 

 
3.1 Missing secondary pollutant: The column for secondary pollutants corresponding to the precursor 

Hydrogen Sulfide (H2S) is empty in the precursor table in Rule 1301(VV). 
 

Suggested fix: The EPA recommends either deleting this precursor since there are no federal 
provisions for H2S as a precursor or correcting the precursor table to provide the secondary 
pollutant. The current SIP-approved version of Rule 102 provides this information and the District  

420 of 527



 

12  

should revise the definition in Rule 1301 to reference the definition of Precursor in Rule 102 or to 
delete the column for H2S. 

3.2 Significant Emission Rates: Rule 1301(DDD) provides the table of significant emission rates for 
air pollutants. Under the heading “Emission Rate within an attainment or unclassified area,” the 
row for PM10 indicates “NA” rather than providing a specific rate even though part of the District is 
designated attainment for PM10. No emission rates are listed for PM2.5 included in the table. As 
significant emission rates for these pollutants are incorporated by references to EPA’s PSD 
regulations include in Rule 1600, which is applicable to sources located in attainment areas, this is 
not a deficiency in the program, but we recommend making updates for clarity. 

 
Suggested fix: Provide emission rates for PM10 for attainment or unclassified areas and provide 
appropriate emission rates for PM2.5. Another option is to remove the significant emission rates for 
attainment pollutants from Rule 1301(DDD) and instead rely on the significant emission rates 
provided in Rule 1600. 

 
3.3 Nonattainment area: Although the term “Federal nonattainment area” is used throughout the 

regulation (see Attachment A), the term is not defined. 
 

Suggested fix: Define “Federal nonattainment area” by referencing 40 CFR 81.305 as it applied on 
a specific date. 

3.4 Facility information: The rules do not include the required provisions of 40 CFR 51.160(c)(2), 
which state that an NSR program must include legally enforceable procedures requiring a permit 
applicant to submit information regarding: 

 
The location, design, construction, and operation of such facility, building, structure, or installation 
as may be necessary to permit the State or local agency to make the determination referred to in 
paragraph (a) of this section. 

 
Suggested fix: Include the information required under 40 CFR 51.160(c)(2) in the application 
requirements in Rule 1302(B)(1)(a)(i) after the “including but not limited to” phrase. 

 
3.5 Cross-reference to Rule 1201: Rule 1201 is referenced in Rule 1302(C)(7)(c)(ii)(b) to provide a 

major facility threshold for HAPs. Rule 1201 is not SIP-approved. 
 

Suggested fix: The thresholds should be included in the submitted rules without cross-referencing 
Rule 1201. 

  

421 of 527



 

13  

ATTACHMENT A: Cross-Referencing Issues 

The list below identifies cross-reference issues with Rules 219 and 1310 and suggests fixes. These 
examples represent our best attempt at spotting cross-referencing issues, but we recommend the District 
also review the rules independently, especially as the District revises the rules to avoid introducing new 
errors. 

 
A.1Cross-references to Rule 219 and Regulation II 

 
The submitted rules include cross-references to Rule 219 and Regulation II, including references that 
may be affected by issues raised in EPA’s concurrent review of Rule 219. Some examples are listed 
below: 

 
i. 1300(B)(1): “The provisions of this Regulation shall apply to: (a) Any new or modified Facility 

or Emissions Unit which requires a permit pursuant to the provisions of District Regulation II.” 
(Within Regulation II, Rule 201 provides the general requirement for preconstruction permits, 
and Rule 219 provides exemptions for specified equipment.) 

 
ii. 1300(D)(1)(b)(i): “ATC(s) and PTO(s) issued pursuant to this Regulation shall also comply with 

the applicable provisions of District Regulation II.” 
 

iii. 1302(B)(1)(a): “Any application for an ATC or modification to a PTO, submitted pursuant to the 
procedures of District Regulation II, shall be analyzed to determine if such application is 
complete.” 

 
iv. 1302(C)(7)(c): “If none of the provisions listed in subsection (7)(a) or (b) above apply then the 

APCO shall commence the issuance of the ATC(s) or modification of the PTO(s) pursuant to the 
provisions of District Regulation II and provide notification of such permit issuance pursuant to 
the provisions of subsection (D)(3)(a)(ii) if any of the following apply…” 

 
v. 1302(C)(7)(d): “If none of the provisions listed in subsection (7)(a), (b) or (c) above apply then 

the APCO shall commence the issuance of the ATC(s) or modification of the PTO(s) pursuant to 
the provisions of District Regulation II.” 

 
vi. 1302(D)(5)(a): “In conjunction with final action on the NSR Document the APCO shall issue 

ATC(s) for the new or modified Facility pursuant to the provisions of District Regulation II.” 
 

vii. 1302(D)(6)(a): “After the final action on the New Source Review Document pursuant to this 
Regulation and/or the issuance of ATC(s) pursuant to the provisions of District Regulation II, the 
APCO shall deny the subsequent issuance of PTO(s) unless the APCO determines that…” 

 
viii. 1402(B)(1)(d)(ii): “For emission reductions which occurred after June 28, 1995, an application 

for ERCs shall be submitted within six (6) months after any of the following:” 
 

“a. District issuance of an Authority to Construct pursuant to District Regulation II – Permits” 

“c. District issuance of a modified permit pursuant to Regulation II – Permits” 

Suggested fix: The District should resolve any deficiency issues with Rule 219. 
 

A.2 Cross referencing with Rule 1310  

422 of 527



 

14  

Rule 1310 and the Plantwide Applicability Limit (PAL) program for the nonattainment NSR program 
are not SIP-approved but are cross-referenced numerous times. Namely, the federal aspects of the 
program must remain, including “Federal Major Facility,” “Federal Major Modification,” and “Federal 
nonattainment area.” 

 
a. Possible Approaches 

 
The EPA provides suggested fixes for resolving the issues below, but the District may prefer their own 
method for resolving the cross-referencing issues with Rule 1310. 

 
i. The submitted rules refer to terms such as “Federal Major Facility,” “Federal Major 

Modification,” or “Federal nonattainment area,” which are currently only defined in Rule 1310. 
If Rule 1310 is not submitted for SIP approval, but other Regulation XIII rules continue to use 
these terms, then these key definitions should be included in Rule 1301 instead. EPA suggests 
also adding definitions for “federal major facility threshold” and “federal significant emissions 
increase threshold.” 

 
ii. Alternatively, the District may choose to submit a modified version of Rule 1310 that maintains 

the federal requirements. 
 

b. Cross Referencing Instances 
 

The list below provides instances where Rule 1310 or PAL are mentioned in the submitted rules. 
 

i. Rule 1302(B)(1)(a)(ii)(a)(3): A District Rule 1310 applicability analysis sufficient to show that 
the Facility or Modification is or is not a Federal Major Facility or a Federal Major Modification 
as defined in District Rule 1310(C). 

 
Suggested fix: Modify paragraph, for example, by cross referencing to new definitions for the 
terms in Rule 1301. 

 
ii. Rule 1302(B)(1)(a)(ii)(a)(4): The requirements of subsections (B)(1)(a)(ii)a.1 and a.2 shall not 

apply if the Facility or Modification has been determined to not be a Federal Major Facility or a 
Federal Major Modification as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(6) and (7) or the Facility has 
previously applied for and received a valid Plantwide Applicability Limit (PAL) pursuant to the 
provisions of District Rule 1310(F). 

 
Suggested fix: Modify paragraph, for example, by cross referencing to new definitions for the 
terms in Rule 1301. 

 
iii. Rule 1302(B)(1)(a)(iii)(a): Mandated Class I Federal Area Protection Analysis 

 
An application for a Federal Major Facility or a Facility with a Federal Major Modification as 
defined in District Rule 1310(C)(6) and (7) which is located within 100 km (62.137 miles) or 
which may have an impact upon visibility in any Mandatory Class I Federal Area, as defined in 
40 CFR 51.301, shall include in its application an analysis of any anticipated impacts on 
visibility within that Mandated Class I Federal Area. Such analysis shall include, but is not 
limited to, an analysis of the factors found in 40 CFR 51.307(c). 

  

423 of 527



 

15  

Suggested fix: Modify paragraph, for example, by cross-referencing new definitions for the 
terms in Rule 1301. 

 
Furthermore, as noted above, the phrase “Mandated Class I Federal Area Protection Analysis” 
and “Mandatory Class I Federal Area” should be changed to “Federal Class I area”. 

 
iv. Rule 1302(B)(1)(a)(iv) Plantwide Applicability Limit (PAL) Analysis 

 
For a Facility requesting a PAL pursuant to District Rule 1310(F) an analysis sufficient to justify 
the classification of the Facility as a Federal Major Facility as defined in District Rule 1310(C) 
and any information necessary to issue the proposed PAL in conformance with all applicable 
provisions of 40 CFR 51.165(f)(1-15). 

 
Suggested fix: This paragraph should be removed unless Rule 1310 is submitted as part of the 
District’s NSR program. 

 
Rule 1302(C)(1)(a): The APCO shall analyze the application to determine the type, amount, and 
change (if any) in emissions pursuant to the provisions of District Rules 1304, 1310 and 1600. 

 
Suggested fix: Remove reference to 1310. 

 
v. Rule 1302(c)(3)(b)(iii)(a): For a Federal Major Facility as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(6) or 

Federal Major Modification as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(7) and which is located in a 
Federal nonattainment area, the APCO’s approval shall be subject to the approval of CARB and 
USEPA during the comment period required pursuant to subsection (D)(2) below. 

 
Suggested fix: Modify paragraph, for example, by cross referencing to new definitions for the 
terms in Rule 1301. 

 
vi. Rule 1302(C)(4)(a): For Facilities which have provided information pursuant to subsection 

(B)(1)(a)(ii)a.3 the APCO shall, after the analysis, determine if any or all of the provisions of 
District Rule 1310 apply to the new or modified Facility. 

 
(i) If none of the provisions of District Rule 1310 apply to the new or modified Facility the 
APCO shall continue the analysis at subsection (C)(5) below. 

 
(ii) If any of the provisions of District Rule 1310 apply to the new or modified Facility the 
APCO prior to issuing any ATC or PTO shall: 

 
a. Ensure that an alternative site analysis required under 42 U.S.C. §7530(a)(5) 
(Federal Clean Air Act §173(a)(5)) has been performed; and 

 
b. Ensure that a statewide compliance certification pursuant to subsection 
(B)(1)(a)(ii)a.2. has been performed and submitted; and 

 
c. Add any conditions to the applicable permits required to implement any provisions 
of District Rule 1310; and 

 
d. Continue the analysis at subsection (C)(5) below.  

424 of 527



 

16  

Suggested fix: Modify paragraph, for example, by cross referencing to new definitions for the 
terms in Rule 1301. 

 
vii. Rule 1302(C)(4)(b)(ii): Add any conditions to the applicable permits required to implement any 

provisions of District Rule 1310; and… 
 

Suggested fix: Remove paragraph (ii). 
 

Rule 1302(C)(4)(c): For a Facility requesting a PAL pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 
1310(F) the APCO shall add any conditions to the applicable permits required to implement the 
PAL and continue the analysis at subsection (C)(5) below. 

 
Suggested fix: Remove paragraph (c). 

 
viii. Rule 1302(C)(7)(a)(iii): The provisions of District Rule 1310 apply; 

 
Suggested fix: Remove paragraph (iii). 

 
ix. Rule 1305(B)(3)(a)(iv): For a Federal Major Facility as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(6) or a 

Federal Major Modification as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(7) and which is located in a 
Federal nonattainment area the specific proposed Mobile Source AERs are approved prior to the 
issuance of the New Source Review document and any ATC(s) by USEPA. 

 
Suggested fix: Modify paragraph, for example, by cross referencing to new definitions for the 
terms in Rule 1301. 

 
x. Rule 1305(B)(3)(b)(v): For a Federal Major Facility as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(6) or a 

Federal Major Modification as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(7) and which is located in a 
Federal nonattainment area the specific Mobile Source ERCs are approved for use prior to the 
issuance of the New Source Review document and the issuance of any ATCs by USEPA; and… 

 
Suggested fix: Modify paragraph, for example, by cross referencing to new definitions for the 
terms in Rule 1301. 

 
xi. Rule 1305(B)(3)(c)(iv): For a Federal Major Facility as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(6) or a 

Federal Major Modification as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(7) and which is located in a 
Federal nonattainment area the specific proposed Area or Indirect Source AERs are approved 
prior to the issuance of the New Source Review document and any ATC(s) by USEPA; and… 

 
Suggested fix: Modify paragraph, for example, by cross referencing to new definitions for the 
terms in Rule 1301. 

 
xii. Rule 1305(B)(3)(d)(iv): For a Federal Major Facility as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(6) or a 

Federal Major Modification as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(7) and which is located in a 
Federal nonattainment area the specific Area or Indirect Source ERCs are approved for use prior 
to the issuance of the New Source Review document and the issuance of any ATCs by USEPA; 
and… 

 
Suggested fix: Modify paragraph, for example, by cross referencing to new definitions for the 
terms in Rule 1301.  

425 of 527



 

17  

xiii. Rule 1305(B)(4)(a)(i): For a Federal Major Facility as defined in District Rule 
1310(C)(6) or a Federal Major Modification as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(7) 
and which is located in a Federal nonattainment area the APCO’s approval shall be 
made in consultation with CARB and the USEPA, on a case-by-case basis. 

 
Suggested fix: Modify paragraph, for example, by cross referencing to new 
definitions for the terms in Rule 1301. 

 
xiv. Rule 1305(B)(5)(a)(i): For a Federal Major Facility as defined in District Rule 

1310(C)(6) or a Federal Major Modification as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(7) 
and which is located in a Federal nonattainment area the APCO’s approval shall be 
made in consultation with CARB and USEPA, on a case-by-case basis. 

 
Suggested fix: Modify paragraph, for example, by cross referencing to new 
definitions for the terms in Rule 1301. 

 
xv. Rule 1305(B)(6)(a)(i): For a Federal Major Facility as defined in District Rule 

1310(C)(6) or a Federal Major Modification as defined in District Rule 1310(C)(7) 
and which is located in a Federal nonattainment area the APCO’s approval shall be 
made in consultation with CARB and the approval of USEPA, on a case-by-case 
basis as long as the provisions of subsection (B)(6)(b) below are met. 

 
Suggested fix: Modify paragraph, for example, by cross referencing to new 
definitions for the terms in Rule 1301. 

 

426 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-27 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun  

AVAQMD Responses to Comment #1 

Comment 1-1:  Revised AVAQMD Rule 1304(C)(2)(d), along with proposed 1305(C)(2) which 
relies upon it, allows major sources to use Potential to Emit (PE) in place of Historical Actual 
Emissions (HAE) when calculating simultaneous emissions reductions (SERs) resulting in a 
potential to potential test for determining the net emissions increase which is not approvable. 

Response 1-1:  This issue and its practical impacts has long been the subject of differing 
interpretations by and between USEPA and many California air districts.  As USEPA so kindly 
notes this is also a matter of contention regarding the Mojave Desert Air Quality Management 
District’s (MDAQMD) recently amended New Source Review rules.   

As discussed extensively in the Staff Report (Subsections VI. A. 6. and VI. E. 6.) the underlying 
disagreement regarding the use of previously offset potential emissions in the calculation of the 
amount (as opposed to the necessity) of offsets in the case where simultaneous emissions 
reductions (SERs) are used to reduce the offset burden simply boils down to the issue of whether 
the net end result is equivalent or more stringent to the methodology asserted by USEPA.  The 
AVAQMD asserts that the proposed calculation methodology and structure of the New Source 
Review program results in at least as many overall emissions reductions as that proposed by 
USEPA.  This is especially true since there is not and has never been a De Minimis provision in 
the AVAQMD’s NSR program and thus there is no potential for nonoffset increases in Potential 
to Emit at a Major Facility.1   

USEPA points out in its letter, that other air districts have chosen to “make up” for alleged 
deficiencies in offsets in different manners.  While these strategies may be appropriate and 
effective in these districts they are not usable within the AVAQMD for a variety of reasons as 
discussed in the staff report (Subsection VI. E. 6.).  Despite this the AVAQMD is still willing to 
explore alternatives and/or additional justifications to prove its current NSR program stringency 
with USEPA.  However, due to the upcoming deadline of August 3, 2021 for submission of an 
NSR program to satisfy the 2008 and 2015 O3 NAAQS requirements such explorations and/or 
additional justifications will, by necessity, need to take place after such submission has occurred 
to avoid any sanctions clock which would be triggered by a nonsubmittal.   
 
Comment 1-2:  USEPA has attached its letter (dated 12/19/2019) to the MDAQMD implying 
that all of the issues contained therein also needed to be addressed in the AVAQMD New Source 
Review Rules.2 

Response 1-2:  All of the issues in the above referenced letter have been addressed.  See Section 
VI of the staff report in general for detailed discussions of particular issues.  Additional issues 
have been noted by USEPA comment number in the [bracketed italicized] notations in the 
redline versions of the rules as contained in Appendix A of the staff report. The following table 
                                                 
1  Please note that current USEPA de minimis policy allows “small” increases of less than the major facility 
threshold amounts to occur over a rolling period of 5 years.  In the AVAQMD this increase would be 25 tpy of NOx 
or VOC over 5 years which would effectively allow an unoffset increase potential to emit at a particular facility of 
that amount every 5 years or so.  This cannot happen under either the current NSR Rules or the proposed 
amendments. 
2 This was orally communicated by USEPA to AVAQMD staff previously on numerous occasions. 

427 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-28 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun  

contains a summary of USEPA’s comments to MDAQMD of 12/19/2019 and the AVAQMD 
proposals to address the listed issues: 

Table 9 

USEPA Comments and District Proposals 

Comment 
# 

EPA Concern(s) Per Letter District Proposed Fix Notes 

1.1.1.a Equipment/Facilities "exempt 
from permit" pursuant to 
Rule 219 will somehow 
"escape" review in the NSR 
process. 

Change definition of EMISSIONS 
UNIT in 1301 to include air 
pollution control equipment. Shift 
1300 applicability notation to 
reference Rules 201/203 as opposed 
to Regulation II so it doesn't imply 
exclusion of 219 permit exempt 
equipment.  Clarify elsewhere in 
Regulation that fugitives (unless 
from a facility on the list of 27 
source categories found in 40 CFR 
51.165(a)(1)(iv)(C)) are excluded 
from calculations. 

Proposed Rule 1301(Y). 
Proposed Rule 1300(B)(1). 
Proposed Rules 1301(GG), 
(JJ), (LL), (GGG), and (III); 
and 1304(E)(2)(a), and 
(E)(3)(a)(iii). 

1.1.1.a Equipment/Facilities "exempt 
from permit" pursuant to 
Rule 219 will somehow 
"escape" review in the NSR 
process. 

Proposed 1300(B)(1) already uses 
term EMISSIONS UNIT as 
opposed to PERMIT UNIT.  This 
makes is clear that all emissions are 
subject to NSR regardless of permit 
status of equipment. 

Proposed Rule 1300(B)(1). 
See also Rule 219(B)(5). 

1.1.1.a Equipment/Facilities "exempt 
from permit" pursuant to 
Rule 219 will "escape" 
regulation (either RACT or 
otherwise). 

No change is needed so long as the 
RACT rule requirements are 
applicable regardless of whether the 
particular Emissions Unit has a 
permit or not. 

Rule 219(B)(6). 

1.1.1.a Equipment/Facilities "exempt 
from permit" pursuant to 
Rule 219 will somehow 
"escape" review in the NSR 
process. 

Ensure 1304 calculations  include 
all EMISSIONS UNITS when 
appropriate.  1304(E)(1) and (2) 
already use term.  Change 
1304(E)(3) to match. 

Proposed Rules 1300(B)(1), 
and 1304(E)(3). 

428 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-29 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun  

Comment 
# 

EPA Concern(s) Per Letter District Proposed Fix Notes 

1.1.1.b While a list of air quality 
models is referenced there is 
no requirement to use the list 
as approved in 40 CFR 51 
Appendix W. 

Provide requirements related to 51 
Apx W in 1302 as necessary for 
clarity/ease of use. 

Proposed Rules 1301(QQ); 
1302(B)(1)(a)(i) and 
(B)(1)(d)(i)a. 

1.1.1.b While a list of air quality 
models is referenced there is 
no requirement to use the list 
as approved in 40 CFR 51 
Appendix W. 

Change definition of MODELING 
to include cross reference to 40 
CFR 51 Appendix W. 

Proposed Rules 1301(EE), 
(HH), (II), (DDD), and 
(FFF); and 1304(E)(2)(a), 
and (E)(3)(a)(iii). 

1.1.2.a Need to provide for 
publication of Minor NSR 
actions 

Specify a "minor NSR" full 30 Day 
"notice" threshold.  Threshold used 
to be justified in Staff Report. 

Proposed Rule 
1302(C)(7)(d). 
See other notice 
requirements per existing 
Rule 221.  Waiting on EPA 
analysis of notice threshold 
justification. 

1.1.2.b Threshold for "FULL" 30 
day notice of Minor NSR 
actions 

Specify a "minor NSR" full 30 Day 
"notice" threshold.  Threshold used 
to be justified in Staff Report. 

Proposed Rule 
1302(C)(7)(d). 
See other notice 
requirements per existing 
Rule 221.  Waiting on EPA 
analysis of notice threshold 
justification. 

1.1.2.b Threshold for HAPS is 
provided by a cross reference 
to Rule 1201 (in AV cross 
reference would be 3001) 
which, while part of an 
approved program, is not a 
SIP rule. 

Ensure 1302(C)(7) contains specific 
numerical threshold for HAPS as 
opposed to a cross reference. 

Proposed Rule 
1302(C)(7)(d)(i) 

429 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-30 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun  

Comment 
# 

EPA Concern(s) Per Letter District Proposed Fix Notes 

1.1.3.a Stack height approval 
procedures as found in 40 
CFR 51.164 (along with 
applicable definitions from 
40 CFR 51.100(hh) through 
(kk)) are not present. 

Add applicable defintions to Rule 
1301.  

Propsed Rules 1301(T), 
(BB), (HH), (TT),  and 
(XXX); 1302(C)(4) and 
(C)(7)(b). 

1.1.3.a Stack height approval 
procedures as found in 40 
CFR 51.164 (along with 
applicable definitions from 
40 CFR 51.100(hh) through 
(kk)) are not present. 

Add a section to 1302(C) regarding 
Stack Height Analysis procedures 
including calculations and 
requirements. 

Propsed Rules 1301(T), 
(BB), (HH), (TT),  and 
(XXX); 1302(C)(4) and 
(C)(7)(b). 

1.2.1.a Fugitive emissions are not 
consistently addressed 
throughout the Regulation. 

Add cross references to  when 
appropriate.   

Proposed Rules 1301(GG), 
(JJ), (LL), (GGG), and (III); 
and 1304(E)(2)(a), and 
(E)(3)(a)(iii). 

1.2.1.a "Net Emissions Increase" 
does not correspond with 
calculations of Historical 
Actual Emissions in regards 
to fugitives.   

Cross check use of term "Net 
Emissions Increase" for 
consistency.   

Proposed Rules 1301(UU), 
and (TTT); 1304(B)(2) and 
(C)(5); 1305(D)(1). 
Note terminology change - 
"Net Emissions Increase" 
includes SERs, "Emissions 
Change" does not. 

1.2.1.a Fugitive emissions are not 
consistently addressed 
throughout the Regulation. 

Standardize terminology and 
references throughout the 
regulation. 

Proposed Rules 1301(GG), 
(JJ), (LL), (GGG), and (III); 
and 1304(E)(2)(a), and 
(E)(3)(a)(iii). 

1.2.1.b Definition of FUGITIVE 
EMISSIONS does not 
contain the phrase 
"functionally equivalent 
opening." 

Modify the 1301 definition of 
FUGITIVE EMISSIONS 

Proposed Rule 1301(GG). 

430 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-31 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun  

Comment 
# 

EPA Concern(s) Per Letter District Proposed Fix Notes 

1.2.1.c "Necessary preconstruction 
approvals or permits" is an 
undefined term. 

Modify the 1301 definition of 
COMMENCE CONSTRUCTION 
to reference the NSR and PSD 
permitting process (Regulation XIII 
and Rule 1600) to clarify this point. 

Proposed Rule 1301(P) 

1.2.1.c "Necessary preconstruction 
approvals or permits" is an 
undefined term. 

Phrase "necessary preconstruction 
approvals or permits" only appears 
in definition of "commence 
construction."  Provide Rule cross 
reference. 

Proposed Rule 1301(P) 

1.2.1.d Defintiion of REGULATED 
AIR POLLUTANT does not 
include "condensable 
particulate matter" as part of 
PM10 and PM2.5 

Modify the definition of 
PRECURSOR to include PM2.5 
Modify the definition of PM10 to 
include applicable provisions of 40 
CFR 51.165(a)(1)(xxxvii)(D).   

Proposed Rules1301(FFF), 
(HHH) and 1700(B)(9) 

1.2.1.e. "Federal Land Manager" is 
an undefined term. 

Add definition of FEDERAL 
LAND MANAGER to Rule 1301 
and include a provision regarding 
"or applicable designee" to allow 
the appropriate secretary to 
designate a local contact to expedite 
review. Keep full definition rather 
than incorporate by reference for 
clarity. 

Proposed Rule 1301(EE). 

1.2.2.a.1 "Surplus," "Permanent" and 
"Quantifiable" are undefined 
terms. 

Add definitions of REAL, 
ENFORCABLE, PERMANENT, 
SURPLUS and QUANTIFIABLE 
to Rule 1301 

Proposed Rules 1301(Z), 
(BBB), (JJJ), (LLL), and 
(ZZZ) 

431 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-32 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun  

Comment 
# 

EPA Concern(s) Per Letter District Proposed Fix Notes 

1.2.2.a.2 Creation of offsets from 
"shutdown" of previously 
unpermitted units can not be 
shown to be "permanent" 
and/or "enforceable" because 
no authorization is required 
for a "replacement"  unit 
which is also unpermitted. 
(Don't create ERCs from 
these) 

Historically not used much (if at 
all).  District proposing to remove 
from 1309(D)(3)(c).  Backstop 
provision by requiring anything 
related to "shutdown" to be Real, 
Enforceable, Permanent, Surplus 
and Quantifiable. 

Proposed Rules 1301(Z), 
(BBB), (JJJ), (LLL), and 
(ZZZ); 1309(D)(3)(b) and 
(D)(3)(c). 

1.2.2.a.3 Mobile/Indirect and Area 
Source "offset" use 
provisions do not specify 
need for a SIP rule regarding 
creations of such offsets to 
ensure that they are "real, 
enfoceable, permanent, 
surplus and quantifiable." 

Add specific mention of SIP rule 
for calculation of such ERC's.  
Combine Mobile, Area and Indirect 
Source "offset" provisions into one 
section as they are similar.  

Proposed Rule 1305(C)(3). 
Note:  Currently there are 
no SIP approved rules for 
these calculations but this 
provision provides option 
for such in the future. 

1.2.2.a.4 No clarity regarding APCO 
discretion regarding what is 
"surplus" (and/or other 
criteria) 

Adding definitions of Real, 
Enforceable, Permanent, Surplus 
and Quantifiable to Rule 1301 will 
solve this. 

Proposed Rules 1301(Z), 
(BBB), (JJJ), (LLL), and 
(ZZZ) 

1.2.2.a.5 Provisions of current Rule 
1302(C)(3)(b)(ii)a. 
referencing 40 CFR 
51.165(a)(3)(ii)(C) do not 
apply to AERs created by 
modification/limitation of 
existing Emissions Units. 

Modify 1302(C)(3)(b)(ii)a. to add 
"or modification/limitation of 
existing Emissions Units" 

Proposed Rule 
1302(C)(3)(b)(ii)a. 
Note:  Terminology change 
AER has been replaced by 
more specific term ERC (for 
Banked reductions) and 
SER (for simultaneous, in 
the same action, reductions) 
as applicable. 

432 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-33 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun  

Comment 
# 

EPA Concern(s) Per Letter District Proposed Fix Notes 

1.2.2.b Potential to Potential test for 
major modification threshold 
when prior Emissions Unit 
was fully offset in a previous 
NSR action might allow new 
units to avoid BACT/LAER. 

Bifurcate "applicability" from 
"offset amount calculations to 
separate issues BACT/LAER issues 
from Offset issues below. 
Note:  Current 1303(A)(4) prohibits 
SERs from being used to avoid 
BACT.  This is also true for prior 
versions of NSR including the SIP 
version. 

Proposed Rules 1303(A)(4); 
1304(B)(1) and 1304(B)(2). 
Note:  1304(B)(1) is used to 
determine applicability and 
does not include use of 
SERs to reduce Emissions 
Change.  1304(B)(2) is used 
to determine amount of 
offsets needed and includes 
SERs (which can be 
calculated using previously 
fully offset PTE) to reduce 
the number of offsets to 0. 

1.2.2.c Potential to Potential test for 
increase in emissions from a 
major modification must be 
determined by summing 
difference between the 
allowable emissions after 
modification (aka Proposed 
Emissions) and the actual 
emissions from each 
emissions unit. 

Bifurcate "applicability" from 
"offset amount" calculations to 
separate from BACT/LAER issue.  
Retain use of "fully offset PTE" as 
part of SER calculations to 
encourage upgrading of equipment.  
Justify equivalency of provisions 
with EPA proposed calculations in 
staff report. Litigate if/when 
necessary.  

Proposed Rule 
1304(C)(2)(d) and 
1305(C)(2). 
Note:  This has been 
colloquially dubbed the 
"Elephant in the Room."  
Issue has been segregated 
such that hopefully it is the 
only issue remaining 
"unsolved." 

1.2.2.c Inclusion of "previously 
banked offsets" in 
determining proposed 
emissions for purposes of 
determining amount of 
offsets needed results in a 
potential to potential test for 
offset amounts. 

District proposing to remove 
"banked offsets" from all 
calculations (it either needs to be 
"in" all of them or "out" of all of 
them).  All calculations 
consolidated into Proposed Rule 
1304. 

Proposed Rule 
1304(E)(3)(iii)  

433 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-34 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun  

Comment 
# 

EPA Concern(s) Per Letter District Proposed Fix Notes 

1.2.2.d When Facility becomes 
"Major" solely due to a 
(enforcement limitation)  
relaxation BACT/LAER (all 
requirements as if new major 
source) needs to be imposed 
as if construction had not yet 
commenced.  (aka a False 
synthetic minor becoming 
major) 

Current 1303(B)(3) already 
provides this.  Wording changes 
proposed to clarify.  Due to SB288 
and other "anti backoff" provisions 
the District treats these as any other 
"pops the major facility threshold" 
action. 

Proposed Rule 1303(B)(3). 

1.2.2.e Need better 
justification/procedure 
regarding interpollutant 
trading, specifically modeling 
requirements especially for 
case-by-case approvals. 

Issue made moot due to court case.  
Added footnote to indicate 
guidance/regulation is needed. 

Proposed Rule 1305(C)(6). 

1.3.1. Cross references to Rule 
1310 are not proper as 1310 
is not a SIP 
submitted/approved rule. 

Rescind rule 1310 as unnecessary 
and remove cross references as 
necessary.  Modify remaining cross 
references to refer to "Major 
Facility" and "Major Modification" 
as defined in 1301. Agreed upon 
necessary items for staff report with 
CARB. 

Provisions and cross 
references removed. 

1.3.2 Cross refences to Regulation 
II will inadvertently omit 
sources from preconstruction 
review. 

Cross check to determine if any 
references to Regulation II would 
be more accurate as references to 
Rules 201 and 203 (permit 
requirement rules). 

Proposed Rules 1300(B)(1) 
and (E)(1)(a); 1302(B)(1), 
(C)(2), (C)(7)(d), (C)(7)(e), 
(D)(3)(a)(ii), (D)(5)(a), 
(D)(6)(a); 1309(B)(1)(e), 
(C)(1)(d). 

1.3.2 Cross refences to Regulation 
II will inadvertently omit 
sources from preconstruction 
review. 

Duplicate issue.  See potential fix 
for Comment 1.1.1.a. 

Proposed Rules 1300(B)(1) 
and 1301(Y). 

434 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-35 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun  

Comment 
# 

EPA Concern(s) Per Letter District Proposed Fix Notes 

1.3.2 Cross refences to Regulation 
II will inadvertently omit 
sources from preconstruction 
review. 

Submit modifications to Rule 219 
in conjunction/concurrently with 
Regulation XIII amendments. 

Rule 219(B)(5). 

1.3.3 Cross references to Rule 
1320 (AV Rule is 1401) are 
not proper as 1320 is not a 
SIP submitted/approved rule. 

Segregate all provisions referencing 
1401 into separate subsections and 
either add "this is not a SIP 
requirement" language in text.  

Proposed Rules 
1302(C)(5)(d), (C)(7)(c); 
1401(A)(2). 

1.3.3 Cross references to Rule 
1320 (AV rule is 1401) are 
not proper as 1320 is not a 
SIP submitted/approved rule. 

Add "This is not SIP" language to 
1401. 

Proposed Rule 1401(A)(2). 

1.3.4. Incorrect cross references Cross check cross references. Done 

2.1 Inconstant references to 
Federal Class I Area. 

Correct terminology throughout the 
regulation (Note: Most references 
are in 1302) 
Add definition of FEDERAL 
CLASS I AREA to Rule 1301 
including any subsidiary  

Proposed Rules 1301(O), 
(DD) and (NN); 
1302(B)(1)(c), 
(B)(1)(d)(i)f., (B)(2)(a)(iii), 
(D)(2)(d), (D)(3)(b)(i)f. 

2.1 Inconstant references to 
Federal Class I Area. 

Add definition of FEDERAL 
CLASS I AREA to Rule 1301 
including any subsidiary definitions 
necessary from 40 CFR 51.301. 

Proposed Rules 1301(O), 
(DD) and (NN); 
1302(B)(1)(c), 
(B)(1)(d)(i)f., (B)(2)(a)(iii), 
(D)(2)(d), (D)(3)(b)(i)f. 

2.2 Bracketed Italicized text not 
removed. 

Remove text in "clean" version 
after adoption.  (Note:  These were 
already mostly done and are merely 
"typo" fixes.) 

Done 

2.3 Typos Fix identified typos Done 

3.1 H2S does not have secondary 
pollutant listed in definition 
of PRECURSOR. 

Since there is no secondary 
pollutant for H2S remove from 
table.   

Proposed Rule 1301(HHH). 

435 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-36 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun  

Comment 
# 

EPA Concern(s) Per Letter District Proposed Fix Notes 

3.2 SIGNIFICANT EMISSION 
RATE table does not contain 
PM10 and PM2.5 

"Significant" table for Regulation 
XIII only applies to nonattainment 
pollutants.  Limit table to 
nonattainment pollutants only (both 
State and Federal).  Attainment 
pollutants will rely on cross 
referencing/adoption by reference 
as applicable. 

Proposed Rules 1301(MM) 
and (TTT); 1700(B) 1st 
sentence. 
Note:  Significance levels 
for NSR purposes are  
greater than the "major 
facility/major modification 
threshold" of 1303(B) and 
therefore are technically 
superfluous to Regulation 
XIII. 

3.3 "Nonattainment Area" is an 
undefined term. 

Add definition of 
NONATTAINMENT AREA to 
Rule 1301 cross referencing 40 
CFR 81.305. 

Proposed Rules 1301(XX) 
and (TTT); 1305(B)(2), 
(C)(1)(a)(ii), (C)(4)(a)(iii), 
(C)(6)(d), (D)(1) and (D)(2). 

3.4 Certain specific items 
directly mentioned as 
"mandatory" parts of an 
application in 40 CFR 
51.160(c)(2) are not included 
in 1302(B). 

Add specific items mentioned in 40 
CFR 51.160(c)(2) to 1302(B).  
Reformat subsections of 1302(B) 
for clarity and ease of use to 
accommodate new items. 

Proposed Rule 1302(B). 

3.5 Cross references to rule 1201 
are improper regarding 
"major facility threshold for 
HAPS' 

Appears to be a duplicate concern 
to 1.1.2.b 

Proposed Rule 
1302(C)(7)(d)(i) 

 

 

  

436 of 527



 
Comment #2 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-37 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun   

 
 
From: Haro, Michael <michael.haro@lmco.com>  
Sent: Monday, June 14, 2021 2:23 PM 
To: Bret Banks <bbanks@avaqmd.ca.gov>; Karen Nowak <k2nowak@mdaqmd.ca.gov> 
Cc: Stepman, Marci B <marci.b.stepman@lmco.com>; Johnson, Suzanne Q 
<suzanne.q.johnson@lmco.com>; Ko, REENU M <reenu.m.ko@lmco.com>; Rietzel, Ryan N 
<ryan.n.rietzel@lmco.com> 
Subject: Comments Regarding AVAQMD Proposed Amendments to Regulation XIII - New Source Review 
 
Bret/Karen, 
 
Per the instructions in AVAQMD’s Frequently Asked Questions About Proposed Amendments to 
Regulation XIII – New Source Review, Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration and 
conforming changes to Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants, we are submitting 
the following comments.  
 
1. Lockheed Martin recommends that the AVAQMD Governing Board not approve the proposed 

amendments to Regulation XIII and instead asks District staff to postpone rule adoption to provide 
an opportunity for Antelope Valley businesses to fully review and evaluate the proposed changes. 

2. Lockheed Martin is in a period of unprecedented growth and facility expansion with plans underway 
to construct and modify its manufacturing operations and related infrastructure, providing many 
new jobs for the Antelope Valley. As such, we are concerned that the proposed New Source Review 
changes could adversely impact these plans.  

3. Because Lockheed Martin was not a party to referenced communications, recently added to the 
public record, between the AVAQMD, MDAQMD, US EPA and possibly the California Air Resources 
Board, we would like to understand how AVAQMD’s proposed language addresses and satisfies 
EPA’s concerns and how they affect New Source Review requirements for Lockheed Martin (e.g., the 
potential-to-potential versus actual-to-potential tests, calculating changes to emissions, etc.). 

 
Lockheed Martin plans to participate in the June 15, 2021 AVAQMD Governing Board Public Hearing to 
voice its concerns regarding these changes. Since the stated AVAQMD due date for NSR revision is 
August 3, 2021, Lockheed Martin respectfully requests that the District and Board postpone adoption of 
these significant rule changes, allowing businesses the time necessary to fully evaluate the impact of the 
proposed changes on vital Lockheed Martin and national defense priorities. 
 
Michael Haro 
Environmental Engineer Sr Staff 
Lockheed Martin Aeronautics Co 
Advanced Development Programs 
Office 661-572-4302 
Policy: ESH is Everyone’s Responsibility! 

 
  

437 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-38 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun   

AVAQMD Responses to Comment #2 

Comment 2-1:  Postpone the adoption of the amendments to allow opportunity for Antelope 
Valley businesses to fully review and evaluate the proposed changes. 

Response 2-1:  The adoption of the proposed amendments has been continued from June 15 to 
July 20, 2021. 

Comment 2-2:  Due to a period of unprecedented growth and facility expansion Lockheed 
Martin is concerned that the proposed New Source Review changes could adversely impact these 
plans. 

Response 2-2:  The proposed amendments have been carefully designed to avoid any adverse 
impact on industry.  There are some minor additional requirements which are now explicitly 
required in a permit application (namely provision of stack height information and inclusion of 
PSD information).  In addition, most all changes to proposed Rule 1302(B) require information 
that was already being provided by applicants under the current rule provisions.  A second 
procedural change, additional public notice for certain minor NSR actions, should also have no 
additional impact due to the currently existing notice requirements already imposed by District 
Rule 212.   

As is noted in the staff report the primary change to Regulation XIII is the bifurcation of the 
“applicability” calculations for BACT and Offsets from the “amount” calculations which 
determine the number of offsets necessary.  This bifurcation is found in Rule 1304(B) which now 
contains both (B)(1) the General Emissions Change calculation (which is used to determine 
whether BACT and/or Offsets are necessary) and (B)(2) the Net Emissions Change calculation 
(which is used primarily to determine how many offsets are needed).  Thus, as is noted in the 
staff report, it is highly possible in some cases for offsets to be determined to be necessary under 
the calculation contained in subsection (B)(1) but the amount offsets needed under the (B)(2) 
calculation is zero. 

There appear to be three major misconceptions regarding the application in real world scenarios 
of this change.  The first is that the specific limitation on total facility emissions change 
contained in proposed 1304(B)(1)(b) to only positive changes (aka does not use any SERs in the 
calculation) would mean that any change, regardless of how minor, would trigger BACT under 
the provisions of 1303(A).3  It must be noted, however, that under the current provisions this is 
already the case.4  In current 1304(B)(1) emissions change is calculated on an emissions unit by 
emissions unit basis.  It is implied that the entire Facility emissions change would be the sum of 
all the unit by unit changes.  1303(A)(4) currently already excludes the use of SERs from any 
calculation to determine whether or not BACT applies under 1303(A)(1-3).   

                                                 
3 Note that Rule 1303(A) provisions specifically apply to Modified Emission Unit(s). 
4 Figures 2 and 3 in the Staff Report show the differences in the analysis flow while Tables 5 and 6 contain example 
calculations for both the current and proposed rule language in two different situations.  Please note that the bottom 
line, Step 10, remains the same. 

438 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-39 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun   

Please note that the provisions of current 1303(A)(4) were added in the 3/20/2001 amendments 
as a result of comments made by CARB which indicated that using Simultaneous Emissions 
Reductions (SERs) to avoid BACT was violative of H&S Code §40920.5.5,6  Please also note 
that the prior version,7 as inherited from SCAQMD on July 1, 1997 by operation of statute,8 
contained similar requirements for BACT in then Rules 1303(a)(1) and 1306(d) which required 
BACT in most situations regardless of whether or not any modeling or offsetting exemptions 
from then Rule 1304 happened to apply.  In addition, USEPA has indicated in comments to the 
MDAQMD9 that use of “potential to potential” tests (aka using SERs which take advantage of 
potential to emit amounts which were fully offset in a previous permitting action) for 
applicability is unacceptable under 40 CFR 51.165(a)(2)(ii)(C) in that it could allow certain 
projects to avoid the application of LAER.10  Under both current and previous rules the 
AVAQMD has applied BACT to any Modification11 where the emissions or potential to emit for 
any nonattainment air pollutants from any new or Modified Permit Unit is >25 lbs/day or any 
new or Modified Permit Unit at a Major Facility.  The proposed language is designed to make 
this absolutely clear. 

The second misconception appears to be that the bifurcation of the applicability calculations 
under proposed 1304(B)(1) from the amount of offsets needed calculation in 1304(B)(2) 
obliterates the ability to use fully offset Potential to Emit (PTE) in lieu of HAE to reduce the 
offset burden.  This is untrue.  The proposed language moves the use of fully offset PTE from its 
original location in current 1304(E)(2)(a)(iv) into proposed 1304(C) regarding SERs.  Current 
1304(E)(2)(a)(iv) was only usable by Major Facilities which happened to have existing permit 
units which had been fully offset previously.  Such Facilities would, in effect, use reductions in 
the PTE from such units to in effect “fund” additional units or increases in emissions elsewhere 
at the Facility.  While under the current rule formulation this activity occurred all at once in a 
single calculation the proposed rule simply splits it into two separate instances.12  

Once again USEPA has indicated in regards to similar MDAQMD language, that the use of 
“potential to potential” tests (aka using SERs which take advantage of potential to emit amounts 
which were fully offset in a previous permitting action) for determining the amount of offsets 
necessary is violative of 40 CFR 51.165(a)(3)(ii)(J) in that it does not result in fully offsetting the 
                                                 
5 AVAQMD, Staff Report Amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 3/20/2001 Appendix C, pgs. C-6, 
C-11, C-16 and C-23 (PDF file pgs. 193, 198, 204 and 210 respectively). 
6 H&S Code §40920.5 applies to districts with extreme ozone nonattainment for state purposes, namely SCAQMD.  
The AVAQMD is, however, also subject to BACT requirements pursuant to H&S Code §40918(a)(1). 
7 SCAQMD Regulation XIII, 5/10/1996. 
8 Former H&S Code §40106(e) (Stats. 1996, Ch. 542, Section 1; Repealed by Stats 2001, Ch. 163). 
9 USEPA Letter, L. Beckham to B. Poiriez - MDAQMD New Source Review Program, 12/19/2019; Comment 
1.2.2.b. 
10 USEPA has confirmed that it considers BACT in California to be in general the equivalent to LAER.  See USEPA 
Email, K. Nguyen to K. Nowak – MDAQMD NSR Logistics Call, 2/28/2020; Attachment: 02-28-20 Initial EPA 
Responses to MDAQMD Letter Dated January 28.pdf. 
11 Note: If the proposed change either does not meets the definitional requirements in 1301(QQ) or happens to 
constitute an exception under 1301(QQ)(1) then such a change is not a Modification (capitalized).  
12 Note:  General Emissions Change under proposed 1304(B)(1) only uses increases in emissions to determine 
applicability while the Net Emissions Change calculation under proposed 1304(B)(2) uses all changes, both 
increases and decreases. 

439 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-40 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun   

total increased emissions from a particular project.13  As discussed in staff report sections 
VI.A.6. and VI.E.5. the AVAQMD is of the opinion that the proposed calculation methodology 
and structure of the New Source Review program results in at least as many overall emissions 
reductions as that espoused by USEPA.  This is especially true because under current USEPA De 
Minimis provisions “small” increases of less than the major facility threshold amounts are 
allowed to occur over a rolling period of 5 years.14  Those De Minimis provisions, if applied in 
the AVAQMD, would effectively allow an unoffset increase in PTE of up to 25 tpy to occur at a 
Facility over a rolling 5 years along with a commensurate actual increase in emissions as the 
Facility would, in all likelihood, increase operations to remain “close” to their newly increased 
PTE.15  This is the sole remaining point of disagreement between the District and USEPA 
regarding the approvability of the District’s NSR program.  The bifurcation of the applicability 
of BACT and Offsets from the amount of offsets required has been designed to segregate this 
issue and allow for further discussions and potential adjudication without sacrificing the ability 
of Facilities to use fully offset PTE to create SERs and “self-fund” upgrades underneath their 
existing fully previously offset PTE. 

The third misconception is found in the proposed calculations of SERs themselves.  Specifically, 
industry is concerned that the use of the term “decrease” in proposed 1304(C)(2)(d)(ii) would 
somehow require a “reduction” or other adjustment in the PTE of the Facility as a whole.  While 
this might be true if this provision was a “stand alone” provision.  As this proposed provision is 
located under the heading “Calculating SERs” and SERs are determined on a unit by unit basis 
the phrase “emissions change from a calculation using this provision” would also be determined 
on a unit by unit basis.  Couple this with the fact that an SER represents a reduction from the 
present emissions (or fully offset PTE), rendering it a negative number.  Proposed 
1304(C)(2)(d)(ii) merely states this fact.  However, to ensure that there is no confusion, the 
District has added the words “or not an increase” immediately after the word “decrease” in this 
section. 

Comment 2-3:  Lockheed Martin was not party to referenced communications and would like to 
understand how AVAQMD’s language satisfies USEPA’s concerns. 

Response 2-3:  Unfortunately, due to the extensive and exhaustive negotiations occurring in 
MDAQMD and the time constraints imposed by the upcoming August 3, 2021 deadline for 
submission of either a certification of NSR program or a new NSR program the time period for 
review was relatively short.  However, it must be noted that USEPAs comments and similar 
language changes to satisfy such comments were fully available in the MDAQMD’s adoption 
process16 and AVAQMD industry was notified that such changes would need to be substantially 

                                                 
13 USEPA Letter, L. Beckham to B. Poiriez - MDAQMD New Source Review Program, 12/19/2019; Comment 
1.2.2.c. 
14 In the AVAQMD this increase would be 25 tpy of NOx or VOC over a rolling 5 years. 
15 This is not allowed under either the current AVAQMD’s NSR rules or the proposed amendments as it is in direct 
conflict with H&S Code 40918(a)(1) “no net increase” provisions as well as the provisions of SB288 of 2003 (H&S 
Code §§42500 et seq.) 
16 MDAQMD Final Staff Report, Amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review, Rule 1600- Prevention of 
Significant Deterioration and Rescission of Rule 1310- Federal Major Facilities and Major Modifications, 

440 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-41 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun   

replicated in the AVAQMD.  In addition, the staff report produced for this action was developed 
to be more comprehensive than usual to fully justify and explain how the proposed rule language 
satisfies USEPA’s concerns.  

  

                                                 
3/22/2021; MDAQMD Governing Board Agenda Item #12, 3/22/2021; and MDAQMD Resolution 21-03, 
3/22/2021. 

441 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-42 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun   

This page intentionally left blank. 

 

442 of 527



 
Comment #3 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-43 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun   

From: Jung, George [US] (AS) <George.Jung@ngc.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, June 15, 2021 8:12 AM 
To: Bret Banks <bbanks@avaqmd.ca.gov> 
Subject: NGC's Comments to Proposed Amendments to Regulation XIII 
 

Bret: 

We would like this email presented to the Governing Board. I believe Lisa, Gary, and 
myself will be calling in to the meeting as well.  

Thanks 

George 

==================================================================
============================================ 

June 15, 2021 

Governing Board 
Antelope Valley Air Pollution Control District 
43301 Division Street, Suite 206 
P.O. Box 4409  
Lancaster, CA  93539-4409 
 
 
Re: Agenda Item 11 - Amendment of Regulation XIII – New Source Review, 
Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration and Rule 1401 – New 
Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants 

 

Members of the Board: 

Northrop Grumman Corporation is writing to request the hearing on the subject rule be 
postponed one month to July 20, 2021 to allow for additional time to review and analyze 
the rule changes.  Our reasons for requesting the one-month extension are as follows: 

(1) The rule revisions are being made based on discussions with EPA going back to 
October 2019 which we were not a part of 

(2) EPA provided a "list of deficiencies in December of 2019" which was only added 
to the public record on June 14  

(3) We feel more time is needed to understand what changes EPA is requiring and 
whether the specific language proposed by AVAQMD goes beyond what is needed 
to address the problem(s) they have identified. 
For example, EPA commented in the December 2019 letter 1.2.2b that the 
“Potential to Potential” test does not satisfy the applicability procedure 
requirements of 40 CFR 51.165(a)(2)(ii)(C).  However, we believe that the changes 

443 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-44 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun   

made to the rule go further than required, also disallowing the “actual-to-potential” 
test. 

The rule does this by changing to the calculation such that only positive changes 
are considered when assessing the requirement for BACT as follows:   

Revised Rule 1303(A)(4) states, “For purposes of determining applicability 
of this Section, Potential to Emit is calculated pursuant to the provisions of 
District Rule 1304(E)(3), any Emissions Change is calculated pursuant to 
the provisions of District Rule 1304(B)(1), and SERs shall not be used in 
such calculations.” 

And rule 1304(B)(1)(b) Calculating Emissions Changes in a Facility states 
“the emissions change for a project at new or Modified Facility is the sum of 
all the positive Emissions Changes for each Emissions Unit(s) which occur 
at the Facility at the same time or in connection with the same permitting 
action.”  

EPA states in their letter “that a significant emissions increase is projected to occur 
if the sum of the difference between the projected actual emissions and the 
baseline actual emissions, equals or exceeds the significance threshold for the 
pollutant emitted. This applicability test is referred to as an “actual- to-projected-
actual” test. States may also choose to adopt an “actual-to-potential” test.”   

Our reading of the proposed changes to Regulation XIII, allowing for summing only 
positive changes, eliminates this EPA approvable approach for triggering NSR and is 
therefore more stringent than required. 

Northrop Grumman facilities are in period of expansion with plans for additional painting 
facilities, IC engines, ovens, and makeup air units as well as plans for modernizing 
existing equipment.  Facility expansion results in jobs and provides a more robust 
economy for the Antelope Valley community.  

AVAQMD staff state in the staff presentation that their due date for NSR revision is 
August 3, 2021. Northrop Grumman, operations in the Antelope Valley are vital to national 
security, and we respectfully request that the Board postpone the hearing on these 
significant rule changes to July 20, 2021, allowing us the time to fully evaluate the 
proposed changes the impacts of these changes. 

Sincerely, 

Northrop Grumman Corporation 
 

 

  

444 of 527



 

AVAQMD Reg. XIII G-45 
SR Appendix G - 2021 18 Jun   

AVAQMD Responses to Comment #3 

Comment 3-1:  Northrop Grumman was not a part of discussions with USEPA dating back to 
October 2019; the list of deficiencies was added to the public record on June 14; and more time 
is needed to understand USEPA’s concerns. 

Response 3-1:  The adoption of the proposed amendments has been continued from June 15 to 
July 20, 2021. 

Comment 3-2:  The use of the term “positive emissions changes” in proposed 1304(B)(1)(b) 
appears to disallow the use of an actual to projected actual test. 

Response 3-2:  This is a misconception and misreading of this provision in relation to the entire 
scope and structure of the regulation as discussed in Response 2-2 above.  In fact, the proposed 
1304(B)(1)(b) language could be completely omitted from the regulation and the underlying 
applicability determination for BACT and Offsets would not change.17  This subsection merely 
provides a reminder that due to the shift of the use of fully offset PTE from its current location in 
the HAE definition in 1304(E)(2)(a)(iv) to the SER calculation provisions of proposed 
1304(C)(2)(d), SERs are not usable in determining the initial applicability of BACT and Offsets.  
As is noted in Response 2-2 for BACT this is consistent with current and past practice.  As also 
noted in Response 2-2 shifting the use of fully offset PTE into the SER calculation, given 
USEPA’s vehement objections to any use of fully offset PTE in any circumstances, has been 
designed to segregate this issue and allow for further discussions and potential adjudication of 
the issue without jeopardizing approvability of the rest of the NSR provisions. 

                                                 
17 See provisions of both current and proposed Rule 1303. 

445 of 527



Frequently Asked Questions About 
Proposed Amendments to Regulation XIII – New Source Review  

Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration and conforming changes to 
Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants 

 
Why are the NSR & PSD Rules Being Amended? 
 
The 2015 change to the Ozone (O3) National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) and the designation of the 
AVAQMD as nonattainment for O3 triggered a set of Federal Clean Air Act (FCAA) mandatory submission requirements 
including a certification that the AVAQMD’s Nonattainment New Source Review (NSR) program meets or exceeds 
FCAA requirements.  This certification and rule modifications if necessary are required to be submitted to USEPA on or 
before August 3, 2021.  The USEPA has indicated that a significant number of NSR rules in California, including those in 
the neighboring Mojave Desert AQMD and South Coast AQMD, cannot make this certification due to a number of 
alleged deficiencies.  Since AVAQMD’s NSR and PSD rules are derived from and highly similar to the rules in the 
neighboring district many of the same alleged deficiencies are present in the AVAQMD’s rules.  The MDAQMD has 
recently concluded an intensive process with USEPA to address the deficiencies and the AVAQMD is proposing to utilize 
this work as a basis for its own proposed amendments.   
 
What is Proposed to be Changed? 
 
A good portion of the contemplated changes are simply clarifications of existing policy and definitional additions for 
clarity and consistency.  The proposed substantive changes are as follows: 

• Addition of a Stack Height Analysis (Required by 40 CFR 51.164). 
• Addition of a 30-day Notice & Comment Period for certain “Minor NSR” permitting actions. 
• Additions of provisions to allow for E-noticing of NSR permitting actions. 
• Addition of provisions to allow PSD permitting, Title V Permit issuance and modifications; and certain Toxic 

NSR actions to be performed and noticed concurrently with the NSR actions if the applicant so wishes.  
• Bifurcation of the applicability calculations for BACT and Offsets from the calculations used to determine how 

many offsetting emissions reductions are necessary. 
• Removal of Rule 1310 as it was effectively unused due to the impact of other, non-air quality, requirements of 

State law (CEQA). 
• Reformatting and restructuring Regulation XVII from its current South Coast AQMD derived formulation to an 

“adoption by reference” formulation which should allow the AVAQMD to obtain PSD delegation and local 
control over PSD permitting actives. 

 
How Will These Changes Affect My Facility? 
 
The proposed changes will primarily affect the calculations and methodologies used in the AVAQMD’s engineering 
analysis.  Applicability thresholds will remain the same and the net result in terms of permit conditions should also remain 
the same.  Amounts of offsetting emissions reductions needed, when such are required, is not proposed to change.  Certain 
“Minor NSR” permitting activities will require a 30-day notice and comment period before construction can commence 
and a 45-day review period will be required if you choose to have a Title V Permit modification performed concurrently 
with NSR review.   
 
How Do I Learn More? 
 
A redline version indicating specific language changes in underline/strikeout format and containing [bracketed and 
italicized] notations regarding the reason for each change along with a Draft Staff Report is available for download on the 
AVAQMD website at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/rule-plan-development.  Further information can be obtained by contacting 
either Bret Banks – bbanks@avaqmd.ca.gov or Karen K. Nowak – k2nowak@mdaqmd.ca.gov. 
 
How Can I Participate in the Rule Development Process? 
 
You may submit comments via email to the addresses above or in writing to the District Offices at 43301 Division Street, 
Ste 206, Lancaster, CA, 93535-4649.  You may also participate in Governing Meetings where the proposed amendments 
will be discussed.  An informative “Set Date” item has been placed on the May 18, 2021 Governing Board Agenda and 
the Public Hearing on the amendment has been scheduled for June 15, 2021.  Further meeting information may be 
obtained at https://avaqmd.ca.gov/governing-board.   

446 of 527



NOTICE OF EXEMPTION

TO: Los Angeles County Clerk
12400 E. Imperial Hwy, #1001
Norwalk, CA 90650

FROM: Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District
43301 Division Street, Suite 206
Lancaster, CA 93535-4649

PROJECT TITLE:  Amendment of Regulation XIII – New Source Review, amendment of Regulation 
XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and conforming changes to Rule 1401 – New Source 
Review for Toxic Air Contaminants

PROJECT LOCATION – SPECIFIC:  Los Angeles County portion of the Mojave Desert Air Basin.

PROJECT LOCATION – COUNTY:  Los Angeles County

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT:  The above rules are proposed for amendment to clarify and conform 
language to current District practices.  Basis applicability threshold values remain unchanged.  
Substantive amendments include addition of definitions, addition of Stack Height analysis, addition of 
30 day notice period for minor NSR actions, bifurcation of calculation methods into two distinct 
calculations (applicability and offset amounts), removal of current unused and unusable provisions, and 
shift of Regulation XVII to an adoption by reference format.

NAME OF PUBLIC AGENCY APPROVING PROJECT:  Antelope Valley AQMD

NAME OF PERSON OR AGENCY CARRYING OUT PROJECT:  Antelope Valley AQMD

EXEMPT STATUS (CHECK ONE)
Ministerial (Pub. Res. Code §21080(b)(1); 14 Cal Code Reg. §15268)
Emergency Project (Pub. Res. Code §21080(b)(4); 14 Cal Code Reg. §15269(b))

     X    Categorical Exemption – Class 8 (14 Cal Code Reg. §15308)

REASONS WHY PROJECT IS EXEMPT: The proposed amendments are exempt from CEQA 
review because the actions do not result in a change of any thresholds or in the permitting status of any 
class or category of equipment.  In addition, the proposed amendments increase the environmental 
protection in that the result in notice to a wider number of agencies and the general public for a greater 
amount of time prior to permit issuance.  

LEAD AGENCY CONTACT PERSON:  Bret Banks              PHONE:  (661) 723-8070

SIGNATURE:  ______________ TITLE:  Executive Director   DATE:  July 20, 2021

DATE RECEIVED FOR FILING:

447 of 527





Proposed Amendments to 
Regulation XIII – New Source Review
and
Regulation XVII– Prevention of 
Significant Deterioration

AVAQMD Governing Board Meeting
July 20, 2021 
(continued from June 15, 2021)

448 of 527




Why are these Rules 

Proposed for Amendment?
 Changes to the National Ambient Air Quality Standards 

(NAAQS) result in mandatory State Implementation Plan 
updates.

 Ozone NAAQS changed to 70 ppb in 2015.

 In 2018 EPA finalized the implementation rules and designations 
setting in motion deadlines for SIP submissions.

 There is a 3 year deadline for some submissions, 4 years for 
others.

 AVAQMD was designated nonattainment for Ozone and 
classified Severe.

449 of 527




Why are these Rules

Proposed for Amendment? (continued)
 One of the mandatory submissions is a “certification” that the District’s New 

Source Review programs meet or exceed the Federal Clean Air Act 
requirements.

 In October 2019 USEPA informed the MDAQMD that there were 
“deficiencies” in it’s NSR Program which required amendment to the rules 
to meet the certification requirement and noted that AVAQMD Rules had 
“similar problems.” 

 USEPA provided a list of these “deficiencies” in December of 2019 to 
MDAQMD.

 MDAQMD worked with USEPA and CARB on proposed amendments, adopting 
them in March.

 Many of the same changes are applied in the rules as proposed for AV.

450 of 527




Deadlines and

Consequences
 The due date for NSR revisions to be submitted to USEPA for the District is 

8/3/2021.

 CARB is the submitting agency so we submit to CARB and they submit to 
USEPA.  Usually takes 30-60 days.

 USEPA then has time to review and approve/disapprove the submission.

 If we do not submit a revised NSR rule that satisfies USEPA they can:

 Disapprove the NSR program and impose their own via Federal Implementation 
Plan.

 Give a limited approval/disapproval to what is currently in the rulebook and 
impose extra requirements.

451 of 527




What Exactly is Being Changed?

 It looks like a lot of changes BUT many changes are:

 Additions and clarifications of definitions that are used by the 
District already.

 Clarifications of existing policies and procedures.

 Some reorganization for clarity. 

 A few additional provisions to allow Federal Operating Permit (Title 
V Permit) changes to be issued at the same time and in the same 
action as the NSR analysis.

452 of 527




Substantive Changes 

Proposed
 Addition of “Stack Height Analysis”

 Addition of 30 day Notice/Comment period for some Minor NSR 
level changes.

 Clarification of PM10 Major Facility BACT trigger level.

 Bifurcation of emissions calculations into 2 different calculations: 
“applicability” and “amount of offsets” 

 Removal of unused Rule 1310.

 Shifting Regulation XVII – PSD from a “written out” format to an 
“adopt by reference” rule to allow direct delegation.

453 of 527




How Will These Changes

Affect Facilities?
 Thresholds do not change from current.

 Permit conditions and requirements shouldn’t change from current.

 Most changes will be in the Engineering Evaluation produced by the District and 
Facilities won’t really see them.  

 Some minor permitting activities will need to wait 30 days prior to commencing 
construction for the notice period to run and the final permit to be issued.

 If “Enhanced NSR” status is granted by USEPA, a Facility will be able to request 
that its Title V Permit be updated in the same action as the NSR permit 
issuance.

 If PSD authority is delegated by USEPA we will be able to do the PSD permit 
locally in the same action as the NSR permit. 

454 of 527




Aerospace Question

#1

 Will use of only positive changes in “Emissions Change” 
calculation require BACT more often?

 No – BACT already required for any Modified Emissions Unit at a 
Major Facility (1303(A)(3)) & SERs can not be used in determining 
BACT applicability (1303(A)(4)).

 Modified is defined in proposed 1301(RR) and remains 
substantively the same as the present definition.

455 of 527




Aerospace Question

#2

 Will use of only positive changes in “Emissions Change” 
calculation require Offsets more often?

 Technically yes.

 BUT the amount of offsets needed, calculated using Net Emissions 
Change from proposed 1304(B)(2), includes all decreases and 
Simultaneous Emissions Reductions, which enables the Facility to 
decrease the amount of offsets actually needed to 0.

456 of 527




Aerospace Question

#3

 Do the proposed changes eliminate the use of previously offset 
PTE?

 No – While the general definition of HAE no longer includes the 
use of previously offset PTE it still may be used in the creation of 
Simultaneous Emissions Reductions to reduce the amount of 
offsets needed for a particular project.

 A Facility will still be able to take a Federally Enforceable limit on 
an existing fully offset Emissions Unit and “self-fund” a new piece 
of equipment elsewhere at the Facility. 

457 of 527




Aerospace Question

#4
 Since USEPA objects to the use of fully offset PTE in any emissions 

calculations what happens once the Regulation is submitted?

 USEPA reviews the rule and produces a proposed rule making either 
approving, disapproving, or having a limited approval/limited 
disapproval. 

 District (and anyone else) can comment on the proposed rule making 
indicating agreement or disagreement and why.

 EPA finalizes the rulemaking. 

 District can challenge the final rule in court.

 In the meantime, since the current regulation is more stringent than the 
existing SIP version, the District uses the new regulation.

458 of 527




Questions?

459 of 527



 460 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Conduct a public 

hearing to consider the amendment of Rule 301 – Permit Fees: a. Open public hearing; b. 

Receive staff report; c. Receive public testimony; d. Close public hearing; e. Make a 

determination that the CEQA Categorical Exemption applies; f. Waive reading of 

Resolution; g. Adopt Resolution making appropriate findings, certifying the Notice of 

Exemption, amending the Rule and directing staff actions.  Presenter:  Barbara Lods, 

Operations Manager. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

460 of 527



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM #7

DATE:  July 20, 2021

RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct a public hearing to consider the amendment of Rule 
301 – Permit Fees: a. Open public hearing; b. Receive staff report; c. Receive public 
testimony; d. Close public hearing; e. Make a determination that the CEQA Categorical 
Exemption applies; f. Waive reading of Resolution; g. Adopt Resolution making 
appropriate findings, certifying the Notice of Exemption, amending the Rule and 
directing staff actions.

SUMMARY:  Rule 301 is proposed for amendment to adjust fees by five percent (5%) 
to recover the rising costs associated with issuing licenses and permits, performing 
investigations, inspections, and audits, and the administrative enforcement.

Therefore, the proposed fee adjustment is well within the provisions of Health & Safety 
Code §42311(a) and falls within the exemption found in Article XIIIC §1(e)(3) of the 
California. Constitution.

BACKGROUND: Rule 301 – Permit Fees was last amended 08/18/2020. The 
08/18/2020 effective 01/01/2021 version is the current version in the AVAQMD 
rulebook.  

Rule 301 is proposed for amendment to ensure that the costs(fees) are aligned with the 
reasonable regulatory costs of the programs they support. The proposed five percent (5%) 
fee adjustment to Rules 301 is designed to recover the rising costs associated with issuing 
licenses and permits, performing investigations, inspections, and audits, and the 
administrative enforcement.

A Notice of Exemption, Categorical Exemption (Class8; 14 Cal. Code Reg. §15308) will 
be prepared by the AVAQMD for the amendment of Rule 301 pursuant to the 
requirements of CEQA.

461 of 527



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM #7 PAGE 2

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION: Health & Safety Code §§40702 and 40703 require 
the Governing Board to hold a public hearing before adopting rules and regulation.  Also, 42 
U.S.C. §7410(l) (FCAA §110(l)) requires that all State Implementation Plan (SIP) revisions be 
adopted after public notice and hearing.

REVIEW BY OTHERS:  This item was reviewed by Karen Nowak, District Counsel as to legal 
form and by Bret Banks, Executive Director – Antelope Valley Operations on or about July 6, 
2021.

FINANCIAL DATA:  No increase in appropriation is anticipated.

PRESENTER:  Barbara Lods, Operations Manager.

462 of 527



RESOLUTION ______

Page 1 of 3

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR 
QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT MAKING FINDINGS, CERTIFYING THE NOTICE OF 
EXEMPTION, AMENDING RULE 301 – PERMIT FEES AND DIRECTING STAFF ACTIONS.

On July 20, 2021, on motion by Member      , seconded by Member      , and carried, the 

following resolution is adopted:

WHEREAS, the Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District (AVAQMD) has authority 

pursuant to California Health and Safety Code (H & S Code) §§40702, 40725-40728 to adopt, amend or 

repeal rules and regulations; and

WHEREAS, on July 1, 1997 the Antelope Valley Air Pollution Control District (AVAPCD) was 

created pursuant to statute (former Health & Safety (H&S) Code §40106, A.B. 266-Knight Ch. 542, statutes 

of 1996) and assumed all air pollution control responsibilities from the South Coast Air Quality 

Management District (SCAQMD) for the area of Los Angeles County outside the South Coast Air Basin; 

and

WHEREAS, the SCAQMD rules in effect within the jurisdiction of the AVAPCD remained in 

effect until the AVAPCD Governing Board superseded or amended them; and

WHEREAS, on January 1, 2002 the AVAQMD was created pursuant to statute (H&S Code §41300 

et seq.) to replace the AVAPCD; and

WHEREAS, once again the rules in effect at the time of the change remained in effect until the 

AVAQMD Governing Board superseded or amended them; and

WHEREAS, the District’s mandated functions such as compliance, permit issuance, and permit 

administration are labor intensive; and

WHEREAS, therefore, the related fee revenue should be structured to support the relevant 

regulatory and administrative activities; and

WHEREAS, the 2021-2022 budget includes anticipated revenue derived from a proposed 5% fee 

increase to Rule 301 – Permit Fees to recover the rising costs of issuing air quality permits, performing 

inspections, investigations, and enforcing District rules and regulations; and

WHEREAS, in addition, the AVAQMD is proposing a new fee category for Internal Combustion 

Engines to more equitably recover permitting and inspection costs for engines over a specific horsepower; 

and

463 of 527



RESOLUTION ______

Page 2 of 3

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

WHEREAS, therefore, the proposed fee adjustment is well within the provisions of Health & Safety 

Code §42311(a) and falls within the exemption found in Article XIIIC §1(e)(3) of the California 

Constitution; and

WHEREAS, to allow time to implement the proposed fee changes, the amendment of Rule 301 – 

Permit Fees is proposed to be effective on January 1, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to Rule 301 are clear in that the meaning can be easily 

understood by the persons impacted by the rule; and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to Rule 301 are in harmony with, and not in conflict with, 

or contradictory to existing statutes, court decisions, or state or federal regulations because these laws and 

regulations allow for the proposed amendments to the fee rules; and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment of Rule 301 does not impose the same requirements as any 

existing state or federal regulation because H&S Code §40702 allows the District to adopt, amend or repeal 

rules and regulations, and H&S Code §42311 and various other sections merely authorize the imposition of 

such fees but do not specify the types and amounts of fees to be imposed; and

WHEREAS, the proposed fee increase will recover the increase projected for expenditures related 

to the costs of the permitting program and implementing district rules and regulations; issuing air quality 

permits; performing facility inspections, and public complaint investigations and rule development 

activities.; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing has been properly noticed and conducted, pursuant to H & S Code 

§40725, concerning the proposed amendments to Rule 301; and

WHEREAS, a Notice of Exemption, a Categorical Exemption (Class 8, 14 CCR §15308) for the 

proposed amendments to Rule 301, completed in compliance with the California Environmental Quality 

Act (CEQA), has been presented to the AVAQMD Board; each member having reviewed, considered and 

approved the information contained therein prior to acting on the proposed amendments to Rule 301, and 

the AVAQMD Board having determined that the proposed amendments will not have any potential for 

resulting in any adverse impact upon the environment; and

WHEREAS, the Board of the AVAQMD has considered the evidence presented at the public 

hearing; and

464 of 527



RESOLUTION ______

Page 3 of 3

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Board of the AVAQMD finds that 

the proposed amendments to Rule 301 – Permit Fees are necessary, authorized, clear, consistent, non-

duplicative and properly referenced; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Governing Board of the AVAQMD hereby makes a 

finding that the Class 8 Categorical Exemption (14 CCR §15308) applies and certifies the Notice of 

Exemption for the proposed amendments to Rule 301 – Permit Fees; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of the AVAQMD does hereby adopt, pursuant to 

the authority granted by law, the proposed amendments to Rule 301 – Permit Fees as set forth in the 

attachments to this resolution and incorporated herein by this reference; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption, 

that the Senior Executive Analyst is directed to file the Notice of Exemption in compliance with the 

provisions of CEQA.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Antelope Valley Air Quality 

Management District by the following vote:

AYES: MEMBER:

NOES: MEMBER:

ABSENT: MEMBER:

ABSTAIN: MEMBER:

)
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

) SS:
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )

)

I, Deanna Hernandez, Senior Executive Analyst of the Governing Board of the Antelope Valley Air Quality 
Management District, hereby certify the foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of the record of the action as 
the same appears in the Official Minutes of said Governing Board at its meeting of July 20, 2021.

_______________________________________
Senior Executive Analyst 
Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District.

465 of 527



(Adopted: 02/04/77; Amended: 05/27/77; Amended: 01/06/78; 
Amended: 06/16/78; Amended: 04/04/80; Amended: 09/05/80; 
Amended: 06/05/81; Amended: 09/09/82; Amended: 12/03/82; 
Amended: 06/03/83; Amended: 05/04/84; Amended: 07/06/84; 
Amended: 11/02/84; Amended: 12/06/85; Amended: 05/01/87; 
Amended: 06/03/88; Amended: 12/02/88; Amended: 01/06/89; 
Amended: 06/02/89; Amended: 06/01/90; Amended: 06/07/91; 
Amended: 12/06/91; Amended: 06/05/92; Amended: 07/10/92; 
Amended: 06/11/93; Amended: 10/08/93; Amended: 06/10/94; 
Amended: 05/12/95; Amended: 10/13/95; Amended: 05/10/96; 
Amended: 05/09/97; Amended: 03/17/98; Amended: 11/15/05  
effective 01/01/06; Amended: 09/18/07 effective 01/01/08; 
Amended: 06/17/08 effective 01/01/09; Amended: 06/15/10 
effective 01/01/11; Amended: 06/19/12 effective 01/01/13; 
Amended 06/18/13 effective 01/01/14; Amended:  07/15/14 
effective 01/01/15; Amended:  07/21/15 effective 01/01/16; 
Amended 07/19/16 effective 01/01/17);Amended 07/18/17, 
effective 01/01/18; Amended 07/17/18, effective 01/01/19; 
Amended 07/16/19, effective 01/01/2020; Amended 08/18/2020, 
effective 01/01/2021;Amended 07/20/2021, effective 01/01/2022 
 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-1 
Permit Fees 

RULE 301 
PERMIT FEES 

 
(A) General 

(1) Purpose 

(a) This rule sets forth the fees required for various permit activities required 
pursuant to the provisions of Regulation II – Permits, and Regulation XIII 
– New Source Review. 

(2) Applicability 

(a) This rule applies to: 

(i) Any person subject to the provisions of Regulation II – Permits, 
Regulation XIII – New Source Review, or Regulation XVII – 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration. 

(ii) Any governmental entity. 
a. Federal, State or local governmental agencies or public 

districts shall pay the fees to the extent allowed pursuant to 
the provisions of Chapter 2, Division 7, Title 1 of the 
Government Code (commencing with Section 6103); Part 
4, Division 26 of the Health and Safety Code (commencing 
with Section 41500) and Part 6, Division 26 of the Health 
and Safety Code (commencing with Section 44300). 

466 of 527



301-2 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees 

(iii) Any facility subject to the Provisions of Regulation XXX – 
Federal Operating Permits (Title V). 
a. Any facility subject to the provisions of Regulation XXX – 

Federal Operating Permits (Title V) shall also be subject to 
the provisions of District Rule 312. 

(3) Limitations 

(a) Revenue derived from permit fees shall be limited as required by Health 
and Safety Code Sections 42311, 42311.2 and 42311.5. 

(4) Effective Date 

(a) The amendments to this rule adopted on 07/20/2021 shall be effective on 
01/01/2022.  

(B) Definitions 

For the purpose of this rule, the following definitions shall apply: 

(1) “Alteration Or Modification” – Any physical change, change in method of 
operation of, or addition to, an existing equipment requiring an application for 
Permit to Construct pursuant to Rule 201.  Routine maintenance and/or repair 
shall not be considered a physical change.  A change in the method of operation 
of equipment, unless previously limited by an enforceable permit condition, shall 
not include: 

(a) An increase in the production rate, unless such increase will cause the 
maximum design capacity of the equipment to be exceeded; or 

(b) An increase in the hours of operation. 

(2) “Cancellation” (or Cancel) – An administrative action taken by the District which 
nullifies or voids a previously pending application for a permit. 

(3) “Emission Reduction Credit” (ERC) – The amount of emissions reduction which 
is verified and determined by the APCO to be eligible for credit in an emissions 
reduction bank pursuant to District Rule 1309. 

(4) “Equipment” – Any article, machine, or other contrivance, or combination 
thereof, which may cause the issuance or control the issuance of air contaminants, 
and which:  

(a) Requires a permit pursuant to Rules 201 and/or 203; or 

(b) Is in operation pursuant to the provisions of Rule 219. 

(5) “Expiration” – The end of the period of validity for an application, Permit to 
Operate, or a temporary Permit to Operate. 

467 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-3 
Permit Fees 

(6) “Facility” – Any source, equipment, or grouping of equipment or sources, or other 
air contaminant-emitting activities which are located on one or more contiguous 
properties within the District, in actual physical contact or separated solely by a 
public roadway or other public right-of-way, and are owned or operated by the 
same person (or persons under common control).  Such above-described 
groupings, if on noncontiguous properties but connected only by land carrying a 
pipeline, shall not be considered one facility. 

(7) “Stationary Source” (or Source) – Any article, machine, equipment, contrivance 
or combination thereof which emits of has the potential to emit any regulated air 
pollutant and is required to have a permit pursuant to the provisions of District 
Rules 201, 202 and 203. 

(8) “Temporary Permit to Operate” – An interim authorization to operate equipment 
until the Permit to Operate is granted or denied.  A temporary Permit to Operate is 
not issued by the District but may exist pursuant to District Rule 202. 

(C) Requirements and Procedures 

(1) Fees, as specified herein, are required for the following activities: 

(a) Filing of a permit application. 

(b) Evaluation of new or modified equipment and/or Facilities that may cause 
air pollution or equipment intended to control air pollution. 

(c) Issuance of authority to construct(s). 

(d) Issuance of permit(s) to operate. 

(e) Annual permit to operate renewal. 

(f) Annual authority to construct renewal. 

(g) Change of location or ownership of a permit. 

(h) Alteration, modification, addition or revisions to equipment. 

(i) Permit granted or denied by Hearing Board. 

(j) Issuance of signed duplicate or corrected permit. 

(k) Issuance of permit(s) for previously unpermitted or altered equipment. 

(l) Filing of application for issuance or modification of ERCs pursuant to 
District Rule 1309. 

(m) Reinstatement of a delinquent permit. 

468 of 527



301-4 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees 

(n) Any fees applicable to equipment located at a facility subject to 
Regulation XXX – Federal Operating Permits (Title V). 

(i) Any facility subject to the provisions of Regulation XXX – 
Federal Operating Permits (Title V) shall also be subject to the 
provisions of District Rule 312. 

 
(2) Fees shall be paid when due as specified herein. 

(a) Application and Duplicate Permit Fees 

(i) Application filing fees required pursuant to Section (D)(1) shall be 
submitted in conjunction with the application. 

(ii) Fees for signed duplicate or corrected permit fees required 
pursuant to Section (D)(9) shall be submitted in conjunction with 
the request for the duplicate or corrected permit. 

 
(b) Project Evaluation Fees for Complex Sources. 

(i) Project evaluation fees for complex sources required pursuant to 
Section (D)(2) shall be submitted not later than thirty (30) days of 
written notification to the applicant that the application is subject 
to this fee. 

(ii) If the applicant fails to pay the project evaluation fee for complex 
sources when due the APCO shall, after written notice to the 
applicant, cancel the application. 

 
(c) Initial and Annual Permit fees. 

(i) Permit fees shall be invoiced as follows: 
a. At least thirty (30) days before the expiration date as shown 

on the permit; or 
b. In the case of an initial permit fee thirty (30) days after 

issuance of the permit or the due date on the invoice 
produced after issuance of the permit, whichever is later. 

(ii) The permit owner/operator or applicant will be notified by First 
Class mail, postage prepaid, of the amount to pay and the due date 
of the invoice. 

(iii) If the fee is not paid on or before the due date of the invoice the 
permit shall become delinquent on the due date of the invoice or 
expiration date on the permit, whichever occurs first, and shall no 
longer be valid. 

(iv) If the applicable fees remain unpaid, within thirty (30) days after 
the due date of the invoice or expiration date of the permit, 
whichever occurs first, the owner/operator or applicant shall be 
notified in writing by first class mail, postage prepaid: 
a. That the permit has become delinquent for non-payment of 

fees and is no longer valid; and 
b. The consequences of continuing to construct or operate 

with an invalid permit. 

469 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-5 
Permit Fees 

(v) If, after notification, the permit remains delinquent for more than 
three (3) months, the permit shall become inactive in the District’s 
records. 

 
(3) Reinstatement of Permits 

(a) A permit which is delinquent but has not become inactive may be 
reinstated by payment in full of all outstanding fees, fines and penalties, 
including but not limited to other fees imposed pursuant to District 
Regulation III and fines or penalties imposed pursuant to the provisions of 
Article 3, Chapter 4, Part 4 of Division 26 of the Health and Safety Code 
(commencing with section 42400). 

(4) Inactive Permits 

(a)  A permit which has become inactive is null and void.  The equipment 
which was the subject of the inactive permit may be permitted again by 
the District so long as the owner/operator submits a new permit 
application.  Such new permit application will be processed as if the 
equipment was an entirely new unit requiring a permit. 

(5) Refunds 

(a) No claim for refund for any fee required by this rule shall be honored 
unless: 

(i) For initial permit fees, such claim is submitted within ninety (90) 
days after the permit was issued. 

(ii) For renewal permit fees, such claim is submitted within ninety (90) 
days after the prior permit expiration date. 

 
(b) Refunds shall be pro-rated for the period between the date the request is 

received or prior permit expiration date, whichever is applicable, and the 
current permit expiration date. 

(c) Fees established as surcharges are not refundable and are assessed in 
addition to the schedules established for permit fees.  Surcharges are 
assessed and applicable as specified herein. 

(d) The application filing fee set forth in section (D)(1) is non-refundable.  

(6) Pro-rated fees 

(a) The APCO may pro-rate any of the following fees excluding any 
applicable filing fee: 

(i) Initial Permit Fee; 
(ii) Annual Permit to Operate Renewal Fee; 
(iii) Permit to Construct Renewal Fee; 
(iv) Alteration, Modification, Addition or Revision Fees. 

470 of 527



301-6 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees 

 
(b) Pro-rated fees shall be calculated based upon the fees and fee schedule in 

effect on the date of issuance of the permit to which the fees apply. 

(c) Fees shall be pro-rated for the period between the date of the issuance of 
the affected permit and the expiration of the permit. 

(7) Service Charge for Returned Checks 

(a) Any person who submits a check to the District on insufficient funds or on 
instructions to stop payment on the check, absent an overcharge or other 
legal entitlement to withhold payment, shall be subject to a $25.00 service 
charge. 

(8) Credit Card Payments 

(a) If any person wishes to pay using a credit card the person shall also pay 
any costs imposed by the company processing the credit card transaction. 

(D) Fees 

(1) Application Filing Fee 

(a) Any person who applies for the issuance of a new or modified permit shall 
be assessed a fee of $551.00, except for: 

(i) Any facility subject to the Provisions of Regulation XXX – 
Federal Operating Permits (Title V) shall be assessed a fee of 
$916.00. 

 (b) The application filing fee is non-refundable and shall not be applied to any 
subsequent application. 

(c) Applications shall not be accepted unless they are accompanied by the 
application filing fee. 

(2) Project Evaluation Fee for Complex Sources 

(a) Any person who submits an application which is related to projects to 
construct or modify any of the following, shall be assessed a project 
evaluation fee for complex sources. 

(i) Equipment associated with landfills;  
(ii) Equipment associated with resource recovery projects;  
(iii) Equipment associated with energy cogeneration projects;  
(iv) Equipment associated with electrical power plants;  
(v) Other permit units subject to the provisions of District Rule 

1303(B); 
(vi) Emissions of hazardous and toxic material requiring a Health Risk 

Assessment pursuant to District Rule 1401(E)(3) or a Case-By-

471 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-7 
Permit Fees 

Case MACT determination pursuant to District Rule 1401(F)(2) 
and/or waste disposal or treatment facilities;  

(vii) Any facility requiring a permit under Regulation XVII – 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration; and 

(viii) Any other permit units where the APCO or his or her designee has 
determined that an analysis required pursuant to these Rules or 
Regulations would require over two (2) hours of staff time to 
complete. 

 
(b) A deposit of $6,500.00 to be applied toward the project evaluation fee for 

complex sources shall be paid within 30 days of written notification by the 
District that the application is subject to this fee. 

(c) The project evaluation fee for complex sources shall be based on the 
District's total actual and reasonable labor time and other reasonable 
expenses for the evaluation required to develop a permit to construct 
and/or permit to operate. 

(i) This fee shall be calculated at a labor rate of $173.00 per hour plus 
actual expenses.  

(ii) The fee shall accrue and be applied against the deposit. 
(iii) Should the District's costs as calculated pursuant to subsection (i) 

above not exceed the deposit; the remainder of the deposit will be 
returned to the applicant. 

(iv) Should the District's costs as calculated pursuant to subsection (i) 
above exceed the deposit the excess will be billed to the applicant. 
a. The applicant shall be notified, in writing, of the amount of 

any such excess fee and the due date for payment of the 
fee. 

b. An accounting of costs and written notice to the applicant 
shall be issued to the applicant at least quarterly. 

 
(d) Actual expenses of the District include consultant services which are 

engaged by the District for the purpose of project evaluations.  When 
project evaluations are performed for the District under such a contract, 
the applicant will be assessed fees for the actual total and reasonable costs 
incurred by the District staff to oversee, review and approve the evaluation 
as well as the actual cost to the District of the contractor evaluation. 

(e) Actual expenses of the District include project notice fees which are 
incurred on behalf of project public notices.   

(f) The provisions of Section (C)(2) do not apply to this fee.  If the applicant 
fails to pay the project evaluation fee for complex sources when due the 
APCO shall, after written notice to the applicant, cancel the application. 

472 of 527



301-8 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees 

(3) Initial Permit Fee 

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this Rule, any person who applies for a 
new or modified permit shall, upon notification that the application has 
been approved, be assessed the initial permit fee for the issuance of a 
permit to construct or permit to operate in the amount prescribed in 
schedules set forth in section (E)(1). 

(i) For applications containing mutually exclusive alternative 
construction scenarios the APCO may, upon written request of the 
applicant, assess an alternate initial permit fee.  Such alternate 
initial permit fee shall not be less than the highest initial permit fee 
for any single alternative scenario set forth in the application and 
shall not be more than the sum of the initial permit fees for all 
alternative scenarios set forth in the application. 

 
(b) After the provisions for granting permits as set forth in Division 26 of the 

Health and Safety Code and these Rules and Regulations have been 
complied with, the applicant shall be notified, in writing, of the amount of 
the fee to be paid as the initial permit fee. 

(i) Notice may be given by personal service or by mail, postage 
prepaid. 
 

(4) Annual Permit to Operate Renewal Fee 

(a) Permits to operate shall be annually renewable, upon payment of fees. 

(b) The annual permit to operate renewal fee shall be calculated pursuant to 
the schedules set forth in section (E)(1). 

(c) The annual permit to operate renewal fee shall be invoiced as specified in 
Section (C)(2)(c) above. 

(5) Permit to Construct Renewal Fee 

(a) Authorities to construct may be renewed, upon payment of fees, pursuant 
to the provisions of District Rule 201. 

(b) The authority to construct renewal fee shall be calculated pursuant to the 
schedules set forth in section (E)(1). 

(i) For applications containing mutually exclusive alternative 
construction scenarios the APCO may, upon written request of the 
applicant, assess an alternate authority to construct renewal fee.  
Such alternate authority to construct renewal fee shall not be less 
than the highest authority to construct renewal fee for any single 
alternative scenario set forth in the application and shall not be 
more than the sum of the authority to construct renewal fees for all 
alternative scenarios set forth in the application. 

 

473 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-9 
Permit Fees 

(c) Authorities to construct may only be renewed for two (2) years after the 
initial date of issuance, unless the application is canceled or an extension 
of time pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 205 has been granted by 
the APCO. 

(d) The authority to construct renewal fee shall be invoiced as specified in 
Section (C)(2)(c) above. 

(e) When construction is completed prior to the expiration of the authority to 
construct, the authority to construct may thereupon act as a temporary 
permit to operate pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 202.  The 
residual fee for the authority to construct, calculated as a pro-rated fee for 
the period between the completion of construction and the expiration date 
of the permit, shall be applied to a pro-rated initial permit fee for the same 
period.  Any positive difference between the residual fee and the pro-rated 
initial permit fee shall be invoiced as set forth in Section (C)(2). 

(6) Change of Location or Ownership Fees 

(a) Permits, pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 209, are only valid for 
the location specified in the permit. 

(i) Any person who applies for a permit requesting a change in the 
location of equipment included on a currently valid permit shall 
request in writing a change of location for the equipment and may 
be assessed an initial permit fee if the change in location also 
creates additional alteration(s), modification(s), addition(s) or 
revision(s) in either the subject permit or other permits at the same 
facility. 

(ii) The person will be notified by mail, postage prepaid, of the amount 
of the initial permit fee due as a result of the change of location 
and the due date for payment of the fee. 

(iii) The APCO or his or her designee may, upon the applicant's written 
request, waive the initial permit fee. 

 
(b) Permits, pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 209, are only valid as 

to the person named on the permit. 

(i) Any person who applies for a permit requesting a change of 
ownership of equipment included on a currently valid permit shall 
be assessed a transfer fee of $321.00 for each permit being 
transferred from one person to another. 

(ii) The filing fee set forth in Section (D)(1) are waived for 
applications solely requesting a change of ownership 

(iii) The transfer fee for applications solely requesting a change of 
ownership is due at the time the application is filed. 

 

474 of 527



301-10 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees 

(c) Any person submitting an application for a permit requesting a change of 
location and/or change of ownership which also requests alterations, additions 
or revisions to the permit shall be assessed either the fees set forth in this 
Section or in Section (D)(7) whichever is greater. 

(7) Alteration, Modification, Addition or Revision Fees 

(a) Any person who applies for a permit requesting alterations, modifications, 
additions, or revisions of the permit resulting from a change to equipment 
included on a currently valid permit shall be assessed an application filing fee 
pursuant to Section (D)(1) and a permit revision fee. 

(b) The permit revision fee shall be calculated as follows: 

(i) The initial permit fee for a permit which includes the alteration, 
addition or revision minus the previous years annual permit to operate 
renewal fee pro-rated for the period between the date of issuance for 
the permit containing the alteration addition or revisions and the 
original permit(s) expiration date. 

 
(c) The permit revision fee shall be invoiced as set forth in Section (C)(2)(c)(i). 

(d) Any person submitting an application for a permit requesting a change of 
location and/or change of ownership which also requests alterations, additions 
or revisions to the permit shall be assessed either the fees set forth in this 
Section or in Section (D)(6) whichever is greater. 

(8) Fees Applicable when Permit Granted or Denied by Hearing Board 

(a) If a permit is granted by the Hearing Board after denial of an application by 
the APCO or after the application has been deemed denied pursuant to 
District Rule 215, the applicant shall be assessed the appropriate fees set forth 
in this Rule. 

(b) The applicant shall be notified, in writing, of the amount of the fee and the 
due date for payment of the fee. 

(c) Previously paid fees are not refundable if the Hearing Board denies the 
issuance of a permit which was granted by the APCO. 

(9) Signed Duplicate or Corrected Permit Fees 

(a) A request for a signed duplicate permit or for administrative corrections to a 
permit shall be made in writing by the permit holder. 

(b) The permit holder may be assessed a fee of $160.00 for issuing each signed 
duplicate or corrected permit. 

(c) The fee for a signed duplicate or corrected permit is due at the time the permit 
is requested. 

475 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-11 
Permit Fees 

(10) Previously Unpermitted or Altered Equipment Fee. 

(a) When equipment is built, erected, installed, altered, or replaced (except for 
identical replacement) without the owner or operator obtaining a permit to 
construct in accordance with Rule 201, the owner or operator shall be 
assessed a previously unpermitted equipment fee. 

(b) The previously unpermitted equipment fee shall be calculated as fifty 
percent (50%) of all applicable permit fees which would have been 
required for each year of unpermitted activity, plus the full amount of all 
applicable permit fees for the year immediately preceding the year when 
the permit to operate is granted. 

(c) The unpermitted equipment fee is due when the permit to operate is 
granted. 

(d) The assessment of an unpermitted equipment fee shall not limit the 
District's right to pursue any other remedy provided for by law. 

(e) The provisions of this subsection shall not apply if a permit is required 
solely due to a change in Rule 219. 

(f) The APCO may waive the unpermitted equipment fee for good cause upon 
the written application of the person assessed the fee. 

(11) Fees for Issuance of Emission Reduction Credits 

(a) Any person submitting an application for Emission Reduction Credits 
pursuant to District Rule 1309 shall pay the following fees: 

(i) An initial application fee of $954.00 for each application 
submitted. 

(ii) An analysis fee based upon the actual and reasonable labor time in 
excess of ten (10) hours labor billed at the rate of $173.00 per 
hour. 

(iii) The actual cost of publication of notice if such is required pursuant 
to District Rule 1309. 

 
(b) Any person submitting a document effecting an encumbrance or transfer 

of Emission Reduction Credits pursuant to District Rule 1309 shall pay a 
fee of $173.00 for each document submitted. 

(12) Reinstatement Fee for a Delinquent Permit 

(a) Any person who applies for delinquent permit reinstatement pursuant to 
the provisions of subsection (C)(3)(a) shall be assessed a fee equal to the 
amount of all outstanding fees, fines and penalties for the particular unit 
that is the subject of the permit and an initial permit fee for that unit for 
the current year.   

476 of 527



301-12 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees 

(E) Schedules for Fees  

(1) Initial Permit and Annual Permit to Operate Renewal and Authority to Construct 
Renewal Fees. 

(a) Any Equipment or Process subject to the provisions of this rule shall be 
assigned a fee classification based upon the equipment and/or process type 
as set forth in Table 1 of this rule. 

(b) Any Equipment or Process subject to the provisions of this rule which is 
not otherwise listed in Table 1 of this rule shall be assigned fee 
classification B. 

(c) All applicable fees shall be assessed pursuant to the fee classifications 
listed in Table 1 according to the following schedule: 

 
Equipment/Process 
Classification 
 

Fee Amount 

Classification A  
 

$531.21      

Classification B 
 

$1,902.51       

Classification C $4,563.86        
Classification D – Reciprocating 
Internal Combustion Engines rated 
50 bhp to 499 bhp and 
All Emergency Engines 

$531.21 

Classification E - Reciprocating 
Internal Combustion Engines rated 
500 bhp to 749 bhp. 

$1,092.51 

Classification F - Reciprocating 
Internal Combustion Engines rated 
750 bhp or greater 

$2,083.69 

Electrical Generating Equipment 
(non-emergency) rated 
100,000,000 Btu/hr and less  

$6,325.07 plus $150.86 per each 1,000,000 
Btu/hr 

Electrical Generating Equipment 
(non-emergency) rated greater 
than 100,000,000 Btu/hr  
 

$17,559.37 plus $38.48 per each 1,000,000 
Btu/hr 

Nozzles (Rule 461) 
 

$57.47 per product/per nozzle  

 
[SIP:  Not SIP.  ] 
 

477 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-13 
Permit Fees 

 
Table 1 

Equipment/Process Classifications 
 

Equipment Classification A Classification B Classification C 
Basic Process Systems 
including ancillary 
equipment 

Any Abrasive Blasting; Anodizing; Blending; Chemical (no 
toxics, hazardous) Milling; Cooling Tower; Any Degreaser; 
Deposition Ceramics; Dry Cleaning; Etching; Film Cleaner; 
Grinder; Ink Mfg; Laundry; Liquid Container Filling; 
Packaging; Polystyrene Extrusion; Polyurethane Mfg; 
Refrigerant Handling and/or Processing; Smoke Generator; 
Soldering; Stripping; Vacuum Metalling 

Adhesives; Air Stripper; Ammonia Process; 
Asphalt Process; Auto Body Shredding; Battery 
Charging/Mfg; Chemical (toxics, hazardous) 
Milling;  Degreaser; Plastic/Resins Handling; Soil 
Vapor Extraction; Vacuum Generator; Any process 
not otherwise listed under any category 

Landfill Gas Treatment; 
Liquid Hazardous Waste 
Processing; LPG Distiller 

Other Processes    
Bulk and Crustal 
Material Handling 

Aggregate Conveying, Loading and/or Unloading; Bulk 
Chemical Terminal; Green Waste Screening; Paper 
Conveying; Weigh Station 

Aggregate Production; Concrete Batch Plant; 
Concrete/Asphalt Crushing; Other Conveying; 
Loading/unloading; Other Screening; Soil 
Treatment 

All others including 
Asphalt Batch Plant 

Coating including 
Printing and Coating 
Within Spray Booths 

Asphalt/Tar Pot; Asphaltic; Can/Coil; Any Dip Tank; 
Fabric; Film; Flow; Paper; Printing Press, IR/UV Over, Air 
Dry or Screen; Roller; Spray; Stereolithography; Striping; 
Tablet 

Asphalt Saturator; Printing Press Other; Spraying 
Resin/Gel Coat; Wood 

  

Feed/Food Preparation 
and Handling 

Charbroiler with integral control; Feed Handling; Restaurant 
Charbroiler 

Bakery Oven; Charbroiler no integral control; Feed 
Processing 

All others 

Fuel Handling and 
Storage 

Bulk Loading/Unloading <50,000 gpd; Fuel Oil; LPG; Spill 
Sump Tank; Waste Oil; Railcar unloading to Truck; Tank 
with no controls 

Aircraft Fueling; Bulk Loading/Unloading Rack 
50,000 to <200,000 gpd; Fuel Gas Mixer; Hydrant 
Fueling; Natural Gas Odorizer; Toxics or 
Hazardous Storage Tank; Fixed Roof Tank; Tank 
with control system; LPG Tank with Vaporizing 
System; LPG Tank Truck Loading; LPG Treatment 

Bulk Loading/Unloading 
Rack 200,000+ gpd; 
Gasoline Blending Plant; 
All others 

  

478 of 527



 

301-14 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees 

Table 1 
Equipment/Process Classifications 

 
Equipment Classification A Classification B Classification C 
Incinerators   Crematory All others  
Sewage, Stormwater, 
Wastewater and Water 
Treatment 

<10,000 gpd; Fluid Elimination; Landfill 
Condensate/Leachate Collection/Storage 

10,000 to <50,000 gpd; Up to 5 million gpd 
sewage treatment; Aeration; Groundwater 
treatment; Landfill Gas Collection; Sewage sludge 
composting; Sludge Handling 

All others 

Storage, Non-Fuel Asphalt <50,000 gal; Baker-Type; Dry Material; Sump 
Tank; Tank with control; Tank with sparging 

Aqueous Ammonia; Asphalt 50,000+ gal; Catalyst   

Air Pollution Control Devices   
Afterburner Non-catalytic; no more than one MMBtu per hour 

(supplemental fuel); single source 
All others (including boilers and incinerators) 

Biofilter No more than 100 cfm All others   
Carbon 
Absorber/Adsorber 

single source no toxics All others (non-regenerating) All others 

Catalytic Reduction Non-selective Selective   
Dust Control including 
Baghouses and Cyclones 

No more than 500 ft2 of filter area; all cyclones and settling 
chambers; All negative air machines 

More than 500 ft2 of filter area; Any size hot 
baghouse (special filter material) 

  

Electrostatic 
Precipitators (ESP) 

Less than 3000 cfm or any extruder or any restaurant All others   

Flares Portable All others Enclosed landfill/digester 
gas 

Scrubbers and/or Mist 
Control including 
Sparging 

No toxics, NOx or SOx control and single source and single 
stage; or for acid or any restaurant or any sparger 

All others, including Ultraviolet Oxidation   

  

479 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-15 
Permit Fees 

Table 1 
Equipment/Process Classifications 

 
Equipment Classification A Classification B Classification C 
Sterilizers Hospital ethylene oxide All others   
Vapor Control  All   
Fuel Burning Equipment (Not Cogeneration or Generating Electricity Equipment Other Than Emergency Equipment)  
Autoclaves; Chillers; 
Distiller; Dryers, 
Furnaces, Heaters, 
Kilns, Ovens, Roasters, 
Stills 

<5 MMBtu/hr; Glass Furnace less than one tpd pull; 
Laundry; Metal Recovery; Non-Organics Dryer; Non-
Toxics Evaporator; Pavement Heater 

5 to <50 MMBtu/hr; Arc; Burn-Off; Catalyzed 
Metal Recovery; Chip Dryer; Cupola; Curing Oven 
with toxics/hazardous; Electric; Evaporator 
(Toxics); Frit; Galvanizing; Glass Furnace one to 
<50 tpd pull; Organics Dryer; Pot/Crucible; 
Natural Gas Kiln; Reverbatory 

All others 

Boilers <5 MMBtu/hr 5 to <50 MMBtu/hr; Up to 10 MMBtu landfill or 
digester gas 

All others 

Turbines <0.3 MW(e) Emergency 0.3+ MW(e) Emergency; <50 MW(e) not on 
Landfill or Digester Gas 

All others 

Cogeneration and Electrical Generating Equipment (including Duct Burners) 
Equipment under this category shall be assessed a permit renewal fee calculated based on design maximum fuel consumption of the equipment expressed in British 
thermal units per hour, using gross heating value (See (E)(1)(c)) 
Nozzles (Rule 461) 
Permits subject to District Rule 461 shall be assessed a single permit renewal fee calculated as follows:  the number of fuel dispensing nozzles multiplied by the 
number of products dispensed through each nozzle at the facility.  
Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines 
Equipment under this category shall be assessed a permit renewal fee based on the nameplate bhp of the engine with the exception of those engines designated as 
“Emergency” engines pursuant to 1110.2 which shall be assessed as Classification D.  (See (E)(1)(c)). 

 
 

480 of 527



 

 

 

Antelope Valley 
Air Quality Management District 
 
 
 

 
 

Draft 

Staff Report 
 

Proposed Amendments to 
Rule 301 – Permit Fees 

 

For amendment on 
July 20, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43301 DIVISION ST., SUITE 206, 
LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA 93535-4649 

PHONE (661) 723-8070 

481 of 527



 
 

 

This page intentionally left blank.

482 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 TC-1 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

 
STAFF REPORT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Rule 301 – Permit Fees 

I.       PURPOSE OF STAFF REPORT ...........................................................................................1 

II.      EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ....................................................................................................1  

III.     STAFF RECOMMENDATION ............................................................................................2 

IV.      LEGAL REQUIREMENTS CHECKLIST ..........................................................................3 

V.       DISCUSSION OF LEGAL REQUIREMENTS ...................................................................4 

A.     REQUIRED ELEMENTS/FINDINGS ..........................................................................4 
1.     State Findings Required for Adoption of Rules & Regulations ......................4 

a.     Necessity ..............................................................................................4 
b.     Authority ..............................................................................................4 
c.     Clarity ...................................................................................................5 
d.     Consistency ..........................................................................................5 
e.     Non-duplication....................................................................................5 
f.     Reference ..............................................................................................5 
g.     Public Notice & Comment, Public Hearing .........................................5 

2.     Federal Elements (SIP Submittals, Other Federal Submittals) ........................5 

B.     WRITTEN ANALYSIS OF EXISTING REQUIREMENTS ........................................6 

C.     ECONOMIC ANALYSIS ..............................................................................................6 
1.     General .............................................................................................................6  
2. Economic Analysis for Rule 301 – Permit Fees ..........................................6 
4. Incremental Cost Effectiveness....................................................................6 

D.     ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS (CEQA) ..................................................................6 

E.     SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS .................................................7 
1.     Potential Environmental Impacts .....................................................................7 
2.     Mitigation of Impacts .......................................................................................7 
3.     Alternative Methods of Compliance ................................................................7 

F.     PUBLIC REVIEW ..........................................................................................................7  

VI.      TECHNICAL DISCUSSION ...............................................................................................7 

A.     SOURCE DESCRIPTION .............................................................................................7 

483 of 527



 
 

TC-2 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

B.     EMISSIONS ...................................................................................................................7 

C.     CONTROL REQUIREMENTS ......................................................................................7  

D.     PROPOSED RULE SUMMARY ...................................................................................8 
1.     AV Rule 301 – Permit Fees .............................................................................8 

E.     Rule HISTORY ...............................................................................................................9  

F. PROPOSITION 26 ANALYSIS ...................................................................................10 
1. Justification for Fee Adjustment to Rule 301 – Permit Fees .....................10 

Appendix A – Rule Iterated Version .......................................................................................... A-1  

Appendix B - Public Notice Documents ......................................................................................B-1  

Appendix C - Public Comments and Responses..........................................................................C-1  

Appendix D - California Environmental Quality Act Documentation ....................................... D-1 

Appendix E - Bibliography .......................................................................................................... E-1 

484 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 1 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

STAFF REPORT 
Rule 301 – Permit Fees 

 
I. PURPOSE OF STAFF REPORT  

A staff report serves several discrete purposes.  Its primary purpose is to provide a summary and 
background material to the members of the Governing Board.  This allows the members of the 
Governing Board to be fully informed before making any required decision.  It also provides the 
documentation necessary for the Governing Board to make any findings, which are required by 
law to be made prior to the approval or adoption of a document.  In addition, a staff report 
ensures that the correct procedures and proper documentation for approval or adoption of a 
document have been performed.  Finally, the staff report provides evidence for defense against 
legal challenges regarding the propriety of the approval or adoption of the document. 
 
II. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

On July 1, 1997 the Antelope Valley Air Pollution Control District (AVAPCD) was created 
pursuant to statute (former Health & Safety (H&S) Code §40106, A.B. 266-Knight Ch. 542, 
statutes of 1996) and assumed all air pollution control responsibilities from the South Coast Air 
Quality Management District (SCAQMD) for the area of Los Angeles County outside the South 
Coast Air Basin.  The SCAQMD rules in effect within the jurisdiction of the AVAPCD remained 
in effect until the AVAPCD Governing Board superseded or amended them.  On January 1, 2002 
the AVAQMD was created pursuant to statute (H&S Code §41300 et seq.) to replace the 
AVAPCD.  Once again, the rules in effect at the time of the change remained in effect until the 
AVAQMD Governing Board superseded or amended them. 
 
 The District’s mandated functions such as compliance, permit issuance, and permit 
administration are labor intensive. Therefore, the related fee revenue should be structured to 
support the relevant regulatory and administrative activities. 
 
The 2021-2022 budget includes anticipated revenue derived from a proposed 5% fee increase to 
Rule 301 – Permit Fees to recover the rising costs of issuing air quality permits, performing 
inspections, investigations, and enforcing District rules and regulations. In addition, the 
AVAQMD is proposing a new fee category for Internal Combustion Engines to more equitably 
recover permitting and inspection costs for engines over a specific horsepower. Therefore, the 
proposed fee adjustment is well within the provisions of Health & Safety Code §42311(a) and 
falls within the exemption found in Article XIIIC §1(e)(3) of the California Constitution. 
 
To allow time to implement the proposed fee changes, the amendment of Rule 301 – Permit Fees 
is proposed to be effective on January 1, 2022. 
  

485 of 527



 

2 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

 
 
III. STAFF RECOMMENDATION  

Staff recommends that the Governing Board of the AVAQMD adopt amendments to Rule 301 – 
Permit Fees and approve the appropriate CEQA documentation. 

486 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 3 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

IV. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS CHECKLIST  

The findings and analysis as indicated below are required for the procedurally correct 
amendments to Rule 301-Permit Fees.  Each item is discussed, if applicable, in Section V below.  
Copies of documents are included in the appropriate Appendix.
 
 
FINDINGS REQUIRED FOR 
RULES & REGULATIONS  
 
 X  Necessity 
 
 X  Authority 
 
 X  Clarity 
 
 X  Consistency 
 
 
 X  Non-duplication 
 
 X  Reference 
 
 X  Public Notice & Comment 
 
 X  Public Hearing 
 
REQUIREMENTS FOR STATE  
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN  
SUBMISSION (SIP):  
 
N/A Public Notice & Comment 
 
N/A Availability of Document 
 
N/A Notice to Specified Entities (State, Air 
Districts, USEPA, Other States) 
 
N/A Public Hearing 
 
N/A Legal Authority to adopt and implement the 
document. 
 
N/A Applicable State laws and regulations were 
followed. 
 
ELEMENTS OF A FEDERAL 
SUBMISSION  
 
N/A Elements as set forth in applicable Federal 
law or regulations. 
 

 
 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
ACT REQUIREMENTS (CEQA): 
 
N/A Ministerial Action 
 
 X  Exemption 
 
N/A Negative Declaration 
 
N/A Environmental Impact Report 
 
 X  Appropriate findings, if necessary. 
 
X Public Notice & Comment 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL 
ANALYSIS (RULES & REGULATIONS ONLY):  
 X  Environmental impacts of compliance. 
 
N/A Mitigation of impacts. 
 
N/A Alternative methods of compliance. 
 
OTHER:  
 
 N/A  Written analysis of existing air pollution 
control requirements 
 
 X  Economic Analysis 
 
 X  Public Review

 
 

487 of 527



 

4 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

 
V. DISCUSSION OF LEGAL REQUIREMENTS  

A. REQUIRED ELEMENTS/FINDINGS  

This section discusses the State of California statutory requirements that apply to the 
proposed amendments to Rule 301 – Permit Fees.  These are actions, that need to be 
performed, and/or information, that must be provided in order to amend the Regulation in 
a procedurally correct manner. 

1. State Findings Required for Adoption of Rules & Regulations:  

Before adopting, amending, or repealing a rule or regulation, the AVAQMD 
Governing Board is required to make findings of necessity, authority, clarity, 
consistency, non-duplication, and reference based upon relevant information 
presented at the hearing.  The information below is provided to assist the Board in 
making these findings. 

a. Necessity:   

 The District’s mandated functions such as compliance, permit 
issuance, and permit administration are labor intensive. Therefore, 
the related fee revenue should be structured to support the relevant 
regulatory and administrative activities.  

b. Authority:   

The District has the authority pursuant to California Health and 
Safety Code (H&S Code) §40702 to adopt, amend or repeal rules 
and regulations.  The AVAQMD also has the authority to adopt 
and amend annual fees for the evaluation, issuance and renewal of 
permits (H&S Code §§41240, 41330, 41512.7, 40711(a), 42310.5, 
42311, and 42311.2), enforcement, inspections and air monitoring 
(H&S Code §§41240, 41330, 40701, 40715, 41512, 41512.5, 
42311, 42311.2, 42707, and 42400 et seq.), planning and rule 
development (H&S Code §§41240, 41330, 41512.7, 40727.2 and 
42311), public records act compliance ( Government Code 6253), 
toxic “Hot Spots” (H&S Code §§44344.4, 44380, 44381 and 17 
CCR 90703) and “Title V Permitting” (40 CFR 70.9, H&S Code 
§§41330, 41512.7 and 42311). 

488 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 5 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

c. Clarity:   

The proposed amendments to Rule 301 – Permit Fees are clear in 
that they are written so that the persons subject to the rule can 
easily understand the meaning.  Any person or organization 
applying for and/or holding an AVAQMD Authority to Construct 
(ATC) or Permit to Operate (PTO) is affected by the proposed 
amendments to Rule 301.  This rule amendment has been 
developed to adjust fees to Rule 301 by 5% to recover the rising 
costs associated with issuing and enforcing both District and 
Federal permits. 

d. Consistency:   

The proposed amendment of Rule 301 – Permit Fees is in harmony 
with, and not in conflict with or contradictory to any state law or 
regulation, federal law or regulation, or court decisions because 
these laws and regulations allow for the proposed amendments to 
the fee rules. 

e. Non-duplication:   

The proposed amendment of Rule 301 – Permit Fees does not 
impose the same requirements as any existing state or federal law 
or regulation because H&S Code §40702 allows the District to 
adopt, amend or repeal rules and regulations and H&S §42311 and 
various other sections merely authorize the imposition of such fees 
but does not specify the types and amounts of fees to be imposed. 

f. Reference:  

AVAQMD has the authority pursuant to H&S Code §40702 to 
adopt, amend or repeal rules and regulations and the authority 
pursuant to H&S Code §42311 to adopt a schedule of annual fees. 

g. Public Notice & Comment, Public Hearing:   

Notice for the public hearing for the proposed amendment of Rule 
301 – Permit Fees will be published on June 11, 2021 for the July 
20, 2021 Governing Board meeting.  See Appendix “B” for a copy of 
the public notice.  See Appendix “C” for copies of comments, if any, 
and District responses. 

2. Federal Elements (SIP Submittals, Other Federal Submittals).  

Submittals to USEPA are required to include various elements depending upon 
the type of document submitted and the underlying federal law that requires the 
submittal.  Rule 301 – Permit Fees is a fee rule and does not ordinarily require 
submission to USEPA.  Various prior versions of Rule 301 were previously 

489 of 527



 

6 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

included in the State Implementation Plan (SIP).  USEPA removed these rules 
from the SIP on November 16, 2004 (69 FR 67062; 40 CFR 
52.220(c)(137)(vii)(F)).  Therefore, these rules are not required to be a federal 
submittal. 

B. WRITTEN ANALYSIS OF EXISTING REQUIREMENTS  

H&S Code §40727.2 requires air districts to prepare a written analysis of all existing 
federal air pollution control requirements that apply to the same equipment or source type 
as the rule proposed for modification by the district.  The proposed amendments to Rule 
301 – Permit Fees only modify fees and provide minor clarification.  These proposed 
amendments do not in themselves impose air pollution control requirements.  Therefore, 
the preparation of a written analysis of existing pollution control requirements that apply 
to the same equipment or source type is not required. 

C. ECONOMIC ANALYSIS   

1. General.   

Fees are a primary revenue source that supports the District’s efforts to implement 
and enforce the provisions of the Federal Clean Air Act (FCAA), the California 
Clean Air Act (CCAA) and District Rules and Regulations.  Permit fee schedules 
reflect the expenditure required to provide analysis of applications, inspections of 
the regulated community, tracking the inventory of pollutants produced by the 
regulated industry, and enforcement of federal, state and local mandates regarding 
air pollution among other mandatory District functions.  

2. Economic Analysis for Rule 301 – Permit Fees. 

The AVAQMD is proposing a 5% fee increase to Rule 301 – Permit Fees to 
recover the rising costs of issuing air quality permits, performing inspections, 
investigations, and enforcing District rules and regulations. In addition, staff is 
proposing a new fee category for Internal Combustion Engines to more equitably 
recover permitting and inspection costs for engines over a specific horsepower. 
Therefore, the proposed fee adjustment is well within the provisions of Health & 
Safety Code §42311(a) and falls within the exemption found in Article XIIIC 
§1(e)(3) of the California Constitution.3.  

3. Incremental Cost Effectiveness. 

Pursuant to H&S Code §40920.6, incremental cost effectiveness calculations are 
required for rules and regulations which are adopted or amended to meet the 
CCAA requirements for Best Available Retrofit Control Technology (BARCT) or 
“all feasible measures” to control volatile compounds, oxides of nitrogen or 
oxides of sulfur.  The proposed amendments to Rule 301 – Permit Fees only 
affect fees and rule structure, and therefore do not require this analysis. 

D. ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS (CEQA) 

490 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 7 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

1. Through the process described below, it was determined that a Notice of 
Exemption would be the appropriate CEQA process for the proposed amendments 
to Rule 301 – Permit Fees.  

a. The proposed amendments to Rule 301 – Permit Fees meet the 
CEQA definition of “project.”  They are not “ministerial” actions. 

b. The proposed amendments to Rule 301 – Permit Fees are exempt 
from CEQA review because they merely adjust fees and fee 
methodologies and there is not potential that the amendments might cause 
the release of additional air contaminants or create any adverse 
environmental impacts, a Class 8 categorical exemption (14 Cal. Code 
Reg. §15308) applies. 

E. SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS 

1. Potential Environmental Impacts 

The proposed amendments to Rule 301 – Permit Fees do not have any potential 
environmental impacts because the amendments merely adjust fees, make minor 
format corrections and provide clarification.  The amendments do not have any 
impact upon emissions of air contaminants. 

2. Mitigation of Impacts   

N/A 

3. Alternative Methods of Compliance 

N/A 

F. PUBLIC REVIEW 

See Staff Report Section (V)(A)(1)(g) as well as Appendix B. 

VI. TECHNICAL DISCUSSION 

A. SOURCE DESCRIPTION 

The proposed amendments will affect permit holders and applicants subject to Rule 301 – 
Permit Fees. 

B. EMISSIONS 

The proposed amendments to Rule 301 – Permit Fees only adjust fees, and thus will have 
no impact on emissions. 

C. CONTROL REQUIREMENTS 

491 of 527



 

8 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

The proposed amendments to Rule 301 – Permit Fees do not impose any control 
requirements. 

D. PROPOSED RULE SUMMARY 

This section gives a brief overview of the proposed amendments to Rule 301 – Permit 
Fees.  Only a brief summary of each section is included.  Readers are encouraged to 
examine the [bracketed and italicized] notations contained in the iterated version of the 
rule contained in Appendix “A” for notations regarding movement and modification of 
specific sections and subsections. 

1. AVAQMD Rule 301 – Permit Fees: 

Rule 301 – Permit Fees, includes a 5% increase in most fees to recover a portion 
of the increase in the District’s projected overall operating expenditures related to 
the costs of issuing air quality permits, performing facility inspections, public 
complaint investigations and rule development activities, as part of implementing 
district rules and regulation required pursuant to the provisions of Regulation II – 
Permits and Regulation XIII – New Source Review. 

(A)(4) is proposed for modification to reflect an effective date of January 1, 2022. 

(D)(1)(a) is proposed for modification to reflect an increase of 5%, rounded to the 
nearest dollar. 

(D)(1)(a)(i) is proposed for modification to reflect an increase of 5%, rounded to 
the nearest dollar. 

(D)(2)(a)(viii) is proposed for modification to change the requirement for a fee to 
be assessed when an analysis of a Complex Source requires over 2 hours of staff 
time to complete. 

(D)(6)(b)(i) is proposed for modification to reflect an increase of 5%, rounded to 
the nearest dollar. 

(D)(9)(b) is proposed for modification to reflect an increase of 5%, rounded to the 
nearest dollar. 

(D)(11)(a)(i) is proposed for modification to reflect an increase of 5%, rounded to 
the nearest dollar. 

(E) Classification A through E is proposed for a 5% adjustment to all fees in this 
section. (New Classification D and Classification E (Reciprocating Internal 
Combustion Engines) were formerly included in Classification A and 
Classification B). New Classification F (previously included in classification B), 
Internal Combustion engines 750 bhp or greater, is proposed to be adjusted by an 
additional 10%. 

492 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 9 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

Table 1 has been updated to reflect the classification change to Internal 
Combustion Engines. 

E. RULE HISTORY 

Prior to July 1, 1997 the Antelope Valley was contained within the SCAQMD.  On July 
1, 1997 the AVAPCD replaced the SCAQMD as the agency with jurisdiction over the 
Los Angeles County portion of the Mojave Desert Air Basin (MDAB).  On January 1, 
2001 the AVAPCD was replaced by the AVAQMD.  Pursuant to both statutory changes, 
the rule and regulations of the predecessor district were retained until the Governing 
Board adopted, amended or rescinded them.  At the first meeting both the AVAPCD and 
the AVAQMD, the respective Governing Boards reaffirmed all the rules and regulations 
in effect at the time the agency changed. 

The jurisdiction of the AVAPCD and the AVAQMD were specified in the statutes as the 
portion of the Los Angeles County contained within the MDAB.  The MDAB was 
formerly known as the Southeast Desert Air Basin (SEDAB).  In 1997 the SEDAB was 
split into the MDAB and the Salton Sea Air Basin.  Descriptions of these air basins can 
be found in 17 Cal. Code Regs. §§60109 and 60144.  Since USEPA adopts SIP revisions 
in California as effective within jurisdictional boundaries of local air districts, when the 
local air district boundaries change the SIP as approved by USEPA for that area up to 
the date of the change remains as the SIP in that particular area.  Thus, upon creation of 
the AVAPCD on July 1, 1997 the AVAPCD acquired the SIP applicable to the Antelope 
Valley portion of the SCAQMD that was affected as of June 30, 1997.  Likewise, the 
AVAQMD acquired the SIP that was effective in the jurisdiction of the AVAPCD as of 
December 31, 2000.  Therefore, the SIP history for this region is based upon the rules 
adopted, effective, and approved for the Antelope Valley by SCAQMD. 

Rule 301 was originally adopted by the SCAQMD on 02/04/1977.  It has been 
subsequently amended 05/27/77, 01/06/78, 06/16/78,04/04/80, 09/05/80, 06/05/81, 
09/09/82, 12/03/82, 06/03/83, 05/04/84, 07/06/84, 11/02/84, 12/06/85, 05/01/87, 
06/03/88, 12/02/88, 01/06/89, 06/02/89, 06/01/90, 06/07/91, 12/06/91, 06/05/92, 
07/10/92, 06/11/93, 10/08/93, 06/10/94, 05/12/95, 10/13/95, 05/10/96, 05/09/97, 
03/17/98, 11/15/05 effective 01/01/06, 09/18/07 effective 01/01/08, 06/17/08 effective 
01/01/09, 06/15/10 effective 01/01/11, 06/19/12 effective 01/01/13, 06/18/13 effective 
01/01/14, 07/15/14 effective 01/01/15, 07/21/15 effective 01/01/16 , 07/19/16; effective 
01/01/17 , 07/18/17 effective 01/01/18; 07/17/18 effective 01/01/19; 7/16/19 effective 
1/01/2020 and 08/18/2020 effective 01/01/2021. The 08/18/2020 effective 01/01/2021 
version is the current version in the AVAQMD rulebook.   

Rule 301 is proposed for amendment to adjust most fees by 5% to recover the rising 
costs of issuing air quality permits, performing inspections, investigations, and enforcing 
District rules and regulations. In addition, the AVAQMD is proposing a new fee 
category for Internal Combustion Engines to more equitably recover permitting and 
inspection costs for engines over a specific horsepower.   

493 of 527



 

10 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

F. PROPOSITION 26 ANALYSIS  

On November 2, 2010 the California voters added Article XIIIC §1(e) to the California 
Constitution (commonly referred to as Proposition 26).  This provision added a new 
definition of “tax” which resulted in a variety of fees and charges imposed by local 
governmental entities to be subject to voter approval.  The provisions also provided 
several exceptions to this voter approval requirement including but not limited to:   

A charge imposed for a specific benefit conferred or privilege granted directly to 
the payer that is not provided to those not charged, and which does not exceed the 
reasonable costs to the local government of conferring the benefit or granting the 
privilege. 

A charge imposed for a specific government service or product provided directly 
to the payer that is not provided to those not charged, and which does not exceed 
the reasonable costs to the local government of providing the service or product. 

A charge imposed for the reasonable regulatory costs to a local government for 
issuing licenses and permits, performing investigations, inspections, and audits, 
enforcing agricultural marketing orders, and the administrative enforcement and 
adjudication thereof. 

If a fee increase falls within one or more of these exceptions it is considered not a tax and 
thus not subject to voter approval. 

1. Justification for Fee Adjustment to Rule 301 – Permit Fees 

In general, air district permit fees would fall under this exemption so long as they 
are reasonably related to the costs of issuance and enforcement of the permits.  A 
similar requirement that air district fees be reasonably related to costs of district 
programs is found in Health & Safety Code §42311(a) and includes language 
indicating that a CPI adjustment is part of a measure of the reasonable increase in 
district costs.  In addition, the California League of Cities in its April 2011 
implementation guide for Prop 261 opined that a CPI increase is part of the 
reasonable regulatory cost of issuing a license or permits and thus does not need 
voter approval. 

The budget includes anticipated revenue derived from a proposed 5% fee increase to most permit 
fees. The proposed increase is expected to recover the costs of permitting, performing 
inspections, investigations and enforcing District rules and regulations. A new fee category for 
Internal Combustion Engines is being added to more equitably recover permitting and inspection 
costs for engines over a specific horsepower. Therefore, the proposed fee adjustment is well 
within the provisions of Health & Safety Code §42311(a) and falls within the exemption found 
in Article XIIIC §1(e)(3) of the California Constitution. 
  

                                                 
1 http://www.cacities.org/Resources-Documents/Policy-Advocacy-Section/Hot-Issues/Proposition-26-
Implementation-Guide  

494 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 11 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 

495 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 A-1 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

 

APPENDIX "A" 
Rule 301 – Permit Fees 

Iterated Version 
 
 
 

The iterated version is provided so that the changes to an existing rule may be easily found.  The 
manner of differentiating text is as follows: 
 
1. Underlined text identifies new or revised language. 
 
2. Lined out text identifies language which is being deleted. 
 
3. Normal text identifies the current language of the current rule which will remain unchanged 

by the adoption of the proposed amendments. 
 
4. Italicized text identifies explanatory material that is not part of the proposed language 

 
Rule 301 – Permit Fees 
 
  

496 of 527



 

A-2   AVAQMD Rule 301 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

This page intentionally left blank 
 

  

497 of 527



(Adopted: 02/04/77; Amended: 05/27/77; Amended: 01/06/78; 
Amended: 06/16/78; Amended: 04/04/80; Amended: 09/05/80; 
Amended: 06/05/81; Amended: 09/09/82; Amended: 12/03/82; 
Amended: 06/03/83; Amended: 05/04/84; Amended: 07/06/84; 
Amended: 11/02/84; Amended: 12/06/85; Amended: 05/01/87; 
Amended: 06/03/88; Amended: 12/02/88; Amended: 01/06/89; 
Amended: 06/02/89; Amended: 06/01/90; Amended: 06/07/91; 
Amended: 12/06/91; Amended: 06/05/92; Amended: 07/10/92; 
Amended: 06/11/93; Amended: 10/08/93; Amended: 06/10/94; 
Amended: 05/12/95; Amended: 10/13/95; Amended: 05/10/96; 
Amended: 05/09/97; Amended: 03/17/98; Amended: 11/15/05  
effective 01/01/06; Amended: 09/18/07 effective 01/01/08; 
Amended: 06/17/08 effective 01/01/09; Amended: 06/15/10 
effective 01/01/11; Amended: 06/19/12 effective 01/01/13; 
Amended 06/18/13 effective 01/01/14; Amended:  07/15/14 
effective 01/01/15; Amended:  07/21/15 effective 01/01/16; 
Amended 07/19/16 effective 01/01/17); Amended 07/18/17, 
effective 01/01/18; Amended 07/17/18, effective 01/01/19; 
Amended 07/16/19, effective 01/01/2020; Amended 08/18/2020, 
effective 01/01/2021; Amended xx/xx/xx, effective 01/01/2022 
 
 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-1 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 

RULE 301 
PERMIT FEES 

 
(A) General 

(1) Purpose 

(a) This rule sets forth the fees required for various permit activities required 
pursuant to the provisions of Regulation II – Permits, and Regulation XIII 
– New Source Review. 

(2) Applicability 

(a) This rule applies to: 

(i) Any person subject to the provisions of Regulation II – Permits, 
Regulation XIII – New Source Review, or Regulation XVII – 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration. 

(ii) Any governmental entity. 
a. Federal, State or local governmental agencies or public 

districts shall pay the fees to the extent allowed pursuant to 
the provisions of Chapter 2, Division 7, Title 1 of the 
Government Code (commencing with Section 6103); Part 
4, Division 26 of the Health and Safety Code (commencing 
with Section 41500) and Part 6, Division 26 of the Health 
and Safety Code (commencing with Section 44300 

  

498 of 527



 

301-2 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 

 

(iii) Any facility subject to the Provisions of Regulation XXX – 
Federal Operating Permits (Title V). 
a. Any facility subject to the provisions of Regulation XXX – 

Federal Operating Permits (Title V) shall also be subject to 
the provisions of District Rule 312. 

(3) Limitations 

(a) Revenue derived from permit fees shall be limited as required by Health 
and Safety Code Sections 42311, 42311.2 and 42311.5. 

(4) Effective Date 

(a) The amendments to this rule adopted on 08/18/202007/20/2021 shall be 
effective on 01/01/20212022.  

(B) Definitions 

For the purpose of this rule, the following definitions shall apply: 

(1) “Alteration Or Modification” – Any physical change, change in method of 
operation of, or addition to, an existing equipment requiring an application for 
Permit to Construct pursuant to Rule 201.  Routine maintenance and/or repair 
shall not be considered a physical change.  A change in the method of operation 
of equipment, unless previously limited by an enforceable permit condition, shall 
not include: 

(a) An increase in the production rate, unless such increase will cause the 
maximum design capacity of the equipment to be exceeded; or 

(b) An increase in the hours of operation. 

(2) “Cancellation” (or Cancel) – An administrative action taken by the District which 
nullifies or voids a previously pending application for a permit. 

(3) “Emission Reduction Credit” (ERC) – The amount of emissions reduction which 
is verified and determined by the APCO to be eligible for credit in an emissions 
reduction bank pursuant to District Rule 1309. 

(4) “Equipment” – Any article, machine, or other contrivance, or combination 
thereof, which may cause the issuance or control the issuance of air contaminants, 
and which:  

(a) Requires a permit pursuant to Rules 201 and/or 203; or 

(b) Is in operation pursuant to the provisions of Rule 219. 

499 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-3 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 
 

(5) “Expiration” – The end of the period of validity for an application, Permit to 
Operate, or a temporary Permit to Operate. 

(6) “Facility” – Any source, equipment, or grouping of equipment or sources, or other 
air contaminant-emitting activities which are located on one or more contiguous 
properties within the District, in actual physical contact or separated solely by a 
public roadway or other public right-of-way, and are owned or operated by the 
same person (or persons under common control).  Such above-described 
groupings, if on noncontiguous properties but connected only by land carrying a 
pipeline, shall not be considered one facility. 

(7) “Stationary Source” (or Source) – Any article, machine, equipment, contrivance 
or combination thereof which emits of has the potential to emit any regulated air 
pollutant and is required to have a permit pursuant to the provisions of District 
Rules 201, 202 and 203. 

(8) “Temporary Permit to Operate” – An interim authorization to operate equipment 
until the Permit to Operate is granted or denied.  A temporary Permit to Operate is 
not issued by the District but may exist pursuant to District Rule 202. 

(C) Requirements and Procedures 

(1) Fees, as specified herein, are required for the following activities: 

(a) Filing of a permit application. 

(b) Evaluation of new or modified equipment and/or Facilities that may cause 
air pollution or equipment intended to control air pollution. 

(c) Issuance of authority to construct(s). 

(d) Issuance of permit(s) to operate. 

(e) Annual permit to operate renewal. 

(f) Annual authority to construct renewal. 

(g) Change of location or ownership of a permit. 

(h) Alteration, modification, addition or revisions to equipment. 

(i) Permit granted or denied by Hearing Board. 

(j) Issuance of signed duplicate or corrected permit. 

(k) Issuance of permit(s) for previously unpermitted or altered equipment. 

500 of 527



 

301-4 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 

 

(l) Filing of application for issuance or modification of ERCs pursuant to 
District Rule 1309. 

(m) Reinstatement of a delinquent permit. 

(n) Any fees applicable to equipment located at a facility subject to 
Regulation XXX – Federal Operating Permits (Title V). 

(i) Any facility subject to the provisions of Regulation XXX – 
Federal Operating Permits (Title V) shall also be subject to the 
provisions of District Rule 312. 

 
(2) Fees shall be paid when due as specified herein. 

(a) Application and Duplicate Permit Fees 

(i) Application filing fees required pursuant to Section (D)(1) shall be 
submitted in conjunction with the application. 

(ii) Fees for signed duplicate or corrected permit fees required 
pursuant to Section (D)(9) shall be submitted in conjunction with 
the request for the duplicate or corrected permit. 

 
(b) Project Evaluation Fees for Complex Sources. 

(i) Project evaluation fees for complex sources required pursuant to 
Section (D)(2) shall be submitted not later than thirty (30) days of 
written notification to the applicant that the application is subject 
to this fee. 

(ii) If the applicant fails to pay the project evaluation fee for complex 
sources when due the APCO shall, after written notice to the 
applicant, cancel the application. 

 
(c) Initial and Annual Permit fees. 

(i) Permit fees shall be invoiced as follows: 
a. At least thirty (30) days before the expiration date as shown 

on the permit; or 
b. In the case of an initial permit fee thirty (30) days after 

issuance of the permit or the due date on the invoice 
produced after issuance of the permit, whichever is later. 

(ii) The permit owner/operator or applicant will be notified by First 
Class mail, postage prepaid, of the amount to pay and the due date 
of the invoice. 

(iii) If the fee is not paid on or before the due date of the invoice the 
permit shall become delinquent on the due date of the invoice or 

501 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-5 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 
 

expiration date on the permit, whichever occurs first, and shall no 
longer be valid. 

(iv) If the applicable fees remain unpaid, within thirty (30) days after 
the due date of the invoice or expiration date of the permit, 
whichever occurs first, the owner/operator or applicant shall be 
notified in writing by first class mail, postage prepaid: 
a. That the permit has become delinquent for non-payment of 

fees and is no longer valid; and 
b. The consequences of continuing to construct or operate 

with an invalid permit. 
(v) If, after notification, the permit remains delinquent for more than 

three (3) months, the permit shall become inactive in the District’s 
records. 

 
(3) Reinstatement of Permits 

(a) A permit which is delinquent but has not become inactive may be 
reinstated by payment in full of all outstanding fees, fines and penalties, 
including but not limited to other fees imposed pursuant to District 
Regulation III and fines or penalties imposed pursuant to the provisions of 
Article 3, Chapter 4, Part 4 of Division 26 of the Health and Safety Code 
(commencing with section 42400). 

(4) Inactive Permits 

(a)  A permit which has become inactive is null and void.  The equipment 
which was the subject of the inactive permit may be permitted again by 
the District so long as the owner/operator submits a new permit 
application.  Such new permit application will be processed as if the 
equipment was an entirely new unit requiring a permit. 

(5) Refunds 

(a) No claim for refund for any fee required by this rule shall be honored 
unless: 

(i) For initial permit fees, such claim is submitted within ninety (90) 
days after the permit was issued. 

(ii) For renewal permit fees, such claim is submitted within ninety (90) 
days after the prior permit expiration date. 

 
(b) Refunds shall be pro-rated for the period between the date the request is 

received or prior permit expiration date, whichever is applicable, and the 
current permit expiration date. 

502 of 527



 

301-6 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 

 

(c) Fees established as surcharges are not refundable and are assessed in 
addition to the schedules established for permit fees.  Surcharges are 
assessed and applicable as specified herein. 

(d) The application filing fee set forth in section (D)(1) is non-refundable.  

(6) Pro-rated fees 

(a) The APCO may pro-rate any of the following fees excluding any 
applicable filing fee: 

(i) Initial Permit Fee; 
(ii) Annual Permit to Operate Renewal Fee; 
(iii) Permit to Construct Renewal Fee; 
(iv) Alteration, Modification, Addition or Revision Fees. 
 

(b) Pro-rated fees shall be calculated based upon the fees and fee schedule in 
effect on the date of issuance of the permit to which the fees apply. 

(c) Fees shall be pro-rated for the period between the date of the issuance of 
the affected permit and the expiration of the permit. 

(7) Service Charge for Returned Checks 

(a) Any person who submits a check to the District on insufficient funds or on 
instructions to stop payment on the check, absent an overcharge or other 
legal entitlement to withhold payment, shall be subject to a $25.00 service 
charge. 

(8) Credit Card Payments 

(a) If any person wishes to pay using a credit card the person shall also pay 
any costs imposed by the company processing the credit card transaction. 

(D) Fees 

(1) Application Filing Fee 

(a) Any person who applies for the issuance of a new or modified permit shall 
be assessed a fee of $525.00551.00, except for: 

(i) Any facility subject to the Provisions of Regulation XXX – 
Federal Operating Permits (Title V) shall be assessed a fee of 
$873.00916.00. 

503 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-7 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 
 

 (b) The application filing fee is non-refundable and shall not be applied to any 
subsequent application. 

(c) Applications shall not be accepted unless they are accompanied by the 
application filing fee. 

(2) Project Evaluation Fee for Complex Sources 

(a) Any person who submits an application which is related to projects to 
construct or modify any of the following, shall be assessed a project 
evaluation fee for complex sources. 

(i) Equipment associated with landfills;  
(ii) Equipment associated with resource recovery projects;  
(iii) Equipment associated with energy cogeneration projects;  
(iv) Equipment associated with electrical power plants;  
(v) Other permit units subject to the provisions of District Rule 

1303(B); 
(vi) Emissions of hazardous and toxic material requiring a Health Risk 

Assessment pursuant to District Rule 1401(E)(3) or a Case-By-
Case MACT determination pursuant to District Rule 1401(F)(2) 
and/or waste disposal or treatment facilities;  

(vii) Any facility requiring a permit under Regulation XVII – 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration; and 

(viii) Any other permit units where the APCO or his or her designee has 
determined that an analysis required pursuant to these Rules or 
Regulations would require over twenty-fourtwo (24) hours of staff 
time to complete. (For consistency with MDAQMD Rule 301) 

 
(b) A deposit of $6,500.00 to be applied toward the project evaluation fee for 

complex sources shall be paid within 30 days of written notification by the 
District that the application is subject to this fee. 

(c) The project evaluation fee for complex sources shall be based on the 
District's total actual and reasonable labor time and other reasonable 
expenses for the evaluation required to develop a permit to construct 
and/or permit to operate. 

(i) This fee shall be calculated at a labor rate of $173.00 per hour plus 
actual expenses.  

(ii) The fee shall accrue and be applied against the deposit. 
(iii) Should the District's costs as calculated pursuant to subsection (i) 

above not exceed the deposit; the remainder of the deposit will be 
returned to the applicant. 

(iv) Should the District's costs as calculated pursuant to subsection (i) 
above exceed the deposit the excess will be billed to the applicant. 

504 of 527



 

301-8 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 

 

a. The applicant shall be notified, in writing, of the amount of 
any such excess fee and the due date for payment of the 
fee. 

b. An accounting of costs and written notice to the applicant 
shall be issued to the applicant at least quarterly. 

 
(d) Actual expenses of the District include consultant services which are 

engaged by the District for the purpose of project evaluations.  When 
project evaluations are performed for the District under such a contract, 
the applicant will be assessed fees for the actual total and reasonable costs 
incurred by the District staff to oversee, review and approve the evaluation 
as well as the actual cost to the District of the contractor evaluation. 

(e) Actual expenses of the District include project notice fees which are 
incurred on behalf of project public notices.   

(f) The provisions of Section (C)(2) do not apply to this fee.  If the applicant 
fails to pay the project evaluation fee for complex sources when due the 
APCO shall, after written notice to the applicant, cancel the application. 

(3) Initial Permit Fee 

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this Rule, any person who applies for a 
new or modified permit shall, upon notification that the application has 
been approved, be assessed the initial permit fee for the issuance of a 
permit to construct or permit to operate in the amount prescribed in 
schedules set forth in section (E)(1). 

(i) For applications containing mutually exclusive alternative 
construction scenarios the APCO may, upon written request of the 
applicant, assess an alternate initial permit fee.  Such alternate 
initial permit fee shall not be less than the highest initial permit fee 
for any single alternative scenario set forth in the application and 
shall not be more than the sum of the initial permit fees for all 
alternative scenarios set forth in the application. 

 
(b) After the provisions for granting permits as set forth in Division 26 of the 

Health and Safety Code and these Rules and Regulations have been 
complied with, the applicant shall be notified, in writing, of the amount of 
the fee to be paid as the initial permit fee. 

(i) Notice may be given by personal service or by mail, postage 
prepaid. 
 

505 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-9 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 
 

(4) Annual Permit to Operate Renewal Fee 

(a) Permits to operate shall be annually renewable, upon payment of fees. 

(b) The annual permit to operate renewal fee shall be calculated pursuant to 
the schedules set forth in section (E)(1). 

(c) The annual permit to operate renewal fee shall be invoiced as specified in 
Section (C)(2)(c) above. 

(5) Permit to Construct Renewal Fee 

(a) Authorities to construct may be renewed, upon payment of fees, pursuant 
to the provisions of District Rule 201. 

(b) The authority to construct renewal fee shall be calculated pursuant to the 
schedules set forth in section (E)(1). 

(i) For applications containing mutually exclusive alternative 
construction scenarios the APCO may, upon written request of the 
applicant, assess an alternate authority to construct renewal fee.  
Such alternate authority to construct renewal fee shall not be less 
than the highest authority to construct renewal fee for any single 
alternative scenario set forth in the application and shall not be 
more than the sum of the authority to construct renewal fees for all 
alternative scenarios set forth in the application. 

 
(c) Authorities to construct may only be renewed for two (2) years after the 

initial date of issuance, unless the application is canceled or an extension 
of time pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 205 has been granted by 
the APCO. 

(d) The authority to construct renewal fee shall be invoiced as specified in 
Section (C)(2)(c) above. 

(e) When construction is completed prior to the expiration of the authority to 
construct, the authority to construct may thereupon act as a temporary 
permit to operate pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 202.  The 
residual fee for the authority to construct, calculated as a pro-rated fee for 
the period between the completion of construction and the expiration date 
of the permit, shall be applied to a pro-rated initial permit fee for the same 
period.  Any positive difference between the residual fee and the pro-rated 
initial permit fee shall be invoiced as set forth in Section (C)(2). 

 (6) Change of Location or Ownership Fees 

506 of 527



 

301-10 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 

 

(a) Permits, pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 209, are only valid for 
the location specified in the permit. 

(i) Any person who applies for a permit requesting a change in the 
location of equipment included on a currently valid permit shall 
request in writing a change of location for the equipment and may 
be assessed an initial permit fee if the change in location also 
creates additional alteration(s), modification(s), addition(s) or 
revision(s) in either the subject permit or other permits at the same 
facility. 

(ii) The person will be notified by mail, postage prepaid, of the amount 
of the initial permit fee due as a result of the change of location 
and the due date for payment of the fee. 

(iii) The APCO or his or her designee may, upon the applicant's written 
request, waive the initial permit fee. 

 
(b) Permits, pursuant to the provisions of District Rule 209, are only valid as 

to the person named on the permit. 

(i) Any person who applies for a permit requesting a change of 
ownership of equipment included on a currently valid permit shall 
be assessed a transfer fee of $306.00321.00 for each permit being 
transferred from one person to another. 

(ii) The filing fee set forth in Section (D)(1) are waived for 
applications solely requesting a change of ownership 

(iii) The transfer fee for applications solely requesting a change of 
ownership is due at the time the application is filed. 

 
(c) Any person submitting an application for a permit requesting a change of 

location and/or change of ownership which also requests alterations, additions 
or revisions to the permit shall be assessed either the fees set forth in this 
Section or in Section (D)(7) whichever is greater. 

(7) Alteration, Modification, Addition or Revision Fees 

(a) Any person who applies for a permit requesting alterations, modifications, 
additions, or revisions of the permit resulting from a change to equipment 
included on a currently valid permit shall be assessed an application filing fee 
pursuant to Section (D)(1) and a permit revision fee. 

(b) The permit revision fee shall be calculated as follows: 

(i) The initial permit fee for a permit which includes the alteration, 
addition or revision minus the previous years annual permit to operate 
renewal fee pro-rated for the period between the date of issuance for 

507 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-11 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 
 

the permit containing the alteration addition or revisions and the 
original permit(s) expiration date. 

 
(c) The permit revision fee shall be invoiced as set forth in Section (C)(2)(c)(i). 

(d) Any person submitting an application for a permit requesting a change of 
location and/or change of ownership which also requests alterations, additions 
or revisions to the permit shall be assessed either the fees set forth in this 
Section or in Section (D)(6) whichever is greater. 

(8) Fees Applicable when Permit Granted or Denied by Hearing Board 

(a) If a permit is granted by the Hearing Board after denial of an application by 
the APCO or after the application has been deemed denied pursuant to 
District Rule 215, the applicant shall be assessed the appropriate fees set forth 
in this Rule. 

(b) The applicant shall be notified, in writing, of the amount of the fee and the 
due date for payment of the fee. 

(c) Previously paid fees are not refundable if the Hearing Board denies the 
issuance of a permit which was granted by the APCO. 

(9) Signed Duplicate or Corrected Permit Fees 

(a) A request for a signed duplicate permit or for administrative corrections to a 
permit shall be made in writing by the permit holder. 

(b) The permit holder may be assessed a fee of $152.00160.00 for issuing each 
signed duplicate or corrected permit. 

(c) The fee for a signed duplicate or corrected permit is due at the time the permit 
is requested. 

(10) Previously Unpermitted or Altered Equipment Fee. 

(a) When equipment is built, erected, installed, altered, or replaced (except for 
identical replacement) without the owner or operator obtaining a permit to 
construct in accordance with Rule 201, the owner or operator shall be 
assessed a previously unpermitted equipment fee. 

(b) The previously unpermitted equipment fee shall be calculated as fifty 
percent (50%) of all applicable permit fees which would have been 
required for each year of unpermitted activity, plus the full amount of all 
applicable permit fees for the year immediately preceding the year when 
the permit to operate is granted. 

508 of 527



 

301-12 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 

 

(c) The unpermitted equipment fee is due when the permit to operate is 
granted. 

(d) The assessment of an unpermitted equipment fee shall not limit the 
District's right to pursue any other remedy provided for by law. 

(e) The provisions of this subsection shall not apply if a permit is required 
solely due to a change in Rule 219. 

(f) The APCO may waive the unpermitted equipment fee for good cause upon 
the written application of the person assessed the fee. 

(11) Fees for Issuance of Emission Reduction Credits 

(a) Any person submitting an application for Emission Reduction Credits 
pursuant to District Rule 1309 shall pay the following fees: 

(i) An initial application fee of $908.00954.00 for each application 
submitted. 

(ii) An analysis fee based upon the actual and reasonable labor time in 
excess of ten (10) hours labor billed at the rate of $173.00 per 
hour. 

(iii) The actual cost of publication of notice if such is required pursuant 
to District Rule 1309. 

 
(b) Any person submitting a document effecting an encumbrance or transfer 

of Emission Reduction Credits pursuant to District Rule 1309 shall pay a 
fee of $173.00 for each document submitted. 

(12) Reinstatement Fee for a Delinquent Permit 

(a) Any person who applies for delinquent permit reinstatement pursuant to 
the provisions of subsection (C)(3)(a) shall be assessed a fee equal to the 
amount of all outstanding fees, fines and penalties for the particular unit 
that is the subject of the permit and an initial permit fee for that unit for 
the current year.   

509 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-13 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 
 

(E) Schedules for Fees  

(1) Initial Permit and Annual Permit to Operate Renewal and Authority to Construct 
Renewal Fees. 

(a) Any Equipment or Process subject to the provisions of this rule shall be 
assigned a fee classification based upon the equipment and/or process type 
as set forth in Table 1 of this rule. 

(b) Any Equipment or Process subject to the provisions of this rule which is 
not otherwise listed in Table 1 of this rule shall be assigned fee 
classification B. 

(c) All applicable fees shall be assessed pursuant to the fee classifications 
listed in Table 1 according to the following schedule: 

 
Equipment/Process 
Classification 
 

Fee Amount 

Classification A  
 

$505.91$531.21      

Classification B 
 

$1,811.91$1,902.51       

Classification C  
 

$4,346.53$4,563.86        

Classification D – Reciprocating 
Internal Combustion Engines rated 
50 bhp to 499 bhp and 
All Emergency Engines 

$531.21 

Classification E - Reciprocating 
Internal Combustion Engines rated 
500 bhp to 749 bhp. 

$1,092.51 

Classification F - Reciprocating 
Internal Combustion Engines rated 
750 bhp or greater 

$2,083.69 

Electrical Generating Equipment 
(non-emergency) rated 
100,000,000 Btu/hr and less  

$6,023.886,325.07 plus $143.68150.86 per 
each 1,000,000 Btu/hr 

Electrical Generating Equipment 
(non-emergency) rated greater 
than 100,000,000 Btu/hr  
 

$16,723.2117,559.37 plus $36.6538.48 per 
each 1,000,000 Btu/hr 

Nozzles (Rule 461) 
 

$54.7357.47 per product/per nozzle  

510 of 527



 

301-14 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 

 

[Internal combustion engines (ICE) are being reclassified in the Permit Fee Table for 
clarification of rate dependent on BHP.  ICE and Emergency engines currently rated as 
Classification A will now be moved to Classification D. ICE currently rated as Classification B 
will now be moved to Classification E. ICE engines rated 750 bhp or greater will now be moved 
to new Classification F. 
[SIP:  Not SIP.  ] 
 

511 of 527



 
 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-15 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 
 

 

Table 1 
Equipment/Process Classifications 

 
Equipment Classification A Classification B Classification C 

Basic Process 
Systems including 
ancillary equipment 

Any Abrasive Blasting; Anodizing; Blending; 
Chemical (no toxics, hazardous) Milling; Cooling 
Tower; Any Degreaser; Deposition Ceramics; Dry 
Cleaning; Etching; Film Cleaner; Grinder; Ink 
Mfg; Laundry; Liquid Container Filling; 
Packaging; Polystyrene Extrusion; Polyurethane 
Mfg; Refrigerant Handling and/or Processing; 
Smoke Generator; Soldering; Stripping; Vacuum 
Metalling 

Adhesives; Air Stripper; Ammonia 
Process; Asphalt Process; Auto Body 
Shredding; Battery Charging/Mfg; 
Chemical (toxics, hazardous) Milling;  
Degreaser; Plastic/Resins Handling; Soil 
Vapor Extraction; Vacuum Generator; 
Any process not otherwise listed under 
any category 

Landfill Gas 
Treatment; Liquid 
Hazardous Waste 
Processing; LPG 
Distiller 

Other Processes    
Bulk and Crustal 
Material Handling 

Aggregate Conveying, Loading and/or Unloading; 
Bulk Chemical Terminal; Green Waste Screening; 
Paper Conveying; Weigh Station 

Aggregate Production; Concrete Batch 
Plant; Concrete/Asphalt Crushing; Other 
Conveying; Loading/unloading; Other 
Screening; Soil Treatment 

All others including 
Asphalt Batch Plant 

Coating including 
Printing and 
Coating Within 
Spray Booths 

Asphalt/Tar Pot; Asphaltic; Can/Coil; Any Dip 
Tank; Fabric; Film; Flow; Paper; Printing Press, 
IR/UV Over, Air Dry or Screen; Roller; Spray; 
Stereolithography; Striping; Tablet 

Asphalt Saturator; Printing Press Other; 
Spraying Resin/Gel Coat; Wood 

  

Feed/Food 
Preparation and 
Handling 

Charbroiler with integral control; Feed Handling; 
Restaurant Charbroiler 

Bakery Oven; Charbroiler no integral 
control; Feed Processing 

All others 

Fuel Handling and 
Storage 

Bulk Loading/Unloading <50,000 gpd; Fuel Oil; 
LPG; Spill Sump Tank; Waste Oil; Railcar 
unloading to Truck; Tank with no controls 

Aircraft Fueling; Bulk Loading/Unloading 
Rack 50,000 to <200,000 gpd; Fuel Gas 
Mixer; Hydrant Fueling; Natural Gas 
Odorizer; Toxics or Hazardous Storage 
Tank; Fixed Roof Tank; Tank with control 
system; LPG Tank with Vaporizing 
System; LPG Tank Truck Loading; LPG 
Treatment 

Bulk 
Loading/Unloading 
Rack 200,000+ gpd; 
Gasoline Blending 
Plant; All others 

512 of 527



 

301-16 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 

 

 
Table 1 

Equipment/Process Classifications 
 

Equipment Classification A Classification B Classification C 
Incinerators   Crematory All others  
Sewage, 
Stormwater, 
Wastewater and 
Water Treatment 

<10,000 gpd; Fluid Elimination; Landfill 
Condensate/Leachate Collection/Storage 

10,000 to <50,000 gpd; Up to 5 million 
gpd sewage treatment; Aeration; 
Groundwater treatment; Landfill Gas 
Collection; Sewage sludge composting; 
Sludge Handling 

All others 

Storage, Non-Fuel Asphalt <50,000 gal; Baker-Type; Dry Material; 
Sump Tank; Tank with control; Tank with 
sparging 

Aqueous Ammonia; Asphalt 50,000+ gal; 
Catalyst 

  

Air Pollution Control Devices   
Afterburner Non-catalytic; no more than one MMBtu per hour 

(supplemental fuel); single source 
All others (including boilers and incinerators) 

Biofilter No more than 100 cfm All others   
Carbon 
Absorber/Adsorber 

single source no toxics All others (non-regenerating) All others 

Catalytic Reduction Non-selective Selective   
Dust Control 
including Baghouses 
and Cyclones 

No more than 500 ft2 of filter area; all cyclones 
and settling chambers; All negative air machines 

More than 500 ft2 of filter area; Any size 
hot baghouse (special filter material) 

  

Electrostatic 
Precipitators (ESP) 

Less than 3000 cfm or any extruder or any 
restaurant 

All others   

Flares Portable All others Enclosed 
landfill/digester gas 

Scrubbers and/or 
Mist Control 
including Sparging 

No toxics, NOx or SOx control and single source 
and single stage; or for acid or any restaurant or 
any sparger 

All others, including Ultraviolet Oxidation   

513 of 527



 
 

AVAQMD Rule 301 301-17 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 
 

 
 

Table 1 
Equipment/Process Classifications 

 
Equipment Classification A Classification B Classification C 
Sterilizers Hospital ethylene oxide All others   
Vapor Control  All   
Fuel Burning Equipment (Not Cogeneration or Generating Electricity Equipment Other Than Emergency 
Equipment) 

 

Autoclaves; 
Chillers; Distiller; 
Dryers, Furnaces, 
Heaters, Kilns, 
Ovens, Roasters, 
Stills 

<5 MMBtu/hr; Glass Furnace less than one tpd 
pull; Laundry; Metal Recovery; Non-Organics 
Dryer; Non-Toxics Evaporator; Pavement Heater 

5 to <50 MMBtu/hr; Arc; Burn-Off; 
Catalyzed Metal Recovery; Chip Dryer; 
Cupola; Curing Oven with 
toxics/hazardous; Electric; Evaporator 
(Toxics); Frit; Galvanizing; Glass Furnace 
one to <50 tpd pull; Organics Dryer; 
Pot/Crucible; Natural Gas Kiln; 
Reverbatory 

All others 

Boilers <5 MMBtu/hr 5 to <50 MMBtu/hr; Up to 10 MMBtu 
landfill or digester gas 

All others 

Reciprocating 
Internal 
Combustion Engines 

<500 hp; 500+ hp Emergency All others [See new description/category 
below for clarification of engine 
categories.] 

  

Turbines <0.3 MW(e) Emergency 0.3+ MW(e) Emergency; <50 MW(e) not 
on Landfill or Digester Gas 

All others 

Cogeneration and Electrical Generating Equipment (including Duct Burners) 
Equipment under this category shall be assessed a permit renewal fee calculated based on design maximum fuel consumption of the 
equipment expressed in British thermal units per hour, using gross heating value (See (E)(1)(c)) 
Nozzles (Rule 461) 
Permits subject to District Rule 461 shall be assessed a single permit renewal fee calculated as follows:  the number of fuel dispensing 
nozzles multiplied by the number of products dispensed through each nozzle at the facility.  
Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines 
Equipment under this category shall be assessed a permit renewal fee based on the nameplate bhp of the engine with the exception of those 
engines designated as “Emergency” engines pursuant to 1110.2 which shall be assessed as Classification D.  (See (E)(1)(c)). 

514 of 527



 

301-18 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Permit Fees, D1 06/11/2021 

 

 
This page intentionally left blank. 

 

515 of 527



 
 
 

AVAQMD Rule 301 B-1 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

 
APPENDIX "B" 

PUBLIC NOTICE DOCUMENTS 
 

1. Draft Notice of Public Hearing – Antelope Valley Press 06/11/2021 

516 of 527



 
 
 

B-2 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

This page intentionally left blank. 

  

517 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 B-3 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF HEARING 
 
NOTICE IS HEARBY GIVEN that the Governing Board of the Antelope Valley Air Quality 
Management District (AVAQMD) will conduct a public hearing on July 20, 2021 at 10:00 A.M. to 
consider the proposed amendment to Rule 301 – Permit Fees. 
 
Overall increases in operating expenses require adjustments in permit fees.  The AVAQMD is 
proposing a 5% fee increase to Rule 301 – Permit Fees to recover the rising costs of issuing air quality 
permits, performing inspections, investigations, and enforcing District rules and regulations. In 
addition, the AVAQMD is proposing a new fee category for Internal Combustion Engines to more 
equitably recover permitting and inspection costs for engines over a specific horsepower.  
 
To allow time to implement the proposed fee changes in the computerized billing system, this 
amendment is proposed to be effective on January 1, 2022. 
 
SAID HEARING is being held in accordance with the guidelines set forth in the Governor's Executive Order 
N-29-20 issued on March 17, 2020 that modifies the Brown Act to allow attendance, conduct of the meeting, 
and public participation by teleconference, videoconference, in person or any of the above. 
 
Copies of the proposed amendment to Rule 301 – Permit Fees and the Staff Report are posted on the 
AVAQMD website at www.avaqmd.ca.gov and are also available at the AVAQMD Office at 43301 
Division Street Avenue, Suite 206, Lancaster, CA 93535.  Written comments may be submitted to Bret 
Banks, Executive Director, at the above office address, and should be received no later than July 19, 
2021 to be considered.  If you have any questions you may contact Barbara Lods at (661) 723-8070 
x23 or via E-mail at blods@avaqmd.ca.gov for further information.  Traducción esta disponible por 
solicitud. 
 
Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) the AVAQMD has determined that a 
Categorical Exemption (Class 8 – 14 Cal. Code Reg §15308) applies and has prepared a Notice of 
Exemption for this action.  
 
 
 

 
  

518 of 527



 
 
 

B-4 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

This page intentionally left blank

519 of 527



 
 
 

AVAQMD Rule 301 C-1 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

APPENDIX "C" 
PUBLIC COMMENTS AND RESPONSES 

 
1. N/A 
 

  

520 of 527



 
 
 

C-2 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

 
This page intentionally left blank. 

 
 

  

521 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 D-1 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

APPENDIX "D" 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT  

DOCUMENTATION 
 
 

1. Notice of Exemption (Draft) – Los Angeles County 

522 of 527



 

D-2 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

This page intentionally left blank. 
  

523 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 D-3 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
 

TO: Los Angeles County Clerk 
12400 E. Imperial Hwy, #1001 
Norwalk, CA 90650 

FROM: Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District 
43301 Division Street, Suite 206 
Lancaster, CA 93535-4649 

 
PROJECT TITLE:  Amendment of Rule 301 – Permit Fees 
 
PROJECT LOCATION – SPECIFIC:  Los Angeles County portion of the Mojave Desert Air Basin. 
 
PROJECT LOCATION – COUNTY:  Los Angeles County 
 
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Overall increases in operating expenses require adjustments in permit 
fees.  The AVAQMD is proposing a 5% fee increase to most permit fees in Rule 301 – Permit Fees to 
recover the rising costs of issuing air quality permits, performing inspections, investigations, and 
enforcing District rules and regulations. In addition, the AVAQMD is proposing a new fee category for 
Internal Combustion Engines to more equitably recover permitting and inspection costs for engines 
over a specific horsepower. Therefore, the proposed fee adjustment is well within the provisions of 
Health & Safety Code §42311(a) and falls within the exemption found in Article XIIIC §1(e)(3) of the 
California Constitution. 
 
To allow time to implement the proposed fee changes in the computerized billing system, this 
amendment is proposed to be effective on January 1, 2022. 
 
NAME OF PUBLIC AGENCY APPROVING PROJECT:  Antelope Valley AQMD 
 
NAME OF PERSON OR AGENCY CARRYING OUT PROJECT:  Antelope Valley AQMD 
 
EXEMPT STATUS (CHECK ONE) 
 Ministerial (Pub. Res. Code §21080(b)(1); 14 Cal Code Reg. §15268) 
 Emergency Project (Pub. Res. Code §21080(b)(4); 14 Cal Code Reg. §15269(b)) 
     X    Categorical Exemption – Class 8 (14 Cal Code Reg. §15308) 
 
REASONS WHY PROJECT IS EXEMPT:  The proposed amendments to Rule 301 – Permit Fees are 
exempt from CEQA review because they merely adjust fees and fee methodologies and there is not 
potential that the amendments might cause the release of additional air contaminants or create any 
adverse environmental impacts, a Class 8 categorical exemption (14 Cal. Code Reg. §15308) applies. 
 
LEAD AGENCY CONTACT PERSON:  Bret Banks              PHONE: (661) 723-8070 
 
SIGNATURE:  _____________________________   
TITLE:  Executive Director   DATE:  July 20, 2021 
 
DATE RECEIVED FOR FILING: 
  

524 of 527



 

D-4 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 

525 of 527



 

AVAQMD Rule 301 E-1 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

 
APPENDIX "E" 

BIBLIOGRAPHY 
 
 

The following documents were consulted in the preparation of this staff report and the proposed 
amendments to Rule 301 – Permit Fees: 
 
1. AVAQMD Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 

526 of 527



 

E-2 AVAQMD Rule 301 
Staff Report D1, 06/11/2021 

This page intentionally left blank 
 

527 of 527


	Regular Meeting 07/20/2021
	BOARD MEMBERS
	CALL TO ORDER  10:00 A.M.
	Pledge of Allegiance.
	Roll Call
	Items with potential Conflict of Interests — If you believe you have a conflict of interest, please recuse yourself at the appropriate time. If you have a question regarding a potential conflict of interest, please contact District Counsel.  
	PUBLIC COMMENT

	CONSENT CALENDAR
	Approve Minutes from Regular Governing Board Meeting of June 15, 2021.
	01 AV Draft Minutes 06.15.2021.docx (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4


	Monthly Grant Funding Summary.  Receive and file.  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
	Item #2 Grants Fund Summary July '21.pdf (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4


	Monthly Activity Report.  Receive and file.  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
	01 July 2021 Meeting Operations Activity Report.docx (1 page)
	02 Monthly CEQA Report JUL Board 2021.pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3


	Approve payments to MDAQMD in the amount of $136,484.38 for May 2021 expenditures.  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
	01 AV Agenda for Billing MAY21.docx (1 page)
	02 INV.pdf (1 page)

	Receive and file the Financial Report.  The Financial Report is provided to the Governing Board for information concerning the fiscal status of the District at May 31, 2021.  The Financial Reports for April provide financial and budget performance information for the District for the period referenced.  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
	01 AV Agenda for Financials MAY21.docx (1 page)
	02 MAY FINANCIALS AV.pdf (16 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16



	ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION
	DEFERRED ITEMS
	NEW BUSINESS
	Conduct a continued public hearing to consider the amendment of Regulation XIII – New Source Review, amendment of Regulation XVII – Prevention of Significant Deterioration, and make conforming changes to Rule 1401 – New Source Review for Toxic Air Contaminants: a. Continue public hearing; b. Receive staff report and additional information; c. Receive additional public testimony; d. Close public hearing; e. Make a determination that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Categorical Exemption applies; f. Waive reading of Resolution; g. Adopt Resolution making appropriate findings, certifying the Notice of Exemption, amending the Rules and directing staff actions.  Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO.
	01 AV Reg XIII et al Min Item 2021 20 Jul.docx (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3

	02 AV Reg XIII et al Reso 2021 20 Jul.docx (5 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	03 AV1300 2021 20 Jul (clean).pdf (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4

	04 AV1301 2021 20 Jul (clean).pdf (14 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14

	05 AV1302 2021 20 Jul (clean).pdf (16 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16

	06 AV1303 2021 20 Jul (clean).pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2

	07 AV1304 2021 20 Jul (clean).pdf (8 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8

	08 AV1305 2021 20 Jul (clean).pdf (6 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6

	09 AV1306 2021 20 Jul (clean).pdf (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4

	10 AV1309 2021 20 Jul (clean).pdf (14 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14

	11 AV1401 2021 20 Jul (clean).pdf (14 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14

	12 AV1700 2021 20 Jul (clean).pdf (6 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6

	13 AV SR D3a Reg XIII et al 2021 07 Jul.pdf (263 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65
	Page 66
	Page 67
	Page 68
	Page 69
	Page 70
	Page 71
	Page 72
	Page 73
	Page 74
	Page 75
	Page 76
	Page 77
	Page 78
	Page 79
	Page 80
	Page 81
	Page 82
	Page 83
	Page 84
	Page 85
	Page 86
	Page 87
	Page 88
	Page 89
	Page 90
	Page 91
	Page 92
	Page 93
	Page 94
	Page 95
	Page 96
	Page 97
	Page 98
	Page 99
	Page 100
	Page 101
	Page 102
	Page 103
	Page 104
	Page 105
	Page 106
	Page 107
	Page 108
	Page 109
	Page 110
	Page 111
	Page 112
	Page 113
	Page 114
	Page 115
	Page 116
	Page 117
	Page 118
	Page 119
	Page 120
	Page 121
	Page 122
	Page 123
	Page 124
	Page 125
	Page 126
	Page 127
	Page 128
	Page 129
	Page 130
	Page 131
	Page 132
	Page 133
	Page 134
	Page 135
	Page 136
	Page 137
	Page 138
	Page 139
	Page 140
	Page 141
	Page 142
	Page 143
	Page 144
	Page 145
	Page 146
	Page 147
	Page 148
	Page 149
	Page 150
	Page 151
	Page 152
	Page 153
	Page 154
	Page 155
	Page 156
	Page 157
	Page 158
	Page 159
	Page 160
	Page 161
	Page 162
	Page 163
	Page 164
	Page 165
	Page 166
	Page 167
	Page 168
	Page 169
	Page 170
	Page 171
	Page 172
	Page 173
	Page 174
	Page 175
	Page 176
	Page 177
	Page 178
	Page 179
	Page 180
	Page 181
	Page 182
	Page 183
	Page 184
	Page 185
	Page 186
	Page 187
	Page 188
	Page 189
	Page 190
	Page 191
	Page 192
	Page 193
	Page 194
	Page 195
	Page 196
	Page 197
	Page 198
	Page 199
	Page 200
	Page 201
	Page 202
	Page 203
	Page 204
	Page 205
	Page 206
	Page 207
	Page 208
	Page 209
	Page 210
	Page 211
	Page 212
	Page 213
	Page 214
	Page 215
	Page 216
	Page 217
	Page 218
	Page 219
	Page 220
	Page 221
	Page 222
	Page 223
	Page 224
	Page 225
	Page 226
	Page 227
	Page 228
	Page 229
	Page 230
	Page 231
	Page 232
	Page 233
	Page 234
	Page 235
	Page 236
	Page 237
	Page 238
	Page 239
	Page 240
	Page 241
	Page 242
	Page 243
	Page 244
	Page 245
	Page 246
	Page 247
	Page 248
	Page 249
	Page 250
	Page 251
	Page 252
	Page 253
	Page 254
	Page 255
	Page 256
	Page 257
	Page 258
	Page 259
	Page 260
	Page 261
	Page 262
	Page 263

	14 AV SR Apx G Reg XIII et al 2021 18 Jun.pdf (45 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45

	15 Reg XIII XVII FAQ 2021 03 May.pdf (1 page)
	16 AV Reg XIII et al NOE 2021 20 Jul.docx (1 page)
	17 AV Reg XIII et al Present 2021 20 Jul.pdf (12 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12


	Conduct a public hearing to consider the amendment of Rule 301 – Permit Fees: a. Open public hearing; b. Receive staff report; c. Receive public testimony; d. Close public hearing; e. Make a determination that the CEQA Categorical Exemption applies; f. Waive reading of Resolution; g. Adopt Resolution making appropriate findings, certifying the Notice of Exemption, amending the Rule and directing staff actions.  Presenter:  Barbara Lods, Operations Manager.
	01 AV 301 2021 20 Jul Minute Item.docx (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2

	02 AV 301 2021 20 Jul Reso.docx (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3

	03 AV 301 2021 20 Jul eff 01012022.pdf (15 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15

	04 AV 301 SR D1 2021 20 Jul.pdf (47 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47




	Mailed & Posted on:


